
DECEMBER 14, 2020 – Regular Meeting Agenda – 7:00 p.m. 

Printed on Recycled Paper   See Reverse 

47+---

December 14, 2020 – City Council Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

City Council Chamber 
390 Towne Centre Drive 

Lathrop, California 
(209) 941-7200

www.ci.lathrop.ca.us 

City Council 
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor 

Paul Akinjo 

Minnie Diallo 

Diane Lazard 

Jennifer Torres-O’Callaghan 

City Staff 
Stephen Salvatore, City Manager 

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney 

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk 

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer 

Michael King, Public Works Director 

Cari James, Finance and 
Administrative Services Director 

Mark Meissner, Community 
Development Director 

Zachary Jones, Parks and Recreation 
Director 

Ryan Biedermann, Chief of Police 

General Order of Business 
1. Preliminary

 Call to Order
 Closed Session
 Roll Call
 Invocation
 Pledge of Allegiance
 Announcements by Mayor/City Mgr.
 Informational Items
 Declaration of Conflict of Interest

2. Presentations
3. Citizen’s Forum
4. Consent Calendar
5. Scheduled Items

 Public Hearings
 Appeals
 Referrals and Reports from

Commissions and Committees
 All Other Staff Reports and/or Action

Items
 Study Sessions

6. Council Communications
7. Adjournment

Order of Discussion 
Generally, the order of discussion after introduction 
of an item by the Mayor will include comments and 
information by staff followed by City Council 
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their 
authorized representative, or interested residents, 
may then speak on the item; each speaker may only 
speak once to each item. At the close of public 
discussion, the item will be considered by the City 
Council and action taken. 

Consent Calendar 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered 
routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or 
interested resident so requests, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and 
considered separately.  

1



 

December 14, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THIS MEETING & COVID-19 
 

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency in California as 
a result of the threat of COVID-19. On March 12, 2020, Governor Newsom issued 
Executive Order N-25-20, which allows Council Meetings to be conducted telephonically. 
On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, which allows 
for the public to participate in any meeting of the City Council by electronic means. 
 
This meeting is being conducted utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means 
consistent with State of California Executive Order N-29-20, dated March 17, 2020, 
regarding the COVID-19 pandemic. In accordance with Executive Order N-29-20, the 
public may view the meeting on television and/or online. Council Meetings are live-
streamed (with Closed Captioning) on Comcast Cable Channel 97, and on the City 
Council Webpage: https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/citycouncil/page/live-stream 
 
This meeting will be available for public participation by video/teleconference via Cisco 
Webex at the following link: 
 

 Event address for attendees (copy and paste link on browser): 
 
https://cityoflathrop.webex.com/cityoflathrop/onstage/g.php?MTID=e
ad83f6f9d19ca81460da3a1f59c13538 
 

 Please register at the bottom of the page, at least thirty minutes (30 min.) prior 
to the meeting.  
 

 For audio only: +1-408-418-9388 Access code: 146 416 0028 / No need to call-
in if using webex audio.  

 
In accordance with Executive Orders listed above, guidance from the California 
Department of Public Health on gatherings, and to protect our employees and the public, 
remote public participation is allowed in the following ways: 
 

 Public comment/questions will be accepted by email to City Clerk Teresa Vargas 
at Tvargas@ci.lathrop.ca.us or by calling (209) 941-7230  

 Questions or comments must be submitted by 4:00 p.m., on the day of the 
meeting. 

 During the meeting, those joining by teleconference (Cisco Webex link listed 
above), will be allowed to speak prior to the close of public comment on an item, 
and read into the record during public comment. If you are using this method, 
send a “chat” message to the City Clerk (meeting host) indicating the item number 
you wish to speak on.  
 

2



 

December 14, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 

To leave a voice message for the Mayor and all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial 
(209) 941-7230. To send an e-mail for the Mayor and all Councilmembers 
simultaneously email: citycouncil@ci.lathrop.ca.us     
 
This City Council Agenda and meeting materials can be accessed by computer or any 
smart device at: https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/meetings  
 
General Information 

For reports citing supplemental documents relating to specific agenda items, these are 
available for review in the City Clerk’s Office. This agenda was posted at the following 
locations:  City Hall, Community Center, Generations Center, Senior Center, and the 
Lathrop-Manteca Fire District “J" Street and Somerston Parkway Offices. The meetings 
of the Lathrop City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 
97 and live streamed on the City’s website. 
 
Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility and/or accommodations to this meeting. [28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title 
II] Interested persons must request the accommodation at least 2 working days in 
advance of the meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (209) 941-7230.  
 
Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred to: 

 
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk  

City of Lathrop 
390 Towne Centre Drive 

Lathrop, CA 95330 
Telephone: (209) 941-7230 

  

3



 

December 14, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 

CITY OF LATHROP 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2020  
7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL 
390 Towne Centre Drive 

Lathrop, CA 95330 
 

AGENDA 
 
PLEASE NOTE: There will be no Closed Session.  The Regular Meeting will commence at 7:00 p.m.  
 
1. PRELIMINARY 

 
1.1 CALL TO ORDER 

 
1.2 ROLL CALL  

 
1.3 INVOCATION 

 
1.4 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
1.5 ANNOUNCEMENT(S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER 

 
1.6 INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S) – None 

 
1.7 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT(S) OF INTEREST 

 
2. PRESENTATIONS - NONE 

 
3. CITIZEN’S FORUM 

 
Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this agenda, 
may do so under Citizen’s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City 
Clerk prior to the commencement of Citizen’s Forum. Only those who have 
submitted speaker cards, or have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the 
conclusion of Citizen’s Forum will be called upon to speak. Please be aware the 
California Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate 
action on an item, which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item meets 
stringent statutory requirements. The City Council can, however, allow its 
members or staff to briefly (no more than five (5) minutes) respond to statements 
made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement or report on 
his or her own activities. (See California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)). 
Unless directed otherwise by a majority of the City Council, all questions asked 
and not answered at the meeting will be responded to in writing within 10 business 
days. ALL PUBLIC COMMENTS MUST BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
LATHROP CITY COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND PROCEDURES! 
 
 

4



 

December 14, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of 
these items unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which 
event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered 
separately. 
 
4.1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

Waive the Reading in Full of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda and 
Adopt by Reading of Title Only, Unless Otherwise Requested by the Mayor 
or a Councilmember  
 

4.2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of November 9, 2020 
 

4.3 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS ANNUAL BOND ACCOUNTABILITY 
REPORT FOR FY 2019/20 
Receive Report for Bonded and Non Bonded Community Facilities Districts 
 

4.4 APPROVE PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 AND FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 
BIENNIAL BUDGET CALENDAR 
City Council to Consider and Approve the Proposed Fiscal Year 2021/22 and 
Fiscal Year 2022/23 Biennial Budget Calendar 
 

4.5 DECLARE CERTAIN VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT SURPLUS PROPERTY AND 
AUTHORIZE THEIR DISPOSAL 
Adopt a Resolution Declaring Certain Vehicles and Equipment Surplus 
Property and Authorizing Their Disposal 
 

4.6 RECLASSIFY, ADD AND AMEND JOB CLASSIFICATIONS AND UPDATE 
GRADE STEP TABLE  
Adopt a Resolution to Add a Construction Superintendent Job Classification, 
Update the Maintenance Worker Series and Construction Inspector Job 
Classifications, Reclassify Staff Positions, and Update the Grade Step Table 
as of January 1, 2021, in accordance with California Code of Regulations, 
Title 2, Section 570.5 
 

4.7 CREATE    CIP    PS 21-06     LATHROP      ROAD AND HARLAN ROAD 
INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET 
AMENDMENT 
Adopt Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP PS 21-06 Lathrop Road and 
Harlan Road Intersection Improvements and Approve Related Budget 
Amendment 
 
 
 
 

5



 

December 14, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5 

4.8 AUTHORIZE TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE ON LOUISE AVENUE AT HARLAN 
ROAD 
Adopt Resolution Authorizing Temporary Road Closure for the Louise 
Avenue and Harlan Road Intersection for Construction Work Associated with 
Louise Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation CIP PS 18-01 
 

4.9 ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE BUZZ OATES 
DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 17100 MURPHY PARKWAY AND AUTHORIZE 
THE RELEASE OF BONDS ASSOCIATED WITH EP NO. 2018-10 
Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements for the Buzz Oates 
Development located at 17100 Murphy Parkway and Authorize the Release 
of Bonds Associated with Encroachment Permit No. 2018-10 
 

4.10 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 19 WITH 4LEAF, INC., FOR PROFESSIONAL 
CONSULTING SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION 
Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 19 Pursuant to Master 
Professional Services Consulting Agreement dated September 21, 2015, 
with 4Leaf, Inc., to provide Professional Consulting Services in the Building 
Division 
 

4.11 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS FOR CIP WW 20-17 
SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT AND RELATED BUDGET 
AMENDMENT 
Adopt Resolution Approving Professional Services Agreements with 
Robertson-Bryan Inc., KPFF Consulting Engineers, and PACE for CIP WW 
20-17 Surface Water Discharge Project and Related Budget Amendment 
 

4.12 APPROVE A SERVICE CONTRACT FOR INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND 
DESIGN FOR CIP GG 19-08 POLICE BUILDING   
Adopt Resolution Approving a Service Contract with DLD Design & 
Consulting for Interior Furnishings and Design Services for the Lathrop 
Police Services Administrative Headquarters – CIP GG 19-08 Police Building 
 

4.13 APPROVE AXON ENTERPRISE, INC., PURCHASE FOR EQUIPMENT AND 
SOFTWARE IN THE NEW CITY OF LATHROP POLICE SERVICES BUILDING, 
CIP GG 19-08 
Adopt Resolution Approving a Right of Entry Agreement and Purchase 
Agreement with Axon Enterprises, Inc., for Temporary Access to the 
Lathrop Police Stations and the Purchase of Equipment, Software 
Installation and Maintenance Services in the New City of Lathrop Police 
Services Building, CIP GG 19-08 
 

4.14 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PROFESSIONAL OFFSITE DATA BACKUP AND 
DISASTER RECOVERY SERVICES  
Adopt Resolution Approving Lease Agreement with HP Integrated Financial 
Services for Professional Offsite Data Backup and Disaster Recovery 
Services Provided by Solid Networks 
 
 

6



 

December 14, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 6 

RIVER ISLANDS CONSENT ITEM(S) 
 

4.15 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SUBDIVISION 
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 42 LOTS IN TRACT 4055 VILLAGE “DD” 
WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS 
Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4055 Village “DD” within 
the Lakeside West District, Totaling 42 Single Family Lots, CFD Annexation 
No. 15, and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands 
Stage 2B, LLC 

 
5. SCHEDULED ITEMS 

 
5.1 PUBLIC HEARING (PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER THE CDBG-CV3 

FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR A THIRD ROUND OF EMERGENCY GENERAL 
ASSISTANCE GRANTS FOR QUALIFIED LATHROP RESIDENTS  
 
Council to Consider the Following:  

 Hold a Public Hearing; and 
 Adopt a Resolution to Accept the CDBG-CV3 Funding and Allocate a 

Third Round of Emergency General Assistance Grants, Multi-County 
Agency Funding Requests, City Reimbursement for Program 
Administration, and Authorize Budget Amendment 
 

5.2 REVIEW AND PROVIDE DIRECTION ON PROPOSED ITEMS FOR INCLUSION 
AS PART OF CIP PK 20-18 SANGALANG PARK IMPROVEMENTS 
Council to Review and Provide Direction on Proposed Items to be Included 
as part of CIP PK 20-18 Sangalang Park Improvements 
 

5.3 RECEIVE AND OPEN PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD OF THE LATHROP PARKS AND 
RECREATION MASTER PLAN  
Council to Receive the Final Draft of the City of Lathrop Parks and 
Recreation Master Plan and Open 30-day Period of Public Review and 
Comment 

 
6. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS  

 
6.1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL – Appointment of Vice Mayor for 2021 

 
6.2 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL – Set Application Deadline for Appointment 

of One (1) Member to the Parks & Recreation Commission with Term Ending 
June 30, 2021 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 

December 14, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 7 

6.3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT(S) 
 Central Valley Executive Committee/LOCC (Akinjo/Vacant) 
 Council of Governments (Dhaliwal/Lazard) 
 Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division (Akinjo/Torres-

O’Callaghan) 
 Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority (Salvatore) 
 San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors (Salvatore)  
 San Joaquin County Commission on Aging (Zavala) 
 San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (Akinjo/Dhaliwal) 
 Water Advisory Board (Torres-O’Callaghan/Lazard) 
 Tri Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (Akinjo) 
 San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency (Akinjo & Lazard) 

 
6.4 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT(S) 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT  

 
 

/Teresa Vargas/ 
Teresa Vargas, CMC,  
City Clerk  

 

8



ITEM 4. 2

CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2020
7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

Pursuant to the Governor' s Executive Order N- 25- 20
On March 12, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N- 25- 20, which allowed
the option to attend public meetings telephonically/ teleconference during the COVID- 19
pandemic. In accordance with the Executive Order N- 25- 20, guidance from the California
Department of Public Health on gatherings, and to protect our employees and the public,

remote public participation was allowed, but not mandatory. The meeting was available
by Cisco Webex teleconference to the public,  as well as reduced capacity in- person

participation in accordance with social distancing guidelines.

PLEASE NOTE• There was a Closed Session, which commenced 6: 30 a. m.  The Re4u/ ar Meetinq

reconvened at 7:04 a. m.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 6: 30

p. m.

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to

Government Code Section 54956. 8

Property: 952 River Islands Parkway
Agency Negotiator: Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager
Negotiating Parties: County of San Joaquin
Under Negotiation: Lease / Use Agreement

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 7: 04 p. m.

1. 2. 2 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that direction was provided in
regards to Item 1. 2; no other reportable action was taken.

1. 3 ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Salcedo;

Councilmembers: Akinjo, Lazard and Torres-

O' Callaghan

Absent: None.

November 9, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

9



1. 4 INVOCATION - Mayor Dhaliwa) led a moment of silence.

1. 5 PLEDGE OF A LEGIANCE - Vice Mayor Salcedo led the pledge of allegiance.

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

At the request of Mayor Dhaliwal, Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones

announced the Veterans Day Memorial drive- in event at Valverde Park, on
November il, 2020 at 11 a. m. The event will broadcast on 89. 1 FM radio
station.

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

Councilmember Lazard declared conflict of interest with Items 4. 22 through
4. 26, due to her employment with Dell' Osso Farms.

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION - DECLARING NOVEMBER AS SIKH AWARENESS MONTH

Vice Mayor Salcedo,   on behalf of the City Council,   presented the

Proclamation to members of the Sikh community declaring November 2020
as Sikh Awareness Month.       Planning Commissioner Ash Ramilay
commented on the matter.

2. 2 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones reported the following past and
upcoming events and programs:

Recreation C/asses - In- Person Leisure C/asses

Announced in- person leisure classes offered to the public, such as:
dance, karate, Zumba and dog obedience. Limited capacity in order
to meet CDC guidelines.

Recreation C/asses - Virtual Leisure Classes

Announced virtual leisure classes offered to the public, such as: adult
family paint nights, Kidz Love soccer and Code Ninjas.

Youth Deve/opment Programs

Announced various on- site kid' s club programs at Joseph Widmer
Elementary and Mossdale Elementary Schools, and the GRIND @LGC
Teen Center.

November 9, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

10



Senior Programs

Provided information on the Brown Bag  & Commodities Program,

virtual classes and activities for senior citizens.

November Family Fun
Announced virtual the  " Gobble Wobble"  Fun Run,  scheduled for

November 25tn  _  27tn Announced virtual family game nights,

scheduled for Friday nights in November, free online registration.

Other Upcoming Special Events
Announced upcoming events:   Veterans Day Drive- In Event,

scheduled for November 11th, 11 a. m. at Valverde Park; Virtual Tree

Lighting Event,  scheduled for December 1St on City of Lathrop' s
Facebook Page; Drive Thru Donuts with Santa Event, scheduled for

December 5th, registration required; and Christmas Shoebox Parade,

registration deadline November 20tn

Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones also provided an overview
of the 2020 Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic ( CARES) Act Grant

for the creation of preparedness bundles for Lathrop senior citizens
related to Item 4. 12).

Mayor Dhaliwal announced a donation to the City of Lathrop for
3, 000,  received from the Church of Christ.  Council consensus

directed staff to coordinate with the Lathrop Rotary and Lions Club
to use the funds for thanksgiving dinners for families in need.

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

There were no speakers.

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Vice Mayor Salcedo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the City Council
approved the Consent Calendar, except Items 4. 22 through 4. 26, by the following
roll call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Salcedo, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading in full of ordinances and resolutions on agenda and
adopt by reading of title only, unless otherwise requested by the Mayor or
a Councilmember.

November 9, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

11



4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of August 10, 2020.

4. 3 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of September 14, 2020.

4. 4 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of October 12, 2020.

4. 5 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 20- 416 BY TITLE ONLY
AMENDING CHAPTER 17. 04, GENERAL PROVISIONS, AND CHAPTER 17. 80,

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE

RELATED TO ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND JUNIOR ACCESSORY

DWELLING UNITS ( TA- 20- 103)

Waived full reading and adopted Ordinance 20- 416 by title only amending
Chapter 17. 04, General Provisions, and Chapter 17. 80, Accessory Dwelling
Units of the Lathrop Municipal Code, related to Accessory Dwelling Units
and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units. The amendments to the Municipal

Code included the following:
Chapter 17. 04  ( General Provisions):  amended Section 17. 04. 080,

Definitions,  to include definitions for Efficiency Kitchen,  Junior

Accessory Dwelling Unit, Public Transit, Tandem Parking and Amend
the definitions for existing Accessory Dwelling Unit and Accessory
Structure; and

Chapter 17. 80 ( Accessory Dwelling Unit): Amend Chapter 17. 80 to

be consistent with new State law. The amendment will also include

provisions for the creation of Junior Accessory Dwelling Units.

4. 6 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 20- 417 BY TITLE ONLY

AMENDING TITLE 10,  CHAPTER 10. 24,   SECTION 10. 24. 030,   PUBLIC

WORKS DIRECTOR TO PLACE SIGN INDICATING NO PARKING AREAS, AND

SECTION 10. 24. 070, RESTRICTED PARKING; OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL

CODE

Waived full reading and adopted Ordinance 20- 417 by title only amending
Title 10, Chapter 10. 24, Section 10. 24. 030, Public Works Director to Place

Sign Indicating No Parking Areas,  and Section 10. 24. 070,  Restricted

Parking; of the Lathrop Municipal Code.

4. 7 TREASURER' S REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 2020

Approved Quarterly Treasurer' s Report for September 2020.

November 9, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

12



4. 8 ANNUAL REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF THE CITY' S INVESTMENT POLICY

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo. A question and answer period ensued.
Deputy Finance Director Thomas Hedegard provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 20- 4794 approving the Annual Investment Policy for
Fiscal Year 2020/ 21.

4. 9 APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP

AND THE COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN THE

COUNTYWIDE UNIFIED MASS NOTIFICATION SYSTEM

Adopted Resolution 20- 4795 approving a Memorandum of Agreement
between the City of Lathrop and the County of San Joaquin regarding
participation in the countywide unified mass notification system.

4. 10 CREATE CIP PK 20- 02 MILESTONE MANOR PARK REVITALIZATION AND

APPROVE APPLICATION FOR STATEWIDE PARK DEVELOPMENT PER CAPITA

GRANT PROGRAM

Adopted Resolution 20- 4796 approving the creation of CIP PK 20- 02
Milestone Manor Park revitalization,  authorized the submission of an

application to the Statewide Park Development Per Capita Grant Program

and approved related budget amendment.

4. 11 APPROVE ADDITIONAL OUTDOOR FITNESS EQUIPMENT AT CRESCENT

PARK, CIP PK 21- 05

Adopted Resolution 20- 4797 approving the placement of two additional
pieces of outdoor fitness equipment at Crescent Park and authorized related
budget amendments.

4. 12 APPROVE A BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR THE CREATION OF 250 EVERY DAY

ESSENTIALS AND COVID- 19 PREPAREDNESS BUNDLES FOR LATHROP
SENIORS

Adopted Resolution 20- 4798 approving a budget amendment for the
creation of 250 every day essentials and COVID- 19 preparedness bundles
for Lathrop Seniors,   reimbursed through funding from the 2020

Coronavirus Aid Relief, and Economic Securities ( CARES) Act Grant.

4. 13 APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 1 WITH CONDOR EARTH TECHNOLOGIES LLC.

TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING AND ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

Adopted Resolution 20- 4799 approving Amendment No.  1 with Condor

Earth Technologies LLC.,    to provide additional engineering and

administrative support.

November 9, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

13



4. 14 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.   18 WITH 4LEAF,   INC.,   FOR BUILDING

INSPECTION SERVICES

Adopted Resolution 20- 4800 approving Task Order No.  18 pursuant to
the Master Professional Services Consulting Agreement dated September
21,  2015,  with 4Leaf,  Inc.,  to provide professional building inspection
services.

4. 15 APPROVE COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH CALTRANS, AMENDMENT NO.

1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MARK THOMAS,

AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR THE CIP PS 06- 06 LOUISE

AVENUE / INTERSTATE 5 INTERCHANGE PROJECT

Adopted Resolution 20- 4801 approving Cooperative Agreement with
Caltrans, Amendment No.  1 to the Professional Services Agreement with

Mark Thomas, and approved related budget amendment for the CIP PS 06-

06 Louise Avenue / Interstate 5 Interchange Project.

4. 16 APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR THE LOUISE AVENUE PAVEMENT

REHABILITATION CIP PS 18- 01

Adopted Resolution 20- 4802 approving budget amendment for the
Louise Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation CIP PS 18- 01 and approved related
budget amendment.

4. 17 AWARD A CONTRACT FOR CITY- WIDE TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES TO

WEST COAST ARBORISTS

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo. A question and answer period ensued.
Public Works Director Michael King provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 20- 4803 awarding a Contract to West Coast Arborists
for tree maintenance services for city streets and parks.

4. 18 AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH

CALTRANS AND APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH

MARK THOMAS FOR THE CIP PS 17- 09 STATE ROUTE 120 AND YOSEMITE
AVENUE INTERCHANGE PROJECT

City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced public comment letter dated November
7,  2020,  provided by John Harris,  representing Tuff Boy Sales,  Inc.,

regarding concerns related to potential traffic impacts to his business.

Adopted Resolution 20- 4804 authorizing the City Manager to sign a
Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans and approved a Professional Services

Agreement with Mark Thomas for the preparation of the Project Approval &
Environmental Document ( PA& ED) for the CIP PS 17- 09 State Route 120

and Yosemite Avenue Interchange Project.

November 9, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

14



4. 19 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR CIP GG 10- 17 RETAINING WALL AND

LANDSCAPING AT TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE AND VILLAGE AVENUE FROM

ODYSSEY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

Adopted Resolution 20- 4805 accepting improvements from Odyssey
Environmental Services,  Inc.  for the CIP GG 10- 17 retaining wafl and
landscaping at Towne Centre Drive and Village Avenue, and authorized the
filing of a Notice of Completion and release of contract retention.

4. 20 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE MOSSDALE SOUTH NEIGHBORHOOD

PARK CIP PK 19- 03 FROM WABO LANDSCAPE & CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Adopted Resolution 20- 4806 accepting improvements from WABO

Landscape & Construction, Inc., for the Mossdale South Neighborhood Park,

CIP PK 19- 03 and filing of a Notice of Completion and release of contract
retention.

4. 21 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE GENERATIONS CENTER PARKING LOT

PROJECT CIP PK 20- 01 FROM MCFADDEN CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Adopted Resolution 20- 4807 accepting Improvements from McFadden
Construction, Inc. for the Generations Center Parking Lot CIP PK 20- 01 and
filing of a Notice of Completion and release of contract retention.

RIVER ISLANDS CONSENT ITEM( S)

Councilmember Lazard recused herself, following the vote of the consent calendar( Items
4. 1 to 4. 21), and left the chamber at 7: 39 p. m,, prior to the vote of Items 4, 22 through
4. 26, due to declared conflict of interest as noted in Item 1. 8.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal,  seconded by Councilmember Akinjo, the City
Council approved Items 4. 22 through 4. 26, by the following roll call vote, unless
otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Salcedo, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: Lazard

4. 22 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

FOR 42 LOTS IN TRACT 4000 VILLAGE  " BB"  WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 20- 4808 approving Final Map for Tract 4000 Village
BB" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 42 Single Family Lots and a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage 2A, LLC.

November 9, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

15



4. 23 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
FOR 25 LOTS IN TRACT 4002 VILLAGE  " AA"  WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST
DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 20- 4809 approving Final Map for Tract 4002 Village
AA" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 25 Single Family Lots and a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage 2A, LLC.

4. 24 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP, COMMON USE AGREEMENT AND SUBDIVISION
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 62 LOTS IN TRACT 4016 VILLAGE " W"

WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo. A question and answer period ensued.
City Engineer Glenn Gebhardt provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 20- 4810 approving Final Map for Tract 4016 Village
W" within the Lakeside East District,  totaling 62 Single Family Lots,  a

Common Use Agreement and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with
River Islands Stage 2A, LLC.

4. 25 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
FOR 57 LOTS IN TRACT 4020 VILLAGE  X"  WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST
DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 20- 4811 approving Final Map for Tract 4020 Village
X" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 57 Single Family Lots, City of

Lathrop CFD Annexation No.   14,   and a Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Stage 2A, LLC.

4. 26 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP,  CFD ANNEXATION,  IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF

DEDICATION,  AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 33
LOTS IN TRACT 4050 VILLAGE Z" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT OF
RIVER ISLANDS

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo. A question and answer period ensued.
City Engineer Glenn Gebhardt provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 20- 4812 approving Final Map for Tract 4050 Village
Z" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 33 Single Family Lots, City of

Lathrop CFD 2013- 1 Annexation No.  13, Irrevocable Offer of Dedication,

and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage 2A.

Councilmember Lazard returned to the chamber/ dais after the vote of Items 4. 22

through 4. 26, at 7: 44 p. m, for the remainder of the meeting.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS — None

November 9, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8

16



6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMIITEE REPORT( S) - None

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmember Akinjo commented on the status of the current election results,

congratulated the elected Council Members and thanked all the candidates for
their interest in the City. Councilmember Lazard and Vice Mayor Salcedo thanked
those in attendance.  Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan commented on the
importance of pedestrian safety for students walking to and from school.  Mayor

Dhaliwal echoed similar sentiments and wished everyone a happy thanksgiving.
City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided a brief update on the City' s river
discharge permit.

7.       AD) OURNMENT - there being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 7: 54 p. m.

u    ,., r...

i  ,      ",'       ,     ..r_

Ter sa Vargas, CM

Ci Clerk

November 9, 2020 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 9

17



18



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 4. 3
DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS ANNUAL BOND

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT FOR FY 2019/ 20

RECOMMENDATION:     Receive Report for Bonded and Non Bonded

Community Facilities Districts

SUMMARY:

As mandated by the California Government Code sections 53411 and 50075. 3, City
Staff is submitting the Annual Bond Accountability Report for the City' s Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs") for FY ended June 30, 2020.

BACKGROUND:

Senate Bill 165 enacted the Local Agency Special Tax Bond Accountability Act. This
Act requires the annual preparation of a report containing specific information
concerning the use of the proceeds or annual special taxes for CFDs. The Act only
applies to bonds issued on or after) anuary 1, 2001 in accordance with Section 53410
of the California Government Code. There are seven CFDs included in the FY 2019/ 20

annual report,  three bonded CFDs and four non- bonded services CFDs shown on

separate pages ( see Attachment " A" for a detailed listing).

Section 53411 and 50075. 3 of the California Government Code requires the chief

fiscal officer of the issuing local agency to file the annual report with its governing
body no later than January 1 every year.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The report will ensure compliance with Sections 53410, 53411 and 50075. 3 of the

California Government Code.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff time to prepare report.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.       Annual CFD Report for FY Ending ) une 30, 2020.

19



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS ANNUAL BOND ACCOUNTABILITY

REPORT FOR FY 2019/ 20

APPROVALS:

d
l o

Cari Ja Date

Financ irector

L v Z c

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

2 • 7 Z07,0
Ste en Salvatore Date

City Manager

20



CITY OF LATHROP

BONDED COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS REPORT

FOR FY ENDED 6/ 30/ 2020

Initial Amount Deposited to

Improvement Fund or 6/ 30/ 2020 Expended Project

District Project Costs( 1)    Balance( 2)    Amount Status( 3)

CFD 2003- 1

Mossdale Village- Water)      6, 716, 563. 00 0. 00       $ 6, 716, 563. 00 Complete

CFD 2003- 2

Joint Wastewater) 6, 096, 532. 33 0. 00       $ 6, 096, 532. 33 Complete

CFD 2006- 1

Central Lathrop Specific
Pian Infrastructure)      37, 263, 908. 50 0. 00     $ 37, 263, 908. 50 Ongoin

Note( 1)

For CFD 2006- 1 amount excludes$ 4, 000, 000 initially deposited in the Escrow Fund per the Bond Indenture.

Note ( 2)

For CFD 2006- 1, bond were redeemed on January 16, 2019 and the district was closed.

Note ( 3)

For CFD 2003- 2, the project is now complete.

For CFD 2006- 1, the Improvement Fund proceeds of the initial issuance are almost completely expended, however
the CFD is authorized for an additional $ 150 million of special tax bonds and future proceeds are meant to fund a

portion of a project within an overall estimated cost( in 2006 dollars) of$ 271 million.

21



CITY OF LATHROP

NON- BONDED COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS REPORT

FOR FY ENDED 6/ 30/ 2020

Special Taxes Expended

7/ 1/ 2019 collected during Amount and 6/ 30/ 2020 Project

District Balance( 1)       FY 2019/ 20( 2)     Encumbrances( 3)     Balance( 4)       Status( 5)

CFD 04- 1

Mossdale Services)       160, 499. 84 2, 318, 783. 96       $ 2, 297, 033. 96       $ 182, 249. 84 Ongoing

CFD 2005- 1

Historic Lathrop Services)  45,761. 85 48, 444.41 58, 725. 65 35, 480. 61 Ongoing

CFD 2006- 2

Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Services)     168, 752. 29 163, 747.87 5, 004. 42 0. 00 On oing

CFD No. 2013- 1

River Islands)      121, 732. 90 971, 208. 18 969, 644. 83       $ 123, 29625 Ongoin

CFD No. 2019- 1

South Lathrop)    0. 00 523, 372. 56 193, 983. 24       $ 329, 389. 32 On oin

CFD No. 2019- 2

Central Lathrop Specific)  0. 00 401, 216. 85 403, 716. 79 2,499. 94 Ongoin

Note( 1)

Beginning balances include previous year encumbrances carried forward for payment in the subsequent fiscal year:

Note( 2)

For CFD 04- 1 this amount represents the annual special taxes remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor- Controller,
building permit collections, interest earnings, and a transfer for capital equipment replacement.

For CFD 2005- 1 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor-
Controller and interest earnings.

For CFD 2013- 1 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor-
Controller and interest earnings.

For CFD 2019- 1 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor-
Controller and interest earnings.

For CFD 2019- 2 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor-
Controller and interest earnings.

Note( 4)

For CFD 2019- 2, the negative balance will be recovered with FY20/ 21 special tax remitted.

Note( 5)

All CFDs listed above are intended to provide funding for ongoing, perpetual operations and maintenance services.

22



ITEM 4. 4

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2021/ 22 AND FISCAL

YEAR 2022/ 23 BIENNIAL BUDGET CALENDAR

RECOMMENDATION:     City Council to Consider and Approve the Proposed
Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 and Fiscal Year 2022/ 23

Biennial Budget Calendar

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop Biennial Budget outlines the City' s spending plan and priorities
for the coming fiscal years which run from July 1st to June 30th. There are several
key dates leading to the budget ad option that require input from the City Council
and City Commissions. Coordination is needed to make sure processes move forward
as planned,   prevent confusion and misinformation,   and ensure appropriate

stakeholders are involved.  With that in mind, Staff proposes the following key dates:

April 2021 - Parks and Recreation Commission reviews Parks Budgets

April 2021 - Planning Commission reviews CIP' s for conformity with General
Plan

May 2021 - Council sets a Public hearing for Maintenance Districts

May 2021  -  Council reviews and prioritizes Capital Improvement Projects
CIP' s)

June 2021 - Council holds a public hearing on the Maintenance Districts
June 21 thru 23, 2021 - Council holds budget meetings to review and adopt

Proposed Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 and Fiscal Year 2022/ 23 Biennial Budget

Staff request that City Council consider approval of the Biennial Budget Calendar
Attachment A) outlining key dates to guide the development of the City' s Fiscal Year

2021/ 22 and Fiscal Year 2022/ 23 Budget.

BACKGROUND:

Every other year,  the City Council is required to adopt a biennial budget and
accompanying documents before the July 1 start of the new fiscal year.  The City of

Lathrop Biennial Budget outlines the City' s spending plan and priorities for the coming
fiscal years which run from July lst to June 30th.  The City' s budget is developed in
conjunction with the Council, Stakeholders, City Manager, and all City departments.
The budget is then reviewed and approved by City Council. The result is a budget
that reflects the community' s highest priorities.

Preparation of the budget is coordinated by the Finance Department in collaboration
with each City department.   The budget process, which typically spans about six
months, begins in January in order to ensure a budget is in place by July 15t.   As

recommended by the National Advisory Council on State and Local Budgeting

23



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2021/ 22 AND FISCAL YEAR 2022/ 23 BIENNIAL

BUDGET CALENDAR

NACSLB), the City develops a budget calendar with key dates, budget tasks, and

events to prevent misinformation and to ensure stakeholder participation.

The proposed Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 and Fiscal Year 2022/ 23 Biennial Budget Calendar
is provided in Attachment A. Some of the major budget activities are summarized on
the timetable below.

BUDGET ACTIVITY AN FEB MAR APR MAY 7UN

Finance rovides uidelines and trainin

Finance prepares target budget info and

ersonnel costs to de artments

Department' s prepare and submit revenue
ro ections

Department' s prepare and submit expenses
Includin Measure C ex enses

Citizen in ut at ublic meetin s

Cit Mana er reviews De artment re uests

City Manager & Departments present proposed
biennial budget to Council at public meeting

Cit Council ado ts Biennial Bud et

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the attached Biennial Budget Calendar to ensure all

departments and stakeholders are embracing key budget tasks,  events,  and

decisions.  This allows everyone to have an opportunity to plan and participate in the
budget development process. Additionally, a calendar will facilitate the preparation
and approval of a budget before the start of the new fiscal year beginning July 1,
2021.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.   Proposed Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 and Fiscal Year 2022/ 23 Biennial Budget

Calendar

24



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2021/ 22 AND FISCAL YEAR 2022/ 23 BIENNIAL

BUDGET CALENDAR

APPROVALS:

Zl2 Zn 2

rias Date

Sr. Management Analyst

t 2    2    Zt

Thomas Hedegard Date

Deputy Finance Director

ac, v

Cari Ja s Date

Directo , of Finance and Administrative

Services

i

Z _    

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z'? Z O

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

25



a-r ÀCHIHE' r , 4   
City of Lathrop

Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 and Fiscal Year 2022/ 23

Biennial Budget Calendar

January 2021 February 2021 March 2021 April 2021

5 M T W TH F 5 S M T W TH F S 5 M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7';   9 10 11 12 13 7 „°:   9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

10:_. 7,1 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 14 15 16 ll 18 19 20 11 T:  '  13 14 15 16 17

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30

City Council Meeting

Holiday

Date Action

Dec 2020 Finance Office is responsible for providing departrnents with information necessary

to prepare their budget request.

Jan 2021 Measure C Community Oversight Committee Meeting.

Mar 2021 Finance presents Mid- Year Budget Amendments for FY 2020/ 21 for City Council
consideration.

Mar 2021 Departments prepare and submit maintenance district budgets.

Apr 2021 Parks and Recreation Commission review Recreation' s budget requests.

Apr 2021 Finance reviews departments budget requests and prepares a Draft Preliminary

Biennial Budget for the City Manager' s review.( Including Measure C Expenses)

Apr 2021 City Manager meets with departments and reviews budget request.

Apr 2021 Planning Commission reviews proposed Capital Improvement Projects for

conformity to the General Plan.

Apr 2021 Notice of Public Hearing( June 14, 2021) sent to all property owners within district
boundaries.

Apr 2021 City Clerk publishes the Notice of Public Hearing for Capital Improvement Projects.

Page 1

26



C i i ElU` "     "

City of Lathrop
Fiscal Year 2021/ 2022 and Fiscal Year 2022/ 23

Biennial Budget Calendar

April 2021 May 2021 June 2021 July 2021
5 M T W TH F S 5 M T W TH F S 5 M T W TH F S S M T W TH F 5

1 2 3 1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11  =, 2 13 14 15 16 17 9 ; 1t  11 12 13 14 15 13  "  '  15 16 17 18 19 11 " i 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

30 31

City Council Meeting

Holiday

Date Responsible Party Action

May 2021 City Clerk publishes the lst Notice of Public Hearing for District Budgets.

May 2021 City Council receives preliminary engineer reports for maintenance districts, adopts

resolution of intent to levy, and sets the date of the Public Hearing( June 14, 2021)

May 2021 City Council reviews and prioritizes proposed Capital Improvement Projects.

May 2021 Finance prepared and prints the Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 and Fiscal Year 2022/ 23 Preliminary
Biennial Budget.

Jun 2021 City Clerk publishes the 2nd Notice of Public Hearing for District Budgets.

Jun 2021 City Council holds a Public Hearing- Ordering the Levy and Collection of Assessments.

Jun 2021 Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 and Fiscal Year 2022/ 23 Preliminary Biennal Budget delivered to City
Council and made available to the public.

June 21, 2021 Budget Meetings: City Council reviews and Adopts Final Biennial Budget for FY2021/ 22 and
thru FY 2022/ 23.

June 23, 2021

Aug 2021 Finance prepares and prints Adopted Biennial Budget.

Sep 2021 Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 Year- End Report with potential amendments to Biennial Budget Year- 1

Mar 2022 Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 Mid- Year Report with potential amendments to Biennial Budget Year- 2

Page 2

27



28



ITEM 4. 5

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       DECLARE CERTAIN VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT
SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZE THEIR
DISPOSAL

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Declaring Certain Vehicles and
Equipment Surplus Property and Authorizing Their
Disposal

SUMMARY:

The City currently has six surplus vehicles and various furniture and equipment that
have reached their useful life, have been replaced, or the repair costs exceed their
fair market value. Staff recommends these items to be auctioned, donated to a non-
profit organization, recycled with an approved agency, or discarded.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop updated its policy regarding disposition of surplus property on
December 1, 2014 pursuant to Resolution 14- 3848 and staff recommends that the
items listed on Attachment B" be declared surplus property in accordance with this
policy. All of these items have reached their useful life, have been replaced, or the cost
of repair exceeds their value.  Each item listed on the attachment has a brief

description of the condition of each item.  All of the listed items are ready to be

declared surplus property for sale, recycling, or disposal.

According to City policy, if the market value of surplus items is greater than $ 5, 000,

the Purchasing Officer shall present the listing of such assets to the City Council for
action regarding their declaration as surplus.  It has been determined that these items

collectively could have a value greater than $ 5, 000.

Vehicles will be sold at public auction by Nationwide Fleet Services pursuant to an
existing contract.  Surplus equipment will be discarded or recycled if auction not
successful.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Pursuant to City policy, at least once a year each Department Head shall conduct a
review of inventory,  goods and supplies utilized by that department and shall
determine what items have become surplus.  City stafF has gathered a list of surplus
items from all departments which are included in Attachment " B".   These surplus

assets have been reviewed and determined that their collective value could be greater
than  $ 5, 000.   In addition, once the surplus items are discarded,  it will help each
department maintain storage space.

29



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT SURPLUS

PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THEIR DISPOSAL

FISCAL IMPACT:

Any net revenues from the sale of these items will be returned to the City' s general
fund.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Declaring Certain Vehicles and Equipment Surplus Property and
Authorizing Their Disposal

B.  Surplus Inventory List

30



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT SURPLUS

PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THEIR DISPOSAL

APPROVALS:

11 02/ ZOZO
Ta yasha Rilla as Date

Accountant II

i

0/ o 0o2C)
Cari James Date

Director f Finance and Administrative

Services

zr 3 - zv a

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z• 7• ZflZO
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

31



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT SURPLUS PROPERTY AND

AUTHORIZING THEIR DISPOSAL

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop has a policy that allows for the disposal of
equipment and inventory with City Council approval; and

WHEREAS, the City has surplus vehicles and equipment, which have reached
their useful life, are inoperable, or the cost of repairs exceed their value; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the list of surplus items in which are
to be auctioned, donated to a non- profit organization, recycled, or discarded.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council declares the
items, as listed in Attachment " B", to be surplus property and authorizes the City
Manager to dispose of the surplus equipment and inventory.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14t" day of December,
2020, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

32



ATTACHMENT B

Surplus Inventory List
December 14, 2020

Surplus Type: Vehicle/ Other

Surplus Reason Codes: A-No longer needed B- Reached useful life C- Replaced D- Cost to repair is higher
than value E- Damaged/ not working

Surplus

Reason`
Code Description Year/ MakelModel Vin/ Serial Number Quantity Dept.

C Vehicle 005/ Jeep/ Liberty IJ4GL48K15W636198 I PR

C
Vehicle 006/ Dodge/ Durango I D4HB38N56F I 86674 AS

B Vehicle 2004/ Ford/ Explorer I FMZU72K44ZA55 I 29 I IT

C Vehicle 2007/ Dodge/ Durango I D8HB38N67F566669 I PR

B Vehicle 2007/ Dodge Durango ID8HB38N47F566668 I PW

B Vehicle 2007/ Chevrolet Silverado I GCEK I 9Z97Z I 22708 I PW

A Electric Heater py/

E Reciprocating Saw I PW

C Battery Operated Drill I PW

A Saddle Toolbox ( Pickup Truck) I PW

A
Side Mount Tool Box Set ( For

2 PWTruck bed)

A Truck Bed Tool Box 2 p//

A 2008 Silverado Tailgate I PW

A 2008 Silverado Bumper p//

Page 1 of 2

33



ATTACHMENT B

Surplus Inventory List
December 14, 2020

Surplus Type: Equipment

Surplus Reason Codes: A-No longer needed B- Reached useful life C- Replaced D- Cost to repair is higher
than value E- Damaged/ not working

Surplus

Reason

Code Description Year/ Make/ Model Vin/ Serial Number Quantity Dept

D Shredder CA

E Speed Queen Washer& Dryer PW

A Generator& ATS switch A

Surplus Type: Furniture

Surplus Reason Codes: A-No longer needed B- Reached useful life C- Replaced D-Cost to repair is higher
than value E- Damaged/ not working

Surplus
Reason

Code Description Year/ Make/ Model Vin/ Serial Number Quantity Dept

C File Cabinet- 4 Drawer 3
CA

E Metal Filing Cabinet Prior to 2005 4 p l/

A Large Metal Cabinets 2 pW

A Wood Bookshelves 3 PW

A Round Table I PW

A Standard Padded Chairs 9 PW

A Wood Desk pW

A Padded Chair w/rollers I PW

A Medium Size File Cabinets 2 py/

A Desk Lamp/ Lights 14 PW

Page 2 of 2
34



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 4. G
DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: RECLASSIFY, ADD AND AMEND JOB

CLASSIFICATIONS AND UPDATE GRADE STEP

TABLE

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution to Add a Construction

Superintendent 7ob Classification, Update the

Maintenance Worker Series and Construction

Inspector 7ob Classifications,  Reclassify Staff
Positions, and Update the Grade Step Table as
of 7anuary 1,   2021,   in accordance with

California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section

570. 5

SUMMARY:

In accordance with CaIPERS requirements, the City Council must adopt a resolution
approving the City of Lathrop Salary Schedule each time a change occurs. The State
of California has mandated yearly minimum wage increases between January 1, 2017
and January 1,  2023 based on an employer' s size.  As of January 1,  2021,  the

California state minimum wage increases to $ 14 per hour.

The City of Lathrop publishes it salary ranges in the Council approved salary schedule.
Staff has updated the FY 2020/ 21 Salary Schedule ( Attachment B) to reflect the State
of California mandated minimum wage changes.

In addition,  staff is proposing amendments to the position control roster for City
Council consideration. The proposed adjustments include the addition of one ( 1) full-

time- equivalent position  ( FTE)  and the updating and reclassifying of several job
classifications in the Public Works and Parks and Recreation Department' s.

BAC KG ROU N D:

The State of California has mandated yearly minimum wage increases between
January 1,  2017 and January 1,  2023.  The City of Lathrop complies with State-
mandated minimum wage increases in accordance with the Employers with 26

Employees or more schedule established by the Department of Industrial Relations.
The schedule below shows the increases for the City of Lathrop:

35



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
UPDATE JOB DESCRIPTIONS FOR VARIOUS POSITIONS AND UPDATED
GRADE STEP TABLE

Schedule for California Minimum Wage Rate Increases January 1, 2017- 2023.

Date Minimum Wage for Minimum Wage for

Employers with Employers with

25 Employees or Less 26 Em loyees or More

January 1, 2017 10. 00/ hour 10. 50/ hour

January 1, 2018 10. 50/ hour 11. 00/ hour

January 1, 2019 11. 00/ hour 12. 00/ hour

January 1, 2020 12. 00/ hour 13. 00/ hour

January 1, 2021 13. 00/ hour 14. 00/ hour

January 1, 2022 14. 00/ hour 15. 00/ hour

January 1, 2023 15. 00/ hour

In addition, the Public Works Department and the Parks and Recreation Department

have reevaluated their staffing needs to meet service level expectations of the
community as the City continues to grow.  In order to continue to provide the
exceptional service level the community has come to expect,  job descriptions may
need to be updated to match job duties and additional positions may need to be
created. Additionally,  changes in workload require a position to be reclassified to
better align the scope of the position with the needs of the Division or Department.
Staff is requesting changes to various job descriptions within the Parks and
Recreation and Public Works Departments to reflect the current needs of the City.

StafF proposes the following changes:

Construction Management Division, Public Works

Uudated ob Descriptions:

1.  Construction Superintendent  ( Attachment D):  Create and fund a

Construction Superintendent in the Construction Management Division

Grade 76).   The Public Works Department has determined the need for

additional skilled staff to support the Construction Division. Staff proposes

creating a Construction Superintendent position.   The current Utility and
Streets Maintenance Superintendent will be reclassified to fill this position.
Funding for the Utility and Streets Maintenance Superintendent will remain,
as it is necessary to fill this position in the near future. This position will be
funded from development permits in the Construction Management Division
2020- 5003). There is sufficient inspection fee revenue in the FY 2020/ 2021

budget to fund this position.
Annual Cost: $ 206, 170 — 1. 0 FTE

36



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
UPDATE OB DESCRIPTIONS FOR VARIOUS POSITIONS AND UPDATED
GRADE STEP TABLE

Reclassifications:

1.  Reclassify the Senior Construction Inspector ( Grade 61) to a newly created
Construction Inspector III ( Grade 61) ( Attachment E). This update reflects

changes that more accurately capture the responsibilities of the position.
This change will require that one staff inember be reclassified to the

Construction Inspector III position.
Annual Cost: No Fiscal Impact

Maintenance Division, Public Works/ Parks & Recreation

The Maintenance Division has been reorganized to better align services provided with
supervision and accountability to the Department that is responsible for providing the
service.   The Parks and Recreation Department will now manage parks and facility
maintenance staff while the street maintenance staff will remain in the Public Works

Department. With the change in the reporting structure, it is necessary to update the
job descriptions to reflect the areas of assigned responsibilities and the necessary
trainings and certifications required.  The changes will have various impacts as noted

below:

Updated ob Descriptions:

1.  Maintenance Worker I (Attachment F): Update job description and move
from Grade 38 to Grade 41 on Grade step table.
Annual Cost:  $ 14, 268

2.  Maintenance Worker II (Attachment F): Update job description and move
from Grade 42 to Grade 45 on Grade step table.
Annual Cost: $ 20, 093

3.  Maintenance Worker III   (Attachment G):      Reclassify the Senior

Maintenance Worker position  ( Grade 48) to the newly created Maintenance
Worker III position  ( Grade 48).  This update reflects changes that more

accurately capture the responsibilities of the position.  This change will impact

one currently filled position which will reclassify the incumbent to the

Maintenance Worker III position.
Annual Cost: No Fiscal Impact

4.  Maintenance Services Supervisor    ( Attachment H):    Update job
description.

Annual Cost:  No Fiscal Impact

37



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
UPDATE JOB DESCRIPTIONS FOR VARIOUS POSITIONS AND UPDATED
GRADE STEP TABLE

Reclassifications:

1.  Reclassify one  ( 1)  Office Assistant I/ II  ( Grade 35)  to an Administrative

Assistant I  ( Grade 41).     With the moving of the Parks and Facilities

Maintenance Division to the Parks and Recreation Department,  additional

administrative support will be needed.  As a result, staff is requesting that one

existing staff member be reclassified to an Administrative Assistant I.
Annual Cost: $ 10, 000

2.  Reclassify one ( 1)  Facility Attendant to a Recreation Leader and update the
Recreation Leader ( Attachment I) job description.   The combining of the job
classifications will create one position that can be assigned to various areas of
programming to more effectively meet the needs of the department.
Annual Cost: No Fiscal Impact

3.  Reclassify one ( 1) Senior Facility Attendant to a Senior Recreation Leader and
update the Senior Recreation Leader ( Attachment J) job description.  In order

to maintain consistency with the class series, the responsibilities of the Senior
Facility Attendant will be combined with the Senior Recreation Leader.   The

changes to the positions will be effective ] anuary 1, 2021 to coincide with the
minimum wage increase.

Annual Cost: No Fiscal Impact

Grade Step Table

1.  Adjust the grade step table to meet the minimum wage requirements

mandated by the State of California.  Currently, the City maintains two grade
step tables, one for part- time employees and one for full time employees. With
the adjustment to the minimum wage all employees will be moved to one City-

wide grade step table and the part- time grade step table will be eliminated.
Annual Cost: No Fiscal Impact — Included in FY 20/ 21 Adopted Budget

2.  Grade/ Step adjustment of Recreation Leader ( Grade 17, Part- Time Table) to
Recreation Leader ( Grade 21, City- wide).  Effective January 1, 2021 coinciding
with the minimum wage increase.

Annual Cost: No Fiscal Impact — Included in FY 20/ 21 Adopted Budget

3.  Grade/  Step adjustment of Senior Recreation Leader ( Grade 24,  Part- Time

Table) to Senior Recreation Leader ( Grade 24, City- wide).   Effective January
l, 2021 coinciding with the minimum wage increase.
Annual Cost: No Fiscal Impact — Included in FY 20/ 21 Budget

4.  Grade/ Step adjustment of removing the Senior Center Recreation Coordinator
Grade 38).     This is an administrative correction only.  The Recreation

Coordinator position is accurately listed as Grade 45.

38



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
UPDATE OB DESCRIPTIONS FOR VARIOUS POSITIONS AND UPDATED
GRADE STEP TABLE

As required by the Memorandum of Understanding, staff has reviewed and discussed
these recommendations with Service Employee International Union,  Local 1021

SEIU) and Lathrop Mid- Managers and Confidential Employee' s Association ( LMCEA).

RECOMMENDATION:

As the City continues to grow, staffing updates are needed to reflect the agency' s
current structure and future needs.  The Public Works and Parks and Recreation

Departments have reviewed their current staffing levels and have proposed changes
to job descriptions and job duties.     Furthermore,  with the continued pace of
development, the Construction Management Division,  is requesting a Construction
Superintendent to keep all of the City' s project moving forward.

In addition, as stipulated in the California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 570. 5,
the City is required to adopt the Pay Schedule or Grade Step Table to include the
increase in the California minimum wage.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed changes will have an annual fiscal impact of $ 250, 531.  The proposed
changes affect various departments.  The Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 budget has sufficient

funds to cover the proposed changes.  The majority of the increase ($ 206, 170) will

be funded from the Construction Management Fund, which is funded by development
fees.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.  Resolution

B.  Grade Step Table
C.  Position Control Table

D. Job Description - Construction Superintendent

E.  Job Description - Construction Inspector III

F.  Updated Job Description - Maintenance Worker I/ II

G. Job Description - Maintenance Worker III

H.  Updated Job Description - Maintenance Services Supervisor

I.   Updated Job Description - Recreation Leader

J.   Updated Job Description - Senior Recreation Leader

39



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 6

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
UPDATE OB DESCRIPTIONS FOR VARIOUS POSITIONS AND UPDATED
GRADE STEP TABLE

APPROVALS:

G/ VUQ     L 1M Z

iana Burns Date

Human Resources Manager

2 9 fZoZo

Michael King Date

Director of Public Works

12'`- Zv2(7

Zach Jo Date

Director o rks and Recreation

C   ,     d

Cari Jarri s Date

Directo   f Finance and Administrative Services

j Z--     -- ZO 2' i

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z• q• Z zo
S ephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

40



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE ADDITION OF A CONSTRUCTION SUPERINTENDENT ) OB

CLASSIFICATION, UPDATE THE MAINTENANCE WORKER SERIES AND

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR JOB CLASSIFICATIONS, RECLASSIFY STAFF

POSITIONS, AND UPDATE THE GRADE STEP TABLE AS OF .7ANUARY 1,

2021, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE
2, SECTION 570. 5

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop has prepared and submitted to the City Council
a biennial budget for the fiscal year commencing ] uly 1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the State of California mandates yearly minimum wage increases
through January 1, 2023; and

WHEREAS, as the City has no exceptions to the mandated change, the City
of Lathrop complies with State- mandated minimum wage increases in accordance
with the Employers with 26 Employees or More schedule established by the
Department of Industrial Relations as follows:

Date Minimum Wage for Minimum Wage for

Employers with Employers with

25 Employees or Less 26 Employees or More

January 1, 2017 10. 00/ hour 10. 50/ hour

January 1, 2018 10. 50/ hour 11. 00/ hour

January 1, 2019 11. 00/ hour 12. 00/ hour

January 1, 2020 12. 00/ hour 13. 00/ hour

January 1, 2021 13. 00/ hour 14. 00/ hour

anuary 1, 2022 14. 00/ hour 15. 00/ hour

January 1, 2023 15. 00/ hour

WNEREAS, the City is required to increase minimum wage to $ 14. 00/ hour on

January 1, 2021;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the updated Salary Schedule ( Attachment B), Effective

January 1,  2021,  in accordance with the California Code of Regulations, Title 2,

Section 570. 5; and

41



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve the position control amendments as detailed in Attachments C- J
listed below) and as identified in the City Manager' s Report.

C.       Position Control Table

D.       Job Description - Construction Superintendent

E.       Job Description - Construction Inspector III

F.       Updated Job Description - Maintenance Worker I/ II

G.       Job Description - Maintenance Worker III

H.       Updated Job Description - Maintenance Services Supervisor

I. Updated Job Description - Recreation Leader

J. Updated Job Description - Senior Recreation Leader

42



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of December 2020,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAI N:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

43



CITY OI+ LATHROP

GRADE- STEP TABL
FOLt REFERENCE USE ONLY

Eff. 12/ 15/20 wad 1/ 1/ 21 as noted

20 hourly 14. 17  $  14. 88  $   15. 63  $   16. 41  $   17. 23

bi- weekly 1, 134 1, 191 1, 250 1, 313 1, 378

monthly 2, 457 2, 580 2, 709 2, 844 2, 986

annual 29, 481 30, 955 32, 503 34, 128 35, 834

21 RECREATION LEADER( I/ I/ 2021) hourly 14. 53  $  15. 25  $   16. 02  $   16. 82  $   17. 66

e** Tv eT- r' GU^* rT Effective I/ v2021 bi- weckly 1, 162 1, 220 1, 281 1, 345 1, 413

monthly 2, 518 2, 644 2, 776 2, 915 3, 061

annual 30, 218 31, 729 33, 315 34, 981 36, 730

22 hourly 14. 89  $  15. 64  $   16. 42  $   17. 24  $   18. 10

bi- wcekly 1, 191 1, 251 1, 313 1, 379 1, 448

monthly 2, 581 2, 710 2, 846 2, 988 3, 137

annual 30, 972 32, 521 34, 147 35, 854 37, 647

23 hourly 15. 26  $  16. 03  $   16. 83  $   17. 67  $   18. 55

bi-weekly 1, 221 1, 282 1, 346 1, 414 1, 484

monthly 2, 646 2, 778 2, 917 3, 063 3, 216

annual 31, 748 33, 335 35, 002 36, 752 38, 589

24 SEN[ OR FACIL[ TY ATTENDANT SEIU hourly 15. 65  $  16. 43  $   17. 25  $   18. 11  $   19. 02

SENIOR RECREATION LEADER SEIU bi- weekly 1, 252 1, 314 1, 380 1, 449 1, 521

mon hly 2, 712 2, 847 2, 990 3, 139 3, 296

annual 32, 542 34, 169 35, 877 37, 671 39, 555

25 hourly 16. 04  $  16. 84  $   17. 68  $   18. 56  $   19. 49

bi- weckly 1, 283 1, 347 1, 414 1, 485 1, 559

mon hly 2, 780 2, 919 3, 065 3, 218 3, 379

annuat 33, 355 35, 023 36, 774 38, 613 40, 544

26 hourly 16. 44  $  17. 26  $   18. 12  $   19. 03  $   19. 98

ni- weck y 1, 315 1, 381 1, 450 1, 522 1, 598

monthly 2, 849 2, 992 3, 141 3, 298 3, 463

annual 34, 189 35, 898 37, 693 39, 578 41, 557

27 hourly 16. 85  $  17. 69  $   18. 57  $   19. 50  $   20. 48

bi- wcekly 1, 348 1, 415 1, 486 1, 560 1, 638

monthly 2, 920 3, 066 3, 220 3, 381 3, 550

annual 35, 044 36, 796 38, 636 40, 567 42, 596

2g hourly 17. 27  $  18. 13  $   19. 04  $   19. 99  $   20. 99

bi- weekly 1, 382 1, 451 1, 523 1, 599 1, 679

monthty 2, 993 3, 143 3, 300 3, 465 3, 638

annual 35, 920 37, 715 39, 601 41, 581 43, 660

z9 hourly 17. 70  $  18. 59  $   19. 52  $   20. 49  $   21. 52

bi- weekly 1, 416 1, 487 1, 561 1, 639 1, 721

monthly 3, 068 3, 222 3, 383 3, 552 3, 729

annual 36, 818 38, 659 40, 592 42, 621 44, 752

3o hourly 18. 14  $  19. 05  $   20. 00  $   21. 00  $   22. 05

bi- weekly 1, 451 1, 524 1, 600 1, 680 1, 764

monthly 3, 145 3, 302 3, 467 3, 641 3, 823

annual 37, 738 39, 625 41, 606 43, 687 45, 871

31 hourly 18. 60  $  19. 53  $   20. 50  $   2 L 53  $   22. 60

bi- weckly 488 1, 562 1, 640 1, 722 1, 808

monthly 3, 223 3, 385 3, 554 3, 732 3, 918

aanual 38, 682 40, 616 42, 647 44, 779 47, 018

32 oFFicenss sTnrvTi seiu nourty 19. 06  $  20. 01  $   21. 02  $   22. 07  $   23. 17

bi- weekty 1, 525 1, 601 1, 681 1, 765 1, 854

monthly 3, 304 3, 469 3, 643 3, 825 4, 016

annual 39, 649 41, 631 43, 713 45, 898 48, 193

33 hourly 19. 54  $  20. 52  $   21. 54  $   22. 62  $   23. 75

bi- weekly 1, 563 1, 641 1, 723 1, 809 1, 900

monthly 3, 387 3, 556 3, 734 3, 920 4, 116

annual 40, 640 42, 672 44, 805 47, 045 49, 398

34 hourly 20. 03  $  21. 03  $   22. 08  $   23. 18  $   24. 34

bi- weekly 1, 602 1, 682 1J66 1, 855 1, 947

monthly 3, 471 3, 645 3, 827 4, 018 4, 219

annual 41, 656 43, 739 45, 925 48, 222 50, 633

Attachment" B"44



CITY OF LATHROP

GRADE- STEP TABLE
FOR REFERENCE USE ONLY

Eff. 12/ IS/ 20 and 1/ L/ 21 as noted

35 OFF1Ce ASS STANT tt SetU hourly 20. 53  $  21. 55  $   22. 63  $   23. 76  $   24. 95

bi- wcekty 1, 642 1, 724 1, 811 1, 901 1, 996

momhly 3, 558 3, 736 3, 923 4, 119 4, 325

annual 42, 698 44, 832 47, 074 49, 428 51, 899

36 hourly 21. 04  $  22. 09  $   23. 20  $   24. 36  $   25. 58

bi- weekly 1, 683 1, 767 1, 856 1, 949 2, 046

mon hly 3, 647 3, 829 4, 021 4, 222 4, 433

annual 43, 765 45, 953 48, 251 50, 663 53, 196

37 ANIMAL SERVICES ASSISTANT SE[ O hourly 21. 57  $  22. 64  $   23. 78  $   24. 97  $   26. 21

RFCREATION SPGCIALIST SEIU bi- wcekly
1, 725 1, 812 1, 902 1, 997 2, 097

monthly 3, 738 3, 925 4, 121 4, 327 4, 544

annual 44, 859 47, 101 A9, 457 51, 929 54, 526

ss nccouN r[ rvc sPecini. isT sEru houriy 22. 11  $  23. 21  $   24. 37  $   25. 59  $   26. 87

l bi- weckly 1, 768 1, 857 1, 950 2, 047 2, 150

wATER METrR READF,R t SE[ o monthly
3, 832 4, 023 4, 224 4, 436 4, 657

aonual 45, 980 48, 280 50, 693 53, 228 55, 890

39 houdy 22. 66  $  23. 79  $   24. 98  $   26. 23  $   27. 54

bi- weckly 1, 813 1, 903 1, 998 2, 098 2, 203

monthly 3, 927 4, 124 4, 330 4, 547 4, 774

annual 47, 130 49, 486 51, 960 54, 558 57, 286

ao hourly 23. 23  $  24. 39  $   25. 61  $   26. 89  $   28. 23

bi- weekly 1, 858 1, 951 2, 048 2, 151 2, 258

monthly 4, 026 4, 227 a, 438 4, 660 4, 893

annual 48, 308 50, 724 53, 260 55, 923 58, 719

41 ADMINISTRATIVF, ASSISTANT 1 SCIU hourly 23. 81  $  25. 00  $   2C. 25  $   27. 56  $   28. 94

UTILITY OPERATOR 1 Se[ U bi- weekly 1, 904 2, 000 2, L00 2, 205 2, 315

MAINTENANCE WORKER 1 SEIU mon[ hly 4, 126 4, 333 4, 549 4, 777 5, 016

annual 49, 516 51, 991 54, 591 57, 321 60, 187

42 ACCOUN' tING SPECIALiST II SEIU hourly 24. 40  $  25. 62  $   26. 90  $   28. 25     29. 66

u bi- weekly 1, 952 2, 050 2, 152 2, 260 2, 373

wATER MCTER RL•AD R I[ SE[ U monthly
4, 229 4, 441 4, 663 4, 896 5, 141

annual 50, 753 53, 291 55, 956 58, 753 61, 691

43 hourly 25. 01  $  26. 26  $   27. 57  $   28. 95  $   30. 40

bi- weckly 2, 001 2, 101 2, 206 2, 316 2, 432

monthly 4, 335 4, 552 4, 780 5, 018 5, 269

annual 52, 022 54, 623 57, 354 60, 222 63, 233

44 INPORMATION TECHNOLOGY TLCHNICIAN SGIU hourly 25. 64  $  26. 92  $   28. 26  $   29. 68  $   31. 16

bi- weekly 2, 051 2, I53 2, 261 2, 374 2, 493

monthly 4, 444 4, 666 4, 899 5, 144 5, 401

annual 53, 323 55, 989 58, 788 61, 728 64, 814

45 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT    SGIU hourly 26. 28  $  27. 59  $   28• 97  $   30. 42  $   31. 94

RLCREATIONCOORDINATOR SEIiJ bi- weekly 2, 102 2, 207 2, 318 2, 433 2, 555

UTILITY OPERATOR Il SEIU monthly a, 555 4, 782 5, 021 5, 273 5, 536

MAINTENANCE WORKER u SEIU annual 54, 656 57, 389 60, 258 63, 271 66, 434

46 ANIMAi.. SERVICES OPFICER SGIU hourly 26. 93  $  28. 28  $   29. 69  $   31. 18  $   32. 74

bi- weckly 2, 155 2, 262 2, 376 2, 494 2, 619

monthly 4, 669 4, 902 5, 147 5, 404 5, 675

annuat 56, 023 58, 824 6I, 765 64, 853 68, 096

47 PERMIT TGCHNICfAN SEIU hourly 27. 61  $  28. 99  $   30. 44  $   3196  $   33. 56

ADMINIS7' RATIVG TGCHMCIAN 1 SEIU bi- weekly 2, 209 2, 319 2, 435 2, 557 2, 685

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT Ill SEIU monthly 4, 785 5, 024 5, 276 5, 539 5, 816

annual 57, 423 60, 294 63, 308 66, 474 69, 797

qg MAINTENANCE WORKER II[ SEIU hourly 28. 30  $  29. 71  $   31. 20  $   32. 76  $   34. 40

SOL[ D WASTH& RESOURCE CONSERV. COORD. SHIU bi- weekly 2, 264 2, 377 2, 496 2, 621 2, 752

monthly 4, 905 5, 150 5, 408 5, 678 5, 962

annual 58, 859 61, 802 64, 892 68, 136 71, 543

49 ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN SEIU hourly 29. 00  $  30. 46  $   31. 98  $   33. 58  $   35. 26

bi- weekly 2, 320 2, a36 2, 558 2, 686 2, 820

monthly 5, 027 5, 279 5, 543 5, 820 6, 111

annual 60, 330 63, 346 66, 514 69, 839 73, 33]

50 ENGINEERtNG" CECHMCIAN I SEIU hourly 29. 73  $  31. 22  $   32. 78  $   34. 42  $   36. 14

SENIOR ANIMAL SBRVICBS OFFICER SEIU bi- weekly 2, 378 2, 497 2, 622 2, 753 2, 891

monthly 5, 153 5, 411 5, 681 5, 965 6, 264

a mual 61, 838 64, 930 68, 176 71, 585 75, 164
45



CITY OF LATHROP

GRADE- STEP TABLE
FOR REFERENCE USE ONLY

Eff. 12/ IS/20 and 1/ 1/ 21 as noted

51 CRIMF.& INTELLEGENCE ANAI. YST SF, IU hourly 30. 47  $  32. 00  $   33. 60  $   35. 28  $   37. 04

SENIOR ADMINISTRA" LIVE ASSISTANT LMCEA bi- wcekly 2, 438 2, 560 2, 688 2, 822 2, 963

ADMINISTRATIVE TECHNICIAN I[   SEIU monlhly 5, 282 S, Sa6 5, 823 6, 115 6, 420

annual 63, 384 66, 554 69, 881 73, 375 77, 044

52 ACCOUNTANT I SEIU hourly 31. 23  $  32. 80  $   34. 44  $   3C. 16  $   3797

BU L ING INSPrC' roR I Se[ U bi-weekly 2, 499 2, 624 2, 755 2, 893 3, 037

CODE COMPLIANCE OFPICER 1 SCIU monthly 5, 414 5, 685 5, 969 6, 267 6, 581

annual 64, 969 68, 217 71, 628 75, 209 78, 970

53 CONSTRUCCION[ 1vSPECTOR      SE U hourly 32. 02  $  33. 62  $   35. 30  $   37. 06  $   38. 92

bi- wcekly 2, 561 2, 689 2, 824 2, 965 3, 113

LEGAL SECRETARY L-'XEMPT monthly 5, 549 5, 827 6, 118 6, 424 6, 745

a mual 66, 593 69, 923 73, 419 77, 090 80, 944

sa Err iNeeRirrc TEci NicrArrn seiu houriy 32. 82  $  34. 46  $   36. L8  $   37. 99  $   39. 89

ExECUT vE ASSISTANT t, MCrA bi- weekly 2, 625 2, 757 2, 894 3, 039 3, 191

mon hly 5, 688 5, 973 6, 271 6, 585 6, 914

annual 68, 258 71, 671 75, 254 79, 017 82, 968

55 ASSISTANT PLANN R SEIU hourly 33. 64  $  35. 32  $   37. 08  $   38. 94  $   40. 89

BUILDING[ NSPECTOK   SF, IU bi-weekly 2, 691 2, 825 2, 967 3, 115 3, 271

CODE COMPLIANCE OF ICHR II SEIU monthly 5, 830 6, 122 6, 428 6, 749 7, 087

SENIOR ACCOUNTING TGCHNICIAN SeIU annual 69, 964 73, 463 77, 136 80, 992 85, 042

sb     . accourrTnr T i  sE u hourly 34. 48  $  36. 20  $   38. 01  $   39. 91  $   41. 91

MANAGEMENT ANALYST 1( CONPIDENTIAL) LMC A bi- weckly 2, 758 2, 896 3, 041 3, 193 3, 353

monthly 5, 976 6, 275 6, 589 6, 918 7, 264

annual 71, 714 75, 299 79, 064 83, 017 87, 168

s     corrsT2ucT orr irvsnFc roa[[      se u hourly 35. 34  $  37. 11  $   38. 96  $   40. 91  $   42. 96

bi- weekly 2, 827 2, 969 3, 117 3, 273 3, 436

LEGALASSISTANT EXEMPT monthly 6, 125 6, 432 6, 753 7, 091 7, 446

PARKS& RECREATrON SUPERVISOR I, MCEA annual 73, 506 77, 181 81, 040 85, 092 89, 347

sa a.ssoc[ nT n nNNea sEtu hourly 36. 22  $  38. 03  $   39. 94  $   41. 93  $   44. 03

rUtv 02 ENGINF. rtt SrtU bi- wcekty 2, 898 3, 043 3, 195 3, 355 3, 522

SENIOR T NGINBGRING TECHNICIAN SGIU monlhly 6, 279 6, 593 6, 922 7, 268 7, 632

annual 75, 344 79, 111 83, 066 87, 220 91, 58(

59 6UILDING INSPECTOR III SEIU hourly 37. 13  $  38. 98  $   40. 93  $   42. 98  $   45. 13

CHtEP UTILt r'v OPErzATOR s lU bi- weekly 2, 970 3, 119 3, 27.5 3, 438 3, 610

CODB COMPLIANCE OFFICLR iIt SEIU monthly 6, 436 6, 757 7, 095 7, 450 7, 823

MAINTENANCe SCRVICCS SUPERVISOR LMCEA annual 77, 227 81, 089 85, 143 89, 400 93, 870

UTILITY OPCRATOR 1    SEIU

60 EXF,CUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THG CITY MANAGGR LMCEA hourly 38. 06  $  39. 96  $   41. 96  $   44. 06  $   46. 26

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER EXEMYT bi- weekly 3, 045 3, 197 3, 357 3, 524 3, 701

MANAGEMEN' f ANALYST tt( CONFIDL-N' I IAL)       LMCEA monthly 6,. 597 6, 926 7, 273 7, 636 8, 018

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ENGINEER  LMCGA annual 79, 159 83, 116 87, 272 91, 636 96, 218

61 POLICE SCRVICES MANAGER LMCEA hourly 39. 01  $  40. 96  $   43. 01  $   4.5. 16  $   47. 41

co rnnrc-rviirTrnni tnrcocrTnn CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR I       LMCGA bi- Weekly 3, 121 3, 2       3, 441 3, 613 3, 793

UTILITYMAINTF, NANCESUPERVISOR LMCF. A monthly 6, 761 7, 099 7, 454 7, 827 8, 219

annual 81, 137 85, 194 89, 454 93, 926 98, 623

62 WASTEWATER IRFATMflNT PLANT SUPERVISOR LMCEA hourly 39. 98  $  41. 98  $   44. 08  $   46. 29  $   4g. 6

bi- weckty 3, 199 3, 359 3, 527 3, 703 3, 888

monthly 6, 930 7, 277 7, 641 8, 023 8, 424

annual 83, 165 87, 324 91, 690 96, 274 101. 088

63 SCNIOR BU[ LDING INSPECTOR SEIU hourly 40. 98  $  43. 03  $   45. 18  $   a7. 44  $   49. 82

bi- weckly 3, 279 3, 443 3, 615 3, 795 3, 985

monthly 7, 104 7, 459 7, 832 8, 223 8, 635

annual 85, 245 89, 507 93, 982 98, 682 103, 616

64 ANIMAL SERVICGS MANANGER LMCF; A hourly 42. 01  $  44. 11  $   46. 31  $   48. 63  $   51. 06

ASSISTANT ENGINGER SE U bi- weekly 3, 361 3, 529 3, 705 3, 890 4, 085

PARKS AND RECREATION ADMINISTRATOR SEIU monLhly 7, 281 7, 645 8, 028 8, 429 8, 850

annual 87, 376 91, 744 96, 332 101, 148 106, 206

65 BUDGET MANAGER L, MCr:A hourly 43. 06  $  45. 21  $   47. 47  $   49. 84  $   52. 34

seNtoxnccourvTnrrT LMCEn bi- weekly 3, 445 3, 617 3, 798 3, 988 4, 187

monthly 7, 463 7, 837 8, 228 8, 640 9, 072

annual 89, 560 94, 038 98, 740 103, 677 108, 861

46



CITY OF LATHROP

GRADE- STEP TABLE
FOR REFERENCE USE ONLY

Eff. 12/ IS/ 20 and 1/ 1/ 21 as toted

66 hourly 44. 13  $  46. 34  $   48. 66  $   51. 09  $   53. 65

bi- wcekly 3, 531 3, 707 3, 893 4, 087 4, 292

monthly 7, 650 8, 032 8, 434 8, 856 9, 299

annual 91, 799 96, 389 101, 209 106, 269     ] 11, 582

67 CODE COMPLIANCE SUPGRVISOR I, MCEA hourly 45. 24  $  47. 50  $   49. 87  $   52. 37  $   54. 99

INPORMATION' 1' ECHNOLOGY ENGINEER Il LMCEA bi- weekly 3, 619 3, 800 3, 990 4,( 89 4, 399

SENIOR PLANNL- R LMCEA monthly 7, 841 8, 233 8, 645 9, 077 9, 531

SENIOR MANAGEMENT ANALYST LMCF, A annual 94, 094 98, 799 103, 739 108, 926 114, 372

SPGCIAL UISTRICTS MANAGBR I, MCEA

68 PERMIT AND PLAN CHECK SUPERVISOR LMCEA hourly 46. 37  $  48. 69  $   5 L 12  $   53. 68  $   56. 36

bi- weekly 3, 709 3, 895 4, 090 4, 294 4, 509

monthly 8, 037 8, 439 8, 861 9, 304 9, 769

annual 96, 446 101, 268 106, 332 111, 648 117, 231

69 UTILITY PLANT SUPHRViSOR I. MCCA hourly 47. 53  $  49. 90  $   52. 40  $   55. 02  $   57. 77

bi- weckly 3, 802 3, 992 4, 192 4, 402 4, 622

monthly 8, 238 8, 650 9, 083 9, 537 10, 014

annuai 98, 858 103, 800 108, 991 114, 440 120, 162

70 ASSOCIATE ENGINEER SEIU hourly 48. 72  $  51. 15  $   53. 71  $   56. 39  $   59. 21

bi- weekly 3, 897 4, 092 4, 297 4, SL2 4, 737

monthly 8, 444 8, 866 9, 310 9, 775 10, 264

annual 101, 329 106, 396 111, 716 117, 301 123, 166

71 PARKS AND RFCREATION SIJPERINTGNDBNT I, MCtiA hourly 49. 93  $  52. 43  $   55. 05  $   57. 80  $   60. 70

INPORMATION TBCHNOLOGY ENGINC R Ill LMCEA bi- wcekly 3, 995 4, 194 4, 404 4, 624 4, 856

monthly 8, 655 9, 088 9, 542 10, 020 10, 520

annual 103, 863 109, 056 114, 509 120, 234 126, 246

72 PRINCIPAL PLANNER LMCEA hourly 51. 18  $  53. 74  $   56. 43  $   59. 25  $   62. 21

bi- weekly 4, 095 4, 299 4,. 514 4, 740 4, 977

monthly 8, 872 9, 315 9, 781 10, 270 10, 783

annual 106, 459 111, 782 117, 371 123, 240 129, 402

73 ASSISTANT CHICF I3U[ LDING OFFICIAL LMCEA hourly 52A6  $  55. 08  $   57. 84  $   60. 73  $   63. 77

bi- weekly 4, 197 4, 407 4, 627 4, 858 5, 101

monthly 9, 093 9, 548 10, 025 10, 527 11, 053

aanual 109, 120 ll4, 576 120, 305 126, 320 132, 636

74 CITY CLrRK EXEMPT hourly 53J7  $  56. 46  $   59. 29  $   62. 25  $   65. 36

SENIOR CIVIL ENGINEER LMCEA bi- weekly 4, 302 4, 517 4, 743 4, 980 5, 229

SCNIOR rNGrNeGR LMCEA monthly 9, 321 9, 787 10, 276 10, 790 11, 329

FtNANCE MANnGER LMCr-.A annual 111, 849 117, 441 123, 313 129, 479 135, 953

s hourly 55. 12  $  57. 87  $   60. 77  $   63. 81  $   67. 00

bi- wcekly 4, 409 4, 630 4, 861 5, 104 5, 360

monthly 9, 554 10, 031 10, 533 11, 060 11, 613

annual ll4, 645 120, 377 126, 396 132, 716 139, 352

76 ACCOUNTING MANAGGR LMCEA hourly SG50  $  59. 32  $   62. 29  $   6.5. 40  $   68. 67

CONSTRUCTION SUPERINTENDENT LMCEA bi- weekly 4, 520 4, 746 4, 983 5, 232 5, 494

PARKSPRO. IECTMANAGER LMCEA monthly 9, 793 10, 282 10, 796 11, 336 11, 903

PRO. IECTS MANAG R MCEA annual 117, 511 123, 386 129, 555 136, 033 142, 835

UTII, ITIES& STRGF, T MAINTGNANCG SUPGRIN' fL•NDGNT

77 ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNIsY EXF.MPT hourly 57. 91  $  60. 80  $   63. 84  $   67. 04  $   70. 39

c[ IEF t3U[ t, tD1vG oFFtc nL oNREP bi- weekly 4, 633 4, 864 5, 107 5, 363      5, 631

monthly 10, 037 10, 539 11, 066 11, 619 12, 200

annual 120, 448 126, 470 132, 794 139, 434 146, 405

78 DEPUTY PINANCF DIRF, CTOR LMCEA hourly 59. 36  $  62. 32  $   65. 44  $   68. 71  $   72. 15

bi- weekly 4, 748 4, 986 5, 235 5, 497 5, 772

monthly 10, 288 10, 803 t1, 343 11, 910 12, 506

annual 123, 460 129, 633 136, 114 142, 920 150, 066

79 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMEN" f ADMINIS' I' RATOR LMCCA hourly 60. g4  $  63. 88  $   67. 8  $   70. 43  $   73. 95

LAND DCVELOPMENT MANAGER LMCEA bi- weekly 4, 867 5, 111 5, 366 5, 634 5, 916

monthly 10, 546 11, 073 11, 626 12, 208 12, 818

annual 126, 546 132, 873 139, 517 146, 493 153, 818

80 ASSISTANT COMMUNCIY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR LMCEA hourly 62. 36  $  65. 48  $   68. 75  $   72. 19  $   75. 80

CHIEF PLANNING OPPICIAL LMCEA bi- weckly 4, 989 5, 238 5, 500 5, 775 6, 064

PRINCIPAL ENGINtiER LMCEA mon[ hly 10, 809 11, 350 11, 917 12, 513 13, 139

annual 129, 710 136, 195 143, 005 150, 155 157, 663

47



CITY OF LATHROP

GRADE- STEP TABLE
FOR[ tEFERENCE IISE ONLY

Eff. 12/ IS/20 and 1/ U21 as aoted

81 SENTOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGtiR LMCEA hourly 63. 92  $  67. 12  $   70. 47  $   74. 00  $   77. 69

CHIEP INFORMA' IION OFFICER EXF.MPT bi- wcekly 5, 114 5, 369 5, 638 5, 920 6, 216

monthly 11, 079 11, 633 12, 215 12, 826 13, 467

annual 132, 953 139, 601 146, 581 153, 910 161, 605

82 ASSiSTANT PU6LIC WORKS DIRrCTOR LMCP.A hourly 65. 52  $  68. 79  $   72. 23  $   75. 84  $   79. 64

bi- weekly 5, 241 5, 503 5, 779 6, 068 6, 371

monthly 11, 356 11, 924 12, 520 13, 146 13, 804

annual 136, 276 143, 090 150, 245 157, 757 165, 645

83 DiRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCGS EXEMVT hourly 67. 16  $  70. 51  $   74. 04  $   77. 74  $   81. 63

bi- wcekty 5, 372 5, 641 5, 923 6, 219 6, 530

monthly 11, 640 12, 222      ] 2, 833 13, 475 1 4, 149

annual 139, 683 146, 668 154, 001 161, 701 169, 786

gq hourly 68. 83  $  2. 28  $   75. 89  $   79. 68  $   83. 67

bi- weekly 5, 507 5, 782 6, 071 6, 375 6, 693

monthly 11, 931 12, 528 13, 154 13, 812 14, 503

annual 143, 175 150, 334 157, 851 165, 743 174, 030

85 DIRECTOR OP PARKS& RI.CREATION EXEMPT hourly 70. 56  $  74. 08  $   77. 79  $   81. 68  $   H5. 76

bi- weekly 5, 644 5, 927 6, 223 6, 534 6, 861

monthly 12, 230 12, 841 13, 483 14, 157 14, 865

annual 146, 754 154, 092 161, 797 169, 887 778, 381

86 DIRFCTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVF. SGRVICES EXEMPT hourly 72. 32  $  75. 93  $   79. 73  $   83. 72  $   57. 90

bi- weckly 5, 786 6, 075 6, 379 6, 697 7, 032

monthly 12, 535 13, 162 13, 820 14, 511 15, 237

annual 150, 423 157, 944 165, 842 174, 134 182, 840

87 DEPUTY C[ TY MANAGF, R/ DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS EXEMPT hourly 74. 13  $  77. 83  $   81. 73  $   85. 81  $   90. 10

DIRECTOR OF PINANCE EXEMPT bi- weckly 5, 930 6, 227 6, 538 6, 865 7, 208

monthly 12, 849 13, 491 14, 166 14, 874 15, 618

annual 154, 184 161, 894 169, 988 178, 488 187, 412

8R DIRGCTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVEL, OPMF. N' I CXF. MPT hourly 75. 98  $  79. 78  $   83. 77  $   87. 96  $   92. 35

DIRtiCTOR OP POBi_ IC WORKS L X̂EMPT bi- weekly 6, 078 6, 382 6, 701 7, 037 7, 388

momhly 13, 170 13, 828 14, 520 15, 246 16, 008

annual 158, 039 165, 941 174, 238 182, 950 192, 097

89 CITY ENGINEER EXEMPT hourly 77. 88  $  R1. 77  $   HS. HG  $   90. 16  $   94. 66

bi- weekly 6, 230 6, 542 6, 8G9 7, 212 7, 573

monthly 13, 499 14, 174 14, 883 15, 627 16, 408

annual 161, 990 170, 089 178, 594 187, 524 196, 900

90 hourly 79. 83  $  83. 82  $   88. 01  $   92. 41  $   97. 03

bi- weekly 6, 386 6, 705 7, 041 7, 393 7, 762

monthly 13, 837 14, 528 15, 255 16, 018 16, 819

annual 166, 040 174, 342 183, 059 192, 212 201, 823

9I ASSISTANT C[ TY MANAGER EXEMPT hourly 8 L82  $  8591  $   90. 21  $   94J2  $   99. 46

bi- weekly 6, 546 6, 873 7, 217 7, 578 7, 956

monthly 14, 183 14, 892 15, 636 16, 418 17, 239

aonual 170, 191 178, 700 187, 635 t97, 017 206, 868

CONTRACT

CITY ATTORNEY EXEMPT annual 220, 691

CITY MANACGR EXEMPT annual 234, 588

Claanges

Upda[ ed[ i[ le from Sr. Construc[ ion Inspec[ or to ConsVuc[ ion Inspector 111; Uupdated title f om Sr. Mainfenance Worker lo Maintenance Worker[ t[.

Move Maintenance Worker I from Grade 38 to 41; Main[ cnance Worker ll ftom Grade 42 to 45.

Removed Sr. Center Recrea[ ion Coordina[ or( Administrative correction. Recreation Coordinarot is on Grade 45).

Elinimated Non- PERS schedule to accommodate the minimum wage requirements effective 1/ 1/ 2l.

Facility Attendant was combined with Recreation Leader job description and moved from the Non- PERS Grade 21 to Grade 20 effective I/ 1/ 21.

Senior Facility At[endan[ was removed from tlte Grade Step' Cable( combined, job description with Sr. Recreation Leader)

Added ConsWction Superintendent ro Grade 76

Step calculations in this workbook are formula driven, tlius, causing minimal decimal differences whei compared to the salaries shown in[ he finTncial software, New Wodd Syslem. Also, the Grade Step
Table dces not reFlect special sTlary arrangements adopted for Y- Rated classifications. To obtain Y- Rated salaries, please contact the HumTn Resources Department.

48



Budget for Fiscal Year 19/ 20- 20/ 21

Amended Amended Amended Amended

3/ 9/ 2020 7/ 13/ 2020 9/ 14/ 20 12/ 14/ 20

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Animal Services

Animal Services Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Animal Services Officer 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Finance 0. 05 0. 05 0. 05 0. 05

Senior Animal Services Officer 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Tota I 3. 05 3. 05 3. 05 3. 05

Human Resources

Director of Finance 0. 45 0. 45 0. 45 0. 45

Human Resources Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 1. 45 1. 45 1. 45 1. 45

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES- Total 4. 50 4. 50 4. 50 4. 50

CITY ATTORNEY

City Attorney

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 2. 00 2. 00 1. 00 1. 00

City Attorney 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Administrative Assistant 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Tota I 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00

CITY ATTORNEY- Total 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00

CITY CLERK

City Clerk
Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

City Clerk 0. 50 0. 50 0.50 0. 50

Tota l 1. 50 1. 50 1. 50 1. 50

CITY CLERK- Total 1. 50 1. 50 1. 50 1. 50

CITY MANAGER

City Manager

City Clerk 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50

City Engineer 0. 15 0. 15 0. 15 0. 15

City Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Economic Development Administrator 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Executive Assistant 0. 05 0.05 0. 05 0. 05

Total 2. 70 2. 70 2. 70 2. 70

CITY MANAGER- Total 2. 70 2. 70 2. 70 2. 70

ATTACHMENT" C"49



Budget for Fiscal Year 19/ 20- 20/ 21

Amended Amended Amended Amended

3/ 9/ 2020 7/ 13/ 2020 9/ 14/ 20 12/ 14/ 20

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Planning

Accounting Manager 0. 07 0. 07 0. 07 0. 07

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 0. 33 0. 33 0. 33 0. 33

Associate Planner 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Community Development 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Principal Planner 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Administrative Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Tota I 4. 40 4. 40 4. 40 4. 40

COMMUNIN DEVELOPMENT- Total 4. 40 4. 40 4. 40 4. 40

FINANCE

Finance

Accountant I/ II 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Accounting Manager 0. 82 0. 82 0. 82 0. 82

Accounting Specialist I/ II/ Technician 5. 00 5. 00 5. 00 5. 00

Administrative Technician I/ II 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Finance Director 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Finance 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50

Finance Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Management Analyst II 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50

Senior Administrative Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Management Analyst 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 12. 82 12. 82 12. 82 12. 82

Information Technology

Accounting Manager 0. 11 0. 11 0. 11 0. 11

Chief Information Officer 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

GIS Specialist I/ II 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Information Technology Engineer I/ II/ III 0. 00 0. 00 3. 00 3. 00

Information Technology Manager 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Programmer Analyst 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Total 3. 11 3. 11 4. 11 4. 11

FINANCE- Total 15. 93 15. 93 16. 93 16. 93

ATTACHMENT" C"50



Budget for Fiscal Year 19/ 20- 20/ 21

Amended Amended Amended Amended

3/ 9/ 2020 7/ 13/ 2020 9/ 14/ 20 12/ 14/ 20

MEASURE C

Essential City Services

Facility Attendant 0. 45 0. 45 0. 45 0. 00

Office Assistant I/ II 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Parks and Recreation Superintendent 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Recreation Leader 0. 45 0. 45 0. 45 0. 90

Senior Facility Attendent 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00

Senior Recreation Leader 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00

Total 3. 90 3. 90 3. 90 3. 90

Essential City Services- Contract Staff
Deputy Sheriff II 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Community Impact 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Investigations 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for School Resource Off 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Sheriff II Patrol 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50

Sergeant to serve as Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 5. 50 5. 50 5. 50 5. 50

Lathrop Manteca Fire District
Battalion Chiefs 1. 98 1. 98 1. 98 1. 98

Firefighters/ Engineers 6. 00 6. 00 6. 00 6. 00

Total 7. 98 7. 98 7. 98 7. 98

MEASURE C- Total 17. 38 17. 38 17. 38 17. 38

PARKS AND RECREATION

Parks and Recreation

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Parks and Recreation 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Facility Attendant 1. 35 1. 35 1. 35 0. 00

Management Analyst I/ II 0. 25 0. 25 0. 25 0. 25

Recreation Coordinator 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00

Recreation Leaders 7. 65 16. 65 16. 65 18. 00

Recreation Supervisor 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00

Senior Recreation Leaders 2. 00 3. 35 3. 35 3. 35

Total 18. 25 28. 60 28. 60 28. 60

PARKS AND RECREATION - Total 18. 25 28. 60 28. 60 28. 60

ATTACHMENT" C"
51



Budget for Fiscal Year 19/ 20- 20/ 21

Amended Amended Amended Amended

3/ 9/ 2020 7/ 13/ 2020 9/ 14/ 20 12/ 14/ 20

PUBLIC SAFETY

Administration

Management Analyst I/ II 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Police Office Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Administrative Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Tota I 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00

Contract Staff

Chief of Police 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Com Resource Off 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Investigations 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Patrol 16. 50 16. 50 16. 50 16. 50

Deputy Sheriff II for School Resource Off 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Lieutenant to serve as Supervisor 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Sergeant to serve as Supervisor 2. 00 2. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 22. 50 22. 50 22. 50 22. 50

PUBLIC SAFETY- Total 25. 50 25. 50 25. 50 25. 50

PUBLIC WORKS

Building
Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 0. 33 0. 33 0. 33 0.33

Building Inspector I/ II/ III 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00

Chief Building Official 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Permit and Plan Check Supervisor 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Permit Technician 1. 00 1. 00 2. 00 2. 00

Total 4. 33 4. 33 6. 33 6. 33

Code Compliance Division

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Code Compliance Officer I/ II/ III 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Code Compliance Supervisor 0. 75 0. 75 0. 75 0. 75

Tota I 2. 75 2. 75 2. 75 2. 75

ATTACHMENT" C"52



Budget for Fiscal Year 19/ 20- 20/ 21

Amended Amended Amended Amended

3/ 9/ 2020 7/ 13/ 2020 9/ 14/ 20 12/ 14/ 20

Public Works

Administrative Assistant I/ II 2. 34 2. 34 2. 34 2. 34

Assistant Engineer 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Associate Engineer 1. 00 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00

City Engineer 0. 85 0. 85 0. 85 0. 85

Construction Inspector I/ II 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00

Construction Inspector III 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00

Construction Superintendent 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00

Director of Public Works 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Executive Assistant 0. 95 0. 95 0. 95 0. 95

Maintenance Services Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Maintenance Worker I/ II 6. 00 6. 00 6. 00 6. 00

Maintenance Worker III 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3. 00

Management Analyst I/ II 0. 25 0. 25 0. 25 0. 25

Meter Reader 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Principal Engineer 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Public Works Superintendent 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Administrative Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Civil Engineer 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Construction Inspector 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00

Senior Construction Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Maintenance Worker 2. 00 2. 00 3. 00 0. 00

Senior Management Analyst 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Utility Operator I/ II/ III 5. 00 5. 00 5. 00 5. 00

Water Treatment Plant Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 31. 39 31. 39 32. 39 33. 39

PUBLIC WORKS- Total 38.47 38. 47 41. 47 42. 47

Total City Staff Positions 95. 65 106. 00 110. 00 111. 00

Total Contractual Positions 35. 98 35. 98 35. 98 35. 98

r r '•    •  

ATTACHMENT" C"53



CITY OF LATHROP

CONSTRUCTION SUPERINTENDENT

Class specificadions are only inlended to present a descriptive sum nary oFthe range of duties and respansibilities associated
with specified positions. Therefore, specifications ntav noi include all duties perforrned by lnclividual.r witlain a clas,rification.
In additiori, specificatio s are intended to outlrne the m ininrum gualifications necessary fo entry i ato the class crnd c/o not
necessarily convey the gualifications of ir cum bents within th e position.

DEFINITION:

Under general direction, assists the division inanager in planning, organizing and directing the work
activities of citywide construction and Capital Iinproveinent Projects ( CIPs); and assists in supervising,

managing, and directing the operations and staff responsible for construction, inspection and project
management in the absence of the Senior Construction Manager.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

The Construction Superintendent is a senior level position within the Construction Management Division
of the Public Warks Deparhnent; and exercises responsibility for planning, arganizing and directing the
work activities of?; division and CIPs. The incumbent performs the more complex design and construction
of CIPs, reviews project plans for design conforinance and accuracy, and perfonns complex construction
inspections requiring considerable knowledge of land developinent, planning, design standards,-= a

regulations, construction and maintenance. This classification is distinguished fi-om the next higher
classification of Senior Construction Manager, in that the latter has overall responsibility far administering
the responsibilities of the Construction Management Division.

SUPERVISION R CEIVED AND EXERCISED:

Receives general direction from the Seniar Construction Manager, Public Works Director, or designee.
May exercise direct and indirect supervision over assigned professional, technical and functional
construction inspection staff in the absence of the Senior Construction Manager.

ESSENTIAL FLTNCTIONS: ( include but ar e not limitec to the.following)

Responsible for assisting the Seniar Construction Manager in all construction projects and inanaging
the work progress, inspections, repair ar alteration work on major projects as it relates to citywide
construction and CIP projects including street, parks, gutter, curb, sidewalk, parking lots, water and
sewer systems, stortn drain construction, underground i nprovements, lighting systeins, landscaping,
landscaping irrigation systems and facilities; perfonns and oversees tlle final inspection upon
coinpletion of projects.

Provides high level teclmical support to the Senior Construction Manager and shares responsibility for
all construction related activities and services; coordinates activities with City officials, deparhnents,

contractors, outside agencies, arganizations and the public; provides complex staff assistance to the
Seniar Construction Manager and Public Works Department as needed; attends City Council and other

public meetings as necessary.

Assists witl overseeing and participates in tlle developtnent of tl e annual budget; participates in the
forecast of necessary funds for staffing, materials, services and supplies; adininisters and inonitors the
approved Department budget; discusses and resolves budget issues with appropriate staff; implements

Adopted by Resolution 20-

Attachment" D"

54



Construction Superintendent

Page 2

adjustments as necessary.

Evaluates and inspects traffic control plans, field traffic control and construction sites for safety,
construction scl edules, and construction workmanship; responsible for the preparation and updating of
Standard Operating Procedures ( SOPs).

Obseives, reviews,  monitors and docuinents the wark of contractars aecording to established
procedures, including management of all project correspondence ( incoming and outgoing oral and
WTltteri C01Y1111Uri1Cflt10riS, R2C1UeStS fOY '`;''' s   '_? '"' .  ';, 1011105, lett0l' S, SUbI711tta1S,

change orders, contracts, and progress paynlents).

Assures projects are constructed in accordance wifll the approved budget and schedule, plans and
specifications;  coordinates and manages City sub- contractors aizd consultants including special
inspections for construction projects.

Develops. iinplenients and inaintains departinental goals, objectives, policies and procedures; reviews
and evaluates work methods and procedures for improving organizational performance, enhancing
services and ineeting goals; ensures project goals are achieved.

Provides responsible and coinplex staff support to tl e Senior Construction Manager, City Engineer,

Directar of Public Works, City Manager, or their designee; develops recommendations for policies,
laws, ordinances, resolutions, and programs related to construction and inspection activities.

If assigned staff: assist in the selection, training, supervision and evaluation for all assigned staff;
provides and/ or coordinates staff training; identifies and resolves staff deficiencies; fulfills discipline
procedures; reviews the work of assigned departinent personnel to ensure compliance with applicable
federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations.

Plans, directs, coordinates and participates in activities related to construction nanagement/ inspections
and CIP- s; assigns work activities and responsibilities to appropriate department personnel; reviews
and evaluates work methods and procedures; identifies and resolves problems and/ or issues.

Establishes positive working relationships with representatives of community organizations, state/ local
agencies and associations, City management and staff and the public.

Perfonns other duties as assigned.

PHYSICAL, MENTAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING CONDITIONS:

Position requires sitting, standing, walking on level and slippery surfaces, reaching, twisting, turning,
kneeling, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, grasping and inaking repetitive ] and inovement in the
performance of daily duties. The position also requires both near and far vision when inspecting wark and
operating assigned equipment. Tl e need to lift, cai-ry and push tools, equipment and supplies weighing 25
pounds or inore is also required. Additionally, the incumbent in this outdoor position works in all weather
conditions, including wet, l ot and cold.  The nature of the wark also requires the incuinbent to climb

ladders, use power and noise producing tools and equipment, drive motorized vehicles, wark in heavy
vehicle traffic conditions and often work with constant interruptions.

Some of these requirements may be accom nodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and

requesting sucli accoinmodations.

55



Construction Superintendent

Page 3

QUALIFICATIONS:      ( The . following are minirnal qualificatioi s necessary . for entry into the
classification.)

Education and/ or Experience:

Any combination of education and experience that has provided the knowledge, skills and abilities
necessary for a Construction Superintendent. A typical way of obtaining the required qualifications
is to possess the equivalent of five years of increasingly responsible const- uction inspection
experience in the public right-of-way, and a high school diploina ar equivalent, supplemented by
specialized coursewark in pre- engineering or construction ._   .. s_     __.

License/ Certificate:

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid Class C California driver' s license.

KNOWLEDGE/ ABILITIES/SKILLS( The following are a representative sample of the KAS' s necessary
to perfonn essential duties of the position.)

Knowled e of:

Construction materials such as concrete, asphalt and piping; principles, practices, methods and
inaterials used in public works construction; methods and techniques of supervision, training and
inotivation; basic principles of inathematics; applicable federal, state and local laws, codes and
regulations; methods and tecllniques of scheduling work assignments; standard office procedures,

practices and equipment; modern office practices, methods and equipment, including-- computer_,

and applicable software; methods and techniques for record keeping and report preparation and
writing; proper English, spelling and grammar; occupational hazards and standard safety practices.

Ability to:

Plan, organize, direct and evaluate the work of subordinate staff; inake adjustments to standard

operating procedures as necessary to improve arganizational effectiveness; read, understand and
interpret construction plans and specifications; inspect and analyze construction procedures and
interpret code violations; perfortn inathematical calculations quickly and accurately; interpret,
explain and apply applicable laws, codes and regulations; read, interpret and record data accurately;
organize, prioi7tize and follow-up on wark assignments; work independently and as part of a tea n;
make sound decisions within established guidelines; analyze a complex issue, and develop and
implement an appropriate response; follow written and oral directions; observe safety principles
and work in a safe manner; commun icate clearly and concisely, both arally and in writing; establish
and maintain effective working relationships.

Skill to:

Operate a variety of tools used in construction inspection; operate an office computer and a variety
of word processing and software applications.

Historical Data:

Adopted:  December 14, 2020 by Resolution 20-
Bargaining Unit: LMCEA; FLSA Status: Exempt

56



CITY OF LATHROP

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR III

lDiT72i i!` ia/

Class specifications are on ly inte aded to present a descriptive summary of the range ofduties and responsibilities nssociated with
specified positions.  Therefore, specificatioras maV 1ot include all duties per/'orrned by ir dividuals within a classificatiorz.  / n

ac dition, specifications are intenc ed to oulline t/ie minin u n qualiftcatiw2s necessary for entry into tlxe class and cio not
necessarily convey the qualifications of iiicumbents within the position.

DEFINITION:

Under general supervision, performs the full array of duties assigned in thea Construction Inspector

series es, including the most complex para- professional engineering, office and field work involving
a io,. a a;,. o,..;,, .,., a

inspection in the public right- of-way, field testing aild surveying;  serves as P=_--

technical expert
a         " '"`' ii

assinged field_ providing  „ customer service to the public and other departments;  provides

responsible professionals a€€ assistance to the Construction Su erintendent Senior Construction Mana er,
Cit EnigneerD'"' """' or the Director of Public Works.-'_;' '"; performs other related
duties as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

The Se ie Construction Inspector III is the advanced journey level class in ^:''' ''

the Construction Inspector series in which incumbents  *  `     ^      a =="'.=*=__

are considered highly skilled in making inspections and enforcing codes and regulation, and

are responsible for inspecting, observing, measuring and testing materials utilized in construction of public
facilities, such as streets, parks, storm drains, sidewalks, water, wastewater, street lighting, facilities and
other construction, to assure compliance with City standards, codes and specifications.  This elass is

distinguished from the next lower classification of Construction Inspector II by the performance of the inost
complex and di cult duties of the work unit and the exercise of hi her- level ea responsibilities.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED/ EXERCISED:

Receives geileral supervision from the Seniar Construction Manager,   Director of

Public Works or desi¢ nee Incumbents in this class do not routinely exercise'' g ee-.z
a *^'' supervision over lower level classes.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:  ( include but are not lirnited to the following)

rioritizin,'     
a;""+" "^^,+:'","__"" and participatesAssists ins planning coordinating, p

in the work e assigned to the construction inspection divisions a€€; discusses job progress with
su ervisori and ensures that inspections are performed according to City standards; may assist
in providin   -

a m';,+;^^ n

training to new em lo r^ -„`' ""^""; monitors work

sites and rojects to ensure safe work practices, work quality and accuracy; *  *'
o,.,.,,,„ n

Performs e-most eomplex inspections of the construction, repair or alteration work on major capital

Attachment" E"

57



C" CONSTRUCTION 1NSPECTOR III

Page 2

improvement and infrastructure projects; observes and measures materials used in street, parks, gutter,
curb,  sidewalk, parking lots, water and sewer systems,  storm drain construction,  underground

improvements, street lightulg systems, landscapin, landscaping irrigation systems, facilities and other
City Capital Improvement projects; takes samples and arranges for laboratory tests; performs
final inspection upon completion of proj ect.

Prepares and processes progress payments for contractors;  prepares daily construction reports;
maintains general job recards; reviews plans and specifications of assigned projects; responds to
complaints related to construction activities at the counter and over the phone.

Prepares a variety of formal construction reports and activitv logs; submits biweekly} time

reports; developer proiect billing and drafts letters to contractors,

I Demonstrates a full understanding of applicable laws, policies, procedures and work methods
associated with assigned duties; assists as survey party member; responds to questions and concerns
from the general public.

Serves as a technical advisar to City mana e ment staff and officials, public utilit agenciess and

members of the public; serves as a liaison-° a + f^' to developers and construction roups

assigned to private ea s and public capital projectsEe s; serves as a resource for other

inspectors in all codes and their application.

Establishes positive working relationships wit11 representatives of community organizations, state/ local
agencies and associations, City management and staff, and the public.

ai;    r, = r3 c'

PHYSICAL, MENTAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING CONDITIONS:

Position requires sitting, standing, walking on level and slippery surfaces, reaching, twisting, turning,
kneeling, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, grasping and makiilg repetitive hand movement in the
performance of daily duties. The position also requires both near and far vision when inspecting work and
operating assigned equipment. The need to lift, carry and push tools, equipment and supplies weighing 25
pounds or more is also required. Additionally, the incumbent in this outdoor position works in all weather
conditions, including wet, hoC and cold.  The nature of the work also requues the incumbent to climb

ladders, use power and noise producing tools and equipment, drive motorized vehicles, work in heavy
vehicle traffic conditions and often work with constant interruptions.

Some of these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and
requesting such accommodations.

QUALIFICATIONS:      ( The following are minimal qualifications necessary for entry into the
classification.)

ducation and/ or Experience:

Any combination of education and experience that has provided the knowledge, skills and abilities
necessary for a e e Construction Inspector III.  A typical way of obtaining the required
qualifications is to possess the equivalent of five years of increasingly responsible coilstruction

58



I CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR III

Page 3

inspection experience in the public right-of-way, and a high school diploma ar equivalent,
supplemented by specialized coursework in pre- engineering or construction technology.

License/ Certificate:—

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid Class C California driver' s license.

KNOWLEDGE/ ABILITIES/ SKILLS     ( The . following aYe a representative sa nple of tlae Kf1S' s
necessary to perform essential duties of the position.)

Knowledge of:

Construction materials such as concrete, asphalt and piping; principles, practices, methods and

I
materials used in public works construction;   methods and techniques ofrpoLect

mana ement n•, `-"'^'^ "'' ""'`=. u=_; basic principles of matheinatics; applicable
federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations; methods and techniques of scheduling work
assignments;  standard office procedures, practices and equipment; modern office practices,
methods and equipment, including a computer and applicable software; methods and techniques
for record keepin and report preparation and writing; proper English, spelling and grammar;
occupational hazards and standard safety practices.

Ability to:

IPId11   xi . OPg1111Z2 1:;]',_ f1311 I I tt t lc; t tic:< til`+ 1'-} r"--i-t- f- t fi zr+t ,:h:=-• i€ j<-+:i+  '}; rk} ct et.++ i:'*+h

make adjustments to standard operating procedures as necessary to improve organizational
effectiveness; read, understand and interpret construction plans and specifications; inspect and
analyze construction procedures and inteipret code violations; perform mathematical calculations
quickly and accurately; interpi•et, explain and apply applicable laws, codes and regulations; read,
inteipret and record data accurately; organize, prioritize and follow-up on work assignments; work
independently and as part of a team; make sound decisions within established guidelines; analyze
a complex issue, and develop and implement an appropriate response; follow written and oral
directions;  observe safety principles and work in a safe manner;  communicate clearly and
concisely, both orally and in writing; establish and maintain effect ive working relationships.

Skill to:

Operate a variety of tools used in construction inspection; operate an office computer and a variety
of word processing and software applications.

59



CITY OF LATHROP

MAINTENANCE WORKER I/II

Class specifica[ ions are only intended to present a descriptive summary of the range ofduties and responsibilities associnted wzth
specirecl positions.  Therefore, specifications mav not i iclude all duties pe. formed by individuals within a classificntiort.  / n

addition, speci cations are intended to outlirae the miiiimum qiealrfrcations ecessary for entry into the cla,ss m d clo not necessnrily

com ey the gualifcations of inca mbenls within the position.

DEFINITION:

Under general supervision, depending on assi ned Department/ Division learns to perform and performs the
full array of routine and complex tasks and duties -:--- ._ t4'«-+---+;'+}'- 4-''

including skilled and semi- skilled work in streets, storm drain basins, parks, buildings and public
facilities; assists other Public Works and or Parks & Recreation crews'~ ` when assigned;

demonstrates a full understanding of all applicable policies, procedures and work rnethods associated with
assigned duties; performs other related duties as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

Maintenance Worker I

The Maintenance Worker I is the entry- level class in the Maintenance Warker series that allows the
incumbent to develop journey level knowledge and abilities. - Initially, dependin on De artment/ Division
assignments, incumbents perform skilled work under immediate supervision;-, incumbents perform the- x3e e
routine and less complex assignments within an established procedural framework, where there are minimal
consequences of error, including a wide variety of maintenance and construction tasks in streets, parks,
buildings and public facilities. Incumbents are expected to perfoi•m the full scope of assigned duties. This
classification is alternatively staffed with Maintenance Worker II and iilcumbents may advance to the
higher level after gaining experience, and demonstrating a level of proficiency that meets the qualifications
of the higher- level classification.

Maintenance Worker II

I The Maintenance Worker II is the journey level class in the Maintenance Worker series. Depending on
Department/ Division assi nments, incumbents are expected to independently perform the full

scope of assigned duties. Incumbents perform a full range of duties related to the operation, maintenance
and repair of the City' s streets, parks, buildin s andupblic facilities._ This classification differs from the

next lower classification of Maintenance Worker I by the greater complexity of the assignments received,
and the greater independence with which an incumbent is expected to operate.  This classifieation is

distinguished from the next hi her classification of Maintenance Worker III in that the latter is an advanced

journev level class responsible for the most difficult and complex skilled and semi- skilled work within the
assigned Department/ Division.

SUPERVISION R C IVED/ EXERCISED:

Depending on assi ned Department/ Division receives direction and reports t^"'^-+-^^^` x'^ r'^- i

p^ mm a* ^•^^ ^ the Director of Public Works or the Director of Parks & Recreation

or his/ her desi nee. If the Department/ Division has a dedicated Maintenance Services Supervisor,

incumbents may receive direction and report to this position..-  Incumbents in this class do not r""

exercise supervision:

ra.,;,,+,,,,.,,,,.,, x,...,,,,. TT

I Updated by Resolution 20-
Attachment" F"

60



c
t-,-:-

T- MAINTENANCE WORKER III

Page 2

Assists assigrled', "^,,:+^^^, Supervisor with evaluating rojects=: and equipment needs,

and in developing work methods and procedures; assists in prioritizing requests for service and
scheduling work; assists in the development of plans to meet future service needs.

Ensures the quality and safety of work assignments in progress and upon completion; conducts daily
inspections of work in progress; provides leadership, instruction and training to improve work
standards, methods and procedures.

Serves s techiiical ex e- t& and participates in the operation and upkeep of construction and
maintenance equipment and/ or machinery, including construction vehicles, power tools and equipment;
assists in the training of new staff n'  .  ,'; ensures adherence to safe work methods,

procedures and practices; conducts and participates in safety meetings; identifies training opportunities
and needs for assi#; ncd De artnient/ I)ivision makes recoinmendations to higher level staff 4e.

rr-* a'rC- c-- irccririicn rca-; irc;=nTc"      .', t.:,..,....,!.

Investigates service requests and complaints made by the public; works with appropriate City staff to
resolve issues; explains priorities, programs and policies to the public when required; responds to
emergency calls from the public and other ageneies, and takes appropriate action.

Demonstrates a full understanding ofapplicable policies, procedures and work methods associated with
assigned duties; evaluates assigned work projects; estimates time, materials and equipment necessary
far the successful completion of the project; acquires necessary resources as is appropriate; prepares
and maintains records of labor, equipment and material used; writes reports and correspondence on

work perfonned.

Establishes positive working relationships with representatives of community organizations, state/ local
agencies and associations, City management and staff, and the public.

Responsible for maintaining hazardous materials and supply inventory in an organized, clean, and safe
configuration- provides i iventory rc;port5 on a monthly basis f r bud etin purpo es and rekulatory

re o  1_ ti l,.  .-

Conduct a daily/ weekly/ monthly, ete. inspections of the facility, iucluding all hazardous materials.

Perform. ongoing maintenance, completes corrective actions to maintain waste facilities and
equipment in safe working condition in accordance with Pern it conditions.

I;ollow procecil.u-cs Cor w ste rna gement. ancl liazardozzs tnaterial oz- cticzi ic 1 lia icilirig, i tcludizag
sampling, weighing, and storii g claemieal cc nt< ulers provides repc rts on a monthl ° is f or

re ulatory reportin.-

Follow rescribcd safcty proccdures and cornpl witl stat.c ar d federal laws rc ulating h zardous

matc; rials Ilandlit g, hazardous waste mana et7x; nt, and proper disposa( z etliods.

1' arl icip ite, in llaz. rd< us mat t- ial and wast.c ina l<gen ent. t.r<iinii lg ncl p ofcssioi al ievel pir ea it.
activities, iiicluditlg necessary cc,rlilicatioa.

Assists witli assi ned Capital Itnpr vement 1' rojects s it relates to work i» streets, storm drain basitl5,

paeks, buildings and public facitities.
i"+     ` i'`- i , t ii.;.l. r!` 1. 41 13' C..

Updated by Resolution 20-

61



cr_..TrrzA MAINTENANCE WORKER IIIT     

Page 3

When assi ned to Roads & Streets: Pertorms liiUh level skilled street maintenance task invc lv in«
the repair maintenance and con truction of curbs utters sidewalks streets roadways, stoi7n drains,

pav mellt and related facilities• rem' ves debri fr n1 roads drains pedestrian walkways aiid t ublic
reas erforrn weed abatement and #. rafiiti rem val assists in tlte installation n ainteua nce and

ii spection f Cit ns r ad mai-kings striping anci delineators• perfo- ns concrete siciewalk cu b
utter and rant i lstallati< n aitd reLair• perfornis temporary 1nd pernianent potliole rc air nd crack

sealu pai lts eurbs' installs and t•epair m ardrail and barricades r c ws at d abates wee- d « 1 ri hts-

f av ti ray he.rhicides ecmduct lit ter reinoval t( rounhout the Cit y.

hen assii ned to Buildin s and Public Facilities: Perform5 t l e full ran; e ot ustodial duti s,

includin vacuutuin  mo in waxinir and buftin fl ors sliampoos cai ets• washc wiild w < uid

pert< rtns mi cellaneous custodial daties• erfonns interi r aaid exteriorpaintin and staiain; perti>rrn
mai ltenanee dia nostic and min r caipe;nt  plumbing and electrical work assists in the assembly
and movin of office fut-niture aud equipmeut.

lien assianed to Farks: PerFot rn5 hiRh level skilled inaint enauce, repaii constructi arl and installation

work in parks Landsc pe areas and recre ti nal faci(ities eLeans and maintains rolmds paved areas
paths and walkways icks up trash and litter• opens cleans and maintains all restrooms inst ll re airs

and mai Itains irri ation systems adjusts rep irs and replace timin r mechanisms ins ects pl y
T u tl

material5 a as5ignecl to enstire quipment is readv fc r puhlic u e' perfot- 1 weed cc ntrol sl ruh lantin«
a d tri nmin;• mixes a ld a plies lierbicides and 5ticides in a safe manner t erates and inaintaiils a

variety of hand and power Landscap tools and ec ui metit.

PHYSICAL, MENTAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING CONDITIONS:

Position requires sitting, standing, walking on level and slippery surfaces, reaching, twisting, turning,
kneeling, bending, stooping, squatting, crouclling, graspuig, and making repetitive hand movetnent in the
performance of daily duties. The position also requires both near and far vision when inspecting work and
operating assigned equipment. The need to lift, carry and push tools, equipment and supplies weiglung 25
pounds or more is also required. Additionally, the incumbent in this outdoor position works in all weather
conditions, including wet, hot and cold. The incumbent may use cleaning and lubricatin chemicals which
may expose the employee to fumes, dust and air contaminants, and may be exposed to mechanical hazards.
The nature of the work also requires the incumbent to climb ladders, use power and noise producing tools
and equipment, enter confined spaees, drive motorized vehicles and heavy equipment, work in heavy
vehicle traffic conditions and often work with constant inten-uptions.  The incumbent may be required to

respond to after hours emergency call- outs and perform routine standby duties.

Some of these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and
requesting such accommodations.

QUALIFICATIONS:  ( The following are minimal quc lifications necessary for entry into the
classification.)

Education and/or Experience:

Any combinatioiz of education and experience that has provided the knowledge, skills and abilities
I necessary for a e ie Maintenance Worker II7..   A typical way of obtaining the rec uired

qualifications is to possess the equivalent of three years of increasingly responsible experience in
the construction, repair and maultenance of streets, parks or buildings and grounds, and a high

Updated by Resolution 20-___

62



I 1- I) MAINTENANCE WORKER I11

Page 4

school diploma or equivalent.

License/ Certificate:

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid class C California driver' s license.  For some vehicles,
possession of a class B California driver' s license might be required.  Possession of a Pesticide
Applicator' s certificate issued by the state of California is desirable.

Training Requirements:

All Classes

Initial training-- CA Title 22 Hazardous Waste Generator Trai iing ( 4 hour), Site Specific

Emergency Response Contingency Plan Action Guide Training ( 2 hour), HAZCOM Training
2 hour).

o Annual Refresher - CA Title 22 Hazardous Waste Generator Training ( 4 hour), Site

Specific Emergency Response Contvigency Plan Action Guide Training ( 2 hour),
HAZCOM Training( 2 hour).

GPR%Pirst Aidi ED Blood Bot-ne Patho ens

Defensive I?riving C: ourse

I' raffic C iitroUFlag er

Wheu AssiQned to Parks

Pla round Ir st ectir i Trainin< C' ertitication Cuurses

PAI' A - Pesticide r pplication Certi{ ication/ Review, CA. De ai-tnl. nt of P stic; ide } e ru c n

Trai nin<

C rtified Irrigator IZe air Ccrtificatc

When . AssiQued to Buildinns and Public Facilities

Cleneral Electrical WarksLlop Course - B sics to Troubleshootin

When Assi ned to Roacls & StreeYs

PAPA - Pesticide A lieation Certi cation Re iew C. Departmeut of Pesticide Re ulation

Trainin

Certified Irri ator Kepair Certificate

Updated by Resolution 20-

63



MAINTENANCE WORKER III

Page 5

KNOWLEDGE/ ABILITIES/ SKILLS:     ( The ,following are a representative sample of the KAS' s
necessary to perform essential duties of the position.)

Knowled e of:

Modern principles, practices, techniques and materials used in the inaintenance, construction and
repair of streets, parks, building and grounds; operational characteristics of specialized construction
and maintenance tools and equipment; cbaracteristics and safe application methods of herbicides
and pesticides; principles and practices of project development and cost estimating; - a+ e

applicable federal, state and local laws, codes

and regulations; methods and techniques of scheduling work assignments; basic priilciples of
mathematics and record keeping; occupational haaards and standard safety practices.

Ability to:

Oversee, lead and perform construction, maintenance and repair activities related to the City' s
streets, parks, buildings and grounds; safely operate a variety of tools and equipmeilt used in
construction and maintenance activities; estimate time and materials for completion of proj ects; read
and interpret blueprints; work independently in the absence of supervision; perform the more
complex and difficult maintenance activities; perform heavy inanual labor; plan, organize and direct
the work of subordinate staff; respond to after hours call-outs as assigned; work independently and

as part of a team; make sound decisions within established guidelines; follow written and oral
directions; observe safety principles and work in a safe manner; communicate clearly and concisely,
both orally and in writing; establish and maintain effective working relationships.

Skill to:

Safely and effectively, operate a variety of maintenance and construction equipment, tools and
materials; operate an office computer and a variety of software applications.

Updated by Resolution 20-

64



CITY OF LATHROP

I lls-1- MAINTENANCE WORKER i[ 1

Class specifications are only intended to present a descriptive summary ofthe rarige of duties and responsibilities associated witFa
specified positioris.  Therefore, specifcatio as m.aV not include a/ l duties peYfovmed by i aclivirluals within a c/ assification.  ln.
addition, specifrcc tions are intended to outline the ntinim unt qualific ztions necessary for entry into the class and cto aot
necessarily convey the qualifications of incurnbents within the position.

DEFINITION:

Under <retleral uperviSi n dependin n assi;; ned Departmeilt/ Division,_ '      

at l— performs tl e fu11 array of duties assigned to the Maintenar ce V%orker

series-*^•
r, including the most clifficult and cotu lex skilled and semi- skilled woek c= t c- 3i};

r; r *:.,: r; o in streets, storm drain Uasins, parks, buildings and public facilities; assists
thec Public Work ancl or Parks  Recreation crews tivE e 1 assianed• cleni nstrates a full undecstaaZdin of

all a licable policies t t ocedui-es and work nieth d associated with assinned duties serves as t. c}lnical
xpert in assi nged fi providing customer service to the public and< ther departn ents' provides res ozasible

profe55i nal as istance to the Director of Public WorkS t11e Director of Parks & Recreation or his' her

performs other related duties as
required.

DISTINGUISffiNG CHARACTERISTICS:

The Se Maintenance Worker III is the advanced journey level classification in the Maintenance
Worker series.  De endin r o T) epartlnent%Division assi lifnents, iticumbeslts r s perform skilled
work in the construction, maintenance and repair of streets, parks, buildings and public facilities, and
provide lead direction and training to assigned crews. - This classification is distinguished from the next

higher classification of Maintenance Services Supervisor in that the latter is a supervisory level class
responsible for overseeing an assigned maintenance function within the Department/ Division.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED/ EXERCISED:

Dependin n assi, ied De artment/ Divisiou, reeeives clirecti u and rep cts tc the Directe of 1' ublic Works

r the Direct r of Parks & Recreation or his/ l er desi nee. If the Departmei tlDivisio I as a_ dediLat; d

titaintei ance Services Sapervi r incuml ent may rceeive direction and re} ort to tl is positi n. Inc i.imhcilt_s
in thi class dn n t routinely exercise supervisi n over lower- level classes' nlay c versec work rssixiim nt5

rf rrned bv cotitract/ contractor.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:  ( include but are not limited to the following)

15sists is planntng coordinat u; u riti m; aud participatcs in t(ie work assi ned to the maintenance
divisionr a r' '' :*^ responsible for the construction,

maintenance and repair, of streets, parks, buildings and public facilities; operates and inspects City
streets, parks and facilities to identify maintenance needs; assists in the develo nentc-e s and

implements t•p oiecte- assignments; provides expert levei assistance toa maintenance staff in

troubleshooting and perfonning the more complex maintenance and repair activities.

Attachment " G"

65



I c _r.-.Tr, MAINTENANCE WORKER III

Page 2

Assists assi ned"  '.`'*"^^"" Supervisor with evaluatiugrpo. e cts te- and equipment needs,

and in developing work methods and procedures; assists in prioritizing requests for service and
scheduling work; assists in the development of plans to meet future service needs.

Ensures the quality and safety of work assignments in progress and upon completion; conducts daily
inspections of work iu progress; provides leadership, instruction and training to improve work
standards, methods and procedures.

Sea- ves as tecluiical expert E e and participates in the operation and upkeep of construction and
maintenance equipment and/ or machinery, including construction vehicles, power tools and equipment;
assists in the training of new staff. a--; ensures adherence to safe work methods,

procedures and practices; conducts and participates in safety meetings; identifies training opportunities
and needs for assi ned DeparUnent/ Division; makes recommendations to higher level staff;} t}.

i i   ,     +• r.  G, i

Investigates service requests and complaints made by the public; works with appropriate City staif to
resolve issues; explains priorities, programs and policies to the public when required; responds to
emergency calls from the public and other agencies, and takes appropriate action.

Demonstrates a full understanding of applicable policies, procedures and work methods associated with
assigned duties; evaluates assigned work projects; estimates time, materials and equipment necessary
for the successful completion of the project; acquires necessary resources as is appropriate; prepares
and maintains records of labor, equipment and material used; writes reports and con espondence on

work performed.

Establishes positive working relationships with representatives of con munity organizations, state/ local
agencies and associations, City management and staff, and the public.

Responsible for maintaining hazardous materials and supply inventory in an organized, clean, and safe
configuration; r vides itivcntot reUort n a m nt}11y basis fi r buds etin purt oses ancl rc:,Tulator

re c i'dtl-

Conduct._ daily/weekly/monthly, etc. inspections of the facility, including all hazardous materials.

Perform ongoing maintenance, complete corrective actions to maintain waste facilities and
equipment in safe working condition in accordance with Permit conditions.     

F llow prpcedui es f r waste i l an tgemei t and l azardc>us matcrial or claeniical han ilin, including

sart pling, weighing, and stor in; chemica) c iltainers provides reports on a Tnouthly basis for
re ulatory reportin. :

Pollow prescribed safc;ty procedures and colnpl.Ls- with statc and feci ral laws ccgiilating hs r,ardous
tnateri<als l andling, harardous w ste tt anagcmci l, ar d propc;- disposal rnctliocls.

P+ rticip le? in hazardous tnaterial and w ste ma a ernc it trai ii g a lcl rofessional dcvel r rzlunt
activities, iiicluciin ueccssary certificatiora.

Assists with assi med Ca tal Iinprovemeut Pt-ojects >> it re lates to work iu streets, stornl drain basit s,

pat ks buildialgs aud public facilities.
s}€     r?(' 1 t_{l.i ll';s il` fk>' 1!'. Ili:'C1.

Updated by Resolution 20-

66



I k;? 7- 3- MAINTENANCE WORK R III
Page 3

When assi ned to Roadt & Streets• Pet-t i- ns hitrh level skilled strect maintenance task iii olvin
tl e repair, maintenauce and constructiou of curbs, uttecs, sidewalks, Streets, roadways, stc t7 i c ra ls,

pa cment and related facilities• renu ve debris froru roads drains pedestrian uralkways and p iblic
areas erfortns weed abatement and traff iti removal assists in ttie iustallation, rnaintenance; and
in, pecti n of Citv 5i ns r ad ma' kinRs stripin aiid cleliilcators perfortns conerete sicle alk curb.
rutter and ran installation a id re air• rfrn is t mporary and pei lanent pothole rcpairs and crack

5ealin 1 aints c zrbs itlstall5 and repairs tiardrails nd barricades n ws and abates weeds c n ri; llts- 
f-way- sprays herhicides• a nd ucts ] itter ren oval tl rou hout the CitY.     

hen a i=ned to Buildin c and Public I+acilities• Perf r- ns tl e full ran e of e; Listodial duties,  
includin<> acuu nin  i» t inkr  aYin aad buffin floors 6anipoos carpets wash s windc w ti and

pertt rnl mitcellane us cu t di l duties• erforms interior and exterior paintin r and stainink; pertornas
mai ltenance dia no tic and minor car entry plur7 bing ai d el: etrical work SSists ii the asseinhly

and ri ovin oF tiice lurniture and eq ipment.       
q

1Vhen asSi neti to Parks F' er I rms hi 7h Level skilledlnaiutenance re} air construcd n ancl ins allatii i  
v rk in parks la id5cape areas and recreati lal facilities cleans atld maintai is ; rouncls ved areas,  

ath md valkwav, picks up trash and litter oLe175 eleans and maititains all restrc oms; in5talls, repaii s
and maintains irri#ation systems' adju5ts rep irs and replace timin mechanisms ii1s cts pla f Trout d

aterials a si rned to ensiire equipment is read } for public uce' rf-orms ueed control, st c lb plautin;

and tciinmin• mixes and a lies herbicides and esticides in a safe manncr• operates and maint ins a

variety o f hand and po er Ia ldsca in tools and equipmetlt.

PHYSICAL, MENTAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING CONDITIONS:

Position requires sitting, standing, walking on level and slippery surfaces, reaching, twisting, tunling,
kneeling, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, grasping, and making repetitive hand movement in the
performance of daily duties. The positioil also requires both near and far vision when inspecting work and
operating assigned equipment. The need to lift, carry and push tools, equipment and supplies weighing 25
pounds or more is also required. Additionally, the incumbent in this outdoor position works in all weather
conditions, including wet, hot and cold. The incumbent may use cleaning and lubricating chemicals which
may expose the employee to fumes, dust and air contaminants, and may be exposed to mechanical haaards.
The nature of the work also requires the incumbent to climb ladders, use power and noise producing tools
and equipment, enter confined spaces, drive motorized vehicles and heavy equipment, work in heavy
vehicle traffic conditions and often work with constant interruptions.  The incumbent may be required to

respoild to after hours emergency call- outs and perform routine standby duties.

Some of these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and
requesting sueh accommodations.

QUALIFICATIONS:  ( 7'he following are minimal qualifications necessary , for entry ii. to tlie
classification.)

Education and/or Experience:

Any combination of education and experience that has provided the knowledge, skills and abilities
necessary for a ' se tia Maintenance Worker IlI.   A typical way of obtaining the required
qualifications is to possess the equivalent of three years of iilcreasingly responsible experience in
the construction, repair and maintenance of streets, parks or buildings and grounds, and a high

Updated by Resolution 20-___

67



I C''.^ r' T. rMAINT NANCE WORKER III

Page 4

school diploma or equivalent.

License/ Certificate:

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid class C California driver' s license. For some vehicles,
possession of a class B California driver' s license might be required.  Possession of a Pesticide
Applicator' s certificate issued by the state of California is desirable.

Training Requirements:

111 Classes

Initial training-- CA Title 22 Iazardous Waste Generatar Training ( 4 hour), Site Specific

Emergency Response Contuigency Plan Action Guide Training ( 2 hour), HAZCOM Training
2 hour).

o Annual Refresher - CA Title 22 Hazardous Waste Generator Training ( 4 hour), Site

Specific Emergency Response Contingency Plan Action Guide ' Training ( 2 hour),
HAZCOM Training( 2 hour).

C: PR1I irst Aic11AED. 13lood I3orne Patl o ens

Defensive Drivin r Cout•se

I' raffic Contr UPla«« er

hen AssiRned to Parks

Play rc>und liispectio Trainin Certification Courses
P PA - Yesticide A plicatioii C' ertitication/ IZeview CA. Department of P sticide Re ulati l
Trai nin

Certified Irri ator Re air Ccrtificate

When Assigned to 13uildin s and Puk lic Facilities

Geileral F,lectrical WorksL op Course - Basics ta" I' roubleshe otin

Vti' hen ssi ed to Roads& Streets

f t' A - Pesticide Agplication Ceri ifieationi', Iteview Ct. l) artmeiri of Pesticide } c:,Tulatioi7

I rainin*

Certified Irri ator Repair Certi6cate

Updated by Resolution 20-

68



I fi- t' 14 MAINTENANCE WORKER III

Page 5

KNOWLEDGE/ ABILITIES/ SKILLS:     ( The following are a representative sample of the KAS' s
necessary to peYform essential duties of the position.)

Knowledge of:

Modern principles, practices, techniques and materials used in the maintenance, construction and
repair of streets, parks, building and grounds; operational charactei•istics of specialized consti-uction
and maintenance tools and equipment; characteristics and safe application methods of herbicides
and pesticides; principles and practices of project development and cost estimating; t-

r.,;;,,;; ", i::; applicable federal, state and local laws, codes

and regulations; inethods and techniques of scheduling work assigninents; basic principles of
mathematics and record keeping; occupational hazards and standard safety practices.

Ability to•

Oversee, lead and perform construction, maintenance and repair activities related to the City' s
streets, parks, buildings and grounds; safely operate a variety of tools and equipment used in
construction and maintenance activities; estimate time and materials for coinpletion of proj ects; read
and interpret blueprints; work independently in the absence of supervision; perform the more
complex and difficult maintenance activities; perform heavy manual labor; plan, arganize and direct
the work of subordinate staff; respond to after hours call- outs as assigned; work independently and

as part of a team; make sound decisions within established guidelines; follow written and oral
directions; observe safety principles and work in a safe manner; communicate clearly and concisely,
both orally and in writing; establish and maintain effective working relationships.

Skill to:

Safely and effectively_ operate a variety of maintenance and construction equipinent, tools and
inaterials; operate an off'ice computer and a variety of software applications.

Upd ted by Resolution 20-_

69



CITY OF LATHROP

MAINTENANCE SERVICES SUPERVISOR

Class specifccations are only intended to present a descriptive su» 2m ar of t{ ze r n nge of duties a ad responsibilities nssociated with
specified positions.  Therefore, specificatio. s mav not niclude all duties per/ormed by indivic uals within a classificcrtion.  ba
addition, specifications are intended to outline the niinimm i qualificatioras necessaryfor entry into the class and cto not necess rily
convey the qualifications of in cumbents within the position.

DEFINITION:

Under direction de endin o as5i<rned I e art ne t/[ ivisioo perfot7ns Che full aTray of the n ost dif ficult
and complex skilled and semi- skilled wt rk assi rued fo the Maintenance Worker s ries includint.;

r_supervis 
r, coordina ? 1? tti, direct n. and evaluat7 the work of staff involved in parks

maintenance, street maintenance, facility maintenance, and facility custodial activities; assists in the
research and implementation of new programs and pr jects; ensures safe work practices, work quality and
accuracy;  maintains appropriate work and project records which may include timecards,  co» tract

in tla ement tool and supply i lventory and work orders; serves as a techuical e pect in assi ned fieLd tasks
and a resource for assigned staff; performs other related duties as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

ependin:; ou assi Tneci Department/ Division t= he Maintenance Services Supervisor is the supervisory
level classification responsible for overseeing an assigned maintenance function within the PG rks ailci
I ecteati n Ue,parimex t ai'  the Public Warks Department,  including planning and scheduling staff
assignments, - monitoring work production <md erfor nin conl ex ski1lyd v{ rk in t11 cort tt-irctiu,
naint enance and re air of 5ti-eets park,  bui( dii s and public f a lri es and pio icie lead dire: ction and
trainin t> assi mecl crew' s.- The incumbent provides ongoing monitoring of service delivery, and responds
to customer complaints and concerns. This classification is distinguished from the next higher classification

of the Utility and Streets Maintenance Superintendent in that the latter is responsible for the
management of multiple operational and maintenance units within the Department.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED/ EXERCISED:

I)e endin; on assi ned I) e2 artment Division if assi ed to Pl blic Works r eceives direction from the

Utility and Streets Maintenance Superintendent Publie Works Director or-+-_ desi> n, ee- If assigned to

Parks and Recrealion receives directious from `    '  `  `       Parks and

R; creation Director or} desi; nee.: Exercises direct and indirect supei vision over assigned staff; inav

oversee« ork assinnments perforn ed bv contracUcontractor.-

ESSENTIAL FiTNCTIONS:  ( include but aYe not limited to the following)

Plans, prioritizes, assigns, supervises and reviews the work of staff involved in the construction,
maintenance and repair of City streets, parks, buildings and facilities; implements safety programs and
ensures safe work practices, work quality and accuracy; oversees and monitors maintenance work and
activities provided by outside contractors.

Participates in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies and procedures;
evaluates work methods and procedures for improving unit performance and meeting goals; ensures
that goals are achieved; assists in the research and implementation of new programs.

Updated by Resolution 20-
Attachment" H"

70



MAINTENANCE S RVICES SUPERVISOR

Page 2

Participates in the selection and training of maintenance personnel;  assumes responsibility for

motivating and evaluating assigned personnel; provides or arranges far necessary training; initiates
discipline procedures as is appropriate.

Develops and monitors schedules, methods and procedures for performing assigned duties; conducts
daily inspections of work in progress; monitors work activities to ensure safe work practices, work
quality and customer service; ensures compliance with applicable rules, policies and procedures;
maintains appropriate work records and documents; prepares statistical and/ or analytical reports on
operations as necessary.

Participates in the development of the inaintenance services budget; assists iu monitoring the approved
budget; coordinates with outside vendors for various supplies and services; oversees and tnaintauis the

inventory, maultenance and operating condition of departmental tools, equipment and supplies;
requisitions and orders needed materials, parts and equipment` responsible tor tt ackin r i entor i'

tc t ls and ui r lie and oviclin inventor reports for bud ct purposes to the dLt artment' s assi, 1 d
i 1; na<Teme;nt Analvst or Pii anee M na 7,er. r- e-spou ihle tor trackin wtat•rantv rte-ms at d slihrtutti l
roLr clainls wlten necessary for repairs:.-

Evaluates and recommends work projects and activities; esti nates time, materials and equipment
necessary for successful completion of work, identifies and reviews resource needs with appropriate
management staff; allocates resources accordingly; schedules work with outside contractors and
developers; attends pre- construction meetings.

Participates in all maintenance activities, including spriukler installation and repair, street
maintenance, facility repairs and facility custodial activities; inspects streets, parks and facilities and
identifies inaintenance needs; supervises and assists in the application of herbicides and pesticides;

supervises and participates in the operation of construction and maintenance equipment and/ or
inachineiy including construction vehicles, power tools and equipment.

C' c orclioates schedules a d procures fleet n aiiltenar ce service a pointmeuts at d ret ait' s f r_Cit ticet
tehicle5 and hea v equipment• pc cu• e and a lies p ec purchasi« pr«cedules - l cn, 5elect<<I

4ervice re aairs or rclia in replacement equip117ent tracks rnilcat e aiic rovides repc rts of vel ic les

7nd c uij ment reaclv for sur lus.

Addresses and responds to customer service questions, viquiries and concerns; establishes and
maintains a customer service orientation within the assi, ed i imiti.

Establishes positive working relationships with represeiltatives of community organiz tions, state/ local
agencies and associations, City management and staff, and the public.

Responsible for overseeing adherence of maintaining hazardous materials and supply inveutory in an
organized, clean, and safe configuration re ponsible for mai Ilaiuia liazardous nlalei•ials anci sii plv
invent ry in an r anired cleau and afe c nf nurati n• pr vicies inventor} reports ou a xanthlv basis
for bud etin ptirposes ailcl re ulatory rej ortiri, :

1:,

Updated by
Resolution 20-

71



MAINTENANCE SERVICES SUPERVISOR

Page 3

nsure daily/weekly/monthly, etc. inspections of the facility are conducted, including all hazardous
materials and hazardous waste iu abs nce of available staff c<mduct dailyiw ccklv/ rix t tl lv, etc:.

insp ction oi`the faci( itv includin; all hazardous n ateriats..

Ensure ongoing maintenance and complete corrective actions are performed to maintain waste
facilities and equipment in safe working condition in accordance with Permit conditions; ir1
ab5ence oi' ati ailable taff conduct onRoin n ainteliance carrlplcte c n-ective actions to maintaitl

a te facilitie and equipmeut i 1 safe workin r c ndition in accordance with Pertnit conditioils.:

E' ollow roccdures tor waste nanagein nt and h<» ardous r i<itcri< 1 ox cheitiica( hac cllin,, iticli.icliri, T

s ul ipling, weighing, i ld storing cl lcmic l or t.ainers; mvides re orts on a nonthlv t asis for

res ulatory reportin;..-

I ollow prescribed safety prc ccduces and cotnply with statu and federal laws rcgulati g haraz dc as
matez i<ils l anclling, } t rardous waste tnanagerl cnt, ancl prc per disposal irletl ocis.

P jrticipat in hazardous matca-ial and wastc rz a» agcme,a t ( r<iii:iri; anc! pcofessioi al devcic p i, nt
activiti s, includin r eecssary certiEication.

wists with assi ueci Ca ital Improvenlent F' ro e ets as it relates t work in streets, st« rrt clrain hasinsz
arks b uildii s and public facilities.

j, r 5;' 3 4  t 1 i }''. tl" J  3. ti;' 7n' Cl.

When a i ned to Roads R Streets• Serves as teclli ical expert in assi; ned field; i erfor nls fii rli le rel
5killed street n aintenance task5 inv l vin> the repair maintenance and coi struction of curbs, uttcrs,

idew lks strcets roadways storm drains p vement and related facilities• remtavcs debris tro l roacls,
drains edestrian walkways and ublic reas• erforms weed abatement and graffiti removal; assitits in
the in tallatiun n ainteua ice and inspection of Cit i ns rt ad n irkin 7,  Stripinv a» d d lin ators-

perforzns eoncrete sidew lk curb  „ utter and ramp installation and repair• perf-orms t.erupi rary a11c1
ermai ent pothole repair5 and crack sealin; ipaints et rbs iustalls anc3 repairs uardrails and hai icad, s;

lnows and ahates « eeds on ri; l ts- ot=wa i•ays l erl icid s conducts litter reiu val tllrou< llouz 11ie;

C' ity.

When attii ned to I3uildiu s and Public [ acilities: Serves as tecl uical e pert in assi necl t-ield;

e- f rnis the full i anve f custodial duties in ludirl vacuutuin inot ping wa in anc buf'fin fli r
sh m o ti caipets wa hes wind w andLerforms n isccl( aueous custodial duties; perforzl s interior and
eKtc- ior p i ltin and staiuin• performs illaint nance ciia:; no tic and minor caipentry pluillhi c1

eleetrieal wock• assists it the ass nbLy anci m cinn of ofI ìce iurniture and ec uipmeat.

When a i ned to Parks• Serves as technical expert in assi iled field' perfot- ns hi, rh level skilled
maintenance rej air construction aixl installation vork in parks landscape areas, and recreational
facilitie cleans and t aintains round paved aceas aths and walkwa picks u trasl and litter'

pens clean5 and inaintainS alt restrooms installs. repairs and maintains irri<ration syste.ms; adjust,.
re air anci replace timin mechani5n s• ins ects lay 7rouud n ateria( s as aS5lkrned to etlsure equipment
i reaciv for ublic u e' erforms weed contro]  shrub lantiii and t iz u 7ing: mires ailci a plies
herbicide ancl pesticidet in a 5afe manner• operate and inaintains a variety of hand and p er

Updated by
Resolution 20-

72



MAINTENANCE SERVICES SUPERVISOR

Page 4

aadsca in tools and equi nt nerlt.

PHYSICAL, MENTAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING CONDITIONS:

Position requires sitting, standing, walking on level and slippery surfaces, reaching, twisting, turning,
kneeling, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, grasping, and making repetitive hand movement in the
performance of daily duties. The position also requires both near and far vision when inspecting work and
operating assigned equipment. The need to lift, carry and push tools, equipment and supplies weighing 25
pounds or more is also required. Additionally, the incumbent in this outdoor position works in all weather
conditions, includin wet, hot and cold. The incumbent may use cleaning and lubricating chemicals which
may expose the employee to fumes, dust and air containinants, and may be exposed to mechanical hazards.
The nature of the work also requires tlie incumbent to climb ladders, use power and noise producing tools
and equipment, enter confined spaces, drive motorized vehicles and heavy equipment, work in heavy
vehicle traffic conditions, and often work with constant interruptions. The incumbent may be required to

respond to after hours emergency call- outs and perform routine standby duties.

SomE o f these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiriug and
requesting such accommodations.

QUALIFICATIONS:    ( The following are miniinal qualifications necessary for entry into tlae
classi fication.)

Education and/ or Experience:

Any combination of education and experience that has provided the knowledge, skills and abilities
uecessary for a Maintenance Services Supervisor.   A typical way of obtaining the required

qualifications is to possess the equivalent of five years of increasingly responsible experience in
street, parks or facilities maintenance, including two years of lead ar supervisory experience, and a
high school diploma or equivalent.    Supplemental coursework or specialized training in

construction, grounds maintenance ar facilities t7laintenance is desirable.

License/ Certificate:

IPossession
of, or ability to obtain a Class C California driver' s license.  ".:. r.,.,: " ,.' ,."';':',,"

t' c• ainin Itequiremc ats:

Ii7itial training- CA Title 22 Hazardous Waste Generator Traiuing( 4 hour), Site Specific
Emergency Response Contingency Plan Action Guide Training( 2 hour), I AZCOM Training
2 hour).

Annual Refresher- CA Title 22 Hazardous Waste Generator Training( 4 hour), Site Specific

Emergency Response Contingency Plan Action Guide Training ( 2 hour), HAZCOM Training
2 hour).

CPR/ E irst Aid/ AED E31 od or ie Pat} loRe ls

Updated by
Resolution 20-

73



MAINTENANCE SERVICES SUPERVISOR

Page 5

Defei sive I) rivin C' ourse

Traffic Co itrol! Fla er

When Assianed to Parks

Plavt i'ound In pectioi Trainin Certification C' urses
PAPA %    , 3_ ._.._      Pes( ieide A plicati n Certification;'[ Zevie C' r_

epartment f Pesticide Re ulat ti I rainin r '     '   
n   '  .+   '. '""':`   ', ;`      `. '„'

c**"  '• r^"'    ^.Certi{ icd Icri; ator IZc ic Certiiicaie     --

When Assi ned to [ 3uildin s and Pi blic I' acilities

C e; neral F; lectrical Workshop Cou- se - 13asics to" I' roublesho tin=,

hen Assi ned to Roads& Streets

PAPr1/ Pe ticide np licatic n Certification/ Review CA Depariment of Pestieide Re ulation
l, ra ininn

Certified Irrigator Re air Cc.rtificaie

KNOWI. EDGE/ ABILITIES/ SKILLS:     ( The following are a representative sample of the KAS' s
necessary to perform essential duties of the position.)

Knowled e of:

Modern piinciples and practices of street, parks and facilities maintenance and repair; operational
characteristics of specialized construction, landscaping and maintenance tools and equipment;
characteristics of irrigation systems, timers and controls; principles and practiees of project
developmenC and cost estimating;  principles and practices of budget development and
administration; methods and techniques of supervision, training and inotivation; applicable federal,
state and local laws,  codes and regulations;  methods and techniques of scheduling work

assignments;  basic principles of mathematics and record keeping; occupational hazards and
standard safety practices.

Ability to•

Supei-vise and direct the operations and activities of assigned maintenance units in the Public Works

Department; plan, organize and direct the work of subordinate staff; safely operate a variety of
tools and equipment used in construction, maintenance and repair; estimate time and materials for

completion of projects; coordinate and conduct training programs for staff; respond to issues and
concenls from the community; work independently and as part of a team; make sound decisions
within established guidelines; follow written and oral directions; observe safety principles and work
in a safe manner; communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing; establish and
maintain effective working relationships.

Skill to:

Updated by
Resolution 20-

74



MAINTENANCE SERVICES SUPERVISOR

Page 6

Safely and effectively operate a variety of maintenance and construction equipment, tools and
materials; operate an office computer and a variety of software applications.

Updated by
Resolution 20-

75



I
r n n rrni. T r n r n

CITY OF LATHROP

RECREATION LEADER

Class specifications are only intended to present a descriptive summary of the range of duties and

I responsibilities associated with specified positions. - Therefore, specifications may not include a/l
duties performed by individuals within a classification.  In addition, specifications are intended to

outline the minimum qualifications necessary for entry into the class and do not necessarily convey

the qualifications of incumbents withrn the position.

DEFINITION:

Under close supervision, the Recreation Leader assists in conducting a wide variety of recreational
and educational activities, monitors events, a classes, and programs including but not limited

to before and after school programs for youth, teen programs, senior activities, leisure enrichment
classes, youth and adult sports, city special events, 

r ,°,^"  ^ r^„'^ rt administrative support and

customer service at City facilities and performs a variety of custodial duties.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

The Recreation Leader is the entry level support class responsible for providing support to

I recreation staff for the implementation of a wide variety of recreation classes and programs and
is responsible for  eneral custodial and facility related concerns.— This classification is

distinguished from the next higher level of Senior Recreation Leader in that the latter acts with

greater independence,  plans program content- a provides lead supervision e and has the
responsibility for more than one center.  .-

SUPERVISION RECEIVED/ EXERCISED:

Receives general supervision from a Recreation Supervisor and/ or Recreation Coordinator.  May

I
receive lead and/ or functional supervision from a Senior Recreation Leader.  Incumbents +- taa+ s

may be requiredsl ss- c e e to routinely assiste supervision of pro rams or facilities. .-

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:  ( include but are nor limited to the following)

Oversees participants and volunteers in a recreation program, activity or facility;
Provides assistance to customers inquirin about or usin t e- City- facilit ies;  monitors

facility rentals and classes; answers phones and directs the public;
Perform routine custodial duties such as sweepin, scrubbin, washin windows, cleanin

restrooms, removin waste materials and garba e, and vacuumin carpets;

Provides direction and assistance in resolvin  rental issues and, facility-/- classroom

problems
r.,:..,;,,      w, a;,.;..,:,, o.

I oa i ni nii n
Attachment " I"

76



I
n rn n rTn. Tr nr n

Accompanies participant groups at special events or on program outings;
Monitors the facility durin the duration of scheduled rental periods, scheduled classes or

city pro rams; ensures compliance with all facility rules and re ulations, anticipates and
resolves issues quickly;

Provides feedback regarding program development and activity schedule;

Develops and distributes promotional and marketing information and assists the public with

questions and problems;

Opens, closes, secures and maintains a safe program environment at City facilities;
conducts routine safety checks;

Sets up ande prepares tables, chairs, equipment, and supplies for programs or scheduled
activities;

Assist renters,  visitors,* a-- a s  and instructors with equipment

setup/ function and eneral service requests;

Completes inventory of necessary pro ram supplies;

Completes facility cleanin checklist durin assi ned shifts and notes items of concern to

supervisor;

Completes participant counts and updates+ attendance lo s; 

Attends mandatory pre- service and in- service training and meetings;

Answer phones; accept payments for program registration or facility reservations;
Answer program related questions and provide exceptional customer service;
Actively participatesD +' a„+:   ;'+„ r,"'

g r i a es in- a program activities, including games, sports, arts and crafts, field trips and
homework time;  provides supervision for the participants during all times;  actively

communicates with -program participants:

Monitors activities; disciplines program participants as needed; speaks with participants, or

parents of program participants as necessary regarding their concerns and complaints:
Attends monthly program meetings;  provides ideas for program content;  assists with

Iimplementation programmingL.-

Establishes positive working relationships with representatives of community organizations,

Istate/local agencies and associations, City management and staff, and the public_

PHYSICAL, MENTALAND ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING CONDITIONS:

Position requires prolonged sitting,  standing,  walking,  reaching,  twisting,  turning,  kneeling,

bending, squatting, and stooping in the performance of daily activities. The position also requires

grasping, repetitive hand movement and fine coordination in preparing reports using a computer
keyboard. Additionally, the position requires near and far vision in reading written reports and
work related documents.  Acute hearing is required when providing phone and personal service.
The need to lift, drag and push files, paper and documents weighing up to 25 pounds also is

I a„ oa i ni nii

77



i
required.  Additionally, the incumbent in this outdoor position works in all weather conditions,

Iincluding
wet, hot and cold.

Some of these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring

and requesting such accommodations.

I QUALIFICATIONS:—  ( The following are minimal qualifications necessary for entry into the
classification.)

Education and/ or Experience:

Any combination of education and experience that has provided the knowledge, skills and
abilities necessary for a Recreation Leader.   A typical way of obtaining the required

qualifications is to possess the equivalent of one year of experience implementing

recreation programs or events, and a high school diploma or equivalent.

License/ Certificate:

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid class C California driver' s license and CPR, First
Aid, AED, Sexual Harassment and Mandated Reporter certification.

KNOWLEDGE/ ABILITIES/ SKILLS:  ( The following are a representative sample of the KAS' s necessary

to perform essential duties of the position. J

Knowledge of:

General recreation programming and activities for all a es; eneral customer service,; child

development and age appropriate activities and projects;  facility monitorin,  basic

principles of mathematics; applicable federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations;
methods and techniques of scheduling work assignments; standard office procedures,

practices and equipment; modern office practices, methods and equipment, including a
computer and applicable software; methods and techniques for record keeping, report

preparation and writing; proper English, spelling and grammar; occupational hazards and
standard safety practices.

Abili to:

Assist with planning, coordination and implementation of a variety of Citywide recreation

I programs rental and special events, including preparing activities and projects; interact
with children, adults, seniors and provide a safe and nurturing environment; perform
mathematical calculations quickly and accurately; interpret, explain and apply applicable
laws, codes and regulations; read, interpret and record data accurately; organize, prioritize

and follow- up on work assignments; work independently and as part of a team; make

sound decisions within established guidelines; analyze a complex issue, and develop and
implement an appropriate response; follow written and oral directions; observe safety

principles and work in a safe manner; communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and
in writing; establish and maintain effective working relationships.

IT T,. a., oa i ni ni

78



I
DL'(` DL' ATTlIATTL' AT1L' D

kl t0:

Operate standard recreation tools and equipment; operate an office computer and a variety
of word processing and software applications.

HOURS:

Recreation Leaders will work both traditional and non- traditional hours includin weekends

and ni hts. The work load and availability of hours for these positions varies throughout the

year•

IT T a., oa i ni ni n

79



SENIOR RECREATION LEADER

Page t

CITY OF LATHROP

SENIOR RECREATION LEADER

Class specifications are only intended to present a descriptive summary of the rrange of duties arzd responsibi[ ities associated with
specified posilions. TherefoYe, specifications nxav rot include a!! ctuties perforrned by individuals witl in a classification. / n adclition,
specifications are intended to outline the nti rintum qua[ ificatio zs nece.rsary for er try into the ciczss and do r ot necessarily convey
tlie qualificatr ons of incumbents within the position.

DEFINITION:

Under general supervision, plans, develops, monitors - and implements recreation programs and
facilitv usa;      

Assists Recreation

Supervisor in plannin , or a nizing;, schedulin recreation pr rams and the use of city facilities, performs
other related duties as assigned.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

The Senior Recreation Leader is the advanced journey level support classification in the Parks and
Recreation department in which the incumbents are expected to independently perfonn the full scope of
assigned duties. The incumbent performs a full range of program see e rand facilitv responsibilities.-,

This class is distinguished

from the next higher classification of Recreation Coordinator in that the latter has overall responsibility for
an assigned program area.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED/ EXERCISED:

Receives general supervision fiom a Recreation Supervisor. May exercise technical and functional
supervision over assigned lower staff.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:  ( include but are not limited to the follolving)

Plans, develops and implements sa e- recreational prograins and facilitv usage ,- which m_ include- a

before and after school programs and day camps; works directly with l pro ram participants;
Opens and closes the operations of the parks and recreation facilities reuglarlv and performs custodial

maintenance work as needed, or emergency work.' *:..;*; a     

Communicates with s e a er s,•—pt c es-- a- aet+} t es; g- g es, c- s-

customers, program participants
and contractors.

Prepares and; tracks paperwork associated with programs and facilitv usa

Monitors records for program and facility usage permits; takes payments from customers; notifies
supervisors and customers of pending permit paperwork, and past due accounts.

Updated by Resolution 20-
Attachment" J"

80



SENIOR RECREATION LEADER

Page 2

Sets up for program activities daily; cleans up after all activities; orders all necessary supplies for program
activities; organizes and plans special events or holiday activities.

Monitors and maintains records for the hours children participate in programs; t-a ereceives payments
from a e customers; - veri and a apply es payments made by program participants; notifies
supervisor and parents of past due accounts; maintains daily participant counts.

n     .    * i, i,•      +  °  •       a
ciurnzxrguixa 9upcidiSii puxc cxizxv      

cxxncan.-i.s 11 •'• ••: ivrsPcrcciixiry +,. 4'f L.»..,.

Assists with training and oversi ht of part time emplovees.

Monitors facilitv usa e on weeknights weekends, evenings, and holidays.

Informs customers of local laws policies and procedures pertaining to facilitv use and safetv and ensure
that users are in compliance.

Assists Recreation Supervisor in oragnizing scheduling and evaluatin both indoor and outdoor facility
conditions.

Provides clerical support prorgam registration answer telephones and maintain correspondence with

other divisions or departments.

Sets up tables chairs and necessary equipment for recreation pro rams and facility rentals.

P=oP== Tmza- 3a  @' egi-ch33 a e i s a' e  € 6 eR e epin- s- vn l e 3e— st- e

v. L,,,,-.. o, v. o, r ., 4' rl, o F... 7 ..

Performs minar first aide; fills out iilcident reports; notifiese s parents if injury or illness necessitates_

Establishes positive working relationships with the en  eral- public, pro r am participants,- e eser a

r..;«-.^      +;, *^*^^^         ^
a ^      ^+^^, eGity management and staff„ ""—

E

Performs routine facilitv safetv checks. * *' +..+
r^„

PHYSICAL, MENTAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING CONDITIONS:

Position requires prolonged sitting, standing, walking, reaching, twisting, turning, kneeling, bending,
squatting, and stooping in the performance of daily activities. The position also requires grasping,
repetitive hand movement and fine coordination in preparing reports using a computer keyboard.
Additionally, the position requires near and far vision in reading written reports and work related
documents. Acute hearing is required when providing phone and personal service. The need to lift, drag

I and push files, refuse, paper1- a documents, and other items weighing up to 25 pounds also is required.

Updated by Resolution 20-

81



SENIOR RECREATION LEADER

Page 3

aa'*'    >>   *     -:: ^ *?::,, As needed this positon ma work outdoors in wet, hot or cold e
w...      ...

We2t11er COrid1t10riS rrccicxctr rg Pv' iiôi uixa v̂.

Some of these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and
requesting such accoinmodations.

QLJALIFICATIONS:  ( The following are minimal qualifications necessary for e itry into the clas.sification.)

Education and/or Experience:

Any combination of education and experience that has provided the knowledge, skills and abilities
necessary for a Senior Recreation Leader.  A typical way of obtaining the required qualifications
is to possess the equivalent of one year of experience implementing recreation programs or events,
and a high school diploma or equivalent.

License/ Certificate:

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid class C California driver' s license and CPR certification.

KNOWLEDGE/ ABILITIES/ SKILLS:  ( The,following are a representative sample of the KAS' s necessary
to perform essential duties of the position.)

Knowled e of:

I B asic

principles of mathematics; applicable federal, state and locallaws, codes and regulations; metllods
and techniques of scheduling work assignments;  standard office procedures,  practices and

equipment; modern office practices, methods and equipment, including a computer and applicable
software; methods and techniques for record keeping and report preparation and writing; proper
English, spelling and grammar; occupational hazards and standard safety practices.

Abilitv to:

Prepare manage track paperwork associated with recreation proQrams and facilitv usa e-- a

perform

mathematical calculations quickly and accurately; interpret, explain and apply applicable laws, codes
and regulations; read, interpret and record data accurately; organize, prioritize and follow- up on work
assignments; work independently and as part of a team; make sound decisions within established
guidelines; analyze a complex issue, and develop and implement an appropriate response; follow
written and oral directions; observe safety principles and work in a safe manner; communicate clearly
and concisely both orally and in writing; establish and maintain effective working relationships.

Sl ill to:

Operate standard recreation tools and equipment; operate an office computer and a variety of word

processing aiid software applications.

IHOURS:
Updated by Resolution 20-

82



SENIOR RECREATION LEADER

Page 4

The Senior Recreation Leader will work a traditional, non- traditional, and split- shift hours including

weekdays, weekends, evenings, and holidays.

Updated by Resolution 20-

83



84



ITEM 4. 7

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: CREATE CIP PS 21- 06 LATHROP ROAD

AND HARLAN ROAD INTERSECTION

IMPROVEMENTS AND APPROVE RELATED

BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving the Creation of
CIP PS 21- 06 Lathrop Road and Harlan Road
Intersection Improvements and Approve

Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

Creation of a new Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS 21- 06 for Lathrop Road and
Harlan Road Intersection Improvements is needed to correct existing traffic control
deficiencies.   CIP PS 21- 06 will be acting on the recommendation from the Traffic
Impact Report for CFT NV Developments, LLC ( CFT) - Phase 2 ( Panda Express- Sonic-

Dutch Brothers),  provided by the Crane Transportation Group and included as
Attachment " C", which identified certain corrections that need to be made to the

existing intersection.

Staff is requesting that City Council approve the creation of CIP PS 21- 06 with a total
initial budget of $ 100, 000. The creation of this CIP and allocation of funds will allow

staff to move forward with engineering design and construction.

BACKGROUND:

The intersection of Lathrop Road and Harlan Road currently has some traffic
circulation and control deficiencies. The proposed project will provide the following:

Two exclusive left turn lanes and a combined through/ right turn lane on

northbound Harlan Road.

Removal of the raised island median on Harlan Road south of W. Lathrop Road
at the entrance to the existing northbound left turn lane and the Burger King-
O' Reilly' s driveway.
Extension of the left turn lane on the eastbound W. Lathrop Road approach to
Harlan Road by at least 75 feet.

The existing conditions do not provide adequate storage for the traffic, which creates
excessive delay. Providing two long left- turn lanes on Harlan Road and a longer left
turn lane on Lathrop Road will allow for proper storage of vehicles without disrupting
and blocking the through traffic on both Lathrop and Harlan Roads.

85



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP PS 21- 06 LATHROP ROAD AND HARLAN ROAD INTERSECTION
IMPROVEMENTS AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road traffic signal will be coordinated with the Lathrop
Road/ Cambridge Drive and Lathrop Road/ Fifth Street traffic signals in conjunction
with the improvements completed under CIP PS 21- 06, which will promote efficient
traffic flow through the Lathrop Road corridor.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Creation of a new Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS 21- 06 for Lathrop Road and
Harlan Road Intersection Improvements is needed to provide proper traffic circulation
and correct existing deficiencies. The creation of this CIP and allocation of funds will
allow staff to move forward with engineering design and construction.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total estimated cost to improve current traffic deficiencies on Lathrop Road and
Harlan Road is $ 100, 000.  Funds are available in the Street Reserve Account. Staff

requests City Council approve the creation of CIP PS 21- 06 and a budget amendment
transferring $ 100, 000 from the General Fund - Street Reserves Account ( 1010) to

the Streets CIP Fund ( 3310) as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 100, 000

Increase Transfer In

3310- 9900- 393- 0000 PS 21- 06 100, 000

Increase Expenditures

3310- 8000- 420- 12- 00 PS 21- 06 100, 000

Decrease Reserve

1010- 251- 03- 00 100, 000

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP PS 21- 06 Lathrop Road and Harlan
Road Intersection Improvements and Approve Related Budget Amendment

B.  Vicinity Map

C.  Traffic Impact Report,  for CFT  -   Phase 2   ( Panda Express- Sonic- Dutch

Brothers),  project in the City of Lathrop,  CA.,   prepared by the Crane
Transportation Group

86



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
CREATE CIP PS 21- 06 LATHROP ROAD AND HARLAN ROAD INTERSECTION
IMPROVEMENTS AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

2.3/ 2C 2
Bellal Nabi adah Date
Junior Engineer

II 23/ ZO?
Brad T lor Date
Associate Engineer

lZ ZoZo

Michael King Date
Public Works Director

i/ a
Ca '  a Date
Finance ,'   Administrative Services Director

i

2.—/ - Z u

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z •7• Zo20
Ste n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

87



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE CREATION OF CIP PS 21- 06 LATHROP ROAD AND HARLAN
ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET
AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the proposed project will provide the following at the intersection
of Lathrop Road and Harlan Road:

Two exclusive left turn lanes and a combined through/ right turn lane

on northbound Harlan Road.

Removal of the raised island median on Harlan Road south of W.

Lathrop Road at the entrance to the existing northbound left turn lane and the

Burger King- O' Reilly' s driveway.

Extension of the length of the left turn lane on the eastbound W.

Lathrop Road approach to Harlan Road by at least 75 feet; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting that Council approve the creation of CIP PS
21- 06 Lathrop Road and Harlan Road Intersection Improvements and related

budget amendment as detailed below:

Increase Transfer Out
1010- 9900- 990- 9010 100, 000

Increase Transfer In

3310- 9900- 393- 0000 PS 21- 06 100, 000

Increase Expenditures

3310- 8000- 420- 12- 00 PS 21- 06 100, 000

Decrease Reserve

1010- 251- 03- 00 100, 000

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED,  the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the creation of CIP PS 21- 06 Lathrop Road and Harlan
Road Intersection Improvements; and

88



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the City Council of the
City of Lathrop does hereby authorize the budget amendment to the following
accounts:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 100, 000

Increase Transfer In
3310- 9900- 393- 0000 PS 21- 06 100, 000

Increase Expenditures

3310- 8000- 420- 12- 00 PS 21- 06 100, 000

Decrease Reserve

1010- 251- 03- 00 100, 000

89



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of December
2020, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

90



ATTACHMENT B

h i

HW

r t f Y  .

K

r

a* a.w    '       .     .

u 

s   ,.      ' 1
y

h
t   -       

tl-   
w   ,.

y      qgr '

3s. r.  

1# w-,. 3..,.   .       dt"' ,    n"'; g.',"'. o-4t:.     ""

5

n, 
w      v

R'ci   
y„ ;.   3     

p     ,  .    _      >

a

w...--#' 
a    _;      

xi

e    ,

Y Y

F I s+- ¢
r

a, jt T r

fi Y       , w x a
s c    ' 1t,, 

N
r

y     x
tu"`       £ t

x'` i F
s : 

D

rf- w
g   e a r,,,   

F.       '       

T.' k a

f.     

r.       

a r    
rh. s%+:     

y r
d1`       ,.  

i, c-,.    '

r
a

a    

1

Har E       

anR              
oaa

u.             K          . 

y      . 
a

r          "       %`, 

t
r      

1
a

i3y'S'      
M' a 4 f

w:
k a f ....  

R f   

yc•     O
P

P.. 1
i

an

3 Y.
N

d
p rl    

M....    .  S 

y    

Yt k   Ff_.     z

s'    i"+
n '.'

1       '

y :
i.     a' a

t,   O r

a  

s'      v

J

k           .  i
s        '  

a' 6`,€       
d° r a     § fn.     r, f',`„ F

i h <' o- r! X Cr      
r    

JY a.,.
x pN,"

r 4 p  
3*,,,   

1

s   ,,       
h' , +  

u       ..      

s   

f      ,      
s F

r.   ^

v:, e'  ;      Ca,     a'    '"
x 

p''

a    "   .    .. 6 t a

w..:      f, M;.,   t p :'' r.   
h.;

s  #    t

r"*        

q      $ 
T "      

j

r
s

4       

4    R

s   

u,       

r' k      e
r  .-   y  

b..,  

t, t.`.':
F'*`' M'#    +* e.`"       ....-.,"

w ,    `"`, '.   
L    '"„' w',..,     ..   

f'.

p       

N      - r   
y  ,,

s'

w      .  e..

91



ATTACHMENT C

TRAFFIC IMPACT REPORT

CFT —  PHASE 2

Panda Express- Sonic- Dutch

Brothers)  PROJECT

IN

THE CITY OF LATHROP,  CA

December 9, 2019

Prepared for: THE CITY OF LATHROP

Prepared by: Mark D. Crane, P. E.
California Registered Traffic Engineer (#1381)

CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

2621 E. Windrim Court

Elk Grove, CA 95758

916) 647- 3406

cranetransgroup@gmail.com

92



TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. INTRODUCTION......................................................................................................... 1

IL SUMMARY OF FINDINGS....................................................................................... 1

A.  WITHOUT PROJECT CONDITIONS...................................................................... 1

1.  EXISTING............................................................................................................... 1

2.   CUMULATIVE( YEAR 2022)................................................................................. 2

B.  PROJECT IMPACTS................................................................................................ 2

1.   TRIP GENERATION.............................................................................................. 2

2.  EXISTING+ PROJECT OFF- SITE TRAFFIC IMPACTS..................................... 2

3.   CUMULATIVE( YEAR 2022) + PROJECT OFF- SITE TRAFFIC IMPACTS........ 3

4.  PEDESTRIANAND TRANSITIMPACTS.............................................................. 3

C.  RECOMMENDATIONS........................................................................................... 4

1.  EXISTING WITHO UT PROJECT( CITY RESPONSII3ILITY)............................... 4

2.  PROJECT( EXISTINGAND CUMULATNE) ....................................................... 4

III. PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION...................................................... 5

IV. SCOPE OF SERVICES ( APPROVED BY CITY STAFF).................................... 6

A.  BASE ASSUMPTION............................................................................................... 6

B.  ANALYSIS LOCATIONS........................................................................................ 6

C.  TIMEPERIODS TO BE STUDIED........................................................................... 6

D.  TRAFFIC COUNT LOCATIONS - WEEKDAY 7: 00- 9: 00 AM& 3: 00- 6: 00 PM .. 6

E.  HORIZON YEARS& ANALYSIS SCENARIOS.................................................... 7

F.  CUMULATIVE( YEAR 2022) VOLUMES.............................................................. 7

G. PROJECT TRIP GENERATION& DISTRiBUTION.............................................. 7

H.  INTERSECTION EVALUATION............................................................................ 8

I.   INTERNAL CIRCULATION ................................................................................... 8

J.   PROJECT VEHICLE DIVERSION THROUGH BURGER K1NG SITE................. 8

V. ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING ............................................................................. 9

A.  EXISTING CONDITIONS........................................................................................ 9

1.  ROADWAYS& FREEWAYS.................................................................................. 9

2.  EXISTING ( WITHO UT PROJECT) PEAK HO UR VOL UMES........................... 10

3.  INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE& DELAY............................................. 1 D

4.  EXISTING ( WITHOUT PROJECT) 95TH PERCENTILE VEHICLE QUEUING I1
S.  INTERSECTION SIGNAL WARRANT EVAL UATION........................................ 12

6.   TRANSIT SER VICE.............................................................................................. 13

7.  PEDESTRIAN& BICYCLE FACILITIES............................................................ 14

B.  CUMULATIVE ( WITHOUT PROJECT) PEAK HOUR VOLUMES .................. IS

1.  HORIZON YEAR.................................................................................................. 1 S

2.   CUMULATIVE( WITHOUT PROJECT) PEAK HOUR VOL UMES................... 1 S

3.   CUMULATIVE ( WITHOUTPROJECT) YEAR 2022 ROADWAYNETWORK.. 15

93



4.   CUMULATIVE ( WITHOUT PROJECT) YEAR 2022 INTERSECTION LOS&

DELAY................................................................................................................. 1 S

S.   CUMULATIVE( WITHOUT PROJECT) 95TH PERCENTILE VEHICLE

QUEUING AT THE W. LATHROP .................................................................... 1 S

6.   CUMULATIVE( WITHOUT PROJECT) SIGNAL WARRANT EVALUATION... 16

VL PROJECT IMPACTS......................................................................................... 17

A.  EVALUATION CRITERIA ( AS APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER)..... 17

1.  SIGNALIZED OR ALL- WAY- STOP INTERSECTIONS.................................... l 7

2.   UNSIGNALIZED SIDE STREET STOP SIGN CONTROLLED

INTERSECTIONS.............................................................................................. 17

3.  SIGNAL WARRANTS......................................................................................... 17

4.   95THPERCENTILE VEHICLE QUEUING ( BASED UPONSYNCHRO
SIM7' RAFFIC SOFTWARE).............................................................................. 18

5.  PEDESTRIAN& BICYCLE RIDERS................................................................ 18

6.  SAFETY............................................................................................................. 18

B.  PROJECT TRIP GENERATION .......................................................................... 18

1.  METHODOLOGY............................................................................................. 18

2.   GROSS TRIP GENERATION VERSUS NET NEW AREA TRAFFIC............... 19

3.   VOL UMES......................................................................................................... 19

C.  PROJECT TR1P DISTRIBUTION ........................................................................ 20

D.  EXISTING + PROJECT OFF- SITE TRAFFIC IMPACTS .................................. 20

IMPACT 1: Intersection Level ofService............................................................ 20

IMPACT 2: 95th Percentile Vehicle Queuing..................................................... 20

IMPACT 3: Intersection Signal Warrant............................................................. 21

E.  CUMULATIVE+ PROJECT OFF- SITE TRAFFIC IMPACTS .......................... 21

IMPACT: Intersection Level ofService............................................................ 21

IMPACT S: 95th Percentile I ehicle Queuing..................................................... 21

IMPACT 6.• Intersection Signal Warrants........................................................... 21

F.   NON- TRAFFIC IMPACTS.................................................................................. 22

IMPACT 7.•  Transit Impacts................................................................................ 22

IMPACT 8: Pedestrian Impacts........................................................................... 22

IMPACT 9: Bicycle Impacts................................................................................ 22

IMPACT 10: Dutch Brothers Drive Through Window Queues........................... 23

IMPACT 11: Project Internal Circulation........................................................... 23

VII. RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS........................................................ 24

1.  EXISTING WITHOUT PROJECT ( City Responsibility)................................... 24

2.  PROJECT( EXISTING AND CUMULATIVE).................................................. 24

TABLES

1.  SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION LOS CRITERIA

2.   UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTION LOS CRITERIA

3.  INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE WITHAND WITHOUT PROJECT

94



4.  EXISTING 95TH PERCENTILE TURN LANE QUEUING WITH& WITHOUT

PROJECT

5.  INTERSECTION SIGNAL WARRANT EVAL UATION

6.  CUMULATIVE YEAR 2022 95'' H PERCENTILE TURN LANE QUEUING
WITH& WITHOUT PROJECT

7.  PROJECT GROSS TRIP GENERATION

8.  PROJECT PASSBYAND DIVERTED TRIP LINK CAPTURE

9.  TOTAL PROJECT GROSS TRIP GENERATION

FIGURES

1.   Area Map
2.  Site Plan- Schematic

3.  Site Plan- Architectural I ersion

4.  Existing Intersection Approach Lane - Geometrics and Control

5.  Existing AM Peak Hour T olumes ( without Project)
6.  Existing PM Peak Hour Tlolumes ( without Project)
7.  Existing( without Project) 95th% Queues Exceeding Storage
8.  Transit Routes in Vicinity ofProject Site
9.  Existing Sidewalks and Bicycle Lanes and Those Proposed by Project
10. Existing AM and PM Peak Hour Pedestrian Volumes
11. Existing AM and PM Peak Hour Bicycle Volumes
12. Cumulative ( Year 2022) Weekday AM Peak Hour Volumes ( without Project)
13. Cumulative ( Year 2022) Weekday PM Peak Hour Volumes ( without Project)
14. Cumulative ( Year 2022) without Project 95th% Queues Exceeding Storage
15. Project Tra c Increment ( AMPeak Hour)

l6. Project Traffic Incre nent (PMPeakHour)

7. Existing + Project AM Peak Hour Volumes

18. Existing+ PYoject PMPeak Hour Volumes

19. Cumulative ( Year 2022) Weekday AMPeak Hour Volumes ( with Project)
20. Cumulative ( Year 2022) Weekday PMPeak Hour Volumes ( with Project)
21. Existing + Project 95th% Queues Exceeding Storage
22. Cu nulative ( Year 2022) + Project 95th% Queues Exceeding Storage
23. Dutch Brothers Drive Thru Queueing
24. Existing and Cumulative ( Year 2022) Recommended Improvements ( without

Project) City Responsibility
25. Existing and Cumulative ( Year 2022) + Project Recommended Improvements

APPENDICES

A.  Intersection Level ofService Worksheets
B.  Maximum Queue Demand Tables
C.  Intersection Signal Warrant Sheet

D.  Dutch Brothers Trip Rates
E.  Dutch Brothers Drive Through Lane Queue Count Summaries

Stockton, Lodi& Oakley)

95



I.       INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared at the request of the City of Lathrop to determine the
potential circulation impacts due to development of a Panda Express restaurant( with drive
through window), a Sonic fast food restaurant ( with drive through window) and a Dutch Brothers

coffee facility (with drive through window) on adjacent parcels just south of W. Lathrop Road
and between Old Harlan Road and the I- 5 freeway ( see Figures 1 and 2). Impacts have been

determined for existing and year 2022 horizons ( the cumulative year in the City' s TMP

circulation system improvement program) at West Lathrop Road intersections between the I- 5

interchange and New Harlan Road as well as at Harlan Road/ Old Harlan Road just south of the

project area. Analysis has included level of service and delay at each intersection, vehicle

queuing on critical approaches to select intersections and the possibility that some project traffic
may use the Burger King- O' Reilly' s Auto Parts parking lot( just east of Old Harlan Road and the

project) for access to Harlan Road. In addition, each on- site circulation plan has been evaluated
in the context of city code criteria and adequacy of expected drive through operation. Finally,

recommendations have been made to improve all existing deficiencies or as well as all potential

impacts due to the project.

II.     SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

A.     WITHOUT PROJECT CONDITIONS

1.  EXISTING

All analysis intersections are operating at acceptable levels of service and delay during the
AM and PM peak traffic hours.

There is unacceptable vehicle storage at the W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road intersection for

left turn queues on the eastbound W. Lathrop Road and northbound Harlan Road approaches,

primarily during the PM peak traffic period. In addition, traffic on the eastbound Harlan

Road approach to W. Lathrop Road frequently backs up to and through the Old Harlan Road

intersection, primarily during the PM peak period.

The unsignalized Harlan Road/ Old Harlan Road intersection just south of the project site
does not have AM or PM peak hour volumes meeting Caltrans peak hour signal Warrant# 3
volume criteria.

CTG 1216/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 1
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

96



2.  CUMULATIVE ( YEAR 2022)

All analysis intersections would be operating at acceptable levels of service and delay during
the AM and PM peak hours.

Unacceptable vehicle queues would lengthen at the W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road
intersection for left turns on the eastbound W. Lathrop Road approach and on the northbound
Harlan Road approach, primarily during the PM peak period. Eastbound W. Lathrop Road
backups from Harlan Road would also increase in length intermittently to the 1- 5 NB Ramps
intersection.

There would only be minor queues ( 3 cars or less) on the northbound Old Harlan Road

approach to W. Lathrop Road.

The unsignalized Harlan Road/ Old Harlan Road intersection just south of the project would
not have AM or PM peak hour volumes meeting Caltrans peak hour signal Warrant# 3
volume criteria.

B.      PROJECT IMPACTS

1.  TRIP GENERATION

All three of the proposed facilities would be expected to capture a significant amount of traffic
from the adjacent I- 5 Freeway as well as W. Lathrop Road, Harlan Road and Old Harlan Road.
While the total two- way traffic on the three project driveways combined is projected to be about
200 vehicles during the AM commute period peak traffic hour and about 210 vehicles during the
PM commute period peak traffic hour, about 140 to 150 of these trips would be captured from

existing traffic flow. While customers captured from I- 5 would add new traffic flow to the local

street system, those captured from the adjacent or nearby surface streets would just reroute their
trips to/ from Old Harlan Road south of W. Lathrop Road.

2.  EXISTING+ PROJECT OFF- SITE TRAFFIC IMPACTS

All analysis intersections would maintain acceptable levels of service and delay with the
addition of project traffic during the AM and PM peak hours.

Existing unacceptable queuing on the approaches to the W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road
intersection would not be increased significantly due to project traffic. However, the project
would result in extremely long 95t percentile queues on the NB Old Harlan Road approach
to W. Lathrop Road ( up to 200 feet- or 8 vehicles) during the PM peak traffic hour. This
backup would result in some drivers cutting through both the Chevron Gas station and

CTG 12l6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 2
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

97



Burger King- O' Reilly' s Auto Parts properties in order to find alternate routes to bypass the
congestion.

Internal circulation for both the Panda Express and Sonic restaurants meets City code

criteria and should operate acceptably.
The Dutch Brothers drive through lane( s) should have acceptable storage to accommodate

anticipated queues based upon survey results at 3 other Dutch Brothers facilities in the
region ( Stockton, Lodi and Oakley). The only potential issue of conflict will be due to the

Dutch Brothers drive through lane entrance being much closer to the Sonic driveway
connection to Old Harlan Road than to the Dutch Brothers driveway connection. It is likely

that the Sonic driveway will accommodate a third or more of the inbound Dutch Brothers
traffic.

3.  CUMULATIVE ( YEAR 2022)+ PROJECT OFF-SITE TRAFFIC IMPACTS

There will be no new impacts due to project traffic in 2022 compared to existing conditions.

All intersections will continue to operate acceptably with the addition of project traffic
during the AM and PM peak hours.

There will be no significant extensions of queuing on intersection approaches already
experiencing unacceptable queuing. The lengthy 95th percentile queue on the NB Old
Harlan Road approach to W. Lathrop Road will extend back to 425 feet, further

encouraging some drivers in the queue to use the Chevron and Burger King- O' Reilly' s

Auto properties as alternative travel routes.

4.  PEDESTRIAN AND TRANSIT IMPACTS

The three project facilities will likely attract some customers from the local neighborhood,

some pedestrians ( many high school students) now walking on the sidewalk on the north

side of W. Lathrop Road, and some employees using the two regional transit routes that
have stops at the W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road intersection. However, while a sidewalk

will be provided along the project' s Old Harlan Road frontage, none will be provided on the

south side of W. Lathrop Road east or west of Old Harlan Road. This will force pedestrians
to walk in the street or through the Chevron and Burger King properties to access the three
faci( ities. Also, it is likely that pedestrians on the north side of W. Lathrop Road will cross

the street at a variety of locations ( none with crosswalks) to access the facilities.

1216/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 RepoR Page 3
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

98



C.     RECOMMENDATIONS

1.  EXISTING WITHOUT PROJECT ( CITY RESPONSIBILITY)

Reconfigure the northbound Harlan Road approach to W. Lathrop Road to provide two
exclusive left turn lanes and a combined through/ right turn lane.

Remove the raised island median on Harlan road south of W. Lathrop Road at the entrance
to the existing northbound left turn lane. Continue this existing turn lane south to the Burger
King- O' Reilly' s driveway.

Extend the length of the left turn lane on the eastbound W. Lathrop Road approach to
Harlan Road by at least 75 feet.

Retime the W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road signal and coordinate timing with the W.
Lathrop Road/ Cambridge Drive signal.

2.  PROJECT ( EXISTING AND CUMULATIVE)

Realign the Old Harlan Road connection to Harlan Road ( just south of the project) about
100 feet to the north and provide two lanes on the Old Harlan Road approach:  one for left
turns and one for right turns. In conjunction with this measure, restripe the median of

Harlan Road just south of the new intersection to provide defined back- to- back left turn
lanes - one for northbound left turns into Old Harlan Road, and one for southbound left

turns into the driveway providing access into the Lathrop Crossing shopping center on the
east side of Harlan Road.

Provide signs adjacent to the exit lanes at each of the three project driveways showing an
arrow pointing to the right and a message stating I- 5 access turn right. In conjunction with

this measure, also provide a sign on the southbound Old Harlan Road approach to Harlan

Road with an arrow pointing left and a message stating I- 5 access turn left.

Provide sidewalks on the south side of W. Lathrop Road extending east and west of Old
Harlan Road ( from the I- 5 Ramps intersection to the Chevron driveway).
Provide a crosswalk at the W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 NB Ramps intersection crossing W.
Lathrop Road just east of the intersection. Provide pedestrian walk/ don' t walk signals in
conjunction with the crosswalk.

In order to ensure that Dutch Brothers customers do not congest the Sonic driveway during
peak activity times, it may be necessary for Dutch Brothers to provide moveable orange
cones across the internal Dutch Brothers- Sonic parking lots connection.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 4
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

99



Based upon input from Chevron, Burger King or O' Reilly' s Auto, if there is a perceived use
of either property by cut- through traffic from the project:

a.  The City shall conduct an independent survey to see the extent of the issue.
b.  If there is a problem, the City shall work with one or both property owners to

develop measures to further reduce or eliminate cut- through traffic.
c.   This survey shall be funded by the project applicant

III.   PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION

The proposed project is comprised of two restaurants with drive through lanes and a coffee

service facility with a drive through lane and limited inside seating and service. Facilities are
listed north to south):

Panda Express ( 2200 square feet) with a drive through lane

Sonic drive in ( 1608 square feet) with a drive through lane

Dutch Brothers coffee service ( 862 sguare feet) with a drive through lane

Locations are schematically shown on Figure 2, while the site p( an is presented in Figure 3.
Each facility will have single driveway connection to the west side of Old Harlan Road and there
will also be single internal driveway connections between Panda Express and Sonic and between

Sonic and Dutch Brothers. There are no changes proposed to the local circulation system by this
project.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 5
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

100



IV.   SCOPE OF SERVICES (Approved by City staf

A.     BASE ASSUMPTION

All three developments ( Panda Express, Sonic & Dutch Brothers) are considered as one project
for off site evaluation purposes.

B.      ANALYSIS LOCATIONS

Intersection Level of Service & Queuing

W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Southbound Ramps

W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Northbound Ramps

W. Lathrop Road/ Old Harlan Road

W. Lathrop Road/ New Harlan Road
Old Harlan Road/ New Harlan Road

C.      TIME PERIODS TO BE STUDIED

Weekday AM and PM commute peak traffic hours

D.      TRAFFIC COUNT LOCATIONS - WEEKDAY 7: 00- 9: 00 AM

3: 00- 6: 00 PM ( ALL VEHICLES, TRUCKS, PEDS, BIKES).

Counts will be conducted when all schools are open.

W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Southbound Ramps

W. Lathrop Road/ 1- 5 Northbound Ramps

W. Lathrop Road/ Old Harlan Road

W. Lathrop Road/ New Harlan Road

Old Harlan Road/ New Harlan Road

Old Harlan Road/ Driveways serving Burger King& Chevron gas station

W. Lathrop Road/ Chevron gas station driveway
New Harlan Road/ Burger King driveway
Drive- thru lanes at three Dutch Brothers operations ( Lodi, Stockton, Oakley) - trip

generation and queuing, two days each

Counts will include observations of vehicle queuing on the northbound Old and New Harlan
Road approaches to W. Lathrop Road, the eastbound W. Lathrop Road approach to New Harlan

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 6
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

101



Road and the W. Lathrop Road westbound left turn lane approach to the I- 5 Southbound On
Ramp.

E.      HORIZON YEARS & ANALYSIS SCENARIOS

Existing

Existing+ Project

Year 2022

Year 2022 + Project

F.      CUMULATIVE ( YEAR 2022) VOLUMES

Year 2022 AM & PM peak hour volumes will be obtained from the 2019 TMP study for the
following locations.

W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Southbound Ramps

W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Northbound Ramps

W. Lathrop Road/ New Harlan Road

Year 2022 projections at all other analysis locations will be developed based

upon existing volume interrelationships. In addition, a determination will be made how much

development on the project site was included in the 2022 TMP projections. Adjustments will be
made to provide true 2022 Without Project and 2022 + Project projections.

G.      PROJECT TRIP GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION

Project trip generation for the Panda Express & Sonic drive- in will be based upon trip rates from

the Institute of Transportation Engineers, Trip Generation Manual, l Oth Edition, by the Institute
of Transportation Engineers, 2017, while trip generation for the Dutch Brothers operation will be
based upon three surveys of AM & PM peak period trip generation and order line

queuing conducted by Crane Transportation Group. Dutch Brothers surveys will be conducted

for two days each at facilities in Stockton, Lodi and Oakley. The percentage of passby and
diverted link capture of existing traffic associated with the three Lathrop restaurants will be
discussed with and approved by City staff.

Project traffic will be distributed based upon local traffic flow patterns, in particular to/ from the
Burger King restaurant' s driveways along New& Old Harlan Road.

CTG 12/ 6l19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 7
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

102



H.     INTERSECTION EVALUATION

Signalized

Level of service and 95 h

percentile queuing using Synchro- SIM traffic analysis

software program. Queuing projections for 2022 and " with project" conditions will

be based upon the calibrated relationship of surveyed 95t" percentile queuing at
analysis intersections compared to Synchro theoretical projections.

Unsignalized

Level of Service— stop sign controlled approach
Peak hour signal warrant( Caltrans volume Warrant# 3)

L INTERNAL CIRCULATION

Internal circulation plans for each of the three developments will be reviewed in the context of

City Code criteria and good traffic engineering practice. Of particular concern will be vehicle

queuing on the approach to the drive- thru lane at Dutch Brothers Coffee. Surveys at the

Stockton, Lodi and Oakley Dutch Brothers operations will tabulate order line queuing for the
7: 00- 9: 00 AM and 3: 00- 6: 00 PM hours for the two survey days at each location.

J.      PROJECT VEHICLE DIVERSION THROUGH BURGER

KING SITE

Concern has been raised by the Burger King restaurant on the east side of Old Harlan Road about

project traffic passing through their site to access New Harlan Road, particularly if there is
extensive queuing on the northbound Old Harlan Road approach to W. Lathrop Road. This
potential impact will be evaluated.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 8
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

103



V.     ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING

A.     EXISTING CONDITIONS

1.  ROADWAYS & FREEWAYS

Interstate 5 ( I-S) is a six- lane freeway located just west of the project site. It eXtends northerly

to Stockton, Sacramento and to the Oregon border; and southerly to a connection with I- 205 ( the

most direct freeway connection to the San Francisco Bay Area) as well as Los Angeles and other
southern California cities. I- 5 has a tight diamond interchange with Louise Avenue, with both

ramp intersections being signal controlled.

West Lathrop Road is a four- lane arterial street in the project area. The posted speed limit is 35

miles per hour. It extends easterly into the City of Manteca and an interchange with the SR 99

freeway and westerly to an interchange with the I- 5 freeway ( just west of the project site).

W. Lathrop Road changes name to Spartan Way just west of I- 5. In the project area there are
signalized intersections with the I- 5 North and South bound ramps, Harlan Road and Cambridge

Drive. Old Harlan Road intersects the north and south sides of W. Lathrop Road about halfway
between the I- 5 Northbound ramps and Harlan Road signalized intersections. A raised median

along W. Lathrop Road in this area limits movements to right turns in/ out only between W.

Lathrop Road and Old Harlan Road.

Harlan Road is a 2- to 4- lane arterial running along the east side of the I- 5 freeway. The posted

speed limit is 40 miles per hour. Just south of W. Lathrop Road there are two northbound lanes
and two southbound lanes that merge to a single lane north of Old Harlan Road. There is also a

median continuous two- way left turn lane.

Old HaYlan Road is a two- lane street extending one block between W. Lathrop Road and Harlan
Road ( both north and south of W. Lathrop Road). There is no posted speed limit. The section

south of W. Lathrop Road adjacent to the project site is stop sign controlled on its northbound

approach to W. Lathrop Road ( where right turns only to/ from W. Lathrop Road are allowed) and
on its southbound approach to Harlan Road ( where all turn movements are allowed except left

turns from Old Harlan Road to northbound Harlan Road).

Figure 4 presents existing intersection geometrics and control at all analysis locales.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 9
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

104



2.  EXISTING ( WITHOUT PROJECT) PEAK HOUR VOLUMES

Weekday AM and PM commute period ( 7: 00- 9: 00 AM and 3: 00- 6: 00 PM) traffic counts were
conducted at all analysis intersections on Thursday, October 3, 2019. It was determined that the
specific peak hours at the vast majority of intersections were between 7: 00 and
8: 00 AM and between 5: 00 and 6: 00 PM. Resultant AM and PM peak hour volumes are

presented in Figures 5 and 6.

3.  INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE & DELAY

a.  Analysis Methodology

Transportation engineers and planners commonly use a grading system called level of service
LOS) to measure and describe the operational status of the local roadway network.  LOS is a

description of the quality of a roadway facility' s operation, ranging from LOS A ( indicating free
flow traffic conditions with little or no delay) to LOS F ( representing oversaturated conditions
where traffic flows exceed design capacity, resulting in long queues and delays). Intersections,

rather than roadway segments between intersections, are almost always the capacity controlling

locations for any circulation system.

Signalizedlntersections. For signalized intersections, the Year 2017 6t Edition Highway

Capacity Manual( Transportation Research Board, National Research Council) methodology was
utilized. With this methodology, operations are defined by the level of service and average
control delay per vehicle ( measured in seconds) for the entire intersection.  For a signalized
intersection, control delay is the portion of the total delay attributed to traffic signal
operation. This includes delay associated with deceleration, acceleration, stopping, and moving

up in the queue. Table 1 summarizes the relationship between delay and LOS for signalized
intersections.

Unsignalized Intersections.  For unsignalized ( all- way stop- controlled and side- street stop-

controlled) intersections, the Year 2017 6r" Edition Highway Capacity Manual( Transportation
Research Board, National Research Council) methodology for unsignalized intersections was

utilized. For side- street stop- controlled intersections, operations are defined by the level of
service and average control delay per vehicle ( measured in seconds), with delay reported for the

stop sign controlled approaches or turn movements. For all- way stop- controlled intersections,
operations are defined by the average control delay for the entire intersection ( measured in
seconds per vehicle). The delay at an unsignalized intersection incorporates delay associated
with deceleration, acceleration, stopping, and moving up in the queue. Table 2 summarizes the

relationship between delay and LOS for unsignalized intersections.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 10
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

105



b.  Minimum Acceptable Operation— City of Lathrop

Signalized& All Way Stop Intersections: Level of Service D is the poorest acceptable overall
intersection operation.

Ilnsignalized Intersections ( side street stop sign controlled): Level of Service E is the poorest

acceptable side street stop sign controlled approach operation.

c.  Existing Without Project Intersection Level of Service Operation

Table 3 shows that all analysis intersections are currently operating at acceptable levels of

service during the weekday AM and PM commute peak hours. The W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan
Road signalized intersection has a LOS C operation during both the AM and PM peak hours. At

the I- 5 interchange the W. Lathrop Road/ Southbound Ramps intersection is also operating

acceptably at LOS C during both peak hours, while the W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Northbound Ramps
intersection is operating at an acceptable LOS C during the AM peak hour and LOS B during the
PM peak hour. At the unsignalized Harlan Road/ Old Harlan Road intersection south of the site,
the stop sign controlled Old Harlan Road approach is operating at an acceptable LOS B during
both peak hours. lntersection level of service worksheets are presented in Appendix A.

4.  EXISTING (WITHOUT PROJECT) 95TH PERCENTILE VEHICLE

QUEUING

a.  Analysis Methodology

Field surveys were conducted during AM and PM peak periods ( under direction of Crane
Transportation Group) of maximum queues every signal cycle at the foliowing locations:

W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road
o W. Lathrop Road

Eastbound left turn

Eastbound through and right turn movements

o Harlan Road

Northbound left turn

Northbound through and right turn movements

W. Lathrop Road/ Old Harlan Road
o Old Harlan Road stop sign controlled northbound right turn

W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Southbound Ramps
o W. Lathrop Road westbound left turn (to Southbound On Ramp)

Maximum queues for each 15- minute time period are presented in Appendix B.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 11
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

106



b.  Queuing Results

Acceptable Queuing

As shown, maximum queues were always well within available storage in the left turn lane on
the westbound W. Lathrop Road approach to the I- 5 Southbound On Ramp. Also, queues on the
northbound Old Harlan Road approach to W. Lathrop Road were limited, ranging from 1 to 2

vehicles during any 15- minute period.

Unacceptable Queuing

Table 4 shows that at the W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road intersection the left turn lane on the
northbound Harlan Road approach to W. Lathrop Road had a maximum queue demand

exceeding the available 235 foot left turn lane storage length during all 15- minute periods from
3: 00 to 6: 00 PM, and all but one 15- minute period from 7: 00 to 9: 00 AM. On the eastbound W.

Lathrop Road approach to Harlan Road the maximum queue demand for the 320 foot left turn
lane exceeded or met available storage for all but two l 5- minute time periods between 3: 00 and

6: 00 PM, while there was only one 15- minute period from 7: 00 to 9: 00 PM where demand met
or exceeded storage. The W. Lathrop Road through and through/ right turn lane queues on the
eastbound approach to Harlan Road backed up to and through the Old Harlan Road intersection
about half the time during the 3: 00 to 6: 00 PM period, but not at all from 7: 00 to 9: 00 AM. ( See

Figure 7) It should be noted that the " Maximum" queues described above were usually longer

than the " 95t" percentile" queues used for evaluation purposes.

5.  INTERSECTION SIGNAL WARRANT EVALUATION

a.  Analysis Methodology

Traffic signals are used to provide an orderly flow of traffic through an intersection. Many
times they are needed to offer side street traffic an opportunity to access a major road where high
volumes and/ or high vehicle speeds block crossing or turn movements. They do not, however,
increase the capacity of an intersection ( i. e., increase the overall intersection' s ability to
accommodate additional vehicles) and, in fact, often slightly reduce the number of total vehicles
that can pass through an intersection in a given period of time.  Signals can also cause an

increase in traffic accidents if installed at inappropriate locations.

There are 10 possible tests for determining whether a traffic signal should be considered for
installation. These tests, called " warrants", consider criteria such as actual traffic volume,

pedestrian volume, presence of school children, and accident history. The intersection volume
data together with the available collision histories were compared to warrants contained in

the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices ( MUTCD), Federal Highway Administration,

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 12
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

107



2012, and the Manual on Unified Tra c Control Devices Federal Highway Administration, 2003

California Supplement ( 2014) Revision 3, which has been adopted by the State of California as a

replacement for Caltrans Traffic Manual.  Section 4C of the MUTCD provides guidelines, or

warrants, which may indicate need for a traffic signal at an unsignalized intersection. As
indicated in the MUTCD, satisfaction of one or more warrants does not necessarily require

immediate installation of a traffic signal. It is merely an indication that the local jurisdiction

should begin monitoring conditions at that location and that a signal may ultimately be required.

Warrant 3, the peak hour volume warrant, is often used as an initial check of signalization needs
since peak hour volume data is typically available and this warrant is usually the first one to be
met.  Warrant 3 is based on a logarithmic curve and takes only the hour with the highest volume

of the day into account. Please see Appendix C for the warrant chart.

b.  Existing Warrant Evaluation

Table 5 shows that existing AM and PM peak hour volumes at the unsignalized
Harlan Road/ Old Harlan Road intersection do not meet Caltrans Signal Warrant# 3

volume criteria levels.

6.  TRANSIT SERVICE

There are two San Joaquin Regional Transit Routes serving the project area:

Route 90 running along W. Lathrop Road and Route 97 running along Harlan Road.
See Figure 8.) Each route is briefly detailed below.

Route 90— Runs between Stockton and Tracy

Monday to Friday
Bus stops - Eastbound: east of Harlan Road at Cambridge Drive

Westbound: just west of Harlan Road

Route 97— Runs between Stockton and Tracy

Monday to Friday

Bus stops - Northbound: just north of W. Lathrop Road
Southbound: just south of W. Lathrop Road

There are sidewalks at each transit stop, but no shelters. Also, there is no existing sidewalk
system in place along the south side of W. Lathrop Road connecting the bus stops to Old Harlan
Road.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 13
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

108



7.  PEDESTRIAN & BICYCLE FACILITIES

a.  Pedestrian

Sidewalks are in place in the project area along the following streets ( see Figure 9):

Old Harlan Road west side— adjacent to the project site

Old Harlan Road east side— adjacent to the Burger King— O' Reilly Auto Property
Harlan Road ( south of W. Lathrop Road) west side - adjacent to the Burger King—

O' Reilly Auto Property north to W. Lathrop Road
Harlan Road ( south of W. Lathrop Road) east side— continuous

W. Lathrop Road north side— continuous from Harlan Road west through the 1- 5

interchange to Lathrop High School
W. Lathrop Road south side— from Harlan Road west to the Chevron gas station

driveway

Figure 10 shows that the largest number of pedestrians in the project area during both the AM

and PM peak hours was along the north side of W. Lathrop Road: up to 20 pedestrians walking
westbound during the AM commute peak hour and 16 pedestrians ( some westbound and some
eastbound) during the PM commute peak hour. There were only 3 pedestrians along the south
side of the street- during the PM peak hour. Along Old Har(an Road there were no pedestrians
during the AM peak hour and only 2 during the PM peak hour.

b.  Bicycles

There are Class II striped and signed bicycle lanes along both sides of Harlan Road just north
and south of W. Lathrop Road. The southbound bicycle lane along the west side of the street
ends several hundred feet south of W. Lathrop Road. There are no bicycle lanes along either W.

Lathrop Road or Old Harlan Road ( see Figure 9).

Figure 11 shows that along W. Lathrop Road at Old Harlan Road the number of bike riders was
8 during the AM peak hour and 2 during the PM peak hour, while along Harlan Road at Old
Harlan Road the number of bike riders was 0 during the AM peak hour and 5 during the PM

peak hour. There were no bike riders along Old Harlan Road during the AM peak hour and 5
during the PM peak hour.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 14
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

109



B.      CUMULATIVE ( WITHOUT PROJECT) CONDITIONS

1.  HORIZON YEAR

The cumulative horizon year for project analysis in this study as directed by City staff was 2022.

2.  CUMULATIVE ( WITHOUT PROJECT) PEAK HOUR VOLUMES

The source of cumulative weekday AM and PM peak hour( without project) volumes was the

2018 TMP study for the City of Lathrop by Crane Transportation Group, which developed
volume projections for the years 2020 and 2022. At City direction year 2022 projections were
used as the cumulative horizon for this study. Figures 12 and 13 present resultant

cumulative ( without project) weekday AM and PM peak hour volumes.

3.  CUMULATIVE ( WITHOUT PROJECT) YEAR 2022 ROADWAY

NETWORK

No circulation system improvements are programmed in the project area by 2022*

4.  CUMULATIVE ( WITHOUT PROJECT) YEAR 2022 INTERSECTION

LEVEL OF SERVICE & DELAY

Table 3 shows that by 2022 all analysis intersections will be operating at acceptable levels of
service during both the AM and PM peak traffic hours. The W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road and
W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Northbound Ramps signalized intersections will be operating at an
acceptable LOS C during both peak hours, while the I- 5 Southbound Ramps signalized
intersection will be operating at an acceptable LOS D during the AM peak hour and LOS C
during the PM peak hour. At the unsignalized Harlan Road/ Old Harlan Road intersection the Old
Harlan Road stop sign controlled approach will be operating at an acceptable LOS B during both
peak hours.

5.  CUMULATIVE (WITHOUT PROJECT) 95TH PERCENTILE VEHICLE

QUEUING AT THE W. LATHROP ROAD/ I-5 INTERCHANGE

Table 6 shows that by 2022, 95th percentile unacceptable queuing at the W. Lathrop
Road/ Harlan Road intersection in the eastbound approach and northbound approach left turn

Mr. Glenn Gebhardt— City Engineer, October 2019.

CTG 12l6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 15
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

110



lanes will be further lengthened. In addition, the frequency of the eastbound W. Lathrop Road

through and through/ right turn lanes backing up to and past Old Harlan Road will be increased

during the PM peak hour. Along W. Lathrop Road at the I- 5 interchange the 95th percentile
queuing in the left turn lane on the westbound approach to the southbound on ramp should be
within available storage during both commute peak hours. Also, 95th percentile queues on the
northbound Old Harlan Road approach to W. Lathrop Road will increase by 1 vehicle during

both peak hours ( up to 2 vehicles during the AM peak hour and 3 vehicles during the PM peak
hour). See Figure 14.

6.  CUMULATIVE ( WITHOUT PROJECT) SIGNAL WARRANT

EVALUATION

Table 5 shows that the unsignalized Harlan Road/ Old Harlan Road intersection will not have

AM or PM peak hour volumes meeting Caltrans Peak Hour Warrant# 3 volume criteria levels by
2022.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 16
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

111



VI.   PROJECT IMPACTS

A.    EVALUATION CRITERIA ( as approved by the City Engineer)

The addition of project traffic would result in unacceptable operation if:

1.  SIGNALIZED OR ALL- WAY- STOP INTERSECTIONS

Without Project acceptable LOS A, B, C or p operation is degraded to LOS E or F.

or

Without Project unacceptable LOS E or F operation has vehicle control delay
increased by 5 seconds or greater.

2.  UNSIGNALIZED SIDE STREET STOP SIGN

CONTROLLED INTERSECTIONS

Without Project acceptable LOS A, B, C, D or E operation of the stop sign
controlled intersection approach is degraded to LOS F operation and the

intersection meets peak hour signal Warrant# 3 volume criteria levels ( with the

project).

or

Without Project unacceptable LOS F operation of the stop sign controlled approach
has vehicle control delay increased by 5 seconds or greater and the intersection
meets peak hour signal Warrant# 3 volume criteria levels ( with the project).

3.  SIGNAL WARRANTS

Without Project volumes at an unsignalized intersection do not meet Caltrans peak
hour Warrant# 3 volume criteria and the addition of project traffic increases
volumes to meet Warrant# 3 volume criteria levels.

or

Without Project volumes at an unsignalized intersection already meet Caltrans
peak hour Warrant# 3 volume criteria and the addition of project traffic increases
total volumes passing through the intersection by 2 percent or greater.

or

Without Project peak hour 95th percentile queuing in the lane approaching a stop
sign controlled intersection will be increased by 100 feet or more and will likely
result in traffic diversion to alternate routes.

CTG 12l6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 17
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

112



4.  95TH PERCENTILE VEHICLE QUEUING ( BASED UPON SYNCHRO
SIMTRAFFIC SOFTWARE)

Without Project peak hour 95th percentile queuing in the lanes approaching a
signalized intersection is less than available storage and the addition of project

traffic increases the 95th percentile queue to exceed available storage in one or
more of the approach lanes.

or

Without Project peak hour 95th percentile queuing in one or more of the lanes
approaching a signalized intersection is already greater than available storage and
the addition of project traffic to the entire intersection increases the 95th percentile
queuing in any of the lanes operating unacceptably by greater than 20 feet.

5.  PEDESTRIAN & BICYCLE RIDERS

The addition of project traffic will result in significant safety impacts to local
pedestrian and/ or bicycle circulation, or will not provide acceptable on- or off-site
pedestrian or bicycle facilities for employees or customers.

6.  SAFETY

lf, in the opinion of the registered traffic engineer conducting the study, the

addition of project traffic or a design feature of the project will resu( t in a
significant circulation system safety impact.

B.      PROJECT TRIP GENERATION

1. METHODOLOGY

Trip generation projections were developed individually for the three restaurant facilities. Trip
rates for the Panda Express and Sonic restaurants with drive through windows were obtained

from the traffic engineering professions standard source of trip rate data, Trip Generation Manual
l Oth Edition by the Institute of Transportation Engineers ( ITE), 2017. Trip rates for Dutch
Brothers were obtained based upon trip generation surveys at three existing Dutch Brothers

operations in the region: Stockton, Lodi and Oakley. Dutch Brothers trip rate survey results were

tabulated and then compared to ITE trip rates for coffee/ donut shops with drive through windows
with and without indoor seating). Please see Appendix D for a comparison of trip rates. After

review of the findings it was determined in consultation with City staff that the trip rates fram

the Stockton facility would provide a conservative projection of the trips expected from the

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 18
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

113



proposed Lathrop facility. It should be noted that the Panda Express restaurant will not be open

during the 7- 8 AM commute peak traffic hour.

2.  GROSS TRIP GENERATION VERSUS NET NEW AREA TRAFFIC

Table 7 presents the gross AM and PM peak hour trip generation that would be expected from

the Panda Express, Sonic and Dutch Brothers operations. These projections reflect the traffic
expected on each facility' s driveway. However, they do not reflect existing traffic that each
restaurant will attract from the I- 5 freeway or from the ambient traffic already traveling along W.
Lathrop Road, Harlan Road and Old Harlan Road ( passby or diverted link trip capture).

Table 8 presents the percentage of traffic each operation would be expected to capture from the

I- 5 freeway versus the local streets. Results were worked out in consultation with City staf£ As
shown, freeway capture was projected to range from 45% for Dutch Brothers down to 25% for

Panda Express, while local street system capture was projected to be 30 to 35% for all three

operations. Resultant net new local area traffic then ranged from 20% for Dutch Brothers up to
45% for Panda Express.

3.  VOLUMES

Table 9 presents the sum of gross, captured and net new area traffic from the three restaurants.
Results are summarized as follows.

TWO WAY TRIPS

Project Trip Generation Scenario
AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

Gross Trip Generation 201 210

rips Captured from I- 5 freeway or nearby
152 142

streets

et new trips attracted from remainder of

Lathrop or north Manteca
49 68

CTG 12J6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 19
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

114



C.     PROJECT TRIP DISTRIBUTION

AM and PM peak hour traffic from each of the three facilities was distributed to the local
roadway network as shown in Appendix D, while the total project peak hour traffic increments
are presented in Figures 15 and 16 for AM and PM peak hour conditions, respectively. Net new
traffic was distributed primarily to/ from nearby residential areas, while diverted link trip capture

from Harlan Road and W. Lathrop Road favored vehicie flow with ease of access to Old Harlan
Road adjacent to the site. Passby capture was just from Old Harlan Road. Distribution of all
outbound traffic back to the 1- 5 freeway or to west of I- 5 was assumed via northbound Old
Harlan Road to W. Lathrop Road— right turn to the eastbound W. Lathrop Road left turn lane at

Harlan Road and then a U turn to westbound W. Lathrop Road. This would be the most direct

route back to the I- 5 interchange and for evaluation purposes would result in the most potentially
significant operational impacts.

Figures 17 and 18 present resultant Existing+ Project AM and PM peak hour volumes, while

Figures 19 and 20 present resultant year 2022 AM and PM peak hour volumes.

D.     EXISTING + PROJECT OFF- SITE TRAFFIC

IMPACTS

IMPACT 1: Intersection Level of Service

Table 3 shows that all analysis intersections would maintain acceptable AM and PM peak hour

levels of service with the addition of project traffic. No inzprovements required.

IMPACT 2:  95th Percentile Vehicle Queuing

Table 4 shows that the addition of project traffic would result in one queuing impact( see Figure
21):

The PM peak hour 95
h

percentile queue on the northbound Old Harlan Road

approach to W. Lathrop Road would be increased by more than 100 feet( up to l 20
feet- or 5 vehicles). Minor diversion of some backed up drivers through the

Chevron or Burger King- O' Reilly Auto parcels could be possible. Improvements
recomrriended.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 20
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

115



IMPACT 3:  Intersection Signal Warrant

Table 5 shows that the addition of project traffic to the Harlan Road/ Old Harlan Road
intersection would not increase AM or PM peak hour volumes to meet or exceed Caltrans Peak
Hour Warrant# 3 volume criteria levels. No improvements required.

E.      CUMULATIVE + PROJECT OFF- SITE TRAFFIC

IMPACTS

IMPACT 4:  Intersection Level of Service

Table 3 shows that all analysis intersections would maintain acceptable AM and PM peak hour

levels of service with the addition of project traffic. No improvements required.

IMPACT 5:  95th Percentile Vehicle Queuing

Table 6 shows that the addition of project traffic would result in one queuing impact ( see Figure
22):

The PM peak hour 95th percentile queue on the northbound Old Harlan Road
approach to W. Lathrop Road would be increased by more than 100 feet( 360 feet -
or 18 vehicles). Major diversion of backed up drivers through the Chevron and

Burger King- O' Reilly' s Auto parcels would be expected. In addition, some project
drivers would travel south on Old Harlan Road and make an illegal left turn to

proceed north on Harlan Road to the W. Lathrop Road intersection. Improvements
recommended.

IMPACT 6:  Intersection Signal Warrants

Table 5 shows that the addition of project traffic to the Harlan Road/ Old Harlan Road

intersection would not increase AM or PM peak hour volumes to meet or exceed Caltrans Peak
Hour Warrant# 3 volume criteria levels. No improvements required.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 21
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

116



F.      NON- TRAFFIC IMPACTS

IMPACT 7: Transit Impacts

Transit stops for San Joaquin Regional Transit Routes 90 and 97 are located in close proximity to
the W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road intersection. However, while there will be a sidewalk along

the project' s Old Harlan Road frontage there is no sidewalk extending to the east along the south

side of W. Lathrop Road along the Chevron gas station frontage to Old Harlan Road, or a

crosswalk across the south leg of Old Harlan Road at its connection to W. Lathrop Road.

Therefore, all project transit users would be required to cross Old Harlan Road at a variety of

locations and walk through either the Chevron service area or the Burger King parking lot as part
of their trip between the project facilities and any of the bus stops. Improvements recommended.

IMPACT 8:  Pedestrian Impacts

A sidewalk will be provided along the project' s Old Harlan Road frontage. However, no

sidewalk is being provided along the project' s W. Lathrop Road frontage. Based upon discussion
with City staff it is likely that Lathrop High School students walking along the north side of W.

Lathrop Road ( where a sidewalk is provided) will patronize one or more of the project facilities,

particularly Dutch Brothers and Sonic. Since a crosswalk of W. Lathrop Road nearest the project
is at the Harlan Road signal, it is likely that some students will cross W. Lathrop Road at the I-5
Northbound Ramps signalized intersection to the west ( where there is no crosswalk) or at Old

Harlan Road, where there is also no crosswalk, but a raised median. Crossings at both locations

without crosswalks presents safety issues. Also, if a crosswalk is provided at the I- 5 Northbound

Ramps intersection there will be no sidewalk along the south side of W. Lathrop Road between
the Northbound Ramps intersection and Old Harlan Road. ln addition, the lack of a sidewalk on

the south side of W. Lathrop Road just east of O( d Harlan Road ( see Transit Impacts above) will

force all residents of the neighborhood east of Harlan Road who want to walk to any of the
project facilities to use the Chevron service area or Burger King parking lot as travel routes.
Irnprovements recorramended.

IMPACT 9:  Bicycle Impacts

Bicycle racks will be provided at each of the three facilities ( based upon City code criteria
requirements). Bike riders will have access to the partial set of Class II bicycle lanes along
Harlan Road via Old Harlan Road ( or via the Burger King parking lot). No improvements
required.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 22
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

117



IMPACT 10: Dutch Brothers Drive Through Window Queues

Surveys were conducted from 7: 00- 9: 00 AM and 3: 00- 6: 00 PM at three Dutch Brothers

operations of drive through window queue lengths. Surveys were conducted for two days each at
locations in Stockton, Lodi and Oakley. Appendix E presents detailed survey results. Maximum

queues at all three locations never exceeded 13 vehicles from 7: 00- 9: 00 AM, nor 10 vehicles
from 3: 00- 6: 00 PM. Based upon the Dutch Brothers site plan for Lathrop ( see Figure 23), they

will have room for 16 vehicles to queue in their drive through lanes. Therefore, proposed storage

should be acceptable. The only minor issue with the Dutch Brothers drive through lanes entrance

is that it is much closer to the Sonic driveway along Old Harlan Road than to the Dutch Brothers
driveway. It is likely that at least a third of Dutch Brothers customers will use the Sonic
driveway for inbound access. There could be intermittent periods from 7: 00- 9: 00 AM when
minor congestion could result at the Sonic- Dutch Brothers internal parking lot connection.
Improvements recornmended.

IMPACT 11:  Project Internal Circulation

Circulation flow through all three properties meets City code criteria and appears acceptable,

with the one exception listed in IMPACT 10 regarding use if the Sonic driveway by many
inbound customers to Dutch Brothers. No additional improvements required.

CTG 12J6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 23
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

118



VII.  RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS

1.  EXISTING WITHOUT PROJECT ( City Responsibility) - See Figure 24

Reconfigure the northbound Harlan Road approach to W. Lathrop Road to provide two
exclusive left turn lanes and a combined through/ right turn lane.

Remove the raised island median on Harlan road south of W. Lathrop Road at the entrance

to the existing northbound left turn lane. Continue this existing turn lane south to the Burger
King- O' Reilly' s driveway.

Extend the length of the left turn lane on the eastbound W. Lathrop Road approach to

Harlan Road by at least 75 feet.

Retime the W. Lathrop Road/ Harlan Road signal and coordinate timing with the W.
Lathrop Road/ Cambridge signal.

2.  PROJECT ( EXI3TING AND CUMULATIVE) - See Figure 25

Realign the Old Harlan Road connection to Harlan Road ( just south of the project) about

100 feet to the north and provide two lanes on the Old Harlan Road approach: one for left
turns and one for right turns. In conjunction with this measure, restripe the median of

Harlan Road just south of the new intersection to provide defined back- to- back left turn
lanes - one for northbound left turns into Old Harlan Road, and one for southbound left

turns into the driveway providing access into the Lathrop Crossing shopping center on the
east side of Harlan Road.

Provide signs adjacent to the exit lanes at each of the three project driveways showing an

arrow pointing to the right and a message stating I- 5 access turn right. In conjunction with
this measure, also provide a sign on the southbound Old Harlan Road approach to Harlan
Road with an arrow pointing left and a message stating I- 5 access turn left.

Provide sidewalks on the south side of W. Lathrop Road extending east and west of Old

Harlan Road ( from the I-5 Ramps intersection to the Chevron driveway).

Provide a crosswalk at the W. Lathrop Road/ I- 5 NB Ramps intersection crossing W.

Lathrop Road just east of the intersection. Provide pedestrian walk/ don' t walk signals in
conjunction with the crosswalk.

In order to ensure that Dutch Brothers customers do not congest the Sonic driveway during

peak activity times, it may be necessary for Dutch Brothers to provide moveable orange
cones across the internal Dutch Brothers- Sonic parking lots connection.

12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 24
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

119



Based upon input from Chevron, Burger King or O' Reilly' s Auto if there is a perceived use
of either property by cut- through traffic from the project:

a.   The City shall conduct an independent survey to see the extent of the issue.
b.  If there is a problem, the City shall work with one or both property owners to

develop measures to further reduce or eliminate cut- through traffic.
c.  This survey shall be funded by the project applicant.

CTG 12/ 6/ 19 Lathrop CFT Phase 2 Report Page 25
MARK D. CRANE, P. E. • CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

120



Tables

121



TABLE 1

SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION LOS CRITERIA

Level of
Description

Average Control Delay
Service Seconds Per Vehicle

A
Operations with very low delay occurring with favorable progression 10. 0

and/ or short c cle len ths.   

B
Operations with low delay occurring with good progression and/ or

OA to 20. 0
short c cle len ths.

c
Operations with average delays resulting from fair progression and/ or

20. 0 to 35. 0
lon er c cle len ths. Individual c cle failures be in to a ear.

Operations with longer delays due to a combination of unfavorable

D progression, long cycle lengths, and/ or high volume- to- capacity( V/ C) 35. 0 to 55. 0

ratios. Man vehicles sto and individual c cle failures are noticeable.

Operations with high delay values indicating poor progression, long

E
cycle lengths, and high V/ C ratios. Individual cycle failures are

55. 0 to 80. 0
frequent occurrences. This is considered to be the limit of acceptable

dela .

F
Operation with delays unacceptable to most drivers occurring due to

g0. 0
oversaturation,  oor ro ression, or ve lon c cle len ths.

Source: Year 2017 6lh Edition flightivay Capacity Manual( Transportation Research Boar d).

TABLE 2

UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTION LOS CRITERIA

Level of
DESCRIPTION

Average Control Delay

Service Seconds Per Vehicle)

A Little or no dela s 10. 0

B Short traffic dela s 10. 0 to 15. 0

C Avera e traffic dela s l 5. 0 to 25. 0

D Lon traffic dela s 25. 0 to 35. 0

E Ver lon traffic dela s 35. 0 to 50. 0

Extreme traffic delays with intersection capacity exceeded

F
for an all- way stop), or with approach/ turn movement

50. 0

capacity exceeded( for a side street stop controlled
intersection

Source: Year 2017 6th Edition Highway Capaciry Manual( Transportation Research Board).

122



TABLE 3

INTERSECTION LEVEL OF SERVICE
WITH AND WITHOUT PROJECT

EXISTING ( YEAR 2019)

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

W/ O WITH W/ O WITH

INTERSECTION PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT

W. LATHROP RD/ SB I- 5 RAMPS C- 34. 3 '  D- 37. 3 C- 32. 3 C- 32. 8

W. LATHROP RD/ NB I-5 RAMPS G25. 7'  C- 28. 0 B- 16. 2 B- 18. 8

W. LATHROP RD/ HARLAN RD C- 233 '  C- 23. 6 G25. 5 G26. 1

HARLAN RD/ OLD HARLAN RD B- l0A Z  
B- 103 B- 11. 3 B- 11. 6

CUMULATIVE ( YEAR 2022)

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

W/ O WITH W/ O WITH

INTERSECTION PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT

W. LATHROP RD/ SB I- 5 RAMPS D- 389'  D- 41. 3 C- 34. 4 D- 37. 3

W. LATHROP RD/ NB I-5 RAMPS C- 30. 7'  C- 33. 4 C- 31. 8 G34. 7

W. LATHROP RD/ HARLAN RD C- 25. 2  C- 25. 5 G29. 3 C- 303

HARLAN RD/ OLD HARLAN RD B- 103   B- 10. 5 B- 11. 9 B- 12. 3

Signalized level of service— control delay in seconds.
Side street stop sign control- NB right turn level of service/ delay in seconds.

Year 2017 6th Edition Highway Capacity Manual( Transportation Research Board) Methodology
Synchro Level of Service software

Source: Crane Transportation Group

123



TABLE 4

EXISTING 95TH PERCENTILE TURN LANE QUEUING''
WITH & WITHOUT PROJECT

QUEUE( in Feet)

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

LOCATION
W O PROJECT WITH W/ O PROJECT WITH

Field Surve ed PROJECT Field Surve ed PROJECT

W. LATHROP RD/ HARLAN RD

EBL 260 320 '  280 340 320)' 360

EBT 160   ( 330- 530   180 480 330- 530  500

NBL 320 235   320 340 235 '  340

NBT 160 160 200 200

W. LATHROP/ OLD HARLAN RD
20 60 40 160*`

NBR

W. LATHROP RD/ I- 5 SB RAMPS
180       ( 420)' 200 240       ( 420)' 260

WBL

Queuing results broken down into 20- foot segments.
Theoretical result only. Assumes all NB vehicles on Old Harlan Rd wait to turn right at W. Lathrop Rd. It is likely some

vehicles in this queue will use the Chevron and Burger King parking service aisles to access Harlan Rd and W. Lathrop Rd.
320)= Storage distance( feet).

330- 530)= SYorage length to Old Harlan Rd/ I- 5 NB Ramps.

Synchro software queuing results for+ project conditions.

Source: Field Surveys iEnder direction of Crane Ti ânsportation Group Wednesday October 3, 2019.
Compiled by Crane Transportation Group

124



TABLE 5

INTERSECTION SIGNAL WARRANT EVALUATION

Do Volumes Meet Caltrans Warrant # 3 Volume Criteria Levels?)

Harlan Road/Old Harlan Road

South of W. Lathrop Road)

EXISTING ( 2019)

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

WITHOUT
WITH PROJECT

ITHOUT
yITH PROJECT

PROJECT PROJECT

NO NO NO NO

CUMULATIVE ( 2022)

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

WITHOUT
wITH PROJECT

ITHOUT
wITH PROJECT

PROJECT PROJECT

NO NO NO NO

Source: Crane Transportation Group

125



TABLE 6

CUMULATIVE YEAR 2022 95TH PERCENTILE TURN LANE QUEUING
WITH & WITHOUT PROJECT

QUEUE( in Feet)

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

LOCATION
W/ O PROJECT WITH W/ O PROJECT WITH

Field Surve ed PROJECT Field Surve ed PROJECT

W. LATHROP RD/ HARLAN RD

EBL 280 320 '  300 400 320 '> 400

EBT 220 330- 530)« 240 580 330- 530  580

NBL 340 235 '  340 340 235)'>  340

NBT 180 180 240 240

W. LATHROP/ OLD HARLAN RD
40 80 60 60

NBR

W. LATHROP RD/ I-5 SB RAMPS
180       ( 420)'  200 240       ( 420)'  240

WBL

Queuing results broken down into 20- foot segments.
Theoretical result only. Assumes all NB vehicles on Old Harlan Rd wait to turn right at W. Lathrop Rd. It is likely some

vehicles in this queue will use the Chevron and Burger King parking service aisles to access Harlan Rd and W. Lathrop Rd.
320)= Storage distance( feet).

330- 530)= Storage length to Old Harlan Rd/ I- 5 NB Ramps.

Synchro software yueuing results for+ project conditions.

Source: Field Surveys zsnder direction of Crane Transportation Group Wednesday October 3, 2019.
Compiled by Crane Transportation Group

126



TABLE 7

Project Gross Trip Generation

DUTCH BROTHERS

With Drive Through)

AM PEAK HOUR TRIPS PM PEAK HOUR TRIPS

SIZE
IN OUT IN OUT

Square Ft)

Rate/   Vol Rate/   Vol Rate/   Vol Rate/   Vol

Sq Ft Sq Ft Sq Ft Sq Ft

862 77. 8 67 77. 8 67 48. 2 42 48. 2 42

PANDA EXPRESS

With Drive Through)

AM PEAK HOUR TRIPS PM PEAK HOUR TRIPS

SIZE
IN OUT IN OUT

Square Ft)

Rate/   Vol Rate/   Vol Rate/   Vol Rate/   Vol

Sq Ft Sq Ft Sq Ft Sq Ft

2200 N/A*    2 N/ A*     0 17. 0 38 15. 67 35

Not open for breakfast

SONIC

With Drive Through)

AM PEAK HOUR TRIPS PM PEAK HOUR TRIPS

SIZE
IN OUT IN OUT

Square Ft)

Rate/   Vol Rate/   Vol Rate/   Vol Rate/   Vol

Sq Ft Sq Ft Sq Ft Sq Ft

1608 20. 5 33 19. 7 32 17. 0 28 15. 67 25

Trip Rate Source for Dutch Brothers: Surveys of Existing Dutch Brothers operations in Stockton and Lodi, Califomia.- See
Appendix E.

Trip Rate Source for Panda Express and Sonic: Trip Generation Manual lOth Edition by the Institute of Transportatio
Engineers, 2017.

Comprled by: Crane Transportation Group

127



TABLE 8

Project Passby and Diverted Link Trip Capture

I-5 Freeway
Local Street System

Diverted Trips
Passby Capture& Primary Trips

Diverted Link Trips

Dutch Brothers 45°/ a 35%   20%

Panda Express 25%   30%   45%

Sonic 35%   30%   35%

Sources: Trip Generation Handbook by the Institute of Transportation Engineers 2017

Lathrop City Staff

Crane Transportation Group

128



TABLE 9

3 Facilities)

Total Project Gross Trip Generation

Total of Inbound and Outbound Trips

on 3 Pro' ect Drivewa s

AM PEAK HOUR TRIPS PM PEAK HOUR TRIPS

IN OUT
Total

IN OUT
Total

2 wa 2 wa

102 99 201 108 102 210

Total Project Trips Attracted from Freeway

or Ambient Traffic on nearby streets

AM PEAK HOUR TRIPS PM PEAK HOUR TRIPS

IN OUT
Total

IN OUT
Total

2 wa 2 wa

77 75 150 73 69 142

Net new Project Trips being Attracted to Development Area

from other section of Lathrop or Manteca

AM PEAK HOUR TRIPS PM PEAK HOUR TRIPS

IN OUT
Total

IN OUT
Total

2 wa 2 wa

25 24 49 35 33 68

Compiled by: Crane Transportation Group.

129



Figures

130



K

o n 4  ii r _ r-
e South AaPpO[ t Wdy a

M     ,._..-   

ac.,—      
r_. 5'      

v         jC
4 ... J    ...    

e a4a

yJ}
t' jy

S
4 

I       a; sw=->':.:
r r,   

d. .--,.. r....-.

w=r;+ a ps„

a
rc.

c-
n"! N"

a=:   ' r.-  
i1

a
it ,.::

r G"  

R

i 
fp ww!!

6 h zLreel. w

j 
a    .... .      k Sth 5[ rpo4

G

r  '         z

3q W.-  v     ,x

q z           
a

a' 2rxiS reet
X j

9(  i
F

j
f     

1XC$ 4e21` L

V
fl.. h` Sw.`"l...a  .       

x

f ` Mr,l: ini; J+. enu
x 1

l

x: .   

i

j      _.. i

ll yds taErqnc.,et¢=;: 7 j

n y"."'^.   
rwr-

7,_. i i q r t P- i. ea.us vat
u   f I    

t fl          
taa. y ywA3uxy

a

r Creak r* Me   ' i x u k     '?+ r51A9

w

y
Y                 

s  '

A 1         W Sih Sifeet     

q p  ,    

Y

eao. iys ylr,  iaa i5 414 Z i
c' y aij

s      e     = c ai
c

c`   uyn,    1

J  inP VTIICf' 7rN2

W

E C .     
t 4t.$pt7 y      '

y(
J      {

rF h

4s M J6  ' F1QiCj11

t 545? e".      
r+ r Vall! y prh e

a
a%p

m Hatn
NtniSr N 3

cc v. O

w 1a a Ce' se.".°      
p

er.,vaeaue

2'     
h r.n5ttett icr..i^. Way 

pyh nnr tana           3
y

Cam
4r° z

eamce gafi m   

Nadtairo     ,
y.,

u19r
z

n

aaYp o}: ei75 a'. r+
ar, nc      _      

m5iirie0 l.ms   '' j,'c-
o c

E 9ie tanr       
v w ne   Q       .

A,y U"'.    c warne+n axv d       
s.' T+..'       Y+'arffNd A4a0 m

G     .     
4  '   Essi[ r.   

r

o M1wd r    + m s o q

aP      - JS m q`       N+ fN o,,5as ti
f,,       +#     h4

t Way HilxiG25'Vebt
a;,  

f>. P

F,, a•„    O

a        alh CY Mar
b 1 y tn

W a, a uf ew y `*,   Wa
n,,, 

o               , Z

E"    
5` "    ''

P>.         `:, , O

t/ Qv R;-..w

V J__    

P3

a      

Or

y.i a,
dS

n.

Q Z

I C'    

j F..

z

i
o W

p Z
m

Qr.    
a,r a

U
a c     

4,1 O b F A
y    Nn

WroyqsylCiP4     4.      .} L
b„ C dY     a.     C` . d

Ov µ  p       ' i

y '      

4       , da  

a U

131



0

m

v

PN ue ae%    la

N s
d v
L

y3

O a

d

o           

o
N

a       o 
Q

U

L

p uela H PIO m
a

S-

ro a    

G

ti

4 o

a w
dcueau p Z

8N gy O
a       

s
l,
s

O t  
m

d

a

O

S p y
O

Ss  
d[

uerup Q

8S 9y
O
a

T

Z
7

w

U      =       W00        Z

o \ Z N

z U

U

132



r

f

C

M   

d!   v

3   ,++

C1
w ii L

Q

1

0.

r
y

x        , #.
I

ti      ,
r I

d
w

M       
r

I      -    
r      .-     

a.         .

M o
V

d           

V

I   t.
r f,       O

M c
Y i Q

x

a

M      ` K
t

U

N LLI

Q
a y

Um

a

U

133



r

A

Z\.

0.. 
4``

o'

S'
l

Q ` e

J

J

1         pa ue aef{    

Q
v C

L

p ue eH
a o._

l i'       
c

o a v

Oti C 

p   0 { 0

c      ` `
v

a y i
1   

o a

s

L   i+

N yi N e Q)
s L     

U U

O

t'
d!

j    
p{ ue aeH p10 m y

k
p     

W
ue eH PIO y Ad,

1'. J a i Pi..
S-

k
A

a w
dcue up Z

8N 3-/   
Q a 4,          

n       

ro   9NSO
s•`  

m
z Z O

tl     0
11

ca
c

j  
a
0

m    ft `=    
o mo a

n
a p     

cn Ogss   y

ii
dtueiuO
as s- i o       T Z

r,      

H
c   Q

H

Ad' 4
i

y ` 

0

J    
A/           

Qw
U LL

N
N W

O F
Z

N

L Vo Z a
z

U

134



d
C O

M

ly   T
L Q

N       4/   0

o c  Oy O 00
w Q..

e ` c`'  /'    C o
0,     

O      `     O

3 ti
M ` `   

t'_  °   
N  '

t.

T    
c  Pil ue eH

d 01

v c-       N 3 O
n I   c    N

P2 ue eH CI
a  ,

o       3   M
ac d'

o C1 L i
r      

N   cǹo       a

a    i.,

y LL 0 
M      

O       O T. ,

v

C
O

m  j
N a   .

U

a,,, c

Q L
t

N
s

O   p ue eH PIO O N

ue aeH PI od,    
W

4

i

PtiA
N 3

rn dwe up
N    8N 9-/

p
r-N Q d4iEa       `".' w rn

I       u m 8N p
m o

1'  u 
m       Si t;

z z      

Ol        

oc
M

r

a

a  

I           
o

N    I  `=' m N N ` cA O

m
m o o RJ

Q- i-1v O, n, I

M  

v    
o,

e 
o r        i \ .-     

C

ess   ya
o       

Z

O
dwe up o H

H9S 9y
o       

m O
a

T
Z
Q

Cn

w W

U r'     Z
H F' Q

o Z N U
Z L

a

U

135



v

v
v    •     o CI

A 
N

d
Q

4i..  a

r
y

N

3

t0M

F       
J

N M

N PN ue eH 3 M

i 4
cDo l  M 0 d 

PN ue ae'..     
a G    '

v     ''
1    

aa   
Ad'

o
Oi.   af 0 N

o i      `'  N ( Ò N N N
O\

a`
T rn  /'   y M

L L

3 d
o 

o
co o

C t
a       

a
c) o  °

r°  U dl  
d

N

y
p2i ue eH pl0

t

H

ue aeH PI
o od,    

N

rn      m

4`'

S'      W
n J

g  OO

ferv
cfl dcueaup c

cfl uM-   8N S-/   k'

Q N
u'  

Ir'     

c c-     

9'
s

O

1 1

z z   

rnN

N ,`
pC

N
1CJr    ` 

NM
R

a

E M N          
V N •  `

m p o_      ap
o0 Oc

N     • .
O          Q' l" 

M     d
2 iE,.

iE,       
O O' 

co

co,   M
es'

o yA       Q     Z
0o s'/   

dtueaup t               
O

8S S-/ o

N N

Q
H

a
T N

Z
7

U

I"'
N

I 
W

O      Z

O            
Q

o \ Z a U
z

U

136



0
L d
w 01

iJ

v i+
d N

C
p2 ue aeH

w°.,,     

I`   3 
I d

i    
3 W

3y
v 

3

N ( J
N X o

oca W
O

o m .-      
S

N
Q

V c
m 

T-     `o 0 0

m a ì

m Q
E E     v

F-   O 

p p     ai m o

c'wp
t i N 4'/.,

c o' o' Ev ti o
o

W w w w 
dr.ueaup a a a  i

8N Sy
C c C C

aw..       
a o 0 o o

S/    t    .

s'y rn rn rn rn

2 2

C Y Y Y

d N N N a
d  d

OQ a a a

I        Z

O

H
Q
H

O

S! 
a Z

SS%      ,
d u aup

8S Sy
I-

w

o z

a

cfOi O =      cn     m U

O a
o \ Z
Z U

137



f  U Y O O O O  I I N 
O)  N U O Ch O M N N O M

1Ln O H COf 0000   MCON

N

w         N

o m G.  o >. ao

r N O y   or 0000v Q)
a o   o   OOVNV VMM

O CO f   C' J st h 

m        N
O p j,      i+

w c

fp
a A O d

J
a+       ` U M M M V Q fn V)      O

H c0 ao cV co           
N

L

a d
a x   ,; Y

11 1111 o     m N O
C.      O T

G.   V f6 N M        a OH I  Ln

c  O i   G
µ,   

r: 

aCS'
G L 

m°'     yn

LL C
V ' V
L L w

N N
II

0
Q 3

Q4
C C
6 ( 6o/  L 1 F

i U      H f—      G         i' v
N

0 o R
L

N

P2 ue aeH p10
c 

Q m
y o 0

w g--  ;      
o      

y m ca
3 Oio n

cn cn

i rn

cueaup
9N S-/      

a
A,      a          o

9/
S

0

m
E=-

N9La
a

O
U

Z

au, O

gss''/
O                 

s       
w r+    

Q

m drueaup o a'

8S9-/
ssau 3         as     

a
G

4 4
P :         .

s     

Z

ro Cip{ t#u 

H

a   
W

O F
Z
Q

p U
o \ Z
Z

138



N

C

J v

O
v L

v
p ue eH

m . 0

O  C d

ti    O
C

i

a:;     
3

a,

y 

a
y

H Ia
K

m W

PN ue aeH PIO
Z

a

A

O c? ;      GE'/
O,

S,A
O

C.

dwe up
9N 9y

a   
w  

tis  
i

a

O

a i z

a4,     J   o O

O
Q-   F—

a>
QS+%

T     
d ueaup

O
8S 9y 00 0 a

a

m a3i u`,   o
e c   a Z

U Y

a'
rn    

3
w W

a     in   - o m
Zm      =     X ' X

00      w w    

o \ Z
U

z a

H

U

139



ad'
oOi

c°  S' 3
0 

Q-
e `-

O
M    J

l

e

3 J
L N

P21 ue eH

Q 3
P` J̀

O
ue eH

A

G       d 

y i  

c

R
C1 R ' i

o
a

W   y

d
x         „,_ a Q 

o
J

C p r:      

O a"

i
i; i    .      '     

i
a  E      

Nr ti„  
VU i

W

p2 ue eH pl0 O m
Z

ue aeH

p10 

0 Pti
m S''°

o

dweaup
8N S-/   

3

n m   `  
P a

a 9NsO

ih 
m    m  

Z
z    

t- m O

oc
i

or
Q a

E Q o 0
m     m O

o   m o
d,       o a`

e,

o
i.P

i
Z

eSs   
d

uo

S'
Ajo

o      

O

as s- i a

c c
m

@ m

a

a
Qa    

a

H

2 m W

tj o F   cYa m Q
F \    d N

z°      
Z

a.    a
U

Q
U

140



a

i..    3
y o

0   '   
d a

P21 ue aeH

Q
a 

Q r    
3

pZl ue aeH
a i   ' >

3   

a
c     

G°   

R t
a      

y A
O

m

o C

i!,       ti     ;      

U      a r.

W

@
P2i ue eH PIO 4         

a

ue aeHpl o od,
s ,: a

i.,,

AJ

Y    

J
dtue up

9N S-/  
a        c     

u E
P''

rp
r,' ;       

m o m     
Ns'

y

R` 

F

z z      
O

0
o

r       

a
a Q

m nm O
00        c

c

v O m O
pd, 4 V,

9S''
p JPti,d      

o         

pS   

duieruO F--

8S g-/      a

O
a

U U

U U
Z

m m

O O
N uJ

in O F m m Q

p a a
o \ Z V
z Q a.   

141



N

M
N   O

N 1 Af
G
i      

O

m Q'
e\

C
N   

y

M Jt
e

N
M    N 3

v

Lj    N PLI ue eH N G!
Q o

b elJeH
a     

N         d 3

1  '  
o

a     
d

G i     

m   o cco a`'

a   /.'` i

y af  > 
coo'    

v   
O       v Y.   O

Z

c
c

c a 3

a     _     
v a

U F U

o       v      a

o     O
P21 ue eN PIO    `        O o

d
ue eH PI o Ad,       3o

o  
J

Pi.

yp
M t ;-    O

1  1

0
0  N

dcue u    

x8N S- 1
Q         a       > s

E`      /
r'         

i
u,

c.

z / C    N m   
NS''/

O

Z O r

O

MO      M
pr

0
r

a

a  
I      

N    I  `' `°  cv
to       ,. \ \. i O

c

m 0 v_/      v m   pt'
4     ( 

e ¢,

cv o        a4ip,
y o   a     

N Z
e      y y
ss p O

dwe up
9S 9-/

N       F,
a-

m O
a

z
a Q

w
x

O      Q
p

o Z U
z

a

U

142



v
d

O
L

d

N 3

d'
G

0
R

o c  
l ' y N

J OQ- e'  r O 
N N
O

N         

r   ( 

c0°v PLI ue eH

Q
d y 3

i rn o 3   O

N     
P2J ue aeH

o I   

00 El  '  
0°  ca  . oc, N 3

o O
v      

o           z,ao  y ., y
R =

o,       N  N
o

a N  
Y

h

V C     

o O            
G

i    N    4  . . i a.

U i%i V      ,    

M

m @
Y

O   P2i ue eH PIO              o d
EJ a

ue eH PI o
d,Gi

m
o

n tiA
00 3 g; °   o

1  

o    

c       dcue up
9N 9y C

M  `  I`   n
a`

L.,     .        }`
a

v m I    
1  ° '

n E gN O r       

Z p IC N Z O
s

3''. 

0

r

N

N  ,` OC`
N 2

y
r    

c Q
a

O N      
V        V '  C

m eo./      o m O Ad,         Q-  
O d4i2 4E'/.

E,  Jl a0

N,     9s     
S'

oj
Z

c      S O Q
dtue u co c

O

8S 9-/   
N m

v Q
c

a
Z

a

U

W

O ~     QN
O N I.f.

O      .      l4 V

L
Z

a

HLL
U

143



o
J

L

ir

p ue aeH w af
3 

N

t

N Ij
1i    y0 

3

d

N
L V

O id O
O

o o m Y y
s

Q N
U a  a _

3

m V
0 0 0

a @  
J J    Q

O j C - 6 7

a

N  

j       J  _ I Q 
N

fiS U
v a

R3        a°i ai   c
d. t)       

j w w w °
b, ai aNi N a'idcueaup 4

8N 5- 1 i

cr c c a c

a 3

y'

bip o o a o
U

8
s

O
n  n n n
rn rn rn rn

2 2

1 Y 1 C
m m m m

a a a    a

Q a a a

Z

O

H

Q
F-

O
a'

O 1 o Z
gsS%       ,,

dcueaup
Q

8S S-   
w

z

a

p       L
F O

a

o \ Z LL
Z U

144



MI
L

i'/.     

c°  ti
w

O  e  L

r>     

3 0     d
a

F N PN ue aeH

0 a
PZI ue ae}    

N  
a

N
v

N
o C

l a     G      i d

N-        
co a   

y
i..

y

O
a          i

1L v
C

c o

i'          ```     .    „    s

U 3
L

Q      H

t        c v

c o pa ue aeH PIO    '        0
O
L

ue aeH PI
o y Ad,

tC vJ Pi..

o  Q
Py'

OO
aw U

dcue up Z

9N S-/ O

N `"  '   n c    ' IS+       
y

v v
N

ov   gNs' o

I 000
z Zo O

d     O
oc

N
r

l/    o

c
d

o,     co\     

m    

y  •A`'/

e          

n O ttl O S' A  .     cp
n O  '

c°  
2. Z4i

9S' S   Q

dweru   
N ,       

M  _ N

Q8S$'/      
p4

N   

N O N       
N

Nd

vQ
G

S        

O

N
ch Z

so
T

Q
o 9 in

Q U

N LLI

O F Z

Q

m Uo Z
z a

U

145



rn

M

A

t'/     

o°'  S'   L
w Q-  `'  0

6 O      G!

N

J`     

F  p?J ue eH

Q
C

rn

Pb ue aeH
l

r,    

a
eD            N         

A L   
ac     G       3 d

o0 0 a   /
y

i.

y t

o 0

t i;  V      ' F
a      

U

v
o        d

cfl  

P l ue eH pl0 z.  d
a

ue aeH pl      y Od

Y

G/

y
i

n co k AO
a W U

dtue up Z

v 8N 9-/ O

a  
N         

p,  
a

tiE,      C y
N     8' O

s.   
3 O

o o z O
s

I'
0 0 0 l

z rd
T o

N
r

l I ao n°  

c
a

Q
n  

a

n  p           4       
N

m m o yAiO ..   o, "'     C9
tti 

r i Z

9S' S   rn
y     

o Q
d[ue u0 N, -       F-

8S3-/      
Gp4      ` c'  1

N

id

OJ
GOS N   O.

M`  N

S        z

f°-'e

O =     z
n      Q

0 y
o Z m U
Z sa

F-

U

146



o y

N   r M
N   

A

U N J i      O

c y
N

T
3

Ae
N Ch

J J j

M  ^ N
E—  

c  P21 ue aeH

Qci v

P2 ue aeH

m \

a       N

N
J a i   

00 — O
o

5, 
1L v

M       
0\

a N      

0
ti, 

C X  

M  
N

w  . ':.  

a     U a!  U       :
s..,       

i+
o y

s
N

K

o      Q W
I    P21 ue eH p10 0

tJ a

ue aeH PI o t Oci
w

4'/.

iP

o o k yOo
a w

i

v dcue up 2

co oC°o   \
N eN sy O

Q M   Ir—N   ¢  
a,       '   

ys v

z     z o NS
o

j
O     

m

o 

d

r

M
O      \ C

o.       C

N   A
4    

N    `-  

I
u m CO i'

S', o

S    
0    

I  ;     ip ..   c-

m . I
r   Q, r-'   '     C9

r   
L
i,
y y

co Z
8      y I N

I` SS%    ,     
O W2lU     

N.

E,   O      

O

8S9/  
A  y  . n Q

p'      R N
N    

N p
N

M N

n
J

s     
y a

i   r,. z
s      Q

1J 8 v
0

W

O      Z

F            N
a

o \ Z L U
z a

U

147



N

r 3
o

M A
N

4C       L

3

o y y p

pQ- ' . N

o F—       

M

0
N cn r    

N P2i ue eH

4 r

py ue/ aeH N 
a    N

M d

o        a   d' 
M

d
N ( D N

N N

O\
a

a
O   / y

2

oo T
ai

U 00 i" V      °'       Na

N a W
o

0
c

6.

i  p ue aeH PIO

a

ue eH PI      
o tq Od

N  W a      
G

N 4
S'"°

o

aW

cV           

dcueau0 Z

8N 9y

E N    r('-N 4
a     

5
y

y

J   1
c°  m iVs  O

op`     /
m

Z O

d

Q m

0Z

co

Ncp R// NGr  
c

S 

N
N C i

M N     ' 

n E r E

p'

E'/.i, '    
v  `  v' m y,o     O

moo i   mo a ..   
w

o m     o'q,p
rn'   C

ao        

O
C°  O

Z
S' S    

N/' o p
dwe up

8S S- 1
PA4

o  ao    R Q
rn/  H

4ps
cD  

y O

N Z   ,,,    vi

so        
z

a
y 8

O
U

W

O      Z
a

o
o z m V
z a

U

148



v
d

O
L

O
M

1+

3
o N..

cv      R ` yo    N u!

ep c/ ' y N  
Q    N L

C4 m Z           3l p     

o         o J r  d̀ 

j  aD
M

L v

i   

P ue aeH

Q cD a1    
a+ _

P2 ue aeH
a

I

N `       
1  

R

N  a   
A

4
G)
d

o\
a,` N  

i,

s,      

Q`
C k  

V  1a
Gr, u  a      ,      

U j U     , a    \ 

o
M

CL iO 

w c

O

T    

p ue eH PIO
i          

z

ue aeH PI
y Ad,

a d
Q

yA
O

a w v

v    

rn dcue u0 Z
8N 9-/   O

y

n m
M    

o `_?    9N o s     
o

o z O I'       p o0
z

c
d

v
r rV

R/ V  
Nr

N      ' ONO       .\
C

Q f     Ad'     R 

c' 0 l  
N

d

mN       j  m
4'

E'

yA   
J

o O
I   

c i0  •    r rn

v0i O v. I v m  o,     o .
U

o J   o Z

ss   
dwe up

N,,   p
O

9S S-/ 
o, R N F—

N     

N I N
J/

S     
l     

a

I V/'      Z

s       7 a
4° 9

O V

N W

O _ Q

O
O T.      N U
Z

a

H
LL

U

149



NM

N   
A L

U i'/      

p       
o

o e ,
c   /' y

O           
J J       

M N .. i

d
pa ue eH

N

N     4 3

N N     
N   O

Ci rn Q-
a

i  ..>
oo PrJ ue aeH l a  

G 

1T '      oo
a N LL  

O N f N
C         dk 1

ii
C

C y% L.     ^ v     

C
Cp O iF  (    

i  ,     

R
c

o L M pb ue eH PIO
a:;   

O
4)

J       

A

m y GE
ue eH p    Q PyAi

a '     W

N N dtue up O
8N S- 1 y

v  
N 4 E, S1 U v!
n 8  ' p w O

E`   r r       
NS      I

O       
m

d

z    N z   C      J
N    

OD      

N
r  `

M

M         
N  \

C

N A           - `           a

l/    
Q

GP/
P/

y,p/ 

o

O
n  

r
co       , I     

v.    I  `' ` i°  
a4,p    

c.' 
1 m C9

c bm
m 8 O o Z

n O-   
M oo n

O
Sgy       N o        O

N
du e up rZ co

N        8S 9-/    Ov
o,  

ao rn r'       
r    

Fa-
y

O-      
4

iS     N  
M 

a

Sp             n
o 9 Z

O Q

U

N

O =     Z
cn F Q

0 N
o Z m V
z ta

U

150



0
w
J i

O

H

t  a1

P2 ue aeH d c

o

1    N     d

i   +  
W

1   y y
3

o$'     LLI 

o Y 6S-    s
o

a

m

O
U a  u 

m co - m
o p o

V     

N N  ( 6 N
d J J    Q
O C C =

j     -d 7

@
a        

c
a  N

OO N J J o_ ,
w 9 m a 

b   a  a o

t  . a i a°i  =

f_ X X X 0
W W W

dcu Up d- a a a
U 7 7 7 7

9N S- 1 O Oi..     
tn c c c c

y
y'

bip o 0 0 0
8  '

S/O wt     c

1/
S,,       

s.   n  n n n
rn rn rn rn

0 0 0 0
2  = 2 2
Y  ,[ Y Y

N N N
a7 N N     a
n-   d d

Q 4. d d

Z

O

H
Q
H

O

t Z
SS%       ,,

dcueaup
Q

8S 5- 1
F—

w

z

O =      c,
Q

v

o a
a  z
Z

U

151



0

d J

O L
L 

d 

p ue ae{-

N C

N N 
v

d W
ii   d

6d-    3
a> o-    Y y 3 0

o

t a

m

N
U a          

V 

rn o, -
m cò  

U O O O

O N   
d C C  ( 0 N
O

J J  (6 Q
N L C =  

H H O  
v          m

O y J J Q , O
m rn 

S      - a o
h   V U   •
e. p„   O x X X

W www 

dUl au      bd,   c ai ai ai ai

9N Sy
G

Oi.
y c c c c

b
p o 0 o a

NS    
rn rn rn rn

0 0 0 0

Y Y 1 Y
6  ( 0 N

a a    a

Q n. a    

I        Z

O

F-

Q
H

O
cY'

O a Zgss%      >,
dcueau   a

8S 5y
w

o z

Q

O =      
Q

U

F O a

o \ Z
Z

LL

U

152



ffi  (    

j       
I.. .   

a

i      a

l.    

d   
a* ;

y`   1     a s a

n

1}       r

ilr      ,/
r.;f        -' r'

r  .—

m rr   

c. a`

r       

C

a

1

yn      

x '

rs
A   -

w

w u

t  1

y R. r

i

Fg

f\

r

a t

t '     L a:     "      ' e

J} A%!. ti J! F
l   

f     ^

R"' f'"      :

f    4r  •_•
d  ? J. Y     1 1'

aJ" l F f)+
e'

153



w
3  o 

d

y a
o y c

r a

a
m r c

y       rn

o v p c °   3 o
o '      i c o +r c

d    y m t  rn

m rnd
eoU J

H a ai  
n y

o m o
a fl. d             

t O

p21 ue ae{-         `-.   N
i= J

N O
i =

3,
a  

N  '.+  d N
b   

3 d C.
C N

c _ o o mY
y

i   3 O 

n° w a
t  a

U
t

O1
o v

a y 
c °'    c

ai 
W Oc

tf
d

a
y cd

c
i

Q a W V

dcueaup   ° p y

8N 9-1     
S S',

o

Sr O
8

s       

o 
m

d

0

Z

o

a

o

a a
g' O 1 a a zSS%      ,, d

ueaup
Q

m E
8S 5y E

w

z

O =      U

F O a

o \ Z
Z

U

154



O F dp         

Z Z

o O
i d

m a i

J

N
O  
NE

p2 ue aeH

p > O
N   C

L   

d

O 3 C
C

iy

c T   rn
V  

rn O o m Y           C v
Y     - Q c

v U 3 'v 
3 v ..,     t - C
d m .. rn E f+a
a a    O 

c rn c
a '`-  

c  
N

c . N a aya;       orn j
3 Y p N .+ ' y r '

y R C d
C

7 f/)       C " O
3 a a      oc
w o a i

m
co a m

arna ci 
v -a m o         i -

c N v " 
c 

N +L- Q C

a i c  a'       co

k V y c° cyo         1a

aW Z               o

dr.ueaup         
O o

8N 9y   °     
Ja s' 

so      i.

7.              

s d
e     

w , 

a

m 3 0 j
m

rnd U rn

rnS LL Q- C
y u  O O.  

N      
Z

c L O

o        acrn
J   

f-

m        r aL L
Q W .  

Y C

Y  
O Y

Q  f0 f6 y L 0
C C        ' O V1

a

7
ti' V  CfA .+    y N O •-s      ,       aU/ 2JUp L y Q

a+  `8S Sy
C

Y,

1 ' y Q.       w
O O LLI
c F

o Lo
V

d o C N d
a

m
acz  c
c 

w 2 U U

155



Appendices

156



Appendix A

Intersection Level of Service

Worksheets

157



HCM 6th TWSC

7: Harlan Rd & Old Harlan Rd 11- 13- 2019

Int Delay, s/ veh 2. 2

Lane Configurations          

T a e/ o4, ve i i   r    1     r  ; 9   4 15 '    1  `

Future Vol, veh/ h 1 106 9 234 157 1

Ct Tt#li tirtg#,# t  :   -   `'           { 3 fl A

Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free

R7 Ct ann} i sd r  ., ',      _ N r e      - Nt ne

Storage Length 0      -    75      -      -      -

Ueh in M tlf'.       -     
Grade,%  0      -      -      0 0      -

k# a ar, i  , .,. p .., , .: 4        8 '   84: ;   '

Heavy Vehicles,% 0 5 0 4 6 2

M mt I aww 26 1' I 279 187 '    1   '

Conflicting Flow All 350 188 188 0      -      0

s ag'"„ 1, r' 

Stage 2 162      -      -      -      _

ical' tf tit r ' 4: 1      -

Criticai Hdwy Stg 1 5. 4      -      -      -      -      -

r ti al' h1cl: a g,, ;,   s;'   

Follow- up Hdwy 3. 5 3. 3475 2. 2      -      -      -

Po# Cap- M v a`   ,     398

Stage 1 849

9 ; "  ,  ': 5,     -
Platoon blocked,%       

IO ap=1 l rr sr:   4.     398

Mov Cap- 2 Maneuver 634      -      -      -      -      -

Stage 1
Stage 2 856      _      _      _

HCN r n rci y,` _: ' t:     

HCM LOS     B

Capacity{#% 1  842
HCM Lane V/ C Ratio 0. 008      - 0. 151       -      -

H M C rt#r' rl fl   ,      7;6 10

HCM Lane LOS A      -      B      -      -

c s tn bt f _
r     . 

u.  

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 1

158



l

HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
11: Spartan Way/ Lathrop Rd & SB Offramp 11- 13- 2019

i      

Lane Configurations

Tt ff'i am     t3          8       ' ;, 2   '    0  "     4 '   !       '      ' 7
Future Volume( veh/ h)     0 431 87 396 522 0 0 0 0 249 5 75

Inifiial Q(?) 3 la,.     :  t3 U 0 fl U U'       fl
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 92

P rking Bit,;    t?";:   . 0 i1, q    '. AQ   , 1 D    1. 00  ''     1.    1 OC
Work Zone On Approach No No No

AdJ S[ W, Ihll r . ' D'   '# 9t U    90D    1 Fi   ',' 18$ v.  !    a    19{}  , 9   19 t

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 0 553 112 508 669 0 319 6 38

F ak i ut t'  Q; B    9 78 0, 78;    9.':  .* a 4. 8    . 78'

Percent Heavy Veh,%     0 0 0 5 1 0 0 0 0

C pr 1J   ;  1-     :-   ;` `   q 4

Arrive On Green 0. 00 0. 32 0. 32 0. 10 0. 22 0. 00 0. 22 0. 22 0. 22

4,    8    '.. .'€; 5'  >    { W
w.%         ; ` ;  2;    1$

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 0 438 227 508 669 0 363 0 0

rp# v# r       ;  D«:  ''    7    17 9    8;       U 1,''', :    ,      

Q Seroe( g_ s), s 0. 0 8. 9 9. 2 26. 1 28. 1 0. 0 18. 0 OA 0. 0

Cycle C ar{ c)x .! .   ``;;#;:  : 9    9 2  " 26; 1.    :' t`  ,'  0,4   1.;  '' #;-     . Q

Prop In Lane 0. 00 0. 49 1. 00 0. 00 0. 88 0. 10

L r e G p ', i;,       :<;:     1t1 3 a' I    ', 5   ; 2 5   ;    Q  ;      U
VIC Ratio( X)    0. 00 0. 40 0. 41 0. 93 0. 53 0. 00 0. 91 0. 00 0. 00

Arr i1., 3.; h x. : , .. :, a     i19     5 1    , 8f-   ;°         : t

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 33 0. 33 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Upstr tr` r Ìt t'),  .  t; t U    . D   1. 00 U, 66    ' fl. a   Q O     9,: 0    . flt i t, fl0'
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 0. 0 24. 1 24. 2 39. 4 22. 4 OA 34. 0 0. 0 0. 0

Iner y.{, 1t.,,.:".";  t,.    1; 1    , 2,3    °'( a.   '  A   '  . f  7.'{      :.     .(

Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

l le B I. k 11 .:    Ll. ti 6:i 7.3     9.5 19.5 O. fl 13.`    (: 3 O. 0
Unsig. Movement Delay, slveh
l nGrp{ d Iv la ; , " .:    U,    5,2 i.    !. 1    23.   =  fl.0    49. 1     U.     U.

LnGrp LOS A C C E C A D A A

Appr acfi t, uehlta  ,   6 a 1177 363

Approach Delay, s/ veh 25. 6 37. 1 41. 1

Appro h. C`;  ; C     

is r a  ° ,..    : t a:      2
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 6 4. 6 4. 6

Max Gr r" Setk' tt- f t' 3 t,  .; 3.{     13.      33',      47.4
r

Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 28. 1 11. 2 20. 0 30. 1

Gr en d. r?,; ,      9 x Ufi 3:       2. 2

H l t d;3
HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 1

159



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
12: NB Offramp & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

t                1       

Lane Configurations

1`r f tc 9oli•)  ;  , .     9   :   4        ; " 33' . . 3{ 2     1 '     ,';; 8;  `   - fl;"  "  4'       {
Future Volume( veh/ h)    51 629 0 0 762 302 156 2 189 0 0 0

Inifia! t( 116).` vs  0              0 U U  <    U  ,,      '      '      p
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 95

I' arkin Bus; A j .      U i   " 9. UQ   '; 9. 00 I 1. 0( t 1, 4  ' , 0  `  1. UU i  ',::-  ;,. t U ;

Work Zone On Approach No No No

Adj Sat F1, u 1 lh/ r. ;       1 41    $ 0 D 0 18 8    1E 56 190tI ; " 19t. 9 0,,

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 61 758 0 0 918 364 188 2 77

P ats` . ,-     '::.       0. 3   , t. "' 4,   {,:_ ".&  ';  i': ,,.":,:'

Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 2 0 0 3 3 0 0 0

ap, v t   ''     ,,":. .    , ;,`. " 7       0   :     ' 1 4`=. . 4  '  2  :     :`.   `

Arrive On Green 0. 07 0. 24 0. 00 0. 00 0. 47 0. 47 0. 18 0. 18 0. 18

F w, 9
t       "  z    ssa .  2          ;`:

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 61 758 0 0 658 624 267 0 0

Crp S t t r l i lri;  ,    `('    1' 7    i U 1.   ; 1651  ; 371  '     ;:.,    4 `
Q Serve( g_ s), s 3. 0 15. 7 0. 0 0. 0 28. 4 28. 9 13. 6 0. 0 0. 0

V W i' at 5. s+, S„  :.       ' r   .' r# a    .: U. 1J    : , 74   .: 4, ",., 7aa7  '  :  . . . i t̀ii".    it. i   ,

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 58 0. 70 0. 29

ar(`::   ;",   '   6    :   0    `       $ 3C     7$  `  3t       ;,  ^ = t ,
VIC Ratio( X)    0. 17 0. 30 0. 00 0. 00 0. 79 0. 80 0. 89 0. 00 0. 00

A+r ii a{;,,),: v . ; 9    6       0 f     l3 1 77E 5 t  ',      ::.,,, , ti. i ,
HCM Platoon Ratio 0. 33 0. 33 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

pstr m" r1 er',      a2    . o    f. t    ,    a. 00  `  . o  '  ,.. .; t 
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 35. 0 15. 5 0. 0 0. 0 20. 1 20. 2 36. 2 0. 0 0. 0

n r1 1 1 i'. ,      , 1    t. 2     .    . t tl     7, 7      $. 5  "'   3.5     A `.  ;
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 OA 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

loile 3a 5?ls v l#    `;; 3    ., v    , U.0     {. I     ' t8.   ' 97.  ;'   9. J  ':   t.;   0:( ;

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
1. n 3 I I}'),`' ° .      : 1    , 7    t3, fl    ` t A     .   ' 28.$  :, 39.7"     1, .  :. '

LnGrp LOS D B A A C C D A A

App` oa J, uehl,.     81      128 6  '
Approach Delay, s/ veh 17. 2_      28. 2 39. 7

I' fl G[ U` ,    

f s u'') t      6, 6 2:    ; U    4"'
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6 4. 6    * 4. 6 4. 6

Max i i t r  2.      r,#     42  
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 17. 7 5. 0 30. 9 15. 6

Gr" c,°   ,  ,`;; -     ' 3.fl           t t3   ;  4:( 1  ' Q,.:',

H i{<S° 2: 7 ` 
HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
HC{ t' ir i a T r' rne irtres eq r# 1ear nce#irr r t ses cr ssit barr er =;   `  "

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 2

160



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan Rd & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

r                   
il     I       

Lane Configurations

Tr c/ 11ttri<< ta..       _:.     172     3 5    ; 1a",    2     `  ,',  >        ,.."#((;. "''     a3
Future Volume( veh/ h)    27 172 365 150 2 63 545 34 4 218 95 53

Initial Q{ 4b, ueh  . 0 fl 0 fl  ';     U' ;      fl 0:       0

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)    1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 97

Parking Bt 10 1, Od    ' 1: t    D4    1:  ; 1. :      '   4 ,' .  1., Qt`    1. f( 1
Work Zone On Approach No No No

AtljSa lowt,,v/ ttpCn  8 1    870 18 0 1885  ; ° 1# 3 4   98'`"     847    8' z 38$ 5,

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 185 392 161 68 586 37 234 102 57

Peak r^.`       9    i. 3    '(.:     3 4. 93 4;, .;"; :' ;     I,J;;   : 83:;   t1. 3

Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 2 2 1 2 2 4 1 1

Gap, u t.  _ i  ,     .:,, ,,  , :; .   42     ', 8 5    i;   1C C   '  '     ':  ,     1'  4    33

Arrive On Green 0. 14 0. 34 0. 34 0. 06 0. 26 0. 26 0. 17 0. 29 0. 29

S? t
t'..     -.:, ,. ,.:.' "  "'

i  6   1 3 .'': "°;     i' 9. : 3  :  .' y'. .,    '  ` 3 .' 2 r,  116.

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 185 283 270 68 307 316 234 79 80

Grp at 1;` i lta;,       1753 1777'    1    ' 179a   ' 177    .. ' 1 1 9
Q Serve( g_ s), s 6. 3 7. 7 7. 9 2. 3 9. 5 9. 6 7. 9 2. 0 2. 3

Cy le r':. s  :  ,._    ~ 6. 3    ` 7. 7   ` ;". ; 2r3   '  . 9,    r"' o:   : fl     2,

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 60 1. 00 0. 12 1. 00 0. 71

Lar e r t'a P, t t   :     42     ': 6 6    i   ' .      ' i 14#   '  aC  -   '       '  , 9 i    9`    465
VIC Ratio( X)     0. 76 0. 47 0. 48 0. 68 0. 67 0. 67 0. 81 0. 16 0. 17

Avai Cra}: h -.; - _    r19   1 C iO 1 i..r;...'  3 1     r6h  ; ;" _.  <     ',.  6  .,.    729
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Ups#t arr 1 er.      Db    i.nn    1At     a. Ua  ,  1. b  ' . 1, 1, 1: It?    1    , 4
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 25. 5 15. 9 15. 9 28. 5 20. 4 20. 4 24. 7 16. 4 16. 5

lncr i+ t; 1?  „             , 9     ' Q, 7    ` f:    5.3 " ''  , U     ,         ';        :`     0: 2
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0
ti

ol E', G` a
9'*;:"';;   

i .          , 7.  '   .,' ,,;  "         ,. '. -,   ','     .

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
l. rpCt c); luefi,'"   °      16 6 1. 7   ` 37.$     22.4  ; 4 .    3t? A,   16.6 1fi. 7

LnGrp LOS C B B D C C C B B

ApPxoa. l,' t     7$      

Approach Delay, s/ veh 20. 3 23. 9 24. 6

Approa# t1'",.     C

Phs l r r``      `'    ?: 0 7. 4 i2b.
w. r.  :`   ` 

14, 4 1.     ,

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0 4. 5 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0

f ax Greert f; r s'  . Q.    2' 5 11. 0    : C    2"1.     16. 5 42.  : fl     `

Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 3. 9 4. 3 4. 3 9. 9 9. 9 7. 4 8. 3 11. 6

l'^'i 4,#;,' c
a.}   ,  s.,    `,    :.. i    I S* 3, ,'.;^, i   .'  , u   '^.  V, S  "   . '.' „     

i; '   

Ilti 4   ''
zi i  

L.      

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
t3ser appca d ìg i n' r eri rifi.

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 3

161



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan Rd & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

Lane Configurations

i'r fJiG Vp ctr e hlk ;    ,   1`    ;     , 1 7"   ;

Future Volume( veh/ h)    51 76 157

Ini#i l 1( b, tk h ,. ':.        U       Q    `   fl

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 0. 95

Pa in Bi., A  .. A    : 1. Uq

Work Zone On Approach No

Adj a I vv;, y/ h11r° ;   :: 1 1 1$ 41 1847   ,

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 55 82 142

Pe k H="      3    {-   U. 3
Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 4 4

k.:",..

Arrive On Green 0. 05 0. 16 0. 16

Sat' Fl w, eli i;    3:.   '# 7    1$ 8   , .

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 55 82 142

G p at 1{ sj,+efa ti li      ;:'' 7   17    ' I$
Q Serve( g_ s), s 1. 9 2. 5 5. 4

Cycl r g   ,     ''',    '. 5    ` .#  

Prop In Lane 1. 00 1. 00

La t+" tp C. p{ r V t%1,     :.'_.     2'    14(    

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 63 0. 29 0. 59

1v i1" p{::+ lla .-, ....,, 1         ' 34   

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Upsb`#€' '. ,  .    -.,  , Q     .{    ,'. 00    

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 28. 7 22. 7 23. 9

Incr,; a' s#!,   G. 6 2.3

Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

qloile; i 1C S/' x ',  ',`     ; 1; 8     3.5    

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh

LnGrp t1 a( tij;stv l   a 23. 3 26.2

LnGrp LOS D C C

Apprcia h fc l, v t' t    ` 2 9

Approach Delay, s/ veh 27. 6

A pro,,.' C

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 4

162



HCM 6th TWSC

7: Harlan & Old Harlan 11- 13- 2019

Int Delay, s/ veh 1. 9

Lane Configurations          

TraffiC V t, vehlh 1   1# f8 17 3$ 2"   266 15  '

Future Vol, veh/ h 19 108 17 382 266 15

Conf!' ii g P ds, r `; : , l' '`      ' 0 t       ;    t3 

Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free

RT Chanr elized l sn.     - None      - lan  '

Storage Length 0      -    75      -      -      -

Veh[ n NCedian fc r g` o  .,     '     
t      '

Grade,%  0      -      -      0 0      -

Pe r' t r . ' ';_, :   9l    9    9 '  97 ,

Heavy Vehicles,% 2 2 2 4 4 2

Mvrr Fk W 1 1 1$   94   7 t    

Conflicting Flow All 515 282 289 0      -      0

Staz e" I 2    
Stage 2 233      -      -      -      -

Cri l' I da y  ' a;  4. 13      -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5. 43

Cr ical idu r     ba8   

Follow- up Hdwy 3. 519 3. 319 2. 219      -      -      -

Pat Cap- 1 Maneu± rer   ' SO4,  7  1 71
Stage 1 765      _      _

Stage 2 7     

Platoon blocked,%       

Mov Cap>1 lan uu r d""   756 1 7' 1
Mov Cap- 2 Maneuver 497

t e ; 75:   ` 
Stage 2 784      -      -      -      -      -  

d;       ,       .;      

M fl Y or tr 1"[ 1 y, S. ; t ; '     U>3

HCM LOS B

Capac fy v a%ti      t'  701'     

HCM Lane V/ C Ratio 0. 014      - 0. 187      -      -

HCM G ntrt l D I y( j ;    ..  . 9 .   -   1.

HCM Lane LOS A      -      B      -      -

HCIuI t° loti#e' v hr -      ';(      -    4.'

Existing PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 1

163



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
11: S an Way/ Lathrop Rd & SB Offramp 11- 13- 2019

t                   1 1     '     ,       

Lane Configurations

fr i 1tt un e< 1     1      38   `      2         ;     t              }     469 1t      86
Future Volume( veh/ h)     0 311 38 247 342 0 0 0 0 461 10 86

lnitial t( Qb) veh 0    ;   p U 0 0  < t',       U'>       0

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 95

Park t gBus, J     4   A    3, C     . 4fl "  i 3U  ` 1. fl{I       1; t:    1. U'    1, t
Work Zone On Approach No No No

AdjSa l w,;u+ f tli  i  q    9t9U    9( 0    78 . ,"( 70         ::  9tt;   190U    190D

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 0 349 43 278 384 0 518 11 46

Pe tl t'`  `:;     ;; u:' y  : 8  -;` ,..,." 1, T5  ' 8:: `  ,$."    0,89
Percent Heavy Veh,%     0 0 0 8 2 0 0 0 0

ap, vehlt  '      .,,; . ,  °'  },   ; 599     -'  . =, I:       t    7`     1'     49
Arrive On Green 0. 00 0. 13 0. 13 0. 38 0. 56 0. 00 0. 34 0. 34 0. 34

Sat w, 1i11i .      4 fi1         " I, ,!,        t 1,,°:;;'  ?     143

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 0 255 137 278 384 0 575 0 0

Grp atFtza; tie t n;  .     ;  t}    ' 17 9 179 :;:,; 7'    187 1 C1 i C1 Q

Q Serve( g_ s), s 0. 0 6. 3 6. 5 10. 9 10. 3 0. 0 28. 2 0. 0 0. 0

C ci Gl G[,:' S. 4: ,  6; 3    ' 6,5 .' `, 1 ;; 1;.     , 4  t.

Prop In Lane 0. 00 0. 31 1. 00 0. 00 0. 90 0. 08

Lan G, 1'        { 3     38 22    '. 1       fl  :      t       

VIC Ratio( X)    0. 00 0. 58 0. 60 0. 43 0. 37 0. 00 0. 95 0. 00 0. 00

Av il G p{c, a,. F: ... ,:. :: .     438    - 22f     .:. 3,  ;    { 3 <',      8   .  U W
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Upstrearn if C  '   Q J.'   , UO     , Ifl   ;   ;. 3 A. 40    1{ R 0. 00 Q, aO
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 0. 0 37. 1 37. 1 20. 7 11. 1 0. 0 28. 9 0. 0 0. 0

lnCtI3 1 Y£,, '..       ; t; i. . ;. fi    1: 2  - i Efw,' t9,8  ;'  U. 0    A"1     . A`     {?. 0'

Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 OA OA 0. 0 OA 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

r, a: - :,     ..     s.      .     r     a. o  ;  o.     a.

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
Lr G!', W    fl.#    , 6    $, 3  _ i     " I'(. 9    0,    43.      0..     0. 0

LnGrp LOS A D D C B A D A A

P I,,+ lh   , 392 6 2 5=

Approach Delay, s/ veh 44. 6 15. 6 43. 0

lpprn ch L :     D p;

n i    :=    s:o r

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6    ' 4. 6 4. 6 4. 6

Max Gteer, et ng rn , : t     " 11 42#      36.a

Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 12. 9 8. 5 30. 2 12. 3

Gt en Ext`'# r'::,'„  ,     ,;. 1'     0.4 4,„     t; 2

HC! 6th i t`+             
HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
H I 6th pt t ra` r i equal clearance tiim rs f r ph s s rassira he barr r.

Existing PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 1

164



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
12: NB Offramp & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

Lane Configurations

Tr i C t;        ;   ' 43 ", `     ;    :' ':     6    3@    °, t= Qe             t
Future Volume( veh/ h)    29 743 0 0 553 256 36 2 486 0 0 0

lnfitial( b t .      t$.  . '  fl    '   U 0       0  "      f.  ,  3 '     ,!
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 98 1. 00 0. 98

Parkir g Bas A' j=     At  ', AD'   ' s t   ; a: 0    $, ' 1;}  :=  1. 4t  '. ; ,,# ,: 
Work Zone On Approach No No No

Adj Sat flsiw t hJt tr '  ,   "" 1 3 6    $ 8 .  ;   J    `.   I   :' 18$    885  _ 79t Q  '  1 x ,(:,        
Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 31 790 0 0 588 272 38 2 384

Peait i ur F t`   , 4;   9M J4    ; 0. 4  , `(}: 8,      ` 4: 4 t,, 4 ,:  t,, .:,  '- ,'; ,  -

Percent Heavy Veh,%     3 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

apa l  `,      3;            I  r,. <<;.   ,  ` 1  :     ,:   ":
Arrive On Green 0. 12 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 51 0. 51 0. 29 0. 29 0. 29

Sat` It r, r;:       17. .  3 6 l t,  ,< ;        #:`°           ,;;.

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h

n

31 790 0 0 446 414 424 0

4

0

Grp i x 1  ,  ;''   9'# fl i3  `; 1   ' 16F'{    fi        ;     ; 

Q Serve( g_ s), s 1. 4 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 14. 7 14. 7 23. 3 0. 0 0. 0

CYcI 4 Cle r c, s •;     ,:.. . "     ..    .°  `_ 14::  ' I: 7   #, :   ;   ,;'  

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 66 0. 09 0. 91

Lane r{t C{; ilt;:       ,      ,  fl         9     4    4 4  .     .,    °,',  °:
V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 29 0. 36 0. 00 0. 00 0. 49 0. 49 0. 93 0. 00 0. 00

A aii p w s P .>;       .}   - r       {       i      : 4    fi7  ,     ``,..,,  {,<       , .
HCM Platoon Ratio 2. 00 2. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

W V4 4. M C'
7  '   - ' ,   Y} .   1A/    i LI    . e   :. 1tW    7a U  ;. , a  '-  Y.* V^ S' .,' e ',.        

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 37. 9 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 14. 5 14. 5 31. 3 0. 0 0. 0

Incr C Y{! 2}; i    .    ".,..  i:    ? .   : .      ' 9    , p  ': 1.  `   i;:;. " ", 3. "
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh OA 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 OA OA OA OA

kile B Ck Q Io N a  `;    t3. 2     1. t     . b    ;     9.a  ' 1. 4  '   . ;  ;. 

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
t G p a i(), 1v; ',....     t. 4     O. o     6.   _ s,4 1s. a   43     : f : ;: i

LnGrp LOS D A A A B B D A A

Appro i V 1; a '   x; :,
Approach Delay, s/ veh 1. 9 16. 5 43. 5

Appro th, L,fla`   ,    q a ", " ,  ,

Phs Cfur i r-' Y l} 3:„      4   '; b:3'     3.; t.:

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6 4. 0 4. 6 4. 6

Max Care tg t±f:  ,  ,`'     2:      1t,    27.8 3,°  .
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 2. 0 3. 4 16. 7 25. 3

ree r9' r.°.;     2    . t1: 3. , :  , 2,4   ;

s y,  },,,sq. s

q, k c s,
st a ' a.,,'„ i Yi;'.    :

W WI 11,    ,
n; i

9i3.•      
6.

HCM 6th LOS B

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

Existing PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
without Project Page 2

165



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

il     I       

Lane Configurations

Tra ic lvlurr e`'!:;',:         ' 3`        1   ;    3    S  I ` B  = ,-; i' " :°   :    ,'     14
Future Volume( veh/ h)    47 237 630 212 3 99 288 55 8 281 177 143
Initial 1( Qb), u h      0       0 i        0 f     t '     A `       t9;`      tl       t
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)     1. 00 0. 99 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 99

Parkin Sus, f j,.   ,   9. Uf    ' 1. 0   ;. t 0  `, 1. 0  `  1. OU :- : 1, r ,    1.>    1. 4{
Work Zone On Approach No No No

Atlj Sa' 14+, V E lh1 ",':-,      3 88    88 , < 1885    19Dt}  ° J(14    ' i A ',       .: " t; .  1 3' i 18 t

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 244 649 219 102 297 47 290 182 147

P k 1 1t 1 r i'`. ,    ` ,,  ,;., ; : ,,.  c9    '{ 3. 97 p.9° " ,.   :     .    fl49    ? s` "'„, , ,, ;; , ;: ,  :`;`, ..  i, 97
Percent Heavy Veh,%      1 1 1 0 0 0 2 2 2

Gap; r i i   ,  ,  . ,.   41    876   ; . 2, .`         3 d  ; a;    ';    .   e   `.'   :. , a 3 a9;
Arrive On Green 0. 23 0. 33 0. 33 0. 07 0. 18 0. 18 0. 20 0. 25 0. 25

Sat Fl i`:      7   26     88A  ,';  .   '°:' 1 3 fl.  : 3'11  . i-°`      s'  `' 1 '  3<' 1 fl!

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 244 443 425 102 171 173 290 168 161

Crp t 6 s f fE, . .   ;     ,'    7 1    J' t'",,,,.      18  ': 1845  ' ; w 1 8 i'
Q Serve( g_ s), s 7. 9 14. 3 14. 4 3. 6 5. 6 5. 8 10. 2 5. 1 5. 6

Gycle t{ ls r:..; ' Z:    14. 3    4,;.  3 6      .  :   , a,  St1     .
Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 52 1. 00 0. 27 1. 00 0. 91

Lane' p aP( fi v hlt:;'  ;      49     59$        ; 13  `  32fl  '  3<: .,  :,;  ` s;' ,. 4 3    395
V/ C Ratio( X)     0. 59 0. 74 0. 74 076 0. 53 0. 55 0. 83 0.38 0. 41

A t il a a a-W, v la ia. ,,:,. .     ; ,       82    # B6    1} 1  , " 38     6   a,, E      :'; °;    83§
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Upstr rr'' I#e`) .     U    ;. fl    1. OQ   9. 00  , . t Q  ',  °; i ;`. : "   '#: U    1: I.    1. UQ
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 22. 4 19. 3 19. 3 29. 8 24. 5 24. 6 25. 3 20. 4 20. 6

Iner#': 1 t}, l r. 
a

1k a      ,    ; 2,    30, U     .     3;:    I. 7
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

Jo91e 1fCt° 1, Y f       fi. 0     8,7     9.4 3.4  '   #. 3 :  "° k- ;.    8. ,   ,     3. 6'

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
LnG a 1ay dj'; te'   24.    21. a 21,      39. 8 26,     6r; ;'   34;3 ,   : 9'    2. 2
LnGrp LOS C C C D C C C C C

p r v hm     a      s
Approach Delay, s/ veh 22. 1 29. 3 25. 4

Appr h 1.;``

Phsl r`#°;  `   =:` =   ; 8     : 9    ;   ";   , 9:     1.` l  '! ''
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0 4. 5 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0

M x. tk t g t, " 1. 0 34. 5     ' 14; tI    ' 39. 1 3'I. 6 18.4 3tl:fl     , t, i
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 6. 5 7. 6 5. 6 16. 4 12. 2 6. 3 9. 9 7. 8

x, v
P    .        ,     a.    ' a    ;     s     o.  :    

s

HG!' i°k 9a    :-   ,     2: 5     
HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
t ser appr a t tl igr v ra' i"` ti ig,r ve aent:`  

n

Existing PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
without Project Page 3

166



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

j      

Lane Configurations

ta i u; v ka  '    . "'    2    994 .   ,

Future Volume( veh/ h)   118 142 104

Initial Gl{ Qb), veh U    ;   0   ,   4

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 0. 96

Parking Bus, A lj i.t U 1. f1     . 4Q
Work Zone On Approach No

Adj 5at Flovu, r Ya1 lln• 1 41 187Q 1 70

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 122 146 81

P k F; aur t'  fl'    {}. 97    ;. 7'      
r,`,

Percent Heavy Veh,°/ a 4 2 2

G;< h    e'   '

Arrive On Green 0. 09 0. 14 0. 14

a t I       b s   ._  ' I ,      

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 122 114 113

Grp a csau(,# l.#i riy;  "     ' 9`"   1 7    ' l 47

Q Serve( g_ s), s 4. 5 3. 9 4. 3

Cycl 2 C( rfJ.}, s: y  . 4:    ; 3. 9    ! 4. 3

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 72

Lane r p x vst th;; 2 4     2$

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 77 0. 47 _   0. 52

f4 ii p(. ajy;u# ih, , a , ,       ' A 99   4' ,  ; ,

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Upstrearr i1 r!}       0    1. i 0     : Ut   '

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 29. 1 26. 2 26. 3

In r C1ela. 2);: s̀l eh' : 1. 4    ' 1. 9

Initial Q Delay(d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 OA

Jo le# C t(° i, 1 h n      ; 3,      . t3     3. t1   '

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
Ln rp t e y; t 38; 1 27. 6    : 28.

LnGrp LOS D C C

APp?`a# W l, rehdh e `       349

Approach Delay, s/ veh 31. 5

pptd h-I, S:     C

Existing PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
without Project Page 4

167



HCM 6th TWSC

7: Harlan & Old Harlan 11- 13- 2019

Int Delay, s/ veh 2. 3

Lane Configurations      '    

Tra# c l I, veh h       '   1,  # 4      fit '  18t1     1  !

Future Vol, veh/ h 1 114 15 260 180 1

C nfli ting f t1,# 1# r       . " t    ;?     {.    {`   0 ,  "
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free

RT Char n} i ed d at      • ', lt r e., '. 
Storage Length 0      -    75      -      -      -  

Y

V h in Jl d t̀ n tvrag;  ,;.` - , .    
Grade,%  0      -      -      0 0      -

eak fiiQur cfi a     : ..:,=`    ,   ;    84°.;. '"=
Heavy Vehicles,% 0 5 0 4 6 2

Mvmt Fl rw    18.   14°, ;;, . .,

Conflicting Flow All 406 215 215 0      -      0

tacJe I21    _•
Stage 2 191      -      -      -      -      _      

Cri al';Hdw  P a l    4 i      

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5. 4

C i cal Hd ty Stg 2       ,
Follow- up Hdwy 3. 5 3. 3475 2. 2      _      _ 

t t Cap- 9 laneuver   ; vJ't  B  " 13 7

Stage 1 826

S# g 2 ; 828 ,    -
Platoon blocked,°/ o

M v ap- 1 Maneuver  ; 3 8' t6 13 7
Mov Cap- 2 Maneuver 583

t g 1  :
Stage 2 828

H I t! cmti al C Cay, s 1,`;  t. 4
HCM LOS B

th.     1;  13+
HCM Lane V/ C Ratio 0. 013      - 0. 168      -      -

FI M t rtfirt l{ 3e1 y j        T;7      -  1.

HCM Lane LOS A      -      B      -      -

J' i
a

o i' Q u 1 ',    ,         =   ., 3',

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
without Project Page 1

168



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
11: Spartan Way/Lathrop Rd & SB Offramp 11- 13- 2019

i      

Lane Configurations

Tra#' i V itu v tt`,;;;: .      <" i '  tJ-  ; 1    6       0  ',       ,  `" '     9.;, . 269;'           12
Future Volume( veh/ h)     0 605 204 415 635 0 0 0 0 269 4 122

Init±al Q{ 3bj, v  fl U   '   t 0  '     U ` 0  '     4 0
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 93

Parkit us, A j,  ;:         . fl    : 0    1. 0   '(   ' . UO  : 1. 00  : 1; 00;    9..{;_  1, fl
Work Zone On Approach No No No

Acy S( ow; r i' r ;,' U,   9 Q    a(?    $ 26   - 88       D       19( Q.'... t U    19UU
Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 0 747 252 512 784 0 332 5 95

P c Fit t` t""     •;,,       f# .:  .; 1 ,  ' t.;.   !'." Y , ' , 1 0.8   1 .   D,' t'
Percent Heavy Veh,%     0 0 0 5 1 0 0 0 0

ap x tl ì  ,.
r       

s.
s  -: .:    4.'   ., ' 1 8 . :      ; 1fl

Arrive On Green 0. 00 0. 27 0. 27 0. 10 0. 21 0. 00 0. 27 0. 27 0. 27

Sa# fil':# li 3. ,:"'* ,  '(   " 1 9,;; .;       4 38' f;

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 0 671 328 512 784 0 432 0 0

r a" t` I, t 1;  "              fi'"   1   ;, 8 15 4  ' fl 0
Q Serve( g_ s), s 0. 0 15. 8 16. 1 26. 3 34. 4 0. 0 21. 9 0. 0 0. 0

rc[ l Tc i  ;   `   p.Q ".,  1;    = 96.    ' r  ' 
1 ..   :  ;   t.      U.fl

Prop In Lane 0. 00 0. 77 1. 00 0. 00 0. 77 0. 22

t, ane( tp G{ r: .  -,        a  "  ' 4 2    $  , ' 8 U  '  1;;     ,;       
V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 00 0. 72 0. 73 0. 93 0. 66 0. 00 0. 93 0. 00 0. 00

A il: ,. , :,,.    "  .    ! 4     3   1.' 8  ;    }  ; 4
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 33 0. 33 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

11p t, F!#'{),.  ,  ;      , Q. b    . U    ! 1A 3   t1t 3    A. 3   ' . OQ ''  1:{'   4.fl 1' r 4.{?n
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 0. 0 29. 7 29. 8 39. 4 26. 8 OA 32. 1 0. 0 0. 0

Cr cr+ 2; a+ `,'       .. 3    .     8    ;' I.     ' C. 3     . t  i 8i i,,     '     t1. 4
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh OA 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 OA 0. 0 0. 0
Q ie s xt     o,    ,     ,    ,    . o     a.    z°    . t`     o.

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
t,r, t . s.s   a.    , a     r. o   t;     , t      ,

LnGrp LOS A C D D C A D A A

APPr l#; ue t,     9,      3296
Approach Delay, s/ veh 36. 1 37. 0 50. 7

Apprt t,'  ,  ,. t  C7        i$

Phs rat c a' 1F,' s,    j,    ` 9 2 7 :, `  .. ,    6' 1:
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 6 4. 6 4. 6

Max Green S ti a s 3t, i    . 4 29, 4 61, 4
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 28. 3 18. 1 23. 9 36. 4

G een c#" i e; a) g s; 1 2,6

Il{'      

t 
r

t

P,'    
f.

w.,, 

HCM 6th LOS D

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
without Project Page 1

169



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
12: NB Offramp & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

t      '                

Lane Configurations

Tra(fic 1 1t i e ju .' A 9 13       fl Q 8 t  ' # Q 2 Q        -'   t Q;      0!       

Future Volume( veh/ h)   141 732 0 0 830 340 220 4 204 0 0 0

initial( Qb> Y f       0    '   U          ;    0       0  ;      -     l 

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 96

Parl ir B,."'       ' .'.} 0".   .{ l    ' 1. 0    1. t   9;    9. t 4  , 1, Ot     1, Q 3 " i  . IU ,

Work Zone On Approach No No No

AdJ sa Fltauv l h ;',.`  : 1    " t'8fip       4    ;   fl , ; 1$ afi.   1S i   94Q  ' 9{}; .  t)U

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 166 861 0 0 976 400 259 5 93

Peak Fl r r f, S    0 83 t; >. A: ' 1. 8a 4.8    3 ;  4: '

Percent Heavy Veh,°/ o 4 2 0 0 3  _     3 0 0 0

Gap. h h:" ',,       '       .';            ,. ,   ;;    83  ;  :, ,'  1

Arrive On Green 0. 05 0. 22 0. 00 0. 00 0. 47 0. 47 0. 23 0. 23 0. 23

Sa# Ittii, it.;       1   k'a 4 9    12'  ',   °   '

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 166 861 0 0 705 671 357 0 0

47 1? Q{'. 7 V+ 7 r1 111t3  ..,. .  ` L 7    ' A     ;.       ::   ,. ';'" fJ.'  .' S2   . / V  -..  ,  '.. , ,, .,,   

Q Serve( g_ s), s 8. 4 18. 4 0. 0 0. 0 31. 7 32. 7 18. 1 0. 0 0. 0

ydeQ ie g r. :`,    r`   l.€     O. 0     .: "; ;,' . 7'    1 3:     , a"> ';

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 60 0. 73 0. 26

t ane P(; r t  °'   i  8       0    ;    : 8 ti   ' '" l6     91  ',     ;     fl

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 63 0. 36 0. 00 0. 00 0. 85 0. 87 0. 91 0. 00 0. 00

l aai p..:; e a.. :., . ..:,.. ..       1    ;  t.., ..,, ,;.. 7 ;  5 7  ,   . k„ ,..;# 

HCM Platoon Ratio 0. 33 0. 33 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

u tr er            t    .    i, 00   ; o.   t;; r    .   a. a  ; r.    , t
Uniform Delay( d), slveh 40. 3 18. 6 0. 0 0. 0 21 A 21. 2 34. 0 0. 0 0. 0

in r a{ r t,,:; . , , ;; 1; 3  :   .     : 4.0    :" 1.(}  .,    1. 4  "  13. 2     3:, i p:( '
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

loUe$ i x t, `  ":,  .     Q. 0 i .( F °,* 7   ',`' 0.    33, 7  '   tl:fl"     k1: 0 '     

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
LnGf s? l la' f; 1 9   : l.    ' . Q    ' (.   ; 1,""   , 3. 6   ; 47. 2  `   : ;   . f ;

LnGrp LOS D B A A C C D A A

APProacl' t t;,:U lhr"  ' '       .       3"(?Z    7.

Approach Delay, s/ veh 22. 6 32. 5 47. 2

ApPt a h 1  . G C, , ,      

Ph ai' ta:{` w:,.      4''. Cl

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6 4. 6    * 4. 6 4. 6

Max Cree i a- s 2. p     * 4      8'

Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 20. 4 10. 4 34. 7 20. 1

re n:' i i°}"  ..      5 4    3.   ;

I7l. r1Y,+ Si'     
k

J. l y;,,.. . . . ...  .. t   .    . . .  .    .  . .

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
H M& r rn r C iig r ir s quai elear nt# i s t e. pt ases ero sin a ner  `:

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 2

170



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan Rd & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

il     f

Lane Configurations

fit C:1/ t 1 at t ta  ."; 17     `  ' ;'  ,,,.,       $ 0    6""!   '',`'.,  5    2 M;    ' 1' l      57
Future Volume( veh/ h)    32 175 470 163 3 80 623 57 5 230 111 57

ini#ial Q( 3b), v , .          0       t       0        0  "     fl '     A ,       t       a       
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)    1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 97

Pat r g u l _  : ;   :   i 1. 0    . Q    ' 1 1Dt3_  , 1. Q  '  1. 4.   : fl =          } ri t3=    1. 00t    9, Qq
Work Zone On Approach No No No

a: w, r .`  ,    t , e t  _ s    a t  ,   + aa t    s    sa
Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 186 500 173 85 663 61 245 118 61
P ak l t° i'   '. ;.. ,,   ;       . 4    f.    4"`;  9   : '  { 1' y t;    0. 4Y t3 94
Percent Heavy Veh,%      4 2 2 1 2 2 4 1 1

lt  :-:';     41   9Q3 ; :; p ° .: , '  1    , 9 '`..  8 r.  ., ..,°   $'`   " if     1
Arrive On Green 0. 14 0. 35 0. 35 0. 06 0. 27 0. 27 0. 17 0. 29 0. 29

Sat V, r;  , ,         _     '   1753 2 7 .  :  .:       `  17  :' 2Bfl,  :  '"`     3 2 l'   1 17

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 186 344 329 85 359 365 245 89 90

r, t,` i°  A;.    r ; as 2
Q Serve( g_ s), s 6. 7 10. 2 10. 3 3. 1 12. 0 12. 1 8. 8 2. 5 2. 7

Cyc1e: r; s.  5. 7    °_ 96, 2 ..;" 1..: 3. 1   ; ."  ,`( s.:     8 i ',     . a:     2, 7

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 53 1. 00 0. 17 1. 00 0. 68

Lar r' a{,. it t .`   2' 1     3       `         ' t 19 48° `  ?. ;  .    '   8    ' 1'    4S
VIC Ratio( X)     0. 77 0. 55 0. 56 0. 77 0. 73 0. 74 0. 82 0. 17 0. 19

ya t, l r  , :.      az    a    .     c     z     :..:    ss
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

l#pstre r, tt'{ t`       1. OU 1. t   ;' 1. i tl   <  1. 00 1: bU;   ` C; 9# ',    1: 0 1, CIt1 1, fl0
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 27. 3 17. 1 17. 2 30. 3 21. 6 21. 6 26. 2 17. 6 17. 7
in rqel y d; r ,, ;     s.2     ( 3; 9  ' ; , C a2.   ;   ,    3: ;  . 5, ,    .     o.
Initial Q Delay(d3), slveh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 OA 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

ile B kk 3' 1a 5,      7 1    ' . 6.       3. 0 8.$      8.'`      7."      1.'      1. 8

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
Ln r' 3 ay{ tl#; v f"         3, 4    t8, 1 i18:   ` 42 7    25. 3  '  , ' 31. 8'   17.8i 17.

LnGrp LOS C B B D C C C B B

Appr a l, a f/ h  .  ,    8a          8U  '    . ':'      i 42;
Approach Delay, s/veh 21. 4 27. 1 25. 9

Appr# L 33".;,    C G

Phs 3irr tt;    .;,`. 3 23.     8:    '",    ;' a: 7`   14.9 :   ::.
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0 4. 5 4. 5 4A 4A
I ax r ex,'`` 11.    27. 5 11. 0    ' S t;    1; 5 1; 5 42.fl  ` ,. '
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 4. 2 4. 7 5. 1 12. 3 10. 8 7. 9 8. 7 14. 1

Gr en t"t#;,.,;,;- : ,'   Q. 1     ; fl.5 0,      <-: :`;;; a 0.5      ?: 6 2,., ;.

n. l      V.    

fr
S"

f
r _

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
User appr tv i s:' 1` rr i: tri u rtt;

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
without Project Page 3

171



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan Rd & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

Lane Configurations

Tt àf C C I si hj , v.    ; I,    : 9   

Future Volume( veh/ h)    55 80 160

Initial Cl{ Qb), veh U     '  

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 0. 95

Parking us, j 1. t     . 0 1. OU

Work Zone On Approach No

Adj Sat' l v;' velt In ' `       1    184    1841

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 59 85 143

Pe k+ r'F ac`     ;;;: :.   : A:    t1 94 Q, 9

Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 4 4

pa(#     i"    2

Arrive On Green 0. 05 0. 16 0. 16           

Saf Ia r,+>°..  ,  ,,`,  . t :`= 1 9 148  , `          '  

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 59 85 143

C rp' a,", 5; 11`,      :.,` 7 3    1    1 4$ 7

Q Seroe( g_ s), s 2. 2 2. 8 5. 9

GyCle t,' - ; 2. 8     ; . 9

Prop In Lane 1. 00 1. 00

I ne Gi-(;, r f 9 r,.; i 8     276 235

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 67 0. 31 0. 61

Avail 4;}.. . ww  ., ;     4 U     7

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

upstr ar    o     . op

Uniform Delay( d), s/veh 30. 6 24. 4 25. 7

incr 1 1 Y i 1, 1t .  s.      ` l;f:.     ,     .

Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

Joi1e fi  `    2,     '. 1 3, 8

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
Lr C1p e a}i, ll' i ' 25.     28,3
LnGrp LOS D C C

APArt a ii v,: „  287

Approach Delay, s/ veh 29. 9

Apprti h. 3`'"` G

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 4

172



HCM 6th TWSC

7: Harlan & Old Harlan 11- 13- 2019

Int Delay, s/ veh 1. 9

Lane Configurations          

Traff+ Vol, v':MPh 2t1 1    23  ` 4 5 3tltl 1$  '

Future Vol, veh/ h 20 113 23 445 300 18

Cor fli ih{ ed,# Ih"r  .: =.   '      '' t          0 I   0  

Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free

F; T Ch ahn y.          k s I e     - or    - i Nane

Storage Length 0      -     75      -      -      -

Ueh itt' l' i' 1,,.  -   v.

Grade,%  0      -      -      0 0      -     

alt+ ur r,     4 7:; ;'      .° 97 97 i   7    

Heavy Vehicles,% 2 2     2 4 4 2

Yt l t4t , _     .-;, . ,   
r     ?

7 !  : 1  "

Conflicting Flow All 597 319 328 0      -      0

g, 
Stage 2 278      -      -      -      -      -

Ctiti 1` ltiwy  ,     : , i2  : 1     

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5. 43      -      -      -      -      -

Cri#Geal; wy 5" :  ,: 3.

Follow- up Hdwy 3. 519 3. 319 2. 219

Pot Cap-1 I ne vet'   '   ' 1 1  ' 2     
Stage 1 736      _      

g 2,; .     7    ,

Platoon blocked, %

Mc v i1 ri ca i°   14.1,   ' 1 123U

Mov Cap- 2 Manewer 441

S ge`   
Stage 2 745

HC` i T 1  .: I' ` a

HCM LOS B

apacif{ v il}      i 2̀( 3 58'
HCM Lane V/ C Ratio 0. 019      - 0. 208

HCI C ritr 1e+' j:  ".`          -   11. 9=

HCM Lane LOS A      -     B      -      

MCM 9 t t'°7 i u h ,"   , '      _.   .$      -

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 1

173



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
11: Spartan Way/ Lathrop Rd & SB Offramp 11- 13- 2019

l          i      

Lane Configurations

Tr f' iC; t u; `;  "       ..': r'   2Q    26! -,; 6'        0  :   . .     '   ° . i  47t .    8:     26
Future Volume( veh/ h)     0 654 200 267 761 0 0 0 0 470 8 226

Init al G Qb, el .     E 0    '         t?   ,    t"       0   p       p
Ped- Bike Adj(A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0.96

Park9ag us, A j      , ,  .        ,( I    ' 1r00   ;; 1. Q  ._ 1, U     . 00  ;       '     I. UU'    1, OU 1. t#4
Work Zone On Approach No No No

a 1> v h# ti n,          ` p   1 1D    9 Q    1`$ 1   ` 3 7 b        19    9Ut1    19Q

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 0 719 220 293 836 0 516 9 199

1 a,s     , w  " , 9   .    c: s     o a.
Percent Heavy Veh,%     0 0 0 8 2 0 0 0 0

p, v t l#."      97'     6  ;' k`.       b',      9     24
Arrive On Green 0. 00 0. 25 0. 25 0. 29 0. 59 0. 00 0. 43 0. 43 0. 43

at F, u l' 1#;. I' 3   t 9 "''; 1,`:`    i       27;     4'

Grp Volume( v), vehlh 0 628 311 293 836 0 724       0       0

Crp it. t, lt iri' ` 2    685    '' 96':  .           
s       `

I  72'?       p 0
Q Seroe( g_ s), s 0. 0 15. 0 15. 3 13. 4 30. 1 0. 0 37. 2 0. 0 0. 0

CycleQ, Cl r{.), s .' t:     1s.     1;     3t' 1;     t1. 0 7'.      4;Q D. 0
Prop In Lane 0. 00 0. 71 1. 00 0. 00 0. 71 0. 27

L„ t far P`, u li 19 4$;,. ' 1 9!'° r 0 fl
V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 00 0. 73 0. 74 0. 60 0. 76 0. 00 0. 98 0. 00 0. 00

Avail p;,: ,.. r
n  i t t?    , i     41    _$ 8 1fl4..          t=       

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

YM

1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

u scr am, t      ti     . ot     , o     t; s o. s c. o c    o.     o,00
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 0. 0 31. 0 31. 1 27. 7 13. 9 OA 25. 5 OA 0. 0

tncr el{#+ t :..  , :  ?;?     ', 4    1A, 2   '' 4.   ;  1, 3     t.  ,';  2: i     t1, 0'     {, t
Initial Q Delay(d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 OA 0. 0
lo(leB l t4°' ICi      '( J, i    '',?    1,#3    7,3   ' x      Q. i  '  21,''     C1. 0::     , Q

Unsig. Movement Delay, slveh
LttCt` t el t{; r i   ` fl:3 3 i,4 42. 3     8. 1    ;, 3      (. 0  '  54.' f '    . tii.     0. t

LnGrp LOS A D D C B A D A A

PRroaCh Uc l v lii   ' 9      1129   '' 72A;
Approach Delay, s/ veh 38. 4 18. 6 54. 1

Appr t L D         k t,

r,s c`,     ' a   : i    t    
Change Period( Y+ Rc), S 4. 6    * 4. 6 4. 6 4. 6
Max i:'' i),   d     '' 2 38.4 4, 4
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 15. 4 17. 3 39. 2 32. 1

Gree t'+... ..  ; t     ; 3 4;:  :;         2.5   '   

14 IV!'+.,   

r"' x .  
r r i;,       ,

d,

s„   ,.,   .;.   r,

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
HCM a tFt c tnp t art lr r t i; equ l cleat nce ir r# a. ses r ssirig the Eiarr er   

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
without Project Page 1

174



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
12: NB Offramp & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

Lane Configurations

ra ic VQlu t{ v il a), -,..` ,    18,            C3    '   t     75fl.  ;  34£  :  2  ,     '     0
Future Volume( veh/ h)   184 940 0 0 750 340 278 7 502 0 0 0

Initi l{( k)> t h      .,  0    '-   U " ';    0 Q '
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 98 1. 00 0. 98

Parkirl u; j   '. ,,     . 4 4     . UO    . t    " I. i Q    1, 4t    1.  '  1. t    ': Q  9. 4 '
Work Zone On Approach No No No

A j 5at F 1,+ lalh.,;;     .,.    l8s    :   4   ;,.     , s85    1 8  _ 1 t1  ,  9t U   9 t3 
Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 194 989 0 0 789 358 293 7 396

P ak?'< f' r:( 1:    0.95    .  '° w9  ; , 5  ` i 9'  t::,  ""   

Percent Heavy Veh,%     3 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

a," v t h          r    ,. .,;    4    '  t        ,: 12     a    ''     ;;,. . .`..;      

Arrive On Green 0. 11 0. 69 0. 00 0. 00 0. 54 0. 54 0. 40 0. 40 0. 40

S# i wa V;
t f",`  3 a7 :     ` '      .   7    1 6  '  1 3'     ':''" ,''w  .

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 194 989 0 0 594 553 696 0 0

Grp t l V{; ar l;ti       .    1799    ;   t    1 91 1 4 16fi{  ';     ';      .`
Q Serve( g_ s), s 10. 1 10. 7 0. 0 0. 0 21. 1 21. 2 36. 4 0. 0 OA

Y l 1'.
r'., . , : r    9Qa      O, A     :   ; 1. 1  I 9. 2   36    :'   , t-;`

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 65 0. 42 0. 57

r F x'; 4    '   tl    '.  "{ I   ; 9 i2    93    f6  '     1:    = 1;; .°:.   

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 96 0. 40 0. 00 0. 00 0. 62 0. 62 1. 05 0. 00 0. 00

A it i; b1:,.,..       ,   ?$    ;'.    ;  , t   i 9ki2     89    6..,      .,; , ,.:: x .. ,    

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Up`` i1    tF '    , 61    ' 0.0(    ,   ; . U     1. OU    1. t    .( l ;  ,'.. 

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 40. 6 5. 9 0. 0 0. 0 14. 8 14. 8 27. 8 0. 0 0. 0

IncrC' 1); 1 .     `:;     . 3     , t    ' . 4   ,  3.n     3, 2    4. 8      °;; 
Initial Q Delay(d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

ate a n :,',, 7    ;.$    ; , 4    ' t; fl    13.   1. 8  ` 31.  '   ; ;.   .  

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
Lt t C1 1; i , 

a      

a    6.2    ' 3, 4     4,(   '' i. Z    1 3.   ; 77,6     t:" '    

LnGrp LOS E A A A B B F A A

Ap roa c̀t lA, r lt  .'  , .    1 183 9 47   i ;

Approach Delay, s/ veh 18. 2 17. 9 77. 6

Appro i ;    B

ans r`""     s. c      t      ,,.

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6 4. 0 4. 6 4. 6

Max t te' t g t   -, A4. a 1.    32,      3f .
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 12. 7 12. 1 23. 2 38. 4

Gr et xt"T fi i p.,.- .       4, 2 3.' i       Q F. 

4ViY1' 71{ U`#, rir l,'
T:" aya,„"% s re^

r', r:^'      

Ci
y   /

r^':,sy,:,      .     . .   .

HCM 6th LOS       C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

without Project Page 2

175



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

r     ,
f          il     I       `

Lane Configurations

3raf#`i- if I at? lh),  1    , 2    ; 778    I  . :    2 942    5  '          9  8.   1     1

Future Volume( veh/ h)    60 260 778 240 2 102 550 59 9 285 195 148

IriitiaCt({ b), veh fl    ;   0   '    U Q  `     { 9 0 0 0 0
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)     1. 00 0. 99 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 99

Park n s, f 3 ,            fl0   . QQ    1, 7  ° 1. 00  >  1 Ot  I 1. 1A    1.{} 0,    1: fl0
Work Zone On Approach No No No

Adj,S#' w, u J(., .    `;       885    8$    1885 1 ti0  ; . 190   ( 9p ' 1$ 7fl'   187   187Q

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 268 802 247 105 567 51 294 201 153

Peak`;"'. , . ;;:       97 t, l  .};.   p, 97 q`97    3. ",'-.     ,   i. 97'   , 97;    n.9

Percent Heavy Veh,%      1 1 1 0 0 0 2 2 2

f s p, t '; .  37$    i 9 3   ; 3,..; .    ;  13S  ' .'„ ; , r`'' 7`# ', 34$:    7';    33
Arrive On Green 0. 21 0. 37 0. 37 0. 08 0. 23 0. 23 0. 20 0. 24 0. 24

t. Ji+ t s1;   - r., 1 5 2 i 4 6 ,,.,;  81fl 33° '   °;,:; , :      °'" 8' 1 .  196    ' 14't0

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 268 534 515 105 306 312 294 181 173

Grp Sa ar s; r hlh ' ;;    fiZ    179    7 '  98' 10    l8  ; ,  1$ 1 ,   17 7'   1a93

Q Serve( g_ s), s 10. 2 19. 9 19. 9 4. 2 11. 6 11. 6 11. 7 6. 4 6. 8

Cyt. t C{, b. z`. .  .      4.2    `.' 49. 9 1, ;.        4,2   1'.  .,  '.    1. 7' '     6.4     6.

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 48 1. 00 0. 16 1. 00 0. 89

L.ane, 1.: .    ; 376    ' 655    ' f_'  138    4 9   " B : 8:    42     38Q
V/ C Ratio( X)     0. 71 0. 82 0. 82 0. 76 0. 73 0. 73 0. 85 0. 43 0. 46

A t il a; 1#a-;  ,     729   4fi    ; 9' lh  ,;         3A 3    8   a" '; 762    3 i     7 4
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Upstre F It r t)`: . .. 1. UU   1A0    ` 1, Q I  ` 1, 00  '  1, U   ', t fl , UD     . 00;,    1, 0
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 27. 1 21. 2 21. 2 33. 5 26. 2 26. 2 28. 6 23. 9 24. 0

Incr i 1('..:;.       3,4    ' 4.     ;    1U. 1      3. 7  '  3; '     S. 7 '    . 7     U.8
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

laile# 3 c C(` a° Y a ,     8.?     13. 2    1'   9 8. 5 i   . Q, '     g, 1'    4.7:     4.

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
rtGt a t 3'"'.     ;' 3t?.2    5.3    ! 2:   - 43. 5   29.J    : :       `   34.3   24, a:    2

LnGrp LOS C C C D C C C C C

1 ppro t r 1 :=, 317 723  '      648;       

Approach Delay, s/ veh 26. 4 31. 9 29. 1

t\ppr ctt;`, ,; -:       C C;

Phs i r t ta;' y`  -`  : 1 ,   : 1 9.6    ' 3',    1: 9   ''° 1: 3 1.'  '  °':
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 5 4. 0 4A 4. 5 4. 5 4. 0 4A

Max Creen: ar a,. s:  BA    4,5    : 14, 0    3.    3.     1.   U. tD  '  . :
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 7. 4 8. 8 6. 2 21. 9 13. 7 7. 1 12. 2 13. 6

Gree t;
M.,°!;` :   

1, 2     ;" f. 2     I. 4     ,'. :, .  .  ?. 6     3,      f:: .

V Y1 V 41,
Y.       

LW

kA

i. .         

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
User apprt v a I`;i nin triav m nt

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
without Project Page 3

176



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

Lane Configurations

Craff t̀C l rl' t8 rtet '       ; 8" ` ; 1$    ', i' tU   
Future Volume( veh/ h)   128 148 110

n# ial{( t ta, v       0'   >  

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 0. 96 _

Parkint, Adj i.t10    : 1. 40 1. OD    `

Work Zone On Approach No

Adj Sat Flow, v lhllr  "       18 1 187U 187t   `

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 132 153 87

Pe. lt# i r c# r`      fl,''    7    ; U, 7

Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 2 2

Ca, th 9?     156
Arrive On Green 0. 10 0. 13 0. 13

Sa F avu°:       7 117       
m,,., t._ „       .:- ,:    

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 132 121 119

Grp Sa#Fk u s};v tiaf n;       J' 7.;  :' 7    1642
Q Serve( g_ s), s 5. 4 4. 7 5. 1

Cycle Q C1'( c}, s  5. 1

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 73

Larre Gr p(c}, v 17     : 237 213
V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 78 0. 51 0. 56

A ai#Cap{ ca),v hth.   3     4 3 399
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

t pstr r' t 1= i1) .    Q    . OtI r 1, 40

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 32. 6 29. 8 30. 0

Incr 1ay( d j, sJkt tt-=  ' 3-    ` 1     2, 3
Initial Q Delay(d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 OA

1o11e B k( 9° lo; v 1-.      4.      3 7     3. 7

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
l. nGrp p lay tl}, v h   '       91:    ' 1. 5 32. 2
LnGrp LOS D C C

Apprr a 1, eh'fh  '   3?2
Approach Delay, s/veh 35. 3

P ach Lfl.'    t

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
without Project Page 4

177



HCM 6th TWSC

7: Harlan & Old Harlan 11- 13- 2019

Int Delay, s/ veh 2. 7

Lane Configurations          

Traf c 1; u lh 1    24 23A 1 4;   23
Future Vol, veh/ h 2 124 24 230 150 23

Cot i t+r g F' es, tr  ,..  J     -    t3 t     A =      :
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free

FtT Chat 1 r .   ;- Nane      -  NQn  ;

Storage Length 0 75      _      _
Vefi' tr 1f lia'rt tti,  , `` ' U      
Grade,%  0      -      -      0 0      _

Peak Wvur' ,       , , ' r        8A S4    

Heavy Vehicles,% 0 5 0 4 6 2

Mv tFl 1 I ' 9   2     .'; 

Conflicting Flow All 388 193 206 0      -      0

Sf' 1

Stage 2 195      -      -      -      -      _    

Cr`ti f-(d r  ;       I . i   4: 1      -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5. 4      -      -      -

r ica l dwy" 9 2    ; :$,. 
Follow- up Hdwy 3. 5 3. 3475 2. 2      -      _      _      

Pot Cap 1 I tie rer 8 6,  8 " 137
Stage 1 845      _     

ag'      . ;    -
Platoon blocked,%       

t ov p 9 Jan+ ter  <.   $ 39, 13?7
Mov Cap- 2 Maneuver 593      _     

S ag i 8 1
Stage 2 825      _     

MCit l Cti ttrt l' jr,s   ' f. 3,;` '  `  ' t, 7

HCM LOS B

CaPa'# Y       1""'  4'
HCM Lane V/ C Ratio 0. 021      -   0. 18      -      -

F( IvlCtmtro fi l+) ;      , 7     -   9tf. 3

HCM Lane LOS A      _      B

HCM 9 th° l ile veti ;      '` fl,      -   t. Z

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 1

178



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
11: Spartan Way/ Lathrop Rd & SB Offramp 11- 13- 2019

t      

Lane Configurations

7`[ a l IU i, YJhi .. ;        t., . , 3      8     4  : * 2fi  ,'    tl  ;    J ` '- ,. , , ,  , 1<   8   . a`"     7
Future Volume( veh/ h)     0 437 87 414 528 0 0 0 0 268 5 75

Initi l Q( lb} 3 h D    '  0              U 0  '       0;       (}`       
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 93

Park3 g u, Ar    1:{ 0 "  1.{ 10 1. Q{    ', 1    1, UU   9, Ufl   1. t}0'   1. Dtl-    ' I, Op.
Work Zone On Approach No No No

Adj Sa Iv i, hlJ ln: ::;,             90A    9{    1 6  , 1$ 8       Q  ',    19 10   1 Otla 99t tI
Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 0 560 112 531 677 0 344 6 38

Fe H ur r t1. 78 0,"  `' S `  - fl.7    Q, 7 9;    0. 8
Percent Heavy Veh,%     0 0 0 5 1 0 0 0 0

ap, uetal .       3     .        ' t tl .      41;.
Arrive On Green 0. 00 0. 29 0. 29 0. 11 0. 22 0. 00 0. 24 0. 24 0. 24

u l i t:`   a        ;: 1',  . 8 a,       I  ,       a.;',   :    `'     17 t
Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 0 443 229 531 677 0 388 0 0

Grp t loi t u P t'=     `  `    17    17' 8, .,  , 1 5 Q t:       G
Q Serve( g_ s), s 0. 0 9. 4 9. 6 27. 3 28. 7 0. 0 19. 2 0. 0 0. 0

yc r, .," r.  <  .  ' fii"'   ; 9,4       :`";.,, ; 2$. 7     : U  .    3      . f
Prop In Lane 0. 00 0. 49 1. 00 0. 00 0. 89 0. 10

L rr B i' P,; Jt;;; ,   , fl 9{ 04    5, ,`: f;;  ' 1 4       U  ' 1,      ;      t
V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 00 0. 44 0. 45 0. 94 0. 54 0. 00 0. 92 0. 00 0. 00

Auail{ ret `:,  . :   ; J"    OQ4    ! . .;, t   1   ;      ::       fl
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 33 0. 33 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Ups re m Fi'     x   , tID   1 3    ; 1;   A. a9    , 44   ;  f: 3   1.';    Q. O
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 0. 0 26. 0 26. 1 39. 3 23. 2 0. 0 33. 5 0. 0 0. 0

Incrfi: l. ";, r`;.,    f.     1. 4    " 2.  . ":, 4     1. 1 i1,(  i 1,' 1 ..  t, t},     0.
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 OA 0. 0 OA 0. 0

fa e eac v     : p: t     .   ` r.    a:     , a     o. o       9; 5     ,      o.
Unsig. Movement Delay, slveh
LnGrp 3e1a j; r ,. , fl 27.4    2.    ' 4: 7 2. 2 fl: U  ,`     0.

LnGrp LOS A C C D C A D A A

p o h x r tt1   ,°. 7   20$  ;   3$`
Approach Delay, s/ veh 27. 9 37. 6 52. 6

APPrc ch:( 3:=    C p p,

Phs 3iir.,',     :    3t, 7 4:4 3     ;

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 6 4. 6 4. 6

Max r r r   3t3.     21. 4 2. 4 55.4   '
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 29. 3 11. 6 21. 2 30. 7

Greer#' i ir;;:,.  '- .. n .    1. 8          ;, 1.,    2,4  ; .    

1. i' 4,.       71.  
a,,.      , ur,"

i  

HCM 6th LOS D

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 1

179



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
12: NB Offramp & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

t                1      

Lane Configurations

t ffi lftrlu't2tie r t1 t ""      .:' f°   : 2    !   t,  i fl":: ""°' 3"' i    ,.";    " ;   1.       t:;,        .     l
Future Volume( veh/ h)    51 629 0 0 786 326 156 2 214 0 0 0

Initial Q j{ b), ve#  tf    ';   } U       { I,  ;    fl  ,     0 fl '      Q
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 95

Parkir f j t' t 1.( f    '. tlt  . : 1, t ti  ' ' I; flA   1, fl0  `  1 U, ,_  ': fl;   3, 4;
Work Zone On Approach No No No

f d' S FtaY, 11 11ti „;      4'#.  ` T 1       CI    ' : 9 5 i   8v6  '.   .  '. 9t f,  " 19Q  

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 61 758 0 0 947 393 188 2 107

P ak: r c r      ;     r :;    '    
4, 8    ,   `   ' q.  '  C1,  ';' :    t '    =;:

Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 2 0 0 3 3 0 0 0

ap; r# 1# ,. : 7   ; 99 4   ;  ., ' l 8. ';   ',          h   '" l;:
Arrive On Green 0. 06 0. 23 0. 00 0. 00 0. 47 0. 47 0. 19 0. 19 0. 19

Sat Fl> r i .     f` 3,'  •. i    ;   t ,  `  ,,„
w;.'   

9:;;' ` l'.      ." ° . ,'

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 61 758 0 0 688 652 297 0 0

Gr at; w s ht it# a:  .     7,    7' 7      , t3         ' #  :' 16. 6 1#°'    '     .   t?:. . . '. `:
Q Serve( g_ s), s 3. 0 15. 9 0. 0 0. 0 30. 4 31. 3 15. 3 0. 0 OA

Cycle( C e r{_;, ja: s ;  C},    1:      4.#3         ;, 4    1:     1`, 3      ; :   :';
s.,.

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 60 0. 63 0. 36

Lan: s{, ret l:,  J  `     49 U       :',   8     775  ';  33  '            ° t
VIC Ratio( X)    0. 19 0. 30 0. 00 0. 00 0. 83 0. 84 0. 90 0. 00 0. 00

raii 4:.., vefi;<     y; 3 >     ;   t  ..;  . .,,;# 3    ' 7'     53'.      ,  ,== '
HCM Platoon Ratio 0. 33 0. 33 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

lips r F 3lter:" -   Q. S .   ,`$ 5"   O, Ot   ':  "•, t3 1: 4     .  :  f?, ;  i:

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 36. 1 16. 3 0. 0 0. 0 20. 6 20. 9 35. 4 0. 0 0. 0

in rC) el+( i2 i+ 1; .  ,` ; 4 1     ; b:      #. 0     t y ;' i      1 5. 7     7: 3     tt.t ;   =' ,
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 OA

loile£ 3 t S°,! h,;   % 2:     7     t.    ; { 3'=' 9:8...   39,4     11:     . t :   f;.- 

Unsig. Movement Delay, slveh
Lr irpb lay; i"`.  - `` 6,     , 6     1, t   ' :;   {:   ; 34. 6  ' 2t  `   t,    A ' "

LnGrp LOS D B A A C C D A A

APproaich` 1% I,"+ a h r , i 8'-      9, ; ;
Approach Delay, slveh 18. 1 30. 7 42. 7

P,ppro t t. 3-;. . B

Phs t?tt i' i+'`;  ` ;::  ..,   ; 6 B 2 r'  ' 47:-  ,     
t    .`- z      ,

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6 4. 6    * 4. 6 4. 6 ;:       ;

Nlax rs n, e„)    52.       t     * 42
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 17. 9 5. 0 33. 3 17. 3

Gr n ct"T a>.,: a„;,„      3.0 i{      3.       ft;;2

HG! t i# ",`  
z

w.._    

2 p
HCM 6th LOS  C      

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
HCM: t pt k i i t l` uir s` qtta! Cl a"r nc# i tt es crossing# he:b t r.'-' '       ,

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 2

180



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan Rd & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

fi     

Lane Configurations

t f 1i[ r`( ve  8  .. ' 17    37"t   ', 50     2   '   79  '  4 w.   3     A:   ' l-:  '      5
Future Volume( veh/ h)    80 179 371 150 2 71 542 34 4 218 93 52

Ini#ial t  "`  ` 0    `   fl       ( 1   ' I 0 `     0 .'     0_ Ct;       (       0
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)     1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 97

Parkir us, A        1. 00 .  ;'[. 4 1;{ >  1. 30  '  1 O 1  '  " l, flt : .         9, i1   . 4'    9. 0
Work Zone On Approach No No No

Adj Sa lp€;+ t? It;: 1841 187 , " 18' f    1 5   1 7C    ' 87i1     8 1,   1885 988

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 192 399 161 76 583 37 234 100 56

f a14' l e t` _"     r9    U:93 ,'  , 9   4. 93  ; , '  ::#,   `.  ' {> J"  ",    . 93
Percent Heavy Veh,%      4 2 2 1 2 2 4 1 1

Cap .  a  ..      t   , ;$ 4"   i ':.' 1 6  '  $";,;:  ', a.    39
Arrive On Green        0. 14 0. 34 0. 34 0. 06 0. 26 0. 26 0. 17 0. 28 0. 28

Satf t,. te i#~', w . : ,   :.       °  1"* 3  . 2 6{9     3;.  ',; 1795  ; " 33 a°    ', 1 6

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 192 287 273 76 306 314 234 78 78

Grpa a# 175    17 7    '     179    " 17" ; " 1 '   1``'   "! 7J' i'    1631'
Q Serve( g_ s), s 6. 5 7. 8 8. 0 2. 6 9. 5 9. 6 8. 0 2A 2.2
C Q J,      .  ; 6.      7.    , $, t?   2. 6     ,     9, -  2,U     2.

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 59 1. 00 0. 12 1. 00 0. 72

t ar. Pf` i       ?, 5t    6i}7     ' 7`   1fl6  . . 4    . '       '   ,    l8:    46
V/ C Ratio( X)     0. 77 0. 47 0. 48 0. 72 0. 67 0. 67 0. 81 0. 15 0. 17

A+t il,,; v l-;,..,- „   1189 1 fl    9 399 6# 1- :  7„ ;;;  -.       ifl.    796'     724
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

I ps re ilt r'            1A0    1.     . OQ 1. 3    1. Q     , 1U    Is ,  1. Q   1. 0
Uniform Delay( d), slveh 25. 5 16A 16. 1 28. 6 20. 6 20. 6 24. 9 16. 6 16. 7

incr 4,'^   , 5. 8    ! € l.7 q.   9 0. 5  `   ,(  ;  ' ,     3:;     a1     0.
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

I i1eE; u 1r t't  "    S. 3      . 4     5,2   '          2.4     7: t1  '_   .      6,3`     1. 4     1. 4
Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
Ln i e!}; s v E :.     ,    4    ' 16. 7    ' 6,   =  39. 1 22. i    2, 6 3,'    16. 7:    '. 9

LnGrp LOS C B B D C C C B B

APPt i iGh 2l, V J..; ;;. ..       7      G 6       3 J
Approach Delay, s/ veh 20. 5 24. 4 24. 9

pP'(.':     C

Ph` t`"'       `,","#    2.' 1      7.   `` S"  , ` 14:fi    14;4    2 8     '':
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0 4. 5 4. 5 4. 0 4A

M r er; x x'. s   ' I"; 1 27. 5 11.    4, iS    :    ' 16. 5   ` 42. t?    2; t
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 3. 9 4. 2 4. 6 10. 0 10. 0 7. 4 8. 5 11. 6

Gr ta tt''..; t.  :;. `  :: 1     : 5    ' fl,1    ; ;   ': 9 4     4:     3; 7  :   2 2` 

HC``       2.;    
E

k  .  
o, . . 

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
l s r a r s r t` J": i i uer t. .

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 3

181



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan Rd & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

Lane Configurations

Tr f#'ic:1 41t t t;.;,,  " , :°  ' 89    i! 15  '

Future Volume( veh/ h)    51 81 155

ni#ia! r
h

r  ,  

0 p 0   

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 0. 95

Pa king u, Ad 1. 0     1, 00 9. Q

Work Zone On Approach No

Adj' t tt a t,.v j  41 1$ 41    ' 184" I

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 55 87 140

Pe c``',, ` fl»    0,9     Q. 93.

Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 4 4

G pF` :- `,,           :  ° :  ,$ 0    ' 2,3̀8   

Arrive On Green 0. 05 0. 16 0. 16

S t l w,  , M,7,.  :' 17'49 145   

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 55 87 140

GrP!:,     1    749 1 488 . ".
Q Serve( g_ s), s 1. 9 2. 7 5. 4   _

Cyc4e t; s  ,,    „- ; q 9.   ' 2,'     . 4    '

Prop In Lane 1. 00 1. 00

Lan Ca,# 1 :..            ; 28     238

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 64 0. 31 0. 59

Aua l,:., r-,,;>   ,_ 1.,, , 466 38Z    

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Ups#t am tts'{ Ij 1, f    1. 00 1. 04

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 28. 9 23. 0 24. 1

Inc'
z';, ;       ; 8.     ; n, 6     2 3

Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 OA

ile Ba kC I m l i 9, 8     ' 2. 0    ; 3, 5

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
Ln rp l d:,     , 37.8    3.6    ; 8,          

LnGrp LOS D C C

APpr h, at' t    ?.  ;:    2$2
Approach Delay, s/ veh 27. 8

ppt h, C

Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 4

182



HCM 6th TWSC

7: Harlan & Old Harlan 11- 13- 2019

Int Delay, s/ veh 2. 3

Lane Configurations      ''    r

T af e 11p1, vehlh 2   9 5 32 378 2 7 '   42

Future Vol, veh/ h 20 125 32 378 257 42

Cc rafli{ ing P d,# tr   ,  t?      p                 ( :    

Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free

R7 Ghar' ix ti t on;   - I l r e'      - 1  ;

Storage Length`    0 75      _      _      _
Veh in- di n`,,  . , 

Grade,%  0      -      -      0 0      -

Peak F c3t`. t r 7    ;    9    7     .  ..;

Heavy Vehicles,% 2 2 2 4 4 2

Mum law 9    3   39   2   >::,            

Conflicting Flow All 548 287 308 0      -      0

a' ge' 1 "  
Stage 2 261  .  .

C: r' ti liH wy  tr  ; 23 4.' 3   -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5. 43      -      -      -      -      -

riti al: M w+ Sti .    .    
Follow- up Hdwy 3. 519 3. 319 2. 219

Pot Cap=1 lane ver `   18   7'51 1251      -     
Stage 1 761  _   _    

St ge  76C
Platoon blocked, %      

M v Cap-# M rteuver 4   7' 1 12' 1
Mov Cap- 2 Maneuver 469    , 

tage  '.     .  '';,   .

Stage 2 760      _      _      _     

n., e..

a ,;.,, ,

F C M fit tttt'aal` t e s" a. 

HCM LOS B

Cap city( i tilh) 1,:      w   .- . .,,..       .

r..,.      M 
t  

5.

HCM Lane V/ C Ratio 0. 026      - 0. 216      -      -

ICMGontr t ay( s  :       ; 8     w   1.`

HCM Lane LOS A      -      B      _      _

HCM 9 h% tile Q k  ! 1,   f,

Existing PM Peak hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 1

183



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
11: Spartan Way/ Lathrop Rd & SB Offramp 11- 13- 2019

t               `    

Lane Configurations r

Tr' r i 1" e#'`. . „.      ,   ' f    `  3.    2 3 .  : 3 ',    Q  ; . :; : :"          77      1fl`      8

Future Volume( veh/ h)     0 320 38 263 350 0 0 0 0 477 10 86

lnitiaf Q{ Qb), a eh 4    >  0   '    0   ;    4       ,  '     t3 fl 0 0
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 95

Park ng s, 1  ; `   :   ' t;, , ' l, t1    1. Q4    1. Qq ; 1:   < ' 1. UQ  '°      1. OU    1. OQ    1. Qt

Work Zone On Approach No No No

AdJ# F quv; v h/ til n    t1   ' l9QO    9U    T$   ;$ 7t       4  !  19U{ l;   194Q'    180U
Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 0 360 43 296 393 0 536 11 46

I e k 1^ c ur;     Q; ;, 9  •  " U. 89 ,  ! 4. ';;`;}    t. 75  >  i;   t. 39 t: 89-    ( 3, 8fl
Percent Heavy Veh,°/ a 0 0 0 8 2 0 0 0 0

Cap, v la ` v.   ; 5 8      S   '  ':" tfl'     tt  ' 1     .       
Arrive On Green 0. 00 0. 13 0. 13 0. 37 0. 55 0. 00 0. 35 0. 35 0. 35

a# low t i;  , , ' ?      ..; `" 487'     ` I 16',,.`:._,        ,       16". ,     3:     139

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 0 262 141 296 393 0 593 0 0

Grp Sa 1) l r';    t......:  `..', 7    18' I 169''   8 b   '':    4  ;  1Z8',       t

Q Serve( g_ s), s OA 6. 5 6. 7 12. 0 10. 8 0. 0 29. 1 0. 0 0. 0

Cycle Q lear`.; s  ;    ,. t 9w     6. 5    , F.?     ' 2 ;,`:°+:    tt,U  '  3,     ,{?     t. t?

Prop In Lane 0. 00 0. 31 1. 00 0. 00 0. 90 0. 08

Lane C r P r : 38    2 8      ,;# t   ';    fl  `  A,       U;       (

VIC Ratio( X)    0. 00 0. 60 0. 62 0. 47 0. 38 0. 00 0. 95 0. 00 0. 00

uail ap( u h; :  438    ; 2$     a' 3'  ,': C 25 0 41 4 Q
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Upstrearn F 1# rjl,      t}0    '" I. QU    {.,    Q 78 a. D( l  '  1. pt3 O. OQ    fl,OQ
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 0. 0 37. 1 37. 2 21. 6 11. 6 OA 28. 5 0. 0 0. 0

In r Uel y( j,° a."; a:9    13. 9      :` i ;    . fl  .:  15:    . Q'     U. 4
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 OA OA 0. 0 0. 0 OA 0. 0 0. 0

f i1 B kt' l,a?  .  :. a. C3     i 5. 5     5.5      ,." - ..     0.   20, 7     ( 1?'     0;

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
I. P sf, ;''-   °" ' , f    # 3 1    ; 4, 1   : 21::'> 1',   ; . 0  ,  43     3, 0     4. R

LnGrp LOS A D D C B A D A A

7 pProac#t Ca:` i _    .          4t1   i$'  a 3'
Approach Delay, slveh 45. 2 16. 5 43. 5

lppro it L.; D p

Phs t7 icr t9` w ' , ,. ..'` .    53,9  '   
Change Periotl( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6    ' 4. 6 4. 6 4. 6

Max re n g ax.. 2 sfl     ` 11 2.    3E.4

Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 14. 0 8. 7 31. 1 12. 8

Gr et t t t;` A r:> r      =; 1. 1     0,4 Q$ .:;`" .`      9,  

HC lI 6#h"' t 3: 
d   s

HCM 6th LOS       „   

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
HCM Gtii c t p[ vr l  "   qiii s. al cl e r ncs i e: ii a es cr ssing barri r:

Existing PM Peak hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 1

184



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
12: NB Offramp & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

t               '    "* 1

Lane Configurations

Tra i 1z re v t3  ': 38   '   0  " '   p .,.; '.    2"12      3fi-     `!;  r' , .    ,  ,    @,       

Future Volume( vehlh)    29 768 0 0 571 272 36 2 508 0 0 0

Initda#t({ t); t .. '   4    {  0      fl   ;;  Q      U  ,     U       0'

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 98 1. 00 0. 98

Parki r us I.     9. Q0    (    1. Q0     . 0   , 1-aU0    -,(     1.  !  ": C1    , t} 

Work Zone On Approach No No No

A j 5at t W u,! 1` n. y 1 6    $$      0   '   0   '# 8 5   1885    19t t1   19{ A ' , 9QD ,'

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 31 817 0 0 607 289 38 2 407

P a} i Ur r  ,  ;  :,= ;  4   ': 94    (. 9    `. 83    ;` .   t. A t}.':    ,, ;  ,!„ ;,

Percent Heavy Veh,%     3 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

P, ,,; ; „            '           I.   `   0  '::`" "   549  '   `;     ,  a t
Arrive On Green 0. 08 0. 80 0. 00 0. 00 0. 49 0. 49 0. 30 0. 30 0. 30

5+` 1..  
M, , h: P.,,,.''  '. v` 8    '   0   '  . ..;;', .:°.' 1' 1' I.    "( 3" ;     '` " I#^,'

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 31 817 0 0 465 431 447 0 0

Grp lf s); i r , . ,;    ` 1" 1     '   0 0   ; fi    1    92;'       #. :     { '
Q Serve( g_ s), s 1. 5 6. 0 OA 0. 0 16. 0 16. 0 24. 6 OA 0. 0

1:':':  ..-"  , 1.         ' 4.0     , t   ' 1; b  ' .   4, i. =  „; t r, :'

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 67 0. 09 0. 91

L r s:,+ 1#i,-    . '"  ''! 42       tI       . °. `. 18    7` ;     ,,,.      '

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 29 0. 38 0. 00 0. 00 0. 53 0. 53 0. 94 0. 00 0. 00

A r p. P „,  . ;.   1       } 0   ;  8     n   ,,:,:  .  '

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 33 1. 33 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

U tre rrt f C l    '       t. 91   . t.' 31    t1. 00    ; t. UD   ,':{ r .; 1, fltl    . C ';  t?,t" ;. . Q:':       
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 39. 6 4. 3 0. 0 0. 0 15. 6 15. 6 30. 7 0. 0 0. 0

InctC l'.. ,. ,.    f,     U.     , 0      { 1.    ". 2 . '" 2;4  '  4.;=   : D:'   4:4 '  
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

I il tt,. .,' 1.     : 3    ` 0.0      . 0    ;,   1t.   '; ' 16:     Cf. t '   . 0 '

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
l.n r} 1{ d; a ht"`,=   ~   ,' i     `. 8    ' 0. 0    ; , U     7,` : 18.  ; 44.  ;  flA   . :

LnGrp LOS D A A A B B D A A

Apprt ac t Vt.  48 6

Approach Delay, s/ veh 6. 1 17. 9 44. 6

o f h L'    ,  .    

Pns'; 3;       t     
Change Periotl( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6 4. 0 4. 6 4. 6

M x Gt a i. c,,    2a4 fi 2'. 8

Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 8. 0 3. 5 18. 0 26. 6

Cr r=#`, 3;3 Q. 3;     .       4 `

H 1'"       1,$°    
HCM 6th LOS B

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

Existing PM Peak hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 2

185



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

r                   
il     

Lane Configurations i

Traf c tz r  ; t  ' # 5    ; 6 4` °' l2           (     2#'        ,...;   '(   1 6 1,4 1

Future Volume( veh/ h)    94 245 640 212 3 108 287 55 8 281 176 141

Initial q b), V fi"       0    '   0      ( " .,     U      b        ;   t?             D
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)    1. 00 0. 99 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 99

Park ttg+ sE A 1.;     0    '. 00    ' 1. t3d   '  p  '  1. 0  ;; 1;;. . . . `   .'   1, Ut'    1 t

Work Zone On Approach No No No

A j S Io t, a; h Itt  . t 8    $ 8    1II$   ' 1 40  ' 190  ' 1 3 ;.       i 187 1 '   1$'!   187t1

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 253 660 219 111 296 47 290 181 145

Peak ti"      r;       A: '   (: 9'    { 1:      q:97`    . 9' . ;  l,,,    Q. 7 ;   f?;    U, 7

Percent Heavy Veh,%      1 1 1 0 0 0 2 2 2

Cap 1t .; 88.. ;; ;  .      . 6       ;  .  '   `"       '.   79    3 t3
Arrive On Green 0. 24 0. 33 0. 33 0. 08 0. 18 0. 18 0. 20 0. 25 0. 25

Sat a,: fi s,..      t'.   2.    ' ;  `.:.      ;' I Q  ' 1. ' '.,'    1, t';` 1!   9 4

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 253 449 430 111 170 173 290 167 159

Grp t;+ t ra;;       79a 179, '   71 ,, ; .  .   ;. 1.' IU 18fl.  "? " 7 :    , ;_ :  1 ,  ' I''    1588
Q Serve( g_ s), s 8. 4 14. 9 15. 0 4. 0 5. 8 5. 9 10. 5 5. 2 5. 6

jrc t Y" ;;,,      8a    1.     "'; `      :  1. Q       ;    `;  °`      " 1, ',     , 2;     5,

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 51 1. 00 0. 27 1. 00 0. 91

L ne` 3, t#  4     598         14     3      '  . A 3 396
V/ C Ratio( X)     0. 59 0. 75 0. 75 0. 76 0. 54 0. 55 0. 83 0. 38 0. 40

1 N e,:' u tfh .;     J{?-....,.`      3 7  ,  i'!$  ;  ='  8'   9:    81

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Upstrea n. i ter t    . t Q  ; 9, 0   ;       •   9. 40 1. t?U  ;  '. i 4    dl;   9a0d`'    9. 4
Uniform Delay( d), slveh 22. 6 19. 9 19. 9 30. 2 25. 2 25. 3 26A 20. 9 21. 1

rc a;   '  a.     2 a   s.4     ,  ;   :      o,

Initial Q Delay(d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

1e B t,       6    1D. 1     9.   ; 3..fi     4.  ',   4; i      8,2 3.8     3.7

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
LnGrp; l; f s  ,     F» 2    2. 2  :          ` 39. 7. 2fr. '  ; 1  31, 1 21. 4 21, 7

LnGrp LOS C C C D C C C C C

APP' o l t u i  , . ; ,      113 4 A  ;      i16'

Approach Delay, s/ veh 22. 7 30. 1 26. 1

ppr 3.;'°       C C  ;.       

ph 0ttt.'},:°    1'i..   ' a::     9,4   .;  "'':"   13'    2 1i   !':`
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0 4. 5 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0

M r` r;r 3 i; m t s 16. t)    34: 5    ' 9 1, 0 3 3:" ;:; 9.    9$, 4 3. 1    ;? `,

Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 6. 6 7. 6 6. 0 17. 0 12. 5 6. 5 10. 4 7. 9

Gr i t''. s:,., ,     3; 2    :. 1     ; 0. 2     4.:, :`      i1. 6      .$  :   9a !

H 11fi"=     6. 1

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
lfsef apprau t g g; l" iz ntng rri i rrtt it.

Existing PM Peak hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 3

186



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

Lane Configurations

a" fi:` 1k i r: ' .      ' ; t     10{  ..
Future Volume( veh/ h)   118 150 104

init al Q{ Qb, vefi U    :<  0 U

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 0. 96

Parking us, A j 1.{ d    l, f3t3 1, U

Work Zone On Approach No

Adj Sa Flow, u# lh11n  ',       1 1    87D    187t7   

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 122 155 81

P l ir:;  ,      , "; , 9"J'    0.        
r

Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 2 2

t     `    : ,..    ' 1,  1 3       
a .  

Arrive On Green 0. 09 0. 14 0. 14

r..,  `
6 1" i17

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 122 119 117

Ctp aak` I; i i t lln;  ,     1; 3;   ` f"l''    1

Q Serve( g_ s), s 4. 6 4. 2 4. 5

yc e t r g},'s   ! 6 4,      . 5

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 69

i,, rr;:      s          z    

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 77 0. 49 0. 53

A il{:..,, t° ;  .     $         , 44    '

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Y

Upstreat f tt C{       1, t1     1. QQ    1. Ufl

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 29. 9 26. 8 27. 0

4 cr C+{,: 1 h "  .     ;     1<     2, t1         

Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 OA
a/ ile 2(°, rte hf n       ; 4. J 3, 2 3. 2

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
n r t vet  s:     .     s:

LnGrp LOS D C C

lpPr 1, t 3 h 35$

Approach Delay, s/ veh 32. 1

t- L  

Existing PM Peak hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 4

187



HCM 6th TWSC

7: Harlan & Old Harlan 11- 13- 2019

Int Delay, s/ veh 2. 6

Lane Configurations          

i'ra c Val, vehlh 2   ' 12S 27 2a6 973,   23  '

Future Vol, veh/ h 2 128 27 256 173 23

C rrCii ting#' e is,# lttr ,  "     : ,'     ; fl t     U ?    '  `

Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free

i27' Ch n iz, " a.  . :  . 
Pl n     _  None       N ne.       . i

Storage Length 0      -     75      _

h'3 1 d an",,.,    

Grade,%  0      -      -      0 0      -

P 1'' ,      ,  `>   °    8    8.' : 3d,     t';...`-
u a.

Heavy Vehicles,% 0 5 0 4 6 2

Mv i# ivV'   ,  Q   t i `  2 „  

Conflicting Flow All 437 220 233 0      -      0

ag   2 4;     
Stage 2 217      -      -      -      -   

Ct ie, Hd ty.  : i: 1 fi 4.     

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5. 4      -      -      -      -      -

Cr ic t' h wy t     ,$    
Follow- up Hdwy 3. 5 3. 3475 2. 2      -      -      -

Pt t ap-9: Mari uuet       ' l  3      -      -      -
Stage 1 821      -      -      -      -

S e   

Platoon blocked,%       

Mow- r er a;    3 5

Mov Cap- 2 Maneuver 553      -      -      -      -      -

f genl  '       " f      -      

Stage 2 804      -      -      -      -      _

n      ,. h  ..;_

F; t tt` t y, s 9, 5; f; 7
HCM LOS B

r      <,.

4

i h,    I  t}4'`    
HCM Lane V/ C Ratio 0. 024      - 0. 192      -      -

HCM tr' 1 3 '     :,     -  U. S'

HCM Lane LOS A      -      B      -      -

H PllB t#r' f tiie a t)       , 1, 9 w   , T    

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 1

188



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
11: Spartan Way/ Lathrop Rd & SB Offramp 11- 13- 2019

t 1'          ,       ,

Lane Configurations

t ffi t 9 ett  ' U  ;` I1.   '; 2{#   € 3  649"  <    Q  :     t    , t:`,.  0 `   $ 8      a'     1'

Future Volume( vehlh)     0 611 204 433 641 0 0 0 0 288 4 122

Initial Q{ Qb}, veh tf t1 0 0 Q 0 0 p
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 93

arking 8t, A 11-     1. t t   1 k    3.    1. flfl   ' 1TflU   ; 1. 9Q  ' 1. Q    UU    1.( f
Work Zone On Approach No No No

Adj 5 1 l+w, u h/ tl          fl JU( S    4    826   ' 1 85   '    A s 1 U''   90b 19

Adj Flow Rate, vehlh 0 754 252 535 791 0 356 5 95

altx bc r'     ;,       t,$ 1  "     , 8     : 81   ': ';;. 3  ' fl.8"I    4; 9    , i
Percent Heavy Veh,%     0 0 0 5 1 0 0 0 0

t:` .  . :  `;     ;'; d"        ` 312    5 A  : 11 i        '       ,;, 84 ;     a    1
Arrive On Green 0. 00 0. 25 0. 25 0. 11 0. 20 0. 00 0. 28 0. 28 0. 28

t l v'
a

t 1=`'., : ' ;: ;      #.,,     1 7    9;,.;`. ,  '    fl v` i,, , ,  ':    3 i

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 0 676 330 535 791 0 456 0 0

Grp S k ta s t a.'  t    ' 7 9 : .- 18°  `,`   1737 "      ( i:       (?

Q Serve( g_ s), s 0. 0 16. 5 16. 7 27. 5 34. 9 OA 23. 0 0. 0 0. 0

C e,,.,};   i, 7    '}   : 9 tJr4 2.;    {}. U'     t. 4
Prop In Lane 0. 00 0. 76 1. 00 0. 00 0. 78 0. 21

l.ane r, P(; eh1P 4'7     9 57Q 1 87 0 4'
V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 00 0. 80 0. 81 0. 94 0. 68 0. 00 0. 94 0. 00 0. 00

A il: p. f i ,°',,        {,   _ 4    i4    { I   i   '    0   6 '             i
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 33 0. 33 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

1A r ei'{     4 fHI 1.(!     , UO 0.33   '' 4 33   ; {?. tl     1. ;   , b0"    0. 00
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh OA 31. 9 32. 0 39. 2 27. 6 0. 0 31. 6 0. 0 0. 0

In r Y;  " 6.t     '' 7.'     15, 6     ', Q      ;      , 0   !     2, 2      (!. Q fl.0
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

Qi x h h t;?'   2: 1 13, 1 17. 8 2. 7   ;  (. A 17;'     Q, U Q; fl

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
r    o,c    s,s    .    :, z z.      a.o s a. cr o. o

LnGrp LOS A D D D C A D A,       A

ppro l; t, 1"{?      6      45'
Approach Delay, s/ veh 42. 2 37A 51. g

I a,, p

hs°C7' 5; s     3.    :`     8,    6
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 6 4. 6 4. 6

M x C r" 3t c), s 3#. tt     ' I.     29.      51. 4
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 29. 5 18. 7 25. 0 36. 9

C7r': tt. ct`" 1t,.. a. S:,  . ;   .;    ; 4I,      2.6.

H t`.',,.      41, 3,     '' ,`     ' '
HCM 6th LOS       `       

r

D      ,       

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 1

189



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
12: NB Offramp & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

t          "         "

Lane Configurations

t ffic' Vz. t t  ; " ; +:' v`:.     "   4   ` ,  {   '` , 4 2 '       . :;     ,;     U       A
Future Volume( veh/ h)   141 757 0 0 854 364 220 4 229 0 0 0

Init l l({ b; v 1 °,    U       p    t9       4 ,      1 `    >;

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 96

ParkingBus,. j.    fi}   1. 4i?   1. OU   ' 1. 00 i , fl0 ": 1. UU    1. U   1: 1     '. 0
Work Zone On Approach No No No

P d' w, v t t#`     : 1i'.    8            0   ° 1 6   ': 8 fi  ; 194U    1{} ;.   

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 166 891 0 0 1005 428 259 5 122

Peak a..
v; ,         `.":° ,&

a    : 83   ; Q$  ;; i u:;,:  ! b, 5 s  ,'  ` .   . r
Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 2 0 0 3 3 0 0 0

p,; t  "' 3       0 i   ," 11  ;-_ ' fi  ;  ,$' I'       r;: 5 , ='

Arrive On Green 0. 04 0. 22 0. 00 0. 00 0. 47 0. 47 0. 24 0. 24    0. 24

t I t     i .,: 7       { f,,  ',   { ,.  ;;,, " l: .` 1" ,     .;  ,<

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 166 891 0 0 732 701 386 0 0

r i} u! i; ,    ,    17 7 7        7 8  '     ',.. . „
Q Serve( g_ s), s 8. 4 19. 3 0. 0 0. 0 33. 8 35. 4 19. 7 0. 0 0. 0

Gyc' i t',,., S', "  :: .:.   .,    ' 0.   ' ; ;;°, ": 4 ;  9: 7 1   ,,   ;: 
Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 61 0. 67 0. 32

L e p C p, h :    '. ':;  1 2a   ,   A            ;`" 4  '    ;     ;;'  , : `; I

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 72 0. 38 0. 00 0. 00 0. 88 0. 91 0. 92 0. 00 0. 00

l va#{.,,-:, a
r 3' . ,       4 C   fl,: a„ "     5      ,:,.     .

HCM Platoon Ratio 0. 33 0. 33 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

U s#r a' e# 1},    Q,   : 3}    0. 00    t?,U.   ? 1,:   1.# It  '  1:{ U   . Q;', ;, t '
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 41. 4 19. 8 0. 0 0. 0 21. 5 21. 9 33. 2 0. 0 0. 0

ln r} Itay d;, ; ' .  .;:; ';,. .   . 1 fl, t    ' 3., .  ;- ; 16.     1 s. 3  '   £",.    1  ,
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 OA OA OA 0. 0 OA 0. 0 OA

le k/ t , ;      11. 8     . 0     0. 1"` ,;.''..`` .: 22,  t 1a. fl  ;   . i.,<, , t?x4 '

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
L, r rp I 7s1v+ h , `       ;    t9.9 O. 0 0 t3    ;    8. 1 4. 5  '   :.     

LnGrp LOS D B A A C D D A A

A R 1, ve#fJh 1? 57 1   ;    3 x';   -

Approach Delay, s/ veh   23. 7 36. 3 49. 5

APpr,:.` t

Ph('{# x       6.       t;    ° 7;`     
u,,  

f..

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6 4. 6    4. 6 4. 6

Max rt' n9 i c : s;.  .       52.4 2 2  :
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 21. 3 10. 4 37. 4 21. 7

Gr r' i'+;?.:,'.' ,, ,    3. 7 7 G,:: '

J i

t;

i r,  . w   .   ,    

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
H I` fith r ar eq rat cl aran e# imes pr:= Cr i ssing 1ia rrar' `  "

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 2

190



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan Rd & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

i     

Lane Configurations r

Traff`c tWui( ek l l  , 8     1 2      '   '    3 ,      ':  6 .' f   '    :    , ,.`      56
Future Volume( veh/ h)    85 182 476 163 3 88 620 57 5 230 109 56

irritiat{{ f b}, veh tI 0 b fl  ;     0  '     " '       3 U       

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)    1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 97

Park ng a s,/   -   ' 1. 44    = 1, 0   9.{ 30    1. O I :, , Q' :.  .    ;.  .. A!   ` 1: Of3:    . dU
Work Zone On Approach No No No

Ad Sa F[t ur,,        4    a$ U 18'lt   ; 1 885.   18 1   18 t ; 1 `   88    188

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 194 506 173 94 660 61 245 116 60

Pe{ M turF+' .     t r94 b, 
w

t  ,;  O. J4    :    t,;;       :   I>,°    `    0. 94'

Percent Heavy Veh,%      4 2 2 1 2 2 4 1 1

v ;,;',   '  k'9    '' , . ,,`   „       ,   _    :,,; ...  . ..:  .    , ,   ' 17

Arrive On Green 0. 14 0. 35 0. 35 0. 07 0. 27 0. 27 0. 17 0. 28 0. 28

S t,      1   5,  .,     f ' 1" 1" 1.

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 194 347 332 94 357 364 245 88 88

a t
r th lri;,   ;:  3 1777   ;'!<  , 1 9  I 17'Y  ' ' l '',      ,;=  ;'',;  ; 9;'   1 4

Q Serve( g_ s), s 7. 0 10. 5 10. 6 3. 4 12. 1 12. 1 8. 9 2. 4 2. 7

C R r( fi  `_ 7;?    30, v    ,``:$''  ;   i.,    ,..  ;r   ,    ;»;  . 2.?

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 52 1. 00 0. 17 1. 00 0. 68

l. n" aP{. ai hlt   .      8 8 E a   ,   23    48   ;;    fl9°`    4 6
V/ C Ratio( X)     0. 78 0. 56 0. 57 0. 77 0. 74 0. 74 0. 82 0. 17 0. 19

4 rail,, kalh      52 .   ;         9    6     w;   n, ; ,   ;,  .   r 6

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

klpstra C t#- :`     OU    1. A0 1.: A" . ' 1. i U ,<  1, 4   : 1,' Q`       :   i,t   1    1. i)p
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 27. 3 17. 5 17. 5 30. 3 21. 8 21. 8 26. 5 17. 8 17. 9

lncr l, l;:   5,      9,     . 3     11.      :      3'.     A,

Initial Q Delay( d3), slveh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 OA 0. 0 0. 0

fai4' B K` !' I4 x3t,` t#' r 5 8   : 7.     7rQ 3. 2  `   #.'  ;   3°.. ` 1.;    ' f.'      1, 8

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
i r`; r F< '. 3;4    18.    ; 1 6   ! 4.  '  2 t8  ;  `,.       °;   : _   .:    18.,

LnGrp LOS C B B D C C C B B

f Y!" 52 111'   ` V 7 ', . 

Approach Delay, s/ veh 21. 8 27. 4 26. 2

Appr`:;     C

F h lt` 3``) f`      `.`   .      8:a    ;     :"   ' t:         i,<^ ,   ,  
a    ;;:.

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0 4. 5 4. 5 4. 0 4. 0

Ma c ac." -;' 1:.    27.5 11. t    ;:-.. .. a  ,  16,a 4. t     ";
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 4. 2 4. 7 5. 4 12. 6 10. 9 7. 8 9. 0 14. 1

Gr rt.„. 5 U.    ° ,,.,  .;      Q,      .'  ,   ;°

6     " yf.  
S' k 1 Er r' Y)/  

1
r ,£

Y (  r   b^ 9  '
t

c=       

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
User ap igr+a," 3 i`°r an em i t.  a

ti,,;

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 3

191



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan Rd & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

Lane Configurations

Traf l t t.  ;;    :  '       SS 1 s

Future Volume( veh/ h)    55 85 158

Ir 1fi 1{ Qb},; E   ,   q . . ":  4       0   

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 0. 95

P rl ing,` j .  :   1. 4t   >: 1;{ fU    ;. 0

Work Zone On Approach No

Adj# f(au, ueta atlri' 1841 1 1 1841

Adj yF"low Rate, vehlh 59 90 141

1 4iYAfi3,', ,.   „  ,     : x,   , ^ S ,  .:.• fY' lf    .
r    . t. a i..   r  , t    .    ,     

Percent Heavy Veh,%    4 4 4

C p, u; -  2 3

Arrive On Green 0. 05 0. 16 0. 16

t;.  I   °    $`      

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 59 90 141

Cr n;" t l;       1 a  ` 9.    87

Q Serve( g_ s), s 2. 2 3. 0 5. 8

3 el,`' s s°  5. 8

Prop In Lane 1. 00 1. 00

L t ie' r 1.." : ,        °: 7     233    +

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 67 0. 33 0. 61

Auail,.:.' u e  -;.,            a 7-    71

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

u m: t}      t     . c     . tr

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 30. 9 24. 8 26A

trs' i,(+ a"  ,  ,,   `# t.     :. 7 i 2. 3    '

Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 OA OA

lpile±° a it l ìllr      ";:      2:2 3.8

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
I, f rp!} 1' 1`  ; .'          2a,    " 28.

LnGrp LOS D C C

Pprti 1; a      290

Approach Delay, s/ veh 30. 1

Year 2022 AM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 4

192



HCM 6th TWSC

7: Harlan & Old Harlan 11- 13- 2019

Int Delay, slveh 2. 2

Lane Configurations          

Trafi# i Vt 1, veh#       `  .,  13Q 3   4# 9 291 '   45

Future Vol, veh/ h 21 130 38 449 291 45

Con#licti p,# 1hr     `          ' tf U U fl

Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free

RT Ch nr ii d y; i`      - N te      = I pne

Storage Length      ,     0.  _       75
U r dt tt;" :.   fl Q` 

Grade,%  0      _                   

P ak t" r',    S' ,; .   9'    9    9 ;.   :_  

Heavy Vehicles,% 2 2 2 4 4 2

Mvm# i aw 2. ,``    '  4 i3 3Q':   

Conflicting Flow All 633 323 346 0      -      0

t 1'  2:

Stage 2 310      -      -      -      -      -

Critic l', i it y.  " .  :.,  4. 3      -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5. 43      -      -      -      -      -

Criti i d t     , 3 .   

Follow- up Hdwy 3. 519 3. 319 2. 219      -      -      -

Pot Cap=' 1 atr uv r;    .` 7' 1  1211

Stage 1 733

t g'   7
Platoon blocked,%       

Mov p' 1, i r r: .. 4; ., 7  1211

Mov Cap- 2 Maneuver 414      -      -      -      -      -

5t e  i 7, .    -
Stage 2 718      -      -      -      -      -

FICllil t t a,  „','  6 t?

HCM LOS B

Cap ts" 1 1 - a1
r  ,.

HCM Lane V/ C Ratio 0. 032      - 0. 239      -      -

N M Gbt`ti!' t3 y+{',; 1. 3
HCM Lane LOS A      -      B      -      -

H M 8 h° i' Q et"; ,  :,.  .   .    Q.

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 1

193



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
11: Spartan Way/ Lathrop Rd & SB Offramp 11- 13- 2019

t 1             '

Lane Configurations r

t ff: V l'° i} ; ,      fl     3 2{  , 2$. ".; 9 '      `       ` Q ;     `':;'`  ," i    , 1,     2$:

Future Volume( veh/ h)     0 663 200 283 769 0 0 0 0 486 8 226

Initial( t#: . o ; . I 0       l     4 -   U      0  C!       l'       0
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 96

Parkir:'   40     .( 0 1.(? 0    =. QtJ  : 4tJ   ; . A4   I t'" ,  1{ 1;    1( f

Work Zone On Approach No No No

A jS( o t . i t .  9t1    9QU    81 ,, ;{ 7 °'    tl   I;"= 1 OQ    9 Q.
Adj Flow Rate, vehlh 0 729 220 311 845 0 534 9 199

k;"'   <„ ,; .,,  , „. 1`    p,     #. f  ° ':, 9„ : F  :.: C. 1   ; Q     91'

Percent Heavy Veh,%     0 0 0 8 2 0 0 0 0

C p,; f. `    81     ?   ;.,°     t 8
Arrive On Green 0. 00 0. 24 0. 24 0. 29 0. 58 0. 00 0. 43 0. 43 0. 43

t l t;"     < i,, , 41#,   2   169 ..:' ,'     C?"   

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 0 635 314 311 845       0 742 0 0

G, t`, q   1'7    1 87    6  .;`.:  .   tt," '     0

Q Serve( g_ s), s 0. 0 15. 4 15. 7 14. 4 31. 4 0. 0 38. 4 0. 0 0. 0

Cyc3;'.,.,; .;      . :,    15.4    ' 15.7 14   ; w  .;  b,fl  ! fl;     C. O
Prop In Lane 0. 00 0.70 1. 00 0. 00 0. 72 0. 27

Lr' T- 1 1' ri 3 1' ;    ;, ,  {     $     "     ,  ;,;; .;    }    
V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 00 0. 77 0. 78 0. 64 0. 78 0. 00 1. 01 0. 00 0. 00

Au p,;,      4t 1"     48>   ; 1t 0 7 ,      {       tl
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

u tr;       an     .    .   ,    o,op ,  t     t, aQ
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 0. 0 32. 0 32. 1 28. 0 14. 7 0. 0 25. 8 0. 0 0. 0

In r t i'.{°,." s    ° 6.3    ' 14: 1.    : : `.' l;( 1 .;  t, tl 3">{     C1,;

Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh OA 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 OA 0. 0 0. 0

f il'` o
n  „ ;';{     '

11_    ' f2.4      . 3   ` 14;      4.0  "     29..;    k,{ f tl, t

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
u, r    s.    s.    2s. a     ."  ;;  o.       3      .      0,4
LnGrp LOS A D D C B A F A A

AP t'a t,< teh'   " 9 9    ' i

Approach Delay, s/ veh 41. 4 19. 2 60. 3

A pt r t",.'.    . ,    

Ph f'`'     ;;=,'    26.     56.     
a  ,.

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6    * 4. 6 4. 6 4. 6

Nl st' t, x s ';';.,     ' 1 3?;,: „ 42.4
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 16. 4 17. 7 40. 4 33. 4

Greer;:",.: ,       ; i 1. 4 fl.fl 2.4

5,',. i.

I'  
r.

i,   

HCM 6th LOS D

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
H M. . .,, t q i es qual t ar nc ih r fl. t s cr ing e k%am r,     

f

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 1

194



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
12: NB Offramp & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

t f         1 I r'     *     t      

Lane Configurations r

l 1t j  `,"  ,   8zt'  .  ;  t    '   '{." : T   ; 3 i$    2'.  `    '",'   '>,   .' 0 ''      fl       0
Future Volume( vehlh)   184 965 0 0 774 366 278 7 524 0 0 0

Init 1 t( f)> u` ia'      C  .    ti 0       U   '   U       { 3  '     .,"`:  t°      .

Ped- Bike Adj(A_ pbT)   1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 98 1. 00 0. 98

P rkit ls 3     '    - " f. Q  .  : 0-    . 00    ; 1.    ' 1    1.   ; . f b : ,. ,; ,` 1..,

Work Zone On Approach No No No

1# 11r'        $ u6   1$    ',   0 1$ 5   1$ 6   '  ; " I `  3"

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 194 1016 0 0 815 385 293 7 420

P r'  ,.,,, ,, .  .,  tti,    ,  " ,. 8   = Q 83   ,`"    U=;   C . ; f i;,;;  , ',:

Percent Heavy Veh,%     3 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

C p,''#.;; .   s`. ".$
8,         '  . 9.,;  : 5      a . ` ,,; „ ,. , 

r`,.

Arrive On Green 0. 11 0. 69 0. 00 0. 00 0. 54 0. 54 0. 40 0. 40 0. 40

t+ i,:;,      3 3 t r>,  :;'`     ,,     ,.;;.
r.,. ,.

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 194 1016 0 0 621 579 720 0 0

rp: vV' I n'.,     a;   ' t` 9 fl    ;   t ";`::   16    ''..,:;    `,: .,   `<

Q Serve( g_ s), s 10. 1 11. 1 0. 0 0. 0 22. 6 22. 8 36. 4 0. 0 0. 0

y<,.;.'  :"  " ' I,    '.'.   : Q..t     .   :' i' a !.:   ' .:";   .`-,   t;,:::  , '

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 67 0. 41 0. 58

L,a ts- t x
rehf l `.       242 24$ Q    '   Q'  ; ,    t3 fi` !  : - t =     w'- ,

V/ C Ratio( X)    0. 96 0. 41 0. 00 0. 00 0. 65 0. 65 1. 09 0. 00 0. 00

AV it= a: ,  .      .   ° 2 9    '  0 q     '' y   ` 8     6       t       „`!,  -.`:
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

l#'#" d  . fl,5   f; a    t3; U0    . t1fk"  ,":    1. I- 1., ;  t,- ..;'''  '

Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 40. 6 6. 0 0. 0 0. 0 15. 1 15. 2 27. 8 0. 0 0. 0

n r-i l  °       ;    Q 3     U. A    :           3; 7 62. '   `;   ,` 
Initial Q Delay(d3), s/veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0
4°.

3 7 tT            .: J; O    : . 0    . U. V   :' i i,   ' . 1    
i  :   ' 4. t7' ''   :°:  ,       

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
r. Y{; i ' 7 i:     ` 6,3 0'.0      ,     >    18. 8 3.'    :     

F;  ...

LnGrp LOS E A A A B B F A A

Apr a: t! ; =`..    21U I I         7 t3 ;  
t    

Approach Delay, s/ veh 17. 6 18. 6 90. 4

Ap', 7';;; -,;     „ ; B

ft''"', 8 4 ,  

Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 6 4. 0 4. 6 4. 6

M C' e tt t,,` ri,' s `   4, 4 1   ' 32.      
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 13. 1 12. 1 24. 8 38. 4

Gr` i, ', 4.3 9

Ft` h       
F   ,    ys, s    ;

r       

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 2

195



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

il     t      +'

Lane Configurations

Cr àf i t t e={ tY ta,:,; .  :    ', "', : 2 8  ,  - 8    '. 2 t? 11  ;  `:'. ,  ': - :   " ' , . 8S     3     146
Future Volume( veh/ h)   107 268 788 240 2 111 549 59 9 285 194 146

Initial C b) u h 0    '   9   :  . t1        t "    D :      tJ       
Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)    1. 00 0. 99 1. 00 0. 97 1. 00 0. 99

Pa ki Bus, 1, ,        00    ' t.?   = 1. fl  ' 0    1. t?CJ r:  9;; A ' 4; t1fl    1. OU,    1, Dfl
Work Zone On Approach No No No
4dj S" It w, v         `       885    $    1$ 5   '_ 1 3 Q  ,` 1 A '  90' 187    1$ ZU   187p

Adj Flow Rate, veh/ h 276 812 247 114 566 51 294 200 151

P k h1' t'   ,  9    t..    , 9fi ',,  fl. 7 t},'    t, 97
Percent Heavy Veh,%      1 1 1 0 0 0 2 2 2

i f     2 9 8  ; ' 9t,'= ;,  6$:    3 4
Arrive On Green 0. 22 0. 37 0. 37 0. 08 0. 23 0. 23 0. 19 0. 24 0. 24

t f ia
h.,. ,.:.,`, .,  :,  

a: 1''    a 9 `;:"'.'   ,:'       ;  : 3 4;`; .. ,,, . a     .:...''.'   ''   1 i

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 276 539 520 114 305 312 294 180 171

G lta,.      ,;..,"  5 1 1    ' l `:,:, "    ; 1 3   1  ' `: '.,. .''  1# ; 1` 77I   9
Q Serve( g_ s), s 10. 8 20. 7 20. 7 4. 7 11. 9 12. 0 12. 1 6. 5 7. 0

cy.),    c,     .    ;. ;     
M    .,      o

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 47 1. 00 0. 16 1. 00 0. 88

i` W.{ r Y' I, F; t,    ' L    . UJiJ    .; 6 , ' i  '.  "... t,    ..   .'.. . FI' U .  ` '.    11

V/ C Ratio( X)     0. 70 0. 82 0. 82 0. 77 0. 74 0. 74 0. 85 0. 42 0. 45

a€ail:»;€ 1,,, .;: fl 92     8      34     .:,,;.  ; 7.      8t 8 725
HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

up t     .-      t o    , c t   '.    o    ,    #; ov'    a. Q
Uniform Delay( d), s/ veh 27. 4 21. 8 21. 8 34. 1 27. 1 27. 1 29. 5 24. 5 24. 7

fn r t elay 1    6 4,$   ;   9 6  `   #, t.: r    .`       7 0,8
Initial Q Delay( d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 OA 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

i1e" t! f", I),v r< "    8. 3    1. fi    ' i3.4    ; 4,3      ..   :":  `,   9. 3     . 9;     A.?

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
t, n r t# I{ t; t   ; 3C3;2 2 a4 2$+    4, 7   ' 31'     ' Ir      35, 3`   25. 2 25. 5
LnGrp LOS C C C D C C D C C

lppr a l l, t tath ,     133a 31 645
Approach Delay, s/ veh 27. 3 33. 1 29. 9"

ApF t'. fl; r v..  ; C      C.:   ,:      C"

F hs. i"°';   I1.   ';#`    1t}.    °'"  ' f.   `. 6    ,,` , 
Change Period( Y+ Rc), s 4. 0 4. 5 4A 4. 0 4. 5 4. 5 4A 4A

Max Ci i#.,', .,,     34. 5 1. t3    9;    ' 31,:fi    $. 4 34. t'. '  3 1  '
Max Q Clear Time( g_ c+ 11), s 7. 6 9. 0 6. 7 22. 7 14. 1 7. 4 12. 8 14. 0

Gr rt"', t, :` :.° , ..; ',   ' 0,2"     , 4    fl,   ;  0,6     .$'  t :  ;

HV, i

b k
S

n  

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.
User ap t rr l;ig'' r aing no rer t:

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report
with Project Page 3

196



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
13: Harlan & Lathrop Rd 11- 13- 2019

1      

Lane Configurations

r lr r{ t h  '    .   1     lsfi     ' 11

Future Volume( vehlh)   128 156 110

Mitial C t b);; t,      Q"      D       0    !

Ped- Bike Adj( A_ pbT)   1. 00 0. 96

Pa ing.       1. t     ; flD     . OD

Work Zone On Approach No

Ad t,' c w, uel t `>       7841    870 187p
Adj Flow Rate, vehlh 132 161 87

P# u"..        _:  I. 7,   , 9    #. 7

Percent Heavy Veh,%     4 2 2

CaP f  :. . 9 9'    ,{ 9 ,   52

Arrive On Green 0. 10 0. 13 0. 13

at,     '' Z..-., 4    t 14t1

Grp Volume( v), veh/ h 132 125 123

C7','"'#' r. 77^#ii':^ ` ,: ."   . J"    1 1V   '`  

Q Seroe( g_ s), s 5. 6 5. 0 5. 4

c+ a c
fi  s     .      .

Prop In Lane 1. 00 0. 71

Lar+e. rp C}
z

it r•: „  :   9-     2; J 21

VIC Ratio( X)    0. 78 0. 53 0. 57

A ta l;;:.  ;-; ,       3 fl     3     391

HCM Platoon Ratio 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Ups#r è f l. "  ; =     ,,   '. 00    '" f. OD  '

Uniform Delay( d), slveh 33. 5 30. 6 30. 8

incrfi '., -   9:}'.   1.    = 2.4

Initial Q Delay(d3), s/ veh 0. 0 0. 0 0. 0

Ifl 1e?', d-. ,   = 4.    ' 3.9     3. 9

Unsig. Movement Delay, s/ veh
E.nGr i af ';:'"    42:    2.    33.2    e'  -       

LnGrp LOS D C C

Appr i(c l,`     80

Approach Delay, s/ veh 36. 2

ApAt`     ' , 
w,   

D

Year 2022 PM Peak Hour Synchro 10 Report

with Project Page 4

197



Appendix B

Maximum Queue Demand Tables

198



Appendix B

TABLE B1

MAXIMUM QUEUE DEMAND on the WESTBOUND APPROACH

to the I- 5 SOUTHBOUND ONRAMP

Intersection: Lathrop Rd/ Southbound I- 5 Off and On Ramps

Approach Lane: Westbound Lathrop Rd Left Turn Lane

Intersection Control: Signal

Date: 03/ 10/ 2019

Day: Thursday

Vlrestbound t eft? ur

7; tltl- 9sUU AM Storage:( in eet)       Queue jin fee#)
07: OO:AM t1: AM 420'     120

0: 15 AMY07';{# AM'      420'     140

Q7. 3 AM- Q7: t AM`      420'     160

7:45 tM- t$; Ot? M`'      420'     120

U8: Ot. At l1- 0$. 15 AM 420'     160

8: 15; A1111-0$:30 AM 420'     120

3$: 3 J# M-0$: Ahlr'       420'     180

08: 45' AM- 09'.'00 AM 420'    240

Westbound Left Turn

3: 00- 6: 00 PM Storage( in Feet)       Queue( in feet)

03: 00 PM- 03: 15 PM 420'     80

03: 15 PM- 0330 PM 420'    260

03: 30 PM- 03: 45 PM 420'    100

03: 45 PM- 04: 00 PM 420'    140

04:00 PM-04: 15 PM 420'    160

04: 15 PM- 04: 30 PM 420'    160

04: 30 PM- 04: 45 PM 420'     80

04: 45 PM- 05: 00 PM 420'     120

05: 00 PM- 05: 15 PM 420'    220

05: 15 PM- 05: 30 PM 420'    220

05: 30 PM- 05: 45 PM 420'    240

05: 45 PM-06: 00 PM 420'    120

AM Peak Hour

pM Peak Hour

x
a,'"  $; nN„"  - Demand exceeds storage

Source: Crane Transportation Group

199



Appendix B

TABLE B2

MAXIMUM QUEUE DEMAND on the NORTHBOUND OLD HARLAN RD

APPROACH to LATHROP RD

Intersection: Old Harlan Rd/ Lathrop Rd
Approach Lane: Northbound Old Harlan Rd

Intersection Control: Stop Sign
Date: 03/ 10/ 2019

Day: Thursday

1A estbound L+ f; Tu r  '

7 0 1- 9; t10 A tn stor e(, n feetj'      Ciu e in: fe t)

D; 0 1,- 0. 15 At11A        NA 20

r S iitlrp7"; 3 AM 40

t33 3t? A"11 1- t 7: 45 1, M 20

07: 4a AM• 8:? ` A#II   ' 20

0; 4 Al lf- 0$: 15 A 3 20

UB: kM Q$; 3tI AM   , 20

L1$ S3Q A   8: 45 iA11 1 20

t38: S AM- 09: OQ AM 20

Westbound Left Turn

3: 00- 6: 00 PM Storage( in Feet)       Queue( in feet)

03: 00 PM- 03: 15 PM NA 20

03: 15 PM-03: 30 PM 20

03: 30 PM- 03: 45 PM 20

03: 45 PM- 04: 00 PM 40

04: 00 PM- 04: 15 PM 60

04: 15 PM- 04: 30 PM 40

04: 30 PM- 04: 45 PM 40

04:45 PM- 05: 00 PM 40

05: 00 PM- 05: 15 PM 20

05: 15 PM- 05: 30 PM 40

05: 30 PM- 05: 45 PM 40

05: 45 PM-06: 00 PM 20

AM Peak Hour

PM Peak Hour

z``` ti  k""° ° 
x,,; = Demand exceeds stora ea,      g

Source: Crane Transportation Group

200



Appendix B

TABLE 63

MAXIMUM QUEUE DEMAND on the NORTHBOUND HARLAN RD APPROACH to LATHROP RD

Intersection:     Harlan Rd/ Lathrop Rd

Approach Lanes Left, through and combined through/ right

Intersection Control Signal

Date:     03/ 10/ 2019

Day:    Thursday

N rthb wnd. eft Nbrthbcaund Throu h    : ; # r t3 1 o ar d ThrulRight
7:OU'- 9, t 0 AM Stcsra Rueue S iara e     '  t u ue      ' tata e ueue

ir fi t' j     ;  { in feet       ,  { iri fee)       ( n#+ t)      ; '{r` t}      +(in fe t)
fl7:Q0 AM- 1'« IVI 235 264 NA 60 NA 40

fl7: 1$ 4N,. fi fl.   i;     32fl 320 180

07; 30 i0.il t- t?'7: `, M 3Ut!       80 80

07. 4' 411 MQ$. t M 160 60 20

DS; f A11t1 f 8.1 A11 t .  '      3Q t1 60 40

t?8515 AM1 i-ttff. D. AM 2f,>t1 40 20

08; 30 311 11.$. 9, A,11 1 3 .. .. .. 40 120

Q8: 45 AM- Q9: DQ M 28U 60 140

Northbound Left Northbound Through Northbound Thru/ Right

3: 00- 6: 00 PM Storage Queue Storage Queue Storage Queue
in feet) in feet) in feet) in feet) in feet)       ( in feet)

03: 00 PM- 03: 15 PM 235 3tip NA 200 NA 80

03: 15 PM- 03: 30 PM 3 tt1 80 180

03: 30 PM- 03: 45 PM 36t}       180 260

03: 45 PM- 04: 00 PM 320 260 260

04: 00 PM- 04: 15 PM 340 180 100

04: 15 PM- 04: 30 PM 3 f!       180 160

04: 30 PM- 04: 45 PM 32t!       160 100

04: 45 PM- 05: 00 PM 3 C1 220 200

05: 00 PM- 05: 15 PM 2fp 140 200

05: 15 PM- 05: 30 PM 30iJ 240 180

05: 30 PM- 05: 45 PM 300 220 180

05: 45 PM- 06: 00 PM 300 100 80

AM Peak Hour

PM Peak Hour

p\\ v 4 ai0\`\ e".;:. Demand exceeds storage

Source: Crane Transportation Group

201



Appendix B

TABLE B4

MAXIMUM QUEUE DEMAND on the EASTBOUND LATHROP RD APPROACH to HARLAN RD

Intersection: Harlan Rd/ Lathrop Rd
Approach Lanes:  Left, through and combined through/ right

Intersection Control Signal

Date: 03/ 10/ 2019

Day: Thursday

Ea$ tbound i.efi& U- turns Eastbound Thra.u' fi E stb+und Th ru tti hi
7: OQ- 9:00 AM   '       Sts rage C, 1 ue ,   Stara e,       Qu au     Storage       ' Queue .

in feet} in fe t?    feetj       ( in fe t   ; fe+ t)       :{ ia f et
07: 00 AM- 07: 15 AIY1 320 220 530 340 200 40

C1;' A Awt: 3fl Al. 320 320 530 180 200 160

fl7 3Q AM 7: 45 ANI 320 260 530 160 200 140

07: d5 AM* Bs# 1p kM        320 220 530 100 200 160

08:0/ 1,M-$., AIVt, -      320 180 530 140 200 200

0: 15 ltW- t k: 3t A11!  '      320 120 530 120 200 140

08: 3E A#V- Q' 45, tU1, 320 220 530 160 200 180

0$: 5 AM=U9: 40 AM 320 180 530 140 200 200

Eastbound Left& U- turns Eastbound Through Eastbound Thru/ Right

3: 00- 6: 00 PM Storage Queue Storage Queue Storage Queue
in feet)   in feet)    in feet)       ( in feet)     ( in feet) in feet)

03: 00 PM- 03: 15 PM 320 320 530 360 530 480

03: 15 PM- 03: 30 PM 320 320 530 160 530 260

03: 30 PM-03: 45 PM 320 320 530 180 530 480

03: 45 PM- 04: 00 PM 320 320 530 360 530 280

04: 00 PM- 04: 15 PM 320 320 530 240 530 260

04: 15 PM- 04: 30 PM 320 34p'' S30 260 530 160

04: 30 PM- 04: 45 PM 320 360' S30 360 530 300

04: 45 PM- 05: 00 PM 320 260 530 480 530 400

05: 00 PM- 05: 15 PM 320 320 530 280 530 260

05: 15 PM- 05: 30 PM 320 34Q: 530 420 530 280

05: 30 PM- 05: 45 PM 320 36tl; 530 380 530 320

05: 45 PM- 06: 00 PM 320 220 530 480 530 480

AM Peak Hour

PM Peak Hour

w, a` = Demand exceeds storage

Source: Crane Transportation Group

202



Appendix C

Intersection Signal Warrant Sheet

203



PEAK HOUR VOLUME WARRANT # 3

Urban Area)

600

I
2 OR MORE LANES( MAJOR) OR 2 OR MORE LANES( MINOR)

500

400

2 OR MORE LANES( MAJOR)& 1 LANE( MINOR)

w p OR 1 LANE MAJOR)& 2 OR MORE LANES( MINOR)

F 300
a

o w
z 

0 200

O
100

1 LANE( MAJOR)& 1 LANE( MINOR)

400 500 600 700 800 900 1000 1100 1200 1300 1400 1500 1600 1700 1800

MAJOR STREET- TOTAL OF BOTH APPROACHES- VPH

Existing AM Peak hour

Q Existing PM Peak hour

E NOTE

150 VPH APPLIES AS THE LOWER THRESHOLD VOLUME FOR A MINOR STREET

APPROACH WITH TWO OR MORE LANES AND100 VPH APPLIES AS THE LOWER

THRESHOLD VOLUME FOR A MINOR STREET APPROACHING WITH ONE LANE

Source: Year 2014 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices Federal Hi hwa Administration

Appendix C

PEAK HOUR VOLUME WARRANT # 3

Urban Area)

Old Harlan Rd/ Harlan Rd
CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

204



Appendix D

Dutch Brothers

Trip Rates

205



Appendix D

Trip Rates

Dutch Brothers Survey Locations near Lathrop
versus

Institute of Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual

AM PEAK HOUR TRIPS PM PEAK HOUR TRIPS

Survey
Size of IN OUT IN OUT

LoCatlons FaClllty Trips Rate/  Trips Rate/  Trips Rate/  Trips Rate/

Square Ft)    1000 1000 1000 1000

S Ft S Ft S Ft S Ft

Stockton 810 63 77. 8 57 70. 4 31 38. 3 39 48. 2

Lodi 1500 48 32 51 34 29 19. 3 36 24. 0

Oakle 295 38 128. 8 32 108. 5 49 166. 1 43 145. 8

Average of 3

Surve Locations
79. 5 71. 0 74. 6 72. 7

ITE RATE ( 1)

Coffee/ Donut Shop
Drive through N/ A N/A 45. 4 N/A 43. 6 N/ A 21. 7 N/ A 21. 7

window with

indoor seatin

ITE RATE ( 1)

Coffee/ Donut Shop
Drive through N/A N/ A 168. 5 N/ A 168. 5 N/ A 41. 7 N/ A 41. 7

window without

indoor seatin

Trip Rates: Dutch Brothers Surveys- Crane Transportation Group
I. T. E.- Trip Generation Manual l Oth Edition by the Institute of Transportation Engineers, 2017

Compiled by: Crane Transportation Group

206



Appendix E

Dutch Brothers Drive Through Lane Queue

Count Summaries

Stockton, Lodi & Oakley)

207



y. 
N m m N N m m N N l0 V - 1 lD f17 O O O M N cY) N N N O c- I rl N - 1 O .- 1 O M rl a- i N .- i

U   

C
O

Y ,
UO

t%  ';'' tv O o m .- I m .-- i o o ry m tv o o N o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o m o o O o 0 0 0

iz':.

U    >,        
rn n oo  oo co o n n  m oo  v v v v m ui n n m v v v n  co m n  n r  v

v m:.
Y    .

i(iiC'..m rr

O

N N c- 1 N cY1 N M lfl cY  N N M '- 1 N c- 1 ( Y1 N N [ Y1 N N N lD M N ( T7 N M N N c- I N N O O

o

a' ;  w`. " + a    acs     +' + + u r. "    ,$ ' id v    +    '"    ,  d ,'.
t  Atw 74c 4 7f+ A4 R1» . i1.  ;: t1.  ,  '. tf: C, 4 itir +! 4 3A , '. R# Y.:  9¢+ A. • R 4: ; C.,

k'I!    tF1    : GI 4tY LD IA Ci lA y Yf ; g i71 , p tiY irh K. #'; a1 Q IA y
i, i  "

a: . 
t+!  ; ip    t 6 '!, : iY1. W'( On1 k1d Yif M7 # 1', 3fY tl k'+f M N    n .. 4f tl1 C.

ns tn a .: r» ++ i ra er t°4 ;: + d.:: 1^: € ef ;# t v W ' r r':. vt + r ;; xn i n n vi . u n rii ii ':t± i

o'+ u:
m N m ry . m V V o0 0o rn  m n oo m m n o 0o m oo n 

Ca.) M..

0

Y ,._.....:..

UO 91 13
y

N

O
O -- I .- 1 rV O c- I O . Vl lll d' [' 1 M l0 C M M N O N N M ln j'

Gl a i '.
d

Y

G1a

a v m:

p ' a C m v m m m o0 00 o n  m ao  m  n ti  rn m  m  o0
c

Y y
f0 cp    ` Y4:

Q       

Q C

u Y
O

G1
o3

N Y rl
7 y O

a
N U     '(' N c' 1 N c- I c- I M N N .-- I N N .-- I c- I c- I a-- I O O N N e- I .-- I N f' 1 ci     ` p

L L' X:  O_

W Gl  

M        :'+'„  

m
X aL.+ N Q     
a W   Y .      i       3    }  

c

Q t
0       4  ' ' ,

J,. .

E,    ,       
a  G   ' 9   t. `  ,    

U

V   L t,   r

Q H  o    r, r;` t  .      `   ,'. tio,. . et; ki o%   '     o

208



ITEM 4. 8

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: AUTHORIZE TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE ON

LOUISE AVENUE AT HARLAN ROAD

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt Resolution Authorizing Temporary Road
Closure for the Louise Avenue and Harlan Road

Intersection for Construction Work Associated

with Louise Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation

CIP PS 18- 01

SUMMARY:

In August of 2020, Council authorized a construction contract with DSS Company dba
Knife River Construction   ( Knife River)  to build the Louise Avenue Pavement

Rehabilitation Project ( CIP PS 18- 01).  A temporary road closure at the Louise Avenue
and Harlan Road intersection is needed to maintain public safety, contractor safety,
and will allow for the work to be completed efficiently with minimal traffic

interruptions. The proposed intersection closure is for two nights ( 10: 00 pm - 5: 00

am) between December 16th and December 25t" with the exact date being weather
dependent.

Detour plans have been prepared and reviewed by Public Works,  Police, and Fire.

Residents, businesses, schools, California Highway Patrol ( CHP), San Joaquin County
Regional Transit District ( SCJRTD), City of Manteca, and Caltrans will be notified in

advance by mail.  Information will also be included on the City' s website prior to the
closure.

Staff requests Council authorize a temporary road closure for the Louise Avenue and
Harlan Road intersection for construction work associated with Louise Avenue

Pavement Rehabilitation CIP PS 18- 01.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The road closure and detour will be implemented by Knife River as part of their
current contract and there is no additional fiscal impact.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Authorizing Temporary Road Closure for the Louise Avenue and Harlan
Road Intersection for Construction Work Associated with Louise Avenue Pavement

Rehabilitation CIP PS 18- 01

B.  Traffic Detour Diagram - Louise Avenue and Harlan Road Intersection Closure

209



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AUTHORIZE TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE ON LOUISE AVENUE AT HARLAN

ROAD

APPROVALS:

12- 7- 02
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

r--  t Z T - Zo2A

Michael King Date

Public Works Director

j e2 L.,     I Z   1 ' ZOZU

Cari James Date

Finance & Administrative ervices Director

Z —7 - 2v 2c

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z "8' Z
Steph       .   alvatore Date

City anager

210



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE LOUISE AVENUE AND

HARLAN ROAD INTERSECTION FOR CONSTRUCTION WORK ASSOCIATED

WITH LOUISE AVENUE PAVEMENT REHABILITATION CIP PS 18- 01

WHEREAS, in August of 2020, Council authorized a construction contract with
DSS Company dba Knife River Construction ( Knife River) to build the Louise Avenue

Pavement Rehabilitation Project ( CIP PS 18- 01); and

WHEREAS, a temporary road closure at the Louise Avenue and Harlan Road
intersection is needed to maintain public safety, contractor safety and will allow for
the work to be completed efficiently; and

WHEREAS, the proposed intersection closure is for two nights ( 10: 00 pm -
5: 00 am)  between December 16t" and December 25th,  with the exact date being
weather dependent; and

WHEREAS, detour plans have been prepared and reviewed by Public Works,
Police, and Fire; and

WHEREAS, in advance, staff and Knife River will notify residents, businesses,
schools,  California Highway Patrol  ( CHP),  San Joaquin County Regional Transit
District ( RTD), City of Manteca, and Caltrans by mail.   Information relating to the
road closure will also be included on the City' s website prior to the closure; and

WHEREAS, the road closure and detour will be implemented by Knife River as
part of their current contract and there is no additional fiscal impact; and

WHEREAS, Staff requests Council authorize a temporary road closure for the
Louise Avenue and Harlan Road intersection for construction work associated with
Louise Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation CIP PS 18- 01.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby authorize a temporary road closure for the Louise Avenue and
Harlan Road intersection for construction work associated with Louise Avenue
Pavement Rehabilitation CIP PS 18- 01.

211



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of December
2020, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

212



T     ATTA HMEN      -

0
z

r

anb a ui W

r

F

X,      _  

Y µ r'     

e Q'`       _  u.. s wy s

N

J  

u   $

L G

U C a   .

1;    I5V1i Yi, llS

G

q N

I anYL        .:
dJa`      '     O

V
Sx: 4dCeLn 11

QJ
p O., i. un° q3+ f T

VIliY O       •-•;     t# AOrl; ttn r
ht; nCp

W c
ta Fa Yey

o

NS. ir
Q

O       '
t.
h

iJf3( ii

iTi.. 
f.      '.  . .        —     .

S

Lr
Y

i

iCuby i,s

a`      e Va t.,+
V/ 

i,

O        
L lti vOA J

p,
C.     

E .         

t.,  

1a: t'.: t
n' Et+ n YdaY

j          v         nt N                   _   a  
v       -    

N c      `       
o

5 t

2 pp o  .. n 6n L.    

O
puaix, ry_  

c.    . ..  .      . O
y         

m

pQ 41 c               
a  

s f, exa Z
3 v

v
N         

r
b;, nra O

i       

x

4             -      
Q 1—,     . c' t¢6(   

s

Q
y

n

Q
71! " r; ii l:     a,+- Cu' N9    ,„. du

O
Vl

JN
0   —              

1

ro t, o, aza waa            1—

w n; sra, Ka         l
z

J

5             
za a

eesws;      » sE   ,    b-0

L

J'

f;.
p r

@...", a avyy. r3„   
r9 u n, H y          ,..

W fl-   j:,
x.

w> t
o

H o z

C3 E

s

e,.  

z FM

0 jrA

Q

4
r

q(      
O

a  

ap/o   . ,
m

r
o
L

WF-       
O

O     

w           
J

F

J            

z

213



214



ITEM 4. 9

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMEBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE

BUZZ OATES DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 17100

MURPHY PARKWAY AND AUTHORIZE THE RELEASE

OF BONDS ASSOCIATED WITH EP NO. 2018- 10

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements for
the Buzz Oates Development located at 17100

Murphy Parkway and Authorize the Release of Bonds
Associated with Encroachment Permit No. 2018- 10

SUMMARY:

Buzz Oates Construction,  Inc.,  the developer for 17100 Murphy Parkway,  has

completed the construction of the public improvements. The approximate value of
the improvements being accepted is $ 434, 245. 21, as shown in the project GA5B34
Report. These improvements have been inspected by the City Engineer and have
been deemed complete.   Staff recommends City Council accept the public

improvements in accordance with City specifications. The costs to maintain these
facilities will be covered through the existing City of Lathrop Public Works operating
budget.

The developer has provided a one- year warranty bond based on 10%  of the

construction costs and a lien release for the improvements being accepted.

BACKGROUND:

17100 Murphy Parkway was originally part of the former Pilkington Property. A Lot
Line Adjustment request was approved by the City  ( LLA- 07- 147)  in 2008,  which

adjusted several property lines and resulted in the creation of the 48- acre project
site. The majority of the 48- acre site was being used as land application for treated
wastewater effluent from the Pilkington wastewater treatment facility prior to
approval of the Buzz Oates project.

On June 14, 2017, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission approved the Site Plan
Review No.  SPR- 16- 139. This allowed the construction of an 870, 240 square foot

warehouse and distribution building on the 48- acre site. The Conditions of Approval
associated with SPR- 16- 139 required the installation of frontage improvements along
Murphy Parkway and connection to existing sewer in D' Arcy Parkway.   The

improvements included but were not limited to curb, gutter,  sidewalk,  landscape,

street light,  water and sewer lines, fire hydrant, etc.

Construction of the frontage improvements are complete and the approximate value

of the improvements being accepted is $ 434, 245. 21 as shown in the project GASB
34 Report, included as Attachment C.

215



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE BUZZ OATES

DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 17100 MURPHY PARKWAY AND AUTHORIZE THE

RELEASE OF BONDS ASSOCIATED WITH EP NO. 2018- 10

The public facilities will be maintained by the City and the costs to maintain these
facilities will be covered through the existing City of Lathrop Public Works operating
budget.

Buzz Oates provided a performance bond  ( Bond No.  12163269) to the City upon
issuance of Encroachment Permit ( EP) 2018- 10 in the amount shown in Table 1 that

guaranteed the construction of the offsite improvements.   The performance bond
will be released and replaced with a warranty bond upon acceptance of the
improvements.

Table 1

Performance Warranty Bond

Description Bond Number   &    Number

Amount Amount

Encroachment Permit 12163269 12163269

2018- 10 339, 400. 00 33, 940. 00

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City Engineer has inspected the offsite improvements for the Buzz Oates project
located at 17100 Murphy Parkway and confirmed that the improvements have been
completed in accordance with City specifications. Buzz Oates has submitted a master
lien release, confirming all contractors have been paid in full, and a one- year warranty
bond for the improvements being accepted.  Staff recommends Council accept the

improvements to allow the City to provide maintenance.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The approximate value of the improvements being accepted is $ 434, 245. 21 as shown

in the project GASB34 Report and the costs to maintain these facilities will be covered
through the existing City of Lathrop Public Works operating budget.   The one- year
warranty bond covers any repairs or replacements that become necessary during the
one- year period,  beginning with this acceptance,  due to defective materials or

workmanship in connection with the completed improvements.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.     Resolution Accepting Public Improvements for the Buzz Oates Development
Located at 17100 Murphy Parkway and Authorize the Release of Bonds
Associated with Encroachment Permit No. 2018- 10

B.     Location Exhibit - 17100 Murphy Parkway Offsite Improvements

C.    GASB 34 Report - 17100 Murphy Parkway OfFsite Improvements

216



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE BUZZ OATES

DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 17100 MURPHY PARKWAY AND AUTHORIZE THE

RELEASE OF BONDS ASSOCIATED WITH EP NO. 2018- 10

APPROVALS:

2 3/ z o2

Bellal Nabizadah Date

Junior Engineer

23 Zo

Brad aylor Date

Associate Engineer

2   /     o2 2
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

G_''          ll- 2 F- 2oZc

Michael King Date

Public Wor ctor

faoa
Cari Jam,' s Date

Finance    Administrative Services Director

1_ 
30 - o z.v

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

1• ?• ZoZO

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

217



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ACCEPTING

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE BUZZ OATES DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT

17100 MURPHY PARKWAY AND AUTHORIZE THE RELEASE OF BONDS

ASSOCIATED WITH ENCROACHMENT PERMIT NO. 2018- 10

WHEREAS, 17100 Murphy Parkway was originally part of the former Pilkington
Property. A Lot Line Adjustment request was approved by the City ( LLA- 07- 147) in

2008. The majority of the 48- acre site was being used as land application for treated
wastewater effluent from the Pilkington wastewater treatment facility; and

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2017, City of Lathrop Planning Commission approved
the Site Plan Review No. SPR- 16- 139. This allowed the construction of an 870, 240

square foot warehouse and distribution building on the 48- acre site; and

WHEREAS, the Conditions of Approval associated with SPR- 16- 139 required

the installation of frontage improvements along Murphy Parkway. The improvements
included but were not limited to curb, gutter, sidewalk, landscape, street light, fire
hydrant, etc.; and

WHEREAS, construction of the frontage improvements is complete and the

approximate value of the improvements being accepted is $ 434, 245. 21 as shown in

the project GASB 34 Report, included as Attachment C" to the City Managers Report;
and

WHEREAS, the public facilities will be maintained by the City and the costs to
maintain these facilities will be covered through the existing City of Lathrop Public
Works operating budget; and

WHEREAS,  Buzz Oats Construction Inc.  has provided Warranty Bonds to
guarantee replacement and/ or repair of the improvements as a result of defective
materials, equipment, or defective workmanship for a period of one year from the
date of acceptance; and

WHEREAS, Buzz Oates provided a performance bond ( Bond No.  12163269)

to the City upon issuance of Encroachment Permit 2018- 10 in the amount shown in
Table 1 that guaranteed the construction of the offsite improvements.     The

performance bond will be released and replaced with a warranty bond upon
acceptance of the improvements; and

Table 1

Performance Warranty Bond
Description Bond Number &     Number &

Amount Amount

Encroachment Permit 12163269 12163569

2018- 10 339, 400. 00 33, 940. 00

218



WHEREAS, the City Engineer has inspected the offsite improvements for the
Buzz Oates project located at 17100 Murphy Parkway and confirmed that the
improvements have been completed in accordance with City specifications; and

WHEREAS,  Buzz Oates has submitted a master lien release, confirming all
contractors have been paid in full,   and a one- year warranty bond for the

improvements being accepted. Staff recommends Council accept the improvements

to allow the City to provide maintenance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby accept the public improvements for the Buzz Oates development
located at 17100 Murphy Parkway and authorize the release of bonds associated with
Encroachment Permit No. 2018- 10.

219



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of December
2020, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas Salvador Navarrete

City Clerk City Attorney

220



ATTACHMENT B

r,:     --

At:., Fl N' ay
y

E.` L'bfJ'ISE AVE
isw,.•.-. . , C6 Steel Butlding&      .      .

a. pi3kim m Noe4iaAm rica 
T

d l

arget+      g

q     
PF OJECT Super Store 1ndArstsies 

I C^ A.TIO 
r,. ru''

Q ,
Z ,       z

m

Go a;. • Swift transpar[ attcn    D
ImN Ou a _ r-    a Z

4,    ;, P

e AR Y pKw,-
s,

Gardner 7' ruck' g,^

VF Lathrop/ Manteca gST( F w  .       y-
1P VIERRA RD

AY '      
S

P'`     YOSEMITE A   

E

l OS

the Hcme Depot imp rt
LrstnbutionCentet

oS M- E P` E    :
w`      JC

i

c

G
C     

T

r

t di 9.,       
UfP

m
m

o
Z     soantoNfay

H`
d

s''`

e'''   Raya1W wsy
S .._ raRu°   

BUZZ OATS Project No. 11125287

N MURPHY PARKWAY OFF- SITE IMPROVEMENTS Report No.

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA Date 1110612020

SCALE: NTS

LOCATION MAP FIGURE 1
Filename: N IUSICameron ParklPwjectstl11111125287106- CADIFigureslLocation Map. dwg
Plot Date: 6 Navember 2020- 1122 AM 221



ATTACHMENT C

CITY OF LATHROP

Project Acceptance

GA56 34 REPORT)

Date: 11- 10- 2020

Submitted by: Buzz Oates Construction
17100 Murphy Parkway- Offsite Improvements-

Lathrop, CA

Based on Improvement and Grading Plans prepared by GHD, Inc. dated 03- 09- 2018

Item Unit Quantity Unit Cost Cost

Traffic Contol for all Off- Site Work LS 1 24, 000. 00  $     24, 000. 00

Sawcut for Sewer Install LF 2520 225  $      5, 670. 00

Grind AC from Murphy Parkway SF 18095 0. 52  $      9, 409. 40

Rough Grade/ Road Ex CY 400 12. 00  $      4, 800. 00

Subgrade& Fine Grade Gurb& Gutters& DW LF 268 4. 00  $       1, 072. 00

Subgrade& Fine Grade AC Areas SF 5714 025  $       1, 428. 50

6" AB under Curb& Gutter& DW SF 1109 125  $       1, 38625

15" AB under Pavement SF 5714 1. 90  $      10, 856. 60

Vertical Curb& Gutter City Det R- 7 LF 268 19. 00  $      5, 092. 00

Comm. Driveway w/ 2 Curb Ramps EA 1 10, 750. 00  $     10, 750. 00

7. 5" AC Pavement SF 5714 430  $     24, 57020

Connect to Existing SSMH- Offsite EA 1 25, 000. 00  $     25, 000. 00

10" Sewer PVC SDR 26 in Ex. Street LF 920 I 15. 00  $    105, 800. 00

Sanitary Sewer Manhole EA 3 7, 000. 00  $     21, 000. 00

Sewer AC Repair- 8ft Wide Per Plan& Det R28B LF 840 75. 00  $     63; 000. 00

Concrete Repairs- Offsite Sewer LS 1 17, 000. 00  $     17, 000. 00

Connect to Existing SDMH EA 1 15, 000. 00  $     15, 000. 00

48" Storm RCP LF 65 190. 00  $     12, 350. 00

24" Storm RCP LF 72 65. 00  $      4, 680. 00

Storm Drain Saddle Manhole EA 1 6, 900. 00  $      6, 900. 00

Connect to Existing Water- Offsite EA 1 5, 000. 00  $      5, 000. 00

0" Fire Water PVC LF 239 50. 00  $     11, 950. 00

l0" Gate Valve EA 4 2, 350. 00  $      9, 400. 00

Subtotal:       $  396, 114. 95

Change Orders

Gas Abandonment 1- S 1 20, 857. 00  $     20, 857. 00

D' Arcy sewer tie- in: premium time 1- S 1 4, 432. 00  $      4, 432. 00

Murphy storm drain weekend tie in LS 1 3, 554. 00  $      3, 554. 00

Off-site Curb and Gutter LF 522 14. 00  $      7, 30526

Gas Abandonment Landscaping LS 1 1, 982. 00  $       1, 982. 00

Grand Total:     $  434, 245. 21

222



ITEM 4. 10

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  19 WITH 4LEAF,
INC.,     FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 19
Pursuant to Master Professional Services

Consulting Agreement dated September 21,
2015, with 4Leaf, Inc., to provide Professional
Consulting Services in the Building Division

SUMMARY:

On September 21,  2015,  City Council approved a Master Professional Services
Consulting Agreement for various professional services in the Building Division.  On

May 13, 2019, City Council approved an extension to the Master Professional Services
Consulting Agreement through June 30, 2021.  A series of various task orders have

been previously approved to provide various professional services within the Building
Division, such as professional building inspection, and plan checking.

Due to the increase in building activity, continued professional services in the Building
Division are needed to process building permits, collect fees and perform in- house
plan checks.  These services allow the City to quickly process complex structural plan
checks for major commercial, industrial and residential projects.

Tonight, staff is requesting City Council approval of Task Order No.  19 with 4Leaf,

Inc.,  to provide continued professional consultant services for an amount not to
exceed  $ 156, 000.  Sufficient funds have been included in fiscal year 2020- 21
approved budget and will be paid from funds allocated in the Building Division
professional services.

BACKGROUND:

The City anticipates the need for additional professional services in the Building
Division for a specialized Building Inspector to handle complex jobs to keep pace with
ongoing development.  When building activity exceeds staff resources, we use the

services of outside consultants, including 4Leaf, Inc. to provide professional building
services.  Due to the increased building activity, there continues to be a need for

continued professional services.

The City recovers its costs to provide building services for active construction projects
by charging a construction permit fee collected when building permits are issued.
These services are fully funded in the Building Division budget and offset by revenue
received from building permits.

223



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.    19 WITH 4LEAF,   INC.,   TO PROVIDE

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES

Below is a summary table of previously approved task orders to date:

Task Order No. Date A roved Work Sco e Descri tion

1 09/ 21/ 15 Staff Au mentation

2 09/ 21/ 15 Plan Check Services

3 07/ 18/ 16 Plan Check Services

4 10/ 17/ 16 Plan Check Services

5 12/ 05/ 16 Ins ection Services

6 06/ 19/ 17 Plan Check Services

7 06/ 19/ 17 Ins ection Services

8 01/ 29/ 18 Chief Buildin Official

9 06/ 11/ 18 Chief Buildin Official

10 06/ 21/ 18 Ins ection Services

11 10/ 08/ 18 Plan Check Services

12 05/ 13/ 19 Ins ection Services

13 05/ 13/ 19 Staff Au mentation Services

14 6/ 10/ 2019 Interim Chief Buildin Official

15 10/ 14/ 2019 Professional Services

16 12/ 9/ 2019 Staff Au mentation Services

17 10/ 12/ 2020 Interim Chief Buildin Official

18 11/ 9/ 2020 Ins ection Services

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Additional professional services are needed in the Building Division to keep up with
the continued increase in construction activity related to capital improvement, private
land development, and residential, commercial and industrial projects. The ability to
use the services of outside consultants makes it possible to continue providing timely
response times to our residents, businesses and developers.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of the task order is not to exceed $ 156, 000 and will be paid on a time and
material basis. Sufficient funds have been included in fiscal year 2020- 21 approved
budget and will be paid from funds allocated in the Building Division professional
services.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Task Order No.   19 Pursuant to Master Consulting
Agreement dated September 21, 2015 with 4Leaf, Inc. to provide Professional
Consulting Services in the Building Division

B.  Task Order No. 19 Pursuant to Master Consulting Agreement dated September
21, 2015 with 4Leaf, Inc. to provide Professional Consulting Services in the
Building Division

224



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  19 WITH 4LEAF,  INC.,  TO PROVIDE STAFF

AUGMENTATION SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

APPROVALS:

12  3 ZoZo

Michael King Date

Public Works Director

c,, 2 ' 3' Z-°

Cari James Date

Director of Finance & Administrative

Services

Z, 3 —' Z- 

Salvador Navarrete Dtae
City Attorney

Z •. ZaZo

S hen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

225



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TASK ORDER NO.  19 PURSUANT TO MASTER PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED SEPTEMBER 21,  2015,  WITH

4LEAF, INC., TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES IN THE

BUILDING DIVISION

WHEREAS, due to the increased building activity, there continues to be a need
for continued professional consulting services; and

WHEREAS,  4Leaf has the qualifications necessary to provide additional
professional services in the Building Division; and

WHEREAS,   on September 21,   2015,   City Council approved a Master

Professional Services Consulting Agreement for various professional services in the
Building Division and on May 13, 2019, City Council approved an extension to the
Master Professional Services Consulting Agreement through June 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, a series of various task orders have been previously approved to
provide various professional services within the Building Division,   such as

professional building inspection, and plan checking; and

WHEREAS, tonight, staff is requesting City Council approval ofTask Order No.
19 with 4Leaf,  Inc.,  to provide continued professional consulting services in the
Building Division for an amount not to exceed $ 156, 000; and

WHEREAS,  sufficient funds have been included in fiscal year 2020- 21
approved budget and will be paid from funds allocated in the Building Division
professional services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve Task Order No.  19 Pursuant to Master Professional

Services Consulting Agreement dated September 21,  2015,  with 4Leaf,  Inc.,  to

provide Professional Consulting Services in the Building Division.

226



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of December
2020, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

227



ATTACHMENT B

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 19

PURSUANT TO MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED
SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 WITH 4LEAF, INC.

TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES IN THE
BUILDING DIVISION

THIS TASK ORDER NO. 19 dated for convenience this 14t'' day of December
2020 is by and made and entered into by and between 4LEAF, Inc. (" CONSULTANT")
and the CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS,  on September 21,  2015,  CONSULTANT entered into a Master

Agreement with the CITY, and parties approved an extension of the term to June 30, 2021
pursuant to an Amendment No.  2 to the Master Agreement dated May 13,  2019

AGREEMENT")  by which the CONSULTANT has agreed to provide Interim Chief
Building Official Consultant Services; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
Provide Professional Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Consulting
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation Of Master Aqreement

This Task Order hereby incorporates by reference all terms and conditions
set forth in the Master Agreement for Consulting Services for this project,
unless specifically modified by this Task Order.

2)      Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Professional Consulting Services in
accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided in Exhibit "A"
to this Task Order.

Page 1 of 3

228



CITY OF LATHROP  — TASK ORDER NO.  19 WITH 4LEAF INC.,  TO PROVIDE

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance
with the upmost standards of its profession and to the CITY' S satisfaction.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Task Order No. 19 is December 14, 2020, and

it shall terminate no later than June 30, 2021.

4)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT hourly rates and other charges
detailed in Exhibit " A" up to a total sum not to exceed $ 156, 000 to provide
Professional Consulting Services.    CONSULTANT shall be paid any
uncontested sum due and payable within thirty ( 30)  days of receipt of

billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 in the Master
Consulting Agreement Dated September 21, 2015.

5)       Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall
receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall
not be issued until all necessary insurance have been received.  City shall
not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services rendered prior to
issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

6)       Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right,  power,  legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the
CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Page 2 of 3

229



CITY OF LATHROP  — TASK ORDER NO.  19 WITH 4LEAF INC.,  TO PROVIDE

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

f Z 3-- w

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved by:
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   4 Leaf Inc.

2126 Rheem Drive, Suite A

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Fed I D # 94- 3393574

Bus License # 20088

Signature Date

Kevin J. Dugqan, President

Print Name and title)

Page 3 of 3

230



EXHIBIT A
41. EAF, INC.
ENGINEERING . CONSTRUGT70N MANAGEMENT

PLAN CHFCK. BUILDING INSPECTION. PLANNWG

2020- 21 FEE SCHEDULE & BASIS OF CHARGES

For the City of Lathrop
Ali Rates are Subject to Basis of Charges

Plan Check Services
Fee for 15t review and Hourly rate foron- site and/ or greater

two( 2) subsequent than three ( 3) reviews off-site( with

rechecks authorization from Director):

Life Health Safety, Structural,
ADA Requirements, andTitle 24

0

129/ hour structural

Energy Requirement Plan Checks
0/ of City fee

105/ hour non- structural

Plumbing/ Mechanical/ Electrical

Only Plan Checks
40% of City fee 105/ hour non- structural

Structural Only Plan Checks 40% of City fee 129/ hour structural

Additional Buildine Deaartment Services

Senior Combination Building Inspector...................................................................$ 105/ hour

Commercial Building Inspector...............................................................................$ 105/ hour

Residential Buildinglnspector.................................................................................$ 95/ hour

Training Building Inspector......................................................................................$ 85/ hour

CodeEnforcement...................................................................................................$ 95/ hour

Senior PermitTechnician.........................................................................................$ 75/ hour

PermitTechnician....................................................................................................$ 68/ hour

Administrative Support...........................................................................................$ 63/ hour

On- Site Plan Review Engineer.......................................................................................$ 129/ hour

On- Site Non- Structural Plans Examiner........................................................................$ 105/ hour

FireReview..............................................................................................................$ 160/ hour

Inspectorof Record ( including DSAorOSHPD).............................................................$ 135/ hour

PublicWorks Inspector............................................................................................$ 155/ hour

Interim Chief Building Official .................................................................................$ 135/ hour

CASpInspection.............................................................................................................$ 155/ hour

Off- Site Project Manager ........................................................................................$ 165/ hour

Principal- in- Charge..................................................................................................$ 185/ hour

Hourly overtime charge per inspector.................................................................... 1. 5 x hourly rate

Mileage ( for inspections performed within the City)............................................. IRS Rate+ 20%

Plan Check and Inspection Services for the City of Lathrop Page 1
Fee Schedule November 2, 2020

231



4LEAF, I vC.
ENGiNEERING . CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

P1AN CHECK. BUILDING INSPECTION. PIANNWG

BASIS OF CHARGES

Rates are inclusive of" tools of the trade" such as forms, telephones, and consumables.

All invoicing will be submitted monthly.

Staff Augmentation work ( excluding plan review) is subject to 4- hour minimum charges unless
stated otherwise.

Most fire plan reviews will be done within 10 business days and within 5 business days for re-

checks. This is not inclusive of holidays or the day of the pick- up of plans.
Expedited reviews will be billed 45% of the plan check fee collected by the City, return time will

be within seven ( 7) days of receipt of the plans from the City.
Plan review of deferred submittals& revisions will be billed at the hourly rates listed above.

All plan review services will be subject to a $ 250.00 minimum fee if percentage- based fee or two
2) hour minimum charge if hourly rates apply.  

4LEAF assumes that these rates reflect the 2020- 2021 contract period. 3% escalation for

2021/ 2022 is negotiable per market conditions. See Attachment A for reference to a 3% escalation

for 2021/ 2022 if escalation is enacted.

Overtime and Premium time will be charged as follows:

Regu/ ar time( work begun after 5AM or before 4PMJ 1 x hourly rate
Nighttime( work begun after 4PM or before SAMJ 1. 125 x hourly rate
Overtime( over 8- hour M- F or SaturdaysJ 1. 5 x hourly rate
Overtime( over 8 hours Sat or 15T 8- hour SunJ 2 x hourly rate
Overtime( over 8 hours Sun or HolidaysJ 3 x hourly rate

Overtime will only be billed with prior authorization of designated Authority personnel.
All work with less than 8 hours rest between shifts will be charged the appropriate overtime

rate.

Mileage driven during Inspections will be charged at cost plus 20%.
Payment due on receipt. All payments over 30 days will be assessed a 1. 5% interest charge.

Client shall pay attorneys' fees, or other costs incurred in collecting delinquent amounts.

Client agrees that 4LEAF' s liability will be limited to the value of services provided.

Plan Check and Inspection Services for the City of Lathrop Page 2
Fee Schedule November 2, 2020

232



ITEM 4. 11

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS

FOR CIP WW 20- 17 SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE

PRO7ECT AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Professional Services
Agreements with Robertson- Bryan Inc.,    KPFF

Consulting Engineers, and PACE for CIP WW 20- 17

Surface Water Discharge Project and Related Budget

Amendment

SUMMARY:

The Surface Water Discharge Project Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) WW 20- 17

was created to obtain a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System  ( NPDES)

permit to discharge effluent generated by the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility
LCTF) to the San Joaquin River.   This project is needed to minimize future sewer

rate increases and support growth as the City' s wastewater flows increase and land
becomes unavailable for the storage and disposal of recycled water.

The project is currently completing the environmental phase and transiting into the
final design so that construction can start in the summer of 2021.  Therefore,

additional services from Robertson- Bryan Inc.  ( RBI),  KPFF Consulting Engineers
KPFF), and PACE are needed to further advance the project design and permitting

efforts with the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board ( CVRWQCB).

The table below summarizes the requested Professional Services Agreements ( PSAs)

with their respective project scope and cost:

Consultant Sco e Cost

RBI Amendment 1   -   NPDES Permitting Support 67, 460

Services

KPFF Amendment 2  -  River Discharge Outfall Design 142, 100

and Construction Admin Services

PACE A reement - CTF Modifications Desi n Services 214, 670

PSA' s subtotal 424, 230

10% Contin enc 42, 423

Total 466, 653

Staff is recommending Council approve the additional PSAs with RBI, KPFF and PACE.
Sufficient funds were not included in the adopted Fiscal Year 20/ 21 budget; therefore,

staff is requesting a related budget amendment in the amount of $ 424, 230 and a

10% contingency in the amount of $ 42, 423 for a total cost not to exceed $ 466, 653

to transfer funds from the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund 6030 to CIP WW 20- 17.

233



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS FOR CIP WW 20- 17

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PRO) ECT AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

BACKGROUND:

Wastewater from the City of Lathrop is treated at two separate facilities, the City of
Manteca' s Wastewater Quality Control Flow   ( WQCF)   and the LCTF.   Treated

wastewater effluent from the Manteca WQCF is primarily disposed of via discharge to
the San Joaquin River.    Treated wastewater effluent from the LCTF is currently
discharged to land via ponds and sprayfields.  LCTF effluent disposal and reuse is

regulated by the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board ( CVRWQCB).

In April 2017, City staff initiated discussions with the Central Valley Water Board staff
regarding obtaining a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System  ( NPDES)

permit for a surface water discharge as a means of disposing of CTF effluent in the
future.

On January 14, 2019, Council approved an agreement with Robertson- Bryan, Inc. to
prepare reports to support Environmental Review and NPDES Permitting of a LCTF
Surface Water Discharge for a cost of $ 74, 939.

On June 10, 2019, Council approved Task Order No. 2 with Ascent Environmental,

Inc. to prepare the Phase 1 CEQA Documents for the Surface Water Discharge Project
for a cost of $ 91, 287.

On October 14, 2019, Council approved the creation of CIP WW 20- 17 in order to

track costs related to the Surface Water Discharge project, and approved an initial
project budget of $ 250, 000.

On April 13, 2020, Council approved ratification of Professional Services Agreements

PSAs) with Ascent for a cost of $ 574, 446 and with KPFF Consulting Engineers for a
cost of $ 322, 000 in order to prepare a Draft and Final Environmental Impact Report
EIR) to meet the project CEQA requirements.

On July 13,  2020, Council approved PSAs with Ascent,  RBI, and EKI for a cost of

407, 418 to further advance the project design and permitting efforts with the
CVRWQCB.

Obtaining a surface water discharge permit is a complex process that involves
extensive coordination between City staff,  developers,  specialized consultants,

multiple permitting agencies, and, eventually,  construction contractors.   Staff has

worked closely with the CVRWQCB and made substantial progress over the past two
years.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The ability to dispose of effluent from the LCTF to surface water is necessary to
minimize future rate increases and support growth as the City' s wastewater flows to
increase and land becomes unavailable for the storage and disposal of recycled water.

234



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS FOR CIP WW 20- 17

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PRO) ECT AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Additional services from RBI,  KPFF, and PACE are needed to further advance the

project design and permitting efforts with the CVRWQCB.
FISCAL IMPACT:

The table below summarizes additional Professional Services Agreements ( PSAs) and

the associated cost needed to further advance the Surface Water Discharge Project:

Consultant Sco e Cost

RBI Amendment 1   -   NPDES Permitting Support 67, 460

Services

KPFF Amendment 2  -  River Discharge Outfall Design 142, 100

and Construction Admin Services

PACE A reement - CTF Modifications Desi n Services 214, 670

PSA' s subtotal 424, 230

10% Contingency 42, 423

Total 466, 653

Funds approved in the Surface Water Discharge Project CIP WW 20- 17 in fiscal year
2020/ 2021 are insufficient to further advance this project.  Therefore,  staff is

requesting City Council approve a budget amendment transferring $ 424, 230 and a

10% contingency in the amount of $ 42, 423 for a total cost not to exceed $ 466, 653

from the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund 6030 to CIP WW 20- 17 as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

6030- 9900- 990- 9010 466, 653

Increase Transfer In

6090- 9900- 393- 0000 WW 20- 17 466, 653

Increase Appropriation

6090- 8000- 420- 83- 00 WW 20- 17 466, 653

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Professional Services Agreements with Robertson- Bryan
Inc.,  KPFF Consulting Engineers, Inc., and PACE for CIP WW 20- 17 Surface

Water Discharge Project and Related Budget Amendment

B.       Amendment No.  1 to Professional Services Agreement with Robertson- Bryan

Inc. to Provide Additional NPDES Permitting Support Services for the Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project - CIP WW

20- 17

235



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS FOR CIP WW 20- 17

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PRO) ECT AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

C.       Amendment No.  2 to Professional Services Agreement with KPFF to Provide

River Discharge Outfall Design and Construction Administration Services for

the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project
CIP WW 20 17

D.       Professional Services Agreement with PACE for Modifications Design Services

for the Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project - CIP

WW 20- 17

236



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS FOR CIP WW 20- 17

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PRO7ECT AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

t 2—2 Zoto

Michael King Date

Public Works Director

J ava.r

Cari Jam s Date

Finance & A ministrative Services Director

4--    

j Z - 3- z-o 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z• ?• LoZo

en ). Salvatore Date

City Manager

237



RESOLUTION NO. 20 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS WITH ROBERTSON-

BRYAN INC., KPFF CONSULTING ENGINEERS, AND PACE FOR CIP WW 20- 17

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PRO) ECT AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the CIP WW 20- 17 Surface Water Discharge project was created
to construct the necessary infrastructure and obtain a National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System ( NPDES) permit from the Central Valley Regional Water Quality
Control Board  ( CLRWQCB) to allow discharge of tertiary treated effluent from the
Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF) to the San Joaquin River; and

WHEREAS, the ability to dispose of effluent from the LCTF to surface water is
necessary to minimize future rate increases and support growth as the City' s
wastewater flows to increase and land becomes unavailable for the storage and

disposal of recycled water; and

WHEREAS,  on January 14,  2019 Council approved an agreement with

Robertson- Bryan, Inc. ( RBI) to prepare reports to support Environmental Review and
NPDES Permitting of a CTF Surface Water Discharge for a cost of $ 74, 939; and

WHEREAS, on June 10, 2019 Council approved Task Order No. 2 with Ascent

Environmental, Inc. ( Ascent) to Prepare the Phase 1 California Environmental Quality
Act ( CEQA) Documents for the Surface Water Discharge Project for a cost of$ 91, 287;

and

WHEREAS, on October 14, 2019, Council approved the creation of CIP WW

20- 17 in order to track costs related to the Surface Water Discharge project and
approved an initial project budget of $ 250, 000; and

WHEREAS, on April 13,  2020,  Council approved ratification of Professional

Services Agreements  ( PSAs)  with Ascent for a cost of $ 574, 446 and with KPFF

Consulting Engineers for a cost of $ 322, 000 in order to prepare a Draft and Final
Environmental Impact Report ( EIR) to meet the project CEQA requirements; and

WHEREAS, On July 13, 2020, Council approved PSAs with Ascent, RBI, and

EKI for a cost of $ 407, 418 to further advance the project design and permitting
efforts with the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board  ( CVRWQCB);

and

WHEREAS, additional services from Robertson- Bryan Inc.  ( RBI),  KPFF and

PACE are needed to further advance the project design and permitting efforts with
the CVRWQCB; and

238



WHEREAS, the table below summarizes the requested Professional Services

Agreements ( PSAs); and

Consultant Sco e Cost

RBI Amendment 1   -   NPDES Permitting Support 67, 460

Services

KPFF Amendment 2  -  River Discharge Outfall Design 142, 100

and Construction Admin Services

PACE A reement - CTF Modifications Desi n Services 214, 670

PSA' s subtotal 424, 230

10% Contingency 42, 423

Total 466, 653

WHEREAS, sufficient funds were not included in the adopted Fiscal Year 20/ 21

budget and staff is requesting City Council approve a budget amendment transferring
466, 653 from the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund 6030 to CIP WW 20- 17 as

follows:

Increase Transfer Out

6030- 9900- 990- 9010       ( Wastewater Connection Fee)     $ 466, 653

Increase Transfer In

6090- 9900- 393- 0000       ( Wastewater CIP WW 20- 17)      $ 466 653

Increase Appropriation

6090- 8000- 420- 83- 00     ( Wastewater CIP WW 20- 17)      $ 466, 653

NOW THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve Professional Services Agreements with RBI for a cost
of $ 67, 460, with KPFF for a cost of $ 142, 100 and with PACE for a cost of $ 214, 670

in order to further advance project design and permitting efforts with the Central
Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board  ( CVRWQCB)  for the CIP WW 20- 17

Surface Water Discharge project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve a budget amendment in the amount of $ 466, 653 to transfer funds

from the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund 6030 to CIP WW 20- 17.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of athrop does
hereby approve a 10% contingency in the amount of $ 42, 423 for a total budget of

466, 653 and authorizes staff to spend the contingency as necessary to achieve goals
of the project.

239



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of December
2020, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO F RM:

L-- t-,

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

240



ATTACHMENT B

AMENDMENT NO. 1

TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

ROBERTS- BRYAN, INC. DATED JULY 13, 2020

TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT - CIP WW 20- 17

THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT  ( hereinafter " AMENDMENT NO.  1")  to the

agreement between Robertson- Bryan, Inc. and the City of Lathrop dated July 13, 2020,
hereinafter" AGREEMENT") dated for convenience this 14th day of December 2020, is

by and between Robertson- Bryan, Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the City of Lathrop, a
California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Engineering Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an AGREEMENT to provide
Engineering Consulting Services for the Surface Water Discharge Project — CIP WW 20-

17, dated July 13, 2020; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT provided scope of work attached hereto as Exhibit " A"
for Amendment No. 1 for additional Engineering Consulting Services in support to the
Surface Water Discharge Project — CIP WW 20- 17; and

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is willing to render such Engineering Consulting
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service.  Section ( 1) of the AGREEMENT for Consulting is
hereby amended to add the following:

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Engineering Consulting Services in accordance
with the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached
hereto as Exhibit " A" in addition to the scope of work in the original AGREEMENT
dated July 13, 2020. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in
accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and to CITY' S satisfaction.

Page 1 of 3

241



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1

WITH ROBERTSON- BRYAN, INC. FOR CIP WW 20- 17

2)      Compensation.     Section  ( 2)  of the AGREEMENT for Consulting
Services is hereby amended as follows:

City hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT an additional sum not to exceed $ 67, 460

for the Engineering Consulting Services set forth in Exhibit " A".  CONSULTANT

shall be paid within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings containing all information
contained in Paragraph 5 of the original AGREEMENT. Compensation for any task
must be equal to or less than the percentage of task complete. In no event shall
CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in the original

scope of work and this AMENDMENT unless a written change order or

authorization describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by
CITY' S Authorized Representative prior to the commencement of the work.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of AMENDMENT NO. 1 is December 14th, 2020, and it shall
terminate no later than June 30, 2022. All other terms of the original AGREEMENT

shall remain in full force and effect.

4)      Applicabilitv to Original Consultant AGREEMENT

All terms and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT dated July 13, 2020 are still
in effect and are incorporated by reference herein and said AGREEMENT is
incorporated by reference herein.

5)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this AMENDMENT NO.  1 represent and warrant that
they have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute
this AMENDMENT NO.  1 on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be

binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 2 of 3

242



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1

WITH ROBERTSON- BRYAN, INC. FOR CIP WW 20- 17

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Z tA2o

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved by:       City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Consultant:  Robertson- Bryan, Inc.

9888 Kent St.

Elk Grove, CA 95624

Fed I D #

Business License # 20647

Signature Date

Print Name and Title)

Page 3 of 3

243



EXHIBIT A

C Roe rson- SRrAnr, Inc.
Sotutions for Progress

October 16, 2020

DELIVERED BY EMAIL

Mr. Michael King
Public Works Director

City of Lathrop
390 Town Center Dr

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject:   Proposal to Provide Professional Services in Support of Obtaining a New
NPDES Permit for the Consolidated Treatment Facility (CTF) to Allow
Surface Water Discharge

Dear Michael:

Robertson- Bryan, Inc. ( RBI) has prepared this proposal to provide professional services to the
City of Lathrop ( City) in support of obtaining a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System ( NPDES) permit from the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board
Central Valley Water Board) that will authorize effluent discharge from the City' s

Consolidated Treatment Facility (CTF) to the San Joaquin River. This proposal included the
continuation of ongoing services as well as new services need to support the NPDES
permitting process. RBI' s scope and budget for providing these services are provided below.

I. BACKGROUND

The City is currently preparing documentation for a surface water discharge of CTF treated
effluent into the San Joaquin River. The CTF treats effluent to " disinfected tertiary 2. 2"
criteria for use as recycled water and land application ( i. e., currently no surface water
discharge). Disinfected tertiary 2. 2 recycled water is wastewater that has been treated to
achieve a total coliform concentration of less than 2. 2 most probable number( MPN) per 100
mL ( MPN/ 100mL). Because of anticipated growth in the City, land areas for land application
will be converted into entitled developments. This will reduce the amount of available land

for application of treated effluent and requires the City to develop a surface water discharge
project.

RBI has been extensively involved in the document preparation for the surface water
discharge project. As part of these efforts, we have collected effluent quality data at the CTF
and provided technical advisory services. We recommend continuing to collect temperature
data at the CTF until an NPDES permit has been issued. Also, we recommend setting aside
funding for RBI technical advisory services so that we may continue to provide these services
to address issues that may arise through the NPDES permitting process, reyuire timely
resolution, and are not currently funded in another contract.

9888 Kent Street Phone 916. 714. 1801

Elk Grove CA 95624 Fax 916. 714. 1804

www.roberfson- bryan. com

244



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
October l6, 2020

Page 2 T RoeERrson- B R/ nc.

Solutions for Progress

In addition, as part of our past effluent quality characterization work, we observed
trihalomethane ( THM) concentrations in CTF effluent that are approximately double the
levels observed in other Central Valley dischargers' effluents that are disinfected using
chlorine. RBI has experience with other Central Valley land application dischargers that
produce disinfected tertiary recycled water. We recognize that because THM concentrations
are not a concern for land application dischargers, these treatment plants, like the CTF, often
do not optimize the use of chlorine and contact time to achieve total coliform concentrations

of 2. 2 MPN/ 100 mL while also minimizing THM levels in treated effluent.

THM generation results from the interaction of chlorine, used for disinfection, with the
organic material and bromide in the effluent. As the combination of chlorine dose and contact

time for disinfection increase, effluent THM concentrations also increase. Optimization of

the chlorine disinfection process identifies the minimum amount of dose and contact time that
is needed to provide adequate disinfection and minimizes THM production.

As the City pursues the surface water discharge and the associated NPDES discharge permit,
it will be vital to demonstrate to the Central Valley Water Board that the City has taken
appropriate steps to minimize THM production in the treatment process. It is important for
the City to demonstrate this to the Central Valley Board in the near future for several reasons.
First, the City will need a mixing zone granted in its initial NPDES permit for THMs, and
permitting staff may not be willing to provide large enough mixing zones for the current THM
levels, based on their knowledge of lower THM levels in other chlorination plant effluents.
Second, once an NPDES permit is issued, the City will be held to maximum THM effluent
limits. Modification of chlorine dose and contact time to reduce effluent THM levels is best

performed prior to being held to specific THM limitations in the effluent. This is because
failure to comply with effluent THM limitation is the new NPDES permit could result in fines
imposed by the Central Valley Water Board for permit violations.  Finally, the City needs to
know if they can successfully reduce effluent THM levels if Central Valley Water Board
permitting staff request them to do so.

RBI' s scope of work and budget for the services identified above are provided below.

I. SCOPE OF WORK

TASK 1: CONTINUED CTF TEMPERATURE MONITORING

It is important for RBI to continue collecting CTF effluent temperature data to support
NPDES permit renewal. Compliance with permitted temperature limitations that derive from
the State Thermal Plan will be a key concern of NPDES permit writers. Consequently, having
a robust effluent temperature data set to support our Report of Waste Discharge ( ROWD)

analyses and any compliance- related concerns that permit writers may have, even after
submittal of the ROWD, is important. This will be accomplished by continuing to use
OnsetTM data loggers to record hourly effluent temperature at the CTF. RBI staff will travel
once per month to the CTF to download data from the Onset loggers using a HOBO
waterproof shuttle. RBI will download data from the shuttle into an MS Excel spreadsheet

245



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
October 16, 2020

Page 3 RoB non- B qn,/ nc.
Solufions for Progress

and review the data for abnormalities ( e. g., outliers, air temperature readings). This scope of
work is to continue monitoring through October 2021, which is the anticipated NPDES permit
adoption date.

TASK 2: ON- CALL TECHNICAL ADVISORY SERVICES

Funding for this task will enable RBI staff to provide timely services to address issues as they
arise and as directed by City staff. Services to be provided under this task may include, but
would not be limited to, the following.

Art O' Brien, Principal Engineer at RBI, to serve as a Technical Advisor to the City
for development/ refinement of the engineering elements of the CTF surface water
discharge project through NPDES permit issuance.

Additional meetings, conference calls, or calculations requested by Central Valley
Water Board NPDES permitting staff and/ or management that are not scoped or
budgeted in our permitting contract with the City.

Other technical analyses or data collection to further develop the NPDES permit
application, should such requests be made by Central Valley Water Board NPDES
permitting staff.

Review of revised, expanded capacity WDRs.

Other services as needed and directed by City staff.

TASK 3: EFFLUENT DISINFECTION AND THM LEVEL EVALUATION

SUBTASK 3A: SITE VISIT

RBI will visit the CTF and meet with the operators to obtain a better understanding of the
chlorine disinfection process, discuss the need for reduction of THM concentrations, and to
understand any constraints and challenges with the disinfection process. During the site visit,
RBI would like to review disinfection process data, including chlorine doses and contact
times. We will request appropriate data for further analysis.

SUBTASK 3B: REVIEW OF DATA

RBI will review the data collected during the site visit, along with the monthly discharge
reports submitted to the Central Valley Board. RBI will summarize the information in tables
and charts and meet with the City and operators via a conference call to discuss our initial
findings.

246



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
October 16, 2020

Pa e 4 r''  , RoeERrson- BmAn, Inc,g 1    SolatiortsforProgress

SUBTASK 3C: PREPARE TESTING PLAN

Based on RBI' s review of the data and the conference call described in Task 2, RBI will

prepare a testing plan that prescribes a process to evaluate the appropriate combination of
dose and contact time that will achieve Title 22 disinfection requirements and reduce effluent

THM concentrations. The testing plan will prescribe a procedure to facilitate evaluation of
various combinations of chlorine dose and contact time. Each scenario testing will involve
analysis of Total Coliform and THMs to determine the effectiveness of the test scenario in

meeting Title 22 disinfection requirements and reducing THM production.

A draft testing plan will be provided to the City for review in Microsoft Word format, with
any appendices provided in PDF format. RBI will revise the testing plan based on the City' s
review, and will issue a final testing plan in PDF format, complete with any appendices.

SUBTASK 3D: TESTING PLAN IMPLEMENTATION

RBI will work with the City and operators to develop a schedule for implementation of the
Testing Plan, and will coordinate with the City and operators on procurement of any
necessary instrumentation, sample collection bottles, and testing supplies.  RBI staff will be
on- site at the CTF during the first day of implementation of the Testing Plan to ensure the
Testing Plan is implemented appropriately, revise the testing procedure where appropriate,
and to assist operations staff with any questions regarding the testing procedure. For the
remainder of the testing process, RBI staff will be available by phone, unless requested to be
on- site to assist operations staf£ This task effort by RBI assumes that sampling and testing
will be done by the City and/ or the CTF.

SUBTASK 3E: REVIEW TEST RESULTS

As the testing is underway, RBI will routinely contact operations staff to request ongoing
results, and will review and comment accordingly. Additionally, RBI will review all
laboratory results associated with the testing. RBI will prepare a summary of the results and
discuss any pertinent preliminary findings to the City. Phone call and/ or conference calls will
be initiated by RBI as needed.

SUBTASK 3F: PREPARE TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM

RBI will prepare a draft technical memorandum ( TM) summarizing the findings from the
testing for City and operator review. The draft TM will be provided in Microsoft Word
format, with any appendices provided in PDF format. RBI will meet with the City and
operators, either in person or via conference call, to discuss the findings presented in the TM,
any revisions from the City, and develop any recommendations to include in the final TM. A
final TM will be prepared, incorporating the City' s review and outcomes of the meeting, and
will be provided to the City in PDF format, complete with any attachments.

247



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
October 16, 2020

Page 5 RoaERnon- B An, Inc,
Solutions for Progress

TASK 4: PROJECT MANAGEMENT

This task provides hours for our Project Manager and Partner, Art O' Brien, P. E., to oversee
and direct RBI staff efforts on Task 3, to hold key conversations with City staff when needed,
and to review interim work products. Our Managing Partner, Michael Bryan, Ph. D., will
continue to provide his technical expertise and oversight on all tasks. In addition, this task
provides time for project coordination by phone, email, and fax with other project team
members, budget and schedule tracking, and other duties to coordinate/ administer the project.

Additional Assumptions of this Scope of Work

The level of effort for this scope is limited to the hours budgeted. Should additional

services be requested, or should analyses of greater scope or depth than identified and
budgeted herein be required, RBI will notify the City to discuss the extent of any out- of-
scope services needed/ requested.  Should out- of-scope services be requested by the City,
RBI will submit a supplemental scope and fee proposal for those services.

II. SCHEDULE

RBI can begin providing professional services associated with the tasks defined herein upon
receipt of a contract or written authorization to proceed.

III. CONTRACT AND BILLING ARRANGEMENT

RBI will complete the scope- of-work on a time- and- materials basis, with an authorized

budget for as shown in Attachment 1.  We will not exceed the authorized budget amount

without written authorization. Attachment 1 provides an estimated breakdown of the total
budget by task.  RBI will invoice the City monthly according to its 2020 rates ( Attachment 2)
for all RBI work activities completed in the period October through December 15, 2020.
RBI typically adjusts rates in mid- December each year and will invoice the City monthly
according to the 2021 rate schedule for RBI work activities completed during the period
December 16, 2020 through October 2021.

If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me at
916) 714- 1802.  We look forward to continuing to assist the City with its NPDES permit

compliance and facility project needs.

Sincerely,

Michael Bryan, Ph. D.

Managing Partner

Attachment 1:  RBI Budget

248



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
October 16, 2020

Page 6 T Roa soM- BRrqN, lht.
r       So/ utfons for Progress

Attachment 2: 2020 Fee Schedule

249



Rosearson- Bm An, nc
Sofations for Progress

ATTACHMENT 1

RBI BUDGET

Project Project Staff

Managing Senior Scientist Engineer Engineer RBI

Partner Partner Scientist I III III II Sabtotal

fl     :       p TA A  ,      1 ., ri ` '   , .
ax< , wa..`:.,     c`..   ,>,.;,::,     ;,. s... x e....,<..:_ e.. ,. a. kk_ x _ a,.._      . a..

u

r Y ,    .      ,       .: >+    r a s          `: N^T` Ta' F?'° f` 4 , S  ^. 

T sk 2 4n a11 ec na al 1 dy sprySerY c s 3# `  lb    .
y  `_.

1'-   ' .   • IO     =   $", 992
a;>:. r»-'.. as .. a... a,... .:.... s   ...>...... r,,,,..., 3.,.... e..x.::.. a... n:..._ ,..<.. fi,,.„  . e u....°. a, s, ss'`:azc s.»... i. " Yrx'. c:.. .. s`"' a_`'st..., r's'` F M v  ,..

Task" re  e f ng' lan  ,      
f      

534, 690
u _ .. .  . _ .  _ ..__._ ..,_    a _    x       _.   _ .    .,  _  -    _

Subtask 3A: Site Visit 8 8 4, 072

Subtask 3B: ReviewData 2 4 8 $  2, 822

Subtask 3C: Prepare Testing Plan 4 20 12 $  7, 524

Subtask 3D: Testing Plan Implementation 2 16 4 $  4, 716

Subtask 3E: Review Test Results 2 4 12 12 $  6, 416

Subtask 3F: Prepare Technical Memorandum 2 8 16 16 $  9, 140

Task? y' ra ect Man`ageni ent 8 8 `<° r g,,;

z ..:  
6 6, 069

Total Hours:  33 50 10 40 92 68

Rate:   $    302  $    295  $    230  $    214  $    214  $    172

Labor Subtotal:   $ 9, 966  $ 14, 750  $ 2, 300  $ 8, 560  $ 19, 688  $ 11, 696  $ 66, 960

Mileage 500. 00

1       :   1 1

250



RoeeRrson- BRrAn, Inc
Sofutions/ or Progress

ATTACHMENT 2

2020 FEE SCHEDULE

Charges for project work performed by Robertson- Bryan, Inc. ( RBI) will be calculated and

billed at the hourly rates shown below.

Professional Services Rate/ Hour

Managing Partner 302. 00

Partner 295. 00

Principal Engineer/ Scientist 287. 00

Resource Director 259. 00

Associate 247. 00

Senior Engineer/ Scientist II 242. 00

Senior Engineer/ Scientist I 230. 00

Project Engineer/ Scientist III 214. 00

Project Engineer/ Scientist ll 205. 00

Project Engineer/ Scientist I 185. 00

Staff Engineer/ Scientist II 172. 00

Staff Engineer/ Scientist I 157. 00

Technical Analyst 151. 00

Graphics/ GIS 138. 00

Laboratory Compliance Specialist 134. 00

Administrative Assistant 99. 00

Intern 64. 00

Up to ten percent( 10%) of subcontractor charges will be added to cover administrative costs.

Hourly rates will be increased by a minimum of fifty percent ( 50%) for depositions, trials, and

hearings. Rates will be adjusted annually. Rates are adjusted annually, effective December
16th

INVOICING AND PAYMENTS

Invoices will be issued on a monthly basis for all work performed on a project. Payment is
due upon receipt of the invoice.

251



ATTACHMENT C

AMENDMENT NO. 2

TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

KPFF CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. DATED NOVEMBER 13, 2019

TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT - CIP WW 20- 17

THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT  ( hereinafter " AMENDMENT NO.  2")  to the

agreement between KPFF Consulting Engineers,  Inc.  and the City of Lathrop dated
November 13, 2019, ( hereinafter " AGREEMENT") dated for convenience this 14th day
of December 2020,   is by and between KPFF Consulting Engineers,   Inc.

CONSULTANT") and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Engineering Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an AGREEMENT to provide
Engineering Consulting Services for the Surface Water Discharge Project — CIP WW 20-

17, dated November 13, 2019; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into Contract Amendment No. 1 to

the AGREEMENT to provide additional Engineering Consulting Services for the Surface
Water Discharge Project — CIP WW 20- 17, dated February 19, 2020; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT provided scope of work attached hereto as Exhibit "A"
for Amendment No. 2 for additional Engineering Consulting Services in support to the
Surface Water Discharge Project — CIP WW 20- 17; and

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is willing to render such Engineering Consulting
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service.  Section ( 1) of the AGREEMENT for Consulting is
hereby amended to add the following:

Page 1 of 3

252



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 2

WITH KPFF CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. FOR CIP WW 20- 17

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Engineering Consulting Services in accordance
with the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached
hereto as Exhibit " A" in addition to the scope of work in the original AGREEMENT

dated November 13,  2019.  CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these
services in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and to CITY' S
satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.     Section  ( 2)  of the AGREEMENT for Consulting
Services is hereby amended as follows:

City hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT an additional sum not to exceed
142100 for the Engineering Consulting Services set forth in Exhibit  " A".

CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of billings containing
all information contained in Paragraph 5 of the original AGREEMENT.

Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the percentage of task
complete. In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work

not included in the original scope of work and this AMENDMENT unless a written

change order or authorization describing the extra work and payment terms has
been executed by CITY' S Authorized Representative prior to the commencement
of the work.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of AMENDMENT NO. 1 is December 14t", 2020, and it shall

terminate no later than June 30, 2022. All other terms of the original AGREEMENT

shall remain in full force and effect.

4)      Applicabilitv to Oriqinal Consultant AGREEMENT

All terms and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT dated November 13, 2019

are still in effect and are incorporated by reference herein and said AGREEMENT
is incorporated by reference herein.

5)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this AMENDMENT NO. 2 represent and warrant that
they have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute
this AMENDMENT NO.  2 on behalf of the respective legal entities of the
CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be

binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 2 of 3

253



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 2

WITH KPFF CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. FOR CIP WW 20- 17

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

f

1 Z„ 3_zo Zo
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved by:       City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Consultant:  KPFF Consulting Engineers, Inc.
2250 Douglas Blvd., Suite 200

Roseville, CA 95661

Phone: ( 916) 772- 7688

Federal ID #

Business License # 20730

Signature Date

Print Name and Title)

Page 3 of 3

254



EXHIBIT A

2250 Douglas Blvd. Suite 200 Roseville, C,4 95661 916. 772J688 kpff.com

October 30, 2020

Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Re:  City of Lathrop— Recycled Water Discharge

Proposal for 100% Design Services

KPFF Job 1900- 235

Dear Michael:

Per our discussions, here is our additional services proposal summarizing our fees to date and our
expected fees to complete 100% construction documents, provide construction administration services

and supplemental project management services.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The project consists of providing engineering services in support of the City' s effort in obtaining
environmental clearance to repurpose an existing San Joaquin River outfall located along Sadler Oak to
discharge treated effluent from the Consolidated Treatment Facility( CTF).

STATUS OF TASKS 1 THROUGH 7 FROM OUR ORIGINAL APRIL 8, 2020 CONTRACT

KPFF was approved for a $ 322, 000 hourly contract with the City of Lathrop on April 8, 2020 to complete
30% Construction Documents. Our proposal was separated into tasks. Shown below is a statement of
where we are with each task and the additional scope of work that will be required to develop 100%

construction documents and provide services through construction administration.

Task 1b— Locate and investigate existing 20- inch pipe east of 15

We completed a good portion of this scope of work, including locating the pipe and preparing to remove

the water within it utilizing our subconsultant, Nor- Cal pipe. The City has decided that they will remove
the water and investigate the pipe on the north side of 15 with their own teams. We will need to adjust
our 30% drawings based on what those teams discover and then possibly develop bid alternates for the
contractor if the pipe needs to be repaired or replaced.

Task 1b Fee:       60, 000

Spent to date:    31, 800

Expected Fee to develop notes and bid alternates: 15 000

Fee Remaining:   13, 200

255



Mr. Michael King, City of Lathrop
Recycled Water Discharge— 100% Design

KPFF Job 1900- 235

October 30, 2020

Page 2

Task 3- Survey

We completed our survey work along the route of the pipe between the CTF and the San Joaquin River.

We added a bathymetric survey to our scope of work utilizing a subconsultant. This work was necessary
to provide design data for our design teams and for RBI to model the river.

We have not completed our survey work at the CTF. We no longer expect this service will be required of

us, but will instead be performed by your subconsultant, PACE.

Task 3 Fee: 56, 000

Spent to date:    31 400

Fee Remaining:    24, 600

Task 4- Piping Route Plan and Profile

We have completed our 30% design drawings for the pipe from the CTF to the river. These plans will be
used in the Environmental Impact Report.

Task 4 Fee: 50, 000

Spent to date:    32 800

Fee Remaining:    17, 200

Task 5- Outfall Preliminary Design

We completed 65% design drawings for submittal to the CVFPB. While it was not a part of our original
scope of work, we also hired EnGeo as a subconsultant to provide a geotechnical report for the outfall
project.

We have continued our design efforts to further the development of the concrete structure at the

outfall. We would like to continue and develop design criteria for the coffer dam and obtain feedback
from local contractors so we can be ready to start 100% design efforts after the first of the year.

Task 5 Fee: 50, 000

Spent to date:    70 800*

Fee Remaining:    20, 800)

Note that$ 12, 100 of this effort has appeared on Task 6 in our invoices.

256



Mr. Michael King, City of Lathrop
Recycled Water Discharge— 100% Design

KPFF Job 1900- 235

October 30, 2020

Page 3

Task 6- Modifications to the CTF

We have completed 30% design drawings for the CTF modifications. We understand that future design

phases at the CTF will be designed by another consultant. Note that our scope of work for the 30%
design did not include hiring an electrical designer.

Task 6 Fee: 35, 000

Spent to date:    16 800

Fee Remaining:    18, 200

Task 7— Supplemental Project Management Services

We are providing supplemental project management services in support of City staff related to
developing the EIR document and we expect these services to continue through the end of February,
2021.

Task 7 Fee: 79, 000

Spent to date:    18, 500

Expected Fee through Feb, 2021:     30 000

Fee Remaining:    30, 500

FUTURE TASKS TO COMPLETE 100% CDs+ CA

Task 8- 100% Construction Documents for Pipeline Fee=$ 35, 000

We will take our 30% design to 100% design for the pipeline between the CTF and the outfall. We will
assume that the existing LOF pipe will be reused, but we will need to develop contingency plans for

what to do if the selected contractor finds that the pipe cannot be reused.

Our work will include modifying City standard specifications for the project. We will submit our design
for review to the City and respond to comments. We expect the contractor will be responsible for traffic
control plans and approvals.

Note that we have not included scope of work for design at the CTF since we understand this will be

done by PACE as part of a separate permit package.

257



Mr. Michael King, City of lathrop
Recycled Water Discharge— 100% Design

KPFF Job 1900- 235

October 30, 2020

Page 4

Task 9- 100 Construction Documents for Outfall Fee=$ 55, 000

We will take our 65% outfall drawing to 100% complete. Our drawings will provide design criteria for
the coffer dam, but we anticipate that work to be a design- build item by the contractor.

Task 10— Construction Administration Services Fee=$ 85, 000

Our civil and structural engineering staff will provide construction administration services during
construction. This will include conducting site visit to observe the construction, reviewing submittals

and responding the contractor' s questions. These services will occur from approximately June through
December of 2021.

Our scope of work does not include providing geotechnical inspections or observations during

construction. We anticipate the City will hire the inspectors for the project.

Task 11— Supplemental Project Management Fee=$ 50, 000

We will provide supplemental project management services in support of City staff from March 2021
through December 2021. This fee is derived from assuming 10 months of work at an average of

approximately 7 hours per week.

258



Mr. Michael King, City of Lathrop
Recycled Water Discharge— 100% Design

KPFF Job 1900- 235

October 30, 2020

Page 5

FEE

We propose to accomplish the scope of work noted on an hourly basis per the attached hourly rate
sheet. We will bill for our services monthly based on the hours worked. Shown below is an estimate of

our fees by phase for this project.

Task Fee Estimate

Task 8- 100% CDs for pipeline 35, 000

Task 9— 100% CDs for Outfall 55, 000

Task 10— Construction Administration Services 85, 000

Task 11— Supplemental Project Management Services 50 000

Total Fees Requested 225, 000

Expected Fees Remaining from April 8, 2020 Contract 82 900

Total Additional Fee Required 142, 100

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Terms and conditions shall be per our original April 8t", 2020 contract with the City.

SUMMARY

Thank you very much for requesting this proposal from us. If this proposal is acceptable to you, please
return a signed copy to us prior to the start of work. Please feel free to contact us with any questions or
comments.

Sincerely,   Accepted By:

i"`       Name

Dan Allwardt, S. E.

Managing Principal Title

Attachments

259



Mr. Michael King, City of Lathrop
Recycled Water Discharge— 100% Design

KPFF Job 1900- 235

October 30, 2020

Page 6

Attachment A

SACRAM ENTO

HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE

KPFF CONSULTING ENGINEERS

2020

PRINCIPAL- IN- CHAR6E/ ENGINEER OF RECORD.....................................   $ 195

PROJECT MANAGER/ SENIOR ENGINEER OR SURVEYOR........................  $ 170

PROJECT ENGINEER/ SURVEYOR.............................................................   $ 140

DESIGN ENGINEER/ SURVEYOR ..............................................................   $ 120

SENIOR DRAFTER/ MODELER..................................................................   $ 120

DRAFTER/ MODELER/ SCHEDULER ........................................................   $ 95

SURVEY PARTY CHIEF ( w/ equipment in the field) ...................................   $ 185/$ 235*

SURVEY FIELD TECHNICIAN ( w/ Party Chief in the field).........................   $ 85/$ 110*

Regular Rate/ Prevailing Wage Rate

Note:

Hourly rates will be updated on an annual basis throughout the duration of the project, and
services will be billed at the hourly rates in place at the time the service is provided.

260



ATTACHMENT D

CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING CONSULTING

SERVICES WITH PACIFIC ADVANCED CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC.

FOR THE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

CIP WW 20- 17

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 14th day of December, 2020, is by
and between Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering, Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the City of
Lathrop, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Professional Engineering Consulting Services,  which are required by this
agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Engineering
Consulting Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Professional Engineering Consulting Services in
accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT,
attached hereto as Exhibit   " A"   and incorporated herein by reference.

CONSULTANT represents it is prepared to and can diligently perform these
services in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and to CITY' S
satisfaction. The fee proposal shall include all reimbursable costs required for the
performance of the Scope of Services.  Payment of additional reimbursable costs

considered to be over and above those inherent in the original Scope of Services

shall be approved of in advance and in writing, by the CITY.

Page 1 of 13

261



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT— CIP WW 20- 17

2)      Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed 214 670, for the

Professional Engineering Consulting Services set forth in Exhibit   " A".

CONSULTANT shall be paid any uncontested sum due and payable within thirty
30) days of receipt of billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5

below.  Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the percentage of
task complete.  In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for
work not included in Exhibit " A", unless a written change order or authorization

describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s
authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work.   Payment is

made based on a time and materials basis.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement is December 14t", 2020, and it shall

terminate no later than June 30, 2022.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY. As an

independent contractor, CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and
methods to complete the scope of work described in Exhibit  " A"  to City' s
satisfaction.  CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in
any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs

CONSULTANT shall submit invoices for completed work on a monthly basis, or as
otherwise agreed,  providing without limitation,  details as to amount of hours,

individual performing said work, hourly rate, and indicating to what aspect of the
Scope of Services said work is attributable.  CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a

list of all tasks, a total amount due, the amounts previously billed, and the net
amount due on the invoice.     Except as specifically authorized by CITY,
CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate services performed by more than
one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in
excess of the rates or the maximum amount of compensation provided in section ( 2)
for either task or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed
change order.

Page 2 of 13

262



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT— CIP WW 20- 17

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitorthe
performance of this Agreement.

CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY such reports, diagrams, drawings and other

work products developed pursuant to the Scope of Services.

7)      Auditinq

CITY reserves the right to periodically audit all charges made by CONSULTANT to
CITY for services under this Agreement.  Upon request, CONSULTANT agrees to

furnish CITY,  or a designated representative, with necessary information and
assistance needed to conduct such an audit.

CONSULTANT agrees that CITY or its delegate will have the right to review, obtain

and copy all records pertaining to performance of this Agreement.  CONSULTANT
agrees to provide CITY or its delegate with any relevant information requested and
shall permit CITY or its delegate access to its premises, upon reasonable notice,
during normal business hours for the purpose of interviewing employees and
inspecting and copying such books, records, accounts, and other material that may
be relevant to a matter under investigation for the purpose of determining
compliance with the requirement.  CONSULTANT further agrees to maintain such

records for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this agreement.

8)      Assiqnment of Personnel

CONSULTANT acknowledges that the CITY has relied on CONSULTANT' s

capabilities and on the qualifications of CONSULTANT' s principals and staff as
identified in its proposal to CITY.  The services shall be performed by, or under the
direct supervision, of CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative: Andrew Komor,

PE, Vice President.  CITY shall be notified by CONSULTANT of any change of its
Authorized Representative , and CITY is granted the right of approval of all original,
additional,  and replacement personnel at CITY' s sole discretion,  and shall be

notified by CONSULTANT of any changes of CONSULTANT' s project staff prior to
any change.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant
to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the
work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
without requiring the City to process a reason or explanation for its request.

Page 3 of 13

263



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT — CIP WW 20- 17

9)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and
competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may
be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY'S
authorized representative. CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors
noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY' S authorized
representative.

10)    Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the
CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers and

under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT

shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until all
insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the

subcontractor.  Verification of this insurance shall be submitted and made part of
this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.   Said Statutory
Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance
shall be provided with limits of not less than one million dollars

1, 000, 000).  In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely on a self-
insurance program to meet these requirements provided that the
program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the
CONSULTANT, if a program of self- insurance is provided, shall waive
all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from work
performed under this Agreement.

Page 4 of 13

264



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT — CIP WW 20- 17

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance forthe
period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per occurrence, combined single limit
coverage for risks associated with the work contemplated by this
Agreement.   If Commercial General Liability Insurance or an

Automobile Liability form or other form with a general aggregate limit
is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the
work to be performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate
limit shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit.   Such

coverage shall include but shall not be limited to, protection against
claims arising from bodily and personal injury,  including death
resulting therefrom, and damage to property resulting from activities
contemplated under this Agreement, including the use of owned and
non- owned automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liabilityform CA 0001 ( ed.

12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT, including the insider' s general supervision of
CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;   premises owned,   occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY,  its
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting

provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Page 5 of 13

265



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT — CIP WW 20- 17

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with
a Best's rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c) Professional Liabilitv. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense,

shall maintain for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability
insurance for licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in
an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000,000) per claim made and per
policy aggregate covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as
follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)       Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended
reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have the right to exercise at the CONSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the

coverage.

Page 6 of 13

266



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT — CIP WW 20- 17

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of
any work under this Agreement.

d) Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.  CONSULTANT shall disclose the self-

insured retentions and deductibles before beginning any of the services or work
called for by any term of this Agreement.   During the period covered by this
Agreement,   upon express written authorization of the CITY's authorized

representative,  CONSULTANT may increase such deductibles or self- insured
retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

The CITY' s authorized representative may condition approval of an increase in
deductible or self- insured retention levels upon a requirement that CONSULTANT

procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all respects to each of
them.

e) Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.  In the event that any coverage required under
subsections ( a), ( b), or ( c) of this section of the Agreement is reduced, limited, or

materially affected in any other manner, CONSULTANT shall provide written notice
to CITY at CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later than
five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in coverage.

f)  In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT fails to provide
or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within
the time herein required, CITY may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement;

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

Page 7 of 13

267



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT— CIP WW 20- 17

11)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, ( b) CITY

relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful
and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed.  It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised
of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT
agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner in
accordance with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY,  its
officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.    It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

12)    Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid and

in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at atl times during the
term of this Agreement,  and that any applicable bond has been posted in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

13)    Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

Page 8 of 13

268



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT— CIP WW 20- 17

14)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written
notification to the other party.  Upon termination, or completion of services under

this Agreement, all information collected, work product and documents shall be
delivered by CONSULTANT to CITY within ten ( 10) calendar days.

15)    Fundinq

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

16)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given
by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, (3) sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile

transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by
delivery and service by facsimile transmission.

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330
MAIN:   ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX:     ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:      Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering, Inc.
17520 Newhope Street, Suite 200

Fountain Valley, CA 92708

Page 9 of 13

269



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT — CIP WW 20- 17

Phone:  ( 714) 481- 7300

Fax:      ( 714) 481- 7299

17)    Miscellaneous

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a party
is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be
executed by a person having the express authority to grant such approval
or consent.

b)      Contract Terms Prevail.  All exhibits and this Agreement are intended to

be construed as a single document.  Should any inconsistency occur
between the specific terms of this Agreement and attached exhibits, the

terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

c)      Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed
and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of
California.

d)      Definitions.  The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

e)      Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account
of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement,
which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a superior
governmental authority.

f)       Headings.  The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and
shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of
this Agreement.

g)      Incorporation of Documents.  All documents constituting the Agreement
documents described in Section 1 hereof and all documents which may,
from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto
are by such reference incorporated in the Agreement and shall be
deemed to be part of this Agreement.

h)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between the
parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties concerning
the Project and Work, and there are no other prior oral or written
agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in this
Agreement.

i)       Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or be

binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing
and signed by the parties.

Page 10 of 13

270



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT — CIP WW 20- 17

j)       Ownership of Documents.  All documents, photographs, reports,
analyses, audits, computer media, or other material documents or data,

and working papers, whether or not in final form, which have been
obtained or prepared under this Agreement, shall be deemed the property
of the CITY.  Upon CITY' s request, CONSULTANT shall allow CITY to

inspect all such documents during the CONSULTANT' s regular business
hours.

k)      Provision.  Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement shall

define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance required or
permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.  All provisions,
whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to be both covenants

and conditions.

I)       Severability.  The invalidity in whole or part of any provision of this
Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
agreement.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

m)     Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations under

this Agreement, CONSULTANT acts as an independent contractor and

not as an agent or employee of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall not be entitled

to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to the City Council
members, officers or employees of CITY, and CONSULTANT expressly
waives any and all claims to such right and benefits.

n)      Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of
the parties.

o)      Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each

of its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an

act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and
including the last.  If the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a
Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the
time for performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

p)      Venue.  In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or. in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Page 11 of 13

271



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT— CIP WW 20- 17

q)      Recovery of Costs.  The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce
the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement may recover
its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees, incurred or
expended in connection with such action against the non- prevailing party.

18)    Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until

all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated
to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

19)    Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 12 of 13

272



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACE FOR THE

LCTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT— CIP WW 20- 17

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

lZ,- -Zo Zc,

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:       City of Lathrop
Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved by:       City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Consultant:  Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering, Inc.
17520 Newhope Street, Suite 200

Fountain Valley, CA 92708

Fed I D #

Business License # 20319

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Page 13 of 13

273



EXHIBIT A

r

PACE
Advanced Woter Engineerinq

December 7, 2020

Revised from November 16, 2020, May 8, 2020, March 12, 2020, and February 26, 2020)

Ken Reed

Sr. Construction Manager

City of lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
Phone ( 209) 941- 7363

Re:      Lathrop CTF Dechlorination
Professional Engineering Services Proposal 6647

Dear Ken,

Based on our discussion this week, we have updated our proposal herein to include design of a
process/ piping configuration to only send dechlorinated water to the Crossroads Station which is

intended to be pumped to the River.  Instead of using the Crossroads Station to discharge to the LAS3

percolation ponds, a new automated connection shall be provided from the discharge of the S5 pump
station and/ or a gravity connection from the existing chlorine contact basin discharge box, through a

new connection to the existing pipe on Christopher Way. An out of compliance valve shall be provided
on the discharge of the Crossroads' station to discharge back to S5 in the event that water quality is not
in compliance.  Also, Crossroads Recycled Ponds B and C shall also be plumbed to the Crossroads
Recycled Station.

This proposal is a progression from site visits 2/ 20 and 2/ 21, and a revised draft proposal March 12,
2020, May 8, 2020, and November 6, 2020. This proposal does not include services during construction
or controls integration.

PACE is pleased to provide our proposal for engineering services for the Lathrop CTF Dechlorination
project.  Attached are our Scope of Services, Compensation, Hourly Rate Schedule and Provisions.  We

appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the City of Lathrop and look forward to the successful
completion of this project.  Please contact me if there are any questions or if we may provide any
additional information.

Sincerely,

Andy Komor, PE
Vice President— Environmental Water Division
TTK/ sm

Enclosures: Scope of Services, Compensation, Hourly Rate Schedu/ e and Provisions.

274



PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

LATHROP CTF DECHLORINATlON DESIGN

8647

OBJECTIVE:

Based on site meetings on 2/ 19/ 20 and 2/ 20/ 20, the City will proceed with improvements to the CTF to
allow flexible discharge of treated recycled water. This will include a new direct connection from the

downstream of the existing chlorine contact basin, to a new dechlorination box that will be connected
to a future second chlorine contact basin, and ultimately connected to a new +/- 18- 24" dechlorination

pipe to the existing Crossroads Recycled Water Pump Station.  The Crossroads Recycled Water Pump
Station will solely function to discharge water to the river when water quality is in compliance.  When
water quality is not in compliance, discharge shall be routed back to the S5 storage reservoir.  When

river pumping is not called for, recycled water will backup intentionally and flow to S5 for storage and

reuse. The existing chlorine contact box and/ or S5 discharge pump station shall have a new automated
connection and flowmeter to the LAS3 percolation basins for pumped discharge to that location.

New core- drilled piping connections to the existing post- chlorine box shall be provided with new piping
to a new dechlorination box ( configured to receive future chlorine contact basin flows), and from there

low piping shall be provided to flow by gravity to the existing Crossroads Recycled Station.  The

Crossroads Recycled Station shall also have new suction pipe connections and valves from Crossroads
Basins B and C.

High piping from a new weir shall flow to S5 directly, and shall be used when the Crossroads Recycled
Water Pump Station is not pumping equal to the outflow of the chlorine contact basin.  NOTE: in this

configuration the Crossroads Recycled Water Pumps' flowrate shall be less than the chlorine contact

discharge flow to avoid starving the pumps.  Low- level cutoff shall be provided to turn off the
Crossroads Recycled Water Pumps in the event the level in that wetwell is low, and low discharge filtrate

flow shall lock out the pumps during maintenance cleaning or low flow conditions such as the middle of
the night.  Multiple programs shall include level based control, manual flow with low- level cutoff, and
flow pacing with filtrate flow.

All water directed for San Joaquin River outfall discharge shall be automatically dechlorinated using
sodium bi- sulfite ( SBS) chemical or equivalent.  A new SBS storage, chemical pumping system, and

associated upstream monitoring and feed- forward control instrumentation and controls shall be
included in the design.  New ORP and total chlorine residual analyzers shall also be included in the
design at the mid- point and in the Crossroads Recycled Water Pump Station wetwell.  Pacing of SBS
addition shall be flow paced on the Crossroads Recycled Water Pumps, and trimmed with analyzer
readings.

To be desi ned bv others: new 2, 100 feet of discharge piping shall be designed to connect the discharge
of the Crossroads Recycled Water Pump Station to existing piping which leads to a new Crossroads
outfall piping.

SECTION A- SCOPE OF SERVICES:

A.     Consultant agrees to perform the following services:

Task 1— SBS Dosing and Contact Time Tests at Various Concentrations/ Temperatures

PACE shall bring existing equipment, materials, and chemicals onsite at CTF and provide a series of
bench scale tests to determine the dose requirements of SBS versus chlorine and temperature, with

respect to contact time. All three variables shall be tested independently, and the results shall be used

r",,......

PACE
275



City of Lathrop— Lathrop CTF Dechlorination December 7, 2020( revised from Nov, May, March, Feb)
Scope and Compensation for# 8647 Page 2 of 5

for system sizing including retention time and instrumentation requirements for compound control.
ORP instruments shall also be tested to determine their applicability in determining low concentration
chlorine.

Task 2— Design Charette with Project Team

Based on the background section described above and initial concept development, PACE shall provide

an early draft technical memo containing initial sketches, system maps, retention time calculations, and
propose a list of equipment, valves, and instruments to discuss with the project team. PACE shall setup
a design charette meeting with the City, Veolia Operations, and RBI to discuss the direction of the design
and receive feedback on the early draft memo.  Using the project direction provided in the design
charette, PACE shall finalize the technical memo including a written sequence of operation to be used
for programming of existing PLCs and HMIs.  PACE shall distribute the updated memo for review and
final comments, and update the memo to finalize the design direction.

Task 3— 50% Design of Proposed CTF Facilities and Equipment

Based on the results of the finalized technical memorandum, PACE shal) provide 50% construction plans

of proposed CTF onsite systems including civil piping,  mechanical weirs and valves,  electrical,

instrumentation and controls. PACE shall provide draft construction planset with G, C, M, E, and I sheets
at a 50% level of detail for all CTF onsite systems proposed.  The content in the 50% design shall be

presented to the project team for comments and feedback for subsequent design stages.  It is

anticipated there will be approximately 25 sheets at this stage of design.

Task 4— 90% Design of Proposed CTF Facilities and Equipment

Based on the results of the 50% design feedback, PACE shall provide 90% construction plans of proposed
CTF onsite systems including civil piping, mechanical weirs and valves, electrical, instrumentation and
controls.  PACE shall provide draft construction planset with G, C, M, E, and I sheets at a 90% level of

detail for all CTF onsite systems proposed.  The content in the 90% design shall be presented to the

project team for comments and feedback for subsequent design stages.  It is anticipated there will be
approximately 35 sheets at this stage of design.

Task 5- 100% Design of Proposed CTF Facilities and Equipment

Based on the results of the 90% design feedback, PACE shall provide 100% construction plans of
proposed CTF onsite systems including civil piping,  mechanical weirs and valves,  electrical,

instrumentation and controls. PACE shall provide draft construction planset with G, C, M, E, and I sheets
at a 100% level of detail for all CTF onsite systems proposed. The content in the 100% design shall be

presented to the project team for comments and feedback for finalization of the construction plans. It is
anticipated there will be approximately 40 sheets at this stage of design.

Task 6— Project Engineering Report

PACE shall provide a project engineering report for the purposes of permitting. This report shall include
a basis of design description, calculations including chemistry and contact time determined from Task 1,
critical control points design for system automation, out of compliance description, and overall system
control strategy.  Process flow diagrams and schematics will be provided to assist in the understanding
of the system control.  Integration of the new design elements with the existing plant and existing
operations will be described. Two revisions to the report are included in this task.

Task 7— Project Specifications

PACE
276



City of Lathrop— Lathrop CTF Dech/ orination December 7, 2020( revised from Nov, May, March, Feb)
Scope and Compensation for# 8647 Pape 3 of 5

PACE shall provide 50%, 90%, and 100% level of detail 17 sections of project technical specifications to
be used for bid purposes including summary of work, sequence of construction, sequence of operation,

equipment, valving, piping, etc. In particular PACE shall work with the City and Veolia to determine shut.
down sequences and coordination with plant operations, RBI, and City Operations.

Task 8— Cost Estimates

PACE shall provide 50%, 90%, and 100% level of detail estimate of expected construction costs and

corresponding bid schedule to be used for bid purposes. Cost estimates shall include general conditions,
civil works, mechanical equipment and installation, electrical, instrumentation, controls, and associated

work with contingencies.

SECTION B- COMPENSATION:

PACE will complete the work outlined herein and invoice Client monthly on a percentage of completion
basis a total fee of$ 214, 670 in accordance with the attached Engineering Fee Worksheet.

Task Description Professional Fee

01 SBS Dosing& Contact Time Tests 16, 120

02 Design Charette with Project Team 8, 680

03 50% Design of Proposed CTF Facilities& Equipment 48, 240

04 90% Design of Proposed CTF Facilities& Equipment 50, 160

05 100% Design of Proposed CTF Facilities & Equipment 37, 180

06 Project Engineering Report 26, 200

07 Project Specifications 19, 870

08 Cost Estimates 8, 220

TOTAL FIXED FEE: 214. 670

PACE
277



City of Lathrop— Lathrop CTF Dech/ orination December 7, 2020( revised from Nov, May, March, FebJ
Scope and Compensation for# 8647 Pa9e 4 of 5

ASSUMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS:

1.   Prospective Sheet List

G1 Sheet Index, Sequence of Construction

G2 General Construction Notes

G3 Update to Hydraulic Profile at CTF

G4 Update to Process Flow Diagram at CTF

C1 Demo Existing Southbound to S5

C2 Plan/ Profile of New Southbound to 55

C3 Plan/ Profile of New Northwest to Crossroads Box

C4 Civil Details for Analyzer Connection, Air, Cleanout

M1 Equipment List

M2 Valve/ Actuator List and Instrument List

M3 Above Ground Core Drill Penetrations

M4 Discharge Weir Box, V Notch Change

M5 Chemical Tank and Containment

M6 Chemical Pumping Systems

M7 Crossroads Piping Demo

M8 Crossroads Actuated Valves Installation

M9 Instrumentation Assemblies 1, 2, 3

M10 Move Existing Chlorine Instrumentation

M11 Mechanical Details for Pipe Supports, Link Seal

E1 Electrical Construction Notes

E2 Update to Crossroads Single Line Diagram

E3 Demo and Replacement of Crossroads Drives

E4 Distribution Breaker Panel Design for Valves

E5 Crossroads Conduit and Wire Plan

E6 Crossroads Conduit and Wire Schedule

E7 Crossroads Instrumentation Power, Control

ES Intermediate Station Instrum Power, Control

E9 Discharge Box Instrumentation Power, Control

E10 Chemical Pumps System Power Plan

E11 Chemical Pumps System Control Plan

11 Instrumentation Construction Notes

12 Updates to Network Diagram

13 Updates to Discharge Box P& ID

14 Updates to Crossroads P& ID

15 New Crossroads Valves P& ID

R       Ale. QG er Di.  n Cer+i.... 1 r. f

le. 0 D: vr, r Dir.  .. Cr..-+:.. v. 7 r.F

D       Ale. Qi., er Din n Ce+ r. n 2 r. f 7

R4 RipinsBe ails

rr,...

PACE
278



City of Lathrop— Lathrop CTF Dechlorination December 7, 2010( revised from Nov, May, March, FebJ
Scope and Compensaiion for# 8647 Page 5 of 5

2.  Services during bid, construction, startup, and post operations are not included, and are
available upon request

3.   It is assumed all permitting, sampling, and coordination of startup for permit compliance is
provided by RBI.

4.   It is assumed the Crossroads outfall piping shall be designed by others.

5.   It is assumed the new SCADA screens will be provided by Primex with direct contract to the City.

6.  The Client' s responsibilities shall include providing PACE with the base data and project
information in a timely manner, coordination and management of other team consultants to

assure that the project schedule can be met, and prompt payment of invoices in accordance
with the terms and conditions included herein. The specific items that are to be provided by the
Client or other consultants include the following:

a.   Client input pertaining to project design issues and requirements including scheduling.
b.  Site land- use base plans with existing and proposed elevation contours in transferable

computer format.

c.   Geologic and soils investigation reports.

d.   Existing and proposed hydrologic and drainage data, maps, and reports.
e.  Any other data that directly impacts PACE ability to perform the design in an efficient and

economic manner.

7.  Any proposed project changes which affect work in progress or previously completed will be
justification for additional compensation.

8.  All required aerial topography and base mapping will be paid for and supplied by Client, or

others. Base topo and site information will be provided in digital ( electronic) format compatible
with AUTOCAD or C3D version 2019 or earlier.

9.   No environmental documentation or support, including no environmental permitting.

10. No surveying or construction staking is included.

11. Local government approval meetings, hearings, etc., and preparation of presentation graphics
will be under separate work authorization, if required.

12. Existing utility information research and mapping is not included and will be provided by Client.

13. For all the data delivered to PACE for the purpose of digital mapping, including but not limited to
GIS and AutoCAD, PACE requires said data be delivered in one of the recognized standard

coordinate systems such as the Stateplane Coordinate System or the Universe Transverse

Mercator ( UTM). In addition, PACE requires all datums, vertical and horizontal, be documented

in a metadata sheet and be included along with the delivered data.  If the coordinate system is
in what is often referred to as a " Local Coordinate System," and the deliverer does not have the

capability to convert data into one of the recognized standard coordinate systems, PACE

requires a Control Conversion document ( CCD) be included in the deliverable.  The CCD will

include all the necessary coordinate transformation information and scale factors needed to
make an accurate translation of the data to PACE' s acceptable coordinate systems.  If this

information is not available, PACE will require an addendum to this proposal to include Time and
Materials used to translate the delivered data into the appropriate standard coordinate system.

14. The fees proposed herein shall apply until one year from date of proposal. Due to ever- changing
costs, Consultant will increase those portions of the contract fee for which work must still be

completed after one year from date of proposal, as negotiated with the Client up to a maximum

of ten- percent ( 10%).

PACE
279



4;.
m.  

o

N    V

N M N

Sp

rv'=
N 0

O

V t0 a 0    
N    

N t0

e m . . . . .      a

o mor Nrnm
R

a  ,

ti ': H: r. .. o
0

t4```       x

z u 

n m
o 00o ry

N m v

5

m G mW
W C n

w          m~O

µ

p 4 3
@,..Q_ G c

e

Q       :. a`* L  V    <
to m o N

tl    
y_      

O
n

m

we     .
a
it  . p

r '

Yu LL

o  .. 
c-   '_` ''';' ..

g   =     E  `'   : N     a  a

a  ?:..LLt       N .. . U
n'?,„ 

x   , g:   '    ::.

K W Y` fi4I' m mN y L L ON   v i o n    m N+ a
c.

c  
o

y

o
w a«« iw w ww ww

W t7in

xi  -.

Y '      u s      .
t=j i k` G N L
Vl Vl

L Fx.`;,. N r       
m C'l N C

t:: jt"' Q    6
Z, '      

vl  _  
c

4i u   .     .

C.  pi
Q rn  m``     

ItIG
WNW

fo -      u?      .:.
a'

o  ..:

C

rn   C
U' C     . C IL

y            
fi C

W
O w a N

a: N  C N-        -
O

a

C   A

4..y     ,' n'« _      U   '# .
9,`,`,' , ., ,

yi 2

y      
d o     Q o 3 m mKv*',-

N U c UOU W   `
fn a a y N

dlA p   - U' N y J D

W   

C N ' N  Z yC       ;
Et d O

u W

N W U N C fn>  bC N O V N Nl N
Q a voE w ¢, v mvi   Y

a w
o

a` N . o
c

oQ m o a a  

ainina(` n a in Uf7n¢¢ C) u'j

o f
n Q m o o vv    `

O

N  „   
N

z

W        J. J C
F

C C

QF E E n
rLW      c

W w

N=   h° 
mm°°

W fA   * 5',. m v

Wc
W   o

W LL O
j  

N d LL. 1LL LL
S

7    .       I LLH N
T

UW ZU   ' F-    
O

F-  

U  Q
aU  H E o      f.

0'' W   ` a mn a
m w o

W'    ' 8 a      o o a o      ~
s  '  o

o WQ    ... mSs      '  ' 3 2 2a` m
c   ? R'    -' E o maa.. c` y

a    :. w . w, u"

z m 03`
o` o _ ' u m

Z      E
D, c

O m  < <    °'

W 2 V' U  v a
A m 0 Fi" wd c W E o _     v v«

a`t aw ouim aaci

rvMvu orm

280



r;..,,

PA E
Advanced Water Engineering

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLIENT AND CONSULTANT

AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO AT Fountain Valley, CA made this 7th day of December 2020, by and between City of
Lathrop hereinafter called " Client," and Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering, Inc. ( PACE), a California corporation,

herein called " Consultant."

Client and Consultant agree as follows:

A.       Client retains Consultant to perform services for:

Lathrop CTF Dechlorination

hereinafter called" Project."

B. Consultant agrees to perform the following scope of services:

See attached Scope of Services— Section" A" for a detailed descriptionJ

C. Client agrees to compensate Consultant for such services as follows:

Fee

See attached Compensation Page— Section" e" for a detailed description)

D.       This Agreement is subject to Provisions of Agreement 1 through 28 attached herewith, and the terms

and conditions contained in initialed exhibits attached herewith and made a part hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this agreement upon the terms and conditions stated

above and on the day and year indicated above.

Pacific A nced iv I E eering, Inc.( PACE)  CLIENT: City of Lathrop

By:    By:

Name: Andrew T. Komor, PE Name:  Ken Reed

Title:  Vice President— Environmental Water Title:     Sr. Construction Manager

Job#:  B647 Date:

a  .    _.

281



GENERAL PROVISIONS ATTACHED TO THAT CERTAIN

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLIENT AND CONSULTANT

DATED December 7, 2020( collectively, the" Agreement")

Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering, Inc.( PACE) shall be hereinafter referred to as" CONSULTANT" and the City of lathrop will be hereinafter referred to as

CLIENT" with respect to the" PROJECT" known as" Lathrop CTF Dechlorination".

GENERAL

1.   In the performance of the services under the Agreement, CONSULTANT shall at all times be an independent contractor, contracting services to CLIENT

solely pursuant to the Agreement, and CONSULTANT is not, nor shall CONSUITANT represent CONSULTANT to be at any time, an agent or employee of

CLIENT except as expressly set forth in the Agreement.
2.   CLIENT agrees to cooperate in any and every way or manner with CONSULTANT on the PROJECT.

3.   In addition to the printed provisions, the drawings and specifications shall become the property of CLIENT at completion of construction of the

PROJECT. The CLIENT shall not reuse project design, drawings, and specifications without written consent of CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT will provide

reproducible transparencies of the final PROJECT plans to CLIENT at completion of construction of the PROJECT. CONSULTANT, however, does not

assume any professional responsibility or liability for use of the final plans and/ or the drawings or specifications at any location other than this

particular PROIECT site. CLIENT will defend, indemnify and hold CONSULTANT harmless from any errors and/ or omissions arising out of the use of the

final plans and/ or the drawings and specifications at any other location.
4.   All agreements on CONSULTANT' S part are contingent upon and subject to, the fact that CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for damages, or be in

default or be deemed to be in default, by reason of delays in performance by reason of strike, lockouts, accidents, acts of God and other delays

unavoidable or beyond CONSULTANT' S reasonable control or due to shortages or unavailability of labor at established area wage rates or delays

caused by failure of CLIENT or CLIENT' S agents to furnish information or to approve or disapprove CONSULTANT' S work promptly, or due to late or

slow, or faulty performance by CLIENT or Client' s consultants or contractors, or by governmental agencies. In the case of the happening of any such

cause of delay, the time of completion of CLIENT' S work under the Agreement shall be extended accordingly.
5.   In the event that all of the obligations of CONSULTANT or CLIENT, respectively, required to be performed under the Agreement have not been

performed as agreed for any reason other than a default by other party hereto, the non- defaulting party shall have the right, upon giving 30 calendar

days prior written notice to the other party hereto, to terminate the Agreement and CONSULTANT shall be paid to the date of termination for all
services rendered and cost incurred hereunder.

6.   CONSULTANT makes no warranty, either expressed or implied, as to CONSULTANT' S findings, recommendations, specifications or professional advice except that

these were promulgated after being prepared in accordance with generally accepted Civil Engineer practices and under the direction of a Civil Engineer and/ or a

professional staff.
7.   CONSULTANT makes no representations concerning soil conditions unless specifically included in writing in the Agreement and CLIENT is not

responsible for any liability that may arise out of the making, or any failure to make, soil surveys or subsurface soil tests or general soil testing.
8.   CONSULTANT makes no representation concerning construction cost figures estimated in connection with maps, plans, specifications or drawings other

than that all cost figures are estimates only.
9.   In consideration of CONSULTANT' S fee for services, CLIENT agrees that, unless otherwise specified, CONSULTANT will perform no on site construction review for this

PROIECT, unless specifically included in writing in this Agreement, that such services will be provided by others and that CLIENT shall defend, indemnify and hold

CONSULTANT harmless from any and all liability, real or alleged, that might be occasioned by others perForming construction review for this PROJECT.

10.  CLIENT agrees that in accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the construction contractor will be required to assume sole and

complete responsibility for the PROJECT site, including safety of all persons and property; that this requirement shall be made to apply continuously

and not be limited to normal working hours and CLIENT further agrees to defend, indemnify and hold CONSULTANT harmless from any and all liability,
real or alleged, in connection with the performance of work of this PROJECT, except liability arising from the sole negligence of CONSULTANT.

11.  Notwithstanding anything else to the contrary contained herein or in the Agreement, CLIENT agrees to limit CONSULTANT' S exposure to liability and

damages to CLIENT and to all contractors and subcontractors on the PROJECT, due to professional negligent acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT,

to the lesser of the limits of CONSULTANT' S errors and omissions and general liability insurance policies, or the fee paid to CONSULTANT for the
performance of the services under the Agreement. IN NO EVENT WILL CONSULTANT BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES,
EXPENSES, LOST PROFITS, OR OTHER DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE PERFORMANCE OR NON- PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICES UNDER THE

AGREEMENT, EVEN IF CONSULTANT HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE. THIS SECTION WILL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF

THE AGREEMENT.

12.  Upon written request, each of the parties hereto shall execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, such additional instruments and

documents which may be necessary and proper to carry out the terms of the Agreement.

13.  The terms and provisions of the Agreement shall not be construed to alter, waive or affect any lien or stop notice rights, which CONSULTANT may have

for the performance of services under the Agreement.

14.  No conditions or representations, altering, detracting from or adding to the terms of the Agreement or hereof shall be valid unless printed or written

hereon or evidenced in writing by either party to the Agreement and accepted in writing by the other party hereto.

15.  One or more waivers of any term, condition or covenant by CONSULTANT shall only be effective if in writing and shall not be construed as a waiver of

any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, condition or covenant.

16.  In the event any provision of the Agreement shall be held to be invalid and unenforceable, the other provisions of the Agreement shall be valid and

binding on the parties hereto.

r"'.....

PACE
282



17.  Should litigation be necessary to enforce any term or provision of the Agreement, or to collect any portion of the amount payable under the

Agreement, then all litigation and collection expenses, witness fees and court costs and attorneys' fees shall be paid to the prevailing party.

18.  The Agreement binds CONSULTANT and CLIENT and their successors and permitted assigns. Neither party hereto shall assignor transfer, whether by

operation of law or otherwise, all or any portion of such party' s interest, rights or obligations in the Agreement without the prior written consent of the

other party hereto.

19.  The Agreement and the documents, drawings, plans and specifications referred to therein, and these General Provisions, constitute the entire

agreement of the parties hereto with respect to the matters set forth therein and herein and are the final, complete and exclusive expression of the

terms and conditions thereof. All prior or contemporaneous agreements, representations, negotiations and understandings of the parties hereto, oral

or written, express or implied, are hereby superseded and merged herein.

20.  The Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Each Party hereby irrevocably consents that all

proceedings arising in connection with the Agreement shall be tried and litigated exclusively in the State and Federal courts located in the County of

Orange, State of California. The aforementioned choice of venue is intended by the parties to be mandatory and not permissive in nature, thereby

precluding the possibility of litigation between the parties with respect to, or arising out of, the Agreement in any jurisdiction other than that specified
in this Section.

21.  All notices, demands or other communications given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered personally, by facsimile or electronic mail

transmission, or by United States certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the address for such party set

forth in the Agreement. All notices shall be deemed given upon the earliest of receipt, confirmed facsimile or electronic mail transmission, or three 3
calendar days after deposit in the United States mail.

22.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of these General Provisions and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of
these General Provisions shall control.

PAYM ENT

23.  CONSULTANT shall present all invoices to CLIENT prior to the last day of each calendar month based upon percentage of completion, per the fee set
forth in the Agreement. Invoices shall be due and payable when delivered. Payment is to be made at 17520 Newhope Street, Suite 200, Fountain
Valley, CA 92708.

24.  CLIENT shall promptly review invoices and notify CONSULTANT of any objection thereto; absent such objection in writing within 10 calendar days of

the date of the invoice, the invoice shall be deemed proper and acceptable and immediately payable in full.

25.  If the undisputed amount of any invoice is not paid within 30 calendar days of the date of the invoice, such undisputed amount shall commence

bearing interest from the date of the invoice at the rate of 1. 5% per month or the maximum rate allowed by law, whichever is greater, and CLIENT
agrees to pay all accrued interest thereon, together with the undisputed amounts set forth in such invoice.

26.  In the event that any undisputed amount of any invoice is not paid in full within 60 calendar days following the date of the invoice, such failure shall

constitute a material breach of the Agreement and CONSULTANT may exercise all rights and remedies CONSULTANT may have at law, in equity or

under the Agreement with respect to such material breach including, without limitation, termination of the Agreement following 10 calendar days'
written notice of such material breach to CLIENT and CLIENT' S failure to cure such breach within such 10- day period.

27.  CLIENT shall pay, in addition to the stated fee, the cost of all reimbursable items such as fees, permits, bond premiums, title company charges, delivery
charges, blueprints, and reproductions and all other charges and expenses not specifically covered by the terms of the Agreement. In the event such

reimbursable items are paid directly by CONSULTANT, then such charges and expenses shall be invoiced at CONSULTANT' S direct cost plus 10% for
handling.

28.  Any additional services not covered in the Scope of Work of the Agreement, which CLIENT requests CONSULTANT to perform, such as site reconnaissance and

inspections during construction, additional visits out of town or to other places of business, will be requested in writing and will be invoiced on a time and material
basis based on CONSULTANT' S then current schedule of fees and costs.

PACE
283



284



ITEM 4. 12

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE A SERVICE CONTRACT FOR INTERIOR

FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN FOR CIP GG 19- 08

POLICE BUILDING

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving a Service Contract with
DLD Design & Consulting for Interior Furnishings and
Design Services for the Lathrop Police Services

Administrative Headquarters — CIP GG 19- 08 Police

Building

SUMMARY:

Construction of the new Lathrop Police Services Administrative Headquarters ( Police

Station),  began in October 2019.  As construction of the Police Station reaches

conclusion, interior furnishings will be needed to complete the facility.   The project
will provide all interior furnishings and design for the new Police Station.  A Request

for Proposals ( RFP) for Police Station Furnishings was issued on October 27,  2020

and three ( 3) proposals were received on November 5, 2020. After evaluating and
ranking the proposals, DLD Design & Consulting' s ( DLD) proposal was determined to
be the most qualified.

Staff requests the City Council approve a service contract with DLD for interior
furnishings and associated design services for the Police Station in the amount of

95, 406 plus a 15% contingency in the amount of $ 14, 311 for a total cost not to

exceed  $ 109, 717.  Sufficient funds have been allocated in the adopted FY 20/ 21

budget.

BACKGROUND:

The plans and specifications for the construction of the Police Station were completed
by LDA Partners,  and advertised for bid in August 2019.   As the construction is

nearing completion, furnishings and related items will soon be needed to complete
the interior of the Police Station.    The main items needed include work station

cubicles, tables, office chairs, bookcases, general and fire- proof document storage
files, desks, a wardrobe cabinet and a podium.

In accordance with Lathrop Municipal Code 2. 36. 150,  an RFP for Police Station

Furnishings was issued on October 27, 2020 and three proposals were received on
November 5, 2020. After evaluating and ranking the proposals, DLD' s proposal was
determined to be the most qualified as well as the lowest cost of $ 95, 406.

DLD submitted unit costs for all bid items in the RFP; their proposal is attached to
the Contract ( Attachment B) as Exhibit A.

285



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE SERVICE CONTRACT FOR CIP GG 19- 08 POLICE BUILDING

Staff requests City Council approve a Contract with DLD for an amount of $ 95, 406
for design services for and the provision,  delivery,  assembly and installation of
interior furnishings for the Police Station. Staff also requests City Council authorize a
15%   construction contingency of  $ 14, 311 and authorize staff to spend the

contingency as necessary to achieve the goals of the Project for a total cost not to
exceed $ 109, 717.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

This contract is necessary to provide interior furnishings for the Lathrop Police
Services Administrative Headquarters, and DLD' s proposal was determined to be the
most qualified.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed service contract with DLD is for  $ 95, 406.  A 15%  construction

contingency is requested in the amount of $ 14, 311 for a total cost not to exceed
109, 717. Funding for this project was included in the FY 20/ 21 budget; therefore,

no budget amendment is necessary.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.   Resolution Approving Adopt Resolution Approving a Service Contract with DLD
Design & Consulting for Interior Furnishings and Design Services for the Lathrop
Police Services Administrative Headquarters - CIP GG 19- 08 Police Building

B.   Service Contract between the City of Lathrop and DLD Design & Consulting for
Interior Furnishings and Design Services for the Lathrop Police Services
Administrative Headquarters - CIP GG 19- 08 Police Building

286



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE CONTRACT FOR POLICE STATION FURNISHINGS

APPROVALS:

3O Z ZO
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

12 - 3—2cyr,

Michael King Date

Director of Public Works
f

o

Cari Ja Date

Finance Administrative

Services Director

3' ` zv- zU

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

7• Zo o

St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

287



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A SERVICE CONTRACT WITH DLD DESIGN & CONSULTING FOR

INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE LATHROP POLICE

SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE HEADQUARTERS  —  CIP GG 19- 08 POLICE

BUILDING

WHEREAS,  a business furnishings contractor is needed to provide interior
furnishings and design for the newly constructed Lathrop Police Services

Administrative Headquarters; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Lathrop Municipal Code 2. 36. 150, a Request

for Proposal ( RFP) for Police Station Furnishings was issued on October 27, 2020 and
3 proposals were received on November 5, 2020; and

WHEREAS,  after evaluating and ranking the proposals,   DLD Design  &

Consulting ( DLD) proposal was determined to be the most qualified, with a price of
95, 406; and

WHEREAS, staff requests the City Council approve a service contract with DLD
in the amount of $95, 406; and

WHEREAS, staff also requests Council authorize a 15% contingency in the
amount of $ 14, 311 and authorize staff to spend the contingency as necessary to
achieve the goals of the project for a total cost not to exceed $ 109, 717; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds were allocated for this work in the FY 2020- 21
Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the award of a contract with DLD for the Project in the
amount of $ 95, 406; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve a 15% contingency in the amount of $ 14, 311 for a total cost not to

exceed $ 109, 717 for the project, and authorizes staff to spend up to this amount as
necessary to accomplish the goals of the project.

288



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of December 2020,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

289



Attachment A

SERVICE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND DLD
DESIGN & CONSULTING

FOR INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE

LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE HEADQUARTERS -
CIP GG 19- 08 POLICE BUILDING

THIS SERVICE CONTRACT ( hereinafter" Contract") is made on December 14, 2020, by
and between the City of Lathrop, a municipal corporation of the State of California ( hereinafter
City") and DLD Design & Consulting, ( hereinafter " Contractor"), whose Taxpayer ldentification

Number is 45- 0500274.

For and in consideration of the following covenants, terms and conditions, City and
Contractor ( the parties) agree:

SCOPE OF WORK

Contractor agrees to provide Interior Furnishings and Design Services for the Lathrop
Police Services Administrative Headquarters in accordance with the scope of work and fee

proposal provided by the Contractor, attached hereto as Exhibit " A" and incorporated herein by
reference. Contractor agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance with the upmost
standards of its profession and to City' s satisfaction.

CONTRACT PRICE

The City agrees to pay and the Contractor agrees to accept, in full payment for the work
above agreed to be done based on time and materials basis not to exceed 95 406 set forth in
Exhibit  " A",  for Interior Furnishings and Design Services for the Lathrop Police Services
Administrative Headquarters.

TIME FOR PERFORMANCE

The Contractor shall commence work within five (5) working days of the Notice to Proceed,
and diligently prosecute the work to completion within 60 total calendar days of Notice to Proceed.

PERMITS; COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

The Contractor shall, at its expense, obtain all necessary permits, licenses, easements,
etc., for the construction of the project, give necessary notices, pay all fees required by law, and
comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations relating to the work and to the preservation
of the public health and safety.

INSPECTION BY CITY

The Contractor shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for
inspection by the City to all parts of the work, and to the shops wherein the work is in preparation.
Where the Specifications require work to be specially tested or approved, it shall not be tested or
covered up without timely, written approval by the City.

Should any such work be covered up without such notice, approval, or consent, it must, if required
by City, be uncovered for examination at the Contractor' s expense.

290



SERVICE CONTRACT

DLD DESIGN AND CONSULTING  —  INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN

SERVICES FOR THE LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE
HEADQUARTERS — CIP GG 19- 08 POLICE BUILDING

NOTICE

Any notice from one party to the other under the Contract shall be in writing and shall be
dated and signed by the party giving such notice or by a duly authorized representative of such
party.  Any such notice shall not be effective for any purpose whatsoever unless served in the
following manner.

a)      If the notice is given to the City, by personal delivery thereof to the City' s Director
of Public Works, or by depositing the same in the United States mail, enclosed in
a sealed envelope, addressed to the City' s Director of Public Works, postage
prepaid and certified;'

b)      If the notice is given to the Contractor,  by personal delivery thereof to said
Contractor or to its duly authorized representative at the site of the project, or by
depositing the same in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope,
addressed to the Contractor at the address set forth in the Contractor's Bid postage
prepaid and certified; or

c)       If the notice is given to the surety or any other person, by personal delivery to such
surety or other person, or by depositing the same in the United States mail,
enclosed in a sealed envelope, addressed to such surety or other person, as the
case may be, at the address of such surety or person last communicated by it to
the party giving the notice, postage prepaid and certified.

ACCIDENT PREVENTION

Precaution shall be exercised at all times for the protection of persons  ( including
employees) and property. The safety provisions of applicable laws, building and construction
codes shall be observed.    Machinery,  equipment,  and other hazards shall be guarded or
eliminated in accordance with the safety provisions of the Construction Safety Orders issued by
the Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board of the State of California.

CONTRACTOR' S WARRANTY

The City shall not, in any way or manner, be answerable or suffer loss, damage, expense
or liability for any loss or damage that may happen to said building, work, or equipment or any
part thereof,  or in,  on,  or about the same during its construction and before acceptance.
Contractor unqualifiedly warrants all work and materials to be free of defects whether performed
or installed by it or by any subcontractor or supplier in the project which is the subject of this
Contract.

APPRENTICES

a)      The Contractor' s attention is directed to the provisions of Sections 1777. 5, 1777. 6,
and 1777.7 of the California Labor Code concerning employment of apprentices
by the Contractor or any subcontractor under him.  In addition, Contractor shall

obtain a certificate of apprenticeship before employing any apprentice pursuant to
Sections 1777. 5, 1777. 6 and 1777.7 of the California Labor Code.

b)      Information relative to apprenticeship standards,  wage schedules,  and other

requirements may be obtained from the Director of Industrial Relations, ex officio

Page 2 of 9
291



SERVICE CONTRACT
DLD DESIGN AND CONSULTING  —  INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN
SERVICES FOR THE LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE
HEADQUARTERS — CIP GG 19- 08 POLICE BUILDING

the Administrator of Apprenticeship, San Francisco, California, or from the Division
of Apprenticeship Standards and its branch offices.

c)       Knowing violations of Section 1777. 5 will result in forfeiture not to exceed one
hundred dollars ($ 100) for each calendar day of non- compliance pursuant to
Section 1777. 7.

HOURS OF WORK

Eight ( 8) hours of work in any calendar day shall constitute a legal day's work.   The

Contractor and each subcontractor shall forfeit, as penalty to the City, twenty- five dollars ($ 25) for

each worker employed in the execution of work on the Project by the Contractor or any
subcontractor under him for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted
to work more than eight ( 8) hours in any one calendar day and forty ( 40) hours in any calendar
week in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code, and in particular, Section 1810 to Section
1815, thereof, inclusive, except that work performed by employees of the Contractor and his
subcontractors in excess of eight hours per day at not less than one and one half times the basic
rate of pay, as provided in Labor Code section 1815.

PAYROLL RECORDS

Pursuant to Labor Code section 1776, as amended from time to time, the Contractor and

each subcontractor shall keep records showing the name, address, social security number, work
classification, straight time and overtime hours paid each day and week, and the actual per diem
wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker or other employee employed by him or her
in connection with the work.

The certified payroll records shall be on forms provided by the Division of Labor Standards
Enforcement or shall contain the same information as the forms provided by the Division. The
payroll records shall be certified and shall be available for inspection at all reasonable hours at
the principal office of the Contractor on the following basis:

a)      A certified copy of the employee' s payroll records shall be made available for
inspection or furnished to such employee or his or her authorized representative
on request.

b)      A certified copy of all payroll records shall be made available for inspection or
furnished upon request, or as required by Labor Code section 1771. 7 to the City,
the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement and the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations.

c)      A certified copy of all payroll records shall be made available upon request to the

public for inspection or copies thereof made;  provided, however, that if request by
the public shall be made through either the City, the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, if as requested,

payroll records have been provided pursuant to paragraph ( b), the requesting party
shall, prior to being provided the records, reimburse the cost of preparation by the
Contractor, subcontractors and the entity through which the request was made.
The public shall not be given access to such records at the principal office of the
Contractor.

Page 3 of 9
292



SERVICE CONTRACT

DLD DESIGN AND CONSULTING  —  INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN

SERVICES FOR THE LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE
HEADQUARTERS — CIP GG 19- 08 POLICE BUILDING

The Contractor shall file a certified copy of the payroll records with the entity that requested
such records within ten ( 10) calendar days after receipt of a written request. Any copy of records
made available for inspection as copies and furnished upon request to the public or the City, the
Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, shall be
marked or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent disclosure of an individual' s name, address,
and social security number.   The name and address of the Contractor or any subcontractor
performing work on the Project shall not be marked or obliterated.

The Contractor shall inform the City of the location of the payroll records, including the
street address, city and county, and shall, within five ( 5) calendar days, provide a notice of a
change of location and address.

In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this section, the Contractor shall

have ten ( 10) calendar days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying
in what respects the Contractor must comply with this section.  Should noncompliance still be

evident after such ten ( 10) calendar day period, the Contractor shall, as a penalty to the City,
forfeit twenty- five dollars ($ 25) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker until
strict compliance is effectuated.

Upon the request of the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, such penalties shall be
withheld from payments due Contractor.

PREVAILING WAGES

a)      The Contractor is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code Sections      ,
1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, Title 8,
section 16000 et seq. (" Prevailing Wage Laws") which require the payment of
prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain " public
works" and " maintenance" projects.   Since this Contract involves an applicable

public works" or " maintenance" project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws,
and since the total compensation is $ 1, 000 or more, Contractor agrees to fully
comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  The Contractor shall obtain a copy of
the prevailing rates of per diem wages applicable to the work to be performed by
subcontractors from the website of the Division of Labor Statistics and Research
of the Department of Industrial Relations located at

http:// www.dir.ca.gov/dlsr/ PWD/ index. htm. In the alternative, the City shall provide
Contractor with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages applicable to the
work to be performed by subcontractors.   Contractor shall make copies of the
prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform work on the Project available to interested parties upon request,
and shall post copies at the Contractor' s principal place of business and at the
Project site.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its elected officials, officers,
employees and agents free and harmless from any claims,  liabilities,  costs,

penalties or interest arising out of any failure or allege failure to comply with the
Prevailing Wage Laws.

Page 4 of 9
293



SERVICE CONTRACT

DLD DESIGN AND CONSULTING  —  INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN

SERVICES FOR THE LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE

HEADQUARTERS — CIP GG 19- 08 POLICE BUILDING

b)      The Contractor and each subcontractor shall forfeit as a penalty to the City not
more than fifty dollars ($ 50) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each
worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rate for any work done by him, or by
any subcontract under him, in violation of the provisions of the California Labor
Code.   The difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rate and the
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each
worker by the Contractor.

INSURANCE

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONTRACTOR, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for the duration
of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the CITY the insurance specified
in subsections (a) through (c) below with insurers and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all
respects to the CITY.

CONTRACTOR shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract
until all insurance required of the CONTRACTOR has also been obtained for the subcontractor.

Verification of this insurance shall be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to
execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONTRACTOR shall, at CONTRACTOR' S sole

cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance
and Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons employed
directly or indirectly by CONTRACTOR.     Said Statutory Workers'
Compensation Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance shall be
provided with limits of not less than one million dollars ($ 1, 000, 000).  In the

alternative, CONTRACTOR may rely on a self- insurance program to meet
these requirements provided that the program of self- insurance complies
fully with the provisions of the California Labor Code.   The insurer,  if

insurance is provided, or the CONTRACTOR, if a program of self- insurance
is provided, shall waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss
arising from work performed under this Agreement.

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liabilitv Insurance.  CONTRACTOR,
at CONTRACTOR' S own cost and expense, shall maintain commercial

general and automobile liability insurance for the period covered by this
Agreement in an amount not less than two million dollars per occurrence

2, 000, 000), combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the

work contemplated by this Agreement.  If Commercial General Liability
Insurance or an Automobile Liability form or other form with a general
aggregate limit is used,  either the general aggregate limit shall apply
separately to the work to be performed under this Agreement or the general
aggregate limit shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such

coverage shall include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims
arising from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under this
Agreement, including the use of owned and non- owned automobiles.

Page 5 of 9
294



SERVICE CONTRACT

DLD DESIGN AND CONSULTING  —  INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN

SERVICES FOR THE LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE

HEADQUARTERS — CIP GG 19- 08 POLICE BUILDING

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001  ( ed. 11/ 88) and

Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001  ( ed. 12/ 90)

Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or added
as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as

insured with respect to each of the following: liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, products
and completed operations of CONTRACTOR; premises owned,
occupied or used by CONTRACTOR.  The coverage shall contain

no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY,
its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)       The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis,
and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance and
that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called upon to
contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)      Any failure of CONTRACTOR to comply with reporting provisions
of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to CITY and its
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)       Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with a
Best' s rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by CITY at
least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.  CONTRACTOR shall disclose

the self- insured retentions and deductibles before beginning any of the
services or work called for by any term of this Agreement. During the period
covered by this Agreement, upon express written authorization of CITY
Manager, CONTRACTOR may increase such deductibles or self- insured
retentions with respect to CITY,  its officers,  employees,  agents,  and

volunteers.  The CITY Manager may condition approval of an increase in
deductible or self- insured retention levels upon a requirement that

CONTRACTOR procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and
related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses that is

satisfactory in all respects to each of them.

Page 6 of 9
295



SERVICE CONTRACT

DLD DESIGN AND CONSULTING  —  INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN

SERVICES FOR THE LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE

HEADQUARTERS — CIP GG 19- 08 POLICE BUILDING

d)      Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.  In the event that any coverage required
under subsections ( a),  ( b),  or  ( c)  of this section of the Agreement is

reduced,   limited,   or materially affected in any other manner,

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notice to CITY at CONTRACTOR' S
earliest possible opportunity and in no case later than five days after
CONTRACTOR is notified of the change in coverage.

e)      In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONTRACTOR fails to
provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the
extent and within the time herein required, CITY may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the

premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement;

ii)       Order CONTRACTOR to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONTRACTOR
hereunder,  or both stop work and withhold any payment,  until
CONTRACTOR demonstrates compliance with the requirements
hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to other remedies CITY may
have and is not the exclusive remedy for CONTRACTOR' S breach.

INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its City Council members,
officers, employees, engineer, and consultants harmless from and against any and all claims,
demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, liens, penalties, suits, or judgments,
arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, at any time from any injury to or death of persons
or damage to property as a result of the willful or negligent act or omission of Contractor, or which
results from Contractor' s noncompliance with any Law respecting the condition, use, occupation
or safety of the Project site, or any part thereof, or which arises from Contractor' s failure to do
anything required under this Contract or for doing anything which Contractor is required not to do
under this Contract, or which arises from conduct for which any Law imposes strict liability on
Contractor in the performance of or failure to perform the terms and conditions of this Contract,
except as may arise from the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City
Council members, officers, employees.

This indemnification shall extend to any and all claims, demands, or liens made or filed by
reason of any construction, renovation, or remodeling work performed by Contractor under this
Contract at any time during the term of this Contract, or arising thereafter.

SEVERABILITY

Nothing contained in the Contract shall be construed so as to require the commission of

any act contrary to law.  Should a conflict arise between any provision contained herein and any
present or future statute, law, ordinance or regulation contrary to which the parties have no legal

Page 7 of 9
296



SERVICE CONTRACT

DLD DESIGN AND CONSULTING  —  INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN

SERVICES FOR THE LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE

HEADQUARTERS — CIP GG 19-08 POLICE BUILDING

right to contract or act, the latter shall prevail and the provision of this Contract which is affected
shall be curtailed and limited but only to the extent necessary to bring it within the requirements
of the law.  If such curtailment or limitation is not possible, the affected provision shall be of no
force and effect.  Except as aforesaid, such illegality shall not affect the validity of this Contract.

COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Contract supersedes any and all agreements, either oral or in writing, between the
Parties with respect to the subject matter herein. Each party to this Contract acknowledges that
no representation by any party which is not embodied herein or any other agreement, statement,
or promise not contained in this Contract shall be valid and binding.

INTERPRETATION

a)      The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each has been given the
opportunity to independently review this Contract with legal counsel, and/ or has
the requisite experience and sophistication to understand, interpret and agree to

the particular language of the provisions of the Contract.

b)      In the event of a controversy or dispute between the parties concerning the
provisions herein, this document shall be interpreted according to the provisions
herein and no presumption shall arise concerning the draftsmanship of such
provision.

APPLICABLE LAW

a)      The parties hereto understand and agree that the terms of this Contract, and its
Exhibits, have been negotiated and executed within the State of California and

shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of California.

b)      In the event of a dispute concerning the terms of this Contract, the parties hereto
expressly agree that the venue for any legal action shall be with the appropriate
court in the County of San Joaquin, State of California.

SIGNATURES

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on
behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement

shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective
successors and assigns.

Page 8 of 9
297



SERVICE CONTRACT

DLD DESIGN AND CONSULTING  —  INTERIOR FURNISHINGS AND DESIGN

SERVICES FOR THE LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE

HEADQUARTERS

Approved as to Form:     City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Z  - Zo2G

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:   City of Lathrop
Director of Public Works

Michael King Date

Approved By: City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Contractor:    DLD Design & Consulting
5443 Bridge Creek Lane

Carmichael, CA 95608

Fed I D #   45- 0500274

Lathrop Business License # 20314

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Page 9 of 9
298



Exhibit A

D D DesiQn 3 Ca sutting
b443 Bridye creek Lane

Carmichael, Ca 95808

Phorre:( 916) 488 8201

Fax:( 916) 4823646

Police St tlon Proposai trorars e

n m.:  Gfty Ot Lathrop
f

or.:    accow. se, 2am

ausna: 390 Towne Centre Drive a werw er:       oominique te ou,c

cny:    Lathrop a: Ca z: 86530 o+ c.: Ste-8s4- 1120

rnon.:  208 8417230 ca:  2Q'8-T12 3138

Mr. Ken Rsec F
d___ 1

Lathrop Police Statian Fumiture
city Price Ea Extended

Pa e 1 Final ToRal Workstations I

1 t 29, 242. 00 29, 242. 00

f

Pa e ToRah Files

1 14168. 00 14, 168. Q0

Paae 3 Tata{: Caseoaods
G 1 4,504A0 4, 504. 00

i
Paqe 4 T al: Seatina

1 26,981. 00 26, 981. 00

i

Paqe 5 Total: Tables

1 7, 280. 00 7, 280. 00

I Taxable Labor: Fabrication/ Installation i

Required by Ca Stabe Law}
1 1, 600. 00 1, 600.001

NON Ta cat le Labor b Factory freight:    iReceive b Irtspect Incp ded Bebw

T tpnsc suo-Taa  3y75
SaNs Ttz S7.$    i

out u onc om ThBnk YouJ s, aoo. 00

TOTAL 95,405.31

299



300



ITEM 4. 13

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE AXON ENTERPRISE, INC., PURCHASE FOR
EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE IN THE NEW CITY OF
LATHROP POLICE SERVICES BUILDING, CIP GG 19-
08

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving a Right of Entry
Agreement and Purchase Agreement with Axon

Enterprises,   Inc.,   for Temporary Access to the

Lathrop Police Stations and the Purchase of

Equipment,  Software Installation and Maintenance

Services in the New City of Lathrop Police Services
Building, CIP GG 19- 08

SUMMARY:

On June 25, 2018, the Lathrop City Council approved the construction and purchase
of a new police building. Since then, the 13, 000 square foot facility, which includes
many amenities such as;  locker rooms, community meeting room, evidence room,

interview rooms,  vehicle storage,  holding cells and a generator,  is well into

construction. At this time, staff is identifying the technical and software needs for the
various operational areas of the facility.

Tonight, staff is requesting Council authorization of a Right of Entry Agreement and
a five ( 5) year Agreement with Axon Enterprises, Inc. ( Axon), for temporary access
and purchase of equipment,  software installation,  video storage,  support,  and

installation services in the video/ audio interview room to be located within the new
City of Lathrop police services building, for digital recording of police interviews.

Summary of Pavments
Payment Amount Amount

Year 1 ( License, equipment, software and setup)    42, 230
Year 2 ( Annual license and maintenance)  8, 72g
Year 3 ( Annual license and maintenance)  8, 728

Year 4 ( Annual license and maintenance)  8, 72g
Year 5 ( Annual license and maintenance)  8, 72g

Amount not to exceed: $ 77, 142

BACKGROUND:

On June 28, 2018, the San Joaquin County Sheriff' s Office ( SJC50) announced the

deployment of body worn cameras to operations staff assigned to Lathrop Police
Services, as part of the safety equipment issued to each deputy. The deployment
represented the completion of the Axon system implementation for the San Joaquin
County SherifF's Office, which the City of Lathrop assigned deputies utilize and the
City pays for as part of their law enforcement agreement.

301



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH AXON ENTERPRISE, INC., FOR THE NEW

LATHROP POLICE SERVICES BUILDING, CIP GG 19- 08

Also in June of 2018,  the Lathrop City Council approved the construction and

purchase of a new police building. Since then, the 13, 000 square foot facility, which
includes many amenities such as; locker rooms, community meeting room, evidence
room,  interview rooms, vehicle storage, holding cells and a generator, is well into
construction.

Currently,  staff is identifying technical and software needs related to information
technology for the various operational areas of the new Lathrop police facility. This
stafF report requests authorization to purchase the necessary license,  hardware,

software, video storage and a 5- year maintenance plan necessary for the video/ audio
interview room to be located within the new City of Lathrop police services building,
for digital recording of police interviews.

Since the City of Lathrop is not a direct customer of Axon, as it does not have its own
police services, the City will be utilizing the San Joaquin County Sheriff' s Axon account
to order the necessary license,  software,  hardware,  video storage and a 5- year
maintenance service plan for the Lathrop police services interview rooms. This would
also include all streaming, video retention, and recording services to be stored and
managed directly by the San Joaquin County Sheriff' s Office. Since the City contracts
with the County for police services and the County has an established account with
Axon and uses many of their products, at this time it makes sense for the City to
continue with these services.  However,  the shipping and delivery of all products
purchased by the City for its building will be coordinated with the Lathrop Information
Technology Department.

Tonight, staff is requesting Council authorization of a Right of Entry Agreement and
a five ( 5) year Agreement with Axon Enterprises, Inc. ( Axon), for temporary access,
purchase of equipment, software installation, video storage, support, and installation
services in the video/ audio interview room to be located within the new City of
Lathrop police services building, for digital recording of police interviews.

Summary of Pavments

Payment Amount Amount
Year 1 ( License, equipment, software and setup)    42, 230
Year 2 ( Annual license and maintenance)  8, 72g
Year 3 ( Annual license and maintenance)  g, 728
Year 4 ( Annual license and maintenance)  8, 72g
Year 5 ( Annual license and maintenance)  8, 72g

Amount not to exceed: $ 77, 142

302



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH AXON ENTERPRISE, INC., FOR THE NEW

LATHROP POLICE SERVICES BUILDING, CIP GG 19- 08

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Since the City of Lathrop is not a direct customer of Axon, as it does not have its own
police services, the City will be utilizing the San Joaquin County Sheriff' s Axon account
to order the necessary license, software, hardware, and a 5- year maintenance service
plan for the Lathrop police services evidence rooms.

This would also include all streaming, video storage, and recording services to be
stored and managed directly by the San Joaquin County SherifF' s Office. Since the

City contracts with the County for police services and the County has an established
account with Axon and uses many of their products, at this time it made sense for
the City to continue with these services.  However, the shipping and delivery of all
products purchased by the City for its building will be coordinated with the Lathrop
Information Technology Department.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Capital Improvement Project GG 19- 08 was created for the tracking of expenses
related to the construction and purchase of the City of Lathrop Police Services
building.  Capital Improvement Project GG 19- 08 has sufficient funds for this
purchase;  therefore, a budget amendment is not needed.  Staff is only requesting
Council authorization to enter into contract with Axon for the purchase of necessary
license,  hardware, software, video storage and a 5- year maintenance plan for the
video/ audio interview room to be located within the new City of Lathrop police
services building. At some point in the near future, stafF will return to Council with a
fiscal update and construction progress of this project.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving a Service Agreement with Axon Enterprise, Inc., to

Purchase Necessary Servicer License, Software,  Hardware, and a 5- Year

Maintenance Service Plan for the Lathrop Police Services Evidence Room.
B.  Right of Entry Agreement with_Axon Enterprise, Inc. Quote included.

303



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH AXON ENTERPRISE, INC., FOR THE NEW

LATHROP POLICE SERVICES BUILDING, CIP GG 19- 08

APPROVALS:

Ter sa Vargas Date

Clerk

G -;,
F rnandes Date

Chief Information Officer

S  (! 1
Cari Dat

Financ c Administrative Services Director

U-_    Z - -- zo u

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z• $ ZoZO

Stephen ). Salvatore Date

City Manager

304



RESOLUTION NO.  20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A RIGHT OF ENTRY AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH AXON
ENTERPRISES,  INC.,  FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS AND THE PURCHASE OF
EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES IN
THE NEW CITY OF LATHROP POLICE SERVICES BUILDING, CIP GG 19- 08

WHEREAS, on ] une 25, 2018, the Lathrop City Council approved the approved
the construction and purchase of a new police building; and

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2018, the San Joaquin County Sheriff's Office ( SJCSO)
announced the deployment of body worn cameras to operations staff assigned to
Lathrop Police Services, as part of the safety equipment issued to each deputy; and

WHEREAS;   the deployment represented the completion of the Axon
Enterprises, Inc. ( Axon) system implementation for the San Joaquin County Sheriff' s
Office, which the City of Lathrop assigned deputies utilize and the City pays for as
part of their law enforcement agreement; and

WHEREAS, since then, the 13, 000 square foot facility, which includes many
amenities such as;   locker rooms,  community meeting room,  evidence room,

interview rooms,  vehicle storage,  holding cells and a generator,  is well into
construction; and

WHEREAS, currently staff is identifying technical and software needs related
to information technology for the various operational areas of the new Lathrop police
facility; and

WHEREAS, this staff report requests authorization to purchase the necessary
license, hardware, software, video storage and a 5- year maintenance plan necessary
for the video/ audio interview room to be located within the new City of Lathrop police
services building, for digital recording of police interviews; and

WHEREAS, since the City of Lathrop is not a direct customer of Axon, as it

does not have its own police services, the City will be utilizing the San Joaquin County
SherifF' s Axon account to order the necessary license,  software,  hardware,  video

storage and a 5- year maintenance service plan for the Lathrop police services
interview rooms; and

WHEREAS,  this would also include all streaming,  video retention,  and

recording services to be stored and managed directly by the San Joaquin County
SherifF' s Office. Since the City contracts with the County for police services and the
County has an established account with Axon and uses many of their products, at
this time it makes sense for the City to continue with these services. However, the
shipping and delivery of all products purchased by the City for its building will be
coordinated with the Lathrop Information Technology Department; and

Resolution No. 20-

305



NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
authorizes the City Manager to execute a right of entry agreement and purchase
order agreement for a five  ( 5)  year term with Axon for temporary access and
purchase of equipment,  software installation,  video storage,  and maintenance

support and installation services in the video/ audio interview room to be located
within the new City of Lathrop police services building, for digital recording of police
interviews, with an amount not to exceed: $ 77, 142

Summary of Pavments
Payment Amount Amount

Year 1 ( License, equipment, software and setup)      42, 230. 00
Year 2 ( Annual license and maintenance)     8, 728. 00
Year 3 ( Annual license and maintenance)     8, 728. 00
Year 4 ( Annual license and maintenance)     8, 728. 00
Year 5 ( Annual license and maintenance)     8, 728. 00

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14t" day of December
2020, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 20-

306



RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT

FOR AXON TO GAIN TEMPORARY ACCESS TO THE LATHROP POLICE STATION

This Temporary Right of Entry Agreement ( herein referenced as either " Right of Entry
Agreement"  or simply " this Agreement")  is made and entered into as of this _ day of

2020, by and between the City of Lathrop, a municipal corporation ( herein
called" City"), and Axon Enterprise, Ina ( herein called" Axon").

WITNESSETH

For, and in consideration of, the mutual covenants hereof, City hereby conditionally
grants to Axon temporary access to the Lathrop Police Station (" Premises") to complete the

scope of work listed in Exhibit A under contract with the County of San Joaquin for the benefit
of the San Joaquin Sheriff' s Office ( SO) and Lathrop Police Services ( LPS), ( hereinafter " Axon

Services to LPS") and Axon hereby agrees to abide by the following terms and conditions while
providing Axon Services to LPS.

1.       Premises.

The premises (" Premises") consists of the main building at 940 River Islands Parkway,
Lathrop, CA 95330.

2.       Use of Premises.

A.      Axon may only access the Premises to provide Axon Services to LPS as detailed
in Exhibit A.

B.       Axon agrees that its access to the Premises and any construction thereon shall be
in accordance with the applicable provisions of City codes and ordinances and any other state or
federal law, code or regulation applicable to Axon' s services to LPS.  Axon acknowledges that

nothing contained in this Right of Entry Agreement shall be deemed to entitle Axon to any City
permit necessary for Axon' s work on the Premises, or waive any applicable City requirements
relating thereto.  This Agreement does not ( a) supersede, nullify or amend any subseyuent
condition which may be imposed by the City in connection with the use of the Premises, or ( b)
amend any City laws, codes or rules.

C.       Axon shall not use or allow any person to use the Premises in a manner that
constitutes waste or nuisance, or impose unreasonable restrictions on City employees and public
users of the Premises.

D.       City reserves the right to maintain, develop and improve the Premises as it sees
fit, regardless of the desires or views of Axon and without interference or hindrance from Axon

provided that City' s actions shall not substantially interfere with Axon' s access to the Premises
in accordance with this Right of Entry Agreement.

307



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029-44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

A i CHMENT ._..

RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT

FOR AXON TO GAIN TEMPORARY ACCESS TO THE LATHROP POLICE STATION

This Temporary Right of Entry Agreement ( herein referenced as either " Right of Entry
AgreemenY' or simply " this Agreement")  is made and entered into as of this _ day of

2020, by and between the City of Lathrop, a municipal corporation ( herein
called" City"), and Axon Enterprise, Inc. ( herein called " Axon").

WITNESSETH

For, and in consideration of, the mutual covenants hereof, City hereby conditionally
grants to Axon temporary access to the Lathrop Police Station (" Premises") to complete the

scope of work listed in Exhibit A under contract with the County of San Joaquin for the benefit
of the San Joaquin Sheriff' s Office ( SO) and Lathrop Police Services ( LPS), ( hereinafter " Axon

Services to LPS") and Axon hereby agrees to abide by the following terms and conditions while
providing Axon Services to LPS.

1.       Premises.

The premises (" Premises") consists of the main building at 952 River Islands Parkway,
Lathrop, CA 95330.

2.       Use of Premises.

A.      Axon may only access the Premises to provide Axon Services to LPS as detailed
in Exhibit A.

B.       Axon agrees that its access to the Premises and any construction thereon shall be
in accordance with the applicable provisions of City codes and ordinances and any other state or
federal law, code or regulation applicable to Axon' s services to LPS.  Axon acknowledges that

nothing contained in this Right of Entry Agreement shall be deemed to entitle Axon to any City
permit necessary for Axon' s work on the Premises, or waive any applicable City reyuirements
relating thereto. This Agreement does not ( a) supersede, nullify or amend any subseyuent
condition which may be imposed by the City in connection with the use of the Premises, or ( b)
amend any City laws, codes or rules.

C.       Axon shall not use or allow any person to use the Premises in a manner that
constitutes waste or nuisance, or impose unreasonable restrictions on City employees and public
users of the Premises.

D.      City reserves the right to maintain, develop and improve the Premises as it sees
fit, regardless of the desires or views of Axon and without interference or hindrance from Axon

provided that City' s actions shall not substantially interfere with Axon' s access to the Premises
in accordance with this Right of Entry Agreement.

308



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35-E029-44D7-88DE-76A6408142A6

3.       Term of Right of Entry A reement.

The Term of this Right of Entry Agreement shall be a period commencing on the date the
City provides Axon access to the Premises  ( the  " Effective Date")  and ending upon the
termination of the Services Agreement between Axon and the County of San Joaquin for Axon
Services to LPS,  or any extension thereof, unless terminated earlier as provided in this Right of
Entry Agreement.

4.       Repairs, Maintenance and Improvements.

A.      Axon represents that Axon has inspected and examined Premises and accepts

them in their present condition.  Axon will maintain the Premises in the same condition as when

received, except for normal wear and tear and except for modifications specifically approved by
the City in writing.

B.       Axon shall make no improvements to the Premises or install any improvements
without first obtaining the written consent of City.  Any such improvements or alterations to the
Premises must be in compliance with any and all governing building codes.  Any permanent
fixtures or improvements made to the Premises shall become the property of the City upon
termination of this Agreement.  As used in this paragraph, " permanent fixtures" refers to fixtures
that cannot be removed from the Premises without causing damage to the Premises in excess of

500.

C.       City will furnish for Axon' s use:  rack space in the City' s Data Center, Ethernet
cabling for each of the interview rooms, necessary ports on the Cisco Data switch and 120V
power at each of the interview rooms and at data center. City shall maintain ownership of said
equipment and Axon shall not negligently use or damage such equipment and Axon shall not
remove such equipment upon expiration or other termination of this Agreement.

5.       Indemnification.

City shall not be liable to Axon or any other person whomsoever for death or personal
injury or for loss or destruction of, or damage to, property in, on or about the Premises and any
improvement thereon, unless as a direct result of City' s acts.  Upon the Effective Date of this

Agreement, Axon shall, for the full term of this Agreement, indemnify and save harmless City
and its officers, agents and employees from and defend the same against any and all claims, liens,
liability, expense ( including attorneys' fees), losses and judgments arising from death or personal
injuries or from the loss or destruction of, or damage to, property of any person whomsoever
resulting from the acts, omissions or negligence of Axon, Axon' s officers, agents, contractors,
permittees or employees.

6.       Insurance.

A.      Axon shall obtain insurance coverage beginning on the Effective Date and
continuing through the entire Right of Entry Agreement Term.  The acceptable insurance shall be
at least as broad as:   ( i) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage
occurrence form CG 0001);  ( ii) property insurance against all risks of loss to any tenant

improvements or betterments; ( iii) cyber insurance with a limit of no less than $ 3 million against
all risks of loss to City information technology hardware and software including, but not limited

309



DocuSign Envelope( D: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

to: data destruction, extortion, theft, hacking, and denial of service attacks; indemnifying the City
for losses to others caused by Axon' s errors and omissions or failure to safeguard data; and

B.       Axon shall maintain limits no less than general liability $ 1 million per occurrence
for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.    If Commercial General Liability
Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit
shall apply separate to this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit.

C.       Any deductibles or self- insured retention must be declared to and approved by
City.  At the option of City, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retention as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or Axon
shall provide a financial guaranty satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

D.      The general liability policy is to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

1)      City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered as
insured with respect to liability arising out of ownership, maintenance or use of the Premises.

2)      Axon' s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects City, its
officers, officials, employees and volunteers.   Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by
City, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of Axon' s insurance and shall
not contribute with it.

3)      Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state
that coverage shall not be canceled except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by mail, or
after ten ( 10) days prior written notice by mail if cancellation is due to non- payment of premium,
has been given to City.

E.       Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A. M. Best' s rating of no less
than A: VII.

F.       Axon shall furnish City with original certificates and amendatory endorsements
effecting coverage required by this Section 10.   All certificates and endorsements are to be

received and approved by City before any work or improvements or alterations to the Premises
commence.  City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance

policies, including endorsements effecting the coverage required by these specifications at any
time.

7.       Events of Default bv Axon.

Each of the following events shall constitute" an event of default of Axon":

A.      Any attempt to make or allow to be made by or from Axon any unauthorized
modifications, alterations, or damage to the Premises.

B.       Axon' s failure to abide by the terms, covenants or conditions as specified in
Section [ 2. A].

310



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029-44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

D.      Axon' s failure, after fifteen ( 15) days' written notice from City, to keep, perform
or observe any other term, covenant or condition of this Agreement to be kept, performed or
observed by Axon;

E.       Axon' s filing of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or the assignment of all, or
substantially all, af Axon' s assets for the benefit of Axon' s creditors or the institution of
proceedings in bankruptcy against Axon.

8.       Results of Default bv Axon.

Upon the occurrence of an " event of default of Axon", and after fifteen ( 15) days' written

notice from City, City, besides any other rights or remedies it may have, shall have the immediate
right to remove all Axon persons and property from the Premises; such property may be removed
and stored in a public warehouse or elsewhere at the cost of, and for the account of Axon.
Should City elect to re- enter as herein provided, or should it take possession pursuant to any
notice provided for by law, it may either terminate this Right of Entry Agreement in its sole
discretion and shall have the right to make alterations and repairs to said Premises and

improvements.  Axon shall be liable to City for all costs incurred to restore the Premises to its
original condition as of the date of the effective date of this Right of Entry Agreement,
reasonable wear and tear excepted.

9.       Nonwaiver of Defaults.

The waiver by City of any breach by Axon of any term, covenant or condition hereof shall
not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or of any other term, covenant or
condition of this Agreement. No term, covenant or condition hereof can be waived except by the
written consent of City and forbearance or indulgence by City, in any regard whatsoever, shall
not constitute a waiver of the terms, covenants or conditions to be performed by Axon to which
the same may apply, and until complete performance by Axon of the term, covenant or condition,
City shall be entitled to revoke any remedy available to it hereunder or by law, despite such
forbearance or indulgence.

10.      Rights Upon Termination.

If Axon is not in default hereunder, Axon shall have the right to remove only the trade
fixtures which Axon may have placed or installed upon the Premises during the term of this
Agreement; provided, however, that upon said removal, Axon shall repair, at the own expense of
Axon, any damage resulting therefrom.  The term " trade fixtures" means those improvements,

other than structures or structural modifications installed by Axon, used for the conducting of
business by Axon and which can be removed without interference or damage to structures.

11.      Mediation/ Arbitration.

All claims, disputes and controversies arising out of or in relation to the performance,
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, breach
thereof shall be decided under this Section 11 pursuant to mediation, and if necessary, arbitration.

311



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

A.      Mediation.

1)      Any Mediation/ Arbitration Dispute shall be referred to mediation before,
and as a condition precedent to, the initiation of any arbitration proceeding.

2)      The parties shall submit any Mediation/ Arbitration Dispute to an impartial
neutral mediator selected by mutual consent of the parties.  In the event the parties cannot agree
on the selection of a mediator,  the Mediation/ Arbitration Dispute shall be referred to

JAMS/ Endispute, a professional mediation service.  The parties shall equally bear the cost of
mediation fees, subject only to the exception set forth in the next paragraph.

3)      If during the mediation a party (" offering party") makes a written offer of

compromise to another party which is not accepted by such party (" refusing party") and the

refusing party fails to obtain a more favorable result through arbitration, the refusing party shall
pay the offering party all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees and the cost of
the mediator and arbitrator, incurred from the time the offer is refused.

B.       Arbitration.

1)      A Mediation/ Arbitration Dispute which is not resolved through mediation,

as set forth above, shall be decided by neutral, binding arbitration and not by administrative
proceeding or court action, except as provided by California law for judicial review of arbitration
proceedings.   The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the rules governing the
conduct of arbitration proceedings set forth in the California Code of Civil Procedure and the
California Rules of Court.  The parties may agree in writing to use different rules.  The parties
shall have the right to discovery in accordance with the provisions of the California Code of Civil
Procedure.  Judgment on any award of the arbitrator may be confirmed and entered by the court
as provided for by California law.

2)      An arbitrator may be selected by mutual consent of the parties.   If the

parties cannot agree on selection of an arbitrator within fifteen ( 15) days from the date either
party first requests arbitration, an arbitrator familiar with handling similar disputes shall be
appointed by JAMS/ Endispute.   The cost of the arbitrator, arbitration costs and attorney fees
shall be borne by the parties as may be determined by the arbitrator.

3)      Any demand for arbitration must be made in writing to the other party. No
demand for arbitration may be made after the date on which the institution of legal proceedings
based on the claim is barred by the applicable statute of limitations.

4)      The parties shall each have the right to file with a court of competent
jurisdiction an application for temporary or preliminary injunctive relief, writ of attachment, writ
of possession, temporary protective order, or appointment of a receiver if the arbitration award to
which the applicant may be entitled may be rendered ineffectual in the absence of such relief or if
there is no other adequate remedy.  This application shall not waive a party' s arbitration rights
under this Agreement.

5)      The arbitrator shall have the power to grant legal and equitable remedies,
and award damages, that may be granted or awarded by a judge of the Superior Court of the State
of California or the Federal District Court of the Eastern District of California.  The arbitrator

312



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

shall prepare and provide to the parties a written decision on all matters subject to the arbitration,
including factual findings and the reasons that form the basis of the arbitrator' s decision.  The

arbitrator shall not have the power to commit errors of law or legal reasoning and the award of
the arbitrator shall be vacated or corrected for any such error or any other grounds specified in
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1286. 2 or Section 1286. 6.  The award of the arbitrator shall be

mailed to the parties no later than 30 days after the close of the arbitration hearing.   The

provisions of the California Evidence Code shall apply to the arbitration hearing. The arbitration
proceedings may be recorded by a certified shorthand court reporter.   The party requesting a
reporter shall pay for the reporter and if both sides request a reporter, the cost of the reporter shall
be divided equally.  Written transcripts of the proceedings may be prepared at the request of a
party. A party requesting a transcript shall pay for the cost thereof.

12.      Consent Not to be Unreasonablv Withheld.

Whenever the consent, approval or permission is required hereunder by either Axon or
City, such consent, approval or permission is not to be unreasonably withheld, unless expressly
provided otherwise hereunder.

13.     Relationship Between the Parties.

City is neither a joint venturer with nor a partner or association of Axon with respect to
any matter provided for in this Agreement. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to create
any such relationship between the parties or to subject City to any obligation of Axon hereunder.

14.     Time of the Essence.

Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

15.      Right of Entry Agreement Made in California.

This Right of Entry Agreement has been made and shall be construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of California.  All duties, obligations and liabilities of City and Axon with
respect to the Premises are expressly set forth herein and this Agreement can only be amended in
writing.

16.     Headings.

The headings contained herein are for convenience of reference and are not intended to

define or limit the scope of any provisions of this Agreement.

313



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

17.      Notices.

All notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when
received in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, addressed as follows,
or to such other address as from time to time may be designated by a party by written notice to
the other parties:

To City: City of Lathrop
Office of the City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

With Copy: City of Lathrop
Office of the City Attorney
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

To Axon:  Axon Enterprises, Inc.

17800 N 85th St.
Scottsdale, Arizona 85255

With Copy: San Joaquin County Sheriff' s Office
7000 Michael Canlis Boulevard

French Camp, CA 95231

18.      Successors and Assi ns.

The provisions of this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors and
assigns of the parties hereto.

314



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Right of Entry Agreement
to be executed by their respective duly authorized officers, as of the Effective Date.

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal Axon Enterprise Inc:

corporation of the State of California
DxuSipned by:

BB:       
55 AEBB131A44 .

Name:  StephenJ. Salvatore Name: Ro ert r scoll

Its:      City Manager Its:      
vP, Assoc.  eneral counsel

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY THE

CITY OF LATHROP CITYATTORNEY

By:      ---

Name: Salvador Navarrete

Its:      City Attorney

315



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

EXHIBIT " A"

SCOPE OF WORK

316



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6   

XHIBIT A

Q-257010- 44131. 906M H

Axon Enterprise, inc.
y Gluote Expira6on: 12/ 31/ 2020

17800 N 85th St.    

Scottsdale, Arizona 85255 Payment Terms: Net 30

United States Delivery Method: Fedex- Ground

Phone:( S00) 978-2737

SALES REPRESENTATIVE

Megan Hardisty

SHIP TO BILL TO Phone: 480- 253- 7854

Ryan Biedermann San Joaquin County— City of Lathrop
Email: mhardisty@axon. com

San Joaquin County— City of Lathrop 7000 Michael Canlis Boulevard
Fax:

Attn: Tony Fernandes French Camp, CA 95231 PRIMARY CONTACT

390 Towne Centre Dr US Ryan Biedermann

Lathrop, CA 95330
Phone:( 209) 468- 4400

US
Email: rbiedermann@sjgov. org

Year 1

Item Description
Term

Quantity
List Unit

Net Unit Price Total( USD)
Months)   Price

Axon Plans 8 Packages

50071
AXON STREAMING SERVER LICENSE( PER

2 1, 750. 00 1, 750. 00 3, 500. 00

SERVER)

50070     
ON CLIENT SOFTWARE( EACH CLIENT

3 1, 500. 00 1, 500. 00 4, 500. 00

AND TOUCH PANEL)

50055
INTERVIEW ROOM UNLIMITED

g 1, 188. 00 1, 188. 00 7, 128. 00

EVIDENCE. COM LICENSE YEAR 1 PAYMENT

Hardware

74116
INTERVIEW COVERT ENCLOSURE- AV WALL

g 121. 00 210. 00 630. 00

PLATE, FLUSH MOUNTED

50218 AXIS F41 COVERT MAIN UNIT- NON SER 6 595. 00 297. 50 1, 785. 00

50118 LOUROE DV- ML MICROPHONE 6 196. 50 196. 50 1, 179. 00

50294 AXON INTERVIEW LITE SERVER 2 1, 950. 00 1, 950. 00 3, 900. 00

50268 POS- X TP6 TOUCH PANEL W/ 4GB RAM 3 1, 600. 00 1, 600. 00 4, 800. 00

74056 TOUCH PANEL WALL MOUNT 3 64.00 64. 00 192. 00

50267 AXIS A9188 Network UO Relay Module 2 500. 00 500. 00 1, 000. 00

50258 AXIS T98A15- VE SURVEILLANCE CABINET 2 325. 00 325. 00 650. 00

50265 PANEL MOUNT LED, 24VDC- RED 2 30. 00 30. 00 60. 00

74062
INTERVIEW ROOM 5 YR EXTENDED

3 1, 297. 00 1, 297. 00 3, 891. 00
WARRANTY

50114 AXIS F1025 SENSOR UNIT 6 370. 00 185. 00 1, 110. 00

74059
MOTION SENSOR ENCLOSURE— COVERT

3 135. 00 135. 00 405. 00
CAMERA

Q- 257010- 44131. 906M H
1

317



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

Year 1 ( Continued)
Term

quanti
List Unit

Net Unit Price Total( USD)
Item Description

Months)      Price
m..._.,   .,   ..

Services

85170 INTERVIEW ROOM, INSTALL AND SETUP 3 2, 500. 00 2, 500. 00 7, 500. 00

Subtotal 42, 230. 00

Estimated
0. 00

Shipping

Estimated Tax 0. 00

Totai 42, 230. 00

Year 2

Term
Quanti

List Unit
Net Unit Price Total( USD)

Item Description
Months)      Price

W

Axon Plans S Packages

50056
INTERVIEW ROOM UNLIMITED

g 1, 188. 00 1, 188. 00 7, 128. 00

EVIDENCE. COM LICENSE YEAR 2 PAYMENT

50072     
ON STREAMING SERVER SOFTWARE

2 350. 00 350. 00 700. 00

MAtNTENANCE ANNUAL PAYMENT

50074     '°`
XON CLIENT SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

3 300. 00 300. 00 900. 00

ANNUALPAYMENT

Subtotal 8, 728. 00

Estimated Tax 0. 00

Total 8, 728. 00

Year 3

Item Description
Term

quantity
List Unit

Net Unit Price Total( USD)
Months)      Price

Auon Plans 8 Packages

50057
INTERVIEW ROOM UNLIMITED

g 1, 188. 00 1, 188. 00 7, 128. 00

EVIDENCE. COM LICENSE YEAR 3 PAYMENT

50072     '°`
XON STREAMING SERVER SOFTWARE

2 350. 00 350. 00 700. 00

MAINTENANCE ANNUAL PAYMENT

50074     
ON CLIENT SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

3 300. 00 300. 00 900. 00

ANNUALPAYMENT

Subtotal 8, 728. 00

Estimated Tax 0. 00

Total 8, 728. 00

Q- 257010- 44131. 906MH
2

318



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35-E029-44D7-88DE-76A6408142A6

Year 4

Item Description
Term

Quantity
List Unit

Net Unit Price Totai( USD)
Months)      Price

Axon Plans Packagss

50058
INTERVIEW ROOM UNLIMITED

6 1, 188. 00 1, 188. 00 7, 128. 00
EVIDENCE. COM LICENSE YEAR 4 PAYMENT

50072     
ON STREAMING SERVER SOFTWARE

2 350. 00 350. 00 700. 00
MAINTENANCE ANNUAL PAYMENT

50074     '°`
XON CLIENT SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

3 300. 00 300. 00 900. 00
ANNUALPAYMENT

Subtotal 8, 728. 00

Estimated Tax 0. 00

Total 8, 728. 00

Year 5

Item Description
Term

quantity
List Unit

Net Unit Price Total( USD)

m.._    

Months)      Price

Axon Plans& Packages

50059
INTERVIEW ROOM UNLIMITED

g 1, 188. 00 1, 188. 00 7, 128. 00
EVIDENCE. COM LICENSE YEAR 5 PAYMENT

50072     '°`
XON STREAMING SERVER SOFTWARE

2 350. 00 350. 00 700. 00
MAINTENANCE ANNUAL PAYMENT

50074     
ON CLIENT SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

3 300. 00 300. 00 900. 00
ANNUALPAYMENT

Subtotal 8, 728. 00

Estimated Tax 0. 00

Total 8, 728. 00

Grand Total 77, 142. 00

Q- 257010- 44131. 906M H
3

319



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

A No

Discounts  uso

Quote Expiration: 12/ 31/ 2020

List Amount 79,770.00

Discounts 2,628.00

Total 77, 142.00
Total excludes applicable taxes

Summary of Payments
Payment Amount ( USD)

Year 1 42, 230. 00

Year 2 8, 728. 00

Year 3 8, 728. 00

Year 4 8, 728. 00

Year 5 8, 728. 00

Grand Total 77, 142. 00

Q- 257010- 44131. 906M H

4

320



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

STATEMENT OF WORK & CONFIGURATION DOCUMENT

Auon Interview Recording Platform

This document details a proposed system design

Agency Created For: San Joaquin County— City of Lathrop

Sold By:  Megan Hardisry

Designed By:  Jason South

Installed By:  Axon Professional Services

Customer Contact:  Tony Fernandes

Target Install Date:  03/ 01/ 2021

F ' rs(``;  '  t

321



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029-44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

AXON INTERVIEW RECORDING PLATFORM
This image is intended to be a general visual of how Interview Room is configured. Please read through the SOW for
configuration specific to this deal.

IP Camer a{ s)    Primary Recording Server

ui

G gy Daca SwitchJPOE Power Evidertce Management System

Tauch Panel( s Secondary Recording Server

AXON- PROVIDED HARDWARE SUMMARY
The following section offers a broad summary of the Axon- provided hardware needed to configure this order. With the
exception of server quantities, QUANTITIES DO NOT REFLECT CUSTOMER- PROVIDED ITEMS.

Total Camera Configurations

6 Camera(s)     i n Rooms

HeadquaRers- 940 River 3

6 Covert Enclosure( s)      Islands Pkwy

6 Microphone( s)

Injector( s)

Total Switches

1 POE Switch( es)

Total Servers

2 Server( s)( customer-provided inc/uded)

Total Touch Panels

3 Touch Panel( s)( virtual not inGuded)

3 Wall Mount( s)

Total Camera Conflgurations

2 I/ O Box(es)

t. ,'>   a 3 Sa  , t'? t , 4 , p, a' 1', ty

322



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35-E029-44D7-88DE-76A6408142A6

INTERVIEW ROOM OVERVIEW
The following sections detail the configuration of the Axon Interview recording system at all locations.

Network Considerations

Each IP Camera will be connected to a POE switch that provides the device with power and network
connectivity.

Each Recording Server must be given a static IPv4 network address that is routable across the
network.

Network Requirements

Each IP Camera must be given a static IPv4 network address that is routable across the network.

Each touch panel/ kiosk must be given a static IPv4 network address that is routable across the
network.

Network Device Static IPs Total IPs

Qty of IP Cameras 6

Network Addressing
Qty of Touch Panels 3 13

Qty of Recording Servers 2

Data SwitCh Provisioning This install will require POE data switches at each location.

Virtual Kiosks 0 workstations will require virtual kiosk software to be installed.

Customer to provide all device IP addresses
Customer to also provide:

Subnet Mask

Gateway IP
Customer Provided Items DNS/ WINS IP

Time Server IP

Customer IT staff will configure all switches with proper network configuration.

Metadata Tags

Metadata Ta in
The system will collect metadata information prior to, and after, the interview recording process( i. e.

gg 9 Interviewer Name, Interviewee Name, Case Number).

Information collected prior to recording:
Interviewee first and last name

Case number

Metadata Tags
Case type

Interviewee type

Information collected post recording:
Interviewer name( s)

CustOmer Provided Items Customer to provide preferred metadata fields.

Axon Provided Items Axon to facilitate the creation of inetadata fields.

r ,, r,.,  t,, ,

323



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

NETWORK CONFIGURATION DETAILS
The following section offers a broad summary of the Axon- provided hardware needed to configure this order.

Network Configuration Details

Evidence Management System Evidence. com

Network Applications:

Remote monitoring application

Evidence. com Application Features:

Application Features Secure Cloud Storage

Redaction

Download/ Sharing
Audit Trail

Reporting

Training

This solution will include on- site application training covering:
Touch panel overview

Initiating interview wizard
Application Package Entering metadata

Controlling the interview process
Closing an interview
Evidence. com functionality

Additional General Deal Notes

Notes

2    , "< t$—¢ 7, li; i(' st li.: ez..` 1

324



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

LOCATION DETAILS: Headquarters - 940 River Islands Pkwy
The following sections detail the configuration of the Axon Interview recording system at HEADQUARTERS- 940 RIVER
ISLANDS PKWY

Location Name Headquarters- 940 River Islands Pkwy

Cable Considerations

Customer will install the networking cables using a Cat6e Cable.

Cabling Runs 14 cable runs are required for this installation.

8 110v power outlets are required for this installation( Customer Responsibility).

All Devices:

Network cabling must be provided for the following devices:

Cabling Axis IP Camera

Requirements Server

Touch Panel or PC running a virtual Touch Panel
POE Switch

Servers, Switches, Touch Panels

Axon Interview Lite Server 1
Servers Quantity:

Axon Interview Lite Server 1

Redundancy This system includes recording redundancy

Customer will provide data switch 1

Data SwitchlPOE Power Quantity:

Touch Panels POS- X Touch Panel

Touch Panel Location Wall mounted outside each room

Number of I/ O Boxes Required 2

Additional Location Notes

Notes

t +,?>.,  „ tf">tr='. 3 . rji>> ., 

325



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35-E029-44D7-88DE-76A6408142A6

ROOM DETAILS: Interview 1
The following sections detail the configurations specific to INTERVIEW 1

Location Name Headquarters- 940 River Islands Pkwy

Room Name Interview 1

Camera Configuration

Camera 1 will be a( n): AXIS F41/ F1025 Covert IP Camera

Covert Enclosure: Motion Sensor Enclosure
Camera 1

Mic: Louroe Tamper Proof Mic

Camera 2 will be a( n): AXIS F41/ F1025 Covert IP Camera

Covert Enclosure: Thermostat Enclosure
Camera 2

Mic: Louroe Tamper Proof Mic

ReCording ACtivation Recording will be triggered via Touch Panel

External Recording- In-
Progress Visual

Recording will be triggered LED

Wall Configuration Drywall

Ceiling Configuration Standard Tile

Additional Location Notes

Notes

x,":'

d; ! "
t' itP3( t   . t .,

l' i':

326



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

ROOM DETAILS: Interview 2

The following sections detail the configurations specific to INTERVIEW 2

Location Name Headquarters- 940 River Islands Pkwy

Room Name Interview 2

Camera Configuration

Camera 1 will be a( n): AXIS F41/ F1025 Covert IP Camera

Covert Enclosure: Motion Sensor Enclosure
Camera 1

Mic: Louroe Tamper Proof Mic

Camera 2 will be a( n): AXIS F41/ F1025 Covert IP Camera

Covert Enclosure: Thermostat Enclosure
Camera 2

Mic: Louroe Tamper Proof Mic

ReCording ACtivation Recording will be triggered via Touch Panel

External Recording- In-
Progress Visual

Recording will be triggered LED

Wall Configuration Drywall

Ceiling Configuration Standard Tile

Additional Location Notes

Notes

t rr`: f; , 7" it i!{,  i'[ ktr 1 ....
r ,..

327



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35-E029-44D7-88DE-76A6408142A6

ROOM DETAILS: Interview 3 - Holding Area
The following sections detail the configurations specific to INTERVIEW 3- HOLDING AREA

Location Name Headquarters- 940 River Islands Pkwy

Room Name Interview 3- Holding Area

Camera Configuration

Camera 1 will be a( n): AXIS F41/ F1025 Covert IP Camera

Covert Enclosure: Motion Sensor Enclosure
Camera 1

Mic: Louroe Tamper Proof Mic

Camera 2 will be a( n): AXIS F41/ F1025 Covert IP Camera

Covert Enclosure: Thermostat Enclosure
Camera 2

Mic: Louroe Tamper Proof Mic

Recording Activation Recording will be triggered via Touch Panel

External Recording- In-   
N/ A

Progress Visual

Wall Configuration Cinder Block

Ceiling Configuration Metal Security Tile

Additional Location Notes

Notes

z ",..
A   a i a{  r nri t;

y  „

w„

p ,

328



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

Axon International, Inc' s Sales Terms and Conditions

for Direct Sales to End User Purchasers

This Statement of Work is bound to the applicable signed quote. Upon confirmation of
the installation dates, to be confirmed in writing, the agency will give no less than a 2-
week advanced notice of cancellation or change from the date of the scheduled

installation. In the event the Agency cancels 2 weeks or less from the date of the
scheduled installation, the agency will be responsible for all travel booked, and
resource costs associated with the cancelled installation. Rescheduling of the
installation will be at the discretion of Axon Professional Services based on available

dates within the installation schedule calendar.

Changes to the scope of this SOW must be documented and agreed upon by the
Parties in a change order. If the changes cause an increase or decrease in any
charges or cause a scheduling change from that originally agreed upon, an equitable
adjustment in the charges or schedule will be agreed upon by the Parties and included
in the change order, signed by both Parties.

a°     . ; 3°;  ,, ,;?, ,. t,

329



DocuSign Envelope ID: 379F5A35- E029- 44D7- 88DE- 76A6408142A6

Tax is subject to change at order processing with valid exemption.

Axon' s Sales Terms and Conditions

This Quote is limited to and conditional upon your acceptance of the provisions set forth herein and Axon' s Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
posted at www. axon. com/ leqal/ sales- terms- and- conditions), as well as the attached Statement of Work( SOW) for Axon Fleet and/ or Axon Interview

Room purchase, if applicable. Any purchase order issued in response to this Quote is subject solely to the above referenced terms and conditions. By
signing below, you represent that you are lawfully able to enter into contracts. If you are signing on behalf of an entity( including but not limited to the
company, municipality, or govemment agency for whom you work), you represent to Axon that you have legal authority to bind that entity. If you do not
have this authority, please do not sign this Quote.

Signature: Date:

Name( Print):      Title:

PO# ( Or write

NIA):

Please sign and email to Megan Hardisty at mhardisty@axon. com or fax to

Thank you for being a valued Axon customer. For your convenience on your next order, please check out our online store buv. axon. com

The trademarks referenced above are the property of their respective owners.

A con Internal Use Only*"'"

SFDC Contract#:

Order Type:

RMA#:

Address Used:

Review 1 Review 2 SO#:

Comments:

Q-257010- 44131. 906M H

14

330



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 4. 14
DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PROFESSIONAL

OFFSITE DATA BACKUP AND DISASTER RECOVERY

SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Lease Agreement with
HP Integrated Financial Services for Professional

Offsite Data Backup and Disaster Recovery Services
Provided by Solid Networks

SUMMARY:

The City has been using offsite data backup and disaster recovery services for the
past twelve years.  Backing up data is an essential business process for the proper
operation of data in today' s digital environment.  These services are crucial for

protecting the City' s business continuity in the event of data loss, security breach, or
natural disaster.  With the emergence of new information technologies,  persistent
high security threats, and the stark reality of financial loss in the event of a data
breach, staff continuously evaluates more efficient and cost effective solutions for the
City.

As part of the ongoing evaluation of data solutions,  staff requested quotes from
authorizes professional companies for the renewal of ongoing offsite data backup and
disaster recovery services. The City received the following four ( 4) proposals:

Vendor uote

1 Solid Networks   

J J          " $

106, 454. 00

2 General Datatech LP 112, 157. 52

3 ePlus Technologies 116, 545. 52

4 Entisys 360 134, 406. 90

Solid Networks provided the lowest cost proposal for $ 106, 454. 00. This provides the

necessary equipment, installation services, and secure cloud storage.   In order to

contract with Solid Networks, the City would enter into a lease agreement with HP
Integrated Financial Services attached without details to avoid disclosing confidential
network security details. This lease would allow the City to pay monthly installments
at 0%, instead of the full cost upfront.

Tonight, staff is requesting Council consider the attached resolution approving the
lease agreement with HP Integrated Financial Services for the Solid Network

professional installation, equipment, and maintenance services. This lease agreement
would increase the City' s current ofF- site data backup storage performance, disaster
recovery, and security at a lower cost.

331



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH HP INTEGRATED FINANCIAL SERVICES

BACKGROUND:

In past twelve years,  the City has been using offsite data backup and disaster
recovery services.  Backing up data is an essential business process for the proper
operation of data in today' s digital environment.

These services are crucial for protecting the City' s business continuity in the event of
data loss, security breach, and or natural disaster. The current system has served its
full shelf life and purpose.  Due to the emergence of new and more efficient

information technologies,  persistent high security threats,  and the stark reality of
financial loss in the event of a data breach, staff has evaluated different and more

efficient solutions for the City.

As part of the ongoing evaluation of data solutions,  staff requested quotes from
authorized professional companies for the renewal of ongoing offsite data backup and
disaster recovery services. The City received the following four ( 4) proposals:

Vendor uote
vv , . , ,,. v,

1 Solid Networks 106, 454. 00

2 General Datatech LP 112, 157. 52

3 ePlus Technologies 116, 545. 52

4 Entisys 360 134, 406. 90

These solutions also come recommended and reviewed from other local agencies with

similar security needs as Lathrop. Solid Networks provided the lowest cost proposal
for the sum of  $ 106, 454. 00.  This proposal provides the necessary equipment,
professional installation services, and secure cloud storage.  In order to contract with

Solid Networks, the City would enter into a lease agreement with HP Integrated
Financial Services. This lease would allow the City to pay monthly installments at 0%,
instead of paying the full cost upfront.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is requesting Council consideration of the attached resolution approving the
lease agreement with HP Integrated Financial Services for the Solid Network

professional installation,  equipment,  and maintenance services.  Approval of said

lease agreement would increase the City' s current ofF- site data backup storage
performance, disaster recovery, and security at a lower cost.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Lease Terms:  36 months,  $ 2, 957. 05 per month,  at 0%  interest rate.  The terms

include a $ 1. 00 buyout at the end of the 36 months lease. The equipment will provide
adequate off- site data backup for the City for the next three ( 3) years. Funds for this
lease agreement are currently available in the FY 20- 21 Information Technology
approved budget.

332



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH HP INTEGRATED FINANCIAL SERVICES

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Lease Agreement with HP Integrated Financial

Services for Professional Offsite Data Backup and Disaster Recovery
Services Provided by Solid Networks

APPROVALS:

s  '  g  -  0 -

T ernandes Date

Chief Information Officer

1 i
Cari Ja Date

Finance Administrative Services Director

Z-- j , Z O 2G

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

z• S- zo
Ste en Salvatore Date

City Manager

333



RESOLUTION NO.  20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH HP INTEGRATED FINANCIAL

SERVICES FOR PROFESSIONAL OFFSITE DATA BACKUP AND DISASTER

RECOVERY SERVICES PROVIDED BY SOLID NETWORKS

WHEREAS, the City has been using offsite data backup and disaster recovery
services for the past twelve years; and

WHEREAS, backing up data is an essential business process for the proper
operation of data in today' s digital environment; and

WHEREAS,  these services are crucial for protecting the City' s business
continuity in the event of data loss, security breach, or natural disaster; and

WHEREAS, with the emergence of new information technologies, persistent
high security threats, and the stark reality of financial loss in the event of a data
breach, staff continuously evaluates more efficient and cost effective solutions for the
City; and

WHEREAS, as part of the ongoing evaluation of data solutions, staff requested
quotes from authorized professional companies for the renewal of ongoing offsite
data backup and disaster recovery services; and

WHEREAS, the lowest cost proposal was provided by Solid Networks for a sum
of  $ 106, 454. 00,  for all necessary equipment,  professional installation services,
maintenance and secure cloud storage; and

WHEREAS, in order to contract with Solid Networks, the City may enter into
a lease agreement with HP Integrated Financial Services to allow the City to pay
monthly installments at 0% interest rate, instead of paying the full cost upfront.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
authorizes the City Manager to execute all necessary documents and lease agreement
with HP Integrated Financial Services for the Solid Network equipment, professional
installation, maintenance, and secure cloud storage services for 36 months, at a cost

of $ 2, 957. 05 per month at 0% interest rate.

Resolution No. 20-

334



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 14th day of December
2020, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Sa vador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 20-

335



STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT SINGLE SCHEDULE LEASE

PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Whai we use the words you and your i n this Lease, we mean you, our a atat, whi ch is the Legaae i ndicated below. When we use the words we, us and our i n thi s

Lease, we mean the Leeaor, Hewlfltt- Padcard Finandal Servioes Company. Our addre is 200 Connell Drive, Suite 5000, Berkeley Heights, NJ 07922

CUSTOM ER L ssee Nane T c ID#

I NFORMATI ON Ci of L hr

390 Towne Caitre Drive Lathrop, CA 95330, UNITED STATES Phor e No.   Lea9e 5555690429USA1

390 Tanvne Centre Drive Lathrop, CA 95330, U N I TED STATES Rar e No.   Schedule 5555690429USA1

SUPPLI ER Hew ett- aacad corr ay
NO' 

F c No.

1 NFORMATI ON

3800 Quidc Hill Road
N

Bldg 2, Site 100
Austin, TX 78728

EQUIPMENT c2ua, tity MakelModeJ PriceEady ctenson

DESCRI PTI ON Quote#. oo58 a os,45a.00

TERM AND LeaseTam( Morrths)  ease ayment Doamaitation Fee Payment Timing( Check one)    Rus

LEASE PAYM ENT Applicable

SCHEDULE 3smontns S2, ss. os N/ A advance T cesand

Arreas I nsuance

Additior al Ravisons Total Cash Price Payment Frequax,y( Chedc one)

MontNy

106,454. 00 Quaterly

Semi Annual

ar,er

Amual Rate of I Maest L e4 Corm ncar ent D e

wA February 28, 2021

PARTI

You agree to lease the equipment described above( collectively,' Equipmant") on the terms and conditions of this lease agreement(' Lease"). The term of this Lease is set foRh above. This Lease shall

be effective with respect to the Equipment from and after the date of your acceptance of the Equipment. Each Lease Payment( singly, a Lease Payment and collectively, the' Lease Payments") are to be

made in the manner specified above and shall commence on the date the Equipment is accepted by you as evidenced by your execution and delivery to us of a Delivery and Acceptance Certificate with

respect to the Equipment. You must notify us of any change in the Equipment to be included in any proposed l. ease and we reserve the right to accept or rejed such change. Our ecceptance of this

Lease shall be evidenced by our execution hereof.

PART II

7. TERMS AND CONDITIONS. In consideretion of our purchase of the Equipment selected being includible in gross income for federel income tau purposes; ( e) NEITHER THE

by you, we lease to you, and you lease from us, the Equipment identified above pursuant to SUPPLIER OF THE EQUIPMENT NOR ANY OF ITS SALESPERSONS ARE, OR HAVE

the terms and conditions set forth herein. THIS LEASE AND THE DOCUMENTS REFERRED ACTED AS, OUR AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES;( financial infortnation and other statements

TO HEREIN CONSTRUTE THE FULL AND ENTIRE AGREEMENT belween you and us in provided to us are accu2te and correc[ and will be updated upon our request during the term

connection with the Equipment and MERGES ANY OTHER UNDERSTANDING. In no case of this Lease; g) you are a politieal subdivision or agency or department of a State;( h) the

shall the preprinted tertns and conditions on the Suppliefs standard transadional entering inlo and performance of this Lease are authorized under the laws and constitution of

documentation( e.g., order forms and invoices) apply to us. Neither you nor we rely on any your state and do not violate or contradict any judgement, law, order, or regulation, or cause

other statement, represenWtion or assurance of cure. This lease can be neither canceled nor any default under any agreement to which you are a party;( i) you have complied with all

modified except by a written agreement signed by both parties. bidding requirements and, where necessary, have properly presented this Lease for approval

and adoption as a valid obligation on your part; j) this Lease is a legal, valid and binding

2. YOUR WARRANTIES TO US. You e ressly represent and warrent to us, and we rely on,  obligation enforceable in accordance with its terms;( k) you have sufficient appropriated funds

each of the following statements: ( a) you have read and understood this Lease;( b) you have or other moneys available to pay all artaunts due under this Lease for your current fiscal

selectad tha equipment and speciflcatlons, and the equlpment wlll meat your needs;( c)  period; ( I) the use of the Equipmenl is essential for your proper, etficient and economic

you witl authorize us to pay for the Equipment only after you have received and acceptad lhe operation, you will be the only entity to own, use or operete the Equipment during the term of

Equipment as fully operable for your purposes;( d) the interest portion of the Lease Payments this Lease and you will use the Equipment only for your govemmental purposes;( m) You do

shall be excluded from grass income for federel income tax purposes, and you wiil do nothing not and will not: 1) export, recxport, or Vansfer any Equipment, soflware, source code or any

to cause, nor fail to take action which results in, the interest portion of the Leasa Payments dired product thereof to a prohibited destination, or to nationals of proscribed countries

Page 1 of 4

GEM SSLPA- 04/ 03

336



wherever located, without prior authorization from the United States and other applicable limitations or requiremants. Nothing contained in this Lease will be interpreted as a pledge of

govemments; and 2) use any Equipment, software or technology, technical data, or technical your general tax revenues, funds or moneys.

assistance related thereto or the products thereof in the design, development, or production of

nuclear, missile, chemical, or biological weapons or transfer the same to a prohibited 6.  NONAPPROPRIATIONS OF FUNDS. If( i) sufficient Tunds a e not appropriated and

destinatlon, or to nationals of proscribed countries, without prior authorization from the United budgeted by your goveming body in any fiscal period for all Lease Payments and all other

States and other applicable govemments. You are not an entity or person designated by the payments due under this Lease for such fiscal period, and( ii) you have exhausted all funds

United States govemment or any other applicable government with which transacting legally available for such payments, then you wili give us written notice and retum the

business without tha prior consent of such govamment is prohibited. Upon our request, you Equipment to us, and this Lease will tertninate as of the last day of the fiscal period for which

agree to provide us with an opinion of counsel as to Gauses( g) through Q) above, a certificate funds are available to pay artwunts due under this Lease. Such termination is without any

of appropriations as to clause( k) above, an essential use letter as to clause( I) ebove, and expense or penalty, except for the portions of tha Lease Payments and those expenses

any other dxuments that we request, including information statements to be filed with the associated with your retum of the Equipment in accordance with this Lease for which funds

Internal Revenue Service, with all such documents being in a form satisfadory to us. have been budgeted and appropriated or are othervvise legally available.

3.  YOUR WAIVER OF DAMAGES AND WARRANTIES FROM US. YOU LEASE THE 7. TAXES, ASSESSMENTS AND FEES. You will pay when due, either directly or to us upon

EQUIPMENT FROM US" AS IS, WHERE IS." EXCEPT AS TO QUIET ENJOYMENT, WE our demand, all taxes, fines and penalties relating to this Lease or the Equipment that are now

MAKE ABSOLUTELY NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY or in the future assessed or levied by any state, local or other government authority. We witl

WARRMITY OF MERCHANTA8ILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IF file all personal property, use or other tax retums( unless we notify you otherwise in writing)

THE EQUIPMENT IS NOT PROPERLY INSTALLED, DOES NOT OPERATE AS and you agree to pay us a fee for making such filings. We do not have to wntest any taxes,

REPRESENTED OR WARRANTED BY THE SUPPLIER, OR IS UNSATISFACTORY FOR fines or penalties. You will pay estimated properry taxes with each invoice or annually, as

ANY REASON WHATSOEVER, VOU SHALL MAKE ANY CLAIM ON ACCOUNT THEREOF invoiced. In addition, you authorize us to file at our option financing statements and/ or fixture

SOLELY AGAIN3T THE SUPPLIER AND YOU HEREBY WANE ANY SUCH CLAIM filings without your signature. If we request, you will execute such financing statements

AGAINST US. ALL WARRANTIES FROM THE SUPPLIER TO US, TO THE EXTENT and/ or fixture filings. To the extent permitted by law, you hereby grant us a security interest in

ASSIGNABLE, ARE HEREBY ASSIGNED TO YOU FOR THE TERM OF THIS LEASE FOR a l Lease Paymenis and Equipment, and all of your interest therein, and all proceeds and

YOUR EXERCISE AT YOUR IXPENSE. YOU SHALL HOLD US HARMLESS AND SHALL products thereof. You agree to pay us a documentation fee to be billed with the first Lease

BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY LOSS, DAMAGE OR INJURY TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY Payments to wver account setup and adminislrative costs. You agree to reimburse us for

CAUSEO BY THE EQUIPMENT. NO REPRESENTATION OR WARR/ WTY BY THE reasonable costs incurred in collecting taxes, assessments, or fees for which you are liable,

SUPPLIER OR SALESPERSON IS BINDING ON US NOR SHALL BREACH OF SUCH and any collection charges attributable thereto, induding reasonable attomey fees.

WARRANTY RELIEVE YOU OF YOUR OBIIGATIONS TO US. IN NO CASE SHALL WE BE

LIA6LE TO YOU FOR SPECIAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL D/ 1MAGES.   8. NOTICE. All notices shall be given in writing by the party sending the notice end shall be

effedive when deposited in the U. S. mail, addressed to the party receiving the notice at its

4. PAYMENTS. You agree to make Lease Payments as set forth above and to pay such other address shown on page 1 of this Lease( or to any other address specified by that party in

charges as provided herein. IT IS SPECIFICALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREEU THAT writing) with frst class postage prepaid.

THIS LEASE SHALL BE NON- CANCELABLE( EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 6

HEREOF), AND THAT THIS LEASE IS A NET LEASE. YOU AGREE THAT YOU HAVE AN 9.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNMENTS.  YOU AGREE NOT TO TRANSFER, SELL,

ABSOLUTE AND UNCONDITIONAL OBLIGATION TO PAY ALL LEASE PAYMENTS AND SUBLEASE, ASSIGN, PLEDGE OR ENCUMBER EITHER THE EQUIPMENT OR ANY

OTHER AMOUNTS WHEN DUE. You hereby authorize us to reduce the lease payments by RIGHTS UNDER THIS LEASE WITHOUT OUR PRIOR WRIITEN CONSENT, and even with

up to twenty percent( 20°h) in the event that the adual total cost of the equipment at the time our consent, you shall remain joinUy and severally liable to the full extent with your assignee.

of closing is less than the esUmate. Lease Payments shall be increased by any cost or WE NIAY, AT OUR OPTION ASSIGN OUR RIGHTS AND INTERESTS UNDER TMIS LEA3E

expense we inwr to preserve the Equipment or to pay taxes, assessments, fees, penalties,  WITH NOTICE TO YOU BUT WITHOUT YOUR CONSENT. You agree that our assignee will

lians, or encumbrances. Unless we give written notice of a new address, all payments under have the same rights and remedies that we have now. You agree that the rights of our

this Lease shall be sent to us at the address provided at the beginning of this Lease. Each assignee will not be subJect to claims, defenses, or seroffs that you may have against us. You

payment received, at our discretion, will be applied first to the oldest charge due under this agree that we are not an agent of our assignee and that we have no affiliation with such

Lease. YOU AGREE THAT TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE AND TO MAKE PAYMENTS assignee except( or such assignment. You stipulate that any such assignment by us shall not

REGARDLESS OF ANY PROBLEMS YOU MIGHT HAVE WITH THE EQUIPMENT materially change your duties, obligations or risks under this Lease.  You agree to

INCLUDING RS OPERATION, CAPABILITY, INSTALLATION, OR REPAIR AND acknowledge each such assignment in writing if so requested and keep a complete and

REGARDLESS OF ANY CLAIM, SETOFF, DEFENSE YOU MIGHT HAVE AGAINST THE accurate record of all such assignments in a manner that wmplies with§ 149 of the Code, and

SUPPLIER, MANUFACTURER, SALESPERSON, OR OTHER THIRD PARTY. Without our the regulatlons promulagated thereunder.

prior written consent, any payment to us of a smaller sum than due at any time under this

Lease shall not constitute a ralease or an accord and satisfaction for any greater sum due, or 10. OWNERSHIP AND TITLE, Vou will have title to the Equipment upon your acceptance of

to become due, regardless of any endorsement restriction, unless othenvise agreed by both it; provided, however, that title will immediately vest in us or our assignee it this Lease is

parties in a signed writing.    tertninated because you have not appropriated funds for payment of Lease Payments or other

amounts due hereunder, as provided in Section 6 of this Lease or if you are in default of this

5. FUNDING INTENT. You reasonably believe that funds can be obtained sufficient to make Lease pursuant to the terms of Section 16 of this Lease. We have the right to insped the

all Lease Payments and other payments during the tertn of this Lease. You agree that your Equipment, and have the right to affix and display a notice of our security interest in the

chief executive, chief financial or administrative officer will provide for funding for such Equipment. The Equipment shall remain personal properly whether or not affixed to realty

payments in your annual budget request submitted to your goveming body. You and we and shall not be part of any real property on which it is located. At our request, you shall

agree that your obligation to make Lease Payments under this Lease will be your current obtain a landlord and/ or mortgage waiver for the Equipment. All additions, attachments, and

expense and will not be interpreted to be a debt in violatlon of applicable law or constitutional accessories placed on the Equipment become part of the Equipment unless rertaved prior to

Page 2 of 4

GEM SSLPA- 01/ 16/ 14

337



the tertnination of this Lease. You agree to maintain the Equipment so ihat it may be removed 15. COLLECTION CHARGES AND ATTORNEY' S FEES. If any part of any sum is not paid

from the property or building wliere located without damage.   when due, you agree to pay us:( i) in the frst month, a late charge to compensate us for

collecting and processing the late sum, such late charge is stipulated and liquidated at the

11. OPERATION AND TERMINATION. You shall be solely responsible for the installation,  greater of$. 05 per dollar of each delayed sum or$ 15; plus( ii) a charge for every month after

operation, and maintenance of the Equipmant, shall keep it in good condition and working fhe first rtanth in which the sum is late to compensate us for the inability to reinvest the sum,

order, and shall use and operete the Equipment in compliance with applicable laws. If the such charge is stipulated and liquidated at 1 1/ 2% per month, or when less, the maximum

Equipment is of the type not normally maintained by you, then you, at your e ensa, shall allowed by law.

maintain in full force and effact throughout the tertn of this Lease Supplier' s standard

maintenance contract. You agree to keep and use this Equipment only at the address 16. DEFAULT. You shall be in default of this Lease on the occurrence of any of the following

specified above, to never abandon or move the Equipment from that address, nor relinquish events: ( a) you fail to pay any Lease Payment or any other artwunt due under lhis Lease

possession of the Equipment except to our agent. If you are required to return the Equipment within 10 days after it first becomes due; ( b) you assign, move, pledge, sublease, sell or

to us for any reason, you shall, at your expense, wipe clean or permanently delete all data relinquish possession of the Equipment, or attempt to do so, without our written authorization;

contained on the Equipment, including without limitation, any data contained on intemal or c) you breach any other obligations under this Lease, or any other agreement with us, and

external drives, discs, or accompanying media, immediately crate, insure and retum tha fail to cure such breach within ten days afler we send notice of the existence of such breach;

Equipment to the designated location in as good a condition as when you received it,  d) you breach any warranty to us;( e) any execution or writ of process is issued in any action

excepting only reasonable wear and tear. In the case of any item of SoTtwdre to be retumed to or proceeding to seize or detain the Equipment; or ( you file a voluntary petition in

us, you will also deliver ta us the original certificate of authenticity issued by the licensor of bankruptcy, you are adjudicated as a banlwpt, or any proceeding is filad against you under

such Soflware, if any.       the baniwptcy or similar laws of the United States or the state where the Equipment is

located, and the proceeding is not dismissed within 60 days after filing.

12. RISK OF LOSS AND INSURANCE. During the term of this Lease, you bear the entire

risk of loss or damage to the Equipment. You shall immediately notify us of the occurtence of 17. REMEDIES. Should you default, we have the right to colled and to exercise any or all of

any loss or other occurrence a8ecting our interests and shall make repairs or cortedions at the following: ( a) we may cancel or terminate this Lease or any or all other agreements that

your expense. In such event, and to the extent pertnitted by law, you agree to continue to we have entered into with you or withdraw any offer of credit;( b) we may require you to pay

meet all payment and other obligations under this Lease. You agree to keep the Equipment us, as compensation for loss of our bargain and not as a penalty, all Lease Payments for the

insured at your e ense against risks of loss or damage from any cause whatsoever. You remainder of your current fiscal period;( c) we have the right to immediately retake possession

agree that such insurance shall not be less than the replacement value of the Equipment.  of the Equipment without any court order or other process of law and for such purpose may

You also agree that the insurance shall be in such additional artaunt as is reasonable to enter upon any premises where the Equipment may be, remove the same and apply any

cover us for public liability and property damage arising from the Equipment or your use of it.  proceeds from any sale or lease of the Equipment to the payment of amounts which would

You agree to name us as the loss payee and an addilional insured. Upon our request, you have been due, if the default had not occurred; and( d) we have the right to exeroise any

agree to fumish proof of each insurance policy including a cartificate of insurance and a copy remedy at law or equity, notice thereof being expressly waived by you. Our delay or failura to

of the policy. The proceeds of such insurence shall be applied at our sole election toward the exercise a remedy constitutes neither a waiver of any other remedy or a release of your

replacement or repair of the Equipment or payment towards your obligations. If you so liabiliry to retum the Equipment or for any loss or Claim with resped thereto. You shall be

request and we give our prior writtan consent, in lieu of maintaining insurance as describad liable for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the repossession, recovery, storage,

herein, you may self insure against such risks, provided that our interests are protected to the repair, sale, re- lease or other disposition of the Equipment.

same extent as if the insurance had been obtained by third party insurance carriers and

provided further that such self insurance program is consistent with prudent business 18. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this Lease are severable and shall not be affected or

practices with resped with such insurance risk. You will give us certificates or other evidence impaired if any one provision is held unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. My provision held in

of such insurence on the commencement date of this Lease, and at such times as we request.  conflict with any statute or rule of law shall be deemed inopereEve only to the extent of such

Such insurance obtained will be in a form, arrwunt and with companies acceptable to us, and conflict and shall be modified to confortn to such statute or rule.

will provide that we will be given 30 days' advance notice of any cancellation or material

change of such insurance.    19. RELEASES. To the extent permitted by applicable law, you hereby waive your rights to:

a) cancel or repudiate this Lease;( b) revoke acceplance of or rejec[ the Equipment;( c) Gaim

13.  INDEMNITY. You agree, to the extent pertnitted by law, to indemnify and holtl us a security interest in the Equipment;( d) accept partial delivary of the Equipment;( e) sell or

harmless from and against, any and all losses, damages, injuries, Gaims, demands, and dispose of tha Equipment upon rejedion or revocation;( seek" cover" in substitution for this

expenses, including any and all attorney' s fees and legal e enses(" Claims') arising from or Lease from us.

caused by any actual or alleged use, possession, maintenance, condition( whether ar not

latent or discoverable), operation, location, delivery or transportation of any item of 20. MITIGATION OF DAMAGES. Should we use or dispose of any retumed or repossessed

Equipment.       Equipment, we will credit the artaunt that you owe with any excess which we actually recover

14. TRANSFER OF EQUIPMENT AT END OF TERM OF LEASE AND PURCHASE OPTION.  over the cost of retalting and disposing of the Equipment. My action under this Lease by you

When you have paid all Lease Payments and all other amounts due under this Lease and for claims against us for indemnity, rtisrepresentation, breach af warranty and contrad default

have satisfied the other terms of this Lease, we shall transfer all of our interest in the or any other matter shall be commenced within one( 1) year after any such cause of action

Equipment to you" AS IS, W HERE IS," without any warraMy, express or implied, from us.  accrues. The provisions of this Sedion 20 shall be applied only to the extent permitted by the

With 30 days prior xrtitten notice, you may purchase the Equipment( other than software that laws of the state where the Equipment is located.

we may not be authorized to sell) on any Lease Payment date for an artrount equal to the rent

due on the Lease Payment date, the remaining Lease Payments due under this Lease 21. MISCELLANEOUS. Regardless of any conflicting provisions in this Lease, this Lease will

discounted at the annual rate of 3 and all other amaunts due under this Lease. You may be govemed 6y the laws of the state in which the Equipment is located. My change in any ot

exercise this purchase optian only if you are not in default under lhe terms of this Lease.      the tertns and conditions of this Lease must be in writing and signed by us. If we delay or fail

to enforce any of our rights under this Lease, we will still be entitled to enforce those rights at

Page 3 of 4

GEM SSLPA- 01/ 16/ 14

338



a later time. It is the express intent of the parties not to violate any applicable usury laws or to All representations, warranties and covenants made by you hereunder shall survive the

exceed the maximum artrount of Gme price di( ferential or interest, as appiicable, pertnitted ta tertnination of this Lease and shall remain in full force and effed. All of our rights, privileges

be charged or colleded by applicable law, and such excess payment will be applied to Lease and indemnities under this Lease, to fhe extent they are tairly attributeble to events or

Payments in inverse order of maturity, and any remaining excess will be refunded to you. IT conditions occurring or existing on or prior to the expiration or tertnination of this Lease, shall

you do not perform your obligations under this Lease, we have the right, but not the obligation,  survive such expiration or tertnination and be enforceable by us and our successors and

to take any action or pay any amounts that we believe are necessary to protect our interests.  assigns. You agree that we may disclose any informatlon provided by you to us or created by

You agree to reimburse us immediately upon our demand for any such artwunts that we pay.  us in the course of administering this Lease to any of our parent or affiliates.

BY SIGNING BELOW YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND ALL OF THE TERMS AND

CONDITI ONS OF THI S LEASE.

City of LaBrop HEWLETT- PACKARD FINANCIAL SERVICES COMPANY

X X

Authorized Signature Authorized Signahue

Print Name& Title Date Print Name& Title Date

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I am a duly elected or appointed and acting officer ( or duly authorized designee of such officer)

of the City of Lathrop( the" Customer"), a political subdivision or agency or department of the State of California and that I have custody of the records of the

Customer; that the individual execuring the above State and Local Government Single Schedule Lease Purchase Agreement( the" I,ease") on behalf of the Customer

is incumbent in the office printed or typed below his/ her signature and is duly authorized to execute a d deliver the Lease and all related documents, in the name

and on behalf of the Customer; and that the signature of such individual is his/ her authenric signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hands and affixed the seal of the Customer this day of 20_.

Certifier' S Signature[ To be executed by person other than individual eaecuting above lease.

Print Name

Print Title

Page 4 of 4

GEM SSLPA- 01/ 16/ 14

339



340



ITEM 4. 15

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 14, 2020, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 42

LOTS IN TRACT 4055 VILLAGE   DD"   WITHIN

LAKESIDE WEST DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4055
Village  DD"  within the Lakeside West District,

Totaling 42 Single Family Lots, CFD Annexation No.
15, and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with

River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

SUMMARY:

The proposed Final Map for Tract 4055 will be the second and final tract map within
the Village " DD" area.   Pulte Homes is proposing forty- two ( 42) 50' x 100' single-

family lots. A Vicinity Map is included as Attachment B".

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 4055,
Village " DD", Annexation No.  15 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District

CFD) 2013- 1, and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage
2B, LLC ( River Islands"), included as Attachment " C".

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop City Council approved Vesting Tentative Map  ( VTM)  3694 on

March 27, 2007 and an amended VTM 3694 with updated conditions of approval on

June 1,  2015.    On December 2,  2020,  the City of Lathrop Planning Commission
approved a Neighborhood Design Plan ( NDP) and Architectural Guidelines and Design

Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside West District, known as Stage 2B, within Phase
1 of the project.   While the NDP contains conceptual guidance on parks within the
Lakeside West District, a Master Parks Plan includes revisions to the parks and open
spaces within the Stage 2B area and is pending Planning Commission action.   The

land for the proposed Final Map for Tract 4055 is within the geographic boundaries
of VTM 3694 and Stage 2B.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee specific offsite and onsite
improvements.  The total cost of the improvements for Village DD" is $ 2, 931, 348,

however, a large percentage of the improvements have already been construction
and therefore do not need to be guaranteed.   Performance and labor & material

securities have been provided with the SIA for Tract 4055 that guarantee the
unfinished improvements for Village " DD" in the amount of:

341



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP,  CFD ANNEXATION,  AND SIA FOR 42 LOTS IN

TRACT 4055 VILLAGE DD" WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST DISTRICT OF RIVER

ISLANDS

Unfinished Im rovement Total:  841, 280

Performance Bond 120% of Unfinished Im rovements  : 1, 009, 540

Labor & Materials Bond 50% of Performance Bond 504, 770

The SIA for Tract 4055 refers to the Agreement for Dedication,  Inspection,  and

Guarantee of Streets and Public Improvements  (" Off- site Agreement")  that was

approved by the City on September 30,  2013.   Although the Off- site Agreement
applies to Tract 4055,  the Final Map will not trigger any additional offsite

improvements or security.

Acceptance of the public improvements will be processed by staff at a later date and
when the unfinished improvements are completed.  Prior to acceptance, River Islands

will be required to provide a one ( 1) year warranty bond.

Village " DD" will need to be annexed into the four different Community Facilities
Districts ( CFD' s) for maintenance purposes.  The CFDs are for the City, RD 2062 and
River Islands Public Financing Authority  ( RIPFA).  Approval of CFD 2013- 1 City of
Lathrop Annexation No. 15 is pending with Council item. CFD 2013- 1 Island RD 2062
Annexation No. 14, and CFD 2013- 1 RIPFA Annexation No. 14 and CFD 2020- 1 RIPFA

Annexation No. 2 are administered by Island RD 2062 and RIPFA and are included as
part of the escrow instructions for recordation purposes only and are not a direct
impact to the City.   The applicant has signed the appropriate documentation to
commit to the annexations,  and the final map recordation is contingent on the
annexations.

River Islands must satisfy the Escrow Instructions, included as Attachment D", to

guarantee the payment of all fees and execution of the documents related to the SIA.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

River Islands has fulfilled all of the requirements of the City' s subdivision ordinance
as listed below:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Completed

Miscellaneous Im rovements

4.     Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted Landscaping
Completed

and Miscellaneous Im rovements

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape, Light & ) oint Trench Completed

6.      Geotechnical Report Completed

342



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP,  CFD ANNEXATION, AND SIA FOR 42 LOTS IN

TRACT 4055 VILLAGE DD" WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST DISTRICT OF RIVER

ISLANDS

7.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

8.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
Maintenance

9.     Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

10.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

11.    Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

12.    Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

13.     Escrow Instructions Completed

14.     Village X  - Annexation No.   15 of City of Lathrop Approval

Community Facilities District No.  2013- 1 ( River Islands Pending with this
Public Services and Facilities item

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City as all costs are covered by development fees
and any shortfalls in the City' s maintenance and operating costs are covered by the
CFDs.

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4055 Village DD" within the Lakeside

West District, Totaling 42 Single Family Lots, City of Lathrop CFD Annexation
No.  15, and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage

2B, LLC

B.       Village ' DD" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Stage 2B, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, for Tract 4055,
Village DD"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 4055 Village DD"

343



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 14, 2020, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP,  CFD ANNEXATION, AND SIA FOR 42 LOTS IN
TRACT 4055 VILLAGE DD" WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST DISTRICT OF RIVER
ISLANDS

APPROVALS

2 2 w Zv

Brad T lor Date

Associate Engineer

Glenn Gebhar t Date

City Engineer

f-      12 / Z oto

Michael King Date
Public Works Director

02   ..     2  31Zo

Cari James Date

Finance & Administrative Services Director

Z-.- 3 "' t o 2- i

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z•? ZQLO

Ste n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

344



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 4055 VILLAGE  DD"  WITHIN THE
LAKESIDE WEST DISTRICT, TOTALING 42 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS, CITY OF
LATHROP CFD ANNEXATION NO.  15, AND A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT
AGREEMENT WITH RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2B, LLC

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop City Council approved Vesting Tentative Map
VTM) 3694 on March 27, 2007 and an amended VTM 3694 with updated conditions

of approval on June 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2020, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission
approved a Neighborhood Design Plan ( NDP) and Architectural Guidelines and Design
Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside West District, known as Stage 2B, within Phase
1 of the project; and

WHEREAS, the land for the proposed Final Map for Tract 4055 is within the
geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 and Stage 2B; and

WHEREAS, as required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, all final maps must
include a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee specific offsite and
onsite improvements; and

WHEREAS, performance and labor & material securities were provided with
the SIA for Tract 4055 that guarantee the unfinished improvements for Village " DD"
in the amount as follows; and

Unfinished Im rovement Total:  841, 280
Performance Bond 120% of Unfinished Im rovements  : 1, 009, 540
Labor & Materials Bond 50% of Performance Bond 504, 770

WHEREAS, acceptance of the public improvements will be processed by staff
at a later date and when the unfinished improvements are completed.    Prior to
acceptance, River Islands will be required to provide a one ( 1) year warranty bond;
and

WHEREAS, Village " DD" needs to be annexed to the four different Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs) for maintenance purposes. Staff recommends that Council
approve CFD 2013- 1 City of Lathrop Annexation No. 15.  CFD 2013- 1 Island RD 2062

Annexation No. 14, and CFD 2013- 1 RIPFA Annexation No. 14 and CFD 2020- 1 RIPFA
Annexation No. 2 are administered by Island RD 2062 and RIPFA and are included as
part of the escrow instructions for recordation purposes only and are not a direct
impact to the City; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands Stage 2B must satisfy the Escrow Instructions,
included as Attachment " D" to the City Manager' s Report, to guarantee the payment
of all fees and execution of the documents related to the SIA.

345



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that approves and accepts the following actions:

1.  The Final Map for Tract 4055 and is hereby approved as submitted for
recordation with the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk
Office. The recorded executed copy will be filed with the City Clerk.

2.  The City Manager, or their designee,  is authorized to execute a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage 2B, LLC, Annexation of the

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 No. 15 ( River Islands

Public Services and Facilities)  in substantially the form as attached to the
December 14, 2020 staff report, the file executed copy will be filed with the
City Clerk.

346



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 14t"
day of December 2020 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

347



ATTACHMENT B

J       

VILLAGE JJ

VILLAGE NN- 1
I

N I

LAKE 12O
s

VILLAGE EE- 2

VILLAGE EE- 1

VILLAGE 00

VILLAGE DD

VILLAGE Z
SCHOOL

VILLAGE

Y
VILLAGE DD

VICINITY MAP
DECEMBER 2020

348



ATTACHMENT C

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2B, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

FOR TRACT 4055 VILLAGE " DD" 42 RESIDENTIAL LOTS

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this 14th day of December 2020, by and between
the CTTY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter " CITY")
and River Islands Stage 2B,  LLC,  a Delaware limited liability company,  ( hereinafter

SUBDIVIDER").

B.       At its May 15, 2017 meeting, the City Council approved the temporary closure of Cohen
and Paradise Roads associated with construction and grading activities in Stage 2 of River Islands.
This approval requires SUBDIVIDER to construct a paved public roadway to connect any
remaining gaps between the Paradise Road and Stewart Road intersection and the Somerston
Parkway/River Islands Parkway intersection by August 1, 2020. As a result, previously provided
security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from the River Islands Public Financing Authority

RIPFA") has guaranteed the replacement of Cohen Road and Paradise Road with a set aside of
bond proceeds( Exhibit" F") in the amount of$ 543, 600, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER

does not meet the August 1, 2020 deadline. Further, the amount of set aside bond proceeds shall
be reduced by the City Engineer as River Islands Parkway is extended to replace these removed
roadways. The closed portion of Stewart Road is not anticipated to be replaced, but it remains for
now as legal access to parcels fronting Stewart Road, and as emergency access. The security
referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with
this access until it is no longer necessary.

River Islands Parkway was constructed to replace Cohen Road, and the portions of Paradise Road
that was removed has been reconstructed and both roadways are open to the public. However, this

guarantee will remain in place until River Islands Parkway has been accepted by the City.

C.       At its July 9, 2018 meeting, the CITY approved the Tract 3908 large lot final map, which
includes the Village " DD" area within Stage 2B of River Islands.  The approval of Tract 3908

required security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage
2B boundary. As a result, previously provided security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from
the River Islands Public Financing Authority (" RIPFA") has guaranteed the construction of River
Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary with a set aside of bond proceeds

349



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)
Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 2

Exhibit " G") in the amount of$450,000, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER does not meet

a September 42, 2019 deadline or as may be extended by CITY. The security referenced in this
recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with it until River
Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is fully constructed and accepted
into use by CITY.

River Islands Parkway was constructed to replace Cohen Road, and the portions of Paradise Road
that was removed has been reconstructed and both roadways are open to the public. However, this
guarantee will remain in place until River Islands Parkway has been accepted by the City.

D.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and the
CTTY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 4055. However, SUBDIVIDER
has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tract
4055 ( Village " DD") located within the Lakeside East District of River Islands Phase 1, which

also includes major streets necessary to access the site. The unfinished portion of improvements
total $ 841, 280 and both performance and labor and materials security is required by the Lathrop
Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act will be posted as outlined in this Tract 4055
Village " DD") Subdivision Improvement Agreement.

E.       SUBDIVIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 4055
and as noted in Recital D,  security shall be required for the unfinished portion of these
improvements, along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 4055 and Village
DD" overall. Improvement plans, and street light plans prepared by Power Systems Design, Inc.

have already been approved by the City. The street, sidewalk, underground utility, storm drainage,
streetlight and joint trench improvements  ( hereinafter  " Improvements")  are substantially

completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of the required infrastructure for
Tract 4055 are required security as outlined in this Agreement is required.

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of CITY' S pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' S
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect in CTTY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

l. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its
sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the Lakeside East neighborhood,
to the limits identified on Exhibit" A", including the public landscaping, streetlight and joint trench
improvements.

350



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)
Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 3

All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City Engineer, in a

good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above referenced improvement plans and
specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the CITY' S Department of Public
Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the California Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the last home constructed in Tract 4055 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 4055 associated with the filing of
Tract 4055 ( homebuilder), prior to the completion and occupancy of the last production dwelling
unit associated with Tract 4055, or December 14, 2021, whichever comes first.  Such occupancy

shall be documented by CTTY in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CITY, or its agent( s), shall, at any time during the progress of the Improvements, have free
access thereto, and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CTTY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of the SUBDIVIDER
to ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CTTY' S acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in
compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done, and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements. As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a Warranty
Bond in the amount of$ 293, 130, equal to 10°Io of the estimated cost of the Improvements for the
Village " DD" entire area ($ 2, 931, 300) as included in the Engineer' s estimate attached to this

Agreement as Exhibit" F", to insure SUBDIVIDER' S repair and warranty of the Improvements in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Warranty Bond shall be released at the end of
the one year guarantee period, provided there are no claims against it are then outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recitals B and C are required

to provide access and to Tract 4055 and are associated with adjacent tracts as otherwise described
in this Agreement, as well as the " Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public
Streets and Improvements (" 2013 Agreement"), approved by CITY on September 42, 2013, the
security provided as noted in Recitals " B" and " C"  shall remain in place until the City accepts
River Islands Parkway from Somerston Parkway to Paradise Road.

351



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)
Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 4

8.       If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, or unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair. Replace or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete,  repair,  replace and/ or reconstruct the
Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

The CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to
complete the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security ( including but not limited to
any Letter of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials
and repair and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such

amounts. All administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government
Code Section 66499. 4, incurred by the CITY, in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be
a proper charge against the security and SUBDIVIDER. In the event it becomes necessary for
CTTY to bring an action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of
completing such improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit
and all other expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

9. Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, the SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post Performance or Labor  &  Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements
associated with Tract 4055 as included and described in Exhibit " E" of this Agreement.  The

amount of the security shall be equal to a performance bond equal to 120% of the amount of

unfinished improvements as shown in Exhibit" E" ($ 841, 280 X 120° Io =$ 1, 009, 540— performance

bond amount) as indicated in Recital D. The corresponding labor and materials bond amount shall
be 50% of the performance bond amount ($ 1, 009, 540 X 50°Io = $ 504, 770), also as indicated in

Recital D.  Further, SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CTTY' S insurance requirements set
forth on Exhibit " C" attached hereto and incorporated herein.

10.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications, which are a part of this Agreement,
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above referenced sureties
hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither the CITY nor any of its officers,  employees or agents shall be liable to

SUBDIVIDER, and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors for any error or

omission arising out of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither the CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents, shall be liable to the
SUBDIVIDER or to any person, entity, or organization, for any injury or damage that may result
to any person or property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part
of the land covered by this Agreement.

352



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)
Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 5

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively, " Indemnitees"), harmless from any

liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/or SUBDIVIDER' S
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' S contractors or subcontractors. SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and
expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit or legal proceedings, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' S
performance or non-performance of his duties and obligations under this Agreement, or from the
negligent act or omission of himself,  his agents,  contractors,  representatives,  servants or

employees. The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section
is not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied or
approved any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether ar not any
such indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not,
and shall not; waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid
hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied or approved of, plans andlor specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractars or subcontractors
are,  or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of
SUBDIVIDER' S obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, the SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements, and maintaining safety at the
project site. The SUBDIVIDER' S obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied
until after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied and all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. The CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts to finance maintenance and improvements. The CITY expects to preserve the

ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CTTY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by the CITY and SUBDIVIDER
providing that CTTY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special
taxes. SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by the CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

353



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)
Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 6

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two

weeks as directed by the City Engineer, on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by the CTTY.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.
If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER, and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators and assignees of the SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable
hereunder.

19.      The SUBDIVIDER shall,  at the SUBDIVIDER' S expense,  obtain and maintain all

necessary permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement
of Improvement construction, the SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
The SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state and federal laws, whether or not said laws
are expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 4055.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b. Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect
upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the

parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain
in full force and effect.

354



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)
Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 7

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed
by excluding the first Day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to be performed
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A FINAL MAP - TRACT 4055

EXHIBIT B TRACT 4055 AND VILLAGE " DD" AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:   UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT E:   VILLAGE " DD" IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT F:   RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE - INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN

THE STAGE 2B DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT G:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE — RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN

THE STAGE 2B DEVELOPMENT AREA

355



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this 14th
day of December 2020, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CTTY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY THE CITY OF LATHROP CITY ATTORNEY

BY:  Z-- Za` 2- D

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

356



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 9

SUBDIVIDER

River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

a Delaware limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso Date

President

357



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 10

EXHIBIT " A"

FINAL MAP - TRACT 4055

358



a;    A yg

g D

o
a     _<     

p m          Amom 
m

Am   o  mmaoN      = 
pA _ cADNmom

gvm     
Ag>D   c  

s         Iy   4mzpfn
mm

OAmnN    ao    ,o ;op A
Cn m

omg'      vo,^   v    oUo    oR gRD
o ma   -  GAFF

ip5- F,""'

o

oAm
Q'' 

m
m m

vNAosaA
oxo>   pm €m 

somb>AN 
y`9ZiNAo Ras -     

mf'Sa- m
no,.-i

fm    >gi> f> oa
oo

o

mvzoN
A       p

m

ra    -    NAm ''> y

ri 

ri;  To;zAa      nm
oo-        a

y
zoaQ'

ps oo  Doo n
i_ K  

im

o .       v         o>Sioz   8mm

m, Z?gg;  sccApg = 
y

i,

mvom
g A

m   mo   _a8
o"' 

o   o     o   

m    "   ¢ '   -

g
s

r

Am'      o mA
i    mipRo?o

oK  
m   mz^m

az    _       o
moo
oo

o         

mam'mm      " ao m.- c

a       =n=   oo>  p 
s>    "N 

om`     mn  x<      A g=moo ma> 
n

am     s  A   '"m"'>Snm
m    -     _  mm= o

2m
oo> `-'   om- 

oo   poo            37

mmoomm

m    <xao      

A =a<
Zoommo   ygmos    m

T sAnA ii    nApZZ      4  CJV omm=mg Aom>       "       LI       mA    r g\Qo F   
o00 >>'"

o
o^  rD

7ASmZ   v  DZJ
pAn   

o   

7ofmm',,,"oKo'
a^>$  ml

A      m
p

Tm >so>  0

gg gN  
pNNaoomn  J

S      -    oyN
o<am  L1

1 ,

o
Amopmagam      v    77(J

x
mmu>;  W

o
0om->.-     Nm   A

A"m
N       oA

o

o  
m

amgm=>

Ao

N       -- 70C -   oNcn
m

mAAA~       nn

ssamZ   g     i
m

amgm >o    AD

A
8ocnm  m       i
K      Noo=m       oI      -

o
b       I       ` ma omN

m
o>           

m

m
oa0

a ,

m
AD      

mo

Zm€as
n   

Zyo
mo; TzZmmg

zm 
naoNK

G     <     
s

C   oZ

Ssag?   
i

pmino
n       i     .

maIl a        o         
I

Re

cZn3 "  1
ri¢

o     Aom   f/)  

os   i o

oa o
cn

A
u   „      

m
m5 mm         m9

mim

a3x''        _
i p

mo,., :     
wo-  ..

o

ezD j
o

359



m

Am >  -A8oAo;Ag =i
om- A      o   -- Asm> Acnac

So="'>
t>=

aN  o   ^zgg Co o
mg _N-goo Ao s Cg

N 

No 
mv'GpgmmAD;   Amo

pN Am   -,   >>      o"  c ssp 
m  gyAAm=     

momAA  

m p
mAgRDmmAAoom _9 oo       m oa^ 

smAcn5

A= 
A

o   -f>=ao$      AmmAoa,    p
AAoAA A      oNODomm f>"m 

a

m   

m   

K   
mN

0ommNzmAo   -  mm
rr,       n

m

o      

mNoo>   
g=ogmp$iA   4,    '^ 

Hmo
Rmsog    - somaapRoA>m mm 

mg
n;

pyo8o=p       am g            ^mooA  _         Fm; 
n      -o

A  gASZNaA      

m.'
u"    3- m

y      ogo>-_      
msy

migatAK7            oi 
mn

oi  mm>gomyAN
N     "AAg`= oo>  

gDom
s*PaorFssNmav

mY'^  ioac^o'
y',      ^,a     °<

y°!
ooD

rm  .
y

m
cNozmmo

aA

PRaF.ini m    

oV  ^r

aAAztzryN`,'"

oa omA  `aooA;y=   m  'Ton
r

m 
no

o4v   _  yyz^
cin   rP

o5

NAm

o    oypp       "*aox3r'
cmmgm  .

a
pAQon    _o9'5

p  

oonoo

DFimz

g

V

y

o    

o

m

s>    <
m

7

z   ong  on
o  o o

N    

m

cn

v,nmaZ
J

v

T
r,afn 

o -iN>     mT
Z

g 

A o  

o -vim"s sso
ZG      ,   ,    -

AA        A  
y 

A

gS "   '    SOa
9   Fog

sF
f'' Ny

gm

A>

gA2

p>
amu   _   _    

v 

8

m
o

T        

A
N

Q5        2ti

i

j

360



OOD
a

e m
a

m   >        

o

m '
aZ. o        

N'
t?.    `y

y

zT6J?d.

2

e@ja LLIJ53p. Nns,,,f

o      1'     c `T C      (
7\f9

oC0\;      'o    
5

aBS'
jJmnod

Ji s  /     

o/     

9.(
af

s

sr
4  

a'
a  5'

Sy'      
z   

n

ayzti      /r   
4

F7psOOy     s,rs\ /   

B  -
A

o ,  
cti2   _

a  `'an          g         Da    - i       y'
a•

i zo

a,    /

o` 0a  '      

v

n`'  °

j'  0         n

l'   

4Q5on
ti    /\ Z

4S£\
4

nN p

i        N
0

F

A

2
N`7Sg`     

N"
94jF

tizs',     

9 \  

ma

A -  

4

0      i
s,

r,    o°'   Ncn

n     ,Zj       ''JFooAN

gA ,.p  •_  '  
f    

a 
i  °

e•     9
r=ox i.   

2
f  F9yraQiT

B

i    \     
ryJ'

9b, jJ'O2•  9azN 
T

NSB?2fq    mo 37

s     9         ``   Z

q °'"'

c9i        N.° 

o\

oge 

3,iy4O       mr'    \    g- p

N'_ ,       p
Ap

0

1,,^   z
n

D
m

r

c\  iN             

g
m  -

m
69'      

9
r^

o

w'w

1y6
J

v    -   \

n

D        o

v
l

a    -       

mAo
nno

j       o           pzi;vi

IDm8  

o\

N; 
NA

No 
VU4p    

I
P

o
m                   g v

y g

y

m5.

FF       £ FF £ £ £    F       -       a        c'n   \

zTrv'    n    \   i  \\     g.

oDJ     \   

4     

o    /

o,
o

m

4,

mN        _ ca

odo    -    ziMpv.UN
ffffff        pI     \p6li

Qv     '
Z

myI      \
e,     w

sLp\4.LH
mnOpQ9ZMP.
ZDoC96

al

f  -    - fEE

N

IIE    •  Opm    -.  DZ

gm    
r  `   

v

I
Izo

eaa           -      

IIzs'    m
SD      ;          

Z     R    !

Sc=    

a    --     
L1

i'

mrr
mArD

gz   =      DZC
m sg    oLo f

m       =;  mcn

gpoo00

mgz      
m

LlaU  

1

Rl

WW

O

gyv

T

j

N

361



i

7

y
a

E
dLa

o

Eo    

y`    

o

aSoo
d

d

a

z

IIIII I

I

o   

N          9, m
s `     ,Id1

1
O          

oa'       
t

vyy

d     

Om     

ya
y°

9 I'    

A  "    

I

n      

t

N

F          I    II

J   '     

II

V
31 1

A

ds/''   
1

a

o        m

oy  „  

ds
N,z       '  A

O
a     

i

I
mj

o     ,          

m   
O    '

oc O
I0jpm

f

I

a

f3

K

I

m
Ap

D

TRAPANISTREET          ?RAPANISTREET

m

N

t    ` 

g

g

m

o     '

m          D
z

1
m            

o          m
o

Z
m     'mm

y

1  
b

iO9    `         '  OA

m
o       

IuAv    '  

N

i  g
tW

A

1I

z     Aga70    

N            

1

c       ma  y   =   
A      

Z     DZ`/   IT7
MULHOLLANDDRIVE  '  MULHOLLANDDRIVEI

MULHOLLANDDRIVE
n

fi
m>o  v

Aom

II       -.  
fll(n

Z

Ja  
D   X

mLl       U    
71

i
mm(nn

p

nIVo;^

W

Ot

1

362



I

A:    i   

yPNlFltldSONtlISIFJ3ILi
ILN)(8-ry).LStl6

M„61.S0.b5Nm
Lli9

i'+ = 'o

mti

R=2100.00'f      00'OOIZ=a       I

g
d=17'47'S9'L=649.95'-,4tl)(%1N1l-M).SO'ZIZ=I..BO,L4.5=opzz

pp _

M-BC)R4)       ji.      

an     m      -  _ - p _ c`'i

s

wfFSe  ' FF  '    
g

y

i   -     o
l

a

p1
ll9

e4Z6ll=l,15,60.f=a ,00'f9lZ=a

N
o £   ,  

y m   _       Na      -  o

iff    = fffgg
S

g`

64g9NNIii

Ul`'  IuIy

o

i 
g

A   

o

ip I
o  ' oJo  -    " a  <

Iy.   FFZ    £    f
g 

w_

II

fD

wA
I

J

I
amN

OI
V

Af

Ii

wZj
9   

8S8S - c

I

Nn

o
0

T.   IS'

m     

Nmmda
i

mI    $    r

I

vNI
gwI

pN     ' 
I

9lL6102.84
mN4T37'OB'W200.00'(T)  i

m "       "

I        i
g     

6
g

II
I

n

op  iZ

OfSa

tn  . ym  . a o

c

Imm
ai------ cn

p

I
q

41.86'       249.3fi

10318'            N47137'08"W29122'(T) m

D.N.2J19-06B112)IR1)    iNII
O      _      02837'  _      N4T37'09"W218.40'(M-AI)      _ J_O_

N477Y08"W77.57(M-IA)    129.02'61.d0'

o, GARDENFARMSAVENUEoi      

Naia'oe'wios.so'(ei)_ii __
Harnroa'wiza.oz— ——           oIU^,s'

iN j
m

I      PARCEL15
7RAc73908IR3lj-0---

IIIc

SEESHEET11

Zi 1 ?   •  OOp

m/)  gN gg       -         

eg    ^     o —ZIfhsgy    
T

mA„F'A'       
m -   K{      

Z     4,i  JlJ

Zo        =Ro  DD
pZ    oDvoDZt/
m

S        Ag
9

mp"

m>  0—I

mnN  
1

ff7

U7
v

p7

OT

r

ti

363



SEESHEET7

ia—
m

af
m

N  
fm

V

io.o.oN.___-__—MACABEEDRIVE

N3554'41'E290.00'
O

N35'S4'41"E262.00'(M-M)

oI131.00'

0
IN35'S4'41"E412.o0'(T) 261.00'(8) 

0

75.00 ---  
55.00'S5.00'      ------  ------

p152.00'

i  _----_ `I
III

II

II

II
II

IIul
oIa

IIn n
dI

II
U

IfI
EIIuI

i       I

aI

I  ,'
o

I
N3554'41'E101.00'

If

bI
v

I

I
IC,   

o, n

A

o g

IZIN35'54'41'E101.00'

T

II      --
10'P.U.Eu

II

IDNI

1'P.U.E.       I
mI
Z

N35'S4"41"E101.00'

y
I

Im

o 
N      'mi  _300o'__a000'_

m

I N

F
n 

m £ I    ;I     J  

N3937'48'E(R)101.SB'
I

P--_m

n+ 70.00"-   —  I A

z

I .70.00'    

o£ 

I
mI

I

o . T

IulfN42'22'S2'E107
I

59'

ilNIml
m

I      ;

I

o  

o

u

im
m

p

m

9

A

1 
IA0

IIoR=435.00' d_2g  
wi'`"'    Q°5.00_       

lo056'0]'L,z1z6
N42'22'S2"E,°

f'—"'  J065'(M'M)    Id`29'S6'0/.qOsp,

I  '--

a--------' -CRrNEys`Znssu

m    
dCp

NE
30.00'    

i  'IN4221'I2=E66.00' I
m'    

II     

vI I  —   

m
N42'22'S2'E701.00'    1m          V

ZO ti;      
o

p,     ;            
o      

0,                      

o=
5a

m

5499'      c   

msgy    oTI
m4ma Z1Am=  <.V

mo c       9  y
m—     A      >

m       '         

m  CrD/'
mN40'4p'23"E267.24'(M-M)

L —    c'              
rJZ\/ aga 

Z
1mIS  ry

N

Lp. NORBECKSTREETm m UI.aI

mF 

o

R`    (} IamI
g    N

rncw
m

oA

i

364



N}5'S4'41'E533.00'(M-M)(R3)  

4250\

4'Z.(,z    
J4.       Nm

R=J9000, 

xR1J
d_36.1oy2'     

n

C,Za\9rTl

z      \d64
I

6J6
t,"`

zo
ecc`

T
9W

c>    

F

2}BSJf
9J

yc50.00d_z

4,4.
I46

4•      J
6.

O37ov 

ID  
L

y

ZSJ

maI      Iry      \ o  > ooii 7
zZ ,o

aD
aa 

I07       \.       7B.

yFAo
10'7.U.E—I    =  Im   .

g£            
DSJE.

37
ZQ

c
B'

9Jy. N_

o NI; A I
p       

o

I  <  I     va
imc   ao.00' ° 

i Oo   

I  =  

I

Ie'  IA I
10'P.U.E.      c.       pn

f   
II

N35'S4'41'E101.00'        I

o

d

I           eIN      
IIfIzyB"s.

I       IJf       [n
s     

m io     ;INI4
B(

T

m

II
J  [nx

Nassa'ai'eim.00'    m

II
Im

I

If
V  Iv
m76.00'

N

4^       n

I

u-  

I
A

rr\

2N}5'S4'41"E152.00'(i)       
m

o

N35'S4'41"E290.00'(M-M)       N35'S4'41"E262.00'(M-M)      

IR`33p \

z \

r      
D`

Q       _C1Id'Bp5     \  '
131.00'131-00'  

JB^`    

MACABEEDRIVE
N    /  

R`300pQ.QZBpJ,
e     '

6jss• 0

N35'54'41'E412.00'(T) 461.00'(B)  

o
A

6z5• `   

00

347• 4
0o

my
I       995.

s.M.MJ    /.
I °_-_  -oIbio

D

g
C AI      ^ 

n
Im

I
uA        

IF
0      

n

i

Iz    !      
d\

SEESHEET6SEESHEET8

a

Z       —
i 1 E °  • OO      o

gNz
o

O'
L

vmi      ? _      >,    gZo

g _       
yMACABEEDRIVE

AAoa

a                 

f7

Nmxf         Z        mos'    li
N75'S4'41'EL16(M-IA)       R-300.0'   Sn

mza -  Q           762.00'(AI-M)       d=36'24'12'L=190.61'(M-N)     
Z ,    oG

S.
A

N

vor+  
o        

m    

ggi>     Z   o
pDZD

fm—I
a           i0

F
m  CJ1

m

r  -.     

m

o
V

T

J

365



Z

5
m       o    

wms    

o

z     _  <,J

i

A

n   

2Js.,   C[
o 

cP,

Fr  rDC7 maZDZ

o     
s      sy,       m      >>o  

o

r,,    

FfiN  

mcn'

p'"      o

J
y

l66on5    

l'
j

g

o

XIc°°"  (n'
j`e`

s         
Z

o7u     DD
rnu    

r5

6
5°%               

m

oN

i

i
Qp  

s

v      l       

s     

3a
g64'  Pir.   

0   \       •  \
OO

p \
Jj      \$

op  \       
Po       

z

a/     yp`\   9  N     \\
4'.

T`    op5      
4Q' 11

p'04odC``  

v      ,      '

I

y.'
y'   0a  1I

yti       II

a+ 

m4IIIJ      
I

p4II

I

I
I  

30.00.-
0-

30.00'  
I

iuA           I
I

II   '       IIII

I      I$   '  I    II

ItiII

II
F

A

II

II
III

I

30.00' I10'7.U.E.

I

o

II       I
iiini
i

i
i

i       
ii
II

ImII

III       I
IIN

y    io'v.ae.       ImIv> 
n

A    IIi9IIamyIm

an
I

I
I

an
DI

a      IIr2
n        WI

r.>      II
tilII

I    

O  III II
r

II

II

I      I
I

im  i
I

I

mI II

IIIg        
IIII

IIII

I
IIi0'PD.E.--{

I

o        

IIp

II
II

nnaro'wim.00'Ii
iiIm

II
II

Ii o      I

m
II

I
IIN17a1'o7'w1m.00'

III

II

II
IIII

N77'47'OJ"W101.00•

II

I

ol
II

I
ulII

I

IIII
m   

I

0 0oI       '^ ovpp       v

9       ^76.00'     76.00" 1         l     

m

76.00'4
Y

ooo--------       

n.ao'     
o

U       
Nn'arm'wis2.oa'      Nn•arm'wiazoa'(T)

N17'41'07'W262.0'(M-M)    
O

N17'41'07"W262.00.(MN)  —35'

TRAPANISTREET

Z  ".

a

u

o

Im            

IG

iAiis
I

III

n

wi
O

f

IIIai

I      ;    I
IyI.

j
SEESHEET10SEESHEET9

366



SEESHEET11SEESHEET8

iAiI=      i
aI

Iu>yI/       
III

A

r

g           oIp

TRAPANISTREET

O;      -
Nn•arm-wzsz.00'(M-)  -

O;      -
NnaroYwzsz.00'(u-u)  _

zn.00'      3s'

Nn•arm-wisz.00'  J_   Nnaro'wiazoo'(T)     o
000

ioo, 
o

I       I       76.00'     76.00'G,
pI

r'      

T s.oa'I

III

III
olII

IN17'41'07'W101.00'II
II

I            II

NIII

olII
III

nn•arowmi.00'jjI
i

ii
iii

oiii
maiii
NiiiN' T

10'P.U.E.—I m            Nn•aYm'wmi.00'
i

II      I
y

m
IDI

InI

03       
m

v           m11      
I

AI

wO     Nn•ai'oYwtm.00'      

9           ^      -         D
pmi       i

a

o,       p            <  N

8  
0700,,,1ImI

oiIIm
I 

maol       .       I      
I

I            II

INn•aYo7'woi.00'II

III

70'P.u.E.      II

i
I

i
i-to'P.aeg

gii i
Ii

Nnai'm"wim.00'
II

III

III
I olIII

olII

II

N17'41'07'W1D1.OD'II

II

IIII

ol
m

II

I       vII
III o

r

900       
t

2676.00'     76.00'  + _

0

44;       I       22   _1_ 76.00'       I

o     __—_--    

41.00'

N17'41'07°W152.00' N17'41'07"W117.00'

172.00'90.00'      N17'41'07'W

N77'41'07"W2fi2.0.(MM)  —N17'41'07"W262.W'(M-ClINTX)      90.D0'IM-B)

MULHOLLANDDRIVE

0'llM.40,96.61N    N17'41'07'W379.00'  
D_

s

PARCcL6

7RAC74032IR91

I4m

zt  o  •  000

O20

Vmi
g        -  g    

o        7

Am mm  o   
m  _     oti'    m m      pA    N     o

omsgy    --I

af
m   

azz     _  —

m
zc       

9>    
pNy

A        
V

go        
z   =

m=  Dzn
grh      no=  Lo

afi       _n  mcn

FO
ZKUm

m

4m  
CJ1 Nm

v    m

coo'o

o
v

j

367



SEESHEET11

iii

iiii

I
N

IIA
C

m
1

u      

I   o   `

d-

uo   `

dm

iI
mm

oP
iIoa

orrir

iiTRAPANISTREET

IIO       _
N17'41'07"W262.00'(N-M)  _OvN77'41'07'W262.00'(M-M)

152.00' 

II

I
i

Nn•arm"wisz.00'(T)
I

q{{
iI

6'

C76.00'     7fl00'JpI

c

IN

1

II ,       I
jIII    

NIINI
iI

ol
T

loI

N77'41'07"W101.00'   N77'41'07W101.00   I
jI
ii

iii

iiliii

i       i
ioi    r

iio
i      

i
iii

Icr+mrm'w,o,.00'   Nnarm•w,oi.00•

III

ImIII

olIgI
iNglIgI    

IS
C) 

TN' 

I       I

IbINiTaYOYw70L00'   N17'41'OYW101.00'   
I

Wm
I

o
r

I   10'P.U.E.    
I7I

im       oimioI
w

cn

I
A

I11    _olI v    maoIm

II

T

II

i
iNn•aror'wmi.00'   Nn•arm'wroi.00'      0im

iiii

iig   i
iI

IIo       CO

II
N

o

N

V

I
iIun•arar'wim.oa'   Nn•armwmi.00'       

I
m

ol
I

lo
Itaaue.—

i

IiI I

o      io
II            I

o

II

o

INn•at'm"wim.aa'   Nn•aYo'wm.oa   

II

III

I
III

I           
II      

I

a IIIIoI
f

I
I

T

II

Nnai'm"wioi.00'   NnaioYwioi.00'   I

I
IIjII

II

II
I

ti
II

o

l

Ilo
oI

I I       
B

T76.
00'     

o

m

76.00'    

c

I

0

o

N77'41'07"W1520'(T) 077"/77
I

LO.D.D.N.___—______    v'     
I 61.00'

N77'41'07"W283.78.   I            -N17'41'07"W162.00'(M_M)  -N77'41'07'W762.00'(M-M)

I
iMULHOLLANDDRIVE

i
o

N17'41'07"W268.00'      CO'011M,>0.94.61N

II

PARCEL6
ii

IITkAC74032IR31

Zo  . OO
O

2

gN~       

g      

N    m    -   m
7Do

ofil
A             Ogy    

ofnZZ     o,=  Jv

z    
Z

m  Dy a> o _. gO      `  
Z   '  DZ`/

g       ;
s  ry       a  0

Nmcn m9 N 

P
m

Z       ='U  -O

mm1D

v,    TIU7

n

N

O07

r  

j

368



9q
06ypyS

yJ

J. \

S.   

L

ca`•'   o.9  %  i`
9   syF s`'g Ff     F`T

b.     ,

u,   39G  `
moF  
m

x

n'
iyi'

Sro

ad
a9y        

4  

o    

6\

yoqy

i  

9/      

n

ds  ,
M'

Mr4VN
i

4

y\  4`yn,,400
n^

J     9p,1'  

O

p9   o•/`
y

J       

p'+
0   GGGit       

o
l pL4

N\        
A

i .%'

S    

o

r5     V     l•    3    Otly0q0
b

b`
5

A  

6Qp0

v  ;       '    ti5'°    tiO
iy'`'

yl'     i      4y,

OO"p°a
004  

iov°

s
poq4 \0011

4

q

y4i
P

Pljcn

p 

m   
o       3

d
s1

P        tin

J

I

oo\      on
1       AI

1
a

Mtt,40.04NI     
9'40l I

o       

Iv   
o

a        

Z

11
m11      _      NII   }0.00.'____° 

I

1          1vlII
1IIliwII            

IIn
A

II  ,641O1(11)M,SO.Sb.IZNAA
II    

6_00' 

I
30.00'_

II      I  
Wzn

io'P.uE.-1Ii
gA

N

NnaPm"wmtao'
I7oIgN
I      Io

o I      I
II      I     

n

I
ol       .      OI

T

I            Irr- I     

NtT4YOY'w7ot.ao'I      Im I

I      I     

Zf-10'P.U.E.       I      I
pp

I j  I
ImII

IO

ol
ol

I   -     I
Nn•aPm"wim.00'I   -     

III

AiZII

o       
m

o      I

IA
I

w
I

Nn'ai'07"W1ot0o'
II

A
N

I
ulIII

V
iIII

SI
II

iIIN

II

IN17'41'07"W101.00'II

I           I

Z

I
I

gII
I

Nnarm'wim.00'li
I            I

II
I

c      <

n
IIaSD

m
i

Ifisng    
j            

S

T 

e.00'      ----s.00'----
o`"  o

Z      "   <(
A

o
z             mA  D

Nna,orw,szoa'(T)  rD^ j
o

Z   rDDZ`J
Smmhno   

Nnarm"wITI(A

N77'41'07'W262.00'(M-M)    262.00'(M-M)  o   

TRAPANISTREET

mI     -tqS    -         "$>  

1

Num
i

o

mUl

j
i

a,   
I1'in

N

II        I    W

ii

II
I

O
SEESHEET10SEESHEET9

369



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 11

EXHIBIT " B"

TRACT 4055 AND VILLAGE " DD" AREA

370



f   /       

7
J

VILLAGE JJ
r

VILLAGE NN- 1

I
I

N I
LAKE 12O 1

s
VILLAGE EE- 2

VILLAGE EE- 1

VILLAGE 00

VILLAGE DD

VILLAGE Z
SCHOOL

i

VILLAGE

y EXHIBIT " B"

VILLAGE DD

VICINITY MAP

DECEMBER 2020

371



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 12

EXHIBIT " C"

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no
less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000, 000 for each occurrence and $ 2, 000, 000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision Improvement

Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that  " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty ( 42)
days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can be

included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at
least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.

372



Page 1 of 2

A'!' 1      DATE( MMIDD/ YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 11, 23, 2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER CONTACT Willis Towers Watson Certificate CenterNAME:
Willis Towers Watson Insurance Services West, Inc.      PHONE

1- 877- 945- 7378
FAX

1- 888- 467- 2378
c/ o 26 Century Blvd A/ C No Ext:      A/ C No:

P. O. Box 305191
E- MAIL

certificates@willis. comADDRESS:

Nashville, TN 372305191 USA
INSURER( S) AFFORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC#

INSURERA: United Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED
INSURERB: Starr Surplus Lines Insurance Company 13604

River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd INSURER C:

Lathrop, CA 95330
INSURER D•      

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: wie 9sseo REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL S R

pOLICY NUMBER MMIDDYIYYYY MMIDDIYYYY LIMITS

X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY 2, 000, 000EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS- MADE OCCUR
DAMAGETORENTED
PREMISES Ea occurrence S

A
MED EXP( Any one person)    $

Y
ATN- SF1811644P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

pERSONAL& ADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:   GENERAL AGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY ER  LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER: S

AUTOMOBILELIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT    $
Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY Per accident  $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLALIAB X OCCUR EACHOCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000
A

x EXCESSLIAB
CLAIMS- MADE BTT11814514W 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021 AGGREGATE 3, 000, 000

DED RETENTION$   

WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYER5' LIABILITY
Y N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTN ER/ EXECUTI VE
OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? N A

E. L. EACHACCIDENT

MandatoryinNH)     E. L. DISEASE- EAEMPLOYEE $

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $

B Excess Liability 1000024047 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021 Each Occ/ Agg:  7, 000, 000. 00

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

This Voids and Replaces Previously Issued Certificate Dated 11/ 23/ 2020 WITH ID: W18788798.

Project: Tract 4055

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents are

included as Additional Insureds as respects to General Liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Lathrop
AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

390 Towne Centre Drive J

Lathrop, CA 95330

O 1988- 2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25( 2016/ 03)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

sx xo: Z0374643 sr+Tcx: 1995865
373



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

A       ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 ot 2

AGENCY NAMEDINSURED

Willis Towers Watson Insurance Services West, Inc.
River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd

POLICY NUMBER Lathrop, CA 95330

See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1 See Page 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER:     25 FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance

General Liability shall be Primary and Non- Contributory with any other insurance in force for or which may be

purchased by City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents.

ACORD 101 ( 2008/ 01)   O 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 20374643 BATCH: 1895865 CERT: W18793560374



POLICY NUMBER: ATN- SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CG 20 10 07 04

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or

Or anization s :  Location s Of Covered O erations

City of Lathrop As Required By Written Contract, Fully Executed Prior To
its officers, City Council, boards and commissions The Named Insured' s Work

and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or " property
additional insured the person( s) or organization( s) shown in damage" occurring after:
the Schedule, but only with respect to liability for " bodily 1 All work, including materials parts or equipment
injury",  " property damage"  or  " personal and advertising    rnished in connection with such work, on the project( other than
injury" caused, in whole or in part, by:       

service, maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or on behalf
1 Your acts or omissions; or of the additional in- sured( s) at the location of the covered

2 The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf; operations has been completed; or

2 That portion of" your work" out of which the injury or
in the performance of your ongoing operations for the damage arises has been put to its intended use by any person or
additional insured( s) at the location( s) designated above.   organization other than another contractor or subcontractor

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional engaged in performing operations for a principal as a part of the
insureds, the following additional exclusions apply: same project.

CG 2010 07 04 O ISO Properties, Inc., 2004 Page 1 of 1

375



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE

Third Party' s Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or  " suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are performing work."

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07 Page 1 of 1

376



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in

SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Orqanization Number of Days Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

377



mog  moo^   m   omm 
y     oa  

p      mZyoo ?a 
m mmyO       

A

a 

o
z

a
m   

NNmm

r
m

Z

i`
m     

o
czmcnC

CCH oi       omN 
Ags   Zc5cI

I
m

on    mo
zmtio pop    

m  a z    g>  2>         
A vs    40 g   u Rgmm D

yoAm
o 

mm
m       mip   om   som 

oo  m
sor

m p _:   m

mm
z Zmm    _          m       

msA
no` f     _         

p

mov
o       ANcAD        so   -     -n

m \mmzTaAoFa D      myiom

oo
C7a

A

o-    

mm      
Q 

o

o8x
mm

gootio

mm=gOag      N
m^   Z

gmoK   -ng

n       ?   

og   Dm m   A

n
A

y

a

oo

moz
m

m
mrm i      - o      

nQ         

o0

oo
o

o    '

Ao
0

n      =n   Dnonm`""- C)
mAmm  

9        An       o>  

Ammo    N 
mp  Anm-   

C) mcEso> r

A      '-"msc  vsnc'<`' 37
o      -  - moa 

mm

A   Aoo    xao      

a`      Zi7      
oFoA   yomxo    m

fhggy17
7 sa_       -      

f 
A   i    Ko"'AZZ1     Q,z  u

omxoD
o       o         N

AR             _  D

o      

n;mo   m      o

rA   mo  o
nA^o>s<  

m

9

T=  -+ 9F   ^   m   -   m       e>m
m

a

z>y5g;g
o     mgoNp   ooN =   tiz

o="    Comy  z

o

o  1D(,}
oa g      -    AA   -romLl       _   _    

A  -i
g`

o`f, Ul
mmNpmay;K9    m

mmma-      >    N

mz   ;cAo'  
v

o7

z

z;    

y$a A

o

mopm=

o  
mgI

ora== c -o cn
omAm    o  rn

oom     » 

oo 

o.,      

N

oo,gx'     
o;   

D

HOmmnN        -  
37

mZ    i

A 
m

m
soAos>=omA    ATa m oop

o
m^ 

zii
A

7
o

maai?omm          
D         

o  Rn
N    

optl
l;

x

m D      o
m

I

m>5,       Zp    s    .;:

o T   -   Zmn6

m Zi .     I

ig   
C   oC     S o

AA     
pZa" 

msaa

AI       
SoDDy.    i( lo

zoo
mmpZ     

gynAz   o    j

II
REsiriFeo     'oFm   

ti /;

R;oms   J
g

m
oi     '_'

j

P

oyT

a33x'     
Z

rr

c

m
inwP  :       g.

On
T

ezn
s

378



m

om >$o mm
n

ma_   A4'>^4 rn-gmg; cm n 
ti oma mAOA pzoNs   g      

C A ^' oyo`g='"     o^A O
m           

mgm^4mm98   o_„ 7po       m m
osn£oa"^A     ammmA       s= -G

A   

o    > o      moA cnO
o'=gAao=>oA<      go m        m70

m mm"ga>A000moA   
a^ 

N

FONsmom  "'  
oy`Aoo      op>m mD

A
x>

yy>;gm"  Z s>   mgA > Ao      o
ao     m

So oo   >^>-      
mvm;       m S+

iova     -tz5mroc
smv.  

K
m_zcioz <o9AsimDcAi

uv
Z

yyaggmgD=r      
s`' 5 

manAA"P7      a„      
o

ii? 
a

ig= gmomA9 
iu  imDv_"moa

pROF

Dgoo-is

m '  
romAnNyAd1

FpSS,
o

N;amomo
nn=mYn'   z  „y- io'n      ^'      <_      

z

oa a
v,cOmz.  No   - amAAA

zaINry
ins

o   ^  oz    ~
y      ^    '  `

aomKry-n
o      no

ao    in
ti       

rP,,   mp
c

tive
o

ggo - 2'< __
aaA3'

cmamg     m
a.       

sa
Md zQ'9so      - zF       n

N$ mA

o    - 
K

mm
DA

ggo

m      

oo    m—
z        

Z   

ovDzn
Ag  

o
o

a  

Q    m

W

cn

m"nf o Sn
V

ga > ^>  Am
gD  

Z
gmomv  °   m

T      R a pAp   
p -v'ism"sm `"s 

09

A     
oa

o- 
mA

su- „    5  
9   F g

5
F p   
o   _   -   -

A

Ara

a       z

m       
m

m
o

N

Aa

Q5        ZY

j

379



0      
6

m

1`

r0o•       q2
n

fTl@''      0 
zmv      

O

4

q20       '
r?     `yy

N    m63 eF
a •Z     ssoD

yd^ Oa'

r     
z\°

SJo.

0n
s    ,       ,     

l      

Cs$  

ti° /  'aaaa',• 
R     

zoO,`       A
sa.    

i4•       n/iiLJ'  6

i

0 `'\ 

Ro`"

ti
B  -

0''   /  q`  <
eaairyo \     `' 

0°°'    
La    -

J

ti°

y 

y

Fo
J     

a'

a5a''c       oI
n\     

s  °j      

00ya    / oe 0

0  

y      `l   
c

2
u  .-Oci

g    sSC\
4

m

yd
u      

roN

i  .   

a

2   'J.   i     

z

q
S

SA9jF
F

6

0soDm 

sro

1'       9,   m
o   1

9  ,9
m

ii    `,1 \•-

i

J  fl9gm
A 

ngA"i.  °'aF49
N 

a
ero NJ9by. J9

2 -       

9NzN TI

NS 2F     J       mo D
B+  q  -1          37

C9      J9.          Z

a
m \      s 

b 

Z

ge 

GcOO           \    _       
ao_\       

p  >

A

o°'    

z>m     
9\ 

o_    

ww-      '       
g

m  -^

o

l`;

lve`°  
o£       (

y\   a 
m

J     

wm     no

V\

A.    _y
jj  \       \  

ticni       

N^
uo      

o\

A

moAA; N       /   

e, ' v       \     

NNy=
n

w

l(1p  \

n 
s

or5.
mg
g

A
U

mMs
FEFFfyn `„`   \

mA
yS_ "       

v

y
9

Zt     

S

sN        iIz   \o

v 

fMplh.L1N
ffifff4

OOp
6l4

o     _ z

y     

g
mLQ`qUN
m

P

ppg92N"
P3,

2b

v      %

ooN    ` u ` A            

ff        ifg

8       _  
IQQm    ..    Z

2P 

vVr  ._   $ IZo
i     

o

000 -       I     sam
g =        msag    70

z      =  c
7

gL1      m
r^

g      gZ       ,"

ne90

mgp      
m

v9Ao   '
Vl

e

m

cao'o

o

1
v

380



q y   o,, d a

E' 02"      o

as°      
0

rd   Z

IIII I
I
I

v    
A

9 

d

ada''      

9
a

a
s

O
r       

o.       t 1

J       `  

c
a

d N       ,.    

O
La

rn

9

N    

I

m

mFn      t

9',     `     N

I     I  
m

da a      '     
5,

a i   1

i 1

rs'
ad Nao//

m

a
Han    1 1  "

1 s a oAn

c9i o    '    _

O a     -      m

i

I 1 D

101 Z I N
0       1

I I I  "     1 m

1 I 1        "     i
ti

1

U

1  _  1
a i

A

n
b   '

CCSTREEf

N

n

r — 
U

s

02 0  '       

o i      „ 
1

m

D

Z m 1 n s a       A
j y O

m

o    \ O c    '  a n
I o           Y'o p
I

i g 1  —

s'    m 1 1
A

z •    s  
c l          1 1

m>  = r^   _   

Z   ^  D z` J m 2 STREET I Z STREET
s- Ni
moAoa

m
A  

m   Z

rnZ D   x

m Ll n Um     ,
m fil    n

i
oN

n

j   W

o

v

i

381



I

1

I

I

A
AjtlytldSONtlISI4l3I1i

SA

ea)(e-rv).sce
M,61,S0.V5Nm

ll'ib
G

R=2100.00'L7OOOOlZ=11

No  
m

g

4=17'43'59'L=649.94N)(X1N1l]-Y1).9ZlZ=I,BO,Ld.S=Oo
l

p             pA
o

M-BC)R4)       
vavm  -    s

iavifffff  ' fg    

IIT

V
vN          1

ll9
60.F=0 ,OOS9Z=a

4Z'611=1lf,   
p

r,ia o

ti  y NI% A

I

m   _       _     _ 
6Ao

1/,     

iffffffgg
5/`bCg9NUIi

5,
9

vlA,-m       - P            

vi

Ipo
I

o o>II

J  

P

J        J

t    .

Effii
m

Iv

Ian
a

I

Z

I
I

u7O0   88 - 
c

Nim6d    

i

Ig
I

I

i
i

g'IN'   
ti       c

I pN    N

i
91G6

N

12.84

N4737'08'W200.00'(i)   

o0
aIgg

V      

II

In  Im
I

00-Ot09c
ym I

I       
B

L-__--__
I_-__--_ f nl

zq

41.86'  249.36'    

103.28'       '     N47137'09W291.22(T) mm
D.N.2019-OB81121(A1)    

N   iN    `   1

I

28.37'   N47'37'08"W218.40'(M-M)  

N47'37'08"W77.52'(AI-M)  729.02.     - —     -61.00.    —

gAGARDENFARMSAVENUEoi
mop

Naa'oe'wios.so'ai)—  — —Nas'oe_wus.oz'— ——

q         g;N
I

Iim

O PARCEL15

7ruc7saoa R3i
r--o--

I !      I
SEESHEETtt

zi  { o  .  Oo0
m   gN                Z

cnA cs       

u     s
m       _  

ozoos'    m
Aoz     m  NDomm        

o
mp         oc       m  D
fZo  ,         rD

a --       z

s

z   vo  o 9    fi
omm

p '

cnNZD
mAam

m

cno'o

0

j
r

1

382



SEESHEET7

i

m
f

m

f
N

m
m-i

i.o.o.o.N.______  A1STREET

N35'S1'41'E290.00'  
O

N35'S4'41'E26200'(M-AI)

oI131.00'

0
IN3554'41"E412.00'( 261.00'(B)  

0

55.00'S5.00',    -----
N ------ 75.00' 

p152.00'

I  __-   --_oI

II
I

II

II

II

II

II
IIwl
Iol

en

I

ol
eII

IfI
fIlUI

II

II
IeFI
IF

N35'S4'41'E101.00'

bI
V

I

oAIIn   '"

Oo

IZIN3554'41'E101.0'

IDI

IIt0'P.U.E.
IDUI

10'P.U.E.-       I
mI

IZIN35'S4'41'E101.00'

niImmi
o      nmImI

I  _30.W'_
O_

30.00'_  I N
Fmf

I^I    ;IUV  

N79'S3'48'E(R)101.88' m

I
P _'O_   

mI

sa.00'-O 
o£ il      I

o 'I

IuIfN42'71'S2"E107.59'
I

ml
f

IAI          
I       ;I

o

9m
J

A.   

I   L72P       C9

I mIo=435.00' 
d_pg56•  

1\  

wG £   
Q5.00_       

looOl'C,zzz  _
mN4272'S2"EO     

6T

F---_70.65'M-M)         d-'g.56,Rcq05.00. T2

I  ---  -     I21l597M,
II

id----A3STqffT
m

OI
30.00' 

i1N4122'S2'Efi6.00' 

II     

A

y   

F

I
N42'12'S2'E707.pp'    1m

yNI;     IO
inm    

I`     I              

o      

i
I         

mmnn

y    uvs'    m
I   A    m m       a"g    —TI

m
sa.9s'      o      m 

Z ,    4,i     JV
N    =om     D r

yNaoao'23'czssa'(n-yj -       Oa      z      Z      

DZ
NORBECKSTREETm    u  m

fi

y

UI:        0

ms 
cnI

f

Vl
Iam

Iv9    mUl

O    m
v

oNo

oN

j

l

383



N35'S441'E53},00'(M-M)(RS)     
O

1

R'475.00'      

72°,     pA
7Jp  

m

R'J90.00'       

J
M,

M
J)    

iv

d_3819
z

n

z47)
g(IJ

v

dJ6
I

46J6`    \\

4
0

eF
T

9'Q9
c     .   09/`

F

N

gSJf9`J4
0.,

5000'd,z
Jp.

Id'j,      r'`,N
4J

s.

zI/       Oo
l   IS

y\

a

b
a 

IN1Y
AOBS

I
fnnj10'P.U-E.-1y

Im   o            `DJE,
n

o\
P     /     '   B9J eG 

Io
N   

n9(
4

II;  i_  COO/       

4 

i
ao.00'-°       o`'

II

I

I      In
IIfto'PA.E
II

I      'olI

N35'S4'41'E101.0'   II
o

i       I

IIN      
I

FIZrBS.
I       I

I$     ;I,       Isxm

IIB"   m T

I

rJCn

N3554'41"E101.00' m

ii

Im

ii

i

Cn

I

oo
If

I
I

176.00--__    

o

S

c

N3554'41'E15200'(T) 
m

i
330  r ao R_

m
N35'S4'41"E290.D0'(M-M)      

O
N35'S4'41"E2620a'(M-AI)       

OCI7

a
d'

B'
3.  \   .^

rc z0
I131.00'131.00'

0A1STREETR'300p.
4

pBp3.   
B(

6J65,  
J

o
N35'S4'41'E412.00'(T) 261.00'(B)   NUd,36?SB'`    

000         
IN4Yz•Qs,gs,

o

f

9p6jM';
Ji.

I  ---  `"---  I

D

o/      AINaDI
b         

1 
pImIAi

I     

z          

T

SEESHEET6SEESHEET8

n

Z        -
7E °  •  OO      

gN     

gO'
gmZA1STREET

io    
A  

vAifO
mx              

IF
v

s>    C F         

rZ            
N35'S4'41"EL16(A1-N)       R-300.00'   

m

m    z        
D  —      OO- -     fh         gA31

mo   .  Q
s    

262.0'(M-M)  Ik36'24'12L=190.61'(M-AI)     
Z ,    Ai

r

AN
o"     

r^ 
Dn      m>  rr

N

g
o

Z   
m

DZ`/ o
c

S    o   

cfil       -U  fll

9

Z       >uo  
m

F
um

1

R7

v
r       W

O
v

T

1

384



Z

m     a
lii

5         9sgm

T`      \

o

Z10=  <(n
mas;     Li- J   

z  

nRrr-D
y    FF

o

Z   vDZl/
o    sym

m>  
o

m

vmm

o      $
y,,   

FFTrh       -u
p" y    ,`°eod5       wpap
aj6

5

0    
Z

o`"

o  D

otly
rG7       UU    m

lT'`

Sq9               
v    

N

Op\  
y

v

W

r/       
y  \  

3d5
64V'

9
w 'r   Q1/   

S

P,  \ OOti1
a\      

O
P \

j      " 
P \

p

9b
po       Z

o/
o

ypv4\`

4

9  v` \\'1

9  

F
v          

11
q.0'        Ni'n

91

1

V  
e'•O4````  S_     I

gn r

a 
44'       111I;      II       

I v0'

1A°ti     

II
a/    r.,      II

I  

I

II  30.00'i30.00'- 
I

i IIII

II   '      IIII

I       g   '  I     =II

julN

IvII

IIII

III

O___,_°II i °--     30.00iIr10'P.0.E.

II

II

I
II

iiin

ii
i       ii

ii
i      ii

IIm
I

mi
iIitiv

D    
I

to'P.u[.       IIva
A

IJ9IIsm
cibu

A
I

a       I
I

I
p('1

NIIr

I
v       

I

u1

I    v        
oIII

II; IIm
I

I
w

I
mI

I      I
uu  

II

III
II

II
I

I   -     I

mI

i      -
I

II

IIm
IIII
II10'P.LLE.1I
III

I

I
I;      

I
irunarorwim,00'IIm

I
IIII
IIIII
INI

m             g      
II

mii
ii

IiNnarm•wim.00'ii

iiIiii
iii

ioiiIi

i
ii

I

nnarorwwi.00
II

IIII
NII

I

IIII

IIII 000ooo

m
m

y76.00'  _______7fi.00'_1_    0       76.00'S

o

I
o-_-__-_   

o

71.00' u

NnafoYws2.00'      Nn•aYOYwazoo'(T) g =

N1T41'07'W262.00'(M-M)    
O O       -

Nnarm"wzezoo(u-u)  -
O       -G 

s'

CCSTREETg
m1

Um
T       uU

o

x   -    m
u

o           m

v----      
i

iiAiis
iiiio

ii (    IiN" O
II1  iII

iv
FI

j
A

SEESHEET10SEESHEET9

385



SEESHEET11SEESHEET8

IbIIy,D
i

a

AIIZ]7
vn

W

r
v

rnCR
mm

m

u      
c   u

uouO

a

W
e

loa--------------------       pA

CCSTREET

O;      _
N17'41'OYW262.00'(M-AI)  _

O      _
N17'41'07'W262.00'(M-N)  _

O;
227.00'      m35'

nnarm'wiss.00'   r+n•ara'wiazoo'(r)

n.00'
1,`    }    76.00'     76.00'      

o 

2,y
IiT76.00'

so
I

I

III
II

III

INnafo"wim.00'II
II

I
N

II

NIII

III
I

T

I I
IN7Ta7'OYW101.00'I

I
I

I
y

III
III

yII

mglIIo
mii

I
10'PL.E—y

I

mNn•aPOYwio7Ao'
II

mIII
U

z    

I       'mI       
z

Icb

m1vI            Iti  I       I

mmm
Nnarorwioi.00'      m         mmm      vmn

mumIUmI       >    

r,       pIr;—i
NA      8

III
alII

m

I       .      II

III
iNnarm'wmi.00'II

iii

t-10'P.I1.E.     II

oII
I

F-70'P.U.E.o
olII
III

N17'41'07'W11.00.
II

II

II

III

oIIIII

8II

III

Nt7'a1'07"W70t.00'
II

II

II

IIII

II

II

J

II a`     ot
y' I26    ___76.00'_____     76.00'  +     tiI       2   _1__76.00'_     I

o 00

4_00

N17'41'07"W152.00' N17'41'07'W117.00'

nz.00'saoa'      Nnararw

N17'41'07"W262.00'(M_M)  —N77'41'07"W762.00'(M-CLINTX)       90.00'(M-B)

ZSTREET

LO.OIIM.40,9bbtN    N17'41'07"W379.00'  

6

PARCrLo

7RAC7dD32IRSI

I

II4m

2

za  . oo 
og"            z

mN
c

N \      -    gZ037

oA       _           o=">    
m—

nFmm         `       
m

T

g

of        zz     

s  

zn ., ., gO        
Z .  z   DZ^

s  ry
F9  

mc       

o
A  

i

Nv    mC3

co

or

j

386



SEESHEET11

ijiii

iii

ii
A ii    -i

iI
m uaUo

i
mmm

i    
Iu

I
Sr--- m

i

i
o

CCSTREET

o      

N77'41'07'W262.00'(M-M)     Nn•arorwzszoa'(M-M)
iiO       —

isz.00.       —
O       —

ii

Nn•aro'wisz.00'(T)
iIo0

m
a

6'

C       76.00'     76.00'Jo       

U —

I
III    n

I

U      I       I

I

ol
T

loI

IiNnaim"wim.00'   NnaioTwioi.00'   iII

m

O             
III

jII

I    

I
I       I

I

o
T

I
N17'41'07"W101.00'   N17'47'07'W101.00'    I

III

III

glloI
SIg,m„- 

I       I    
m         "II      II

II

yI   N17'41'07"W101.00'   N17'41'07'WIOI.DO'   
II

A
ImI-

10'P.U.E.       
II

o
r

I     
III

I

I
m

vm I
iI

N
ii    ,INnaro"wio.00'   Nnarorwim.00'      im

iiI
IIm II

iollo
g        

I    

I

I    II       I

I
I

T

II

Nnarm•wioioor+n•arorwmi.00'    i

iI
10'P.U.E.—i

I

II

I           lo      I
I

II
A

I       I    
o   

N1T41'OT'W101.00'   N1Ta1'07"W101.00'   
II

III

I

iIII

I

I            
I      II

a
iII       II

N17'aY07"Wt07.oa'   N77'a7'07'W101.00'   II
I

III
IIII

I
I

N
iiI/

I     I I

evti      ,ti

o      >;
ti

III      (
B

o---
76.W'---___--76.00'---

c

oI

o

C INiai'a"wisz.00'(i) 
o___

III.O.D. D.N.__________    N°i     
mg

I 61.(p.
N17'41'07'W263.78'  I         N77'4107"W2fi2.00(M-M)    N77'41'YW2fi2.00'(M-M)

II

iiZSTREET
ii

o

N17'41'07"W268.00'      
CO'011M,i0,94.61N

II

PAf2CEL6
I

IITRAC7d032IR31

i

ZtE °  • OOo
O2

N~    \ 

g      

Dis'    m
Nnf                z

z     
n=  <

Z
o

o

r Os        
9

m   D
90     mZ   

N

DZ
mom  fi

m  m
9

o—'i0
m

1(

j1 m

p
p

j

387



9
el4On5

e `n`y.6

S 
Js9l\Jsy,   s

a•    :
p

J'J.  Ft<` c         9       cP
s\ fF''°  y

Jy

mm

g

oady,'   jotl5

ad
N9

44,    6,5       

w      ,CJY`

l
1tl64n       

Ja  4`
y4\`00

C1      ao:     ooO`,
tpo   

t°       

o

H
lo4Ltl

Z
y    

LD
M'    \        y0'       vb/

o

S   b    /
5

oi

fb4
i        nati

oti       ov,
P45•

r,i   

7  t" O .  d   
o°,:

094 \     \ 0• 
o

y       / `

i1

1"       I

Po0\ Im
P     \

o    - 
3

d

va

f 

vzl

o

o\      nloa
I I,     LOlIalMS4•40.otN

19
l       

1Iv   
op

IZ

1       1O____oIO

1     ;       Ia30.00'  

1     ;     "     
II

Ili    'mIf
I

T

v

Ii  
A

IA
I  ,641O1(a)M.50.59.1ZNn

I   znrA+
II

I    I            II
W

gom

6.00'   3.00'   
I

I
n

1--'O_--_  
10'P.U.E--IIzrz

N17'47'07"W101.00. 
I

II

III

i
iI      I

mO                 oiim

i
T

i      i     

i gINnai'm'wioi.oa'ImIm

I
aF—io'a.LLE.       

I      I     

I ,.  
I

w

I  I
oIIII

jmii

I
T

II

1

r"

iNnarm"wim.00' i

iii

A
I           olI   -    

Im
I

orr"— glII I     
III

p~     IN17'41'07"wt01.00'
I

I
III

I
II

Iv
I

I   —       
olIIN

IiII

I
IN17'47'07'W107.00'II I,     ,      O

g'      

N4,

a
W,o,oa

io      `

ii   z5am

oo    m       gA    o

i
i

o   

z            
1 s  _

1__s.00'--------s.00----      I        r

C

Y io

o=              mg  r

iNn•aro'wuzoa'(T)  rD^

i

o

Z   
oooDZ`J

i
gfh

r   --
NnaroPwrnCp

i        Nirarm'wzsz.oa'(-u)    zsz.00'(M-u)  e90  

i
CCSTREETi>o  

o ao
mISmm       (,,y-   $  Ll       Rwm

j

Ul T

n

9    N

iiI

SEESHEET10SEESHEET9

388



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 13

EXHIBIT " D"

UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

389



Etvt, r'atN£ EfCiN , P" a

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE November 23, 2020

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25503- 50

RIVER ISLANDS- Stage 26

VILLAGE DD( 120 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sewer Raising Iron( o/ Completion)     1 LS   $   15, 200. 00  $ 15, 200. 00

2 Storm Drain Raising Iron ( o% Completion) 1 LS   $    3, 200. 00  $ 3, 200. 00

3 Domestic Water Raising Iron& Setting Water Boxes ( o% Completion)      1 LS   $   63, 800. 00  $ 63, 800. 00

4 Joint Trench( 60/ Completion)  1 LS   $  658, 500. 00  $       658, 500. 00

5 Striping& Mounments( o/ Completion)  1 LS   $   21, 000. 00  $ 21, 000. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $       761, 700. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contractor's note for Village DD dated 11123/ 2020

ns. w aV. J?# r€ C•G<`,'. A;. L P=,", C: v' E 3' ia.' i. K+'. d.<: d ",&. tal8 + +. ds.: 9 5»S, i F.'' r..; t d« s

T: 25503- River IslandsNhase 50- Vllage DD\ Word 8 Excel\ Cost Estimate\ Cost to Complete 2020- 11- 23 2020- 11- 23 Village DD Cost To Complete. xls\ Improvements

390



OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

r

River Islands Parkway - Village " DD"     Lathrop, CA

100% Submittal 8/ 12/ 2020

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANT.      UNIT COST AMOUNT

A.    Site Preparation

1 Site Grading ( Fine)       SF 16, 677 0. 50 8, 338. 50

SUB- TOTAL 8, 338. 50

B.    Flatwork/ Surfacing/ Walls

1 12" Concrete Mow Curb LF 356 12. 00 4, 272. 00

2 Natural colored 6" Conc. Flatwork SF 435 6. 00 2, 610. 00

SUB- TOTAL 4, 272. 00

C.    Features

1 Bench EA 3 2, 905. 00 8, 715. 00

SU B- TOTAL 8, 715. 00

D.    Plantinq

1 1 Gallon Shrubs EA 888 8. 25 7, 326. 00

2 15 Gallon Trees EA 18 120. 00 2, 160. 00

3 Sod - Lawn Grass SF 4, 733 0. 40 1, 893. 20

4 Soil Conditioning& Amendments SF 15, 886 0. 30 4, 765. 80

5 Bark SF 11, 153 0. 25 2, 788. 25

6 Root Barrier LF 414 6. 00 2, 484. 00

SUB- TOTAL 18, 933. 25

E.    Irrigation Controls& Distribution

1 18" o. c. In- line Drip Tubing Irrigation System LF 8, 304

2 Flush cap& Valve Box EA 20

3 Operation Indicator EA 20

4 PVC Ball Valve EA 9

5 Tree RWS System EA 34

6 6" Pop- Up Rotary Nozzle EA 33

7 QF Header ( 10- 18/ 10- 12) LF 104

8 3/ 4" Lateral Line LF 1, 060

9 1" Lateral Line LF 140

10 1- 1/ 4" Lateral Line LF 130

12 2" Main Line LF 1, 053

13 1" conduit for control wires LF 1, 131

14 14- 2 Maxi- Cable LF 1, 200

15 1" Valves, Boxes& Decoders EA 5

16 1" Valves/ Filter, Boxes& Decoders EA 7

17 3/ 4" Quick Couplers EA 2

18 Irrigation Sub- Total SF 15, 886 2. 02 32, 089. 72

SUB- TOTAL 32, 089. 72

TOTAL 72, 348. 47

10% Contingency 7, 234. 85

EST- 2020- 08- 12- Village DD- Engineers Estimate- To RI- 25511. 03

391



Construction Total 79, 583. 32

Ori inal Bud et 2018- 06- 22)

10, 048

Red=overbud" et/ Green=untlerbud et

VIL DD( Pkwy Strips ( 2, 091
e s/ sfl):       z4, 2s. 00

V1L DD ( A133)'       5, 120. 00

VlL EE ( Ai34}:   71; 00. 00`'

21, 465

NOTES:

1.

Items not included as a part of this estimate: F. Erosion control & siltation cost, SWPPP

A. Permits G. Landscaping Fees
B. Utility Fees H. Joint trench

C. City fees, bond fees I. Easement acquisitions

D. Engineering/ design fees J. Power Pole Relocation

E. Soils engineering cost
2.

This is a preliminary estimate only and not to be used as a bidding quantity sheet

EST- 2020- 08- 12- Village DD- Engineers Estimate- To RI- 255a 1. 03

392



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 14

EXHIBIT " E"

VILLAGE " DD" IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

393



na n es r,

DRAFT ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST August 23, 2018

RIVER ISLANDS- Stage 2B Job No.: 25503- 50

VILLAGE DD( 120 UNITS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 335, 000 SF    $   0. 45   $ 150, 750. 00

2 3" AC Paving 11, 600 SF    $    1. 50   $  17, 400. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving 166, 000 SF    $   2. 25   $ 373, 500. 00

4 6" Aggregate Base 11, 600 SF    $    0. 90   $  10, 440. 00

5 8" Aggregate Base 166, 000 SF    $    1. 20   $ 199, 200. 00

6 Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB cushion)       4, 100 LF    $  15. 00   $ 61, 500. 00

7 Roll Curb and Gutter ( with AB cushion)   6, 100 LF    $  15. 00   $ 91, 500. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 55, 000 SF    $    5. 00   $ 275, 000. 00

9 Driveway Approach 121 EA    $ 600. 00   $ 72, 600. 00

10 Handicap Ramps 21 EA    $       2, 500. 00   $ 52, 500. 00

11 Survey Monuments 13 EA    $ 300. 00   $   3, 900. 00

12 Traffic Striping& Signage 5, 500 LF    $    5. 00   $ 27, 500. 00

13 Dewatering ( budget)      5, 500 LF    $  75. 00   $ 412, 500. 00

Subtotal Street Work 1, 748, 290. 00

STORM DRAIN

13 Field Inlets ( type C inlet overtype 1 manhole base)      3 EA    $       2, 800. 00   $   8, 400. 00

14 Catch Basins ( type A inlet)    4 EA    $       2, 400. 00   $   9, 600. 00

15 Catch Basins ( type A inlet overtype I manhole base)  29 EA    $       2, 800. 00   $ 81, 200. 00

16 Catch Basins ( type A inlet over type ll manhole base)   1 EA    $       5, 000. 00   $   5, 000. 00

17 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 200 LF    $  34. 00   $ 40, 800. 00

18 18" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 420 LF    $  46. 00   $ 65, 320. 00

19 24" Storm Drain Pipe 400 LF    $  65. 00   $ 26, 000. 00

20 30" Storm Drain Pipe 380 LF    $  80. 00   $ 30, 400. 00

21 Manholes ( type I)      2 EA    $       3, 000. 00   $   6, 000. 00

22 Manholes( type ll)      2 EA    $       5, 000. 00   $  10, 000. 00

23 Connect To Existing 4 EA    $       1, 700. 00   $   6, 800. 00

24 Stub& Plug 3 EA    $       1, 000. 00   $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 292, 520. 00

SANITARY SEWER

24 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 4, 300 LF    $  28. 00   $ 120, 400. 00

25 Sewer Service 120 EA    $ 600. 00   $ 72, 000. 00

26 Manholes 18 EA    $       4, 000. 00   $ 72, 000. 00

27 Connect To Existing 2 EA    $       3, 000. 00   $   6, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 270, 400. 00

C'^ r : s, d r% cr,,,`[; c+, Atl P.War". C^ a, 1' E? tim. L"     r e      ,      7w       ,f e  ,* a i';:5c'?      4.... . y?': 5'.    F.;` J. i,' t r S; c

T: 25503- River Islands\ Phase 50- Village DD\ Word& Excel\ Cost Estimate\ ESTIMATE Stage 2B Village DD.xls\ Improvements

394



ENGINE£ fC1NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

28 8" Water Line ( including all appurtenances) 5, 600 LF    $  32. 00   $ 179,200. 00

29 Water Services 120 EA    $       2, 000. 00   $ 240, 000. 00

30 Fire Hydrants 10 EA    $       4,000. 00   $ 40, 000. 00

31 Water Plug 3 EA    $       1, 000. 00   $   3, 000. 00

32 Air Release Valve 3 EA    $       2, 500. 00   $   7, 500. 00

33 Resilient Gate Valve 30 EA    $       1, 550. 00   $ 46, 500. 00

34 Blow Off Valve 3 EA    $       4, 000. 00   $  12, 000. 00

32 Connect To Existing 5 EA    $       4, 000. 00   $ 20, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 548, 200. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000)  $     2, 859, 000. 00

y. t° 1T: F? FC3' L>.".:1LL R, C? ;.. il' E 3°{ i,?"s..+ t.iµ.`: ,Ji# :, W:? S.' SL .  r..
R..?: J,: 6.; f , '. iQ s.,' i d,

T: 25503- River Islands\ Phase 50- Village DD\Word& Excel\ Cost Estimate\ ESTIMATE Stage 28 Village DD. xls\ Improvements

395



OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

iy rr+ r

River Islands Parkway - Village " DD"     Lathrop, CA

100% Submittal 8/ 12/ 2020

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANT.      UNIT COST AMOUNT

A.    Site Preparation

1 Site Grading ( Fine)       SF 16, 677 0. 50 8, 338. 50

SUB- TOTAL 8, 338. 50

B.    Flatwork/ Surfacing/ Walls

1 12" Concrete Mow Curb LF 356 12. 00 4, 272. 00

2 Natural colored 6" Conc. Flatwork SF 435 6. 00 2, 610. 00

SUB- TOTAL 4, 272. 00

C.    Features

1 Bench EA 3 2, 905. 00 8, 715. 00

SUB- TOTAL 8, 715. 00

D.    Planting

1 1 Gallon Shrubs EA 888 8. 25 7, 326. 00

2 15 Gallon Trees EA 18 120. 00 2, 160. 00

3 Sod - Lawn Grass SF 4, 733 0. 40 1, 893. 20

4 Soil Conditioning& Amendments SF 15, 886 0. 30 4, 765. 80

5 Bark SF 11, 153 0. 25 2, 788. 25

6 Root Barrier LF 414 6. 00 2, 484. 00

SUB- TOTAL 18, 933. 25

E.    Irrigation Controls& Distribution

1 18" o. c. In- line Drip Tubing Irrigation System LF 8, 304

2 Flush cap& Valve Box EA 20

3 Operation Indicator EA 20

4 PVC Ball Valve EA 9

5 Tree RWS System EA 34

6 6" Pop- Up Rotary Nozzle EA 33

7 QF Header ( 10- 18/ 10- 12) LF 104

8 3/ 4" Lateral Line LF 1, 060

9 1" Lateral Line LF 140

10 1- 1/ 4" Lateral Line LF 130

12 2" Main Line LF 1, 053

13 1" conduit for control wires LF 1, 131

14 14- 2 Maxi- Cable LF 1, 200

15 1" Valves, Boxes & Decoders EA 5

16 1" Valves/ Filter, Boxes& Decoders EA 7

17 3/ 4" Quick Couplers EA 2

18 Irrigation Sub- Total SF 15, 886 2. 02 32, 089. 72

SU B- TOTAL 32, 089. 72

TOTAL 72, 348. 47

10% Contingency 7, 234. 85

EST- 2020- 08- 12- Village DD- Engineers Estimate- To RI- 25511. 03

396



Construction Total 79, 583. 32

Ori inal Bud et 20' 18- 06- 22)

101, 048  `

Red= overbud et! Green= underbud et

VIL DD-( Pkwy Sfrips ( 2, 091
@$ 8/ sfl):       c  $ 24, 728. 00

VIL DD( A133 : 5; 120. 00 '

UIL EE ( A134j:   ':   71; 200. 00

21, 465

NOTES:

1.

Items not included as a part of this estimate: F. Erosion control & siltation cost, SWPPP

A. Permits G. Landscaping Fees
B. Utility Fees H. Joint trench

C. City fees, bond fees I. Easement acquisitions

D. Engineering/ design fees J. Power Pole Relocation

E. Soils engineering cost
2.

This is a preliminary estimate only and not to be used as a bidding quantity sheet

EST- 2020- 08- 12- Village DD- Engineers Estimate- To RI- 255a1. 03

397



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 15

EXHIBIT " F"

RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE

INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN THE STAGE 2B DEVELOPMENT AREA

398



R1VER [ SLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHpRITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA 95330

TEL; ( 209) 879- 7900

May 4, 2017

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, Califarnia 9533Q

Subject: Lerter af Guarantee- Construction of interim Public Access within the River

Islands at Lathrop Stage 2A Develo ment Area

This Letter of Guarantee is being made n lieu of a performance bond far the construction of an
interim public access ( public right of way) within the Stage 2A development area of the River
Islands developrnent project. River Islands T evelopment, LLC (`°RID"} has requested the

permanent closure af Cohen Road from Stage 1 to Paradise Road and Paradise Road from
Stewart Road to the Stage 2A levee ( see Exhibit" 1" attached to this Letter of Guarantee). This

closure would allaw the constructian of the Stage 2B levee system. The clasure will nat allow
public traffic to utilize Paradise Raad to access tl e Itiver Islands development area while the
construction af the Stage 2B levee is occurring, but stilt allow emergency vehicles access to the
area via all- weather access roads.

RID plans to construct River Islands Parkway from its current terminus in Stage l, througk the
Stage 2A developmert area arid ir to Stage 2B and reconstruct Paradise Road within Stage 2B to

restore public access ta the project from the TracyiBanta area. Until these roads are constructed
and dedicated ta the City for publie use, the City is requiring security to restore public access to
Paradise Road should RIIa fail to perform. We are providing you this Letter of Guarantee for
this purpose.

The engineer' s estimate as provided by O' Dell Engineering for a 28- faot-wide paved roadway,
equivalent to exisEing Cohen Road, in the general alignment of proposed River Islands parkway
frorn Stage 1 to Paradise Road through tage 2B is$ 453, OOQ( See Exhibit" B"). The total length

af this°` guarantee roadway" is 6, 150 linear feet. As a result, the Autl ority hereby agrees to set-
aside funds in the amaunt of$ 543, 640, which amount is equal to 120% of the engineer' s

estirnate, in- lieu of a perfarmance bond. The funds are currently held, and will be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of December 1,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, Natianal Associationy as fiscal agent. The
Joint Gommunity Facilities Agreement, dated as of November I 6, 2015, between the Authority
and the City allows for funds in the mprovement Fund ta be used to pay costs af infrastructure
improvements for the River Isla.nds development, including roadways.

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantee, the Autharity shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvernent Fund until August l, 2020, or until such time that permanent roadways are

399



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 201' 7
Page 2 of 3

canstructed and dedicated o the City ta restore pei nanent public access to Paradise Road,
whichever comes first. If the permanent roadways are nat constructed, inspected and accepted
by the City l y August l, 2020 and the deadiine is not extended by the City in writing, no later
than 1 ugust 2, 2020, the Authority wili cause one of the following to occur:

1.       The Aut iarity shall use the fu ds set aside in the Improvement Fund to construct a 28-
foot-wide paved roadway in a new alignment, equivalent ta the existing Cahen Road or,
to reconstruct the existin 28- foot-wide paved Cohen xnd Paradise roadways in the
ariginal alignmen#at the City' s direction. The Authority shall utitize a suitable cantractor
and bid the work ttnder appticable law. The Autharity and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadways necessary to rest re aceess are constructed, inspected
and opecatianal, not to exceed December 31, 2020-.

2.       The Authority shall withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the Improvement
Fund and provide said monies to the City, to be held in a segregated account maintained
by the City, to be used solely for constructian or reconstruction of the applicable
roadways. In such event, the City wiil use reasonahte diligenee to complete the
consfir uction of the roadvvays. Once permanent access has been canstructed to the
satisfaction of the City Et gineer, and all costs related thereto have been paid, the City
shall return any of the unspent funds and any investment earnings thereon to the
Autnarity for redeposit to the Irnprovement Fund. Until the completion of the roadways

and return of any exeess funds to the Authority, the City wiil rnaintain reeords as to the
reinvestment of the funds provided ta it, and will provide the Authority with its records as
to any such investment eamings upon written request of#he Autharity. Additionally, in
the event that the City advises the Autharity in writing that the funds provided to the City
are nat suffieient to pay all of the costs associated with the road vays necessary to restore
publie aecess, and advises the Authority as to the arnount of the shortfall, the Authority
will advance funds to the City fram the Improvement Fund in the amount of the shortfall.
In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the City will provide to the
Autharity a detailed breakdawn of tl e costs of the construction of the remaining roadway
work t ecessary to rest re public access.

3.       Since the construction of roadways within Stages 2A and 2B are phased and wi11 continue
to be constructed by RID, RD 2Q62 or the Authority over time, the Autharity may request
a reduction in the arnount of funds necessary to be heId from the Impravement Fund as
segments ofpertnanent public roadways are canstructed and dedicated to the City. Far
instance, segments of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A should be completed in
late 2Q 171eaz1y 2018 and dedicat on o this segment wouId reduce the amount of security
described hecein. As a result, a redu tion af$ 88. 44 per LF {$ 543, bOb/ b, l5d LF) shail be

granted for each linear foat permanently canstructed and dedicated to the City.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to Ct aose between the twq aptions outlined above as the
applicable security and to rec uest reduction of the security as described in sectian 3 above. As
confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the

400



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 2017
Page 3 of 3

City, please sign and date this letter as shown on the next page.  Shauld you have any questions
regarding tlais Letter of Guaxantee, please contact me at( 209} 879-79d0.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb Moniz, Execut v Director

River Istands Public F` ancing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit`° A": Location of Applicable Roadways— CohenlParadise

Exhibit" B": (.' Dell Engineering— Engineer' s Estimates

cc:      Susan Delt' Qsso, River Islands Development, LLC

John Zhang, O' Dell Engineering, Inc.

I Accept an Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and ConditiQns
of the foregoing Letter of Guarantee.

By:
Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

Date

401



n Y
aa 3'

s
y

r
t

d ^-
z....    ' TM _      

yf    
b.'. r pm   

j

fi r k"
r

r

y'

f       `" r`"^
S

z *`

Y

K r' p y`  xl" a,..,;      ;,'
Cg"  ro, W 

d     $ 5r.   '  
z

Iy-   ,   
k.      ...

t` 3 re^    
d' + Ytq ' N

y y    .
k t O

P'"       ,

p.     

a

s      
a  '- -«,,,  ,

k" t. .., 
r`       a'   a%" q       _

a.  .     „
ry +"     

3
a   , r r" d. '" {"--•,, - p,   _    „

a.
a rai'`° y;

w,.,'+,   . re"
b 4, a?   , 

x. J 
vi''" rr.€     

y
a x   :   r   r 7..   r .        

x r
3 *   z» x   .  ,. r a      L Q

f'—    ys            r ''' a l`   r 3r r`        .    ;, F
u      

n. K         

z

r¢ , 
r  Y    t X          1/

x:.,     

o Cm  y, t t
i„,       ,'

a,

e'       
Pt P t      

a.

w      - $  
y' 

y   iLc).     d.,,       k'      ' Y'       
o

odsr*.  3       yr  . n  ... r^       ta  , f
r'

s

fi. .

1

X ,  r. rP.'?'{`""' ,
f"r̀+

F, t"'''`   rY     r*' rai f '       Z iI fP   %   1--   4 4t 5 N

W z w `    
ve

W Q 
r 1 w K     - e

wF

w

i
aw"+    — ck     i      ; 

l
i       

e, +   `" '°' ;, Q c/     i      ..    ti a   '

s'  
ya` ta r   5           I   ,„',   a

F' 

fi, 

f' W U I     _  n.  .    
i.     __     -. 

o

z*       ,:+  s `    
r a

p     ` i q
i    "  ! f      .  t'.`  

O Q F `.    q_ i           
5 x

rI A  
N'

4 AY
F: ISL

x

Z      '      a    

i        'y`

it       .      W     `       ..      
f.4 I a

E
s

Y       ..  
T

h   

d  
y.       

t.

o

Q i
z

s; R f ,.       LV t   .,     
I I p

o

a 1 F   ., w'   "''"

M"'

7 Q OTF_.     _     
x,           

W

7        (   F         ti Q   h'.Iy,    C! F .`

q             E- , i     ' -      ,     \         w4 w
I `      

r.,"     

t.:      , :.    '. .  ,   ..,
s   ?'*   `     :        

t I r f   

j    ...._..    i

r er1} , 
t• i, r{  .

l

F

K. a= i ir i lt '       t p° ytf    f1 ' J -  
t,,   i-, fV t i V V:   r      ?     ,   U

t    

Fv      1
1       

k

a!y
l j       +-     _

T          

I    '' '     _      
ti e.        

TLL*'

1 t,      
a 4 ' ; ! '

l        
rl` r---<

z      ' It
E..  . J-.   

m
i\      

I
t

j,

R   .      

a`       

v'`.,.

rd '`.,     
a f.

r  t

r_    ( t      
1  a

F    
a,  

z
o

w
h S1F lt,       !      ,-

s x       
a a,.      ;   '' l        ¢   c a J,,h'  i'     ..,,, °+

a.      '' 

i

r   rt. Q
a         

o o 7,_-.----.----F ' 
r ry.,. N s

k f
x,  

Q t'. t4
j    

7

Z W O y
ax r    

f
j

n f- r$

k.  L i n= 9if'
t,7̂  Q2 > Cn

r//   

f;:
f j

s,C r  '  
Q Q  . f ),_ 

a,     

w o
r       ,/.   7     +  

a.
r'   '  ti       r'     {                  e

G"" l Y t. "
n       

C( n      Y/       t
w a. p   " a»    is       

3 S•  '     T„`       O   ,   
n p  '  `,, s'`„       

w r rrl
x. j  

a"       ,   Mi I.       I

m   '        F     `•-     f'     ;    
N

Q
s 4 ,

p

C3      
y' fiytit a;  r    

frr 9i Q Y,  r ' l  ,,-       u
l^ Q o r;  ,: i'  

r

f:      c    `- Q
u  - _` `.   

a  ,..  

i i   ' ',° t r`

f'   ' ,     
w w                

F y',    ``
U p i u 7.

c,  a`  gg
r

ru r

d
w

K ao      _ O Q     .       
x C.     ,   j  s,  + -"   h    

t' I
1`,'`  C7 Q Z W

t +'.      

i" r"

x`"' `    

a ' r':-+       '
I

F,' j% Z a w
k

t  '       . , 

t s .,      .,    

Q
p 4'    x r  

9 2'      O Z W H
s

i c    1'
yq   *,,`          Pd

F    t T . l
d„ W

d w      nY,    Z w  
r:',"„:-;  ;'    ' '    

a   a,' r,  `   

a,"'          
o    w

t
R t. . Z  

QO Q a F-
o z

Q  ¢
H wZ o O    C7Q

z cn

6'

s, 
c    

r  . ;,     z    Q a
p   y z r>

o      n o
i U

w    . j`  1 f{. 
W          

Q

I ,;  Y

A ,  
a

0 d' ;° Yn   r.*: J    m Z m 2
a tr,       m a w a o

Z 
Z Q    

W

i c a      a
w a H cn        w

ae. k a    ¢
r          n,  n 1      a    a  ?  Nx   ,       r

a c s

r

t  

k ,- 

x
Sa     ?  

y,,.:`    .,     
rz

r      

1

w   . 

J

2w" W."'
t` t'    q'  k Y 3' t" F`    :. P      ' '      

x:`
Sn'£

4F
4{'+

cQy} 
1

w, N, 3.
T',' , i     .       N`  ''    

r

x
f'      .     

q  e

z
a  r

ryt'   r . Pr„

Re a'  

402



EXHIBIT " B"

ElVGltrtE£ R1fJG

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST May 4, 2017

INTERIM ROAD CONNECTION- STAGE 2A

GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Unit

Item Description Quantity Unit Price Amount

SITE PREPARATION

1 Mobilization' 1 LS     $     25, 000. 00   $ 22, 750. 00

2 Erosion Control 1 LS     $       2, 500. 00   $  2, 500. 00

Subtotal Site Preparation 25, 250. 00

GRADING

3 Earthwork2 1, 600 CY    $    5. 00   $   8, 000. 00

Subtotal Grading 8, 000. 00

MISCELLANEOUS

4 3" AC ( 6150 LF)       172, 200 SF    $    1. 50   $ 258, 300. 00

5 6" AB ( 6150 LF)       172, 200 SF    $    0. 90   $ 154, 980. 00

6 Conform to Existing 2 LS     $       3, 000. 00   $   6, 000. 00

Subtotal Miscellaneous 419, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $ 452, 530. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 453,000.00

Notes:

1) Mobilization assumed to be 5% of total cost.

2) Earthwork quantity includes 35°/o shrinkage.

v: '"' t r;l GC..°. 4: 4. L 57., tA 3 ai,51` f 3t'}. Yl. E;+. A:"!"';." FF. Ci; 9q5? s  P :.. 3 8'.-,'?'` R r 5+...+" 1 2- e"„>r",.

403



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4055 Village DD

Page 16

EXHIBIT " G"

RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN THE STAGE 2B DEVELOPMENT AREA

404



RIVER ISLANDS PUBLlC FINQNCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHRdP CAI. IFORMIA 95330

T.; ( zoe azs- zsoo

lune 26, 2018

Crl t Gahhardt, Gity En, i eer
Cicy c#' Lathr p
3 0' a' awn C abr D ive

Lat p, Califi mi 95330

Sr bje t: ett r of rsn ee- Gonstructio of Ytiver Islan ls Park va from elj' Qsso

rir to t St ge 2B 3aundary{ Lak side as X} iatrict)— Tract 39 8

his . etter o#' Guaraxttee i i etng zn de i lieu ofa p r#'oKrnanc t nd oK t e con$t ru tior af
unfinished portia s c fEtiver [$lands P rk vay frorn T#ell' 3ssc, D i re ta tl e St ge 2 boundary
witt in the St2 ge 2A dcv lagm nt rea f the Riv r] sl nds development praject( also ttnot+m s
the, ak side Eask r}istri+c). tiv r Islands Public Finaneing Authority kuth arityj i providing
the fur ding f r ubli c itnpro+ rnents ir tbe Stage A deW loprnent area, i y ludin improvements
to R ver sSands a{ It prvvements}. Ik is c ur ur derstandin that a, uarant e for
corist uctian of the River Islar ds' a kway rn,provemen s tku ou h Stage. is requir d . s a

c nditiun rece t u ity ouncil a pru al of the Tra t 3 large lot subdivision rnap
ro os d by Riv r Islands Dcvelo a ent, L. C. Since the 4uth rity is alr ad+ setting asid funds

fc r th full consbnjction of I iver rsjands 1' ar. Ya}, e re providi xg you this Letter afGuarantee
as th reyuir d subdivisian guarantee necessary for the Tract 9 larg lot final rnap.

The engin r' s estimates$ s rQvided by O' D LI Engineeri g far the full c4st of the of Riuer
Yslands Pariny y Cmpravernents from lell' C} so lnve t the ta e B boundar} r is$ 5, 4, 40{},

and tFar th ua inishe portians ( as of lun l, 418 of iuer Ys anc s rl way& om De l' C ssv
D ive t tta tage B baundary is$ 33$, OU( at#ach d as x ibit °À,,,). '' tte. utho ity hereby
agrees to s et a.sid funds in the axnuu t of 50,000, which amount xs qual to 1$ 4° 0 o# t̀1 s
ngin er' s stimst t f th unfinished imprc v m nts, in- i u t f 1 D4 a performan e bond arSd

S4% labor and tnaterisls k vnd. The funds are cUrrently he d, and wiil b set aside, in the
mprovernent` uad stablisk ed ur der the Fjscal rt,, nt A,gxe ment, dated as vfl ece b r 1,
015, b erive n the A.uklta ity ar d 1 Jil nington Trust, Nakxonal Assaciatior, as iscal a, e t, ' e

Joint Cammuni y Fa iliti s Agre ment, dateci as ofN vemher 16, 5, b tween th A.uthority
and the ity allows f r fi nds in the Impruvem t nd to be us d tu pay c4sts of infrastructure
imprt v met ts for kh iver[ sl nds det elopment, includin, Rirrer Islarrds Parkway. !] s

attached tc this. ett r o f Guarant is an exhibit shc ving the poctivn fR.iver Islands Parkway
being u ran eeci by this letter fve y w refeeen e( Exhibit" k3„.

405



G enn ebhardt, Cit n i er

ity af Latlyr— Lett x f ivara ytee far Tract 3 U
tune l, 2 1

A, Z 0

Undcr thc term of this Letter af Gu rantcc, thc Authority shall hQld the fiinds as tated h r in in
the ImproveFnent Fund until Juty $, ZOI, vr until such kim. iver Islands Parkway thrau h

tag 2 is ful}' CO[ 18CNCtG', inspcctt d and accepted int ser3rie e by the ity, t rhichever omes
first,  IFthis pc rtion nf River isl s Parktivay is nat anstruct d, ins ected and ac ept ed i» ta
se vic b} r t} ity by July, ( 1 r d the deadiine is t ente tu ed k y ttt ity in wcitin, n+

l i r th S pt mber 34, ZOl' 1 AuEh+ ity will us ri+ f#h t't 1lo yin tc c ur:

1,       Thc r uthority shall us c th+ funcf s t sid in th Improv+am nt Fund tca onstruct thc
Riu r] 5] ands P'arkwa [ m rovEmcnts. The Auth arity shall uti] i e a suitable contra+ctor
and bid th w rk und er appli bl Iaw. ? he Authority and the City sl} all mutuallp a ee
tv a timeline t4 whsch the r dway will b canstruct, d, ins e. t d and aperational, no ] ater
t an rf y ur Frain the dea line ilot tl a v e.

Tft+ Aut ic rity h ll with+ r w th lurt r im 4h sGt sid4 m+ nie in thc Improv, mr t

F nci anc prQvi i4 suid m snie tU thc City, tv 6c hrlc in a 3e e akcxi e cvunt m intaincci

by thc C' ity, to t e us+ed salcly fQr ct n ru tit n 4r r conshvcti an vf the applicable pvriian
4f Ftiver Islands erkway. ln such event, the+C' ity wili us r$asanable ditig en e tv
omglet th c rnstruction of th l ia r Islunds 1 arkw y. CJntil the cor Ypleti a Fthe f iver

Islands t asktiw d eeturn of siny exce s funds to th Auttyority, th ity will maititai
re orr s a Q the reinv sun t af the fur ds pr i e d t o it attti wi rr vir th 4.utho ity
wittr it car s s t+ . ray sucE ir v stm ri arnin upor wri R n r q st + i' the Autt rity.
Adc iiir n lly, in th e+ ni ih C th itY d is th Auth ri,y in writing thaE th fun s

ruvid4-d tv the ity ar: n k uffiticnt# y all s Fthc cr sts Fth con truciion of the
Riv r Ig) ands Park ray and a vise5 thc Authority a to thc m aun af th 5hvr# f 1I, the
Authvrity wil advance funds tc th e ity fr m the Impravement Fund in th maunt af

the sh rtfail.  In such event, and upon th written request Qf the Autharity, the ity wiil
provid to the uth arity detniled breakd wn af t3 e costs af the canstruction a]

ui7 ini he i p rti n f iv r IsC P rkway tl r+ u tg, e? A.

7t Auth rity$h ll r4 in! h iis, relic n tc+ uh+7 u bc.tws en t G Ew Uptian raut] in d bc7v,

Hc w vr r, if ny River [ slands Parkrv y impr4v tncnts rcmain in ornpl tc on eptamb r 30,

2 1 U, thc Authority shall immedifltsly res rrt to pti+an 2, end shall providc set asid mon is ir
the lrnpr u+ernenc Fund es re u sted by the ity t allow th Citp tv nmplcte th uncompl tcd
imFrot+crri nts.

r, ad titit n, h r, mtt it n nt r t} uth+ rity t s asid th s felttc4s sh tli irrue until tt+
rnpr v ments r+ c c stra t+ v.n ept. y th ity c urt il, and the dvv lc p- r prc vides a

onc} tu maintcn c4 bond i khc am unk uf Z6, 404 t% of thc fiu11 c t of thc

mprov ments), or until th Auth vrity praai 3Gs an ac eptabl rcp lac em nt lett r of uarantee in
that sam amount vf$ 3, 440 to guarantee the yusiity and conc iti n af the fu[ l Improv ments
fi r onc y ar fru th date af acceptance hy the City+CounelL

406



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrap— Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 1 S, 201$

age 3 of 3

As confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Lel#er of Guarantee by the
City, please sign and date this letter as shown on the next page. Should you have any yuestions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at{ 2Q9) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb oniz, Ex tiv irectar

River Islands Pu ic in cing Autharity

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A"; Engineer' s Estimate of full impravemeats from ' Dell Engineering
and Engineer' s Estimate of unfinished improvements from O' Dell

Engineering
Exhibit" B": Lacation of guarantee on River Islands Parkway

cc:      Susan Dell' sso, Ri er Islands Development, LLC

I Accept on Behalfof the City of Lathrop the Terms and Canditions
of the faregoing Letter of Guarantee.

B :   1" V
Y

Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

7 9  /
Date

407



wr3 weaR rsrx

E IGIC EER' S[ 7P' INI? hi C! F pR0$ A9LE CO i'  March s, 2Uiq

RI1 R ISIAND- STA4E 2J1 Job No. 2.`r.5D3{ 1i

R v i ar a Pa wa r

c rr F a cx p. saN Jo ac u w cour rr. c, u oar,

Itgm Wscrlptl an tlwniity Unit Unit Pricf Amaunt

i'I fiET W4RK

1 Fine GradittQ 5 1, 7Sa0i SF    0, 45 5 279. i65. 4Q

S 7', q P ving 7Ea, 8W SF    3, a( 1      1, y48 WAa

3 11" Aggre ale Basa 316. BOb SF   $ 1. 65  $      522, 720, a0

4 i2" Lime Treatm nt 31,$ t)    5F    1. i0        349, 4 O. d0

Vsrtical Curb and Gutlsr ( wtrhAB r,ushionj BQD    . F    iS, OG        14d, QUU.{ DQi

6 Typ F MB i u b W1111 AB Cu,:hfdrtJ 9, 1QU LF    i SB. Ua  $      183.{ jp.pQ

7    # taundabaut Cancnata Z, 40    5F    S. t Q  1, OO. Od

B   oncreta 5ldewalk 77, 4Q0 5F   i 01}        Q7, Q4q, pp

9 Hand cap Ramps a    A        2, 3 fl. o  $       54. ppo-

ti4 Survey Monuments 7 @A          3 0. 00 5 2, 10. a9

i1 B rricedss 7 F        1, O, W 5 7, 6 4. 00

12 Yraiflc lgning& Strlpin 4. 71CF    F    $ 5. t1  3 23, 550. 04

i3 bawat r n9 l s J 4.? 14 LF 5 75. 0        353 50. 4

5 btbtsl reetlNerk 9 8,36. U

STi) Rt1A pl„ AI,N
74 Ca1 h Bagins itYpe A krte)   2A EA S 2, iSJ4. 0  57, P b D. 00}

15 15" torm Qr in Pipe 1, 11D LF    34. D 3 37, 74[ I. tIQ

18 18' Stblrn Orain Pip e 2 p LF    d. i Q  7Q, 720. 0f}

17   4" tvrrn arain Pipe 7 Q LF    $ fi5. t1d 5 5d, i'd0. 4tt

1$   5totm[ 7rain 5tub 8 Plu     9 ER        t, a{] DAQ  ' 9, Oda. Qa

SubRotal Sto m Dr$ in 3 165, 1£. UD

SANITAF Y SE4VER

y9 2d' S$ nitary SewQrPGR    50 LF           150. 00 3 7, O. D

2i?   Manh fas 24 LF         4, tH] D, fl  9, oUa,[ D

I Cor nact ta Exisl; rrg anit ry S wer El   S 3, C 1D. fl4   Qoo. DD

Subtatal Sanit r r w er S 1Q,£ U0. 0

1 1ATER SUP' P'LY

22   A1M tef1. M11( rrcfud7r gellay nu-tenerrcea,}  4tJ LF    32. 0 3       ? 3, 5 Q, 00

23 1 fl" Ilater Lme[ rr r udirr e! 1 ea rrfor anct.) 284 lF    $ 4. 04 9 11, 2L7(, Da

24 2fl" 1Nater Line { r'nrlUdtrrQ err eppextenancasf A, 63f    lF    $       117C1_ Od  $      8 J, 04[}. Ob

25 Fire Hydranis 16 EA        +{, OQQ, 40 3 64. 00t1. Dfi

2$   wa ter Service P   EA        2. O. QQ  72. 04U. 4a

27 Water Plug 8 Stub 9 E4 S 1. QQ. Q  $ 9. QQ. DQ

e Gann4ct to Extgd ng Water 1    + 4 S d. C14d. 0U  ' 4. QQ0.

Subtat l Wat r Supply 5 B, 8Q. 8t7

6240 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD SUITE 33Q. PIEASANTON, CA 9d588 • P 925 223. 9340 • F26+3. 571. 2A66

T 1255U. RIwr NlandriPhne 61- Rfrer Islerrb ParkwaylWbrd 3 EzcNICOe! E34mNot201603-06 Rrwr Iqandf Pukw y- SIa9a 7A Coq EWm84 W provarwMa

408



NC.iN# e# itNG

Ft m Desa iP n quantlty Ue lt Un[t Ptic e Arne urrt

RECYC LE. WA' i" R

29   $' Re yc ed taler Fhisrning l. ine finrlud'a gak p Or, rres taes)       8G LF    r 45.{] 0   3, 600. D0

3Q 1' RacydedWater rainLine (;n+ fudrsga e opsnie., a sa 750 LF   55_ Ct g 8,25_ 00

31 iE` Re} eieAWaterLine ( ir udr'n$ e,vappurtanar oesJ d,f50 LF   * 5. L1Q        3 42, 250. t}0

3   Re ycled 4 i r Plug 8 Stub 4 FJt S 1, i7 D. i70 3 4,OQ0. 00

33   onned I r Existing Rec c{eC Watsr 1 E 4 S a, bQO_DO   fl_0

Subtet I RecytC d LNaker 3 3, i 170. Q0

FiDNtP DT,d Bl. E lftl' 14TER

B" hl+ n- Potable WaUSr Line ( indudr gt+N a uatena+ ss1 85t7 L    S 35_QO  ' 00

3   16" t+ on-Potat W tC LinO ( iRcit+ding aN pvrxenancss) s, 680       S 60. 0 3 5 3 1,8Q0. 04
36 Fl 3n- Pflt ble V ater Seruioe 6 LF         2. OQD. QiD S V2. UQa. iO(]

r on- ta e 4 tat r u scua a        , Qaa_o  s oa. a

36   onnect td isling NorrPatat le tNatar 1       $     3. 00fl. 4CM S 3.fl04.d0

Sulstatal Irrigalian Naiter 417, 5a. 4t?

i.AKE F[ I. t, lJN

39 16" ake FiA Line ( i rciu rg ah a,o rwrerrar, ess    d,$ a        ap        q.{ p(}.{ Xy

40 3" Ac raG€ x ine r++ a r a enanoes      824 l. F    $ 4. DD S 19. 284, U
1 Lake Fiq Stub PIu9 3 E   $     1, i1{_ O p 3 OQO.{} Q

42 Connect t Ex sGng Lake II l. ne t    FA        1. t)40. 0  S i. 004.{'+6

Subtatall. aF; e FiU Lirr  3 26 4. 8t1. t} Q

frUBTO AL CC} N TR UGlT4hl COST $    5, 263, a43. fl4

TOIT/ tL UNSTRUCTION COST rwars t t1, OG4}     3, 264, f] QI}. OG

h1 at eS:

1} This e5bim ta dass not inCludO uru yirxa, en in9ering, C 6aring. t rding, emsion antrol, jaic trench, lanascaping.
itriyation, ar slte eE trees,

2 llnil priceS are ba52t1 nn tsdmated cucrenLC4nSttut ion c ast3 nd no ptoui5i an for inflation is irx uded.

6200 S70N'cRiDGE MALL RQAD SUiTE 330 PLEASANTON CA 9d588 • P 925 223. 9340 • F 249 571. 2 i5b

T i25503 Rlver IuandslPhatr Ot• River Ifkndt PirkwayLWbrtl S£ sCMCosI EalknMe1201& 03-08 Rlwr tf idt PaMwiy• SUpe 7A Cal E nb

409



fieNG1NE' Efi1NG

ENGINE R' S BQNO ES7IMATE June 13, 2018

COST TO COMPLETE Job No: 25503- 01

R1VER lSLANDS• STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

CITY OF LA' fHROP, SAN JOAQUIN C UNTY. CALIFORNIA

Item Dsscrippon Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount
RO pi^

1 Sanitary Sewer 8 Water Raising Iron( 95% Comp7eHmaj 7 LS 5 54, 440. 00 5 54, A00. 40
2 Final AC Lift( 90% Campfetian} 1 l5 5 246, 64A. 06 5 246, 604 00

3 Final Signing, Striping& Monument( o% CompletionJ t L5   $    37, 060 00 S 37, OU0 40

TOTAt COST TO COMPI. ETE 5 338, 004. 00

Notes

7) Estimate for caci to complMe based on wntradara cast fp cornpfete summary shest and backup documents! ar Stage 2A River Islands Parkway
dell`Osso Orive to Siage 2N29 Levee) dated June 12, 201 B.

6z 0 SiQt E lDGE fAl. l RuA? SUIT 330. PLE:. SRN' Otd CA 15? . p 9"'
s.

2' 3. 65AQ • r 2G9 577» @a

T 125S0} Rrv r I IaM Why Ot. ft ir r ItianOs pi kwaylWo f A E ceRCaf to CortpleteT2pt0 Db 13 Shpe 7A RtP Bond EaGmat Vmpwartrnp

410



5.~ T—        

4 
F     

r'' ti''  1     ' ti S          
f

f";,   7,,,  
f+'     

ti y

r" fF` jl          4

y       } `  

J  

fr, 
r    "

r      

c.

f./''     
r r.    

1f
r, PAR   

G:'%'  .;       

r,.         ..     
b

t 
y    '

G,.!{ 1 
X,''

f\  ..     IT

t., r r, r CHOi L

t```
r

t  ..

r.  

F IV R 1 LAt a F'AF VIrA'
c,'     

j, ,     ti

yyy j
f

4.    +
L    t

LJVtL V
1

ti

k 1

1 ". f    

V

y/ 

4+  

f jf
t !

f

FAR}       

r

ti I J I !.

a'     

t

c e rr 
RIV R I I. N ARi U' A''

E A

u. a1

411



ATTACHMENT D

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

December 14, 2020

Via Email and Hand Delivery

Old Republic Title Company
1215 W. Center Street, Suite 103

Manteca, CA 95337

Attn:  Lori Richardson

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 4055; Escrow No. 1214021453

Dear Lori:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Stage 2B, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (" RIS28°') and the City of
Lathrop (" Cit}') in connection with the above- referenced escrow (" Escrov'). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the

Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RIS2B as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 31, 2020, at the time
designated in writing by RIS2B, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each a " C/asing'). If the Final Map has not been recorded by June 30, 2021, ORTC will

return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the
following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" Official Records").

B. 1.  One original Final Map for Tract 4055, executed and
acknowledged by the City.

B. 2.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River
Islands Public Services and Facilities).

B. 3.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for Island Reclamation District 2062 Community Facilities District
No.  2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake Maintenance Services).

B. 4.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities
District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services).

B. 5.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities
District No. 2020- 1 ( Stage 2B Public Improvements).

1

412



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

The documents listed in Items B. 1, B. 2, B. 3, B. 4 and B. 5 above are referred to as the

Recordation Documents." The Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order

referred to above.  The date on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the

Official Records is the Recordation Date.

Prior to recording the Recordation Documents, please confirm that you have received
copies or originals of the following documents:  ( i) Unanimous Approval of Annexation to

a Community Facilities District and Related Matters, City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities); ( ii) Consent to, and

Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to the River Islands Public Financing
Authority Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services);
iii) Consent to, and Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to Island Reclamation

District No. 2062 Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake
Maintenance); and ( iv) Consent to, and Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to
the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No. 2020- 1
River Islands Supplemental). The original City of Lathrop Unanimous Approval must be

delivered to the City of Lathrop.  The original Consents and Ballots for River Islands
Public Financing Authority CFD Nos. 2013- 1 and 2020- 1 and Island Reclamation District
No. 2013- 1 must be delivered to Jeanne Zolezzi at Herum\ Crabtree\ Suntag, 5757 Pacific
Ave., Suite 222, Stockton, CA 95207.  Copies should be sent via email to Cari James

James@ci. lathrop.ca. us), Cindy Yan at Goodwin Consulting Group,
cindy@goodwinconsulting„qroup. net, Susan Dell' Osso (sdellosso@riverislands.com) and
Debbie Belmar ( dbelmar@ riverislands. com) together with conformed copies of the

amendments to notices of special tax that are recorded as part of the Recordation
Documents.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RIS2B, prior to the recordation of the
Recordation Documents, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RIS2B and City (" Settlement Statemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and

other amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other

amounts are the sole responsibility of RIS2B.

Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are as follows:  The amount of $ 49, 171. 39, payable to the
City pursuant to that certain Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at
Lathrop ( as amended " Sierra C/ub Agreemenf'), constituting the amount of $ 3, 277. 00
multiplied by 15. 005 acres ( or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be
transferred to the City upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City' s wire instructions
are set forth below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " C/osing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time(s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: ( a) Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellosso@riverslands. com); ( b) Debbie Belmar

2

413



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

dbelmar@riverislands. com); ( c) Stephen Salvatore ( ssalvatore@ci. lathrop. ca. us);

d) Salvador Navarrete ( snavarrete@ci. lathrop. ca. us; ( e) Cari James

ciames@ci. lathrop. ca. us) and ( f) Glenn Gebhardt ( qgebhardt@ci. lathrop. ca. us), and

have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore
or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is accurate and acceptable;

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions;

D. 3. The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached;

D. 4 You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents, as
designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete

the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions;

D. S. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above; and

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation

Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded;

E. 2.  Record the Final Map and the Recordation Documents in the
Official Records;

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction;

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RIS2B that are not
disbursed at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the
following entity and address:

River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov. org) of the completion of the Transaction;

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to: ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Stage 2B, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330; and
2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,

Lathrop, CA 95330:

3

414



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

A)   a certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)   a certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Susan Dell' Osso

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RIS2B and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed
in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.  The undersigned represents and

warrants to RIS2B and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

415



Quint& Thimmig LLP 8/ 22/ 16

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

AFTER RECORDATION RETURN TO:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Recorded for the benefit of the City of Lathrop
pursuant to Government Code Section 27383

SIXTEENTH AMENDMENT TO NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1

River Islands Public Services and Facilities)

Annexation No. 16

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 3117. 5 of the Streets and Highways Code of

California and the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Section 53311, et.
seq., of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the undersigned City Clerk of the City of
Lathrop( the" City"), County of San Joaquin, State of California, hereby gives notice that a lien to
secure payment of a special tax is hereby imposed by the City Council of the City on the property
described in Exhibit A hereto. The special tax secured by this lien is authorized to be levied for
the purpose of paying principal and interest on bonds, the proceeds of which are being used to
finance the acquisition and construction of all or a portion of the public facilities authorized to be
funded by the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public
Services and Facilities) ( the " CFD"), and to pay costs of the public services and facilities
authorized to be funded by the CFD, both as described in Exhibit A to the Notice of Special Tax
Lien heretofore recorded in the Office of the County Recorder for the County of San Joaquin, State
of California ( the" County Recorder") on November 18, 2013 as Document No. 2013- 143754 ( the

Original Notice"), and said special tax is to be levied according to the Rate and Method of
Apportionment of Special Tax set forth in Exhibit B to the Notice of Special Tax Lien, to which

recorded Notice of Special Tax Lien reference is hereby made and the provisions of which are
hereby incorporated herein in full by this reference.  An Amended Notice of Special Tax Lien

reflecting the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax was subsequently
recorded at the County Recorder on October 23, 2015 as Document No. 2015- 127760 ( the
Amended Notice').

This Sixteenth Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien amends the Notice of Special Tax

Lien to add to the territory within the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1
River Islands Public Services and Facilities) certain real property identified in Exhibit A hereto
the " Property") and shown within the future annexation area on the boundary map of the

community facilities district recorded on June 1, 2013, in Book 6 of Maps of Assessment and
Community Facilities Districts at Page 42 ( Document No. 2013- 13663, in the Office of the

18016. 00: RIPFA: J14223

416



County Recorder, which map is the final boundary map of the community facilities district. The
Property is being annexed into Tax Zone 1 of the community facilities district, as described in the
Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax attached as Exhibit A

to the Amended Notice, with the maximum special tax rates identified in Exhibit B hereto.

The assessor' s tax parcel( s) numbers of all parcels or any portion thereof which are
included in this Sixteenth Amendment to Noiice of Special Tax Lien, together with the name( s)

of the owner( s) thereof, as they appear on the latest secured assessment roll as of the date of
recording hereof or as are otherwise known to the Authority are as set forth in Exhibit A hereto
which is by this reference made a part hereof.

For further information concerning the current and estimated future tax liability of owners
or purchasers of real property or interests therein subject to the special tax lien, interested persons
should contact the Finance Director, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, California
95330; Telephone: ( 209) 941- 7327.

Dated:    2020.

By:
City Clerk,

City of Lathrop

2-

417



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES)

ANNEXATION NO. 16

ASSESSOR' S PARCEL NUMBER( S) AND OWNER( S) OF LAND

WITHIN ANNEXATION NO. 16 TO CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNIT' Y FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES)

San Joaquin County
Name(s) of Property Owner( s)       Assessor' s Parcel No.

RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2B, LLC 213- 470- 02

73 W. STEWART RD.,

LATHROP, CA 95330

A- 1

418



EXHIBIT B

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES)

ANNEXATION NO. 16

MAXIMUM SERVICES SPECIAL TAX FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Services Special Tax for Developed Property
within Tax Zone 1, both before and after the Trigger Event:

Maximum Services Maximum Services

Special Tax in Tax Special Tax in Tax

Zone 1 Prior to the Zone 1 After the

Trigger Event Trigger Event

Fiscal Year 2013-      ( Fiscal Year 2013-

T e of Pro er Lot Size 14)*       14)*

Residential Propert

Single Family Detached Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt   $ 328. 74 per SFD Lot   $ 155. 91 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt      $ 265. 42 per SFD Lot   $ 125. 88 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt      $ 243. 51 per SFD Lot   $ 115. 49 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt      $ 206. 98 per SFD Lot    $ 98. 16 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property Less Than 4, 000 SqFt     $ 192. 37 per SFD Lot    $ 91. 23 per SFD Lot
Single Family Attached Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit 0. 00 per Unit
Multi- Famil Pro ert Not A licable 0. 00 er Unit 0. 00 er Unit

0. 00 per Non-  0. 00 per Non-
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Residential Square Residential Square

Foot Foot

On July 1, 2014, and on each July 1 thereafter, all figures shown in the table above shall be increased by
the Escalation Factor.

B- 1

419



MAXIMUM FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Developed Property
within Tax Zone 1, both before and after the Trigger Event:

Maximum Maximum

Facilities Special Facilities Special

Tax in Tax Zone 1 Tax in Tax Zone 1

Prior to the Trigger After the Trigger

Event( Fiscal Year Event( Fiscal Year

T e of Pro er Lot Size 2013- 14)* 2013- 14)*

Residential Propert

Single Family Detached Property Greater than 7,000 SqFt    $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 172. 83 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt       $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 139. 54 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt       $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 128. 02 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt       $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 108.82 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property Less Than 4, 000 SqFt      $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 101. 14 per SFD Lot
Single Family Attached Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit 0. 00 per Unit
Multi- Famil Pro ert Not A licable 0. 00 er Unit 0. 00 er Unit

0. 00 per Non-  0. 00 per Non-
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Residential Square Residential Square

Foot Foot

On July 1, 2014, and on each july 1 thereafter until the first Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event, allfigures
shown in the table above shall be increased by the Escalation Factor. On July 1 of the first Fiscal Year
after the Trigger Event, and on each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Faci lities Specia l Taxes shall increase
by two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year.

B- 2

420



UNANIMOUS APPROVAL

of Annexation to a Community Facilities District
and Related Matters

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1
River Islands Public Services and Facilities)

To the Honorable City Council,
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Members of the City Council:

This constitutes the Unanimous Approval ( the " Unanimous A proval") of River Islands

Stage 2B, LLC, the record owner( s) ( the " Property Owner") of the fee title to the real property
identified below ( the " Property") contemplated by Section 53339. 3 et seq. of the Mello- Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended ( the " Act") to annexation of the Property to the
City of Lathrop, Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and

Facilities)" ( the " CFD"), and it states as follows:

1.       Property Owner. This Unanimous Approval is submitted by the Property Owner
as the record owner( s) of fee title to the Property. The Property Owner has supplied to the City
current evidence of its ownership of fee title to the Property.

2.       Approval of Annexation. This Unanimous Approval constitutes the unanimous

approval and unanimous vote by the Property Owner in favor of the annexation of the Property to
the CFD. The CFD was formed to finance the municipal services and facilities ( the " Services and
Facilities") described in Exhibit A hereto and made a part hereof.

3.       Approval of Special Tax and the Facilities and Services. This Unanimous

Approval constitutes the unanimous approval and unanimous vote by the Property Owner in favor
of the levy of special taxes ( the " Special Taxes") on the Property to finance the Services and
Facilities, according to the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes for the
CFD attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof( the " Rate and Method"). Exhibit B

includes the cost estimate for the Facilities and Services. The Property is being annexed into Tax
Zone 1 of the CFD with the maximum special tax rates identified in Exhibit C hereto. The City
will create a special account into which the Special Taxes will be deposited, when collected. The

City will prepare the annual report required by Government Code Section 50075. 3.

4.       Approval of the Appropriations Limit. This Unanimous Approval constitutes the

unanimous approval and unanimous vote by the Property Owner in favor of the appropriations
limit established for the CFD.

B- 1

421



5.       Waivers and Vote. The Property Owner hereby confirms that this Unanimous
Approval constitutes its approval and unanimous vote as described herein and as contemplated by
Section 533393 et seq. of the Act and Article XIIIA of the California Constitution. The Property
Owner hereby waives all other rights with respect to the annexation of the Property, the levy of
the Special Taxes on the Property and the other matters covered in this Unanimous Approval.

6.       Recordation of Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien. The Notice of Special

Tax Lien for the CFD was recorded in the Office of the County Recorder of the County of San
Joaquin, State of California on November 18, 2013, as Document No. 2013- 143754 in the Office

of the County Recorder of the County of San Joaquin, and amended as referred to in the Amended
Notice of Special Tax Lien recorded on October 23, 2015 as Document No. 2015- 127760. The

Property Owner hereby authorizes and directs the City Clerk to execute and cause to be recorded
in the office of the County Recorder of the County of San Joaquin an amendment to the Notice of
Special Tax Lien for the CFD as required by Section 3117. 5 of the California Streets and Highways
Code. The amendment to the Notice of Special Tax Lien shall include the Rate and Method as an
exhibit thereto.

7.       Authority Warranted.  The Property Owner warrants to the City that the
presentation of this Unanimous Approval, any votes, consents or waivers contained herein, and
other actions mandated by the City for the annexation of the Property to the CFD shall not
constitute or be construed as events of default or delinquencies under any existing or proposed
financing documents entered into or to be entered into by the Property Owner for the Property,
including any " due- on- encumbrance" clauses under any existing security instruments secured by
the Property.

8.       Due Diligence and Disclosures. The Property Owner agrees to cooperate with the
City and its attorneys and consultants and to provide all information and disclosures required by
the City about the Special Taxes to purchasers of the Property or any part of it.

9.       Agreements. The Property Owner further agrees to execute such additional or
supplemental agreements as may be required by the City to provide for any of the actions and
conditions described in this Unanimous Approval, including any cash deposit required to pay for
the City' s costs in annexing the Property to the CFD.

10.      The Property. The Property is identified as follows:

Assessor' s Parcel No. 2l 3- 470- 02

Property Address: N/ A

B- 2

422



By executing this Unanimous Approval, the Property Owner agrees to all of the above.

Tax Zone #: 1

Property Owner

RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2B, LLC

a Delaware limited liability company

By:
Name:  Susan Dell' Osso

Title: President

Notice Address:

River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

73 W. Stewart Rd.,

Lathrop, CA 95330

Attach acknowledgment)

B- 3

423



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1
River Islands Public Services and Facilities)

DESCRIPTION OF AUTHORIZED SERVICES AND FACILITIES

Services

The services to be funded, in whole or in part, by the community facilities district ( CFD)
include all direct and incidental costs related to providing public services and maintenance of
public infrastructure within the River Islands area including the area initially included in
the CFD, as well as any future annexation area of the CFD and areas adjacent to the
foregoing. More specifically, the services shall include, but not be limited to: ( i) police
protection services, including City contracts with the San Joaquin Sheriff' s Office or other
police services providers, or costs of a City police department if and when one is established,
ii) maintenance of open space, including trails and habitat areas, with services to include,

but not be limited to, irrigation and vegetation control; ( iii) maintenance of roads and

roadways, with services to include, but not be limited to, regularly scheduled street
sweeping, repair of public streets, striping of streets and repair and repainting of sound walls
and other appurtenances; ( iv) storm protection services, including, but not limited to, the
operation and maintenance of storm drainage systems, ( v) landscaping in public areas and
in the public right of way along public streets, including, but not limited to, irrigation, tree
trimming and vegetation maintenance and control; and ( vi) any other public services
authorized to be funded under Section 53313 of the California Government Code that are

not already funded by another community facilities district on the property within the CFD.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the services described in the preceding
paragraph: obtaining, constructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment,
apparatus or facilities related to providing the services and/ or eyuipment, apparatus,
facilities or fixtures in areas to be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel
necessary or convenient to provide the services, payment of insurance costs and other related
expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements and for the future

provision of services. The services to be financed by the CFD are in addition to those
provided in the territory of the CFD before the date of formation of the CFD and will not
supplant services already available within that territory when the District is created.

Facilities

The CFD may also fund all or any portion of the costs of the following facilities to be located
within or in the vicinity of the CFD:

Roadway and related improvements, including, but not limited to, construction of the
roadways currently identified on Vesting Tentative Map No. 3694 as Stewart Road, Golden
Valley Parkway, South River Islands Parkway, North River Islands Parkway, Broad Street,
Commercial Street, J8 Street, BS Street, B6 Street and C1 Street, as well as other backbone and

A- 1

424



arterial streets, including, but not limited to, grading,  fill, pavement section, curb gutter and
sidewalk, joint trench, water, sewer, reclaimed water, storm drainage, and other utility
improvements necessary for, or incidental to, road construction. Roadway improvements
may also include landscaping, street lights and signage, and traffic signals and striping.

Bradshaw' s Crossing Bridge improvements, including, but not limited to, design, construction,
utility connections, mitigationpayments, right- of-way acquisition, and other improvements
required for, or incidental to, construction of the bridge.

Water infrastructure, including, but not limited to, tanks, pump stations, distribution lines, and
other improvements necessary for, or incidental to, the delivery of potable or reclaimed
water.

Sewer infrastructure, including, but not limited to, treatment facilities, sanitary sewer
collection lines and force mains, effluent holding and storage, pump stations, lift stations, and
other improvements necessary for, or incidental to, the delivery of sanitary sewer service.

Public landscaping and recreational features along rivers, lakes, within parks, and along and
including pathways.

Offsite public infrastructure, including, but not limited to, the extension of sanitary sewer lines
and payment of license fees ( e. g., to Caltrans or UPRR) and any other incidental fees or
exactions.

The facilities authorized to be funded by the CFD shall include the costs of design,
engineering, surveys, reports, environmental mitigation, soils testing, permits, plan check,
inspection fees, impact fees, insurance, construction management, and any other costs or
appurtenances related to any of the foregoing.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses to be funded by the CFD include the direct and indirect
expenses incurred by the City of Lathrop( City) in carrying out its duties with respect to the
CFD including, but not limited to, the levy and collection of the special taxes, the fees and
expenses of attorneys, any fees of the County of San Joaquin related to the CFD or the
collection of special taxes, an allocable share of the salaries of any City staff directly related
thereto and a proportionate amount of the City' s general administrative overhead related
thereto, any amounts paid by the City from its general fund with respect to the CFD or the
services authorized to be financed by the CFD, and expenses incurred by the City in undertaking
action to foreclose on properties for which the payment of special taxes is delinquent, and all
other costs and expenses of the City in any way related to the CFD.

A- 2

425



Other

The incidental expenses that may be funded by the CFD include, in addition to the
administrative expenses identified above, the payment or reimbursement to the CFD of all
costs associated with the establishment and ongoing administration of the CFD.

A- 3

426



EXHIBIT B

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACIL TIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES)

AMENDED RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

Special Taxes applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in the City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities) shall be levied and collected

according to the tax liability determined by the City or its designee, through the application of the
appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described below.  All of the property in the
CFD, unless exempted by law or by the provisions of Section F below, shall be taxed for the
purposes, to the extent, and in the manner herein provided, including property subsequently
annexed to the CFD unless a separate rate and method of apportionment of Special Tax is adopted

for the annexation area.

A.      DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second
unit) that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit.

Act" means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following:  expenses of the City in carrying
out its duties with respect to the CFD, including, but not limited to, the levy and collection of
Special Taxes, the fees and expenses of its legal counsel, costs related to annexing property into
the CFD, charges levied by the County in connection with the levy and collection of Special Taxes,
costs related to property owner inquiries regarding the Special Taxes, costs associated with appeals
or requests for interpretation associated with the Special Taxes and this Amended RMA, costs

associated with foreclosure and collection of delinquent Special Taxes and all other costs and

expenses of the City and County in any way related to the establishment or administration of the
CFD.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the City to administer the Special Taxes
according to this Amended RMA.

Amended RMA" means this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

Assessor' s Parcel" or" Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown on a County Assessor' s Parcel map
with an assigned County Assessor' s Parcel number.

B- t

427



Authorized Facilities" means the public facilities authorized to be financed, in whole or in part,
by Facilities Special Taxes collected within the CFD, pursuant to the documents adopted by the
City Council at CFD Formation.

Authorized Services" means those services that are authorized to be funded by Services Special
Taxes collected within the CFD, pursuant to the documents adopted by the City Council at CFD
Formation.

CFD" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public
Services and Facilities).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation to form CFD No. 2013-

1 was adopted by the City Council.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, the following:

for Single Family Detached Property, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
Final Map was recorded on or prior to June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year

for Multi-Family Property and Single Family Attached Property, all Parcels of
Taxable Property for which a building permit for new construction of a residential
structure was issued on or prior to June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year

for Non-Residential Property, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a building
permit for new construction of a structure was issued on or prior to June 30 of the
preceding Fiscal Year.

Development Agreement" means the 2003 Amended and Restated Development Agreement

dated February 4, 2003 and recorded on March 31, 2003 in the San Joaquin County Recorder' s
Office as Document No. 2003- 069319, as has been amended and as may be amended in the future.

Escalation Factor" means, in any Fiscal Year, the lesser of( i) the increase from the prior Fiscal
Year, if any, in the Local Consumer Price Index ( CPI) for the San Francisco- Oakland- San Jose
Area for All Urban Consumers, or( ii) four percent( 4%). The CPI used shall be as determined by
the Bureau of Labor Statistics from April to April beginning with the period from April 2013 to
Apri12014.

Facilities Special Tax" means a special tax levied in any Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event has
taken place to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means the amount necessary in any Fiscal Year after the
Trigger Event to pay the costs of Authorized Facilities to be funded directly from Facilities Special
Tax proceeds.

B- 2

428



Final Map" means a final map, or portion thereof, approved by the City and recorded by the
County pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq)
that creates SFD Lots.  The term " Final Map" shall not include any large lot subdivision map,
Assessor' s Parcel Map, or subdivision map or portion thereof, that does not create SFD Lots,
including Assessor' s Parcels that are designated as remainder parcels.

Fiscal Review Process" means the River Islands Annual Fiscal Review Process, which is

required pursuant to the Development Agreement, and which process is described in detail in
Exhibit B of the Development Agreement.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Facilities Special Tax that can
be levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event, as determined in accordance with
Section C. 2 below.

Maximum Services Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Services Special Tax that can
be levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal Year, as determined in accordance with Section C. 1 below.

Maximum Special Taxes" means, collectively, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax and the
Maximum Services Special Tax that can be levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal Year.

Multi- Family Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building permit or use permit has been issued or is expected to be issued for construction of a
residential structure with five or more Units that share a single Assessor' s Parcel number, are

offered for rent to the general public, and cannot be purchased by individual homebuyers.

Non- Residential Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building permit was or is expected to be issued for an office, commercial, retail, industrial or
mixed- use building, as determined by the City.

Non-Residential Square Footage" means the net leasable square footage used by or designated
for non- residential uses within a building as reflected on the condominium plan, site plan, building
permit for new construction, or other such document. If a structure on a Parcel ofNon- Residential
Property includes Units, such Units shall be categorized and taxed as Residential Property, and the
square footage of such Units shall not be counted as Non-Residential Square Footage for purposes
of determining the Maximum Special Taxes pursuant to Section C below.

Proportionately" means that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied in any Fiscal Year to the
Maximum Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal Year is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels

of Developed Property.

B- 3

429



Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of the CFD that is owned by or
irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California, County, City, or
other local governments or public agencies.

Residential Property" means, collectively, Single Family Detached Property, Single Family
Attached Property, and Multi- Family Property.   If a building includes both Units and Non-
Residential Square Footage, the Units within the building shall be categorized as Residential
Property for purposes of this Amended RMA.

Services Special Tax" means a special tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Services Special
Tax Requirement.

Services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of revenue needed in any Fiscal Year to
pay for: ( i) Authorized Services, ( ii) Administrative Expenses, and ( iii) amounts needed to cure

any delinquencies in the payment of Services Special Taxes which have occurred or ( based on
delinquency rates in prior years) may be expected to occur in the Fiscal Year in which the tax will
be collected. In any Fiscal Year, the Services Special Tax Requirement shall be reduced by surplus
amounts available ( as determined by the City) from the levy of the Services Special Tax in prior
Fiscal Years, including revenues from the collection of delinquent Services Special Taxes and
associated penalties and interest.

SFD Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded Final Map,
on which a building permit was or is permitted to be issued for construction of a single family
detached unit without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision of the lot

is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map.

Single Family Attached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property
for which a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a residential
structure consisting of two or more Units that share common walls, have separate Assessor' s Parcel
numbers assigned to them ( except for a duplex unit, which may share an Assessor' s Parcel with
another duplex unit), and may be purchased by individual homebuyers ( which shall still be the
case even if the Units are purchased and subsequently offered for rent by the owner of the unit),
including such residential structures that meet the statutory definition of a condominium contained
in Civil Code Section 1351.

Single Family Detached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property
for which a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a Unit that does not
share a common wall with another Unit.  An Accessory Unit that shares a Parcel with a single-
family detached unit shall not be considered a separate Unit for purposes of this Amended RMA.

Special Taxes" means, collectively, the Facilities Special Tax and the Services Special Tax.

Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor' s Parcels within the boundaries of the CFD which
are not exempt from the Special Taxes pursuant to law or Section F below.

Tax Zone" means a mutually exclusive geographic area within which Special Taxes may be
levied pursuant to this Amended RMA. All of the property within CFD No. 2013- 1 at the time
of CFD Formation is within Taac Zone 1.  Additional Tax Zones may be created when property

B- 4

430



is annexed to the CFD, and separate Maximum Special Taxes shall be identified for property within
the new Tax Zone at the time of such annexation.  The Assessor' s Parcels included within a new

Tax Zone established when such Parcels are annexed to the CFD shall be identified by Assessor' s
Parcel number in the Unanimous Approval Form that is signed by the owner( s) of the Parcels at
the time of annexation.

Unanimous Approval Form" means that form executed by the record owner of fee title to a
Parcel or Parcels annexed into the CFD that constitutes the property owner' s approval and
unanimous vote in favor of annexing into the CFD and the levy of Special Taxes against his/ her
Parcel or Parcels pursuant to this Amended RMA.

Trigger Event" will be deemed to have occurred in any Fiscal Year if, on or before June 30 of
the prior Fiscal Year, the City has made a finding that, for the third year in a row, the Fiscal Review
Process has demonstrated that fiscal surpluses will be generated to the City' s general fund from
development within the River Islands Master Plan area, and, as part of the Fiscal Review Process
in each of the prior three years, the Services Special Tax revenue factored into the fiscal analysis
was based on the Services Special Tax being levied at only 47. 43% of the Maximum Services

Special Tax that could have been levied in each of those three years.  Once the Trigger Event has
occurred, the reduced Services Special Taxes and the Facilities Special Taxes determined pursuant
to Sections C. l and C. 2 shall be the applicable Maximum Special Taxes in all future Fiscal Years

regardless of the results of future Fiscal Review Processes.

Unit" means a single family detached unit or an individual unit within a duplex, triplex, halfplex,
fourplex, condominium, townhome, live/ work, or apartment structure.

B.       DATA FOR ADMINISTRATION OF SPECIAL TAXES

On or about July 1 of each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall identify the current Assessor' s
Parcel numbers for all Parcels of Developed Property within the CFD.  The Administrator shall

also determine: ( i) within which Tax Zone each Parcel is located; ( ii) which Parcels of Developed

Property are Residential Property and Non- Residential Property; ( ii) the Non- Residential Square

Footage of buildings on each Parcel of Non- Residential Property; ( iii) for Single Family Detached
Property, the square footage of each SFD Lot,( iv) by reference to the condominium plan, site plan,
or other document, the number of Units on each Parcel of Single Family Attached Property and
Multi- Family Property; ( v) whether the Trigger Event has occurred; and ( vi) the Services Special

Tax Requirement and, if the Trigger Event has occurred, the Facilities Special Tax Reyuirement

for the Fiscal Year.  To determine the square footage of each Parcel of Single Family Detached
Property, the Administrator shall reference Assessor' s Parcel Maps or, if the square footage is not
yet designated on such maps, the small lot subdivision map recorded to create the individual lots.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is determined that: ( i) a parcel map for property in the CFD was recorded
after January 1 of the prior Fiscal Year ( or any other date after which the Assessor will not
incorporate the newly- created parcels into the then current tax roll), ( ii) because of the date the

parcel map was recorded, the Assessor does not yet recognize the new parcels created by the parcel
map, and ( iii) a building permit was issued on or prior to June 30 of the prior Fiscal Year for
development on one or more of the newly- created parcels, the Administrator shall calculate the

B- 5

431



Special Taxes for Units and/ or Non-Residential Syuare Footage within the subdivided area and

levy such Special Taxes on the master Parcel that was subdivided by recordation of the parcel map.

C.       MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

1.       Services Special Tax, Tax Zone 1

Table 1 below identifies the Maximum Services Special Tax for Developed Property within Tax
Zone 1, both before and after the Trigger Event; a different Maximum Services Special Tax may
be identified for property that annexes into the CFD and is part of a separate Tax Zone.

TABLE 1

Maximum Services Special Tax

Tax Zone 1

Maximum Services Maximum Services

Special Tax Special Tax

in Tax Zone 1 in Tax Zone 1

Prior to After the

Type of Property
the Trigger Event Trigger Event

Lot Size Fiscal Year 2013- 14 *       Fiscal Year 2013- 14 *

Residential Propertv:

Single Family Detached Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt      $ 328. 74 per SFD Lot 15591 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt 265. 42 per SFD Lot 125. 88 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt 243. 51 per SFD Lot ll5.49 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt 206. 98 per SFD Lot 98. 16 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property Less than 4, 000 SyFt       $ 192. 37 per SFD Lot 91. 23 per SFD Lot
Single Family Attached Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit 0. 00 per Unit
Multi- Famil Pro ert Not A licable 0. 00 er Unit 0. 00 er Unit

0. 00 per 0. 00 per
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Non- Residential Non- Residential

Square Foot Square Foot

On July 1, 20I4 and on each July 1 thereafter, all figures shown in Table I above shall be increased
by the Escalation Factor.

B- 6

432



2.       Facilities Special Tax, Tax Zone 1

Table 2 below identifies the Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Developed Property within Tax
Zone 1 both before and after the Trigger Event; a different Maximum Facilities Special Tax may
be identified for property that annexes into the CFD and is part of a separate Tax Zone.

TABLE 2

Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Tax Zone 1

Maximum Facilities Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Special Tax

in Tax Zone I in Tax Zone I

Prior to Ajter the

Type of Property
the Trigger Event Trigger Event

Lot Size Fiscal Year 2013- 14 *       Fiscal Year 2013- I4 *

Residential Propert

Single Family Detached Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt      $   0. 00 per SFD Lot 172. 83 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot 139. 54 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot 128. 02 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot 108. 82 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property Less than 4, 000 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot 101. 14 per SFD Lot
Single Family Attached Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit 0. 00 per Unit
Multi- Famil Pro e Not A licable 0. 00 er Unit 0. 00 er Unit

0. 00 per 0. 00 per
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Non- Residential Non- Residential

Square Foot Square Foot

x On July 1, 2014 and on each July 1 thereafter until the rst Fiscal Year after the Trigger
Event, all figures shown in Table 2 above shall be increased by the Escalation Factor. On July 1 of
the first Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event, and on each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Facilities
Special Taxes shall increase by two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year.

3.       Maximum Special Taxes for Mixed- Use Buildings

If, in any Fiscal Year, the Administrator determines that a Parcel of Developed Property is built or
proposed to be built with both Units and Non- Residential Square Footage, the Maximum Special
Tax for the Parcel shall be the sum of( i) the aggregate Maximum Special Taxes for all Units on

the Parcel, and ( ii) the Maximum Special Taxes determined for all of the Non- Residential Square

Footage on the Parcel.

B- 7

433



D.       METHOD OF LEVY OF THE SPECIAL TAXES

1.       Services Special Tax

Each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall determine the Services Special Tax Requirement for the

Fiscal Year, and the Services Special Tax shall be levied on each Parcel of Developed Property
within the CFD in the amount of either ( i) the Maximum Services Special Tax, or ( ii) the

Proportionately determined percentage of the Maximum Services Special Tax required to generate
the Services Special Tax Requirement, whichever is less.

2.       Facilities Special Tax

Each Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event, the Administrator shall determine the Facilities Special

Tax Requirement for the Fiscal Year, and the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on each Parcel

of Developed Property within the CFD in the amount of either( i) the Maximum Facilities Special
Tax, or ( ii) the Proportionately determined percentage of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax
required to generate the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, whichever is less.

E.       MANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAXES

The Special Taxes shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad
valorem property taxes, provided, however, that the City may directly bill, collect at a different
time or in a different manner, and/ ar collect delinquent Special Taxes through foreclosure or other

available methods.

The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied for thirty ( 30) Fiscal Years, beginning the first Fiscal
Year after the Trigger Event has taken place.  Under no circumstances may the Facilities Special
Tax on a Parcel in residential use be increased in any Fiscal Year as a consequence of delinquency
or default in payment of the Facilities Special Tax levied on another Parcel or Parcels by more
than ten percent ( 10%) above the amount that would have been levied in that fiscal year had there
never been any such delinquencies or defaults.  The Services Special Tax may be levied and
collected in perpetuity.

F.       EXEMPTIONS

No Special Taxes shall be levied on Public Property or any other Parcels in the CFD that are not
Residential Property or Non- Residential Property, as defined herein.

G.      INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The City may interpret, clarify, and/ or revise this Amended RMA to correct any inconsistency,
vagueness or ambiguity as it relates to the Special Tax rate, the method of apportionment, the
classification of properties or any definition applicable to the CFD, by resolution or ordinance.
The City, upon the request of an owner of land within the CFD which is not Developed Property,
may also amend this Amended RMA in any manner acceptable to the City, by resolution or

B- 8

434



ordinance following a public hearing, upon the affirmative vote of such owner to such amendment
and without the vote of owners of any other land within the CFD, provided such amendment only
affects such owner' s land.

B- 9

435



EXHIBIT C

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNIT'Y FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES)

ANNEXATION N0. 16

MAXIMUM SERVICES SPECIAL TAX FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Services Special Tax for Developed Property
within Tax Zone 1, both before and after the Trigger Event:

Maximum Services Maximum Services

Special Tax in Tax Special Tax in Tax

Zone 1 Prior to the Zone 1 After the

Trigger Event Trigger Event

Fiscal Year 2013-      ( Fiscal Year 2013-

T e of Pro er Lot Size 14)*       14)'

Residential Property_:
Single Family Detached Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt   $ 328. 74 per SFD Lot   $ 155. 91 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 5, 801 to 7,000 SqFt      $ 265. 42 per SFD Lot   $ 125. 88 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt      $ 243. 51 per SFD Lot   $ 115. 49 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt      $ 206. 98 per SFD Lot    $ 98. 16 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property Less Than 4, 000 SqFt     $ 192. 37 per SFD Lot    $ 91. 23 per SFD Lot
Single Family Attached Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit 0. 00 per Unit
Multi- Famil Pro ert Not A licable 0. 00 er Unit 0. 00 er Unit

0. 00 per Non-  0. 00 per Non-
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Residential Square Residential Square

Foot Foot

On July 1, 2014, and on each July 1 thereafter, all figures shown in the table above shall be increased by
the Escalation Factor.

G1

436



MAXIMUM FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Developed Property
within Tax Zone 1, both before and after the Trigger Event:

Maximum Maximum

Facilities Special Facilities Special

Tax in Tax Zone 1 Tax in Tax Zone 1

Prior to the Trigger After the Trigger

Event( Fiscal Year Event( Fiscal Year

T e of Pro er Lot Size 2013- 14)* 2013- 14)*

Residential Propert

Single Family Detached Property Greater than 7,000 SqFt    $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 172. 83 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt       $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 139. 54 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt       $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 128. 02 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt       $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 108. 82 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property Less Than 4, 000 SqFt      $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot     $ 101. 14 per SFD Lot
Single Family Attached Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit 0. 00 per Unit
Multi- Famil Pro ert Not A licable 0. 00 er Unit 0. 00 er Unit

0. 00 per Non-  0. 00 per Non-
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Residential Square Residential Square

Foot Foot

On July 1, 2014, and on each July 1 thereafter until the firstFiscal Year after the Trigger Event, all figures
shown in the table above shall be increased by the Escalation Factor. On July 1 of the first Fiscal Year
after the TriggerEvent, and on each July 1 thereafter, theMaximum Facilities Special Taxes shall increase
by two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the priorFiscal Year.

G2

437



Quint& Tltinunig LLP 8/ 22/ 16

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

AFTER RECORDATION RETURN TO:

Secretary
Island Reclamation District No. 2062

73 West Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330

Recorded for the benefit of Island

Reclamation District No. 2062 pursuant
to Government Code Section 27383

FIFTEENTH AMENDMENT TO NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN

Island Reclamation District No. 2062

Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1
Levee and Lake Maintenance Services)

Annexation No. 15

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 3117. 5 of the Streets and Highways Code of

California and the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Section 53311, et.
seq., of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the undersigned Secretary of Island
Reclamation District No. 2062( the" IRD 2062"), County of San Joaquin, State of California, hereby
gives notice that a lien to secure payment of a special tax is hereby imposed by the Board of
Trustees of IRD 2062 on the property described in Exhibit A hereto.  The special tax secured by
this lien is authorized to be levied for the purpose of paying the costs of services described in
Exhibit A to the Notice of Special Tax Lien heretofore recorded in the Office of the County
Recorder for the County of San Joaquin, State of California ( the " County Recorder") on October

3, 2013 as Document No. 2013- 126695( the" Original Notice"), and said special tax is to be levied

according to the Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax set
forth in that certain First Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien heretofore recorded in the

Office of the County Recorder on September 10, 2014 as Document No. 2014-089987 ( the " First
Amendment"), to which recorded Notice of Special Tax Lien and recorded First Amendment to

Notice of Special Tax Lien reference is hereby made and the provisions of which are hereby
incorporated herein in full by this reference.

This Fifteenth Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien amends the Notice of Special Tax

Lien to add to the territory within Island Reclamation District No. 2062 Community Facilities
District No. 2013-1 ( Levee and Lake Maintenance Services) certain real property identified in
Exhibit A hereto ( the" Property") and shown within the future annexation area on the boundary
map of the community facilities district recorded on August 29, 2013, in Book 6 of Maps of
Assessment and Community Facilities Districts at Page 41 ( Document No. 2013-111318, in the
Office of the County Recorder, which map is the final boundary map of the community facilities
district.  The Property is being annexed into Tax Zone 1 of the community facilities district, as
described in the Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

18016. 00: IRD2062: J14225

438



attached as Exhibit A to the First Amendment, with the maximum special tax rates identified in

Exhibit B hereto.

The assessor' s tax parcel(s) numbers of all parcels or any portion thereof which are
included in this Fifteenth Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien, together with the name( s) of

the owner( s) thereof, as they appear on the latest secured assessment roll as of the date of
recording hereof or as are otherwise known to IRD 2062 are as set forth in Exhibit A hereto which
is by this reference made a part hereof.

For further information concerning the current and estimated future tax liability of owners
or purchasers of real property or interests therein subject to the special tax lien, interested persons
should contact the Treasurer of Island Reclamation District No. 2062, 73 West Stewart Road,

Lathrop, California 95330, telephone number ( 209) 879- 7900.

Dated:    2020.

By:
Susan Dell' Osso, President,

Island Reclamation District No. 2062

2-

439



EXHIBIT A

ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

LEVEE AND LAKE MAINTENANCE SERVICES)

ANNEXATION N0. 15

ASSESSOR' S PARCEL NUMBER( S) AND OWNER( S) OF LAND WITHIN

ANNEXATION NO. 15 TO ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062

COMMUNIT' Y FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

LEVEE AND LAKE MAINTENANCE SERVICES)

San Joaquin County
Name( s) of Property Owner( s)       Assessor' s Parcel No.

RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2B, LLC 213- 470- 02

73 W. STEWART RD.,

LATHROP, CA 95330

A- 1

440



EXHIBIT B

ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

LEVEE AND LAKE MAINTENANCE SERVICES)

ANNEXATION N0. 15

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Special Tax for Taxable Property within Tax
Zone 1 and all Parcels that annex into Tax Zone 1.

TAX ZONE 1

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

Maximum Special Tax

Tjpe ofProperftj Fiscal Year 2013- 14*

Residential Property 81. 00 per SFD Lot or Residential Unit
Non- Residential Property 640. 00 per Acre

Mixed- Use Property See Formula in RMA

Undeveloped Property 736. 00 per Acre

On July 1, 2014, and on each Jul 1 therenfter, tlie Maximum Special
Taxes shozun in Table 1 above shall be increased b the Escalation

Factor.

B- 1

441



CONSENT TO, AND BALLOT IN FAVOR OF, ANNEXATION OF REAL PROPERTY

TO ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO.  2062 COMMUNITY FACILITIES

DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1 ( LEVEE AND LAKE MAINTENANCE SERVICES)

To:     Board of Trustees of Island Reclamation

District No. 2062, in its capacity as the
legislative body for Island Reclamation
District No. 2062 Community Facilities
District No. 2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake

Maintenance Services)

The undersigned hereby states and certifies, under penalty of perjury, as follows:

1.  The undersigned is the owner( the" Owner"), or the legally authorized representative
of the Owner, of fee title to the real property identified by San Joaquin County Assessor' s parcel
number(s) listed below ( the " Property"), and possesses all legal authority necessary to execute
this consent to, and ballot in favor of( the " Consent and Ballot"), the annexation of the Property
to Island Reclamation District No. 2062 Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake
Maintenance Services) ( the" CFD").

2.  The Owner understands that the Board of Trustees of Island Reclamation District No.

2062 ( the " Board") has conducted proceeding pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Act of 1982, as amended( the" Law") to form the CFD to finance various services( the" Services")

described in Exhibit A hereto.   The Owner also understands that the proceedings for the
formation of the CFD authorized the Board to levy an annual special tax ( the " Special Tax") on

property in the CFD as specified in the Amended and Restated Rate and Method of
Apportionment of Special Taxes( the" Rate and Method") for the CFD, a copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit B, and authorized the annexation of property to the CFD, without additional
public hearings, upon approval of the fee title owner of the property to be annexed as permitted
by Section 53339. 7( a) of the Law.

The Owner has been advised that a Notice of Special Tax Lien was recorded against the

real property initially included within the boundaries of the CFD in the Office of the San Joaquin
County Recorder( the" County Recorder") on October 3, 2013 as Document No. 2013- 126695, and

a First Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien was recorded against the real property initially
included within the boundaries of the CFD in the Office of the County Recorder on September
10, 2014 as Document No. 2014- 089987( collectively, the" Notice of Special Tax Lieri').

3.  The Owner hereby irrevocably consents to, approves, and votes ( for purposes of
Article XIIIA of the California Constitution) in favor of the annexation of the Property to Tax Zone
1 of the CFD( as such Tax Zone is described in the Notice of Special Tax Lien, and as the Maximum

Special Tax rates for such Tax Zone 1 are set forth in E chibit C hereto), and irrevocably consents
to, approves and votes in favor of the annual levy of the Special Tax on the Property pursuant to
the Rate and Method to finance the Services.  The Owner acknowledges that the Secretary of
Island Reclamation District No. 2062 will record, or cause to be recorded, against the Property in

B- 1

442



the Office of the County Recorder an amendment to the Notice of Special Tax Lien as required by
Section 3117.5 of the California Streets and Highways Code, which will impose a continuing lien
on the Property to secure each levy of the Special Tax, and that under the Law said lien (a) will
be coequal with the lien for ad valorem real property taxes levied by the County of San Joaquin
on the Property, and (b) will be senior to any lien of any mortgage on the Property whether such
mortgage lien was recorded prior to or after the recordation of the amendment to the Notice of
Special Tax Lien.

4.  The Owner hereby irrevocably waives any right the Owner may otherwise have to
protest or challenge the validity of the proceedings of the Board to form the CFD and to authorize
the annexation of any property  ( including the Property) to the CFD, and any necessity,
requirement or right for further public hearings or any election pertaining to the annexation of
the Property to the CFD or the levy of the Special Tax on the Property.

5.  The Owner hereby agrees to provide written notice of the annexation of the Property
to the CFD, and of the authority of the Board to levy the Special Tax on the Property pursuant to
the Rate and Method, to any subsequent purchaser of the Property to the extent required by
applicable law.

The Property subject to this Consent and The full legal name of the fee title Owner

Ballot, and to be annexed to the CFD, consist of the Property is:
of the following San Joaquin County
Assessor' s Parcel( s):  River Islands Sta e 2B, LLC

213- 470- 02

The foregoing Consent and Ballot is hereby executed on 2020, in

Lathrop, California.

By:
signature)

Susan Dell' Osso

type name of person executing
Consent and Ballot)

Its:   President

insert legal capacity of person
executing Consent and Ballot)

B- 2

443



EXHIBIT A

ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062

COMMUNIT' Y FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

LEVEE AND LAKE MAINTENANCE SERVICES)

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES ELIGIBLE

TO BE FUNDED BY THE DISTRICT

Services:

The services to be funded, in whole or in part, by the community facilities district( the" District")
include all direct and incidental costs related to providing for the maintenance of lakes and levees
within the River Islands area including the area initially included in the District, as well as any
future annexation area of the District and areas adjacent to the foregoing. More specifically, the
services shall include, but not be limited to, the maintenance of:( i) levees in urban and rural areas,

including but not limited to squirrel and rodent abatement, vegetation control and repairs and
renovations; ( ii) lakes and their storm drainage and recreational functions, including but not
limited to maintenance of pumps, intake and outfall structures, aeration systems and vegetation
along lake edge areas; and ( iii) other public services authorized to be funded under Section
53313( e) of the California Government Code. The District may fund any of the following related
to the services described in the preceding sentence: obtaining, constructing, furnishing, operating
and maintaining equipment, apparatus or facilities related to providing the services and/ or
equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to be maintained, paying the salaries and
benefits of personnel necessary or convenient to provide the services, payment of insurance costs
and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements and for the
future provision of services.

The services to be financed by the District are in addition to those provided in the territory of the
District before the date of creation of the District, and will not supplant services already available
within that territory when the District is created.

Administrative Expenses:

The administrative expenses to be funded by the District include the direct and indirect expenses
incurred by Island Reclamation Disirict No. 2062( the" RD") in carrying out its duties with respect
to the District( including, but not limited to, the levy and collection of the special taxes) including
the fees and expenses of attorneys, any fees of the County of San Joaquin related to the District or
the collection of special taxes, an allocable share of the salaries of any RD staff directly related
thereto and a proportionate amount of the RD' s general administrative overhead related thereto,
any amounts paid by the RD from its general fund with respect to the District or the services
authorized to be financed by the District, and expenses incurred by the RD in undertaking action
to foreclose on properties for which the payment of special taxes is delinquent, and all other costs
and expenses of the RD in any way related to the District.

A- 1

444



Other:

The incidental expenses that may be funded by the District include, in addition to the
administrative expenses identified above, the payment or reimbursement to the RD of all costs
associated with the establishment and administration of the District.

A- 2

445



EXHIBIT B

ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2062

COMMUNIT' Y FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

LEVEE AND LAKE MAINTENANCE SERVICES)

AMENDED RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

A Special Tax applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in the Island Reclamation District 2062

Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake Maintenance Services) shall be levied
and collected according to the tax liability determined by the Board of Trustees or its designee,
through the application of the appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described
below.  All of the property in CFD No. 2013- 1, unless exempted by law or by the provisions of
Section E below, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner herein provided,
including property subsequently annexed to the CFD unless a separate rate and method of
apportion of Special Tax is adopted for the annexation area.

A.       DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second
unit) that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit.

Acre" or" Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor' s Parcel as shown on an Assessor' s Parcel

Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map, the land area shown on the
applicable Final Map or other parcel map recorded with the County.

Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: the expenses of RD 2062 in
carrying out its duties with respect to CFD No. 2013- 1 including, but not limited to, levying and
collecting the Special Tax, fees and expenses of legal counsel, charges levied by the County
Auditor' s Office, Tax Collector' s Office, and/ or Treasurer' s Office, costs related to annexing
property into the CFD, costs related to property owner inquiries regarding the Special Tax, and
all other costs and expenses of RD 2062, Lathrop Irrigation District, and the River Islands Public
Financing Authority in any way related to the establishment or administration of the CFD.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by RD 2062 to administer the Special Tax
according to the Amended RMA.

Amended RMA" means this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

Assessor' s Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map with
an assigned Assessor' s Parcel number.

B- 1

446



Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor designating parcels by
Assessor' s Parcel number.

Association Property" means any property within the CFD that is owned by a homeowners
association or property owners association, excluding Association Property under the pad or
footprint of a Residential Unit.

Authorized Services" means the public services authorized to be funded by the CFD as set forth
in the documents adopted by the Board when the CFD was formed.

Board of Trustees" or" Board" means the Board of Trustees of RD 2062.

CFD" or " CFD No. 2013- 1" means the Island Reclamation District 2062 Community Facilities
District No. 2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake Maintenance Services).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation to form CFD No. 2013-

1 was adopted by the Board of Trustees.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, the following:

for Single Family Detached Property, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
Final Map was recorded on or prior to June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year

for Mulii-Family Property and Single Family Attached Property, all Parcels of
Taxable Property for which a building permit for new construction of a residential
structure was issued on or prior to June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year

for Non-Residential Property, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a building
permit for new construction of a structure was issued on or prior to June 30 of the
preceding Fiscal Year.

Escalation Factor" means, in any Fiscal Year, the lesser of( i) the increase from the prior Fiscal
Year, if any, in the Local Consumer Price Index( CPI) for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Area
for All Urban Consumers, or ( ii) four percent( 4%). The CPI used shall be as determined by the
Bureau of Labor Statistics from April to April beginning with the period from Apri12013 to April
2014.

Final Map" means a final map, or portion thereof, recorded by the County pursuant to the
Subdivision Map Act( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) that creates individual
lots on which building permits for new construction may be issued without further subdivision

B- 2

447



and for which no further subdivision is anticipated pursuant to a tentative map approved for the
property or, if no tentative map has been approved, pursuant to a then current specific plan or
other land use plan for the property.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Maximum Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Special Tax that can be levied in any
Fiscal Year determined in accordance with Section C below.

Multi-Family Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building permit or use permit has been issued for construction of a residential structure with five
or more Units that share a single Assessor' s Parcel number, are offered for rent to the general
public, and cannot be purchased by individual homebuyers.

Non-Residential Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which
a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a siructure that will be used
for any non- residential purpose.

Proportionately" means the following: ( i) for Developed Property, the ratio of the actual Special
Tax levied in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal
Year is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property; and( ii) for Undeveloped Property,
the ratio of the actual Special Tax to the Maximum Special Tax is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels

of Undeveloped Property.

Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013- 1 that is owned
by or irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California, County,
City, or other local government or public agency.

RD 2062" means Island Reclamation District 2062.

Residential Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, collectively, Single Family Detached Property,
Single Family Attached Property, and Multi-Family Property. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
a building permit is issued for a structure that includes both Residential Units and non-residential
uses, the Residential Units within the building will be categorized as Residential Property, and a
Special Tax shall be calculated separately for the Residential Units and Non-Residential Property
on the Parcel, as set forth in Section C1.c below.

Residential Unit" means an individual single- family detached unit, an individual residential
unit within a duplex, halfplex,  triplex, fourplex,  townhome,  live/ work or condominium

structure, or an individual apartment unit.

SFD Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded Final Map,
on which a building permit was or is permitted to be issued for construction of a single family
detached unit without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision of the

lot is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map.

B- 3

448



Single Family Attached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Properiy for
which a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a residential structure
consisting of t vo or more Units that share common walls, have separate Assessor' s Parcel
numbers assigned to them( except for a duplex unit, which may share an Assessor' s Parcel with
another duplex unit), and may be purchased by individual homebuyers ( which shall still be the
case even if the Units are purchased and subsequently offered for rent by the owner of the unit),
including such residential structures that meet the statutory definition of a condominium
contained in Civil Code Section 1351.

Single Family Detached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for
which a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a Unit that does not
share a common wall with another Unit.  An Accessory Unit that shares a Parcel with a single-
family detached unit shall not be considered a separate Unit for purposes of this Amended RMA.

Special Tax" means a Special Tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Special Tax Requirement.

Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of revenue needed in any Fiscal Year to pay for
the following: ( i) Authorized Services; ( ii) Administrative Expenses; and ( iii) amounts needed to
cure any delinquencies in the payment of Special Taxes which have occurred or, based on
delinquency rates in prior years, may be expected to occur in the Fiscal Year in which the Special
Tax will be collected.

Taxable Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013- 1 that
are not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to law or Section E below.

Tax Zone" means a mutually exclusive geographic area within which the Special Tax may be
levied pursuant to this Amended RMA. All of the property within CFD No. 2013- 1 at the time of
CFD Formation is within Tax Zone 1.  Additional Tax Zones may be created when property is
annexed to the CFD, and a separate Maximum Special Tax shall be identified for property within
the new Tax Zone at the time of such annexation. The Assessor' s Parcels included within a new

Tax Zone established when such Parcels are annexed to the CFD shall be identified by Assessor' s
Parcel number in the Unanimous Approval Form that is signed by the owner( s) of the Parcels at
the time of annexation.

Unanimous Approval Form' means that form executed by the record owner of fee title to a
Parcel or Parcels annexed into the CFD that constitutes the property owner' s approval and
unanimous vote in favor of annexing into the CFD and the levy of the Special Tax against his/ her
Parcel or Parcels pursuant to this Amended RMA.

Undeveloped Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property in CFD No.
2013- 1 that are not Developed Property.

B.       DATA FOR ANNUAL TAX LEVY

Each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall identify the current Assessor' s Parcel numbers for all
Parcels of Taxable Property within the CFD. The Administrator shall also determine: (i) whether
each Assessor' s Parcel of Taxable Property is Developed Property or Undeveloped Property; ( ii)

B- 4

449



in which Tax Zone each Assessor' s Parcel is located; and ( iii) the Special Tax Requirement for the

then- current Fiscal Year.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is determined that( i) a Final Map for a portion of property in the CFD was
recorded after the last date upon which the Assessor will incorporate the newly- created Parcels
into the then current tax roll, and( ii) because of the date the Final Map was recorded, the Assessor
does not yet recognize the new Parcels created by the Final Map, the Administrator shall calculate
the Special Tax for the property affected by recordation of the Final Map by determining the
Special Tax that applies separately to each newly-created Parcel, then applying the sum of the
individual Special Taxes to the original Parcel that was subdivided by recordation of the Final
Map.

C.       MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

1.       Developed Property

a. Residential Property

The Maximum Special Tax for Fiscal Year 2013- 14 for all Parcels of Residential

Property within Tax Zone 1 shall be $ 81 per SFD Lot or Residential Unit.  All of
the property within the CFD at the time of CFD Formation is within Tax Zone 1; a
different Maximum Special Tax may be identified for property that annexes into
the CFD and is part of a separate Tax Zone. Beginning July 1, 2014 and each July
1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Tax for Residential Property shall be increased
by the Escalation Factor.

b. Non- Residential Property

The Maximum Special Tax for Fiscal Year 2013- 14 for Non-Residential Property
within Tax Zone 1 shall be $ 640 per Acre.  All of the property within the CFD at
the time of CFD Formation is within Tax Zone 1 a different Maximum Special Tax

may be identified for property that annexes into the CFD and is part of a separate
Tax Zone. Beginning july 1, 2014 and each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special
Tax for Non-Residential Property shall be increased by the Escalation Factor.

c. Mixed- Use Property

If, in any Fiscal Year, the Administrator determines that a Parcel of Developed
Property is built or proposed to be built with both Residential Units and non-
residential uses, the Maximum Special Tax for the Parcel shall be the sum of( i) the

Maximum Special Tax for Residential Property multiplied by all Residential Units
on the Parcel, and ( ii) the Maximum Special Tax for Non- Residential Property
multiplied by the full Acreage of the Parcel. After the aggregate Maximum Special
Tax has been determined for a Parcel, such Maximum Special Tax shall be

escalated beginning the next Fiscal Year and each Fiscal Year thereafter by the
Escalation Factor.

B- 5

450



2.       Undeveloped Property

The Maximum Special Tax for Fiscal Year 2013- 14 for all Parcels of Undeveloped Property
within Tax Zone 1 shall be$ 736 per Acre. Beginning July 1, 2014 and each July 1 thereafter,
the Maximum Special Tax for Undeveloped Property shall be increased by the Escalation
Factor.

D.      METHOD OF LEVY AND COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAXES

Each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall determine the Special Tax Requirement for that Fiscal

Year and levy the Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable Property as follows:

Step 1: The Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel of Developed Property up
to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel for such Fiscal Year until the amount levied

is equal to the Special Tax Requirement;

Step 2: If additional revenue is needed after Step 1, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately
on each Parcel of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel

for such Fiscal Year until the amount levied, when combined with the amount levied pursuant to
Step 1, is equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

The Special Taxes for CFD No. 2013- 1 shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time

as ordinary ad valorem property taxes, provided, however, that RD 2062 may directly bill the
Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner, and may collect
delinquent Special Taxes through foreclosure or other available methods.

E.       EXEMPTIONS

Nottivithstanding any other provision of this Amended RMA, no Special Tax shall be levied on
Parcels of Association Property or Public Property, except as otherwise provided in the Act.

F.       INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

RD 2062 reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document

that do not materially affect the rate and method of apportioning Special Taxes. In addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be left to RD 2062' s discretion.
Interpretations may be made by RD 2062 by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying
any vagueness or ambiguity in this Amended RMA.

G.      APPEAL OF SPECIAL TAX LEVY

Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct may
file a written notice of appeal with the Administrator not later than one calendar year after having
paid the Special Tax that is disputed. The Administrator shall promptly review the appeal and,
if necessary, meet with the property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the
amount of the Special Tax, and decide the appeal.  If the property owner disagrees with the
Administrator' s decision relative to the appeal, the owner may then file a written appeal with the

B- 6

451



Board whose subsequent decision shall be binding.  If the decision of the Adminisirator (if the
appeal is not filed with the Board) or the Board ( if the appeal is filed with the Board) requires the

Special Tax to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be
made for prior years' Special Tax levies, but an adjustment shall be made to the next Special Tax
levy( ies). This procedure shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a
condition precedent to filing any legal action by such owner.

B- 7

452



EXHIBIT B

ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062

COMMUNIT' Y FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1
LEVEE AND LAKE MAINTENANCE SERVICES)

ANNEXATION NO. 15

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Special Tax for Taxable Property within Tax
Zone 1 and all Parcels that annex into Tax Zone 1.

TAX ZONE 1

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

Maximum Special Tax

Tjpe ofPropert Fiscal Year 2013- 14*

Residential Property 81. 00 per SFD Lot or Residential Unit

Non- Residential Property 640.00 per Acre
Mixed- Use Property See Formula in RMA

Undeveloped Property 736.00 per Acre

On July 1, 2014, and on each Jul 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special
Taxes shown in Table 1 above shall be increased by the Escalatzon
Factor.

B- 1

453



Quint& Thinuiug LLP S/ 22/ 16

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

AFTER RECORDATION RETURN TO:

Secretary
River Islands Public Financing Authority
73 West Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330

Recorded for the benefit of the River Islands

Public Financing Authority pursuant to
Government Code Section 27383

FIFTEENTH AMENDMENT TO NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN

River Islands Public Financing Authority
Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1

River Islands Public Services)

Annexation No. 15

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 3117. 5 of the Streets and Highways Code of

California and the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Section 53311, et.
seq., of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the undersigned Secretary of the River
Islands Public Financing Authority( the" Authority"), County of San Joaquin, State of California,
hereby gives notice that a lien to secure payment of a special tax is hereby imposed by the Board
of Directors of the Authority on the property described in Exhibit A hereto.  The special tax

secured by this lien is authorized to be levied for the purpose of paying the costs of services
described in Exhibit A to the Notice of Special Tax Lien heretofore recorded in the Office of the

County Recorder for the County of San Joaquin, State of California ( the " County Recorder") on

October 3, 2013 as Document No. 2013- 126691 ( the " Original Notice"), and said special tax is to

be levied according to the Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special
Tax set forth in that certain First Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien heretofore recorded

in the Office of the County Recorder on September 10, 2014 as Document No. 2014-089986 ( the
First Amendment"),  to which recorded Notice of Special Tax Lien and recorded First

Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien reference is hereby made and the provisions of which
are hereby incorporated herein in full by this reference.

This Fifteenth Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien amends the Notice of Special Tax

Lien to add to the territory within the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community
Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services) certain real property identified in
Exhibit A hereto ( the" Property") and shown within the future annexation area on the boundary
map of the community facilities district recorded on August 29, 2013, in Book 6 of Maps of
Assessment and Community Facilities Districts at Page 40 ( Document No. 2013- 111317, in the
Office of the County Recorder, which map is the final boundary map of the community facilities
district.  The Property is being annexed into Tax Zone 2 of the community facilities district, as
described in the Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

18016. 00: RIPFA: J14224

454



attached as Exhibit A to the First Amendment, with the maximum special tax rates identified in

Exhibit B hereto.

The assessor' s tax parcel( s) numbers of all parcels or any portion thereof which are
included in this Fifteenth Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien, together with the name( s) of

the owner( s) thereof, as they appear on the latest secured assessment roll as of the date of
recording hereof or as are otherwise known to the Authority are as set forth in Exhibit A hereto
which is by this reference made a part hereof.

For further information concerning the current and estimated future tax liability of owners
or purchasers of real property or interests therein subject to the special tax lien, interested persons
should contact the Treasurer of the River Islands Public Financing Authority, 73 West Stewart
Road, Lathrop, California 95330, telephone number ( 209) 879- 7900.

Dated:    2020.

By:
Jeanne Zolezzi, Secretary,

River Islands Public Financing Authority

2-

455



Quint& Thimnug LLP S/ 7/ 15

EXHIBIT A

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNIT'Y FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES)

ANNEXATION N0. 15

ASSESSOR' S PARCEL NUMBER( S) AND OWNER( S) OF LAND WITHIN

ANNEXATION NO. 15 TO RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES)

San Joaquin County
Name( s) of Property Owner( s)       Assessor' s Parcel No.

RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2B, LLC 213- 470- 02

73 W. STEWART RD.,

LATHROP, CA 95330

18016. 00: RIPFA: J13429

456



EXHIBIT B

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNIT' Y FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES)

ANNEXATION N0. 15

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES FOR ZONE 2 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Special Tax for Taxable Property within Tax
Zone 2 and all Parcels that annex into Tax Zone 2.

TAX ZONE 2

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

Maximum Special Tax

T pe ofProperty Fiscal Year 2013- 14*

Residential Property 276. 26 per SFD Lot ar Residential Unit
Non- Residential Property 960. 00 per Acre

Mixed- Use Property See Formula in RMA

Undeveloped Property 1, 191. 00 per Acre

On Jul 1, 2014, and on each July 1 therenfter, the Mnximum Special
Taxes shozun in Table 1 above shall be increased by the Escalation
Factor.

457



CONSENT TO, AND BALLOT IN FAVOR OF, ANNEXATION OF REAL PROPERTY

TO THE RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY COMMUNITY

FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1 ( RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES)

To:     Board of Directors of the River Islands

Public Financing Authority, in its capacity
as the legislative body for the River Islands
Public Financing Authority Community
Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands

Public Services)

The undersigned hereby states and certifies, under penalty of perjury, as follows:

1.  The undersigned is the owner( the" Owner"), or the legally authorized representative
of the Owner, of fee title to the real property identified by San Joaquin County Assessor' s parcel
number(s) listed below ( the " Property"), and possesses all legal authority necessary to execute
this consent to, and ballot in favor of( the " Consent and Ballot"), the annexation of the Property
to the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River
Islands Public Services) ( the" CFD").

2.  The Owner understands that the Board of Directors of the River Islands Public

Financing Authority ( the " Board") has conducted proceeding pursuant to the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended ( the " Law') to form the CFD to finance various

services ( the " Services") described in Exhibit A hereto.  The Owner also understands that the

proceedings for the formation of the CFD authorized the Board to levy an annual special tax( the
Special Tax") on property in the CFD as specified in the Amended and Restated Rate and

Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes( the" Rate and Method") for the CFD, a copy of which
is attached hereto as Exhibit B, and authorized the annexation of property to the CFD, without
additional public hearings, upon approval of the fee title owner of the property to be annexed as
permitted by Section 53339. 7( a) of the Law.

The Owner has been advised that a Notice of Special Tax Lien was recorded against the

real property initially included within the boundaries of the CFD in the Office of the San Joaquin
County Recorder( the" County Recorder") on October 3, 2013 as Document No. 2013- 126691, and

a First Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien was recorded against the real property initially
included within the boundaries of the CFD in the Office of the County Recorder on September
10, 2014 as Document No. 2014- 089986 ( collectively, the" Notice of Special Tax Lien").

3.  The Owner hereby irrevocably consents to, approves, and votes ( for purposes of
Article XIIIA of the California Constitution) in favor of the annexation of the Property to Tax Zone
2 of the CFD( as such Tax Zone is described in the Notice of Special Tax Lien, and as the Maximum

Special Tax rates for such Tax Zone 2 are set forth in Exhibit C hereto), and irrevocably consents
to, approves and votes in favor of the annual levy of the Special Tax on the Property pursuant to
the Rate and Method to finance the Services. The Owner acknowledges that the Secretary of the
River Islands Public Financing Authority will record, or cause to be recorded, against the

458



Property in the Office of the County Recorder an amendment to the Notice of Special Tax Lien as
required by Section 3117. 5 of the California Streets and Highways Code, which will impose a
continuing lien on the Property to secure each levy of the Special Tax, and that under the Law
said lien( a) will be coequal with the lien for ad valorem real property taxes levied by the County
of San joaquin on the Property, and( b) will be senior to any lien of any mortgage on the Property
whether such mortgage lien was recorded prior to or after the recordation of the amendment to
the Notice of Special Tax Lien.

4.  The Owner hereby irrevocably waives any right the Owner may otherwise have to
protest or challenge the validity of the proceedings of the Board to form the CFD and to authorize
the annexation of any property ( including the Property) to the CFD, and any necessity,
requirement or right for further public hearings or any election pertaining to the annexation of
the Property to the CFD or the levy of the Special Tax on the Property.

5.  The Owner hereby agrees to provide written notice of the annexation of the Property
to the CFD, and of the authority of the Board to levy the Special Tax on the Property pursuant to
the Rate and Method, to any subsequent purchaser of the Property to the extent required by
applicable law.

The Property subject to this Consent and The full legal name of the fee title Owner of

Ballot,  and to be annexed to the CFD,  the Property is:
consist of the following San Joaquin County
Assessor' s Parcel( s): River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

213- 470- 02

The foregoing Consent and Ballot is hereby executed on 2020, in

Lathrop, California.

By:
signature)

Susan Dell' Osso

type name of person executing
Consent and Ballot)

Its:   President

insert legal capacity of person
executing Consent and Ballot)

2-

459



EXHIBIT A

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES)

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES ELIGIBLE

TO BE FUNDED BY THE DISTRICT

Services:

The services to be funded, in whole or in part, by the community facilities district( the" District")
include all direct and incidental costs related to providing for the maintenance of public
infrastructure within the River Islands area including the area initially included in the District, as
well as any future annexation area of the District and areas adjacent to the foregoing.  More

specifically, the services shall include, but not be limited to, the maintenance of: (i) parks and
open space, including trails and habitat areas, with services to include, but not be limited to,
irrigation and vegetation control; ( ii) roads and roadways, with services to include, but not be

limited to, the maintenance and repair of public streets, striping of streets and repair and
repainting of sound walls and other appurtenances;( iii) sireet lighting, including, but not limited
to, repairs to and replacement of street lights along public streets;( iv) landscaping in public areas
and in the public right of way along public streets, including, but not limited to, irrigation, tree
irimming and vegetation maintenance and control; and ( v) any other public services authorized
to be funded under Section 53313(d) of the California Government Code. The District may fund
any of the following related to the services described in the preceding sentence: obtaining,
constructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or facilities related to
providing the services and/ or equipment,  apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to be
maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, payment of insurance costs and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for
repairs and replacements and for the future provision of services.

The services to be financed by the District are in addition to those provided in the territory of the
District before the date of creation of the District, and will not supplant services already available
within that territory when the District is created.

Administrative Expenses:

The administrative expenses to be funded by the District include the direct and indirect expenses
incurred by the River Islands Public Financing Authority ( the " Authority") in carrying out its
duties with respect to the District ( including, but not limited to, the levy and collection of the
special taxes) including the fees and expenses of attorneys, any fees of the County of San Joaquin
related to the District or the collection of special taxes, an allocable share of the salaries of any
Authority staff directly related thereto and a proportionate amount of the Authority' s general
administrative overhead related thereto, any amounts paid by the Authority from its general fund
with respect to the District or the services authorized to be financed by the District, and expenses
incurred by the Authority in undertaking action to foreclose on properties for which the payment
of special taxes is delinquent, and all other costs and expenses of the Authority in any way related
to the District.

A- 1

460



Other:

The incidental expenses that may be funded by the District include, in addition to the
administrative expenses identified above, the payment or reimbursement to the Authority of all
costs associated with the establishment and administration of the District.

A- 2

461



EXHIBIT B

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNIT' Y FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES)

AMENDED AND RESTATED RATE AND METHOD

OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

A Special Tax applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in the River Islands Public Financing Authority
Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services) shall be levied and
collected according to the tax liability determined by the Board of Directors or its designee,
through the application of the appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described
below.  All of the property in CFD No. 2013- 1, unless exempted by law or by the provisions of
Section E below, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner herein provided,
including property subsequently annexed to the CFD unless a separate rate and method of
apportion of Special Tax is adopted for the annexation area.

A.       DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second
unit) that shares a Parcel with a single-family detached unit.

Acre" or" Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor' s Parcel as shown on an Assessor' s Parcel

Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map, the land area shown on the
applicable Final Map or other parcel map recorded with the County.

Act" means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: the expenses of the Authority in
carrying out its duties with respect to CFD No. 2013- 1 including, but not limited to, levying and
collecting the Special Tax, fees and expenses of legal counsel, charges levied by the County
Auditor' s Office, Tax Collector' s Office, and/ or Treasurer' s Office, costs related to annexing
property into the CFD, costs related to property owner inquiries regarding the Special Tax, and
all other costs and expenses of the Authority, Lathrop Irrigation District, and Island Reclamation
District No. 2062 in any way related to the establishment or adminisiration of the CFD.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the Authority to administer the Special
Tax according to the Amended RMA.

Amended RMA" means this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

Assessor' s Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map with
an assigned Assessor' s Parcel number.

B- 1

462



Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor designating parcels by
Assessor' s Parcel number.

Association Property" means any property within the CFD that is owned by a homeowners
association or property owners association, excluding Association Property under the pad or
footprint of a Residential Unit.

Authority" means the River Islands Public Financing Authority.

Authorized Services" means the public services authorized to be funded by the CFD as set forth
in the documents adopted by the Board when the CFD was formed.

Board of Directors" or " Board" means the Board of Directors of the River Islands Public

Financing Authority.

CFD" or " CFD No. 2013- 1" means the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community
Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation to form CFD No. 2013-

1 was adopted by the Board of Directors.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Developed Property' means, in any Fiscal Year, the following:

for Single Family Detached Property, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
Final Map was recorded on or prior to June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year

for Multi-Family Property and Single Family Attached Property, all Parcels of
Taxable Property for which a building permit for new construction of a residential
structure was issued on or prior to June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year

for Non-Residential Property, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a building
permit for new construction of a structure was issued on or prior to June 30 of the
preceding Fiscal Year.

Escalation Factor" means, in any Fiscal Year, the lesser of( i) the increase from the prior Fiscal
Year, if any, in the Local Consumer Price Index( CPI) for the San Francisco- Oakland- San Jose Area
for All Urban Consumers, or ( ii) four percent( 4%). The CPI used shall be as determined by the
Bureau of Labor Statistics from April to April beginning with the period from Apri12013 to April
2014.

Final Map" means a final map, or portion thereof, recorded by the County pursuant to the
Subdivision Map Act( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) that creates individual
lots on which building permits for new construction may be issued without further subdivision

B- 2

463



and for which no further subdivision is anticipated pursuant to a tentative map approved for the
property or, if no tentative map has been approved, pursuant to a then current specific plan or
other land use plan for the property.

Fiscal Year' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Maximum Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Special Tax that can be levied in any
Fiscal Year determined in accordance with Section C below.

Multi-Family Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building permit or use permit has been issued for construction of a residential structure with five
or more Units that share a single Assessor' s Parcel number, are offered for rent to the general
public, and cannot be purchased by individual homebuyers.

Non-Residential Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which
a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a structure that will be used
for any non- residential purpose.

Proportionately" means the following: ( i) for Developed Property, the ratio of the actual Special
Tax levied in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal
Year is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property; and( ii) for Undeveloped Property,
the ratio of the actual Special Tax to the Maximum Special Tax is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels

of Undeveloped Property.

Public Property' means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013- 1 that is owned
by or irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California, County,
City, or other local government or public agency.

Residential Property" means, collectively, Single Family Detached Property, Single Family
Attached Property, and Multi- Family Property.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a building
permit is issued for a structure that includes both Residential Units and non- residential uses, the

Residential Units within the building will be categorized as Residential Property, and a Special
Tax shall be calculated separately for the Residential Units and Non-Residential Property on the
Parcel, as set forth in Section C. 1. c below.

Residential Unit" means an individual single- family detached unit, an individual residential
unit within a duplex, halfplex,  triplex, fourplex,  townhome,  live/ work or condominium

structure, or an individual apartment unit.

SFD Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded Final Map,
on which a building permit was or is permitted to be issued for construction of a single family
detached unit without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision of the

lot is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map.

Single Family Attached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for
which a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a residential structure
consisting of two or more Units that share common walls, have separate Assessor' s Parcel
numbers assigned to them (except for a duplex unit, which may share an Assessor' s Parcel with
another duplex unit), and may be purchased by individual homebuyers ( which shall still be the

B- 3

464



case even if the Units are purchased and subsequently offered for rent by the owner of the unit),
including such residential structures that meet the statutory definition of a condominium
contained in Civil Code Section 1351.

Single Family Detached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for
which a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a Unit that does not
share a common wall with another Unit.  An Accessory Unit that shares a Parcel with a single-
family detached unit shall not be considered a separate Unit for purposes of this Amended RMA.

Special Tax" means a Special Tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Special Tax Requirement.

Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of revenue needed in any Fiscal Year to pay for
the following: ( i) Authorized Services; ( ii) Administrative Expenses; and ( iii) amounts needed to
cure any delinquencies in the payment of Special Taxes which have occurred or, based on
delinquency rates in prior years, may be expected to occur in the Fiscal Year in which the Special
Tax will be collected.

Taxable Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013- 1 that
are not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to law or Section E below.

Tax Zone" means a mutually exclusive geographic area within which the Special Tax may be
levied pursuant to this Amended RMA. All of the property within CFD No. 2013- 1 at the iime of
CFD Formation is within Tax Zone 1.  Additional Tax Zones may be created when property is
annexed to the CFD, and a separate Maximum Special Tax shall be identified for property within
the new Tax Zone at the time of such annexation. The Assessor' s Parcels included within a new

Tax Zone established when such Parcels are annexed to the CFD shall be identified by Assessor' s
Parcel number in the Unanimous Approval Form that is signed by the owner( s) of the Parcels at
the time of annexation.

Unanimous Approval Form' means that form executed by the record owner of fee tifle to a
Parcel or Parcels annexed into the CFD that constitutes the property owner' s approval and
unanimous vote in favor of annexing into the CFD and the levy of the Special Tax against his/ her
Parcel or Parcels pursuant to this Amended RMA.

Undeveloped Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property in CFD No.
2013- 1 that are not Developed Property.

B.       DATA FOR ANNUAL TAX LEVY

Each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall identify the current Assessor' s Parcel numbers for all
Parcels of Taxable Property within the CFD. The Administrator shall also determine: (i) whether
each Assessor' s Parcel of Taxable Property is Developed Property or Undeveloped Property; (ii)
in which Tax Zone each Assessor' s Parcel is located; and( iii) the Special Tax Requirement for the

then-current Fiscal Year.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is determined that( i) a Final Map for a portion of property in the CFD was
recorded after the last date upon which the Assessor will incorporate the newly- created Parcels
into the then current tax roll, and( ii) because of the date the Final Map was recorded, the Assessor
does not yet recognize the new Parcels created by the Final Map, the Administrator shall calculate

B- 4

465



the Special Tax for the property affected by recordation of the Final Map by determining the
Special Tax that applies separately to each newly- created Parcel, then applying the sum of the
individual Special Taxes to the original Parcel that was subdivided by recordation of the Final
Map.

C.       MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

1.       Developed Property

a. Residential Property

The Maximum Special Tax for Fiscal Year 2013- 14 for all Parcels of Residential

Property within Tax Zone 1 shall be$ 146 per SFD Lot or Residential Unit.  All of
the property within the CFD at the time of CFD Formation is within Tax Zone 1; a
different Maximum Special Tax may be identified for property that annexes into
the CFD and is part of a separate Tax Zone. Beginning July 1, 2014 and each July
1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Tax for Residential Property shall be increased
by the Escalation Factor.

b. Non- Residential Property

The Maximum Special Tax for Fiscal Year 2013- 14 for Non-Residential Property
within Tax Zone 1 shall be $ 960 per Acre.  All of the property within the CFD at
the time of CFD Formation is within Tax Zone 1 a different Maximum Special Tax

may be identified for property that annexes into the CFD and is part of a separate
Tax Zone. Beginning July 1, 2014 and each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special
Tax for Non- Residential Property shall be increased by the Escalation Factor.

c. Mixed- Use Property

If, in any Fiscal Year, the Administrator determines that a Parcel of Developed
Property is built or proposed to be built with both Residential Units and non-
residential uses, the Maximum Special Tax for the Parcel shall be the sum of( i) the

Maximum Special Tax for Residential Property multiplied by all Residential Units
on the Parcel, and ( ii) the Maximum Special Tax for Non- Residential Property
multiplied by the full Acreage of the Parcel. After the aggregate Maximum Special
Tax has been determined for a Parcel, such Maximum Special Tax shall be

escalated beginning the next Fiscal Year and each Fiscal Year thereafter by the
Escalation Factor.

2.       Undeveloped Property

The Maximum Special Tax for Fiscal Year 2013- 14 for all Parcels of Undeveloped

Property within Tax Zone 1 shall be$ 1, 191 per Acre.  Beginning July 1, 2014 and
each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Tax for Undeveloped Property shall
be increased by the Escalation Factor.

B- 5

466



D.      METHOD OF LEVY AND COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAXES

Each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall determine the Special Tax Requirement for that Fiscal

Year and levy the Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable Property as follows:

Step 1: The Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel of Developed Property up
to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel for such Fiscal Year until the amount levied

is equal to the Special Tax Requirement;

Step 2: If additional revenue is needed after Step 1, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately
on each Parcel of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel

for such Fiscal Year until the amount levied, when combined with the amount levied pursuant to
Step 1, is equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

The Special Taxes for CFD No. 2013- 1 shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time

as ordinary ad valorem property taxes, provided, however, that the Authority may directly bill
the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner, and may
collect delinquent Special Taxes through foreclosure or other available methods.

E.       EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Amended RMA, no Special Tax shall be levied on
Parcels of Association Property or Public Property, except as otherwise provided in the Act.

F.       INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The Authority reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this
document that do not materially affect the rate and method of apportioning Special Taxes.  In

addition, the interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be left to the
Authority' s discretion. Interpretations may be made by the Authority by ordinance or resolution
for purposes of clarifying any vagueness or ambiguity in this Amended RMA.

G.      APPEAL OF SPECIAL TAX LEVY

Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct may
file a written notice of appeal with the Administrator not later than one calendar year after having
paid the Special Tax that is disputed. The Administrator shall promptly review the appeal and,
if necessary, meet with the property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the
amount of the Special Tax, and decide the appeal.  If the property owner disagrees with the
Administrator' s decision relative to the appeal, the owner may then file a written appeal with the
Board whose subsequent decision shall be binding.  If the decision of the Administrator ( if the
appeal is not filed with the Board) or the Board ( if the appeal is filed with the Board) requires the

Special Tax to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be
made for prior years' Special Tax levies, but an adjustment shall be made to the next Special Tax
levy( ies). This procedure shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a
condition precedent to filing any legal action by such owner.

B- 6

467



EXHIBIT C

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES)

ANNEXATION NO. 15

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES FOR ZONE 2 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Special Tax for Taxable Property within Tax
Zone 2 and all Parcels that annex into Tax Zone 2.

TAX ZONE 2

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

Maximum Special Tax

T pe ofPropert Fiscal Year 2013- 14*

Residential Property 276. 26 per SFD Lot or Residential Unit

Non- Residential Property 960.00 per Acre
Mixed- Use Property See Formula in RMA

Undeveloped Property 1, 191. 00 per Acre

On July 1, 2014, and on eacli July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special
Taxes shown in Table 1 above shall be increased by the Escalation
Factor.

G1

468



Quint& Thimmig LLP 11/ 24/ 20

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND DRAFT

AFTER RE ORDATION RETURN TO:

Secretary
River Islands Public Financing Authority
73 West Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330

Recorded for the benefit of the River Islands

Public Financing Authority pursuant to
Government Code Section 27383

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN

River Islands Public Financing Authority
Community Facilities District No. 2020- 1

Stage 2B Public Improvements)

Annexation No. 2

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 3117. 5 of the Streets and Highways Code of

California and the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Section 53311, et.
seq., of the California Government Code ( the" Act"), the undersigned Secretary of the River Islands
Public Financing Authority ( the " Authority"), County of San Joaquin, State of California, hereby
gives notice that a lien to secure payment of a special tax is hereby imposed by the Board of
Directors of the Authority on the property described in Exhibit A hereto. The special tax secured
by this lien is authorized to be levied for the purpose of paying the costs of facilities described in
Exhibit A to the Notice of Special Tax Lien heretofore recorded in the Office of the County
Recorder for the County of San Joaquin, State of California ( the " County Recorder") on December

1, 2020 as Document No. 2020- 166793 ( the " Original Notice"), and said special tax is to be levied

according to the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax set forth in Exhibit B to the
Original Notice, to which recorded Original Notice reference is hereby made and the provisions
of which are incorporated herein in full by this reference.

This Amendment No. 2 to Notice of Special Tax Lien amends the Original Notice to add to

the territory within the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No.
2020- 1 ( Stage 2B Public Improvements) certain real property identified in Exhibit A hereto ( the
Property") and shown within the future annexation area on the boundary map of the community

facilities district recorded on September 29,  2020,  in Book 7 of Maps of Assessment and

Community Facilities Districts at Page 21 ( Document No. 2020- 128845, in the Office of the County
Recorder, which map is the final boundary map of the community facilities district. The Property
is being annexed into Zone 2 of the community facilities district, as described in the Rate and
Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes for the community facilities district attached as Exhibit
B to the Original Notice, with the maximum special tax rates identified in Exhibit B hereto.

18016. 38: J 17219

469



The assessor' s tax parcel( s) numbers of all parcels or any portion thereof which are
included in this Amendment No. 2 to Notice of Special Tax Lien, together with the name( s) of the

owner( s) thereof, as they appear on the latest secured assessment roll as of the date of recording
hereof or as are otherwise known to the Authority are as set forth in Exhibit A hereto which is by
this reference made a part hereof.

For further information concerning the current and estimated future tax liability of owners
or purchasers of real property or interests therein subject to the special tax lien, interested persons
should contact the Treasurer of the River Islands Public Financing Authority, 73 West Stewart Road,
Lathrop, California 95330, telephone number ( 209) 879- 7900.

Dated:       2020.

By:
Jeanne Zolezzi, Secretary,

River Islands Public Financing Authority

2-

470



EXHIBIT A

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020- 1

STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS)

ANNEXATION NO. 2

ASSESSOR' S PARCEL NUMBER( S) AND OWNER( S) OF LAND WITHIN

ANNEXATION NO. 2 TO RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020- 1

STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS)

San Joaquin County
Name( s) of Property Owner( s) Assessor' s Parcel No.

River Islands Stage 2B, LLC 213- 470- 02

73 W. Stewart Rd.,

Lathrop, CA 95330

A- 1

471



EXHIBIT B

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020- 1

STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS)

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES FOR ZONE 2 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Special Tax for Taxable Property within Tax Zone
2 and all Parcels that annex into Tax Zone 2.

TAX ZONE 2

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

Maximum Special Tax Fiscal

Type of Property Year 2020- 21 '

Residential Property       $  per Unit

Other Property per Acre

Final Map Property per Final Map Lot

Undeveloped Property      $  per Acre

On July 1, 2021, and on each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum
Special Taxes shown in the Table above shall be increased by an
amount equal to two percent( 2%J of the amount in effect for

the prior Fiscal Year.

B- 1

472



Quint& Thimmig LLP 11/ 24/ 20

CONSENT TO, AND BALLOT IN FAVOR OF, ANNEXATION OF REAL PROPERTY TO THE

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.

2020- 1 ( STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS)

To:      Board of Directors of the River Islands Public DRAFT

Financing Authority, in its capacity as the
legislative body for the River Islands Public
Financing Authority Community Facilities
District No. 2020- 1 ( Stage 2B Public

Improvements)

The undersigned hereby states and certifies, under penalty of perjury, as follows:

1.  The undersigned is the owner ( the " Owner"), or the legally authorized representative
of the Owner, of fee title to the real property identified by San Joaquin County Assessor' s parcel
number( s) listed below( the" Property"), and possesses all legal authority necessary to execute this
consent to, and ballot in favor of( the " Consent and Ballot"), the annexation of the Property to the
River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No. 2020- 1 ( Stage 2B Public
Improvements) ( the " CFD").

2.  The Owner understands that the Board of Directors of the River Islands Public

Financing Authority  (the  " Board")  has conducted proceeding pursuant to the Mello- Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended ( the " Law") to form the CFD to finance various

facilities ( the " Facilities") described in Exhibit A hereto.  The Owner also understands that the

proceedings for the formation of the CFD authorized the Board to levy an annual special tax ( the
Special Tax") on property in the CFD as specified in the Rate and Method of Apportionment of

Special Tax for the CFD ( the " Rate and Method"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B,
and authorized the annexation of property to the CFD, without additional public hearings, upon
approval of the fee title owner of the property to be annexed as permitted by Section 53339. 7( a)
of the Law.

The Owner has been advised that a Notice of Special Tax Lien was recorded against the

real property initially included within the boundaries of the CFD in the Office of the San Joaquin
County Recorder ( the " County Recorder") on December 1, 2020 as Document No. 2020- 166793

the " Notice of Special Tax Lien").

3.  The Owner hereby irrevocably consents to, approves, and votes (for purposes of Article
XIIIA of the California Constitution) in favor of the annexation of the Property to Tax Zone 2 of the
CFD ( as such Tax Zone is described in the Rate and Method, and as the Maximum Special Tax

rates for such Zone 2 are set forth in Exhibit C hereto), and irrevocably consents to, approves and

votes in favor of the annual levy of the Special Tax on the Property pursuant to the Rate and
Method to finance the Facilities and for the other authorized purposes of the CFD.  The Owner

1801638: J 17218

473



acknowledges that the Secretary of the River Islands Public Financing Authority will record, or
cause to be recorded, against the Property in the Office of the County Recorder an amendment
to the Notice of Special Tax Lien as required by Section 3117. 5 of the California Streets and

Highways Code, which will impose a continuing lien on the Property to secure each levy of the
Special Tax, and that under the Law said lien ( a) will be coequal with the lien for ad valorem real

property taxes levied by the County of San Joaquin on the Property, and ( b) will be senior to any
lien of any mortgage on the Property whether such mortgage lien was recorded prior to or after
the recordation of the amendment to the Notice of Special Tax Lien.

4.  The Owner hereby irrevocably waives any right the Owner may otherwise have to
protest or challenge the validity of the proceedings of the Board to form the CFD and to authorize

the annexation of any property( including the Property) to the CFD, and any necessity, requirement
or right for further public hearings or any election pertaining to the annexation of the Property to
the CFD or the levy of the Special Tax on the Property.

5.  The Owner hereby agrees to provide written notice of the annexation of the Property
to the CFD, and of the authority of the Board to levy the Special Tax on the Property pursuant to
the Rate and Method, to any subsequent purchaser of the Property to the extent required by
applicable law.

The Property subject to this Consent and The full legal name of the fee title Owner of
Ballot,  and to be annexed to the CFD,  the Property is:
consist of the following San Joaquin County
Assessor' s Parcel( s):  River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

See Exhibit D

The foregoing Consent and Ballot is hereby executed this day of 202_,

in California.

By:
signature)

Susan Dell' Osso

type name of person executing
Consent and Ballot)

Its:    President

insert legal capacity of person

executing Consent and Ballot)

2-

474



NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the

truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

ss.

County of

On before me,
Date Name and Title of Officer( e. g.," Jane Doe, Notary Public`)

personally appeared
Name( s) of Signer( s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( s) whose name( s) is/ are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/ she/ they executed the same
in his/ her/ their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/ her/ their signature(s) on the instrument
the person( s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person( s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature Seal]

Notary Public

475



EXHIBIT A

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020- 1

STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS)

DESCRIPTION OF FACILITIES AUTHORIZED TO BE FUNDED BY THE DISTRICT

The following generally described public infrastructure and related improvements within, in the
vicinity or otherwise incident to the development of the area generally known as River Islands at
Lathrop:

Lake improvements, discharge facilities and intake facilities, including grading, pumps,
shore improvements, aeration facilities, CDS units, pipes and other necessary infrastructure
required to provide storm water, flood retention and recreational facilities.

Bio Retention Basins and BMP improvements, including planting, irrigation and other
improvements necessary for storm water storage and cleansing.

Roadway improvements, including grading, fill, pavement section, joint trench, water,
sewer, reclaimed water and other utility improvements necessary for or incident to road
construction. Also including landscaping, street lights and signage, monuments and traffic
signals.

Bridge improvements,  including design,  construction,  utility connections,  roadway
approaches and other incidental improvements required for construction of bridges.

Water system infrastructure, including tanks, pump stations, distribution lines and other
improvements necessary for delivery of potable or reclaimed water.

Sewer system infrastructure and improvements, including treatment facilities, sanitary
sewer collection lines and force mains, effluent holding and storage, spray fields, pump
stations, lift stations,  and other improvements necessary for delivery and treatment of
sanitary sewer service.

Public parks, as well as landscaping and recreational features along rivers, lakes, within
parks and along and including pathways and other public areas.

Electrical system improvements,  including offsite improvements,  overhead facilities,

substations, relocation and removal of electrical poles, undergrounding of service facilities
and associated improvements to service the development.

A- 1

476



Natural gas facilities upgrades and extensions, including pipeline extension and gas
transmission regulator stations.

Telecommunications facilities, including fiber optic cable on and off site and other required
infrastructure.

Grading for and construction of levees.

Public safety facilities, including but not limited to fire stations and related appurtenances,
also including related site improvements, plus related equipment with a useful life of five
years or more.

Elementary schools, middle schools and high schools and related appurtenances, including
sports fields, parking and other customary amenities.

Environmental mitigation and related appurtenances related to the facilities and

improvements eligible to be funded by the District.

All or a portion of any amount necessary to eliminate any fixed special assessment liens,
or to pay, repay, or defease any obligation to pay or any indebtedness secured by any tax,
fee, charge, or assessment levied within the area of the District and any property annexed
thereto or to pay debt service on any such indebtedness.

The foregoing improvements may include the acquisition of right of way and land, the cost
of design, engineering and planning, the costs of any environmental review or traffic
studies, survey or other reports, landscaping and irrigation, soils testing, soil preparation
including deep dynamic compaction, dewatering, permits, plan check and inspection fees,
other public fees,  insurance,  legal and related overhead costs,  coordination and

supervision and any other costs or appurtenances related to any of the foregoing.

OTHER

The District may also finance any of the following:

1.   Bond related expenses, including underwriter' s discount, reserve fund, capitalized
interest, structuring agent, bond, disclosure and underwriter' s counsel and al other incidental
expenses.

2. Administrative fees of the Authority and the Bond trustee or fiscal agent related to the
District and the Bonds.

3.   Reimbursement of costs related to the formation of the District advanced by the
Authority or any landowner or developer within the District, as well as reimbursement of any costs

A- 2

477



advanced by the Authority or any landowner or developer within the District, for facilities, fees or
other purposes or costs of the District.

A- 3

478



EXHIBIT B

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020- 1

STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS)

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

A Special Tax applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in the River Islands Public Financing Authority
Community Facilities District No. 2020- 1 ( Stage 2B Public Improvements) shall be levied and
collected according to the tax liability determined by the Board of Directors or its designee,
through the application of the appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described below.
All of the property in CFD No. 2020- 1, unless exempted by law or by the provisions of Section F
below, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner herein provided, including
property subsequently annexed into the CFD.

A.       DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second
unit) that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit.

Acre" or " Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor' s Parcel as shown on an Assessor' s

Parcel map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map, the land area shown on
the applicable Final Map or other parcel map recorded with the County.

Act" means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: the fees and expenses of any fiscal
agent or trustee ( including any fees or expenses of its counsel) employed in connection with any
Bonds, and the expenses of the Authority in carrying out its duties with respect to CFD No. 2020-
1 and the Bonds, including, but not limited to, levying and collecting the Special Tax, the fees and
expenses of legal counsel, charges levied by the County Auditor' s Office, Tax Collector' s Office,
and/ or Treasurer' s Office, costs related to annexing property into the CFD, costs related to property
owner inquiries regarding the Special Tax, amounts needed to pay rebate to the federal government
with respect to the Bonds, costs associated with complying with any continuing disclosure
requirements for the Bonds and the Special Tax, and all other costs and expenses of the Authority,
Lathrop Irrigation District, and Island Reclamation District No. 2062 in any way related to the
establishment or administration of the CFD.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the Authority to administer the Special
Tax according to the RMA.

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 1 September 18, 2020

479



Assessor' s Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map with
an assigned Assessor' s Parcel number.

Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor designating parcels by
Assessor' s Parcel number.

Association Property" means any property within the CFD that is owned by a homeowners
association or property owners association, excluding Association Property under the pad or
footprint of a Unit.

Authority" means the River Islands Public Financing Authority.

Authorized Facilities" means those public facilities authorized to be funded by the CFD as set
forth in the CFD formation proceedings.

Board of Directors" or ` Board" means the Board of Directors of the River Islands Public

Financing Authority.

Bonds" means bonds or other debt( as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued,

insured or assumed by CFD No. 2020- 1, including debt issued by agencies other than the Authority
as referenced in Section 53313. 5( g)  of the Act),  to pay for public infrastructure and/ or

improvements that will serve property included within, or intended to be annexed into, the CFD.

Boundary Map" means Exhibit D to the Resolution of Intention adopted by the Board of
Directors, as summarized in Attachment 2.

BP Parcel" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Residential Property in CFD No. 2020- 1
that is not a COE Parcel as of June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year.

Capitalized Interest" means funds in any capitalized interest account available to pay debt
service on Bonds.

CFD" or " CFD No. 2020- 1" means the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community
Facilities District No. 2020- 1 ( Stage 2B Public Improvements).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation to form CFD No. 2020-

1 was adopted by the Board of Directors.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

COE Parcel" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Residential Property in CFD No. 2020- 1
for which the First Transfer Date has occurred on or prior to June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year.

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 2 September 18, 2020

480



County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property in CFD
No. 2020- 1 for which a building permit for new construction was issued by the City on or prior to
June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year.

Excess Public Property" means the acres of Public Property that exceeds the acreage exempted
in Section F below.  In any Fiscal Year in which a Special Tax must be levied on Excess Public
Property pursuant to Step 6 in Section D below, Excess Public Property shall be those Assessor' s
Parcel( s) that most recently became Public Property based on the dates on which Final Maps
recorded creating such Public Property.

Final Map" means a final map, or portion thereof, recorded by the County pursuant to the
Subdivision Map Act( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) that creates individual
lots on which building permits for new construction may be issued without further subdivision and
for which no further subdivision is anticipated pursuant to a Tentative Map approved for the
property or, if no Tentative Map has been approved, pursuant to a then current specific plan or
other land use plan for the property.

Final Map Lot" means an individual residential lot identified and numbered on a Final Map.

Final Map Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Final Map Lots for which a Final Map was
recorded on or before June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year and which are not yet Developed
Property.

First Transfer Date" means for a Parcel of Residential Property, the date of the first transfer of
ownership to a private homeowner after a building permit for new construction has been issued.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Master Developer" means River Islands Development, and its successors and assignees.

Maximum Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Special Tax that can be levied in any
Fiscal Year determined in accordance with Section C below.

Other Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed Property that are not
Residential Property.

Proportionately" means the following: (i) for Developed Property, the ratio of the actual Special
Tax levied in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal
Year is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property; ( ii) for Final Map Property, the
ratio of the actual Special Tax levied in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Special Tax authorized
to be levied in that Fiscal Year is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Final Map Property; ( iii) for

Undeveloped Property, the ratio of the actual Special Tax to the Maximum Special Tax is equal
for all Assessor' s Parcels of Undeveloped Property; ( iv) for Association Property, the ratio of the
actual Special Tax to the Maximum Special Tax is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Association

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 3 September 18, 2020

481



Property; and ( v) for Excess Public Property, the ratio of the actual Special Tax to the Maximum
Special Tax is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Excess Public Property.

Public Property" means, in any Fiscal Year: ( i) all Parcels within the boundaries of the CFD

that are owned by or irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, the State of
California, the City or any other public agency; and ( ii) all Parcels within the boundaries of the
CFD that are encumbered by an unmanned utility easement making impractical its utilization for
other than the purpose set forth in the easement.

Purchase Agreement" means an agreement between the Master Developer and a homebuilder.

Required Coverage" means the amount by which the Maximum Special Tax revenues must
exceed the debt service on the Bonds and required Administrative Expenses, as set forth in the

Indenture, Certificate of Special Tax Consultant, or other formation or bond document that sets
forth the minimum required debt service coverage.

Residential Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed Property for which
a building permit was issued for construction of a residential structure consisting of one or more
Units.

RMA" means this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

Special Tax" means a Special Tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Special Tax Requirement.

Special Tax Requirement" means the amount necessary in any Fiscal Year: ( i) to pay principal
and interest on Bonds which are due in the calendar year that begins in such Fiscal Year; ( ii) to

create and/ or replenish reserve funds for the Bonds to the extent such replenishment has not been
included in the computation of Special Tax Requirement in a previous Fiscal Year; ( iii) to cure

any delinquencies in the payment of principal or interest on Bonds which have occurred in the
prior Fiscal Year; ( iv) to pay Administrative Expenses; and ( v) if the Administrator determines
Special Tax revenues are available after items ( i) through ( iv) have been funded, to directly pay
the costs of Authorized Facilities that have not been paid by the proceeds of previously issued
Bonds to the extent that the inclusion of such amounts does not increase the Special Tax levied on
Undeveloped Property.  The amounts referred to in clauses ( i) and ( ii) of the preceding sentence
may be reduced in any Fiscal Year by: ( i) interest earnings on or surplus balances in funds and

accounts for the Bonds to the extent that such earnings or balances are available to apply against
debt service pursuant to a Bond indenture, Bond resolution, or other legal document that sets forth
these terms;( ii) proceeds from the collection ofpenalties associated with delinquent Special Taxes;
and ( iii) any other revenues available to pay debt service on the Bonds as determined by the
Administrator.

Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor' s Parcels within the boundaries of the CFD which
are not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

Tax Zone" means a mutually exclusive geographic area within which the Special Tax may be
levied pursuant to this RMA. Al[ property within CFD No. 2020- 1 at the tirrie of CFD Forrriation

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 4 September 18, 2020

482



is within TaxZone 1. Additional Tax Zones may be created when property is annexed to the CFD,
and a separate Maximum Special Tax shall be identified for property within the new Tax Zone at
the time of such annexation. The Assessor' s Parcels included within a new Tax Zone established

when such Parcels are annexed to the CFD shall be identified by Assessor' s Parcel number in the
Unanimous Approval Form that is signed by the owner( s) of the Parcels at the time of annexation.

Tentative Map" means a map that is made for the purpose of showing the design of a proposed
subdivision and the conditions pertaining thereto and is not based on a detailed survey of the
property within the map and is not recorded at the County Recorder' s Office to create legal lots.

Unanimous Approval Form" means that form executed by the record owner of fee title to a
Parcel or Parcels annexed into the CFD that constitutes the property owner' s approval and
unanimous vote in favor of annexing into the CFD and the levy of the Special Tax against his/ her
Parcel or Parcels pursuant to this RMA.

Undeveloped Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property within the
CFD that are not Developed Property, Final Map Property, Association Property, or Excess Public
Property.

Unit" means an individual single family detached residential unit or an individual residential
rental unit within a duplex, triplex, fourplex, townhome, condominium structure, or apartment

complex.  An Accessory Unit that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit shall not be
considered a separate Unit for purposes of this RMA

B.       DATA FOR ANNUAL ADMINISTRATION

On or about July 1 of each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall identify the current Assessor' s
Parcel numbers for all Taxable Property. The Administrator shall also determine: ( i) within which

Tax Zone each Parcel is located, ( ii) whether each Assessor' s Parcel is Developed Property, Final

Map Property, Undeveloped Property, Association Property, or Excess Public Property, ( iii) for

Developed Property, which Parcels are Residential Property or Other Property,( iv) for Residential

Property, which Parcels are COE Parcels or BP Parcels, and ( v) the Special Tax Requirement.  In
addition, the Administrator shall keep a record of all Parcels for which the Maximum Special Tax
has been reduced pursuant to Section C. 3 of the RMA as well as the resulting Maximum Special
Tax for each Parcel.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is determined that( i) a Final Map for a portion of property in the CFD was
recorded after the last date upon which the Assessor will incorporate the newly- created Parcels
into the then current tax roll, and ( ii) because of the date the Final Map was recorded, the Assessor

does not yet recognize the new Parcels created by the Final Map, the Administrator shall calculate
the Special Tax for the property affected by recordation of the Final Map by determining the
Special Tax that applies separately to each newly- created Parcel, then applying the sum of the
individual Special Taxes to the original Parcel that was subdivided by recordation of the Final
Map.

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 S September 18, 2020

483



C.      MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1. Tax Zone 1

Table 1 below identifies the Maximum Special Tax for Taxable Property within Tax Zone
1 at CFD Formation and all Parcels that annex into Tax Zone 1 after CFD Formation.

TABLE 1

TAX ZONE 1

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

Maximurr Special Tax

Type ofProperty Fiscal Year 2020- 21 *

Residential Property 0 per Unit

Other Property l 0 per Acre

Final Map Property 0 per Final Map Lot

Undeveloped Property 10 per Acre

On July 1, 2021, and on each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special
Taxes shown in Table 1 above shall be increased by an nmount equal
to hvo percent( 2%) of the amount in effect for the prior Fiscal Year.

2.       Additiona[ Tax Zones

If property is annexed into the CFD and a separate Tax Zone is established for such
property, Maximum Special Tax rates will be identified for Taxable Property in the new
Tax Zone in the Unanimous Approval Form signed by the annexing property owner.

3.       Changes to the Maximum Special Tax

Prior to the First Transfer Date, the Maximum Special Tax for a Parcel of Residential

Property may be reduced once if the Administrator determines that the Maximum Special
Tax for a Parcel of Residential Property would result in a total effective tax rate, including
property tax, tax overrides, and other direct special taxes and assessments, greater than the
percentage of the estimated sales price specified in the Purchase Agreement.

Notwithstanding the forgoing, the Maximum Special Tax shall not be reduced for any
Parcel if such a reduction reduces debt service coverage on outstanding Bonds below the
Required Coverage.

The Special Tax reduction required pursuant to this section shall be made without a vote
of the qualified electors in the CFD and shall be reflected in an amended Notice of Special

RIPFA CFD Na 2020- 1 6 September 18, 2020

484



Tax Lien against the Parcel in yuestion which the CFD shall cause to be recorded by
executing a certificate in substantially the form attached herein as Attachment 1.

Pursuant to Section 53321 ( d) of the Act, the Special Tax levied against a Parcel used for private
residential purposes shall under no circumstances increase more than ten percent ( 10%) as a

consequence of delinquency or default by the owner of any other Parcel or Parcels and shall, in
no event, exceed the Maximum Special Tax in effect for the Fiscal Year in which the Special Tcrx
is being levied.

D.      METHOD OF LEVY OF THE SPECIAL TAX

Each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall determine the Special Tax Requirement to be collected

in that Fiscal Year, and the Special Tax shall be levied according to the steps outlined below.

Step L•     The Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each COE Parcel within the
CFD up to l 00% of the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel for such Fiscal

Year determined pursuant to Section C;

Step 2:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 1, the Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on each remaining Parcel of Developed Property within the
CFD up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel for such Fiscal

Year determined pursuant to Section C;

Step 3:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 2, and after applying Capitalized
Interest to the Special Tax Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on each Assessor' s Parcel of Final Map Property within the
CFD, up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for Final Map Property for such
Fiscal Year determined pursuant to Section C;

Step 4:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 3, the Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on each Assessor' s Parcel of Undeveloped Property within the
CFD, up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for Undeveloped Property for
such Fiscal Year determined pursuant to Section C;

Step 5:     If additional revenue is needed after applying the first four steps, the Special
Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel of Association Property
within the CFD, up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for Undeveloped

Property for such Fiscal Year determined pursuant to Section C;

Step 6:     If additional revenue is needed after applying the first five steps, the Special
Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Assessor' s Parcel of Excess Public
Property, exclusive of property exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F below, up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for Undeveloped

Property for such Fiscal Year determined pursuant to Section C.

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 7 September 18, 2020

485



E.       COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Taxes for CFD No. 2020- 1 shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time

as ordinary ad valorem property taxes, provided, however, that prepayments are permitted as set
forth in Section G below and provided further that the Authority may directly bill the Special Tax,
may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner, and may collect delinquent
Special Taxes through foreclosure or other available methods.

The Special Tax shall be levied and collected until principal and interest on Bonds have been paid
and Authorized Facilities have been completed. However, in no event shall a Special Tax be levied

after Fiscal Year 2101- 02.

F.       EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this RMA, no Special Tax shall be levied on any Parcel of
Public Property at CFD Formation, except as otherwise provided in the Act.  A separate amount
of public acreage may be exempted each time property annexes into the CFD, and such additional
exemption shall only apply to property within the annexation area.  A Special Tax may be levied
on Excess Public Property pursuant to Step 6 of Section D; however, a public agency may require
that the special tax obligation on land conveyed to it that would be classified as Excess Public

Property be prepaid pursuant to Section G below.

G.      PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

The following definitions apply to this Section G:

Final Bond Sale" means, at any point in time, the last series of Bonds issued by the CFD,
which issuance uses up virtually all of the remaining capacity available from the Maximum
Special Tax revenues that can be generated within the CFD, as determined by the
Authority. If additional Bonds are expected to be issued after outstanding Bonds retire, the

Final Bond Sale" may not be the last series of Bonds ever issued by the CFD, but instead
the last sale of Bonds that can be issued before some or all of the outstanding Bonds retire.

Outstanding Bonds" means all outstanding Bonds issued on behalf of the CFD prior to
the date of prepayment, with the following exception:  if a Special Tax has been levied

against, or already paid by, an Assessor' s Parcel making a prepayment, and a portion of
the Special Tax will be used to pay a portion of the next principal payment on the Bonds
that remain outstanding ( as determined by the Administrator), that next principal payment
shall be subtracted from the total Bond principal that remains outstanding, and the
difference shall be used as the amount of Outstanding Bonds for purposes of this
prepayment formula.

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 8 September I8, 2020

486



The Special Tax obligation applicable to an Assessor' s Parcel in the CFD may be prepaid and the
obligation of the Assessor' s Parcel to pay the Special Tax permanently satisfied as described
herein, provided that a prepayment may be made only if there are no delinquent Special Taxes
with respect to such Assessor' s Parcel at the time of prepayment.  An owner of an Assessor' s

Parcel intending to prepay the Special Tax obligation shall provide the Authority with written
notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the Authority or its
designee shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount for such Assessor' s Parcel.

1.       Full Prepayment Prior to Final Bond Sale

As ofthe proposed date ofprepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be determined by application
of the following steps:

Step 1.     Compute the total Maximum Special Tax that could be collected from the

Assessor' s Parcel prepaying the Special Tax in the Fiscal Year in which
prepayment would be received by the Authority.

Step 2.     Estimate the bonding capacity based on the Maximum Special Tax determined
in Step 1 and an assumed bond term of 30 years using, as the interest rate for
the bonding capacity calculation, the greater of( i) the current interest rate as
determined by the Administrator based on discussions with industry
professionals or ( ii) the average true interest cost ( TIC) on the Outstanding
Bonds as identified by the Administrator. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if at
any point in time the Administrator determines that the Maximum Special Tax
revenue that could be collected from Taxable Property after the proposed
prepayment is less than 110% of debt service on Bonds that will remain

outstanding after defeasance or redemption of Bonds from proceeds of the
estimated prepayment, the amount of the prepayment shall be increased until
the amount of Bonds defeased or redeemed is sufficient to reduce remaining
annual debt service to a point at which l 10% debt service coverage is realized.

Step 3.     Determine the costs of computing the prepayment amount and the costs of
recording any notices to evidence the prepayment ( the " Administrative Fees
and Expenses").

Step 4.     The Special Tax prepayment is equal to the sum of the amounts computed
pursuant to Steps 2 and 3 ( the " Prepayment Ainount").

2.       Full Prepayinent After Final Bond Sale

Prepayment must be made not less than 75 days prior to any redemption date for Bonds to be
redeemed with the proceeds of such prepaid Special Taxes.  The Prepayment Amount shall be

calculated as follows: ( capitalized terms as defined below):

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 9 September 18, 2020

487



Bond Redemption Amount

plus Redemption Premium

plus Defeasance Requirement

plus Administrative Fees and Expenses

less Reserve Fund Credit

equals Prepayment Amount

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be determined by application
of the following steps:

Step 1.     Compute the total Maximum Special Tax that could be collected from the

Assessor' s Parcel prepaying the Special Tax in the Fiscal Year in which
prepayment would be received by the Authority.

Step 2.     Divide the Maximum Special Tax from Step 1 by the Maximum Special Tax
revenues that could be collected in that Fiscal Year.

Step 3.     Multiply the quotient computed pursuant to Step 2 by the Outstanding Bonds
to compute the amount of Outstanding Bonds to be retired and prepaid ( the
Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 4.     Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount computed pursuant to Step 3 by the
applicable redemption premium,  if any, on the Outstanding Bonds to be
redeemed ( the " Redemption Premium").

Step 5.     Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount
starting with the first Bond interest payment date after which the prepayment
has been received until the earliest redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.
However, if Bonds are callable at the first interest payment date after the
prepayment has been received, Steps 5, 6 and 7 of this prepayment formula will
not apply.

Step 6:     Compute the amount of interest the Authority reasonably expects to derive from
reinvestment of the Bond Redemption Amount plus the Redemption Premium
from the first Bond interest payment date after which the prepayment has been
received until the redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

5tep 7:     Take the amount computed pursuant to Step 5 and subtract the amount
computed pursuant to Step 6 ( the " Defeasance Requirement").

Step 8.     Determine the costs of computing the prepayment amount, the costs of
redeeming Bonds, and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the
prepayment and the redemption ( the " Adrrcinistrative Fees and Expenses").

Step 9.     If and to the extent so provided in the indenture pursuant to which the
Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed were issued, a reserve fund credit shall be

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 10 September 18, 2020

488



calculated as a reduction in the applicable reserve fund for the Outstanding
Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to the prepayment  ( the  " Reserve Fund

Credit").

Step 10.   The Special Tax prepayment is equal to the sum of the amounts computed
pursuant to Steps 3, 4, 7, and 8, less the amount computed pursuant to Step 9
the " Prepayment Amount").

3.       Partial Prepayments

A partial prepayment may be made in an amount equal to any percentage of full prepayment
desired by the party making a partial prepayment, except that the full amount of administrative
fees and expenses determined in Step 3 of Section G. 1 or Step 8 of Section G. 2 shall be included
in the partial prepayment.  The Maximum Special Tax that can be levied on an Assessor' s Parcel
after a partial prepayment is made is equal to the Maximum Special Tax that could have been
levied prior to the prepayment, reduced by the percentage of a full prepayment ( less the amount
collected for administrative fees and expenses) that the partial prepayment ( less the amount
collected for administrative fees and expenses) represents, all as determined by or at the direction
of the Administrator.

H.      INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The Authority reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to
this document that do not materially affect the rate and method of apportioning Special Taxes. In
addition, the interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be left to the
Authority' s discretion.  Interpretations may be made by the Authority by ordinance or resolution
for purposes of clarifying any vagueness or ambiguity in this RMA.

I.       APPEAL OF SPECIAL TAX LEVY

Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct may
file a written notice of appeal with the Administrator not later than one calendar year after having

paid the Special Tax that is disputed.  The Administrator shall promptly review the appeal and, if
necessary, meet with the property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount
of the Special Tax, and decide the appeal. If the property owner disagrees with the Administrator' s
decision relative to the appeal, the owner may then file a written appeal with the Board whose
subsequent decision shall be binding. If the decision of the Administrator( if the appeal is not filed
with the Board) or the Board ( if the appeal is filed with the Board) requires the Special Tax to be

modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior years'
Special Tax levies, but an adjustment shall be made to the next Special Tax levy( ies).  This

procedure shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition
precedent to filing any legal action by such owner.

RIPFA CFD No. 2020- 1 I1 September 18, 2020

489



ATTACHMENT 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020- 1

STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

CERTIFICATE OF MODIFICATION OF SPECIAL TAX

1.       Pursuant to Section C. 3 of the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax ( the

Rate and Method")  for the River Islands Public Financing Authority Community
Facilities District No. 2020- 1 ( Stage 2B Public Improvements) (" CFD No. 2020- 1"), the

Maximum Special Tax for a Parcel of Residential Property within CFD No. 2020- 1 has
been modified as follows:

Mcrxirraum Special Tax

Assessor' s Parcel Nurriber Fiscal Year 2020-21 *

XXX- XXX- XXX per Unit

On July 1, 2021, and on each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Taxes shown in
the table above shall be increased by an amount equal to two percent( 2%) of the

amount in effect for the p io Fiscal Yea

2.       The Maximum Special Tax for Residential Property may only be modified prior to the First
Transfer Date ( i. e., the date of the first transfer of ownership to a private homeowner after
a building permit for new construction was issued).

3.       Upon execution of this Certificate by CFD No. 2020- 1, CFD No. 2020- 1 shall prepare an
amended notice of Special Tax lien for CFD No. 2020- 1 reflecting the modifications set
forth herein.  Amended notices of Special Tax lien shall be recorded by groups, once a
sufficient number of notices have been prepared.

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of this certificate and of the modification of the Maximum
Special Tax as set forth in this Certificate.  Capitalized undefined terms used herein have the

meanings ascribed thereto in the Rate and Method.

River Islands Public Financing Authority
Community Facilities District No. 2020- 1 ( Stage 2B Public Improvements)

By: Date:

490



TTA T 2

o a

LL rn =
N      ¢       a v 

N      ¢         g    o U z
o          LL a s

Z z            a   ssa 3
1— w a

Q g
O

Z  j LL b  g o o
V

o ¢ o   Q                       ¢   x     
o                     g       s' aN

a
m

v
w c         

a  om LL         6 0

w  F- m Z w y-  I<     f

a = 

J   

O
U  €  

N y=     x     

o

LL m Z U
W  o S`     

a'     -a
i

L e    '

G      s
a.  

W       o y$     
c o

Z F          
Q    o i c-

c       LL I z E3     —
z y  _  o

O

o

o      a

o

J            

ys
0

O

y,       l o
a E

b.._ 

F  . $ 

g_   $ a .       
R

fon
a

Z

Po
N       ~    

o
os W   w y;

W    ? 
J

n

N  IO     

ry

s o
o.

b .       OP
3

P 

w
5

s"'  
I,   a I

RA i
I

iS oo
i.       $  
i a i o  

g .    .     i       
8

4  '    o  ,,
i     

d            
i

i           \  i w
i i w = 

ag
i            

L_________________ J o r

rS pv, 

w g =

W
r :

s    

z

o° 

a  
R o 

491



EXHIBIT C

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020- 1

STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS)

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES FOR ZONE 2 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Special Tax for Taxable Property within Tax Zone
2 and all Parcels that annex into Tax Zone 2.

TAX ZONE 2

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

Type of Property Maximum Special Tax Fiscal

Year 2020-21 *

Residential Property       $  per Unit

Other Property per Acre

Final Map Property       $  per Final Map Lot

Undeveloped Property     $  per Acre

On July 1, 2021, and on each Ju/y 1 thereafter, the Maximum
Special Taxes shown in the Table above shall be increased by
an amount equal to two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect

for the p ior Fiscal Yea

C- 1

492



EXHIBIT D

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020- 1

STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS)

ANNEXATION NO. 2

ASSESSOR' S PARCEL NUMBER( S) AND OWNER( S) OF LAND WITHIN

ANNEXATION NO. 2 TO RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020- 1

STAGE 2B PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS)

San Joaquin County
Name( s) of Property Owner( s) Assessor' s Parcel No.

River Islands Stage 26, LLC 213- 470- 02

73 W. Stewart Rd.,

Lathrop, CA 95330

D- 1

493



494



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 5. 1

DECEMBER 14, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER THE CDBG- CV3 FUNDING ALLOCATION

FOR A THIRD ROUND OF EMERGENCY GENERAL

ASSISTANCE GRANTS FOR QUALIFIED LATHROP

RESIDENTS

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  Adopt a Resolution to Accept the CDBG- CV3

Funding and Allocate a Third Round of

Emergency General Assistance Grants,  Multi-

County Agency Funding Requests,    City
Reimbursement for Program Administration,

and Authorize Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

The Federal Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security Act ( CARES Act) provided
phased funding to the Department of Housing and Urban Development ( HUD) for use
in addressing community issues related to COVID- 19 through the Community
Development Block Grant program  ( CDBG- CV).    This third allocation of phased
funding provided by the CARES Act is referred to as CDBG- CV3. The City of Lathrop' s
allocation of CDBG- CV3 funding is $ 61, 610.

On May 11, 2020, the Lathrop City Council authorized the creation of an Emergency
General Assistance  ( EGA)  grant program to aid qualified low- income residents
financially impacted by COVID- 19 and authorized use of $ 56, 346 from the first phase
of CARES Act funding and $ 35, 721 from the undesignated portion of FY 2020- 2021
CDBG allocation as the funding source for the program.

Since inception, the EGA program has been managed and monitored by City staff in
accordance with HUD' s national objectives along with regulatory guidance from San
Joaquin County' s Community Development Block Grant administrators.  To date,

thirty- one households in Lathrop have been assisted with past due mortgage or rent
payments and/ or essential utilities in a general effort to prevent homelessness and
utility shut- offs. The EGA program is scheduled to end when all designated funds
have been exhausted.  As of this date, the program' s remaining balance is $ 9, 902. 55

and applications are still be accepted and processed.

The City' s allocation for the CDBG- CV3 program funding will be $ 61, 610.  Two multi-

county agencies have submitted funding requests for a total of $ 8, 022. 70 to serve

Lathrop residents. These two agencies are San Joaquin Fair Housing and Emergency
Food Bank.

495



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT paye  2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE CDBG- CV3 FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR
A THIRD ROUND OF EMERGENCY GENERAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS FOR

QUALIFIED LATHROP RESIDENTS

Staff recommends that City Council hold a Public Hearing, consider the information

given in this report,  adopt the proposed resolution,  and authorize the respective
budget adjustment.

BACKGROUND:

The Federal Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security Act ( CARES Act), enacted
into public law on March 27,  2020,  provided  $ 5 billion in supplemental CDBG- CV

funding for grants to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the impacts of Coronavirus
around the nation.  In addition, the CARES Act provided alternative requirements and
grant waivers to make it easier to use CDBG- CV funds. It further allowed agencies to

use any undesignated funds from CDBG fiscal years 2019/ 2020 and 2020/ 2021 for
coronavirus response program( s).

On May 11, 2020, the Lathrop City Council authorized the creation of an Emergency
General Assistance grant program to aid qualified low- income residents financially
impacted by COVID- 19.  The following CDBG language in Federal Statute allows for
the creation of such a program:

Subsistence Payments 24 CFR 570. 207( b)( 4) or 42 USC 5305( a)( 8)  +  24 CFR
570. 482( c)( 2)

One- time or short- term ( no more than three months*) emergency payments on
behalf of individuals or families,   generally for the purpose of preventing
homelessness. Examples include utility payments to prevent cutoff of service, and
rent/ mortgage payments to prevent eviction."

CBDG- CV3 allows for no more than six months

Council allocated the use of $ 56, 346 from the first phase of CDBG- CV funding and
35, 721 from the undesignated portion of FY 2020- 2021 CDBG allocation as the

funding source for the program.   The initial round of EGA funding from CDBG- CV
allowed payment of eligible expenses for qualified applicants back to March 27, 2020.
The second round of EGA funding  ( EGA2),  funded by the FY 2020- 2021 CDBG
allocation, allowed payment of eligible expenses for qualified applicants from July 1,
2020 forward.

The EGA program requires the applicant to provide a completed application, proof of
income or lack of income, financial hardship due to COVID, and notices of past due
rent or mortgage and/ or utilities during the stated timeframe. Awarded funds are

submitted directly to the landlord or mortgage lender, and/ or utility company( ies) on
behalf of the grant recipient.  Priority payout of past due City utility bills is given prior
to release of funds for other bills submitted by grant recipient.  The program is
available on a one- time basis to individuals or families residing within the city limits

496



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page  3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE CDBG- CV3 FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR
A THIRD ROUND OF EMERGENCY GENERAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS FOR

QUALIFIED LATHROP RESIDENTS

of Lathrop. The maximum award of $ 3, 200 per household is paid on a first- come,
first serve basis until all designated funds have been exhausted.

HUD announced the third phase of funding from the CARES Act for the CDBG- CV3
programming the first part of October 2020.  CDBG- CV3 funds may be used for CDBG
eligible activities that are COVID related.  However, HUD is recommending that the
funds be prioritized for rental and mortgage assistance through programs such as
Lathrop' s Emergency General Assistance grant.

Because COVID- 19 has extended throughout the majority of the year and there is a
need to assist residents in the community with payment of past- due rent, mortgage
payments and/ or essential utilities, staff recommends allocation of funding toward a
third round of Emergency General Assistance grants to be issued under the original
guidelines for distribution, eligibility and documentation requirements.

The City of Lathrop,  through an Urban Cooperative Agreement with San Joaquin

County, will receive an allocation from CDBG- CV3 for $ 61, 610.  CDBG- CV3 allows

payment of eligible expenditures back to March 27,  2020,  which may be offered
through a third round of EGA grants. The County has also advised that San Joaquin
Fair Housing has submitted a request for $ 236. 70, and the Emergency Food Bank
has submitted a request for  $ 7, 786 to serve Lathrop residents,  which leaves

52, 587. 30 available for the EGA grant program. In addition, the City may recoup up
to 20% of the allocation for costs associated with administering the program.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that City Council consider the information presented and adopt
the Resolution to accept the CDBG- CV3 funding and allocate a third round of
Emergency General Assistance Grants, Multi- County Agency funding requests, City
reimbursement for program administration,   and authorize respective budget
amendment.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff time to review and verify eligibility of applicants, dispense financial subsidies,
report, present, monitor and manage the CDBG- CV3 Emergency General Assistance
Grant Program.

The County' s disbursement process requires the City to set up a separate account( s)
to accommodate the CDBG- CV reimbursement program.   Because of the emergent

situation surrounding COVID- 19 and to move the money quickly for the benefit of the
grant recipient, an increase in revenues in the amount equal to the total CDBG- CV
allocation will be required.

Staff is requesting the following budget amendments:

497



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page  4

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE CDBG- CV3 FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR
A THIRD ROUND OF EMERGENCY GENERAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS FOR
QUALIFIED LATHROP RESIDENTS

CARES ACT CDBGCV:

Increase CDBG Revenues
2650- 20- 10- 333- 01- 04 52, 588

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.       Resolution to Accept the CDBG- CV3 Funding and Allocate a Third Round of
Emergency General Assistance Grants,   Multi- County Agency Funding
Requests, City Reimbursement for Program Administration, and Authorize
Budget Amendment

B.       CDBG- CV3 Emergency General Assistance Grant Program income

guidelines, eligibility, and application.

498



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page  5

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE CDBG- CV3 FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR

A THIRD ROUND OF EMERGENCY GENERAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS FOR

QUALIFIED LATHROP RESIDENTS

APPROVALS:

12- o1 - 2f 2v

Shelley Burch Date

Economic Development Administrator

7
1

Ca s Date

Directo of Finance and Administr ive Services

2
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

jZ• 7•voao
S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

499



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO ACCEPT
THE CDBG- CV3 FUNDING AND ALLOCATE A THIRD ROUND OF EMERGENCY
GENERAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS,    MULTI- COUNTY AGENCY FUNDING

REQUESTS, CITY REIMBURSEMENT FOR PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION, AND
AUTHORIZE BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, in March 2020, the Federal Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic
Securities Act  ( CARES Act)  was enacted into public law,  provided  $ 5 billion in

supplemental Community Development Block Grant ( CDBG)  funding for grants to

prevent,  prepare for,  and respond to the impacts of the Coronavirus  ( CDBG- CV)

around the nation. If further allowed agencies to use any undesignated funds from
CDBG fiscal years 2019/ 2020 and 2020/ 2021 for Coronavirus response programs;
and

WHEREAS,  on May il 2020,  City Council approved the creation of an
Emergency General Assistance  ( EGA)  grant program to assist eligible residents
financially impacted by Coronavirus with past due rent/ mortgage and/ or essential
utility payments in an effort to avoid homelessness and prevent utility shutoffs; and

WHEREAS, City Council authorized the allocation of $ 56, 346, the first phase

of CDBG- CV funding from the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development ( HUD) as designated by the CARES Act, as a funding source for the
EGA grant program; and

WHEREAS,  City Council authorized the allocation of $ 35, 721,  the second

phase of CDBG- CV funding, from the undesignated portion of CDBG FY2020/ 2021 as
a funding source for EGA grant program; and

WHEREAS, the City is prepared to receive an allocation of $ 61, 610 for the

third phase of Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus relief funding
CDBG- CV3) from HUD, as designated by the CARES Act; and

WHEREAS,  the City also participates in an Urban County Cooperative

Agreement and allocates CDBG funding toward other multi- county agencies that
apply directly with San Joaquin County; and

WHEREAS, two other multi- county agencies which serve Lathrop residents
have also submitted CDBG- CV3 funding requests in the amount of $ 8, 022. 70; $ 236

to San Joaquin Fair Housing and $ 7, 786 to Emergency Stockton Food bank, which
would reduce the CDBG- CV3 funding available for the EGA grant program to

52, 587. 30; and

WHEREAS, the City has properly published a Public Hearing Notice 10 days
prior to the meeting in accordance with HUD regulations; and

Resolution No. 20-

500



WHEREAS, the City Council has determined in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act, Article 18, Section 15273, that this item is categorically
exempt because CEQA does not apply to the establishment or modification of HUD
funding programs to public agencies with are to meet community needs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby accept CDBG- CV3 funding and authorizes an allocation as
follows:

Or anization/ Pro ram Allocations

Emer enc General Assistance Grant Pro ram 40, 265. 30

San Joa uin Fair Housin 236. 70

Emer enc Stockton Food Bank 7, 786. 00

Cit Reimbursement for Pro ram Administration Costs 12, 322. 00

Total Allocation 61, 610. 00

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve a budget amendment for FY 2020- 2021 as follows:

CARES ACT CDBGCV3:

Increase CDBG Revenues

2650- 20- 10- 333- 01- 04 52, 588

Resolution No. 20-

501



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 20-

502



ATTACHMENT B

EMAIL COMPLETED APPLICATION AND REQUESTED DOCUMENTS TO WEBSITE_ EDD@CI. LATHROP. CA. US

City of Lathrop

Community Development Block Grant— CV ( ROUND 3)

Emergency General Assistance Grant Program Application for Funding
Pro ram Guidelines and Eli ibilitv

Grant Amount Available:       Up to$ 3, 200 per eligible household
Funds Available to Pay: Past due rent and utilities from March 27, 2020 forward

ONLY ONE GRANT AVAILABLE PER HOUSEHOLD*****

Eligibility:

The City of Lathrop' s General Assistance Grant Program is available to all households that meet ALL of the
following criteria:

Primary residence within the City limits of Lathrop

Household Income impacted by COVID- 19 ( Lost job, laid- off, company closed, afflicted by or caring for
someone with the Coronavirus.)

Unable to pay past- due rent, mortgage, and/ or essential utilities incurred on or after March 27, 2020
Meet the income limits as summarized below

FY 2020 Income Limits Summary for Stockton- Lodi MSA
FY 2020 Income Persons in Family
Limit Category 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Median very Low( 50%)   $ 26, 250   $ 30, 000    $ 33, 750    $ 37, 500    $ 40, 500    $ 43, 500    $ 46, 500    $ 49,500

InCome
Income Limits

Family
S)

of 4)      
Extremely Low-   $ 15, 750   $ 18, 000    $ 21, 720    $ 26, 200    $ 30,680    $ 35, 160    $ 39, 640    $ 44, 120

Income Limits

Low( 803'0)      $ 42, 000   $ 48, 000    $ 54, 000    $ 60, 000    $ 64, 800    $ 69, 600    $ 74, 400    $ 79, 200

75, 000 Income Limits($)

Source: HUD User Income Limits Documentation System

Note: San Joaquin County is part of the Stockton- Lodi MSA, so all information presented here applies to all of
the Stockton- Lodi, CA MSA.

To Apply:

Email completed application and ALL required documentation to WEBSITE_ EDD@CI. LATHROP. CA. US

Applications accepted up to March 31, 2021, while grant funds are available.
Grant awards will be allocated on a first-come, first-serve basis until all designated funds are exhausted.

Only complete applications with all necessary documentation submitted will be accepted.
Required:

Proof of impact on household income from COVID- 19, i. e.: medical documents, job loss, company closure,

etc.

Proof of income, i. e.: check stubs, EDD Benefit Award statements, disability statements, social security

statements, or other proof of income payment( s)

Copies of rent or mortgage due and/ or late notices for utility payments to be paid for by this grant.

Expenditures must be associated with the primary residence of applicant. Late notices or fees incurred prior
to March 27, 2020 are ineligible.

Past-due City utility payment(s) incurred on or after 3/ 27/ 20 will be deducted from the grant prior to paying
other bills.

Payments made by this grant will be mailed directly to debtor on behalf of Grantee.
Completed W-9 by Landlord for rent payments.

1

The City of Lathrop' s General Assistance Grant Program has been created in accordance with CDBG Statute: Subsistence Payments
24 CFR 570. 207( b)( 4) or 42 USC 5305( af( 8J+ 24 CFR 570. 482( cJ( 2).503



EMAIL COMPLETED APPLICATION AND REQUESTED DOCUMENTS TO WEBSITE_ EDD@CI. LATHROP. CA. US

City of Lathrop

Community Development Block Grant— CV ( ROUND 3)

Emergency General Assistance Grant Program Application for Funding
APPLICATION

Name:

Address:

Phone: Email:

How many people live in your household?

Current/ Past Employer Name and Address

Are you Yes If no, what was the date of

working?       No the last day you worked?

Total Household Income:

Please include income from all persons living in home of applicant.)      $

Are you or anyone in your household collecting unemployment or other social assistance?
If so, how much? ( Please attach copies of check stubs, statements or payment.)   Yes No

Payer/ Company/ Agency Who in your household Amount per Month ($)

receives this income?

Please list all other income for all residents living in the household in the space below.
Please attach copies of check stub, statements or payment.)

Payer/ Company/ Agency Who in your household Amount per Month ($)

receives this income?

2

The City of Lathrop' s General Assistance Grant Program has been created in accordance with CDBG Statute: Subsistence Payments
24 CFR 570. 207( b)( 4J or 42 USC 5305( a)( 8)+ 24 CFR 570. 482( c)( 2).504



EMAIL COMPLETED APPLICATION AND REQUESTED DOCUMENTS TO WEBSITE_ EDD@CI. LATHROP. CA. US

City of Lathrop

Community Development Block Grant — CV ( ROUND 3)

Emergency General Assistance Grant Program Application for Funding
Please list atl past due rent, mortgage payments, and/ or utility payments dated after
March 27, 2020 for which you wish to pay from this grant? ( Please provide copies of all rent

due or past due utility bills you desire to be paid for by the General Assistance Grant.)
City of

Lathrop Landlord/ Mortgage Utility Company Utility Company

Water/ Sewer

Company Name

Address

Phone

Total Amount

Incurred after

March 27, 2020

Account#

Statement Attached

Demographic Information

Please provide general demographic information for all persons within your household who will benefit from this grant.
Number of: Male Female

Indicate the number of people in your household that qualify for one of the following categories:

Handicapped Female Head of Household Senior Citizen Veteran N/ A

Race/ Ethnicity. Place a check mark by the race/ ethnicity closest to which the applicant identifies. If of Hispanic origin,
also place an ( x) in the Hispanic box next to the race/ ethnicity box for which the applicant identifies.

Race/ Ethnicity Choose One) Hispanic

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Asian and White

American Indian/ Alaskan Native

American Indian/ Alaska Native and White

American Indian/ Alaska Native and Black/ African American

Black/ African American

Black/ African American and White

Native Hawaiian/ Other Pacific Islander

White

Other Multi Racial

I hereby certify that I have read this application, completed it to the best of my knowledge, provided the required documentation,
and that the statement( s) therein are true.

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

Signature Print Name Date

3

The City of Lathrop' s General Assistance Grant Program has been created in accordance with CDBG Statute: Subsistence Payments
24 CFR 570. 207( b)( 4) or 42 USC 5305( a)( 8)+ 24 CFR 570. 482( c)( 2).505



TRANSMITTAL

ATTN:  LEGAL PUBLICATIONS

PLEASE PUBLISH: No later than Thursday, December 3, 2020

PLEASE EMAIL CONFIRMATION TO: Email to tvargas@ci. lathrop. ca. us

CITY OF LATHROP — PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the City of Lathrop City Council will hold a Regular Meeting
in the City Council Chambers at 290 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, California, at 7: 00
p. m., Monday, December 14, 2020, for a public hearing regarding the following
matter.   All persons having an interest in this matter are invited to be present to
testify in person, or to submit statements in person at the meeting or in writing prior
to the hearing.

PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER THE CDBG- CV3

FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR A THIRD ROUND OF EMERGENCY GENERAL

ASSISTANCE GRANTS FOR QUALIFIED LATHROP RESIDENTS

The City Council to Consider the Following:

1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopt a Resolution to accept the CDBG- CV3 Funding and Allocate a Third Round
of Emergency General Assistance Grants,   Multi- County Agency Funding
Requests,  City Reimbursement for Program Administration,  and Authorize

Respective Budget Amendment.

If you challenge any decision of the City Council in court, you may be limited to
raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the meeting described in this
notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the
public hearing.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance
to participate in this meeting, please call ( 209) 941- 7230.  Notification 48 hours prior
to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility.

For more information,  contact the Economic Development Division at 390 Towne

Centre Drive,  Lathrop,  CA 95330,  by phone at  ( 209)  941- 7221,  or by email at
econdev@ci. lathrop. ca. us

TERESA VARGAS — CITY CLERK

506



ITEM 5. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMEBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: REVIEW AND PROVIDE DIRECTION ON

PROPOSED ITEMS FOR INCLUSION AS PART OF

CIP PK 20- 18 SANGALANG PARK

IMPROVEMENTS

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Review and Provide Direction on

Proposed Items to be Included as part of CIP
PK 20- 18 Sangalang Park Improvements

SUMMARY:

At the December 9, 2019 City Council meeting, Council approved the creation of CIP
PK 20- 18 for improvements at Sangalang Park and funding to conduct a survey of
the proposed improvement site and hire an architect to create a design to allow staff
to estimate the associated costs of the improvements.   As part of the discussion
Council asked staff to consider the following improvements as part of the project:

Project 1: Remove and replace existing play structure and install rubberized surface
Project 2: Install a new restroom adjacent to the play structure
Project 3: Install a five to six element waterplay splashpad
Project 4: Install two tennis courts

Project 5: Install new park sign and historical marker

Staff is returning tonight to present each of the projects described above with
approximate associated costs for review, and to have Council provide direction on
park improvements.

BACKGROUND:

Sangalang Park is an approximately 10 acre park site within the Stonebridge
development, located along the north boundary of) oseph Widmer Elementary School
and along Opal Street,  Deerwood Avenue, and Slate Street.   Staff has contracted

with a sureveyor to conduct a survey of the park area, as well as an architect to

provide a conceptual design of the park and provide an estimate of costs for the
proposed improvements.

Project 1: Play Structure Replacement
This project proposes the removal of the existing outdated play structure and
replacing the structure with a ship play area for children ages 2- 5 and an additional
island play area for children ages 5 - 12 years.  The play area will also include the
replacement of the swings.    Once these items are placed we will install new
rubberized surfacing.    Based on the engineers construction estimate,  staff has

determined the approximate costs for the removal and replacement of the play
structures as well as the placement of the expanded rubberized surfacing to be

468, 000.

507



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REVIEW AND PROVIDE DIRECTION ON PARK IMPROVEMENTS FOR

SANGALANG PARK

Project 2: Installation of a Second Restroom

This project proposes the installation of a new restroom on the northside of the park
adjacent to the new play area and the existing ball diamond.   As discussed at the

December 9, 2019 Council meeting, the proposed restroom will meet the requirments
to allow for the designation for the separation of inen' s and women' s facilities at this

location. Staff estimates the approximate costs for the purchase and placement of
this restroom facility to be $ 282, 900.

Project 3: Installation of a Waterplay Splashpad
Currently the City of Lathrop has two waterplay areas within the community.
Valverde Park has a small water fountain feature and Mossdale Community Park has
a 5 item water play area.   The proposed project at this location will include 5 to 6
water themed items to match the play structure theme such as Rain Shack, a Palm
Tree with Dumping Bananas, a Shower Tunnel, a Curved path of pop- up jets, and a
Whale Tail waterfall.   Staff estimates the approximate costs for the purchase and
placement of these items to be $ 445, 300.

Project 4: Installation of Tennis Courts

This project proposes the installation of two tennis courts adjacent to the existing
basketball court in the middle of the park.  The courts would be fenced and include

benches.   Staff estimates the approximate costs for the installation of these courts

to be $ 369, 900.

Project 5: Park Sign and Placement of Historical Marker

This project would propose to replace the existing wooden sign at the corner of
Deerwood Avenue and Slate Street with a concrete park name sign at this corner as
well as at the corner of Opal Street and Deerwood Ave.   Staff is also proposing to
place a historical marker and the installation of a lighted flagpole to post both
American and POW flags at this location to educate park visitors about Apolinar
Sangalang including his military service.   Staff estimates the approximate costs for

the purchase and installation of these items to be $ 35, 500.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is returning to Council as requested to present the conceptual design of the
Sangalang Park improvement projects and the associated costs.   Staff asks Council

to review the projects presented and provide direction as to which projects should be
considered as part of CIP PK 20- 18 Sangalang Park Improvements.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff estimates the following approximate costs associated with each of the projects
presented within this report:

Project i: Play structure Replacement 468, 000

Project 2: Placement of a Second Restroom 282 900

Project 3: Installation of a Waterplay Splashpad 445, 300

508



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REVIEW AND PROVIDE DIRECTION ON PARK IMPROVEMENTS FOR

SANGALANG PARK

Project 4: Installation of Tennis Courts 369, 900

Project 5: Park Sign and Placement of Historical Marker 35, 500

Projects Estimated Cost 1, 601, 600

Project contingency ( 15%)       240, 240

Total Estimated Costs:       1, 841, 840

Staff will include projects selected by Council and move forward with the development
of construction documents,  secure bids for the project,  and return to Council for

approval of the construction contract and related budget amendment.  Based on the

directon of Council these one time improvement projects could be funded through
available Measure C funds.

509



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REVIEW AND PROVIDE DIRECTION ON PARK IMPROVEMENTS FOR

SANGALANG PARK

APPROVALS:

Z,

Zachary Jo Date

Director of Park and Recreation

C--      t 2- 2.- z.o Z.o

Michael King Date

Director of Public Works

v 4 3 lav av
Cari Ja s Date

Director f Fi ance and Administrative Services

3d  Z

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z ?• Zoz

S hen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

510



ITEM 5. 3

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: RECEIVE AND OPEN PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD

OF THE LATHROP PARKS AND RECREATION
MASTER PLAN

RECOMMENDATION: Council To Receive the Final Draft of the City of
Lathrop Parks and Recreation Master Plan and
Open 30- day Period of Public Review and

Comment.

SUMMARY:

Staff requests City Council receive the final draft of the City of Lathrop Parks and
Recreation Master Plan and open a 30- day period for public review and comment.
Following the public review period staff will return to Council for the adoption of the
final Parks and Recreation Master Plan.

BACKGROUND:

On September 9, 2019 City Council approved a professional services agreement with
GreenPlay, LLC to conduct a comprehensive Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  Due

to the rapid growth and changing demographics in Lathrop, the City chose to develop
the master plan using an outside consultant to ensure the process was community
driven and provided a transparent evaluation of the City' s current facilities, parks,

programs, department operations, and future planning considerations.

This Master Plan focuses on an in- depth analysis of the following areas of service:

Demographic Assessment Inventory of Current Facilities
Trend Analysis Identification of New Facilities
Community Outreach Analysis of Current Services
Conduct a City Wide Survey Identify Climate Concerns
Community Needs Assessment Review Sources of Funding
Analysis of Fees and Charges Develop a Plan of Action

Our consultant, GreenPlay, LLC, gathered data for this plan through hosting public
open forums and focus groups,  meetings with City Commissions and the City
Executive Staff,  and individual work sessions with City Council members.  They
completed a statistically valid community survey,  performed component- based
mapping, conducted a city- wide inventory and analysis of park locations, reviewed

trails and open space, recreation programs, identified city owned properties, analyzed
current level of service,  identified possible locations for future public facilities,
benchmarked similar park and recreation agencies, and compared this data with data
from the National Parks and Recreation Association.  The information generated from
this analysis was utilized to develop the draft of the City of Lathrop Parks and

511



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RECEIVE THE FINAL DRAFT OF THE CITY OF LATHROP PARKS AND

RECREATION MASTER PLAN FOR PUBLIC REVIEW

Recreation Master Plan.

This final draft of the Parks and Recreation Master Plan has been reviewed by City

Staff and presented to the Parks and Recreation Commission at the December 3,
2020 meeting, where it was recommended to have City Council accept this draft and
open a 30- day review and comment period.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Parks and Recreation Master Plan provides a 5- year vision for the city' s park and
recreation system, and specific policies and standards to direct day- to- day decisions.
This Master Plan will set forth a framework that will allow the City to respond to new
opportunities as they arise,  set a schedule of repair and replacement for current

facilities, ensure that adequate parks and recreation facilities are constructed to meet
the needs of the City' s current and future residents.

The 30- day public review and comment period will provide our residents the
opportunity participate in the completion of the final document.  Following this review
period staff will return to Council for the acceptance of the completed Parks and
Recreation Master Plan

FISCAL IMPACT:

There are no fiscal impacts associated with report.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Final Draft of the City of Lathrop Parks and Recreation Master Plan

512



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RECEIVE THE FINAL DRAFT OF THE CITY OF LATHROP PARKS AND

RECREATION MASTER PLAN FOR PUBLIC REVIEW

APPROVALS:

I,.- " 1 — Zl Z:c

achary J Date

Director of arks and Recreation

2.-7- ?, f 2b

M rk M iss er Date

Director of Com unity Development

12-" 1 - Zo2o

Michael King Date

Director of Public Works

F   ..    
z I- 1 z z

Cari James Date

Director of Finance and Administrative Services

Z v ?J

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

j Z • g- zoZo
St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

513



City of Lathrop
Department of Parks and Recreation
FY 2021- 2026 Five Year Master Plan

514



515



iFY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Mayor and City Council
Mayor, Sonny Dhaliwal

Vice Mayor, Martha Salcedo
Councilmember, Paul Akinjo

Councilmember, Diane Lazard
Councilmember, Jennifer Torres- O’Callaghan

Administration
City Manager, Stephen J. Salvatore

Director of Finance and Administrative Services
Cari James

Parks and Recreation Staff
Director of Parks and Recreation, Zachary Jones

Superintendent of Parks and Recreation, Todd Sebastian, CPRP

Parks and Recreation Commission
Ajit Singh Sandhu

Jimmy Zien
Minnie Diallo
Romi Bhinder
Hope Datoc

Consultant Team
GreenPlay, LLC

LandDesign
RRC Associates

For more information about this document, contact GreenPlay, LLC
At: 1021 E. South Boulder Road, Suite N, Louisville, Colorado 80027, Telephone: 303-439-8369

Email: info@greenplayllc. com www.greenplayllc. com

516



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlanii

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary ............................................................................................................................. 1
A. Planning Purpose ................................................................................................................................ 1
B. Inventory Assessment and Level of Service Summary ........................................................................ 2
C. Key Challenges and Opportunities  .....................................................................................................3
D. Summary of Recommendations and Action Plan Table ...................................................................... 3

I. Introduction of the Planning Context ............................................................................................ 5
A. Introduction and Purpose ................................................................................................................... 5
B. History and Framework of Lathrop  ..................................................................................................... 6
C. Parks and Recreation Department Overview ...................................................................................... 6
D. Related Planning Efforts and Integration ............................................................................................. 7
E. Methodology of this Planning Process ................................................................................................ 8

II. Identified Tasks ................................................................................................................................ 11
Task 1: Demographic Assessment ........................................................................................................... 11
Task 2: Trends Analysis  ........................................................................................................................... 17
Task 3: Civic Engagement  ........................................................................................................................ 21
Task 4: Completion of a Statistically Valid City- Wide Survey ................................................................... 25
Task 5: Community Needs Assessment ................................................................................................... 31
Task 6: Fees Charges and Cost Recovery Analysis .................................................................................... 38
Task 7: Inventory of Parks and Recreation Facilities ................................................................................ 40
Task 8: Identification of New Park and Recreation Facilities ................................................................... 49
Task 9: Analysis of Programs, Services and Maintenance Standards ....................................................... 75
Task 10: Climate, Biological, Natural Resources, and Cultural Legacy ..................................................... 87
Task 11: Capital Improvement Funding  .................................................................................................. 93

Appendix A: Level of Service Analysis and Methodology ......................................................................105
Appendix B: Cost Recovery Analysis ...................................................................................................... 137
Appendix C: Inventory Atlas ................................................................................................................... 171

517



iiiFY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

TABLE OF FIGURES
Figure 1: 2020 Parks and Recreation Branding ........................................................................................ 1
Figure 2: Planning Process ....................................................................................................................... 2
Figure 3: Projected Population Trends in Lathrop from 2000 to 2030 .................................................... 12
Figure 4: 2019 Age Distribution in the City of Lathrop ............................................................................ 12
Figure 5: 2019 Racial/ Ethnic Diversity of the City of Lathrop  ................................................................. 13
Figure 6: Median Household Income Distribution in the City of Lathrop  ............................................... 15
Figure 7: Survey Key Findings, Invite and Open- link Samples Combined ................................................ 26
Figure 8: Importance of Special Events and/ or Festivals ......................................................................... 26
Figure 9: Importance of Current Facilities, Parks, and Programs ............................................................. 27
Figure 10: Ranking of Current Program and Facility Needs ..................................................................... 28
Figure 11: Current Program and Facility Needs ....................................................................................... 29
Figure 12: Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Vision and Values Rankings ............................................ 30
Figure 13: Best Way to Receive Communication in the City of Lathrop .................................................. 30
Figure 14: Location of Agencies Compared to Lathrop ........................................................................... 32
Figure 15: Lathrop Allocation of Total FTEs Involved in the Operational Areas ....................................... 33
Figure 16: Total Annual Operating Expenditures ..................................................................................... 34
Figure 17: Per Capita Spending by Fiscal Year ......................................................................................... 39
Figure 18: Key Map ..................................................................................................................................41
Figure 19: System Map ............................................................................................................................42
Figure 20: Probable Population Centers .................................................................................................. 47
Figure 21: GRASP® Level of Service Perspectives Catchment Areas ........................................................ 50
Figure 22: Lathrop Neighborhood Access to Outdoor Recreation ........................................................... 51
Figure 23: Pedestrian Barriers ................................................................................................................. 57
Figure 24: Walkable Access to Outdoor Recreation  ...............................................................................58
Figure 25: Walkable Access Gap Identification ........................................................................................60
Figure 26: Walkable Access to Outdoor Recreation Chart ....................................................................... 61
Figure 27: Percentage of Population with Walkable Access to Outdoor Recreation Chart ..................... 61
Figure 28: Park Access ............................................................................................................................. 73
Figure 29: Importance of Programs and Events ...................................................................................... 76
Figure 30: Top Needs for Recreation Programs ....................................................................................... 76
Figure 31: Barriers to Facilities and Programs ......................................................................................... 77
Figure 32: Number of Programs in Lathrop from 2017 - 2019 ................................................................ 78
Figure 33: Attendance of Programs in Lathrop from 2017 - 2019 ........................................................... 78
Figure 34: Revenue of Programs in Lathrop from 2017 - 2019 ................................................................ 79
Figure 35: Average High and Low Temperature in Lathrop ..................................................................... 87
Figure 36: Average Monthly Rainfall in Lathrop ...................................................................................... 88
Figure 37: Average Wind Speed in Lathrop ............................................................................................. 88
Figure 38: Community Resources ............................................................................................................ 91
Figure 39: GRASP® Asset Scoring Comparison ........................................................................................ 112
Figure 40: GRASP® Score calculation ....................................................................................................... 113
Figure 41: GRASP® Process ...................................................................................................................... 114
Figure 42: Example of GRASP® Level of Service ( LOS) ............................................................................. 115
Figure 43: Trail and Bicycle Map Example ............................................................................................... 129

518



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlaniv

TABLE OF TABLES
Table 1: Overall Process and Dates .......................................................................................................... 8
Table 2: 2019 City of Lathrop Educational Attainment ............................................................................... 14
Table 3: 2019 Jurisdiction Population Compared to Full-Time Employees .............................................. 32
Table 4: Number of Parks and Park Acreage ............................................................................................ 33
Table 5: Percentage of Total Full-Time Equivalents ( FTEs) Involved in the Operational Areas ................ 34
Table 6: Percentage of Total Full-Time Equivalents Involved in Administration  .....................................35
Table 7: 2019 Annual CIP Budget  ............................................................................................................ 35
Table 8: 2019 Annual Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Budget Designated by Expense .......................... 36
Table 9: Percentage of Funding by Source ............................................................................................... 36
Table 10: Number of Park and Facility Amenities .................................................................................... 37
Table 11: Summary of Lathrop Outdoor Locations .................................................................................. 43
Table 12: Future/ Potential Parks or Park Properties ............................................................................... 45
Table 13: Lathrop Indoor Facilities........................................................................................................... 45
Table 14: Park Ranking Table ................................................................................................................... 46
Table 15: Estimated asset life cycles and replacement costs ................................................................... 48
Table 16: Map Statistics for Figure 23 ...................................................................................................... 53
Table 17: GRASP® Comparative Data ....................................................................................................... 55
Table 18: Statistics for Figure 25 .............................................................................................................. 59
Table 19: Average Neighborhood Park .................................................................................................... 59
Table 20: Outdoor Park and Recreation Facilities – Median Population Served per Facility ................... 63
Table 21: NRPA Performance Benchmarks .............................................................................................. 65
Table 22: Acres of Park Land per 1,000 Residents ................................................................................... 66
Table 23: Components and Standards ..................................................................................................... 71
Table 24: Percentage of Agencies Offering Certain Activities .................................................................. 77
Table 25: Goals and Action Plan Table ..................................................................................................... 98
Table 26: GRASP® Outdoor Component List ............................................................................................ 104
Table 27: GRASP® Indoor Component List ............................................................................................... 110
Table 28: Outdoor Low Scoring Components .......................................................................................... 121
Table 29: Outdoor Low Outdoor Modifiers .............................................................................................122
Table 30: Indoor Low Scoring Components ............................................................................................. 123
Table 31: Low Scoring Indoor Modifiers ..................................................................................................123

519



1FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

A. Planning Purpose
The Parks and Recreation Master Plan is a result of valuable information that has been gathered to provide
a roadmap for the City to ensure that there is an appropriate balance of facilities, services, and amenities
within the community now and into the future. 

The process began with an assessment of the City of Lathrop’ s Parks and Recreation system and included
an evaluation of parks, programs, open spaces, trails, facilities, and amenities. A review of recreational
services was also conducted to see how they are meeting the needs of residents and keeping up with
the growth of the City. Maintaining existing and planning for new facilities, visioning for new and existing
programs, and service delivery are the focus for Lathrop as the City moves forward. 

executivesummaryexecutivesummary

Figure 1: 2020 Parks and Recreation Branding

520



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan2

Planning Process Overview
The integrated project team guided a review of institutional history, analysis of existing conditions, and
engagement with members of the Lathrop community. Key tasks included:

Figure 2: Planning Process

B. Inventory Assessment and Level of Service Summary
Parks and facilities were inventoried and assessed for function and quality in December 2019 using
the GRASP®- IT audit tool. This tool classifies park features into one of two categories: components and
modifiers. A component is a feature that people go to a park or facility to use, such as a tennis court, 
playground, or picnic shelter. Modifiers are amenities such as shade, drinking fountains, and restrooms
that enhance the comfort and convenience of a site. Find further definitions and discussions inAppendix
A.

GRASP® ( Geo-Referenced Amenities Standards Process) is the proprietary name for an approach that has
been applied in more than one hundred communities across the country to evaluate Level of Server ( LOS) 
for Parks and Recreation systems. With GRASP®, information from the inventory of parks and facilities
described in Section III was used in combination with Geographic Information Systems ( GIS) software to
produce analytic maps and data that show the quality and distribution of Park and Recreation services
across Lathrop. 

Observations and conclusions based on visits to each park or facility include the following:
A wide variety and diversity of park types and sizes can be found across Lathrop
Parks are well maintained but for many the LOS varies through assets and services provided
Most common components include playgrounds, open turf, shelters, courts, and sports fields

521



3FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

C. Key Challenges and Opportunities
Key challenges and opportunities were identified using several tools including review of existing plans and
documents, focus groups, stakeholder meetings, a community survey, asset inventory, and level of service
analysis. The information gathered from these sources was evaluated, and the recommendations were
developed that address the following key challenges and opportunities:

Maintaining, improving, and repairing existing facilities
Improving connectivity, developing trails and walking paths
Increasing availability for indoor space for programs, fitness, gyms, and meeting space
Continuing to develop partnerships and engage schools along with other surrounding communities
Preserving open space/ land acquisition
Creating a strong community
Need for new facilities and amenities: multigenerational community center, gym space, splash pads, 
dog park, outdoor fitness
Addressing accessibility: ADA, within existing and future neighborhoods
Increasing programming for events, youth, fitness, wellness, outdoor recreation and both youth and
adult sports
There is a need to seek additional funding sources: foundation, user fees, resource allocation, cost
recovery models, and capital funding opportunities

D. Summary of Recommendations and Action Plan Table
Goals, Objectives, and Action Steps are outlined in the main document to help create a process to move
forward. Over the next five to ten years, many influences will impact the success of the development
of future programs, services, amenities, and facilities. Funding availability, staff support, and community
support will play significant roles in future planning efforts.

The action plan identifies specific objectives for the following goals:
Redesign of existing Lathrop Community Center at Valverde Park
Additional Community Center in River Islands
Identify Sports Complex with lighted facilities

522



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan4

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

523



5FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

i. introduction of thei. introduction of the

planningcontextplanningcontext

A. Introduction and Purpose
The Parks and Recreation Master Plan will guide the City of Lathrop in its planning efforts for Parks and
Recreation over the next five years. Through a detailed assessment and evaluation of parks, recreation
programs, open spaces, facilities, and other amenities, the City can respond to the needs of a diverse
community. The City will have the opportunity to utilize the plan as a roadmap for Parks and Recreation
activities ensuring an appropriate balance of facilities, amenities, and services throughout the community. 

The document contains a complete listing of goals, objectives, and actionable strategies that
have been developed with recommendations from outreach with our community members to
guide the City in its system- wide approach for quality of life services. The Department will use
the plan as a resource for future development, renovation, and redevelopment of the City’ s
Parks and Recreation facilities as well as a guide for streamlined and improved programming. 

524



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan6

B. History and Framework of Lathrop
The City of Lathrop was founded on the development of the Central Pacific Railroad in 1870 and became
incorporated in 1989. Lathrop is currently one of the fastest growing communities in California. Located in
the San Joaquin Valley, about 50 miles south of Sacramento, Lathrop is located at the intersection of three
major freeways and is currently home to about 25,000 residents with a projected population growth to
reach 45,443 by 2030.

In 2014, the City made a commitment to the Lathrop community to provide a full-service Parks and
Recreation Department. This Master Plan will serve as the City’ s inaugural Parks and Recreation Master
Plan. While Lathrop currently offers Parks and Recreation programs and facilities for residents, this plan
recognizes that the City hopes to add new Parks and Recreation facilities within the next five years, as well
as the potential renovation of existing facilities. It is the goal of the City to plan for anticipated growth
while balancing the needs of residents in the more developed sections of the City with those of the newer, 
planned areas. The end goal is to create a balance of parks, facilities, and programs with accessibility to
everyone in the community. This should be the vision as the City continues to grow.

C. Parks and Recreation Department Overview
As a community in a period of exponential growth and development looking to shape its future, this Parks
and Recreation Master Plan will play a role in that process through improvements to the quality of life
elements for all residents. 

Stretching approximately 23 square miles with 108 acres of parks and open space distributed across the
City, the Parks and Recreation Department is well positioned to begin planning and focusing on facilities, 
parks, and programs in order to strengthen the opportunities and needs of the community. 

Within local parks one can find amenities such as a community center with a gymnasium, open green space, 
baseball, volleyball, basketball, splash pads, playgrounds, picnic areas, and other common components
found in most Parks and Recreation facilities. The City also utilizes Manteca Unified School District ( MUSD) 
facilities as part of an existing joint use agreement. The Department also has three indoor facilities within
its operational system. Those facilities include the Lathrop Community Center, the Lathrop Generations
Center, and the Lathrop Senior Center.

The Department employs 12 full-time employees, with numerous part- time staff serving in various
capacities. The Department also collaborates with various individuals and organizations on a contractual
basis for classes and instruction within the community. The City’ s Public Works Division oversees park and
facility maintenance contracts with the private sector for mowing and landscaping within the parks.

The Department has a strong programming philosophy focused on activities and programs that are multi-
generational in nature. These programs include:

Community events
Spring, Fall, Winter, Summer and sports camps
Kids Club-before and after school
Teen classes, events, trips and tournaments
Art programs- painting, and dance

Senior programs
Youth and adult sports programs
Contracted leisure classes
Dog obedience

525



7FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

In addition to programming, the Department oversees and manages the following parks and facilities:

Apolinar Sangalang Park
Armstrong Park
Basin Park
Lathrop Community Center
Crescent Park
Crystal Cover Park
Lathrop Generations Center
Lathrop Skate Park
Libby Park
Michael Vega Park

Milestone Manor Park
Mossdale Commons
William S. Moss Park
Park West
Reflections Park
River Park North
River Park South
Somerston Park
Lathrop Senior Center

Mossdale Landing
Community Park
Leland and Jane Stanford
Park
Summer House Park
The Green
Thomsen Park
Tidewater Park
Valverde Park
Woodfield Park

D. Related Planning Efforts and Integration
As the first system- wide Parks and Recreation Master Plan for the City of Lathrop, key components of the
process included research and review of other planning documents in order to understand the key factors
impacting Lathrop’ s future. The plan will serve as and build upon other supporting documents as they are
revised and updated. The plans that have been reviewed include:

City of Lathrop General Plan
Central Lathrop Land Use Map
Central Lathrop Specific Plan
River Islands Master Plan

526



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan8

E. Methodology of this Planning Process
The process of developing the Parks and Recreation Master Plan included the formation of an integrated
project team. The team was composed of select staff from the City, the GreenPlay consultant team, 
LandDesign, RRC Associates, and key City leadership and stakeholders who provided detailed input
throughout the project. The process was inclusive to members of the community, and the public was
given opportunities to participate through focus groups, stakeholder meetings, a public meeting, a mailed-
invitation survey, and an open-link survey. The overarching goal was to create a valid approach with input
from many sectors of the entire City, which would create a plan that blended consultant expertise with the
local knowledge of the community and its residents. Table 1 below outlines the overall process and dates.

Table 1: Overall Process and Dates

2

LandDesign, RRC Associates, and key City leadership and stakeholders who provided detailed input
throughout the project. The process was inclusive to members of the community, and the public was given
opportunities to participate through focus groups, stakeholder meetings, a public meeting, a mailed-
invitation survey, and an open link survey. The overarching goal was to create a valid approach with input
from many sectors of the entire city which would create a plan that blended consultant expertise with the
local knowledge of the community and its residents. The table below outlines the overall process and
dates. 

The process included the following tasks that were carefully analyzed and evaluated to assist with the
recommendations and action plan. The details of each task are outlined in the following sections and
include findings from the individual tasks. 

Strategic Kick-Off & Determination of Critical Success Factors
Project Coordination
Document Collection/ Integration of Existing Plans
Determination of Critical Success Factors/ Performance
Measures

October 2019

Community Profile & Engagement Integration with Survey
Initial Information Gathering
Focus Groups/ Staff/ Stakeholder Interviews
Community Wide Public Meetings
Needs Assessment/ Statistically Valid Survey

December 2019

Resource Inventory, Site Assessment & Mapping
Inventory and Level of Service Analysis
Assessment of Existing Standards
Demographics, Trends, and Community Profile
Organizational/ Program Analysis

December 2019- March 2020

Identification & Analysis
New Parks & Recreation Facilities

February- April 2020

Financial Analysis March - April 2020

Findings & Visioning
Key Issues Analysis Matrix
Visioning Strategies Workshop
Action Plan/ Recommendations

April 2020

Draft Plan, Action Plan, & Presentation April 2020

Final Plan, Presentation, and Deliverables October 2020

527



9FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

The process included the following tasks that were carefully analyzed and evaluated to assist with the
recommendations and action plan. The details of each task are outlined in the following sections and
include findings from the individual tasks.

Task 1: Demographic Assessment
Task 2: Trend Analysis
Task 3: Civic Engagement
Task 4: Completion of a Statistically-Valid Citywide Survey
Task 5: Community Needs Assessment
Task 6: Fees, Charges, and Cost Recovery Analysis
Task 7: Inventory of Parks and Recreation Facilities
Task 8: Identification of New Park and Recreation Facilities
Task 9: Analysis of Programs, Services and Maintenance Standards
Task 10: Climate, Biological, Natural Resources and Cultural Legacy
Task 11: Capital Improvement Funding
Task 12: Action Plan

528



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan10

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

529



11FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

ii. identifiedtasksii. identified tasks

Identified Tasks
Task 1: Demographic Assessment
Analyzing demographic data can inform decision making and resource allocation strategies for the provision
of parks, recreation, and open space management and is sourced from local and national reports. The
Municipal Services Review and Sphere of Influence Amendment, prepared by the City of Lathrop for the
San Joaquin County Local Agency Formation Commission ( LAFCo) in February 2016, was referenced for
population estimates and projections. This report took into consideration the construction of the River
Islands Project, which resulted in an extremely high population growth that national sources could not
have tracked. Esri Business Analyst, a national source based on the US Census, estimates a number of
various other household data points representing July 1 of the current ( 2019) and forecast years ( 2024). 
Data for this report was compiled in April 2020.

Population
According to the City of Lathrop Municipal Services Review and Sphere of
Influence Plan, the 2000 population was estimated at 10, 445. In 2010, the
population had reached 18, 023 with an estimated annual growth rate of
4.2 percent. By 2020, the population was projected to reach 30, 003 with
an annual growth rate of 9.48 percent. The rapid growth rate in the City
of Lathrop is reflective of the large amount of residential and commercial
development taking place within the City. Population estimates are
dependent on building permit activity and approved subdivision projects. While growth rates are expected
to stabilize beyond 2020, the City of Lathrop is continuing to plan for rapid growth with the General Plan
projecting a city build- out population of 85, 292.

24,939POPULATION:
Source: City of Lathrop Municipal

Services Review and Sphere of
Influence Plan – February 2016

530



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan12

Figure 3: Projected Population Trends in Lathrop from 2000 to 2030

Source: City of Lathrop Municipal Services Review and Sphere of influence Plan – February 2016

Age
The median age in the City of Lathrop in 2019 was 31.8 years old, younger than median age in the State of
California ( 36.3) and the United States (38.5). It is expected that the median age will only increase slightly
in 2024 to 31.9 years old. 

The City of Lathrop has the highest percentage of residents 25-29 years
old (9%), and a large proportion of children 0- 4 years old ( 8. 2%) and 5- 9
years old (8%). Compared to national data points, Lathrop had a younger
demographic with an age distribution indicative of a population of young
families. This is an important factor in determining the provision of Parks
and Recreation programs and services. 

31.8
MEDIAN AGE:

Source: 2019 Esri
Business Analyst

Figure 4: 2019 Age Distribution in the City of Lathrop

Source: 2019 Esri Business Analyst

531



13FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Race/ Ethnic Character
The U.S. Census notes that Hispanic origin can be viewed as the Heritage, Nationality, Lineage, or Country of
birth of the person or the person’s parents or ancestors before arrival in the United States. Approximately
44 percent of Lathrop residents identified as Hispanic in 2019. 

The City of Lathrop was more diverse than the average United States
population in 2019, with 77 percent identifying as a race other than White/
Caucasian. Those that identified as Asian made up 22 percent of the total
population, higher than the State of California ( 15%). Roughly 7 percent
of the population identified as Black or African American, and 21 percent
identified as another race not specified on the U. S. Census.

44.4%
HISPANIC ORIGIN:

Source: 2019 Esri
Business Analyst

Figure 5: 2019 Racial/ Ethnic Diversity of the City of Lathrop

Source: 2019 Esri Business Analyst

Educational Attainment
Table 2 shows the percentage of residents ( 18+) that obtained various levels of education. The City of
Lathrop ranked slightly lower than the State of California and the United States in terms of educational
attainment. For instance, approximately 21 percent of the population did not receive a high school or
equivalent diploma in the City in 2019, compared to the State of California ( 16.2%) and the United States
11.6%). This is an opportunity for the City to provide additional life-long learning programs for youth and

young adults.

532



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan14

Table 2: 2019 City of Lathrop Educational Attainment

Source: 2019 Esri Business Analyst

Household Data
The median household income in Lathrop in 2019 was $ 73,358, similar
to the State of California ($ 74,520). The median home value in the City of
Lathrop was $ 357,114, lower than California ($ 556,621) and greater than
the United States ($234,154). The average household size was 3.82 persons
in Lathrop in 2019, compared to 2.92 in California, and 2.59 in the United
States. An estimated 10. 7 percent of households in the City of Lathrop
received food stamps, compared to the rate in California at approximately
9.4 percent. 

73,358
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD

INCOME:

Source: 2019 Esri
Business Analyst

533



15FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Figure 6: Median Household Income Distribution in the City of Lathrop

Employment
Approximately 48 percent of the population was employed in white collar
positions, which typically performs managerial, technical, administrative, 
and/ or professional capacities. Approximately 35 percent were employed
by blue collar positions, such as construction, maintenance, etc. About 16
percent of residents were employed by the service industry. In 2019, an
estimated 5. 9 percent of the population was unemployed, compared to
the rate of California ( 5.5%) and the United States (4.6%). 

5.9%
UNEMPLOYMENT RATE:

Source: 2019 Esri
Business Analyst

534



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan16

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

535



17FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Task 2: Trends Analysis
An evaluation of identified trends related to Lathrop and surrounding communities, along with national
and local lifestyle trends, served as a background document to help guide the efforts in the delivery of
Parks and Recreation services as well as facility recommendations.

The changing pace of today’s world requires analyzing recreation trends from both a local and national
level. From a national perspective, organizations including the National Recreation and Park Association
NRPA), the American College of Sports Medicine ( ACSM), and the Outdoor Industry Association ( OIA), 

among many others, attempt to summarize and predict the most relevant trends impacting health, 
wellness, outdoor recreation, and parks for the current year. This broad level overview of 2020 trends can
help prepare agencies to understand how the future of Parks and Recreation might look and how agencies
can be at the forefront of innovation in the field. 

Local participation data as well as community input generated from the engagement process, determined
the relevant trends directly related to Lathrop. This information is intended to provide a foundational
context for potential recommendations discussed later in this report.

It should be noted that the local participation data that follows is gathered from ESRI Business Analyst
and measures the market potential for leisure activities. Market potential provides the estimated demand
for a service or product by calculating the consumption rate from local and national datapoints.1 These
estimates in participation provide a snapshot of fitness and wellness activities throughout Lathrop. 
Participation estimates help frame activities that are uniquely preferred in Lathrop compared tothe
State. Those activities that have the highest participation serve as a key perspective to understandingthe
community, and thus providing reference for the recommendations referenced throughout the report.

National standards are important in determining a best in practice approach for areas of consideration and
recommendations.2

1 “ Methodology Statement: 2019 Esri Market Potential” Esri. https:// downloads. esri. com/ esri_content_ doc/ dbl/ us/ J9672_ Market_ Potential_
DB_ Methodology_ Statement_ 2019.pdf, Accessed March 2020
2 Richard Dolesh, “ Top Trends in Parks and Recreation 2020” National Recreation and Parks Association: https:// www. nrpa. org/ parks- recreation-
magazine/ 2020/ january/ top-trends- in-parks- and-recreation- 2020/ Accessed 2020.

National Parks and Recreation 2020 Trends
The National Recreation and Park Association ( NRPA) annually releases several predictions that
could likely impact Parks and Recreation agencies. The yearly article identifies the changes agencies
are likely to see in the coming year. A summary of key predictions for 2020 are listed below: 

Recreation centers will continue to become known as community “ wellness hubs.” These
innovative models of health and wellness will provide safe gathering spaces, access to
healthcare providers, food and nutrition assistance, and additional education opportunities. 
Partnerships will be formed with health- related organizations. 
E-sports will continue to increase in popularity; agencies who are able to provide tournaments
or league play can engage teens and young adults that would otherwise not participate in
traditional recreation programs.
Landscape management practices may remove glyphosate, a common pesticide, due to
concerns from the International Agency for Research on Cancer ( IARC) that the weed killer is
probably carcinogenic to humans.”

Large parks have the ability to “ cool a city” through the presence of trees and green
infrastructure. Agencies may look to linear green spaces and trail corridors to reduce climate
change and the impacts of extreme heat.
One-third of agencies will have video surveillance in their parks and facilities, and the public
will want more surveillance to enhance security.

Source: National Recreation and Parks Association

536



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan18

The City of Lathrop can capitalize and be considered as “best in class” if they pursue the following standards
recognized by NRPA:

1. Recreation centers become known as “ Wellness hubs”. 
a. Lathrop Community Center should be redesigned to meet current standards for programs and

services
2. Develop a recreation center at River Islands
3. Centralized locations for large community gathering should be considered as the populations continue

to grow.
4. E-Sports and virtual programming need to be developed to meet current and future demand
5. Landscape management should develop maintenance standards and schedules to meet current and

future level of service standard and community expectation.

National Health and Fitness 2020 Trends
For the past 14 years, the American College of Sports Medicine (ACSM) Health and Fitness Journal
has released its fitness trends survey, which collects survey data from 3, 000 health and fitness
professionals. The following items made up the top ten fitness trends from the study for 2020:
1. Wearable Technology
2. High Intensity Interval Training (HIIT)
3. Group Training
4. Training with Free Weights
5. Personal Training
6. Exercise is Medicine
7. Body Weight Training
8. Fitness Programs for Older Adults
9. Health/ Wellness coaching
10. Employing Certified Fitness Professionals

Source: National Recreation and Parks Association3

Local Participation
The figure below shows household participation in various fitness activities in Lathrop. Participationwas
highest for the following activities:

Walking for exercise ( 22%)
Swimming ( 15%)
Yoga ( 9%)

3 Walter Thompson, “ Worldwide Survey of Fitness Trends for 2020” American College of Sports Medicine, https:// journals. lww. com/ acsm-
healthfitness/ Fulltext/ 2019/ 11000/ WORLDWIDE_ SURVEY_ OF_ FITNESS_ TRENDS_ FOR_ 2020. 6. aspx Accessed 2020

Community Events
Events that encourage social media sharing will increase brand recognition and grow potential
audiences for future events. Using exclusive hashtags, installing visually appealing artwork, 
and utilizing photo booths are just a few ideas
Local events can appeal to residents if there is a unique one-of-a-kind experience. By focusing
on a specific, personalized niche rather than appealing to a broad audience, residents may
feel as if the event was created just for them
In a survey of over 5,000 festival goers, 80 percent of millennials attended three of more
events in the past year. Food-based entertainment, such as cooking demos or contests, is a
reliable way to bring more people to community events

537



19FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Relevant Research Trends
Parks and Recreation agencies have the unique responsibility of providing unique experienced- based
recreation opportunities. Understanding current and future trends in recreation can help facilitate
memorable experiences for residents and visitors alike. Additionally, national and regional trends assist
agencies in justifying and enhancing programming they are currently offering to their citizens.4

Source: Recreation Management Magazine5

Source: Sports and Fitness Industry Association6

4 “ The Future of Festivals: 8 Trends You Need to Know” EventBrite. Accessed 2020.
5 Dave Ramont, “ Parks Gone to the Dogs” Recreation Management Magazine, https:// recmanagement. com/ feature_ print. php? fid=201703FE02
6 “ 2018 SFIA Topline Report” Sports and Fitness Industry Association, accessed 2020.

Dog Parks
Dog parks continue to see high popularity and have remained among the top planned additions
to Parks and Recreation facilities overtime. Dog parks help build a sense of community and can
draw potential new community members together as well as invite tourists who may be traveling
with pets. Dog parks can be as simple as a gated area, or more elaborate with “designed- for-dogs” 
amenities like water fountains, agility equipment, and pet wash stations. Even “ spray grounds” are
being designed just for dogs. Dog parks are also places for people to meet new friends and enjoy
the outdoors. 

Amenities in a dog park might include the following:
Benches, shade and water – for dogs and people
At least one acre of space with adequate drainage
Double gated entry
Ample waste stations well- stocked with bags
Sandy beaches/ sand bunker digging areas
Custom designed splash pads for large and small dogs
People- pleasing amenities such as walking trails, water fountains, restroom facilities, picnic
tables, and dog wash stations

Outdoor Recreation
Rock Climbing: On a national level, 4. 6 million people participated in either sport climbing, 
bouldering, or indoor climbing in 2015. According to the Physical Activity Council, climbing is
most popular for those between the ages of 18 to 24
Water Sports: Stand Up Paddling has seen a 20 percent increase in participation in the last
five years; Whitewater Kayaking and Recreational Kayaking have also seen increases in
participation ( 6 and 5. 2%, respectively)
Cycling: Mountain Biking has increased in participation 4 percent since 2013, compared to
BMX Biking ( 12%), and Road Cycling (- 0.4%). Electric Assist Bikes, or e-bikes, are becoming
commonplace on both paved and non-paved surfaces. For commuters, this option allows for
a quick, convenient, and environment- friendly method of transportation
Off-road triathlons have seen approximately 17 percent average annual growth for the last
five years. These races, such as XTERRAs, consist of a competitive combination of swimming, 
mountain biking, and trail running

538



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan20

Splash Pads
Splash Pads are aquatic recreation areas with little to no standing water. Typically, no lifeguard
is needed to supervise the area
A Splash Pad may have ground nozzle sprays or above grade sprays on top of a concrete deck; 
Many Splash Pads feature interactive components to encourage play
Splash Pads typically offer access for all ages and abilities with no specialized equipment
needed for those with disabilities
When designed next to a shelter/ pavilion, revenue from rentals can help fund operations, 
maintenance, and future expansion
Splash Pads are also considered important for climate change; there is an increased need for
accessible cooling hubs as cities experience hotter, drier summers
Compared to a traditional aquatic facility, splash pads typically incur lower maintenance
costs, require less water, and lower staffing costs. In addition, there is less drowning risk ina
Splash Pad compared to a pool

Source: Great Southern Recreation7

Source: Centers for Disease Control (CDC); 8 American Trails; 9 National Trails Training Partnership10

7 Dustin Graham, “ Designing a Splash Pad” Great Southern Recreation, https:// ced. uga. edu/ news_and_events/ continuing- education/
images/ 2019%20Short% 20Course% 20Designing_ A_Splash_ Pad.pdf Accessed 2020
8 “ Parks, Trails, and Health Resources” Centers for Disease Control and Prevention ( CDC), https:// www. cdc. gov/ healthyplaces/ healthtopics/
parks_ resources. htm#tools, accessed 2020
9 “Benefits of Trails,” American Trails, https:// www. americantrails. org/ resources/ benefits- of- trails, Accessed 2020
10 “ Health Community: What you should know about trail building,” National Trails Training Partnership: Health and Fitness, http:// www.
americantrails. org/ resources/ health/ healthcombuild. html, accessed 2020.

Trail Connectivity
A connected system of trails increases the level of physical activity in a community, according
to the Trails for Health initiative of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention ( CDC)
Trails in urban neighborhoods create ‘ linear parks’ which make daily exercise and non-
motorized transportation more accessible for residents and visitors. Urban trails should
connect people to heavily frequented areas, such as schools, transit centers, businesses, and
neighborhoods
It has been recognized that active use of trails for positive health outcomes is an excellent way
to encourage people to adopt healthy lifestyle changes

539



21FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Task 3: Civic Engagement
Community engagement and stakeholder input are valuable tools that were identified as a key component
for the planning process. The engagement allows the residents, users, and all persons that have a stake in
the community to offer input in the creation of the plan and future development of the Parks and Recreation
Department. The community and stakeholder input process allowed numerous opportunities for input
during the planning process. For this plan, residents and stakeholders were invited to take part in public
meetings and an additional joint meeting of various commissions and committees followed by a meeting
with each council member and the City Manager during the information gathering. The input provided by
the community members assisted in developing the survey and needs assessment. In addition, citizens were
provided the opportunity to review the findings and the draft documents as the plans came together. 

The focus group meetings allowed the residents to provide input regarding the strengths of the Department, 
opportunities that they believe exist for improving the direction of the Department, and facilities and
programs offered to the community. The following is a summary of the key findings from these meetings
that provided additional information in the creation of the community survey. 

Key Strengths
The residents of Lathrop identified the current strengths of the Department, celebrating what the Cityis
doing well and the overall values of the Department. The following captures the public’s view of Lathrop’ s
identified strengths. 

Valued staff
Great customer service
Strives for excellence
Teamwork

Committed to Quality/ standards
Building and strength of community
Health and wellness of the community is
valued and important to staff

The Department

Great schedule of special events
Programs motivate the participants
Inclusive programs
Family oriented
Affordable
Great parks
Commitment to service and vision

Diversity of programs honors cultural and
ethnic diversity of the community
Senior programming
Kids Club program
Generations Center
Outdoor fitness equipment

Programs

540



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan22

Key Opportunities
Another aspect of the community and stakeholder input process was to identify potential opportunities
that exist for the City to improve the operation and administration of the Department. In order to move
forward and provide a plan over the next five years, it is important to take advantage of these opportunities
to continue offering quality services to the residents of Lathrop. Opportunities can consist in various forms, 
including creating new programs, improving current amenities, and entering strategic partnerships that
can guide the Department as the community grows.

Additional recreation programming opportunties were identified to address the following areas:

More athletic programs
Senior classes
Cultural and arts programs
Community events
Youth afterschool/ summer camps
Fitness and wellness programs
Children’ s programs and classes
Teen activities and trips
Computer coding and robotics programs

E-games and E-sports leagues
Swim lessons/ aquatic programs
Outdoor/ environment/ nature programs
Youth programs ( non-sport related)
Woodshop/ woodworking
Young child (3-5 years) programs
Adaptive ( therapeutic) recreation
Art classes ( painting, dance, music)

In addition to the recreation programming opportunities, the community also identified specific
opportunities to improve the current recreation facilities. The following are a summary of the comments
regarding opportunities to improve the existing recreation facilities:

New state of the art recreation centers
Trails/ paths/ nature trails
Larger facilities for camps
Increased access to natural water access
opportunities for recreation
Better equipment in the gym for fitness ( mats, 
steps, sound)
Outdoor fitness ( group challenge course)
Improved facility maintenance

Pickleball courts
Senior multiuse center
Alternative sports ( BMX, skateboard etc.) 
courses
Additional gymnasiums – add on current
recreation centers
More programming space ( indoor) 
Increase the opportunity for water play such
as splash pads, etc.

541



23FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

The City has many amenities of which the residents and visitors of Lathrop can take advantage. There are
several areas that were identified to improve the level of standard of the City’s assets and increase usage
of the park system. The following summary identifies areas that can be addressed in the current system, 
along with potential additions to the system:

Pedestrian/ bike trails/ connectivity to parks
State of the art indoor, multi- purpose facility
Splash pads at community parks
Include wayfinding signage
Playgrounds/ playground equipment
Performing Arts Center
Improved amenities in parks as indicated by
replacement schedule ( restrooms, lighting, 
pavilions etc.)

Outdoor event space for festivals and special
events
Botanical and community gardens
More open space and natural areas
Enhance dog parks
Sports Complex ( light fields)

In addition to the strengths, weaknesses, and opportunities gathered from the community during input
sessions, the public and stakeholders also identified priorities for the plan. The identified prioritieswill
provide valuable input to implement a plan that will benefit all residents of Lathrop. The priorities include
the following areas:

Create a central location for a special events center
Redesign and expansion of the existing Lathrop Community Center at Valverde Park and construct new
multi- use recreation center with indoor athletic spaces
Renovate and improve existing facilities and parks as noted in the Level of Service and GRASP®  analysis
Develop a detailed landscape maintenance plan and schedule
Continue to expand use of technology to communicate information to the public.
Strengthen partnerships and Joint Use Agreements with the Manteca Unifed School District and Banta
School District for shared use of facilities and join program opportunities
Accessibility to park and facilities through improved connectivity: trails, greenways, multi- use paths; 
consider a trails/ bike/ pedestrian plan

542



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan24

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

543



25FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

THISPAGEISINTENTIONALLYLEFTBLANK

Task 4: Completion of a Statistically Valid City- Wide Survey
Information captured from the public feedback sessions, as well as the staff SWOT analysis, were used
to design the community needs assessment survey that was used to create the Master Plan. The survey
method consisted of the following:

A random sample invited mailed survey
An online option of the invitation survey
An open-link, online survey available to all residents

Capturing quantitative information through a need’ s assessment process was an important tool
implemented to assist the drafting of this Master Plan. Information was compiled to develop a
randomly mailed survey in order to achieve statistically- valid responses. It was carefully constructed
to be easily understood using proven questions and terminology that was appropriate for the Lathrop
community. Results were tallied, summarized, charted, and graphed. The uniqueness of the survey
process also serves as an effective method to collect non- user opinions as well as current users.

Included is a summary of the random invitation and open link survey results, which have been used in
conjunction with information from the planning process to help develop recommendations and action steps. 

321 surveys were returned
167 surveys were returned from mailed invitations
154 surveys were completed via the open link online survey

The invitation survey was mailed and considered the “ statistically-valid” survey for this plan. The analysis
herein primarily focuses on responses from the invitation sample. However, open-link responses were
additionally analyzed and discussed. Furthermore, results were segmented and analyzed by presence of
children in the household and respondent age. Those results are presented in cases where meaningful
differences were observed.

544



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan26

Key Findings
Overall, respondents are satisfied with the quality of Lathrop parks, facilities, recreation programs, 
and services with average ratings between 4. 0 and 4. 2 on a scale of 1 to 5 across all four categories. In
nationwide survey results from other city and towns, which RRC and GreenPlay have directly worked with, 
the average score in this category ranges between 4.0 and 4.5. 

Figure 7: Survey Key Findings, Invite and Open-link Samples Combined

Respondents indicate that special events and/ or festivals put on by the City of Lathrop Parks and
Recreation Department would be important for their household, with 68 percent responding “ 4” or “ 5 – 
Very important” on a five- point scale. The average rating was 4.0 overall.

Figure 8: Importance of Special Events and/ or Festivals

545



27FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Current Facilities, Parks and Programs
The importance of facilities and parks to the Lathrop community played a key role in future recommendations
for the City. On ascale of 1 (Not at all important) to 5 (Very important) participants had the opportunity to rate
the importance of recreation facilities and services to their household, respondents highlighted Community/
neighborhood parks as a 4.6 with 91 percent ranking them a 4 and 5. Open space/ natural areas came in
slightly behind at 4.6 with 90 percent ranking that category a 4 and 5. Trails and pathways followed at a 4.5, 
playgrounds a 4.3, water play/ splash pad/ aquatic facilities a 4.2 and the Lathrop Community Center a 4.1.

Figure 9: Importance of Current Facilities, Parks, and Programs

Question: How important are the following recreation facilities and services to your household, and
how well are the programs and facilities meeting the needs of Lathrop residents?

546



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan28

Overall, respondent ratings as to whether or not program and facilities are meeting the needs of
Lathrop residents, respondents said that pickleball, tennis courts, other facilities, water play/ splash
pad/ aquatic facilities, trails and pathways are on the lowest point of the ratings as not being met at all.

Figure 10: Ranking of Current Program and Facility Needs

547



29FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Figure 11: Current Program and Facility Needs

Fitness and wellness programs, community events, and swim lessons/ aquatic programs were the top three
household program needs identified by respondents.

Values and vision of the Lathrop Parks and Recreation Department are important to the community. At the
top of the most important purposes of parks, recreation and open space, respondents ranked encouraging
active lifestyles and promoting, health, wellness and fitness as being the most important value to focus
on at a 4.6 on the same rating scale of 1- 5 with 5 being very important. Slightly behind at 4. 4, as the
second choice respondents chose the importance of providing safe places/ activities for youth/ teens
during non-school hours. Running hand in hand, the third value and vision focused on ensuring Parks and
Recreation opportunities are accessible to all residents ( including safe walkable routes, trail connections, 
and transportation options).

548



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan30

Figure 12: Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Vision and Values Rankings

Communication
The last section of the survey ranked response of how survey participants would prefer to receive
department information about programs, events, facilities, parks, and open space amenities in
Lathrop is below. In most cases, those who participated prefer a printed guide or brochure; however, 
newsletters and social media platforms ranked slightly behind at 57 percent and 54 percent.

Figure 13: Best Way to Receive Communication in the City of Lathrop

549



31FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Task 5: Community Needs Assessment
Regional Comparison
Comparative analysis ( benchmarking) is an important tool that allows for comparison of certain attributes
of the Department’ s management practices and fee structure. This process creates a deeper understanding
of alternative providers, their place in the market, and varying fee methodologies, which may be used to
enhance and improve the service delivery of Parks and Recreation.

This analysis was completed between the Lathrop Parks and Recreation Department and similar agencies
in San Joaquin County. GreenPlay worked with Parks and Recreation staff to determine the most pertinent
items for the comparative analysis and received responses from the cities of Brentwood, Manteca, 
Modesto, Patterson, and Tracy.

A comparison of the City of Lathrop’ s resources with similar municipal Parks and Recreation departments
in San Joaquin County was completed regarding parks, open space, buildings, and other recreation
facilities, services, usage, and staffing levels. This comparative analysis is an important tool that allows
for comparison of certain attributes of the Department’ s management practices and fee structure. This
process creates a deeper understanding of alternative providers, the Department’ s place in the market, 
and varying fee methodologies, which may be used to enhance and improve the service delivery of Parks
and Recreation.

It is very difficult to find exact comparable communities because each has its own unique identity, waysof
conducting business, and differences in the populations that it serves. The political, social, economic, and
physical characteristics of each community make the policies and practices of each Parks and Recreation
agency unique. Additionally, organizations do not typically define the expenditures of parks, trails, facilities, 
and maintenance the same way. Agencies also vary in terms of how they organize their budget information. 
It may be difficult to assess whether or not the past year’ s expenses are typical for the community.

550



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan32

Therefore, it is important to take all data in the study with context, realizing that while benchmarking can
be a great comparative tool, it doesn’ t lend itself into being a decision- making tool. For the purposes of
this study, a regional approach was taken to compile a comparative analysis of neighboring agencies with
similar populations.

The agencies below responded to the Consultant’ s request with data that is represented throughout this
report. The figure below shows the locations of these agencies in relation to the City of Lathrop:

The agencies ranged in population from approximately 22, 258 ( Patterson) to 213, 308 ( Manteca). 
Lathrop, at approximately 24,049 people in 2019, was on the lower range of population.
Likewise, Lathrop also was on the lower end of employees, with only 12.25 full-time Employees, 
compared to Modesto with the highest number of employees ( 56.75). 

Figure 14: Location of Agencies Compared to Lathrop

1. Brentwood
2. Manteca
3. Modesto
4. Patterson
5. Tracy

Table 3: 2019 Jurisdiction Population Compared to Full-Time Employees

Source: ESRI Business Analyst, U.S. Census

Number of Non-Full-Time Employees fluctuates based on season

551



33FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Table 4: Number of Parks and Park Acreage

Figure 15: Lathrop Allocation of Total Full- Time Equivalents ( FTEs) Involved in the Operational Areas

552



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan34

Table 5: Percentage of Total Full-Time Equivalents ( FTEs) Involved in the Operational Areas

Figure 16: Total Annual Operating Expenditures

Lathrop and Patterson had the lowest annual operating expenditures in 2019, significantly lower than
the other agencies which ranged from $8 million to $20 million.

553



35FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Table 6: Percentage of Total Full-Time Equivalents Involved in Administration, Operations, and
Programming

Brentwood and Patterson did not provide data for the 2019 CIP budget. For those agencies that did
respond, Modesto had the highest CIP budget at $19.9 million, while Lathrop had the smallest CIP
budget at $1.5 million.

Table 7: 2019 Annual CIP Budget

Most agencies designated much of their CIP budget to renovation and new development. Tracy allocated
100 percent to new development, while Lathrop designated 90 percent. Brentwood and Manteca both
designated 100 percent to renovation.

554



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan36

Table 8: 2019 Annual Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Budget Designated by Expense

Lathrop had the highest percentage of financial support from grants, at 87 percent. Compared with all
other agencies. All other agencies besides Manteca ( 5%) had zero funding from grants. 
Most other agencies were primarily supported by the general fund through taxes, making up between
54 percent (Manteca) to 100 percent (Tracy) of funding.

Table 9: Percentage of Funding by Source

Compared to the other agencies, Lathrop has the fewest rectangular game ball fields, playgrounds, 
and outdoor pools/ aquatic centers.
Lathrop has the highest number of skate parks and dog parks compared to the other agencies. 

555



37FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Table 10: Number of Park and Facility Amenities

Green indicates high value
Salmon indicates low value

556



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan38

Looking at how resources are allocated provides the opportunity to meet the needs and desires of the
community by supplementing the tax subsidy with other financial resources, which may include fees, 
sponsorships, and donations including partnerships, collaborations, and efficiencies. Undertaking this
study does not imply that the target is a reduction in the use of tax subsidy; however, a target is established
according to a variety of considerations and may range from 100 percent tax subsidy to zero percent tax
subsidy to support a particular type of service. 

Establishing a philosophy for resource allocation is the foundation for developing strong, sustainable
financial management strategies.

A solid philosophy allows staff to: 

Recognize where subsidy is being applied, and determine if it is at an appropriate level; 
Justify a pricing structure, including fees for existing and new services; and
Evaluate service delivery mechanisms; all to maximize services to the public while assuring equity in
service delivery.

The completed City of Lathrop, Resource Allocation Plan may be found in Appendix B. The Resource
Allocation plan should be reviewed biannually in accordance with the City of Lathrop’ s budget schedule.

It is important that Lathrop Parks and Recreation maintain its ability to enrich the quality of life for all
Lathrop residents and to deliver services at the level residents are accustomed to experiencing. The
Citizen Survey results show that there is some tolerance for fee increases with current fees hindering
less than 15 percent of respondents. The Parks and Recreation Department should consider increases to
fees in programs and base pricing on demand, target customer data, competitor pricing, and the recently
developed subsidy policy while acknowledging the need to maintain the Activity Fee Assistance Fund.

Operating Expenditures per Capita
Another metric NRPA aggregates and reports on annually in its Agency Performance Review is typical
operating expenditures per capita. This measurement marks non- capital dollar spending for each person
living in Lathrop Parks and Recreation service area. In 2019, the typical Parks and Recreation agency spent

78.69 for each person within their service boundary. Lathrop Parks and Recreation spent $ 59. 43 in FY
18-19 – short of the typical agency responsible for providing Parks and Recreation services. In FY 19- 20 the
Department expenditures per capita is projected to increase by seven percent to $63.46 for each person
within their service boundary. 

In 2019, the City experienced a 5.2 percent increase in its
population making it one of the fastest growing cities in San
Joaquin County and the State. In addition, its rate of growth for
new housing units was the second highest in the state, at 4.79
percent. As growth in Lathrop continues per capita spending
should be re-evaluated to safeguard it is keeping pace with
growth.

Operating
Expenditures Per
Capita: 

78.69/ Year

Source: 2019 NRPA Agency Performance Review

Task 6: Fees Charges and Cost Recovery Analysis
A series of staff and public workshops were held to develop a Resource Allocation Plan. The main purpose
of this endeavor has been to create a fair, equitable, and transparent approach for establishing and
adjusting fees and charges.

557



39FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Figure 17: Per Capita Spending by Fiscal Year

558



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan40

Task 7: Inventory of Parks and Recreation Facilities
Parks and facilities were inventoried and assessed for function and quality in December 2019 using the
GRASP®- IT audit tool. This tool classifies park features into one of two categories: components and
modifiers. A component is a feature that people go to a park or facility to use, such as a tennis court, 
playground, or picnic shelter. Modifiers are amenities such as shade, drinking fountains, and restrooms
that enhance the comfort and convenience of a site. Find further definitions and discussions inAppendix
A.

A formula was applied that combines the assessments of a site’s components and modifiers to generate
a score or value for each component and the entire park. The study uses the resulting scores to compare
sites to each other and to analyze the overall performance of the park system.

559



41FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Inventory

Figure 18: Key Map

System Map
Figure 18 shows the entire City of Lathrop for context.

560



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan42

Figure 19: System Map

Figure 19 shows Parks and Recreation facilities across Lathrop. The enlargement area shows the current
development. Find larger scale maps in Appendix A.

561



2020 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop 43

Table 11: Summary of Lathrop Outdoor Locations

Park/ Location Aquatics, Spray
PadBasketball CourtBasketball, PracticeBatting CageCamping, DefinedConcessionsDiamond FieldDiamond Field, PracticeDog ParkEducational ExperienceEvent SpaceFitness CourseGame CourtGarden, CommunityGarden, DisplayHorseshoe CourtLoop
WalkOpen TurfPassive NodePicnic GroundPlayground, DestinationPlayground, LocalPublic ArtRectangular Field, ComplexRectangular Field, 
LargeRectangular Field, MultipleShelter, LargeShelter, SmallSkate ParkTennis CourtTrail, Multi- useTrailheadVolleyball CourtWater Access, DevelopedTotal
Components in ParkUnique Components in ParGIS AcresOwnershipPark Classification Apolinar Sangalang 1
111 1 1 1 2 9 8 9. 7 Lathrop Community Armstrong
Park 1 1 2 2 0. 4 Lathrop Mini Basin Park 1 1 1
144 4. 4 Lathrop Neighborhood Crescent Park 1
1 133 1. 4 Lathrop Mini Crystal Cove Park 1 1 1 1
15 5 3. 3 Lathrop Neighborhood Generations Center 1 1
111 1 6 6 6. 0 Lathrop Community Lathrop Skate Park 1 1 1
0.3 Lathrop Mini Leland & Jane Stanford Park 1 1 1
11 5 5 4. 1 Lathrop Neighborhood Libby Park 1 1
1331. 2 Lathrop Mini Michael Vega Park 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 7 2.9
Lathrop Neighborhood Milestone Manor Park 1 1 2 2 1. 0 Lathrop Mini Mossdale
Commons 1 1 1 3 6 4 1. 5 Lathrop Mini Mossdale
Landing Community Park 1 1 1 3 1 1 1
111 2 14 11 20. 4 Lathrop Community Park West 1
11 1 1 2 7 6 6. 8 Lathrop Neighborhood Reflections Park
111 1 4 4 5. 2 Lathrop Neighborhood River Park
North1 1 1 3. 2 Lathrop Neighborhood River Park South 1
11 1 4 4 7.4 Lathrop Neighborhood
Somerston Park 1 1 1 1 1 5 5 2.0 Lathrop Neighborhood
Summer House Park 1 1 1 3 3 2. 1 Lathrop Neighborhood The Green 1 1 1 1 4 4
1.0 Lathrop Mini Thomsen Park 1 1 1 0.8 Lathrop Mini
Tidewater Park 1 1 1 1 1 5 5 2.1

Lathrop Neighborhood Valverde Park 1 3 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 16 12 10. 8 Lathrop Community William S. Moss Park 1 1 1 3 3 4. 1 Lathrop Neighborhood Woodfield Park 1 1
133 5. 5 Lathrop Neighborhood Existing System Totals 2 10 3 0 0 2 7 1 2 1 2 5 3 1 2 4 8 18 2 10 2 14 1 0 3 1 4 6 2 2
10 2 3 107. 9 Planned and Funded 1 0 4 2 0 1 4
0001 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0

562



City of Lathrop | 2020 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan44

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

563



45FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

The system also includes the following future or potential parks or park properties.

Table 12: Future/ Potential Parks or Park Properties

Park/ Location GISAcresPark
Classification Horizon Detention 1. 9Future
Park Skate Park Parcel 2. 0Future
ParkProposed Linear Park 26.7Future
ParkProposed StanfordCrossing Community Sports Park 38.9
Community Stanford Crossing Open Space 16.4
Neighborhood Stanford Crossing 1 5.0
Neighborhood Stanford Crossing 2 4.5
Neighborhood Stanford Crossing 3 5.1

Neighborhood Summaryof Lathrop’s Indoor
Locations Indoor facilities we also inventoried and cataloged based on the following table. Currently, Lathrop
has three indoor

facilities. Table 13: Lathrop Indoor

Facilities Facility/
Location Educational ExperienceFood - Counter ServiceKitchen - CommercialKitchen - KitchenetteMulti-
purpose RoomPatio/outdoor seatingSport CourtWeight/ cardio
EquipmenLathrop Community Center 1 1 1 1

564



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan46

Park Ranking
In addition to locating components, assessments included the functional quality of each element. Table
14 displays the ranking of each park based on an overall score for its components and modifiers. This pivot
table uses park classifications to organize and compare parks. In general, parks at the top of the list offer
more and better recreation opportunities than those ranked lower. 

The bar length for each park reflects its overall score in proportion to the highest- ranking ( Valverde Park). 
There is no ultimate or perfect score. Cumulative scores are based on the total number and quality of the
components in a park in addition to the availability of amenities such as restrooms, drinking fountains, 
seating, parking, and shadeTable 14 also indicates the average score for each classification.

Table 14: Park Ranking Table

Park Score/ Rank by Classification Average of GRASP® Score/ Rank
01 Community 57.7

Valverde Park 80.6
Mossdale Landing Community Park 78
Apolinar Sangalang 38.4
Generations Center 33.6

02 Neighborhood 26.64615385
Michael Vega Park 61.2
Park West 38.4
Crystal Cove Park 28.8
Tidewater Park 28.8
Somerston Park 28.8
Leland & Jane Stanford Park 28.8
Basin Park 24
River Park South 24
Reflections Park 24
Woodfield Park 19.2
Summer House Park 19.2
William S. Moss Park 17.6
River Park North 3.6

03 Mini 12.65
Mossdale Commons 33.6
Crescent Park 19.2
Armstrong Park 14.4
Libby Park 12
The Green 7.2
Milestone Manor Park 6
Lathrop Skate Park 4.4
Thomsen Park 4.4

04 Planned & Funded 67.6
Community Park 67.6
Town Center Community Park 67.6

05 Other Provider 20.1
Dos Reis Regional Park 40.8
River Island Soccer Complex and Islanders Field 11
Mossdale Crossing Park 8.4

Grand Total 29.12

565



47FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Lathrop parks are comparable to other agencies across the county by
using these scores. The GRASP® National Dataset currently consists of 67
agencies, 4,570 parks, and over 24,160 components.

When comparing Lathrop parks to all other agencies and parks in the
dataset, Lathrop has two parks ( Valverde Park and Mossdale Landing
Community Park) in the top ten percent of all parks in terms of the overall
GRASP® score. 

Population Distribution and Density
When discussing access to recreation, it is helpful to understand the population distribution and density in
Lathrop. A better way of considering where people live and where parks should be located is to look at the
current make-up of the street grid in Lathrop, which better indicates residential populations. In the image
below, areas indicated by the red dashed lines would show probable residential area.

22
TOP 10% OF

ALL PARK SCORES

Figure 20: Probable Population Centers

566



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan48

Inventory Key Conclusions and Findings
Proximity, availability of transportation, pedestrian barriers, and overall size of the City are relevant factors
affecting Lathrop levels of service. The current provision of assets is relatively equitable across Lathrop
when considering both drive-to and walkable access. While park distribution appears equitable, it is also
evident that the majority of low scoring components occur in parks located in historic Lathrop. Improving
these components will further enhance access to quality parks in this part of town.

The most obvious way to increase overall LOS is to add or enhance assets in any area with lower service, 
acquire land, or develop partnerships in areas lacking current service. Significant gaps in service exist
in future residential growth areas and confirming park inclusion and development standards for those
areas is critical to ensure adequate neighborhood and walkable access are provided in these areas as
development occurs. While trails and trail connectivity scored high on survey results, the City currently
offers minimal trail access and opportunities outside of existing park boundaries. Pedestrian barriers and
lack of trails and sidewalks also may limit access to recreation throughout Lathrop. 

An increased focus on larger community parks with enhanced infrastructure to support special events and
new programming may also be desirable in Lathrop. Additional analysis and a review of the information
received from surveys, focus groups, and other sources, including staff knowledge, contribute to identify
the best locations for future improvements.

Additional Information
ASSET LIFE CYCLE COSTS AND REPLACEMENT GUIDELINES
Replacement should be based on a regular assessment in conjunction with a maintenance master plan, 
however, the following general life cycle is provided below for planning purposes. These life cycles are
dependent upon following a regular preventative maintenance and inspection schedule ( which has a cost
separate from the replacement cost) to ensure the proper care of the assets.

Table 15: Estimated asset life cycles and replacement costs

COMPONENTS COMPONENTSREPLACEMENTTIME REPLACEMENT TIME

15 YEARS

15 YEARS

15 YEARS

30 YEARS

15 YEARS

15 YEARS

10 YEARS

10 YEARS

20 YEARS

10 YEARS

10 YEARS

15 YEARS

1 YEAR

1 YEAR

15 YEARS

20 YEARS

15 YEARS

0 YEARS

15 YEARS

15 YEARS

15 YEARS

0 YEARS

15 YEARS

15 YEARS

30 YEARS

30 YEARS

15 YEARS

15 YEARS

20 YEARS

15 YEARS

10 YEARS

AQUATICS, SPRAY PAD

BASKETBALL COURT

BASKETBALL, PRACTICE

CONCESSIONS

DIAMOND FIELD

DIAMOND FIELD, PRACTICE

DOG PARK

EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE

EVENT SPACE

FITNESS COURSE

FURNISHINGS

GAME COURT

GARDEN, DISPLAY

GARDEN, COMMUNITY

HORSESHOE COURT

LOOP WALK

OPEN TURF

PASSIVE NODE

PICNIC GROUND

PLAYGROUND, DESTINATION

PLAYGROUND, LOCAL

PUBLIC ART

RECTANGULAR FIELD, LARGE

RECTANGULAR FIELD, MULTIPLE

SHELTER, LARGE

SHELTER, SMALL

SKATE PARK

TENNIS COURT

MULTI- USE TRAIL

VOLLEYBALL COURT

WATER ACCESS, DEVELOPED

567



49FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Task 8: Identification of New Park and Recreation Facilities
Level of Service ( LOS) measurements evaluate how parks, open spaces, and facilities in Lathrop serve the
community. They may be used to benchmark current conditions and to direct future planning efforts.

Why Level of Service? 
Level of Service describes how a recreation system provides residents access to recreational assets and
amenities. It indicates the ability of people to connect with nature and pursue active lifestyles. It can have
implications for health and wellness, the local economy, and the quality of life. Further, LOS for a Parks and
Recreation system tends to reflect community values. It is often representative of people’ s connectionto
their communities and lifestyles focused on outdoor recreation and healthy living. 

GRASP® Analysis
GRASP® (Geo-referenced Amenities Standards Process) has been applied in many communities across the
country to evaluate LOS for Parks and Recreation systems. With GRASP®, information from the inventory
combined with Geographic Information Systems ( GIS) software, produces analytic maps and data that
show the quality and distribution of Parks and Recreation services across the City.

Perspectives
Perspectives are analysis maps and data produced using the GRASP® methodology. Each analysis shows
service across the study area. Data analysis also incorporates statistics, diagrams, tables, and charts that
provide benchmarks or insights useful in determining community success in delivering services. Find
further discussion on Perspectives and other GRASP® terminology inAppendix A.

Types of Perspectives
The LOS offered by a park or other feature is a function of two main variables: what is available ata
specific location and how easy it is for a user to get to it. The inventory performed with the GRASP®- IT tool
provides a detailed accounting of what is available at any given location, and GIS analysis uses the data
to measure its accessibility to residents. People use a variety of ways to reach a recreation destination: 
on foot, on a bike, in a car, via public transportation, or some combination. In GRASP® Perspectives, this
variability is accounted for by analyzing multiple travel distances ( referred to as catchment areas). These
service areas produce two distinct types of Perspectives for examining the park system:

1. Neighborhood Access
2. Walkable Access

A Neighborhood Access perspective uses a travel distance of one mile to the inventory and is assumed
to be a suitable distance for a bike ride or short drive in a car, or perhaps a longer walk. This catchment
captures users traveling from home or elsewhere to a park or facility by way of a bike, bus, or automobile. 

A Walkable Access perspective uses a shorter catchment distance intended to capture users within a ten
to fifteen-minute walk. See appendix for further discussion on walkability standards.

For each perspective, combining the service area for each component, including the assigned GRASP® 
value into one overlay, creates a shaded map representing the cumulative value of all features.

568



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan50

Figure 21: GRASP® Level of Service Perspectives Catchment Areas

GRASP® Level of Service perspectives use overlapping catchment areas to
yield a “ heat map” that provides a measurement of LOS for any location
within a study area. Orange shades represent the variation in LOS values
across the map.

Assumptions
1. Proximity relates to access. A feature within a specified distance of a given location is considered

accessible” from that location.” “ Access” in this analysis does not refer to access as defined in the
Americans with Disabilities Act ( ADA).

2. Neighborhood access relates to one-mile proximity, a reasonable distance for a drive in a car, or by
bicycle.

3. Walkable access relates to ½-mile proximity, a reasonable ten-minute walk. 
4. Walkable access is affected by barriers, obstacles to free, and comfortable foot travel.
5. The LOS value of a map point is the cumulative value of all features accessible at that location. 

Neighborhood Access to Outdoor Recreation
A series of “ heat maps” were created to examine neighborhood access to recreation opportunities. All
outdoor recreation providers account for the level of service values. Darker gradient areas on the images
indicate where there are more and higher quality recreation assets available based on a one- mile service
area. In general, these images also show that Lathrop has an excellent distribution of parks and facilities. 
Gray areas indicate that recreation opportunities are beyond a one-mile service area. 

569



2020 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop 51

Figure 22: Lathrop Neighborhood Access to Outdoor Recreation

570



City of Lathrop | 2020 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan52

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

571



53FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Areas of higher concentration are notable around the City with the highest values in the area around
Steam Academy. As an example, a red star indicates the most significant GRASP® value area ( 621) in the
image above. From the red star, a resident has access to 84 outdoor recreation components in 14 different
parks or locations and three schools in this area.

Further analysis of this perspective indicates that most ( over 90%) of the Lathrop residents are within one
mile of an outdoor recreation opportunity. Find additional statistics in the following table:

Table 16: Map Statistics for Figure 23

Column A: Shows the percentage of the City that has at least some service ( LOS > 0). Lathrop has a little
different circumstance by providing services to a large geographic area but with various population centers
and currently a large future growth area. Other cities in the comparison were over 90 percent but were
largely built out at the time of their analysis. Seventy- two percent is below the average of comparable
cities. ( seeTable 18 GRASP comparative data)

Column B: For any location on the map, there is a numerical value that corresponds to the orange shading
called the GRASP® value and results from the overlay or cumulative value of the scores of components
accessible from that location. Values for different places on the map can be compared to one another, soa
person in a position with a high value ( darker orange) has greater access to quality recreation opportunities
than a person in a lower value ( lighter orange) area. Lathrop GRASP® values range from zero to a high of
621.

Column C: Lathrop’ s value of 174 is low for comparable cities but is likely a result of a larger growth area.

Column D: Shows the results of dividing the number from Column C by the population density of the
area. Compared to agencies of a similar total population for which GRASP® data is available, Lathrop’ s
population density is lower than most of the other agencies. Lathrop’ s score of 97 is the median value of
comparable agencies.

Column E: The GRASP® Index, effectively the GRASP® value per capita, involves dividing the total of all the
components in the system by the population of Lathrop. These last two numbers (Columns C and D) differ
in two ways. First, the GRASP® Index does not factor in population density. Second, the GRASP® Index is
derived using all components and does account for vital regional resources residents may access outside
those limits. Lathrop’ s score of 33 is the lowest on the comparable list.

572



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan54

GRASP® Comparative Data
The following graphics and table provide comparative data from other communities of similar population
to Lathrop across the Country. Note: Local and regional comparisons are limited to communities who
have participated in the GRASP® inventory and process. Because every community is unique, there are no
standards or “correct” numbers. However, there are several interesting similarities and differences when
making these comparisons. 

First, Lathrop is the median in the number of parks, average GRASP® score per location and components
per location when compared to similar agencies.

25
TOTAL LOCATIONS

Erie, CO - 118
Post Falls, ID - 59
Golden, CO - 25
Wilsonville, OR - 11 31

AVERAGE SCORE PER LOCATION

Erie, CO - 18
Post Falls, ID - 27
Golden, CO - 31
Wilsonville, OR - 52

6
COMPONENTS PER LOCATION

Erie, CO - 3
Post Falls, ID - 6
Golden, CO - 7
Wilsonville, OR - 8

However, Lathrop ranks low in the parks per capita and components per capita. 

1 Erie, CO - 5.5
Post Falls, ID - 1.6
Golden, CO - 1.2
Wilsonville, OR - 1.2 6

COMPONENTS/ 1K POPULATION

Erie, CO - 19
Post Falls, ID - 10
Golden, CO - 9
Wilsonville, OR - 1.2

Lathrop ranks low in component per location but is the median in average score per location. In the end, 
these comparisons would indicate that Lathrop residents have access to fewer parks and components than
other similar size agencies. Find these comparisons and others in the following table. Please note that the
inventory and analysis only include Lathrop owned properties. Residents may have additional access to
recreation opportunities provided by alternative providers.

Items of note in Table 17 include: percentage of total area includes a significant portion of Lathrop still
to be developed and is perhaps offset by the higher average LOS per acre served. This would indicate
that where Lathrop has developed parks, they are higher quality parks than some comparable cities. The
84 percent of population that lives within walking distance of quality opportunities is higher than most
comparable communities as well.

PARKS PER CAPITA

573



2020 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop 55

Table 17: GRASP® Comparative Data

CITY STATE YEAR POPULATION
STUDY AREA SIZE

Acres)
OF SITES ( Parks, 
Facilties, etc.)

TOTAL # OF
COMPONENTS

AVG. # 
COMPONENTS per

SITE

TOTAL GRASP® 
VALUE ( Entire

System) GRASP® INDEX AVG. SCORE/ SITE
of TOTAL AREA

w/ LOS >0
AVG. LOS PER
ACRE SERVED

NUMBER OF
COMPONENTS PER

POPULATION
AVERAGE LOS/ POP

DEN PER ACRE
Population

Density (per acre)

of Population
with Walkable
Target Access People per Park Park per 1k People

Golden CO 2016 20,201 6221 25 183 7 778.4 39 31 NA NA 9 NA 3.2 70% 808 1.2
Erie CO 2016 21,353 12237 118 396 3 2177 102 18 97% 362 19 213 1.7 94% 181 5.5
Wilsonville OR 2017 22,919 4,858 21 177 8 1091. 5 48 52 95% 388 8 82 4.7 67% 1091 0.9
Lathrop CA 2020 30,003 13,377 25 131 5 692 23 28 72% 174 4 78 2.2 87% 1200 0.8
Post Falls ID 2019 36,747 13,231 59 355 6 1597 43 27 100% 255 10 70 3.6 70% 623 1.6

ave 26,244.6 9,984.8 49.6 248.4 6.1 1,267.2 50.9 31.3 0.9 294.8 9.9 110.7 3.1 0.8 780.7 2.0
median 22,136 9,229 25 180 6 935 43 29 1.0 362 8 82 3 1 950 1

CITY STATE YEAR POPULATION
STUDY AREA SIZE

Acres)
OF SITES ( Parks, 
Facilties, etc.)

TOTAL # OF
COMPONENTS

AVG. # 
COMPONENTS per

SITE

TOTAL GRASP® 
VALUE ( Entire

System) GRASP® INDEX AVG. SCORE/ SITE
of TOTAL AREA

w/ LOS > 0
AVG. LOS PER
ACRE SERVED

NUMBER OF
COMPONENTS PER

POPULATION
AVERAGE LOS/ POP

DEN PER ACRE
Population

Density (per acre)

of Population
with Walkable
Target Access People per Park Park per 1k People

Lathrop CA 2020 30,003 13,377 25 131 5 692 23 28 72% 174 4 78 2.2 87% 1200 0.8
Palm Springs CA 2013 44,468 60,442 16 162 10 1,149 26 72 69% 165 4 223 0.7 NA 2779 0.4
Encinitas CA 2016 61,518 13,339 63 439 7 1,931 31 31 97% 252 7 55 4.6 63% 976 1.0
Victorville CA 2020 127,027 47,341 21 169 8 775 6 37 57% 58 1 22 2.7 34% 6049 0.2
Valley-Wide CA 2020 275,064 490,802 65 414 6 2,154 8 33 9% 84 2 150 0.6 22% 4232 0.2

574



City of Lathrop | 2020 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan56

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

575



57FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Walkable Access To Recreation
Walkability is a measure of how user-friendly an area is to people traveling on foot and benefits a
community in many ways related to public health, social equity, and the local economy. Many factors
influence walkability including the quality of footpaths, sidewalks or other pedestrian rights- of- way, traffic
and road conditions, land use patterns, and public safety considerations, among others. 

Walkability analysis measures access to recreation by walking. One- half mile catchment radii have been
placed around each component and shaded according to the GRASP® score. Scores are doubled within
this catchment to reflect the added value of walkable proximity, allowing direct comparisons between
neighborhood access and walkable access. 

Figure 23: Pedestrian Barriers

Walkability barriers were used to “cut-off” service areas where applicable.

576



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan58

Environmental barriers can limit walkability. The LOS in this analysis has been “ cut-off” by identified
barriers where applicable.

Pedestrian barriers in Lathrop, such as major streets, highways, and rivers, significantly impact the analysis. 
Zones created by identified barriers, displayed as dark red lines, serve as discrete areas that are accessible
without crossing a major street or another obstacle. Green parcels represent parks and open space; pink
plots indicate schools.

The analysis shows the LOS available across Lathrop, based on a ten-minute walk. Darker gradient areas
on the images indicate where there are more and higher quality recreation assets available based on
a half-mile service area. Gray areas on these maps suggest that recreation opportunities are beyond a
ten-minute walk. In general, these images show that Lathrop has an excellent distribution of parks and
facilities in currently populated areas but lacks facilities in future growth regions.

Figure 24: Walkable Access to Outdoor Recreation

Areas of higher concentration are notable around the City with the highest value near Steam Academy. 
The red star indicates the maximum GRASP® value area (402) in the image above. From the red star, a
resident has access to 42 outdoor recreation components in nine parks and two schools.

577



59FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Table 18 shows the statistical information derived from perspective Walkable Access to Recreation
analysis.

Table 18: Statistics for Figure 25

The numbers in each column are derived as described in neighborhood access. The GRASP® Index does
not apply to the walkability analysis. The LOS value for a person who must walk to assets is about two
thirds ( 115 v. 174) of that for someone who can drive for areas that have some access to recreation
opportunities.

The orange shading in the maps allows for a quick understanding of LOS distribution across the City. Showing
where LOS is adequate or inadequate is an advantage of using GIS analysis. First, we must determine what
constitutes an appropriate level of service for Lathrop residents. In Lathrop, a look at the current level of
service provided by neighborhood parks may be a good indicator of this desired level. 

Table 19: Average Neighborhood Park

Park/ Location
Basketball CourtBasketball, PracticeDiamond Field, PracticeDog ParkFitness CourseGame CourtGarden, DisplayHorseshoe
CourtLoop WalkOpen TurfPicnic GroundPlayground, LocalPublic ArtRectangular Field, LargeShelter, LargeTennis CourtTrail, 
Multi- useWater Access, DevelopedTotal Components in ParkUnique Components in ParkPark ClassificationBasin Park 1
11 1 4 4 Neighborhood Crystal Cove Park 1 1
115 5 Neighborhood Michael Vega
Park 21 1 1 1 1 1 8 7
Neighborhood Park West 1 1 1 1 1 2 7
6 Neighborhood River Park North 1 1 1 Neighborhood River Park South 1
111 4 4 Neighborhood Somerston Park 1
11 1 1 5 5 Neighborhood Leland and Jane
Stanford Park 1 1 1 1 1 5

5 Neighborhood Summer House Park 1 1 1 3 3 Neighborhood Tidewater Park 1 1 1 1 1 5 5 Neighborhood Woodfield
Park 111 3 3 Neighborhood System Total 3 1 1 2 1 1 2 2 4 8 8 6 1

578



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan60

These parks have between three and seven unique components except for River Park North. Open turf, a
playground, basketball picnic grounds, and a loop walk are the most common amenities at these parks. 
These parks and components are likely to attract users from a walkable distance. The following maps
bracket the level of service to areas that are below or above the target score for Lathrop. GIS analysis
shows where LOS is above or below the threshold value. Purple areas indicate where walkable LOS values
meet or exceed the target. Areas shown in yellow on the map can be considered areas of opportunity. 
These are areas where land and assets are currently available but do not provide the target value. It may
be possible to improve the LOS value in such areas by enhancing the quantity and quality of features in
existing parks without the need to acquire new lands or develop new parks. Another option might be to
address pedestrian barriers in the immediate area.

Figure 25: Walkable Access Gap Identification

579



61FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

On Figure 26, regions shown in purple have LOS that exceeds the target value. Because of the significant
growth areas to the west, nearly sixty-five percent of the land area is gray or lacks walkable access. 
However, the picture is much more favorable when you consider where people currently live in Lathrop. 
The two graphs below highlight these differences.

Figure 26: Walkable Access to Outdoor Recreation Chart

Walkable access to assets based on
the percentage of land within the City
boundary that scores above threshold
purple) or below threshold ( yellow), 

respectively.

Figure 27: Percentage of Population with Walkable Access to Outdoor Recreation Chart

Figure 28 shows walkable access to assets based on population. The chart displays the level of service
based on where people live. Using the walkable level of service data as compared to census data provided
by Esri GIS data enrichment techniques, the analysis indicates that parks are generally well placed in or
close to residential areas and capture a higher percentage of the population than land area. With 88
percent of residents within walking distance of some outdoor recreation opportunities, Lathrop is better
positioned than the previous analysis indicated.

Additional Discussion on Access to Outdoor Recreation
While the above analyses are typical, they may not reflect the model that an agency such as Lathrop may
follow in the level of service provision. Lathrop has invested heavily in a neighborhood level of service
model. 

More on Utilizing GRASP® Perspectives
GRASP® perspectives evaluate the level of service throughout an area from various points of view. Their
purpose is to reveal possible gaps in service and provide a metric to use in understanding a recreation
system. However, it is not necessarily beneficial for all parts of the community to score equally in the
analyses. The desired level of service for a location should depend on the type of service, the characteristics
of the site, and other factors such as community need, population growth forecasts, and land use issues. 
For example, commercial, institutional, and industrial areas might reasonably have lower Levels of Service
for Parks and Recreation opportunities than residential areas. GRASP® perspectives focus attention ongap
areas for further scrutiny.

580



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan62

Perspectives can determine if current levels of service are appropriate if used in conjunction with other
assessment tools such as needs assessment surveys and a public input process. Future planning efforts
can model similar levels of service to new, developing neighborhoods, or it may be that different levels of
service are suitable, and the City should utilize a new set of criteria to reflect these distinctions.

Other Types of Analysis
Traditional analyses may also evaluate the recreational level of service on a community- wide scale. 

Capacities Analysis
A traditional tool for evaluating service is the capacity analysis, which compares the number of assets
to the population. It also projects future needs based on providing the same ratio of components per
population ( i. e., as the population grows over time, components may need to be added to maintain
the same proportion). The issue or limiting factor, in this case, is that the current inventory for these
components was limited to Lathrop properties only and did not include other providers in the area. Table
20 shows the current capacities for selected components in Lathrop. While there are no correct ratios
for these components, this table must be used in conjunction with other information, such as input from
focus groups, staff, and the general public, to determine if the current capacities are adequate or not for
specific components. Accurate population projects are essential to this type of table.

The usefulness of the capacity table to project future facility needs based on population growth, if the
future population’ s interests and behaviors are the same as today’ s, and that today’ s capacities are in
line with today’s needs. The capacities table bases its analysis on the number of assets without regard
to distribution, quality, or functionality. Higher LOS is achieved only by adding assets, regardless of the
location, condition, or quality of those assets. In theory, the LOS provided by assets is more accurately a
combination of location and quality as well as their quantity, which is why this table should be used with
discretion, and only in conjunction with the other analyses presented here. 

581



2020 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop63PopulationAquatics, 
Spray
PadBasketball CourtBasketball, PracticeBatting CageCamping, DefinedConcessionsDiamond FieldDiamond Field, PracticeDog ParkEducational ExperienceEvent SpaceFitness CourseGame CourtGarden, CommunityGarden, DisplayHorseshoe CourtLoop WalkOpen TurfPassive NodePicnic GroundPlayground, All SizesPublic ArtRectangular Field, ComplexRectangular Field, LargeRectangular Field, MultipleShelter, LargeShelter, SmallSkate

ParkTennis CourtTrail, Multi-useTrailheadVolleyball CourtWater Access, DevelopedINVENTORY Lathrop 2 9 2 0 2 7
12 1 2 5 3 1 2 4 8 16
2 10 14
131 4 6 2 2 1 1
3 Lathrop Planned and Funded 1 1 2 1 4 1 2 3 1 2 Lathrop Planned 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 Private 1 1 San Joaquin County 26 2 2
112 System
Totals3 10 7 2
26 3 12 12 135
422 6 9 18 2 12 19 1 1 3 1 5 9 2 4 1 1 2 5 CURRENT RATIO PER POPULATION CURRENT POPULATION 2019 24, 936 Current Ratio per 1000 Population ( Existing and Planned & Funded Lathrop Only) 0.08 0.40 0.12 0.08 0.00 0.12 0.44 0.04 0.08 0.04 0.08 0.20 0.16 0.04
0.080. 16 0. 32 0. 72 0. 08 0. 40 0.68 0.04 0.00 0.12 0.04 0.20 0.32 0.08 0.08 0.04 0.00 0.04 0.12 Population per component 12, 468 2, 494 8, 312 12, 468 NA 8, 312 2, 267 24, 936 12, 468 24, 936 12, 468 4,987 6,234
24,936 12, 468 6,
234 3,1171,385 12,468 2,494
1,46724,936

NA 8, 312 24, 936 4, 987 3, 117 12, 468 12, 468 24, 936 NA 24, 936 8, 312 PROJECTED POPULATION - 2024 37, 723 Total # needed to maintain current ratio of all

existing facilities at projected population 3 155 30
517 232

3 8 6 2 3 6 12 27 3 15 26 2 0 5 2 8 12 3 3 2 0 2 5 Number that should be added by all providers to achieve

current
ratio at projected population
15 210261
111 3 2
11 249159 1 0
21 3 4
11 1 0 1
2 2019 GIS Acres* INVENTORY Lathrop Parks (Existing ) 108 Current
Ratio of Park Acres per 1000

Population

CURRENT POPULATION 2019 24,936 Current Ratio of Park Acres
per 1000

Population

4.3 Population per acre 231 PROJECTED POPULATION - 2025 37,723 Total acres
needed to maintain

current ratio of City of Lathrop existing facilities at projected population 163

582



City of Lathrop | 2020 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan64

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

583



65FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Table 21: NRPA Performance Benchmarks

Comparing Lathrop to recent national statistics published by the National Recreation and Park Association
in their “2019 NRPA Agency Performance Review: Park and Recreation Agency Performance Benchmarks”, 
the agency does well in most categories. 

Similar calculations can also be made based on acres of land and parks per 1, 000 residents. The following
table includes all the properties included in the GIS mapping. Computation of the acreage consists of only
Lathrop parks.

584



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan66

Table 22: Acres of Park Land per 1,000 Residents

This capacity table indicates that Lathrop provides approximately 5.8 acres per 1000 people or 173 people
per acre of “ park” and does not include other provider parks and schools. It also shows that based on
projected population growth that the City should consider adding 14 acres over the next five years.

New Park and Recreation Facilities
This section considers standards for new park construction. The standards help facilitate future planning
and agreements with developers to continue to provide residents with a consistent LOS for Parks and
Recreation. Lathrop’ s Park system should provide a diversity of recreational opportunities for the
community that is reflective of the agency’s vision, community preferences, geographical location, climate, 
growth trends and cultural resources. Based on these influences, there are four factors that can frame the
standards for future park facilities: acreage, access, components, and community preferences. 

1. Acreage: To continue to meet the adopted standard of 5 AC per 1000 residents ( 2 acres of neighborhood
park space and 3 acres of community park space), Lathrop is only short 0.1 AC of park for the current
population.  

2. Access: Walkable access is considered ½ mile and neighborhood access is considered ( 1) one mile. 
Future developments should provide park facilities for new residents per the Lathrop guidelines. 

3. Components and modifiers: A component is a feature that people go to a park or facility to use, such
as a basketball court, playground, or picnic shelter. Modifiers are amenities such as shade, drinking
fountains, and restrooms that enhance the comfort and convenience of a site.

4. Community preferences: Surveys indicate the Lathrop community values and needs access to nature, 
walking, and biking facilities, access to water, and events, as well as their existing neighborhood and
community parks. 

585



67FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

ACREAGE
Park Classification
Lathrop has 107.8 AC of parks as noted in the inventory, which includes 22 existing. The 1991 General Plan
provides (4) four categories of open space: mini park, neighborhood park, community park and landscaped
open space corridor. Currently the General Plan is being updated and provides an opportunity to clarify
and modernize the requirements to address Lathrop’ s new and future growth. 

Mini-Park ( revised from 1991 General Plan)
Mini-parks are generally less than 2 acres in size and provide residents with a social and recreational
gathering place, similar to a neighborhood park, but on a smaller scale. Mini-parks should provide small-
scale recreational and aesthetic benefit primarily in denser residential areas or commercial areas with high
pedestrian use, and will be designed to include the specific needs of a concentrated or limited population
such as interior neighborhoods or employment areas. Each resident should be within walking distance
1/2 mile) of a neighborhood or mini park.

Currently Lathrop has (8) eight mini parks, accounting for 7. 6 acres. 

Under current development guidelines, mini parks are not given Quimby credits.

Neighborhood Park ( revised from 1991 General Plan)
Neighborhood parks are a minimum of four acres in size and serve as the focal point of the community, 
providing the hub for both physical and social activities. Neighborhood parks should be designed to be
flexible to serve a variety of seasonal recreation needs and reflect the surrounding context. Neighborhood
parks act as critical building blocks of the City’ s image and assist in developing an overall sense of community
and security. They also serve as essential nodes and access points in the City- wide green space network.

In general, a “ neighborhood” is the area served by an elementary school. A neighborhood park may be a
combination school and park site that provides space for indoor as well as outdoor recreation activities. 
Regardless of location, the neighborhood park accommodates daily users and should be reflective of the
neighborhood demographics and preferences. Each resident should be within walking distance ( 1/2 mile) 
of a neighborhood or mini-park.

Currently Lathrop has ten (10) neighborhood parks, accounting for 42. 6 acres.

Community Park
Community parks are minimum of 20 acres in size and include areas for active sports as well as space
for family and group activities, such as picnicking. Community parks are larger in size than neighborhood
parks and provide services to fulfill the active and passive recreational needs of multiple neighborhoods. 
Community parks serve the needs of local neighborhoods by providing a close to home site for more active
recreation that is not typically suitable or physically possible in a neighborhood park ( i. e., formal sports
fields and courts with night lighting).

Community parks and sports parks are where most organized activities provided by the Parks and
Recreation Department and various league sports are intended to occur. In general, a “ community” is
the area served by one or more secondary schools ( High Schools). In a large city like Stockton, it is a
group of neighborhoods forming a recognized district of the City. In a small city, it encompasses the entire
boundaries of the City (existing and planned). In a City like that planned for Lathrop, the service area of the
community park will be the area served by a single high school. The community park provides indoor and
outdoor areas and facilities to meet a much wider range of recreation interests than the neighborhood

586



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan68

park. Among the facilities included are fields and courts for various sports, a large swimming pool capable
of competitive and non- competitive swimming ( at different times), a community center building ( which
may be a school building) for arts and crafts, clubs and social activities, all of the areas and facilities found
in a neighborhood park (if not already provided for the affected neighborhood), family picnic areas, quiet
areas and areas of natural beauty (1991 General Plan).

Currently Lathrop has (4) four community parks, accounting for 47 acres. 

Landscaped Open Space Corridor ( revised from 1991 General Plan)
The Landscaped Open Space Corridor can take several forms, including the pedestrian parkway separate
from auto traffic, a combined vehicle and pedestrian parkway, a buffer zone between residential and
commercial or industrial areas, or as a lineal park or paseo connecting with other components of the Parks
and Recreation system or located separate from other areas such as along reaches of the San Joaquin River
or other waterways. Such corridors do not now exist within Lathrop, but they hold promise for enhancing
the overall aesthetic and recreation character of the community ( 1991 General Plan). 

River Park North and South have been included in this classification, putting Lathrop at (2) two linear
parks, accounting for 10. 7 acres. 

The focus should be on developing pedestrian and bicycle facilities that are separate from vehicular traffic. 
Community input and national trends indicate this is a highly desired recreation asset and is missing
from Lathrop’ s inventory. It is recommended that a pedestrian and bicycle master plan study the feasible
location and facility types to best serve residents of Lathrop. 

PARK STANDARDS
Lathrop should continue planning for new park facilities to meet the following standards: 

5 AC per 1000 residents, 
2 AC of a neighborhood for every 1000 new residents
3 AC of a community park for every 1000 new residents within a 2-mile radius

Every residence will be within 1/ 2 mile of a park (mini, neighborhood or community) or multi- use trail
corridor
Provide safe and accessible pedestrian and bike facilities connecting parks and schools together ( until
a pedestrian and bike master plan is developed)

Development Impacts - The City of Lathrop should continue its usage of the Quimby Act, Developer
impacts, and Developer agreements to meet or exceed the park standards. The following guidelines should
guide the development of all future parks: 

Lathrop Park and Recreation Department staff should be consulted during the planning phase with the
developer to discuss the park improvements and new facilities. 
Parks shall include “ park components” as well as “comfort and convenience amenities” per the Lathrop
Park Guidelines Matrix below. Parks shall provide a variety of recreational opportunities, and when
multiple parks are required within the same development each park will have a different feature or
use.
Residents in the service area should be consulted in the planning and development of the park to
determine their needs and desired components. 
Parks shall be publicly accessible and have access to a public sidewalk and/ or street.
Multi- use trails should be provided to adjacent existing or planned multi- use trail corridors.
Lawn should be limited to multi- use fields and drought tolerant landscaping installed.
Parks shall be built by developers and may be offered to the City upon completion.

587



69FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Additional parks and/ or open space may be provided within developments and should be incorporated
as part of the master planning process. The location, design, and program of these parks must be
approved by the Lathrop Parks and Recreation Department if they are to be publicly maintained and
count” towards the open space contribution.

588



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan70

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

589



2020 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop 71

Unique Other Total Standards Park Acres Standard Other Suitable Modifiers
Park Components ( the

number of different types
of components)

Suitable Specialty
Components

Park Components ( total
components including those

with multiple)

Current
Standards/ Requirements

Park Components Speciality Components
Comfort & Convenience

Amenities

Mini Park 2-3 1 4

These parks can be used by a
developer to supplmennt

walkable level of service. 

Approval by the PRD must be
obtained to parkland

requirements and the n umber

of components for
neighborhood park should be

matched

2AC Playground, Open Turf Area

Nature play, water play, all age play, bocce
ball, table tennis, display or community

gardens, shelter

Trash, recycling, picnic
tables, seating, dog stations, 

drinking fountains, landscape

plantings

Neighborhood
Park

4 3 6
2 AC/ 1000 Each new park is

encouraged to have a unique
element or theme to

distinguish from other parks in

the system

2-7 AC

Provide min 2-4
Basketball (half or full court) 
Fitness Course, Garden

Display or Community

Gardens, Loop Walk, Open
Turf Areas, Passive Node, 
Picnic Grounds, 

Playgrounds, Shelters, 

Volleyball Court, Water
Access, Developed

Provide min 2-4 for a total of 6
when combined with
standard components Nature
play, water play, all age play, bocce ball, 

table tennis, dog park, boating access, 

horseshoe courts, educational experience, 
public art, practice diamond fields or small

rectangular field

Trash, recycling, drinking

fountains, dog stations, 
seating, BBQ grills, good

park access, ornamental

plantings,  and picnic tables

Community Park
includes specialty parks

8 4 10
3 AC/ 1000 Each new park is
encouraged to have a unique
element or theme to

distinguish from other parks in

the system

7-20 AC

Provide min 4-8
Basketball Court, 
Rectangular Field, Diamond

Field, Horseshoe Courts, 

Loop Walk, Open Turf Area, 
Picnic Ground, Playground, 

Shelters, Skate Park, Tennis

Court/ Pickleball, Trail, Multi-
Use, Water Access, 

Developed

Provide min 4-6 for a total of
10 when combined with
standard components Nature
play, aquatics, water play, all age play, 
bocce ball, table tennis, community and

display gardens, boating access, event

space, public art, educational experience, 
natural areas; Community Parks may also

have indoor recreation facilities on- site that

provide community meeting spaces and
indoor recreation opportunities

Drinking fountains, seating, 

BBQ grills, dog stations, 

security lighting, bike racks, 
restrooms, shade, good park

access, on-site parking, 

seasonal plantings, 
ornamental plantings, and
picnic tables

Landscaped Open
Space Corridors

3 1 4

COMPONENTS + STANDARDS

Can count towards park land requirements of neighborhood and/ or community parks if their standards for area, access, and components are met.

CLASSIFICATIONTable 23: Components and Standards

590



City of Lathrop | 2020 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan72

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

591



73FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

PARK ACCESS
Lathrop should continue to provide a minimum of five AC of parkland per 1000 residents to meet its
adopted standard. As Lathrop continues to ensure the standard of acreage is met, equitable distribution
of the parks will ensure all residents have access. Future parks that are provided with development should
ensure those residents in those planned communities have access to a park within a ten- minute safe walk. 
Existing neighborhoods that lack access to parks should be a focus for publicly funded future facilities ( as
well as facility upgrades). 

Figure 28: Park Access

592



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan74

COMMUNITY PREFERENCES
The master plan process identified several community- needs that are
currently unmet. As future parks are developed it provides the opportunity
to address these needs. 

Access to Nature
Co-locate nature-based parks and open space corridors with
environmentally sensitive lands to provide residents with access to
nature while preserving environmental assets. Investing in greenway
trails, nature preserves, and nature-based play areas can provide multiple benefits to the community. 
Enhancing community and neighborhood parks with environmental education and preservation can also
help meet the desire for access to nature. Rain gardens, native plantings, nature trails, environmental
interpretive signage, and nature based playscapes should be considered as a priority when considering
park components. 

Walkable and Bikeable
Greenways, trails, and multi- use paths are one of the highest requested open
space investments nation- wide. Connecting parks, schools, residents, and other
cultural destinations will increase access to open space and provide residents with
a highly requested amenity. Lathrop should undertake a pedestrian and bike plan, 
andconsider adopting a mileage standard for development and public planning
purposes.

Central Park
Preferences indicate the need for a centrally located park with community event space and water
play. A destination urban park that ties Lathrop together as one community can also provide economic
development and City branding benefits.

593



75FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Task 9: Analysis of Programs, Services and Maintenance Standards
Recreation Programming and Program Development Analysis
Program Development and Analysis
Understanding core services in the delivery of Parks and Recreation services will allow the Lathrop Parks
and Recreation Department to improve upon those areas while developing strategies to assist in the
delivery of other services. The basis of determining core services should come from the vision and mission
developed by the City and what brings the greatest community benefit in balance with the competencies
of the department, current trends and the market. 

The Department should pursue program development around the priorities identified by customer
feedback, program evaluation process, and research. The following criteria should be examined when
developing new programs. 

Need: outgrowth of a current popular program, or enough demonstrated demand to successfully
support a minimal start (one class for instance)
Budget: accounting for all costs and anticipated ( conservative) revenues should meet cost recovery
targets established by the Department
Location: appropriate, available, and within budget
Instructor: qualified, available, and within budget
Materials and supplies: available, and within budget
Marketing effort: adequate and timely opportunity to reach intended market, within budget ( either
existing marketing budget or as part of new program budget) 

Further research into what types of programming would be successful needs to be done. Successful
programs utilize continuous creative assessments, research, and planning. The Department has a process
that evaluates the success of current program offerings and criteria to determine if new program ideas
should be instituted or if changes should be made to current programs. Maintaining the current registration
data and evaluation process will help to assure success.

Moreover, new leisure and recreation trends may drive different needs. It is very easy to focus on programs
that have worked for a number of years, especially if they are still drawing enough interested participants
to justify the programs continuation. Starting new programs, based on community demand and/ or trends, 
can be risky due to the inability to predict their success. If the program interest seems great, as with those
identified in the citizen survey, then the programs should be expanded. Available space may hinder new
or expanded opportunities in some cases. 

Using historical participation levels to determine program popularity and participant feedback canbe
helpful in deciding if programs should be continued. In addition, utilizing citizen surveys and participant
feedback, and researching trends in Parks and Recreation programming are useful tools in determining
future programming needs and desires. Sources for trends information include: 

State Parks and Recreation Associations and Conferences
National Recreation and Parks Association
International Health, Racquet, and Sports Associations
Parks and Recreation Trade Publications
Outdoor Recreation Publications

Programs and Activities
Lathrop offers a variety of recreational programs, services, and activities. Special events, sports programs, 
youth programs, adult recreational programs, teen programs, and senior programs are offered at various
locations around the City. Youth programs, sports programs, special events and teen programs received
the highest importance ratings from survey respondents.

594



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan76

When asked about the need for recreation programs, survey respondents indicated a need for fitness and
wellness, community events, swim lessons/ aquatics, outdoor recreation, and hobby/ interest programs as
their top five needs.

Figure 29: Importance of Programs and Events

Figure 30: Top Needs for Recreation Programs

595



77FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Survey respondents were also asked about barriers that hindered their use of facilities and programs
offered by Parks and Recreation. The top three factors that hinder participation were not aware ofthe
services offered, don’ t have the program I want, and time program offered.

Figure 31: Barriers to Facilities and Programs

GreenPlay also reviewed the National Recreation and Parks Association Park Metrics and compared
Lathrop to other communities in the population group of 20, 000 to 30, 000 in California and the United
States. The results showed the percentage of agencies offering types of programming. Lathrop is in line
with other communities in California and the United States in offering team and individual sports, and
themed special events.

Table 24: Percentage of Agencies Offering Certain Activities

596



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan78

Finally, GreenPlay reviewed program data provided by the City of Lathrop for the past three years ( 2017-
2019). During the three-year period, Lathrop showed a nine percent growth in number of programs offered
and a 19 percent growth in participation. During that same time revenue as grown steadily by 23 percent, 
from $236,123 in 2017 to $305,136 in 2019. Figures 33 - 35 below illustrate the three-year trend.

Figure 32: Number of Programs in Lathrop from 2017 - 2019

Figure 33: Attendance of Programs in Lathrop from 2017 - 2019

597



79FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Figure 34: Revenue of Programs in Lathrop from 2017 - 2019

Maintenance
The Department has neither specific written Park Maintenance Standards nor Maintenance Guidelines. 
All park and facility maintenance is handled through the City’s Public Works Division in collaboration
with private contracting entities. Existing Parks and Recreation staff focus on cleanliness in the janitorial
realm and all maintenance tasks are addressed and reported to Public Works. With a lack of measurable
performance standards and regular schedules for routine maintenance, tasks could impact the quality of
Parks and Recreation facilities as the City continues to grow. 

Improving productivity and effectiveness of maintenance within the Parks and Recreation Department
begins with clear communication with designated Public Works supervisors. 

These general maintenance standards are samples meant to be a starting point for the Parks and Recreation
Department to review and consider as a basic desired maintenance standard for all Parks and Recreation
facilities.

Litter control minimum service two to three times per week, high use may dictate higher levels during
the warm seasons. 
Repairs to all elements of the design should be done immediately when problems are discovered, 
provided replacement parts, and technicians are available to accomplish the job. When disruptions to
the public might be major and the repair is not critical, repairs may be postponed to a time that is least
disruptive to the usage patterns. 
Complete park inspections should be conducted weekly.

598



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan80

General Maintenance Standards for Parks
General Standards
Grounds

Grounds mowed and trimmed on a regular schedule
Park is free of litter, debris, and hazards
Parking lots, if applicable are clean; striped; and free of debris, holes, and tripping hazards

Fountains ( where applicable)
Fountains are accessible and operational
Fountains are in appropriate locations and in compliance with ADA
Fountains are installed on a solid surface and free of standing water and debris
Drain system is operational
Park facilities should include a minimum of one pet fountain

Signage
Signs include City logo and contact phone number
Park identification signs are secure and properly installed in a visible location
Handicapped parking signs are secure, visible, and installed to code
Park rules signs are secure and properly installed in a noticeable location
Restroom signs are secure and visible
Signs are clean, painted, and free of protrusions and graffiti
Directional signs provided as needed in appropriate locations

Ornamental Plants and Trees
Plants and trees are healthy and free of disease and insects
Plant beds are free of litter, debris, and weeds
Plant selection is appropriate for season and climate/ area usage for sustainability practices.
Trees trimmed and shaped on a regular basis. Inspect for and remove hazardous trees as needed
Tree species selection should provide a wide variety of native and selected non- native trees where
appropriate
Tree wells and planting beds mulched for protection and water conservation

Walkways and Trails
May be hard surface or soft surface depending on location and intended use
Soft surface trails are free of water collecting depressions and erosion
Walkways and trails have a uniform surface, positive drainage, are level with ground, free of trip
hazards and excessive material deflection
Walkways and trails are free of litter, debris, and sediment
Walkways and trails meet ADA requirements
Walkways and trails provide unobstructed access and are free from low and protruding tree limbs, 
guide wires, signposts, and ornamental plants
Walkways in irrigated park areas are neatly edged
Walkways and trails are clear of weeds and grass growth in cracks and expansion joints; adequate
trash receptacles provided
Guard rails and safety fencing provided in appropriate locations
Routine safety and function inspections are performed including surface, culverts, water crossings, 
signage, and vegetation

599



81FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Trash Receptacles ( random locations)
Receptacles are clean and free of odor with liners in place
Receptacles are painted, free of damage and missing parts, and properly anchored
Roll-off containers and dumpsters are clean, screened, and placed in non-intrusive locations with
consideration given for attractive fencing and gating
Area around trash receptacles is clean and free of trash and debris
Areas around roll off containers and dumpsters are clean and free of trash and debris

Fencing
Fences are intact, structurally sound, and free of damage or deterioration
Nails, bolts, and screws are flush with surface with no exposed sharp points
Fences have no excessive voids, cracks or splintering

Security and Exterior Lights
Ninety percent (90%) of security and exterior lights are operational
No electrical conduit or wiring is exposed
Lights comply with appropriate building code with consideration of sustainable lighting fixtures added
or replaced as needed
Poles and components are secured in ground, operational and straight with design components as
noted in appropriate City code

Bridges
Bridges have a uniform surface, are free of trip hazards, and are free of graffiti.
Lumber and other materials are structurally sound, free of cracking deterioration and splintering.
Bridges comply with ADA requirements.
Bridges have handrails intact and properly installed and anchored.
Bridges are free of litter and debris

General Use Turf Areas
Turf areas are free of litter and debris
Turf areas are mowed and trimmed on a regular schedule
Turf areas have a uniform surface and are well drained
Areas have clean trash receptacles present that are in good condition
Turf is free of disease, insects, and weeds
Supplemental irrigation is provided as needed
Turf areas are fertilized and aerated on a regular basis

Athletic Use Turf Areas
Turf areas are free of litter and debris
Turf areas are mowed and trimmed according to usage schedule
Turf areas have a uniform surface and are well drained
Playing surface maintained according to sport specific guidelines
Areas have clean trash receptacles present that are in good condition
Turf is free of disease, insects, and weeds
Supplemental irrigation is provided as needed
Turf areas are fertilized and aerated on a regular basis

600



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan82

Irrigation
Irrigation system is fully operational with complete and uniform coverage
System is free of leaks; backflow prevention devices are in place and functioning properly
Heads are installed properly for intended use
Heads are properly adjusted with rotations and arcs to set to reduce water runoff
Systems are set to run at specific times to minimize evaporation and waste
Systems function checks are conducted on a regular basis
Repair excavations are properly compacted, and turf restored

Open Space Areas
Native grasses mowed, if necessary, according to specific management plans, with focus on promoting
natural growth heights and cycles and wildlife habitat.
Trail corridors and picnic areas mowed as needed
Trail surfaces are free of debris and weeds
Native tree and shrub growth are encouraged
Wildlife habitat and water quality preservation emphasized
Rules and regulations and identification signs are posted in noticeable locations
Annual and noxious weeds are controlled as needed
Property access points and boundaries are clearly marked

Athletic Facilities and Competitive Fields
Turf

Turf has a healthy dense stand of grass and coverage is no less than 95 percent of playable area
Play area has a uniform surface and is well drained
Turf to be mowed at the appropriate height for the type of grass used, time of season, and type of
field use
Turf is free of any litter or debris
Apply top dressing and over seeding as needed to maintain healthy grass
Fields may be closed for use periodically to allow for turf recovery
Turf is free of disease, insects, and weeds

Softball Infields
Infields have a uniform surface and are free of lips, holes and trip hazards
Infields are well drained with no standing water areas
Infields have proper soil composition for intended use with ball field mix added as needed
Infields are free of weeds and grass
Infields are free of rocks, dirt clods, and debris
Bases and plates are properly installed, level, and are at proper distances and anchored according to
manufacturer’ s specifications and league requirements
Fields dragged and lined as needed according to use schedules

Bleachers
Hardware is intact, and bracing and safety rails tightly connected
Seating surface is clean, smooth, free of protrusions and have no exposed sharp edges or pointed
corners
Clean trash receptacles provided and in good condition, area under bleachers free of trash

601



83FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Lights
Electrical system and components are operational and in compliance with applicable building codes.
Ninety percent (90%) of lamps for each field are operational
No electrical conduit or wiring is exposed
Lights comply with appropriate building code with consideration of sustainable lighting fixtures added
or replaced as needed
Ballast boxes and components are properly installed and secured
Lights provide uniform coverage on facilities and fixtures and are adjusted to eliminate dark or blind
areas
Fixtures securely fastened to poles and poles secured in ground according to manufacturer’ s
specifications
Poles and fixtures inspected immediately after any major wind, ice, or hailstorm

Fencing
Fencing material is galvanized chin link and appropriate gauge wire for specified use
Fencing material is properly secured to support rails
Support rails are properly connected and straight
Fencing is free of holes and protrusions
Fabric is straight and free of bending and sagging
Gates and latches are operational

Restrooms/ Portable Toilets
Toilets are clean, sanitary, and properly stocked with paper products
Lights and ventilation systems are operational
Toilets, stall doors, and hand air dryers are operational
Buildings and enclosures are free of graffiti
Doors are properly marked according to gender
Restrooms have clean trash receptacles
All doors and locks are operational
Restrooms/ portable toilets are in compliance with ADA requirements

Playgrounds
Play Equipment

Equipment and surrounding play areas meet California, ASTM and National Playground Safety Institute
NPSI) standards

Play equipment and hardware is intact
Play equipment is free of graffiti
Age appropriateness for equipment is noted with proper signage
Monthly and annual inspections are conducted and a repair schedule and program is in place to meet
the standard

Surfacing
Fall surface is clean, level and free of debris
Fall surface meets ASTM and NPSI standards
Fall surface is well drained
Rubber cushion surfaces are free of holes and tears
Rubber cushion surfaces are secure to base material and curbing

602



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan84

Borders
Playground borders are well defined and intact
Playground borders meet ASTM and NPSI standards

Decks
Planks are intact, smooth, structurally sound, free of splinters and no cracks greater than ¼ inch
Nails, bolts and screws are flush with surface
Planks are level with no excessive warping

General
Slides and climbing devices are properly anchored
All moving parts are properly lubricated and functioning as intended
S-hooks and swing seats are in good operating condition
Damaged or under repair equipment is removed or properly marked and isolated from public use
until repaired

Picnic Areas and Shelters
General

Access to facilities complies with the ADA
Shelters are clean, sanitary, and free of graffiti
Lights and electrical plugs are operational and comply with appropriate building codes
Vegetation around structure is trimmed back to reduce hazards and does not impede entry and egress
Grounds around structure are mowed, trimmed and free of litter, debris, and hazards
Shelters are structurally sound, clean, painted with no rotted lumber or rusted metal and no loose
siding or loose shingles
Water fountains and hose bibs (if provided) are operational
Signage and rules and regulations information are posted in a visible location

Tables
Tables are clean, free of dust, mildew, and graffiti
Table hardware is intact
Table frames are intact, and slats are properly secured
Table seats and tops are smooth with no protrusions and have no exposed sharp edges or pointed
corners

Grills
Grills are operational and free of rust and metal deterioration
Grills are clean and free of grease build-up
Grill racks are operational and secure, and grills are properly anchored to reduce hazard and theft

Trash Receptacles
Receptacles are clean, free of odors and liners in place
Receptacles are painted, free of damaged or missing parts and properly anchored
Area around receptacles is clean and free of trash and debris

Tennis Courts
Surfacing

Surface is smooth, level, and well drained with no standing water
Surface is free of large cracks, holes, and trip hazards

603



85FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Surface is painted and striped in accordance with U.S. Tennis Association court specifications
Worn painted surfaces do not exceed 30 percent of total court surface
Surface is free of litter, debris, gravel and graffiti

Nets
Nets and wind screens are free of tears and frays
Nets are properly installed and secured to support poles
Nets have center stripes installed at the regulated height and are anchored to the court
Support poles have hardware intact and are properly anchored and installed
Wind screens are properly installed and secured to fencing

Fencing
Fencing is galvanized chain link and is the appropriate gauge wire for specified use
Fencing material is properly secured to support rails
Support rails are properly secured and straight
Fencing is free of holes, protrusions, and catch points
Fabric is straight and free of bending or sagging
Gates and latches are operational
Windscreens are tightly secured and free of tears and holes

Outdoor Basketball Courts
Surfacing

Surface is smooth, level, well drained, and free of standing water
Surface is free of large cracks, holes, and tripping hazards
Surface is painted and striped per court specifications
Surface is free of litter, debris, gravel, and graffiti

Goals and Backboards
Goals and backboards are level with hardware intact
Goals and backboard are painted
Nets are properly hung and free of tears and fraying
Support poles are secure in ground and straight

Sand Volleyball Courts
Nets

Nets are free from holes and are not torn or tattered
Nets are hung tightly at specified height
Nets are securely attached to support poles
Support pole have hardware intact, are properly anchored and installed

Sand Surface
Court surface is loose sand
Surface is smooth with good drainage and no standing water
Surface is free of weeds, grass, debris, and litter
Grooming and raking are conducted based the established standard and schedule

604



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan86

Borders
Borders are well defined and intact
Borders meet International Volleyball Federation ( FIVB), ASTM and NPSI standards
Surrounding area is free of debris and encroaching landscaping to reduce hazard

Ponds and Lakes
Water

Aerators, if provided, are operational
Pond surface is at least 90 percent free of vegetation
Water area is free of trash and debris
Bank areas are smooth and free of washouts and erosion, rip rap in place where needed
Ponds and lakes, where appropriate, are stocked with appropriate species of fish
Inlet and outlet structures are operational
Appropriate and seasonal rules and regulations signage is in place at noticeable locations

Fishing Piers and Decks
Planks are intact, smooth, structurally sound, free of splinters and have no cracks greater than ¼ inch
Nails, bolts, and screws are flush with surface
Planks are level with no excessive warping
Handrails are present and structurally sound
Piers and decks comply with ADA standards
Trash receptacles provided nearby

Benches
Hardware is intact and structurally sound
Nails, bolts or screws are flush with surface
Seats and backing are smooth with no protrusions, have no sharp edges or pointed corners, and are
structurally sound
Benches are secured in ground and properly installed

605



87FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Figure 35: Average High and Low Temperature in Lathrop

The hot season lasts for 3.7 months, from June 4 to September 25, with an average daily high temperature
above 86°F. The hottest day of the year is July 17, with an average high of 94° F and low of 62°F. The cool
season lasts for 2.7 months, from November 22 to February 14, with an average daily high temperature
below 62°F. The coldest day of the year is December 30, with an average low of 39°F and high of 54°F.”

Task 10: Climate, Biological, Natural Resources, and Cultural Legacy
This section considers the environmental and cultural properties surrounding Lathrop and the implications
of such on Lathrop’ s Parks and Recreation system. 

Climate

606



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan88

Figure 36: Average Monthly Rainfall in Lathrop

The rainy period of the year lasts for 7.2 months, from October 4 to May 11, with a sliding 31-day rainfall
of at least 0.5 inches. The most rain falls during the 31 days centered around February 15, with an average
total accumulation of 3. 2 inches. The rainless period of the year lasts for 4. 8 months, from May 11 to
October 4. The least rain falls around August 1, with an average total accumulation of 0. 0 inches.”

Figure 37: Average Wind Speed in Lathrop

The average hourly wind speed in Lathrop experiences significant seasonal variation over the course of
the year. The windier part of the year lasts for 4.8 months, from April 13 to September 5, with average
wind speeds of more than 7.6 miles per hour. The windiest day of the year is June 20, with an average
hourly wind speed of 9.2 miles per hour. The calmer time of year lasts for 7. 2 months, from September 5
to April 13. The calmest day of the year is October 31, with an average hourly wind speed of 5.9 miles per
hour.”

Climate data obtained from https:// weatherspark. com/ y/ 1082/ Average- Weather- in-Lathrop- California- United-
States-Year-Round.

607



89FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Biological Resources
The City of Lathrop General Plan Update provides an in-depth look into the biological resources of the
area:

The San Joaquin River roughly bisects the City running north/ south. This major river drains the Great
Valley Province into the San Joaquin Delta to the north, ultimately discharging into the San Francisco Bay
to the northwest. Habitat in the bioregion includes vernal pools, valley sink scrub and saltbush, freshwater
marsh, grasslands, arid plains, orchards, and oak savannah. Historically, millions of acres of wetlands
flourished in the bioregion, but stream diversions for irrigation dried all but about five percent. Remnants
of the wetland habitats are protected in this bioregion in publicly owned parks, reserves, and wildlife
areas.” 

According to the California Wildlife Habitat Relationship System there are 16 cover types ( wildlife habitat
classifications) in the Planning Area out of 59 found in the State. These include: Annual Grassland, Barren
Land, Coastal Scrub, Cropland, Deciduous Orchard, Dryland Grain Crops, Eucalyptus, Evergreen Orchard, 
Fresh Emergent Wetland, Irrigated Grain Crops, Irrigated Hayfield, Irrigated Row and Field Crops, Riverine, 
Urban Land, Valley Foothill Riparian, and Vineyard.”

A regional background search of special- status species was conducted to document occurrences within a
Nine-Quad search (approximately 10-miles) of the Lathrop Planning Area. The search revealed documented
occurrences of 25 special status plant species and 35 special status animal species within the search area. 
The search also revealed five sensitive natural communities within the search area. This includes: Coastal
and Valley Freshwater Marsh, Great Valley Cottonwood Riparian Forest, Great Valley Cottonwood Riparian
Forest, Great Valley, Valley Oak Riparian Forest, and Elderberry Savanna. While these areas feature special
vegetation, habitat for plants of special concern, and native and non- native fish, only one ( Great Valley
Oak Riparian Forest) is located within one mile of the City.”

Natural Resources
Solar Energy
The average daily incident shortwave solar energy experiences extreme seasonal variation over the course
of the year. The brighter period of the year lasts for 3.5 months, from May 6 to August 23, with an average
daily incident shortwave energy per square meter above 7.2 kWh. The brightest day of the year is June
24, with an average of 8.5 kWh. The darker period of the year lasts for 3.5 months, from November 3
to February 18, with an average daily incident shortwave energy per square meter below 3.5 kWh. The
darkest day of the year is December 25, with an average of 2.2 kWh. 

Natural Areas
Lathrop is within a two-hour drive of many natural areas, preserves, wildlife refuges, and state parks. 
The land use of Lathrop is dominated by agriculture, industry, and residential. What little natural areas
are left within the town occur along the San Joaquin River. The largest pocket of natural area is a 30- acre
vegetated oxbow created by the river, located west of I-5 and east of River Islands. 

Environmental Hazards
Below is an outline of the environmental hazards that face the City of Lathrop. 
per the City of Lathrop General Plan Update Community Profile)

Sea- Level Rise ( SLR) 
Rising sea levels will directly impact coastal development, infrastructure, and habitats. Local

impacts of SLR include temporary flooding ( especially in combination with storm surge) and
permanent inundation. The state’ s water supplies are also at risk from rising sea levels. An influx of
saltwater would degrade California’ s estuaries, wetlands, and groundwater aquifers.”

608



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan90

Wildfires
Wildfires are a result of conditions affected by interactions between primary variables ( precipitation, 

temperature) and other factors. Wildfires are unplanned, natural occurring fires and posea
great threat to life and property, particularly when they move from forest or range lands and into
developed areas.”  

Extreme Heat
Temperature is directly affected by changes in global atmospheric and oceanic temperatures. The

region is expected to experience longer, more frequent, and more severe heat waves in the future, 
but like annual changes, these changes are somewhat variable across the region.”  

Riverine Flooding
Riverine flooding—a secondary climate variable—occurs when heavy rainfall causes rivers or creeks

to overtop their banks and inundate surrounding areas.” 

Drought
A drought is a period of abnormally dry weather which persists long enough to produce a serious

hydrologic imbalance. The severity of the drought depends on the degree of moisture deficiency, the
duration of the dry spell, and the size of the affected area.” 

Many of these environmental hazards, as previously noted, have associated actions that can mitigate the
effects for Parks and Recreation users. 

Cultural Resources
Historical Landmarks
The most prominent historical landmark in Lathrop is the Mossdale Railroad Bridge. The Mossdale Railroad
Bridge is a unique physical experience that connects the users to the history of Lathrop and coincides with
the adjacent Mossdale Crossing Development. Additional landmarks come in the form of Historic Lincoln
Highway Markers. These are located along Manthey Road near the Manthey Road Bridge. 

Community Resources
There are several public facilities in Lathrop that provide educational and recreational opportunities for
the community. They are: Lathrop Community Center/ Scott Brooks Gymnasium, Lathrop Generations
Center, and the Lathrop Senior Center. The Lathrop Generations Center hosts a number of annual events
for the City and is also home to the Stockton- San Joaquin County Library branch.

609



2020 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop 91

Figure 38: Community Resources

610



City of Lathrop | 2020 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan92

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

611



93FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Task 11: Capital Improvement Funding
Park Facility Funding Mechanisms
California has a highly stipulated and complicated public funding laws which leads to a pooling of various
funding sources to fund improvements and manage operations and maintenance budgets. Below is a
summary of some of the funding mechanisms that are available for the City of Lathrop to consider for new
facilities. 

General Fund CIP
Capital Improvement Program ( CIP) is a multi- year forecast of capital needs which typically includes new
construction projects and planned improvements of existing facilities. The CIP establishes structure and
consistency by identifying, prioritizing, approving, and funding capital improvement projects. In all local
government jurisdictions, CIP funding is allocated through the Annual Budgeting Process for approval and
can become challenging with other city departments all pulling from the same fund with their request. 
Consistency in the level of funding allocations should be determined early. General fund CIP planning can
be a strong funding opportunity if the City would consider charging assessments to districts and then
choosing how to distribute those assessments toward quality of life initiatives.

CFF Fees – Capital Facility Fee
The City’ s Capital Facility Fee (CFF) program was first instituted on October 10, 1990. This revenue source
could be reinstated to assist with the Culture and Leisure category of the CFF for annual capital funding
improvements.

Measure D
Measure D would be a “ general tax” where all revenue from this tax would be deposited into the City’s
General Fund and could be used for general City operations and services, including police enforcement, 
emergency response, parks, youth and senior services, and street repair. Pursuant to State Law, a “general
tax” requires approval by a majority of the City’s voters voting at an election.

Bonds
Municipalities can issue Bonds as a means to provide a revenue stream for land acquisition or park
improvements. Bonds ( general obligation bonds and limited obligation bonds) typically require approval
by two-thirds of the voting population. Proposition 68 allowed the state to raise over $ 4 million to fund
parks in underserved neighborhoods. 

Property Taxes
California restricted the increase in property taxes in the 1970’s with Proposition 13, which sets the
statewide tax to one percent. As well as setting the percentage statewide, the law also restricted the rate
at which property’ s assessed value could increase, either by 25 per year or through a sale. 

Special Taxes
In California, a special tax must be approved by two-thirds of voters. It must specifically state its purpose, 
whether it be for capital improvements or operations and maintenance. 

General Taxes
General taxes are taxes used for the general governmental purposes and must be approved by a majority
of voters. 

612



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan94

Sales Taxes
Sales tax revenue dedicated to Parks and Recreation can provide a commitment of public funds when
property taxes are not an option. 

Fees and Special Assessments
Also required to be approved by voters, these are fees charged to property owners for public services or
improvements that benefit their property. These fees are subject to many stipulations through Proposition
218 and 26. 

Developer Contributions through the Quimby Act
Stemming from the 1965 Quimby Act, Lathrop requires developers to dedicate land and/ or pay an in-lieu
fee as a condition of subdivision map approval. If the development is under 50 units, then the developer
is not required to dedicate land but must still pay an in-lieu fee. When fees, instead of land, are required, 
the fee is based on the money needed to obtain the land for a park. In addition to developing new parks, 
fees can be used to rehabilitate existing park facilities that will serve the subdivision. However, fees cannot
be used for maintenance, or operations, and cannot pay for ongoing maintenance. 

The City’s Quimby regulations were adopted under the General Plan and the fees are outlined in the
Master Fee Schedule. The Quimby Act requires 3 AC per 1000 residents, or up to 5 AC per 1000 residents
if that is the current municipal standard. Lathrop requires a dedication of 5AC per 1000 residents or a fee
in lieu. 

Development Impact Fees
In addition to the Quimby Act, the Mitigation Fee Act provides a municipality the ability to condition plan
approval on the developer’ s payment of impact fees. These fees are intended to offset the impact of
new residents on the existing system, and to ensure that new residents receive the same level of service
as existing residents. The main impact of new development to park facilities would be increased use or
crowding of existing facilities. The fees must be proportional to the development’ s impact. If an existing
park will serve a population increased by 25 percent, then the fees would be calculated based on providing
the additional existing components to meet that increased usage. 

These fees can be used for new facilities or improvements to existing facilities, but typically cannot be
used for operations or maintenance or to meet existing facility deficits. Both the Quimby Act fees and the
Development Impact Fees can be required of a development as long as they do not duplicate each other. 

Developer Agreements
A municipality and a developer can come to an approved development agreement that outlines open
space dedication and improvements that override future changes to zoning and land use regulations. This
is often the case for phased master planned communities that may be built over a longer time period. 

CEQA Mitigation
The California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) requires that the environmental impacts of new
development be mitigated if it will cause impacts to park facilities. Mitigation may include fees, land
dedication or the improvement to existing park facilities.

Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF)
Matching grants are often available through funds from the LWCF for local park acquisition and
improvements. The Outdoor Recreation Legacy Partnership Program ( ORLP) targets funding for
improvements in underserved neighborhoods with populations who are economically disadvantaged. 

613



95FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Community and Economic Development Grants
New Market Tax Credits is a federal tax program to incentivize private investment in businesses and real
estate in low income neighborhoods. Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) have provided grants
to several park systems, while it is mainly intended for affordable housing and the expansion of economic
opportunities. 

Philanthropic
Non-profit organizations, corporations, and individuals can advocate, fundraise, and donate funds for
Parks and Recreation investments. Philanthropies with community ties have increasingly made impacts
on public parks. 

Public Private Partnerships ( P3’s) 
Funding for new parks can be offered in return for naming rights, development rights, and various other
benefits. This is an increasingly common strategy used to build specialty and destination parks. 

For park operations, P3’ s are set up in various ways which can help strengthen park offerings while
sometimes providing a stream of revenue for park budgets. Examples include selling concessions and
offering programs for a fee, with a percentage given back to the agency. 

User Fees and Earned Income
Fees generated from facility rental, services and programs can supplement the Parks and Recreation
budget. Often this is balanced with providing access to lower income residents. Other options can provide
revenue from parking, land leases, and sales of concessions. 

Coordination with Health Care and School System
The common goals and needs of the health care, Parks and Recreation and schools align them to create
partnerships for park investments as well as ongoing maintenance, programming and shared-use
agreements. 

Transportation Grants
More and more often, Parks and Recreation agencies are receiving funding, often through matching grants, 
from USDOT for transportation investments that acknowledge the need and demand for more improved
walking and biking facilities. 

Climate Change and Disaster Resiliency Programs
With the need for communities to address climate change, there are growing list of funds from various
sources dedicated to helping with these costs. “ California’ s large cap-and-trade plan has devoted a portion
of funding for urban and community forestry programs in disadvantaged communities ( using a state-
designed designation framework). In the 2018– 19 budget, for example, the state allocates $ 20 million for
urban greening programs out of a total budget of $1.46 billion,” (Investing in Equitable Urban Park Systems, 
https:// prps.org/ common/ Uploaded%20files/ Resources/ CPA%20Investing%20in%20Equitable% 20
Urban%20Park%20Systems- July%202019.pdf)

Both CDBG grants and FEMA have provided funding sources for disaster recovery and prevention. Including
a $4.65 million FEMA grant to the City of Oakland to reduce fire danger. FEMA provides grant funding to
better manage flood hazard areas. 

Source: Change Lab Solutions, https:// www. changelabsolutions. org/sites/ default/ files/Parks- Financing_
White-Paper_ FINAL_ 20151007. pdf) 

614



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan96

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

615



97FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Task 12: Action Plan
Context
Residents and community leaders are increasingly recognizing that Parks and Recreation facilities, programs, 
and services are becoming more and more essential in planning efforts for long term investments in
economic sustainability and planning the vitality of desirable communities. The City of Lathrop Parks and
Recreation Department is committed to providing comprehensive, high quality parks, programs, facilities, 
and services to the community and the following recommendations will assist the department in moving
forward.

Moving Forward-Recommendations
After analyzing the findings from the Master Plan process, including the Key Issues Matrix, a summary of all
research, the qualitative and quantitative data captured, inventory, LOS analysis, and input assembled for
this study, a variety of recommendations have emerged to provide guidance to raise the bar for programs, 
facilities and development for the City of Lathrop, Parks and Recreation Department. This section describes
ways to enhance the level of service and the quality of life with improvements through efficiencies, 
enhanced program and service delivery, facilities and amenities, and increased financial opportunities.

Goals, objectives, and action items for the recommendations are drawn from the public input, inventory, 
level of service analysis, findings feedback, and other information gathered with a primary focus on
maintaining, sustaining, and improving the Lathrop Parks and Recreation Department. This section
describes ways to enhance the level of service and the quality of life in Lathrop through improvements
to parks, services, facilities, programs, and amenities while also focusing on improving programming and
services, organizational efficiencies, and financial opportunities.

616



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan98

Table 25: Goals and Action Plan Table

Priority 1 Tasks: New Facilities and Cost Recovery Methodology

Action Timeframe
1.1a Develop conceptual redesign of the Community Center at Valverde Park
to accommodate and meet current demand and plan for future program
growth.  Conceptual redesign should include:  

Multi-Use classrooms and meeting space to accommodate daily
programming

o Expandable partitions to adjust room sizes appropriately
o Flexible programming space to accommodate camps and after

school activities
o Space for daily senior services

Expanded kitchen to serve daily lunch programs, allow for event
catering, evening/ program classes
Performance stage
Minimum of 3 indoor basketball/ volleyball courts

o Adjustable height baskets for youth basketball
o Automatic retractable bleachers for spectators

Dance, gymnastics, fitness, and wellness space
Dedicated community meeting space
Equipment storage
Staff offices

1.1b Determine location for a Community Center within the River Islands
Development.  The Community Center should include: 

Performing Arts Center
Multi-Use classrooms and meeting space to accommodate daily
programming

o Expandable partitions to adjust room sizes appropriately
o Flexible programming space to accommodate camps and after

school activities
o Space for daily senior services

Expanded kitchen to serve daily lunch programs, allow for event
catering, evening program classes
Minimum of 3 indoor basketball/ volleyball courts

o Adjustable height baskets for youth basketball
o Automatic retractable bleachers for spectators

Dance, gymnastics, fitness, and wellness space
Dedicated community meeting space
Equipment storage
Staff offices

1.1c Develop plans for sports complex in River Islands adjacent to future high
school

Lighted sports fields
o Consider synthetic athletic field to extend sports season into

winter months

2021-2023
1.1a Adjustment of the Culture and Leisure Facilities CIP

Revise planned facilities and adjust to changing needs
Merge the Senior Center 19,600 square feet, the Youth Center 7,500 square
feet and the Community Center 7,800 square feet to Multi- Use Community
Center A for a total 34,900 square feet
Reallocate 31,100 square feet and fee for Library Space to Multi- Use
Community Center B
Ensure Gymnasium Space 7,500 square feet is attached to the 31, 100
square feet Multi- Use Community Center B for a total 38, 600 square feet
Repurpose proposed Community Pool to various Community Splash Pads/
Spray Grounds
Develop Sports Complex’ s with lighted fields ( both ball diamonds and multi-
purpose fields) and consider synthetic turf surfaces where appropriate

1.1b Determine location for a Multi- Use Community Center within Historic
Lathrop with a minimum of 34,900 square feet

Multi- Use classrooms and meeting space to accommodate daily
programming

Expandable partitions to adjust room sizes appropriately
Flexible programming space to accommodate camps and after school
activities
Space for daily senior services

Expanded kitchen to serve daily lunch programs, allow for event catering, 
evening program/ classes
Performance stage
Minimum of 3 indoor basketball/ volleyball courts

Adjustable height baskets for youth basketball
Automatic retractable bleachers for spectators

Dance, gymnastics, fitness, and wellness space
Dedicated community meeting space
Equipment storage
Staff offices

1.1c Determine location for a Multi- Use Community Center within the River
Islands Development with a minimum of 38,600 square feet

Consider the inclusion of additional square footage to accommodate a
performing art center in partnership with school district
Multi- Use classrooms and meeting space to accommodate daily
programming

Expandable partitions to adjust room sizes appropriately
Flexible programming space to accommodate camps and after school
activities
Space for daily senior services

2021-2023

617



99FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Expanded kitchen to serve daily lunch programs, allow for event catering, 
allow for event catering, evening program/ classes
Minimum of 3 indoor basketball/ volleyball courts

Adjustable height baskets for youth basketball
Automatic retractable bleachers for spectators

Dance, gymnastics, fitness, and wellness space
Dedicated community meeting space
Equipment storage
Staff offices

1.1d Develop plans for sports complex in River Islands adjacent to future high
school

Lighted sports fields
Consider synthetic athletic field to extend sports season into
winter months

Loop walk/ trail
Shade structures
Outdoor sports courts
Restroom, concession facility with meeting space

1.1e Develop plans for sports park in Stanford Crossing Community Sports Park
adjacent to existing high school

Lighted sports fields
Consider synthetic athletic field to extend sports season into winter
months

Loop walk/ trail
Shade structures
Outdoor sports courts
Restroom, concession facility with meeting space
Access road could be directed to the west edge of designated parkland along
the levee to provide as much usable park space as possible

1.1f Discuss as part of Phase 2 Parks Master Plan for River Islands
Discuss City management and operation of private elementary school
gymnasiums in Partnership with School District
Install classroom space for city run before, after school and summer camp
programing on each school campus
Coordinate approvals of park and community plans with developer in
conjunction with the River Islands Phase 2 Parks Master Plan

1.1g Research Opportunities for Off Leash/ Dog Park Spaces in Historic Lathrop

1.1h Follow guidelines for the process of resource allocation as provided
through the Pyramid Methodology for future planning efforts as outlined and
implement equitable user fees for programming and services

618



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan100

Loop walk/ trail • Shade structures • Outdoor sports courts • Restroom, concession facility with meeting space1.1d Develop plans for sports park in Stanford Crossing Community SportsPark adjacent to existing high school  • Lighted sports fieldso Consider synthetic athletic field to extend sports season intowinter months • Loop walk/ trail • Shade structures • Outdoor sports courts • Restroom, concession facility with meeting space  • Access road could be directed to the west edge of designated parklandalong the levee to provide as much usable park space as possible
1.1e Develop Phase 2 Parks Master Plan for River Islands

1.1f Research Opportunities for Off Leash/ Dog Park Spaces in Historic
Lathrop

1.1g Follow guidelines for the process of resource allocation as provided
through the Pyramid Methodology for future planning efforts as outlined
and implement equitable user fees for programming and services

Priority 2 Tasks: Service Delivery and Program Growth

Action Timeframe
2.1a Implement a standardized maintenance plan in collaboration with
Public Works that includes weekly, monthly, and seasonal preparations and
regular maintenance. 

2.1b Implement Scoring Matrix and inspection schedule/ team for indoor and
outdoor recreation facilities. 

2.1c Evaluate and plan for increased programs and participation within the
community, including fitness and wellness programs. 

Swim lessons
Outdoor recreation programs
Hobby and special interest programs
Dance and cultural arts programs
Youth before and after-school programs
Break and summer camps

2023-2024

1.1i Explore opportunities with leadership from Manteca Unified School
Districts for permanent facility use or city owned facilities adjacent to schools
for before and after school care

2.1a Implement a standardized maintenance plan in collaboration with Public
Works that includes weekly, monthly, and seasonal preparations and regular
maintenance

2.1b Implement Scoring Matrix and inspection schedule/ team for indoor and
outdoor recreation facilities

2.1c Evaluate and plan for increased programs and participation within the
community including fitness and wellness programs

Swim lessons
Outdoor recreation programs
Hobby and special interest programs
Dance and cultural arts programs
Youth before and after-school programs
Break and summer camps

2.1d Increase special event programming
Expand summer concert schedule
Expand “ Movie in the Park” offerings
Review possibility for Farmer’ s Markets and Food Truck Rodeo
Continue to utilize We CARE brand with marketing funds and give- away
items to promote at community activities
Pursue additional public/ private partnerships with:

Business Community
Medical Community
Developers

2023-2024

619



101FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

2.1e Utilize GRASP and Needs Assessment Findings to develop a 15- year Capital
Replacement Schedule for existing facilities and address low scoring amenities
and components listed below:

Apolinar Sangalang Park
Manage drainage issues
Repair or replace turf
Replace existing playground and rubberized surfacing
Place new restroom by new playground
Place Splash Pad adjacent to new playground
Consider the placement of tennis courts adjacent to existing basketball court.
Replace park sign
Install Flagpole -  POW/ MIA/ UA Armed Forces

Crescent Park
Identify location for shaded picnic area
Replace volleyball sand
Replace park sign

7th Street Skate Park
Formalize plan for additional acreage to include parking, shaded picnic area, 
a drinking fountain, dog station, lighting, restrooms, bike rack
Possible location for bike park
Install park sign

Libby Park
Replace or update fitness items
Add drinking fountain with dog dish
Replace park sign

Michael Vega Park
Replace wooden picnic tables and benches with system standard tables
Replace volleyball sand

Milestone Manor Park
Resurface and level path throughout
Add children’ s themed educational pathway
Install standard tables and benches
Manage ornamental plantings
Replace park sign

2021-2024

620



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan102

Mossdale Landing Community Park
Develop conceptual plan to repurpose use of park.
Replace tables with standard items
Manage drainage and irrigation issues
Consider area for additional shaded picnic/ group gathering
Construct shade front of concessions building

Park West
Install large shade structure by restroom
Replace tables with standard items
Repair court surfacing
Install fitness equipment along perimeter trail

River Park North
Create educational kiosks about natural habitat surrounding the river
Improve access to river
Remove turf and place with drought tolerant plants
Place park sign
Protect and preserve native and endangered species through education and
safe plantings in all park locations

Somerston Park
Install shaded picnic structures

The Green
Develop revised conceptual plan for park
Replace playground
Continue to work to improve irrigation issues
Add ornamental plantings
Replace park sign

Tidewater Park
Change playground surface to poured in place surfacing
Paint basketball court

Valverde Park
Resurface basketball courts
Redesign and replant parking lot landscaping
Replace wooden shade shelters
Reseal and stripe parking lots
Monitor and repair irrigation and turf problems

Woodfield Park
Manage turf condition
Replace/ remove restroom building

621



103FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

2.1h Establish Standards for Future Park Development
Standard Items to be considered for inclusion

Splash pads and water features
Trail and pathway connectivity
Playgrounds
Additional open space and natural areas
Indoor athletic fields and courts
Improved amenities ( restrooms, pavilions)
Indoor recreation facilities
Community Gardens
Public Art in Parks
Provide ample shade with tree canopy cover and shade structures
Add storm water systems and erosion mitigation systems
Install small windmills on park facilities or decorative turbine structures
Protect and preserve native and endangered species
Installation of solar panels in areas that will provide energy efficient practices. 
Examples include: restrooms, outdoor public spaces, etc.
Provide access to natural areas such as levees, trails, greenway

2.1h: Establish Standards for Future Park Development
Standard Items to be considered for inclusion

Splash pads and water features
Trail and pathway connectivity
Playgrounds
Additional open space and natural areas
Indoor athletic fields and courts
Improved amenities ( restrooms, pavilions) 
Indoor recreation facilities
Community Gardens
Public Art in Parks
Provide ample shade with tree canopy cover and shade structures
Add storm water systems and erosion mitigation systems
Install small windmills on park facilities or decorative turbine
structures
Protect and preserve native and endangered species
Installation of solar panels in areas that will provide energy efficient
practices. Examples include: restrooms, outdoor public spaces, etc. 
Provide access to natural areas such as levees, trails, greenway

Priority 3 Tasks: Work with local School Districts

Action Timeframe
3.1a Develop a joint use facilities agreement with Banta School District

3.1b Explore collaborative efforts with leadership from both Banta and
Manteca Unified School Districts for facility use . 

3.1c Strengthen existing partnership with MUSD and research new
opportunities. 

2021-2023

Priority 4 Tasks: Explore Additional Funding Sources for Capital Improvement

Action Timeframe
4.1a Explore the development of a non-profit foundation for Parks and
Recreation

4.1b Pursue grant writer or contract with organization to increase resources
through grant and philanthropic opportunities. 

2021-2023

2.1h: Establish Standards for Future Park Development
Standard Items to be considered for inclusion

Splash pads and water features
Trail and pathway connectivity
Playgrounds
Additional open space and natural areas
Indoor athletic fields and courts
Improved amenities ( restrooms, pavilions) 
Indoor recreation facilities
Community Gardens
Public Art in Parks
Provide ample shade with tree canopy cover and shade structures
Add storm water systems and erosion mitigation systems
Install small windmills on park facilities or decorative turbine
structures
Protect and preserve native and endangered species
Installation of solar panels in areas that will provide energy efficient
practices. Examples include: restrooms, outdoor public spaces, etc. 
Provide access to natural areas such as levees, trails, greenway

Priority 3 Tasks: Work with local School Districts

Action Timeframe
3.1a Develop a joint use facilities agreement with Banta School District

3.1b Explore collaborative efforts with leadership from both Banta and
Manteca Unified School Districts for facility use. 

3.1c Strengthen existing partnership with MUSD and research new
opportunities. 

2021-2023

Priority 4 Tasks: Explore Additional Funding Sources for Capital Improvement

Action Timeframe
4.1a Explore the development of a non-profit foundation for Parks and
Recreation

4.1b Pursue grant writer or contract with organization to increase resources
through grant and philanthropic opportunities. 

2021- 2023

3.1a Develop a joint use facilities agreement with Banta School District

3.1b Strengthen existing partnership with MUSD and research new opportunities

2021-2023

4.1a Explore the development of a non-profit foundation for Parks and
Recreation

4.1b Pursue grant writer or contract with organization to increase resources
through grant and philanthropic opportunities

2021-2023

622



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan104

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

623



105FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Appendix A: Level of Service Analysis and Methodology

A. GRASP® Glossary
Buffer:  see catchment area

Catchment area: a circular map overlay that radiates outward in all directions from an asset and represents
a reasonable travel distance from the edge of the circle to the asset. Used to indicate access to an asset in
a Level of Service assessment

Component: an amenity such as a playground, picnic shelter, basketball court, or athletic field that allows
people to exercise, socialize, and maintain a healthy physical, mental, and social wellbeing

Geo-Referenced Amenities Standards Process® ( GRASP®): a proprietary composite- values methodology
that takes quality and functionality of assets and amenities into account in a Level of Service assessment

GRASP® Level of Service ( LOS): the extent to which a recreation system provides community access to
recreational assets and amenities

GRASP®- IT audit tool: an instrument developed for assessing the quality and other characteristics of
parks, trails, and other public lands and facilities. The tested, reliable, and valid tool, is used to conduct
inventories of more than 100 park systems nationwide.

Low-score component: a component given a GRASP® score of “1” or “0” as it fails to meet expectations

Lower- service area: an area of a city that has some GRASP® Level of Service but falls below the minimum
standard threshold for the overall Level of Service

Modifier: a basic site amenity that supports users during a visit to a park or recreation site, to include
elements such as restrooms, shade, parking, drinking fountains, seating, BBQ grills, security lighting, and
bicycle racks among others

No-service area: an area of a city with no GRASP® Level of Service

Perspective: a perspective is a map or data quantification, such as a table or chart, produced using the
GRASP® methodology that helps illustrate how recreational assets serve a community

Radius: see catchment area

Recreational connectivity: the extent to which community recreational resources are transitionally linked
to allow for easy and enjoyable travel between them. 

Recreational trail: A recreation trail can be a soft or hard- surfaced off-street path that promotes active
or passive movement through parklands or natural areas. Recreational trails are typically planned and
managed by Parks and Recreation professionals or departments. 

THISPAGEISINTENTIONALLYLEFTBLANK

624



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan106

Service area: all or part of a catchment area ascribed a particular GRASP® score that reflects the Level of
Service provided by a particular recreational asset, a set of assets, or an entire recreation system

Threshold: a minimum Level of Service standard typically determined based on community expectations

Trail: any off-street or on- street connection dedicated to pedestrian, bicycle, or other non- motorized users

Trail network: A trail network is a functional and connected part of a trail system within which major barrier
crossings, including such things as crosswalks, pedestrian underpasses, or bridges. Different networks are
separate from other trail networks by missing trail connections or by such barriers as roadways, rivers, or
railroad tracks. 

Trail system: all trails in a community that serve pedestrian, bicycle, and alternative transportation users
for purposes of both recreation and transportation

Transportation trail: A transportation trail is a hard surface trail, such as a city sidewalk, intended for
traveling from one place to another in a community or region. These trails typically run outside of parklands
and are managed by Public Works or another city utility department.

B. GRASP® Components and Definitions

Table 26: GRASP® Outdoor Component List

GRASP® Outdoor Component Type Definition

Adventure Course An area designated for activities such as rope
courses, zip-lines, and challenge courses. The type
specified in the comments.

Amusement Ride Carousel, train, go-carts, bumper cars, or other
ride-upon features. The ride has an operator and
controlled access.

Aquatics, Complex An aquatic complex has at least one immersion pool
and other features intended for aquatic recreation.

Aquatics, Lap Pool A human-made basin designed for people to
immerse themselves in water and intended for
swimming laps.

Aquatics, Leisure Pool A human-made basin designed for people to
immerse themselves in water and intended for
leisure water activities. May include zero- depth
entry, slides, and spray features.

Aquatics, Spray Pad A water play feature without immersion intended
for interaction with moving water.

Aquatics, Therapy Pool A therapy pool is a temperature- controlled pool
intended for rehabilitation and therapy.

Basketball Court A dedicated full-sized outdoor court with two goals.

625



107FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Basketball, Practice A basketball goal for half-court play or practice that
includes goals in spaces associated with other uses.

Batting Cage A batting cage is a stand-alone facility that has
pitching machines and restricted entry.

Bike Complex A bike complex accommodates various bike skills
or activities with multiple features or skill areas.

Bike Course A designated area for non-motorized bicycle use, 
constructed of concrete, wood, or compacted
earth. May include a pump track, velodrome, skills
course.

Camping, Defined Defined campsites may include a variety of facilities
such as restrooms, picnic tables, water supply. Use
the official agency count for quantity if available. 

Camping, Undefined Indicates allowance for users to stay overnight
in the outdoors in undefined sites. Undefined
camping receives a quantity of one for each park
or location. Use this component when the quantity
of sites is not available for dispersed camping.

Climbing, Designated A designated natural or human-made facility
provided or managed by an agency for recreation
climbing not limited to play.

Climbing, General Indicates allowance for users to participate in a
climbing activity. Use a quantity of one for each
park or other location.

Concession A facility used for the selling, rental, or other
provision of goods and services to the public.

Diamond Field Softball and baseball fields, suitable for organized
diamond sports games. Not specific to size or age-
appropriateness.

Diamond Field, Complex Many ballfields at a single location suitable for
tournaments.

Diamond Field, Practice An open or grassy area used for the practice of
diamond sports. Distinguished from ballfield in
that it doesn’ t lend itself to organized diamond
sports games and from open turf by the presence
of a backstop.

Disc Golf A designated area for disc golf. 
Quantities: 18 hole course = 1; 9 hole course = .5

Dog Park An area explicitly designated as an off-leash area
for dogs and their guardians.

626



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan108

Educational Experience Signs, structures, or features that provide an
educational, cultural, or historical experience. 
Assign a quantity of one for each contiguous site. 
Distinguished from public art by the presence of
interpretive signs or other information.

Equestrian Facility Same as above

Event Space A designated area or facility for an outdoor class, 
performance, or special event, including an
amphitheater, bandshell, stage.

Fitness Course Features intended for personal fitness activities. A
course receives a quantity of one for each complete
grouping.

Game Court Outdoor court designed for a game other than
tennis, basketball, volleyball, as distinguished from
a multi- use pad, including bocce, shuffleboard, 
lawn bowling. Quantity counted per court.

Garden, Community A garden area that provides community members
a place to have a personal vegetable or flower
garden.

Garden, Display A garden area that is designed and maintained
to provide a focal point or destination, including
a rose garden, fern garden, native plant garden, 
wildlife/ habitat garden, an arboretum.

Golf A course designed and intended for the sport of
golf. Counted per 18 holes. 
Quantities: 18 hole course = 1; 9 hole course = .5

Golf, Miniature A course designed and intended as a multi- hole
golf putting game.

Golf, Practice An area designated for golf practice or lessons, 
including driving ranges and putting greens.

Horseshoe Court A designated area for the game of horseshoes, 
including permanent pits of regulation length. 
Quantity counted per court.

Horseshoes Complex Several regulation horseshoe courts in a single
location suitable for tournaments.

Ice Hockey Regulation size outdoor rink explicitly built for ice
hockey games and practice. General ice skating
included in “Winter Sport.”

Inline Hockey Regulation size outdoor rink built specifically for in-
line hockey games and practice.

627



109FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Loop Walk Opportunity to complete a circuit on foot or by
non-motorized travel mode. Suitable for use as an
exercise circuit or leisure walking. Quantity of one
for each park or other location unless more than
one distinct circuit is present.

Multi- Use Pad A painted area with games such as hopscotch, 
4 square, tetherball found in schoolyards. As
distinguished from “ Games Court,” which is
typically single-use.

Natural Area Describes an area in a park that contains plants
and landforms that are remnants of or replicate
undisturbed native regions of the local ecology. It
can include grasslands, woodlands, and wetlands.

Open Turf A grassy area that is not suitable for programmed
field sports due to size, slope, location, or physical
obstructions. May be used for games of catch, tag, 
or other informal play and uses that require an
open grassy area.

Other An active or passive component that does not fall
under any other component definition. 

Passive Node A place that is designed to create a pause or
particular focus within a park and includes
seating areas, plazas, overlooks. Not intended for
programmed use.

Pickleball Court A designated court designed primarily for pickleball
play.

Picnic Ground A designated area with a grouping of picnic tables
suitable for organized picnic activities. Account for
individual picnic tables as Comfort and Convenience
modifiers.

Playground, Destination A destination playground attracts families from
the entire community. Typically has restrooms and
parking on-site. May include special features like a
climbing wall, spray feature, or adventure play.

Playground, Local A local playground serves the needs of the
surrounding neighborhood. Includes developed
playgrounds and designated nature play areas. 
Park generally does not have restrooms or on-site
parking.

Public Art Any art installation on public property. Art receives
a quantity of one for each contiguous site.

Rectangular Field Complex Several rectangular fields in a single location
suitable for tournament use.

628



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan110

Rectangular Field, Large Describes a specific field large enough to host
one adult rectangular field sports game such as
soccer, football, lacrosse, rugby, and field hockey. 
The approximate field size is 180’ x 300’ ( 60 x 100
yards). The field may have goals and lines specific
to an individual sport that may change with the
permitted use.

Rectangular Field, Multiple Describes an area large enough to host one adult
rectangular field sports game and a minimum of
one other event/ game, but with an undetermined
number of actual fields. This category describes a
large open grassy area arranged in any manner of
configurations for any number of rectangular field
sports. Sports may include but are not limited to: 
soccer, football, lacrosse, rugby, and field hockey. 
The field may have goals and lines specific to
an individual sport that may change with the
permitted use.

Rectangular Field, Small Describes a specific field too small to hosta
regulation adult rectangular field sports game
but accommodates at least one youth field sports
game. Sports may include but are not limited to: 
soccer, football, lacrosse, rugby, and field hockey. A
field may have goals and lines specific to a particular
sport that may change with a permitted use.

Shelter, Large A shade shelter or pavilion large enough to
accommodate a group picnic or other event for a
minimum of 13 seated. Address lack of seating in
scoring. 

Shelter, Small A shade shelter, large enough to accommodate a
family picnic or other event for approximately 4-12
persons with seating for a minimum of 4. Covered
benches for seating up to 4 people included as a
modifier in comfort and convenience scoring and
should not be included here. 

Skate Feature A stand-alone feature primarily for wheel sports
such as skateboarding and in-line skating. The
component may or may not allow freestyle biking. 
May be associated with a playground but is not
part of it. Categorize dedicated bike facilities as
Bike Course.

Skate Park An area set aside primarily for wheel sports such
as skateboarding and in-line skating. The park may
or may not allow freestyle biking. May be specific
to one user group or allow for several user types. It
can accommodate multiple abilities. Typically hasa
variety of concrete or modular features.

629



111FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Target Range A designated area for practice or competitive target
activities, such as archery or firearms.

Tennis Complex Multiple regulation courts in a single location with
amenities suitable for tournament use.

Tennis, Practice Wall A wall intended for practicing tennis.

Track, Athletic A multi-lane, regulation-sized running track
appropriate for track and field events.

Trail, Multi- Use A trail, paved or unpaved, is separated from the
road and provides recreational opportunities or
connection to walkers, bikers, rollerbladers, and
equestrian users. Paths that make a circuit within
a single site are Loop Walks.

Trail, Primitive A path, unpaved, located within a park or natural
area that provides recreational opportunities
or connections to users. Minimal surface
improvements that may or may not meet
accessibility standards

Trail, Water A river, stream, canal, or other waterway used as a
trail for floating, paddling, or other watercraft.

Trailhead A designated staging area at a trail access point may
include restrooms, an information kiosk, parking, 
drinking water, trash receptacles, and seating.

Volleyball Court One full-sized court. May be hard or soft surface, 
including grass and sand. May have permanent or
portable posts and nets.

Wall Ball Court Walled courts associated with sports such as
handball and racquetball. The type specified in the
comments.

Water Access, Developed A developed water access point includes docks, 
piers, kayak courses, boat ramps, fishing facilities. 
Specified in comments, including quantity for each
unique type.

Water Access, General Measures a user’s general ability to access the
edge of open water. May include undeveloped
shoreline. Typically receives a quantity of one for
each contiguous site.

Water Feature This passive water-based amenity provides a visual
focal point that includes fountains and waterfalls.

Water, Open A body of water such as a pond, stream, river, 
wetland with open water, lake, or reservoir.

Winter Sport An area designated for a winter sport or activity
such as a downhill ski area, Nordic ski area, sledding
hill, toboggan run, or recreational ice. The type
specified in the comments.

630



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan112

Table 27: GRASP® Indoor Component List

GRASP® Indoor Component Type Definition

Arts and Crafts A room with a non-carpeted floor, built-in storage
for materials, and a sink. Often adjacent to a kiln
room.

Auditorium/ Theater A large room explicitly designed as a performance/
lecture space that includes a built-in stage, seating
and can accommodate stage lighting and sound
amplification.

Childcare/ Preschool A room or space with built-in secure entry and
cabinets, a small toilet, designated outdoor play
area. Intended for short-term child care or half or
full-day preschool use.

Fitness/ Dance A room with resilient flooring and mirrors.

Food - Counter Service Staffed food service with a commercial kitchen and
no waiter services.

Food - Full Service Staffed food service with a commercial kitchen and
dining room with waiter services.

Food - Vending A non-staffed area with vending machines or self-
service food options.

Gallery/ Exhibits A space intended for the display of art, interpretive
information, or another type of exhibit. Typically
has adequate lighting, open wall space, and room
for circulation.

Sport Court An active recreation space such as a gymnasium
that can accommodate basketball, volleyball, or
other indoor court sports with one or more courts
designated in quantity.

Track, Indoor Course with painted lanes, banked corners, resilient
surface, and marked distances suitable for exercise
walking, jogging, or running.

Kitchen - Kitchenette Area for preparing, warming, or serving food.

Kitchen - Commercial A kitchen meeting local codes for commercial food
preparation.

Lobby/ Entryway An area at the entry of a building intended for
sitting and waiting or relaxing

Multi- Purpose Room A multi- purpose room can host a variety of
activities, including events, classes, meetings, 
banquets, medical, or therapeutic uses. It also
includes rooms or areas designated or intended as
game rooms, libraries, or lounges. Rooms may be
dividable.

Patio/ Outdoor Seating Outdoor space or seating area designed to be used
exclusively in conjunction with indoor space and
primarily accessed through an indoor space.

631



113FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Retail/ Pro-shop An area for retail sales of sporting equipment, or
gifts. Typically has direct access from outdoors
and can be secured separately from the rest of a
building or facility.

Sauna/ Steam Room A facility with built-in seating and a heat source
intended for heat therapy. May be steam or dry
heat.

Specialty Services Any specialty services available at an indoor
location. 

Specialty Training Any specialty training available at an indoor location
that includes gymnastics and circuit training.

Weight/ Cardio Equipment A room or area with weight and cardio equipment, 
resilient or anti- bacterial flooring, adequate
ventilation, and ceiling heights appropriate for
high-intensity workouts

Woodshop A room with wood-working equipment that
contains an adequate power supply and ventilation.

Note: Include any component from the outdoor component list as an indoor component

C. Inventory Methods and Process
To complete a detailed GIS (Geographic Information System) inventory, the planning team first prepared a
preliminary list of existing components using aerial photography and GIS data. Components identified in
aerial photos were located and labeled. 

Next, field teams visited sites to confirm or revise preliminary component data, make notes regarding
sites or assets, and develop an understanding of the system. The inventory for this study focused primarily
on components at public parks. Evaluations include assessments to ensure a component was serving its
intended function, noting any parts in need of refurbishment, replacement, or removal.
The inventory also included the recording of site comfort and convenience amenities such as shade, 
drinking fountains, restrooms, called modifiers.

Collection of the following information during site visits: 
Component type and geolocation
Component functionality

Based assessment scoring on the condition, size, site capacity, and overall quality. The inventory
team used the following three-tier rating system to evaluate these:

1 = Below Expectations
2 = Meets Expectations
3 = Exceeds Expectations

Site modifiers
Site design and ambiance
Site photos
General comments

632



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan114

Asset Scoring
All components were scored based on condition, size, site capacity, and overall quality as they reflect
the expected quality of recreational features. Beyond quality and functionality of components, however, 
GRASP® Level of Service analysis also considers important aspects of a park or recreation site. Not all parks
are created equal, and their surroundings may determine the quality of a user’ s experience. For example, 
the GRASP® system acknowledges the essential differences between identical playground structures as
displayed in the following images:

In addition to scoring components, GRASP®-IT assesses each park site or
indoor facility for its comfort, convenience, and ambient qualities. These
qualities include the availability of amenities such as restrooms, drinking
water, shade, and scenery. These modifier values then serve to enhance
or amplify component scores at any given location.

Compiled GIS information collected during the site visit includes all GIS
data and staff input. This review packet consists of the most recent GIS
data displayed by location on an aerial photograph. An accompanying
data sheet for each site lists modifier and component scores as well as
observations and comments. 

Analysis of the existing parks, open space, trails, and recreation systems
determine how the systems are serving the public. Level of Service ( LOS) 
in Parks and Recreation master plans defines the capacity of the various
components and facilities that make up the system to meet the needs of
the public in terms of the size or quantity of a given facility per unit of
population. 

Figure 39: GRASP® Asset Scoring Comparison

An analytical
technique known as

GRASP® ( Geo-Referenced
Amenities Standard
Process) was used to

analyze the Level of Service
provided by assets. This

proprietary process, used
exclusively by GreenPlay, 
yields analytical maps and

data that may be used
to examine access to

recreation across a
study area.

633



115FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

D. Composite-Values Level of Service Analysis Methodology
Level of Service ( LOS) measures how parks, open spaces, trails, and facilities serve the community. They
may be used to benchmark current conditions and to direct future planning efforts. 

Why Level of Service ? 
LOS indicates the ability of people to connect with nature and pursue active lifestyles. It can have
implications for health and wellness, the local economy, and the quality of life. Further, LOS for a Parks and
Recreation system tends to reflect community values. It is often representative of people’ s connectionto
their communities and lifestyles focused on outdoor recreation and healthy living. 

Analysis of the existing parks, open space, trails, and recreation systems determine how the systems are
serving the public and the capacity of the various components and facilities to meet the needs of the users
or residents.

GRASP® Score
Each park or recreation location, along with all on-site components, has been assigned aGRASP® Score. 
The GRASP® Score accounts for the assessment score as well as available modifiers and the design and
ambiance of a park. The following illustration shows this relationship. A basic algorithm calculates scoring
totals, accounting for both component and modifier scores, every park, and facility in the inventory. The
resulting ratings reflect the overall value of that site. Scores for each inventory site and its components
may be found in the GRASP® Inventory Atlas, a supplemental document. 

Figure 40: GRASP® Score calculation

634



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan116

Catchment Areas
Catchment areas, also called buffers, radii, or service area, are drawn around each component. The
GRASP® Score for that component is then applied to that buffer and overlapped with all other component
catchment areas. This process yields the data used to create perspective maps and analytical charts. 

Perspectives
Maps and data produced using the GRASP® methodology are known as Perspectives. Each perspective
models service across the study area. The system can be further analyzed to derive statistical information
about service in a variety of ways. Maps are utilized along with tables and charts to provide benchmarks
or insights a community may use to determine its success in delivering services. 

Plotting service areas for multiple components on a map produces a picture that represents the cumulative
Level of Service provided by that set of elements in a geographic area. 

This example graphic
illustrates the GRASP® 
process, assuming all three
components and the park
boundary itself, is scored
a “ 2”. The overlap of their
service areas yields higher
or lower overall scores for
different parts of a study
area.

Figure 41: GRASP® Process

635



117FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

On a map, darker shades result from the overlap of multiple service areas and indicate areas served by
more or higher quality components. For any given spot, there is a GRASP® Value that reflects cumulative
scoring for nearby assets. Figure 42 provides an example. 

Figure 42: Example of GRASP® Level of Service ( LOS)
More on Utilizing GRASP® 
Perspectives
GRASP® Perspectives evaluate the Level
of Service throughout a community from
various points of view. Their purpose is to
reveal possible gaps in service and provide a
metric to use in understanding a recreation
system. However, it is not necessarily
beneficial for all parts of the community to
score equally in the analyses. The desired
Level of Service for a location should depend
on the type of service, the characteristics
of the place, and other factors such as
community need, population growth
forecasts, and land use issues. For example, 
commercial, institutional, and industrial
areas might reasonably have a lower Level

of Service for Parks and Recreation opportunities than residential areas. GRASP® Perspectives should
focus attention on gap areas for further scrutiny. 

E. Brief History of Level of Service Analysis
To help standardize Parks and Recreation planning, universities, agencies, 
and Parks and Recreation professionals have long been looking for ways to
benchmark and provide “ national standards” for how much acreage, how
many ballfields, pools, and playgrounds, a community should have. In 1906
the fledgling “ Playground Association of America” called for playground
space equal to 30 square feet per child. In the 1970s and early 1980s, the
first detailed published works on these topics began emerging ( Gold, 1973, 
Lancaster, 1983). In time, “ rule of thumb” ratios emerged with 10 acres of
parklands per thousand population becoming the most widely accepted
norm. Other normative guides also have been cited as traditional standards
but have been less widely accepted. 

In 1983, Roger Lancaster compiled a book called, “ Recreation, Park and
Open Space Standards and Guidelines,” which was published by the
National Park and Recreation Association ( NRPA). In this publication, Mr. 
Lancaster centered on a recommendation “ that a park system, at minimum, 
be composed of a core system of parklands, with a total of 6.25 to 10.5
acres of developed open space per 1,000 population ( Lancaster, 1983, 
p. 56). The guidelines went further to make recommendations regarding
an appropriate mix of park types, sizes, service areas, and acreages, and
standards regarding the number of available recreational facilities per
thousand population. While published by NRPA, the table became widely
known as “ the NRPA standards,” but these were never formally adopted for
use by NRPA. 

Perspectives used
in conjunction with

other assessment tools such
as community needs surveys
and a public input process to
determine if current levels of
service are appropriate in a
given location. Plans provide
similar levels of service to new, 
developing neighborhoods. 
Or it may be determined that
different Levels of Service are
adequate or suitable. Therefore, 
a new set of criteria may be
utilized that differs from existing

community patterns to reflect
these distinctions.

636



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan118

Since that time, various publications have updated and expanded upon possible “ standards,” several of which
have been published by NRPA. Many of these publications benchmarked and other normative research to
try and determine what an “average LOS” should be. NRPA and the prestigious American Academy for Park
and Recreation Administration, as organizations, have focused in recent years on accreditation standards
for agencies, which are less directed towards outputs, outcomes, and performance, and more on planning, 
organizational structure, and management processes. The popularly referred to “ NRPA standards” for LOS, 
as such, do not exist. 

Today, NRPA has shifted to an annual Agency Performance Review publication. The following three tables
provide similar but updated information to the table of commonly referenced LOS capacity standards
included in the 2006 document. “ The 2019 NRPA Agency Performance Review presents the data and
key insights from 1,075 Parks and Recreation agencies collected by the Agency Performance Survey. This
annual report provides critical Parks and Recreation metrics on budgets, staffing, facilities, and more.”11

In conducting planning work, it is critical to realize that the above standards can be valuable when
referenced as “ norms” for capacity, but not necessarily as the target standards for which a community
should strive. Each city is different, and many factors that are not addressed by the criteria above. For
example:

Does “ developed acreage” include golf courses”? What about indoor and passive facilities? 
What are the standards for skate parks? Ice Arenas? Public Art? Etc.? 
What if it’s an urban land-locked community? What if it’s a small town surrounded by open Federal
lands?
What about quality and condition? What if there’ s a bunch of ballfields, but they are not maintained? 

F. GRASP® (Geo-Referenced Amenities Standards Program)
A new methodology for determining the Level of Service is appropriate to address these and other
relevant questions. It is called composite- values methods, and it is applied in communities across the
nation in recent years to provide a better way of measuring and portraying the service provided by Parks
and Recreation systems. Primary research and development on this methodology were funded jointly
by GreenPlay, LLC, a management consulting firm for parks, open space, and related agencies; Design
Concepts, a landscape architecture, and planning firm, and Geowest, a spatial information management
firm. The trademarked name for the composite- values methodology process that these three firms use
is called GRASP® ( Geo-Referenced Amenities Standards Program). For this methodology, capacity is
only part of the LOS equation. Considering other factors include quality, condition, location, comfort, 
convenience, and ambiance.

Parks, trails, recreation, and open space are part of an overall infrastructure for a community made
up of various components, such as playgrounds, multi- purpose fields, passive areas. Explanations and
characteristics listed above affect the amount of service provided by the parts of the system follow.

Quality – The service provided by a component, whether it is a playground, soccer field, or swimming
pool, is determined in part by its quality. A playground with a variety of features, such as climbers, 
slides, and swings, provides a higher degree of service than one with nothing but an old teeter-totter
and some “ monkey-bars.”

11 https:// www. nrpa. org/ siteassets/ nrpa- agency- performance- review. pdf

637



119FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Condition – The condition of a component also affects the amount of service it provides. A playground
in disrepair with unsafe equipment does not offer the same function as one in good condition. Similarly, 
a soccer field with a smooth surface and well- maintained grass provide more service than one that is
full of weeds, ruts, and other hazards.

Location – To be served by something, you need to be able to get to it. The typical park playground
is of more service to people who live within walking distance than it is to someone living across town. 
Therefore, service is dependent upon proximity and access.

Comfort and Convenience – The service provided by a component, such as a playground, is increased
by having amenities such as shade, seating, and a restroom nearby. Comfort and convenience enhance
the experience of using a component and encourages people to use an element. Easy access and
the availability of drinking fountains, bike rack, or nearby parking are examples of conveniences that
enhance the service provided by a component.

Design and Ambiance – Simple observation proves that places that “ feel” right, attract people. A
sense of safety and security, as well as pleasant surroundings, attractive views, and a sense of place
impact ambiance. A well-designed park is preferable to a poorly designed one, and this enhances the
service provided by the components within it.

The GRASP® methodology records a geographic location of components as well as the capacity and the
quantity of each element. Also, it uses comfort, convenience, and ambiance as characteristics that are part
of the context and setting of a component. They are not characteristics of the element itself, but when
they exist in proximity to a component, they enhance the value of the component. 

By combining and analyzing the composite values of each component, it is possible to measure the service
provided by a Parks and Recreation system from a variety of Perspectives and for any given location. 
Typically, this begins with a decision on “ relevant components” for the analysis, collection of an accurate
inventory of those components, analysis. Maps and tables represent the results of the GRASP® analysis. 

G. Making Justifiable Decisions
GRASP® stores all data generated from the GRASP® evaluation in an electronic database that is available
and owned by the agency for use in a variety of ways. The database tracks facilities and programs and
can be used to schedule services, maintenance, and the replacement of components. In addition to
determining LOS, it is useful in projecting long-term capital and life- cycle cost needs. All portions of the
information are in available standard software and can be produced in a variety of ways for future planning
or sharing with the public. 

It is important to note that the GRASP® methodology provides not only accurate LOS and facility inventory
information, but also integrates with other tools to help agencies make decisions. It is relatively easy to
maintain, update, and creates an easily understood graphic depiction of issues. Combined with a needs
assessment, public and staff involvement, program, and financial assessment, GRASP® allows an agency
to defensibly make recommendations on priorities for ongoing resource allocations along with capital and
operational funding. 

638



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan120

H. Addressing Low-Scoring Components
Components whose functionality ranks below expectations are identified and scored with a “ one.” Finda
list of these as extracted from the inventory dataset below. When raising the score of a component through
improvement or replacement, the Level of Service is raised as well. The following is an outline strategy for
addressing the repair/ refurbishment/ replacement or re-purposing of low-functioning components. 

I. Determine why the component is functioning below expectations. 
Was it poorly conceived in the first place? 
Is it something that was not needed? 
Is it the wrong size, type, or configuration? 
Is it poorly placed, or located in a way that conflicts with other activities or detracts from its use? 
Have the needs changed in a way that the component is now outdated, obsolete, or no longer
needed? 
Has it been damaged? 
Has the maintenance of the component been deferred or neglected to the point where it no
longer functions as intended? 
Do components score low because they are not available to the public in a way that meets
expectations? 
Is the component old, outdated, or otherwise dysfunctional, but has historical or sentimental
value? An example would be an old structure in a park, such as a stone barbecue grill, or other
artifacts that are not restorable to its original purpose, but which have historical value. 

II. Depending on the answers from the first step, select a strategy for addressing the low-functioning
component: 

If the need for that type of component in its current location still exists, then the component
should be repaired or replaced to match its original condition as much as possible. 

Examples of this would be many of the existing shelters that need shingles or roof repairs. 
Other examples could be playgrounds with old, damaged, or outdated equipment, or courts
with poor surfacing or missing nets. 

If the need for that type of component has changed to the point where the original one is no
longer suitable, then it should be replaced with a new one that fits the current needs.
If a component is poorly located or poorly designed to start with, consider relocating, redesigning, 
or otherwise modifying it. 
Remove a component because of changing demands, unless it can be maintained in good
condition without excessive expense or has historical or sentimental value. Inline hockey rinks
may fall into this category. If a rink has been allowed to deteriorate because the community
has no desire for inline hockey, then maybe it should be repurposed into some other use. 

639



121FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

III. It is possible that through ongoing public input and as needs and trends evolve, there is the identification
of new demands for existing parks. If there is no room in an existing park for the requests, the decision
may include removal or re-purpose a current component, even if it is quite functional. 

As the popularity of tennis declined and demand for courts dropped off in some communities
over recent decades, perfectly good courts became skate parks or inline rinks. In most cases, this
was an interim use, intended to satisfy a short-term need until a decision to either construct a
permanent facility or let the fad fade. The need for inline rinks now seems to have diminished. 
In contrast, temporary skate parks on tennis courts are now permanent locations of their own. 
They become more elaborate facilities as skateboarding, and other wheel sports have grown in
popularity and permanence. 
One community repurposed a ball diamond into a dog park. The ball diamond is well-suited for
use as a dog park because it is already fenced, and the combination of the skinned infield where
the dogs enter and natural grass in the outfield where traffic disperses is ideal. In time this facility
either becomes a permanent facility or is constructed elsewhere. Or, it could turn out that dog
parks fade in popularity like inline hockey rinks, and are replaced with some other facility that
dog owners prefer even more than the current dog park model. Meanwhile, the use of the ball
diamond for this purpose is an excellent interim solution.

640



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan122

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

641



2020 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop 123

Table 28: Outdoor Low Scoring Components

Location Component Qty GRASP® Score Comments
Apolinar Sangalang Diamond Field 1 1 Drainage issues in infield.
Apolinar Sangalang Rectangular Field, Multiple 1 1 Some wear patches in turf
Apolinar Sangalang Playground, Local 1 1 Faded equipment with burns in slide. Poured in place surfacing
Apolinar Sangalang Open Turf 1 1 Turf issues
Libby Park Open Turf 1 1 Some wear patches in turf
Libby Park Fitness Course 1 1 Minimal equipment
Libby Park Playground, Local 1 1 Small equipment on poured in place surfacing
Michael Vega Park Picnic Ground 1 1 Tables don’t meet system standard. On engineered wood fiber surfacing
Milestone Manor Park Loop Walk 1 1 Dirt path with irregularities. Needs refurbishment.
River Park North Picnic Ground 1 1 6 tables.  Under developed.
The Green Playground, Local 1 1 Very minimal
The Green Open Turf 1 1 Low turf quality
The Green Picnic Ground 1 1 Four tables with bbqs and trash cans.
The Green Shelter, Small 1 1 Non-standard shelter.
Valverde Park Diamond Field 2 1 Outfield turf problems. No outfield fencing.
Valverde Park Aquatics, Spray Pad 1 1 Minimal
Woodfield Park Open Turf 1 1 Storm water basin. Inconsistent turf condition

642



City of Lathrop | 2020 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan124

Low Scoring Outdoor Modifiers
In scoring inventory locations, basic site amenities, called modifiers, were
evaluated. Modifiers are things that support users during their visit, such
as design and ambiance, drinking fountains, seating, BBQ grills, security
lighting, bike racks, restrooms, shade, access, and parking among others. 
These elements help inform overall GRASP® scoring. Modifiers that do not
meet expectations receive lower scores. See below for a list of low scoring
modifiers. 

Red highlighted modifiers scored low. Modifiers, in yellow that was not
present at the time of site visits, scored a zero. These scores do not imply
that all parks and facilities should have all modifiers but instead that the
presence of modifiers positively impacts the user experience.

There were no low scoring indoor components identified during the site
visits.

Table 29: Outdoor Low Outdoor Modifiers

Park or Location
Design & AmbianceDrinking FountainsSeatingBBQ GrillsDog StationsSecurity LightingBike RacksRestroomsShade & Shade TreesTrail ConnectionsPark AccessParkingSeasonal PlantingsOrnamental PlantingsPicnic TablesApolinar Sangalang 2 2
22 2 2 2 2 2 0 2 0 0 2 2 Armstrong Park 2 2
20 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 Basin Park 2 2
22 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 Crescent Park 2 2
222 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 Crystal Cove Park 2 2
20 2 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 2 2 2 Generations Center 2 2
200 2 2 2 2 0 2 2 2 2 2 Lathrop Skate Park 1 1
20 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 2 Libby Park 2 0
222 2 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 2 2 Michael Vega Park 3 2
222 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 2 3 1 Milestone Manor Park 1 0
22 2 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 2 1 Mossdale Commons 2 2
2020 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 2 2 Mossdale Landing Community Park 2 2
22 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 0 2 2 Park West 2 2
22 2 2 2 2 0 0 2 0 2 2 2 Reflections Park 2 0
222 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 1 River Park North 1 0
020 0 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2 2 River Park South 2 2
22 2 0 2 2 2 2 2 0 0 2 2 Somerston Park 2 2
2 020 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 Leland & Jane Stanford Park 2 2
200 2 2 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 2 Summer House Park 2 2
22 2 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 2 3 2 The Green 1 2
22 2 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 2 1 Thomsen Park 1 0
00 2 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 Tidewater Park 2 2
22 2 2 2 0 0 0 2 2 2 2 2 Valverde Park 2 2
22 22 2 2 2 0 2 2 2 2 2 William S. Moss Park 2 2
20 0 2 2 2 2 0 2 0 0 2 2 Woodfield Park 2 2

643



125FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Table 30: Indoor Low Scoring Components

Low Scoring Indoor Modifiers
Modifiers, in yellow that was not present at the time of site visits, scored a zero. These scores do not imply
that all indoor facilities should have all modifiers but instead that the presence of modifiers positively
impacts the user experience.

Table 31: Low Scoring Indoor Modifiers

Further system- wide considerations and recommendations:
Consider the “Acres of Park Land per 1,000 Residents” table when adding land to an existing park or
new park locations. 

55 acres of developed parkland ( Note there are currently 101 acres of undeveloped parkland in
the inventory)

Consider the “ Capacities Analysis” and NRPA Park Metrics comparison table when adding new
components at an existing park or new park locations. This table showed the possible need for the
following in the next five years based on population projections:

Aquatics, Spray Pad ( 1)
Basketball court (5) and practice basketball ( 2)
Batting Cage ( 1)
Concessions ( 2)
Diamond fields ( 6) and diamond practice field (1)
Dog park (1)
Educational experience ( 1)
Event space (1)
Fitness course (3)
Game court (2)
Community garden (1)
Horseshoe court (2)
Loop walk (4)
Open turf (9)
Picnic ground (5)
Playgrounds ( 9)
Large shelter (3) and small shelter (4)

644



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan126

Tennis court (1* to 6#)
Volleyball court (1 to 5#)
Water access ( 2) 

Notes: * Number needed to match the NRPA median for similar size agencies. # Required to meet condition
116 standards. And the number needed to maintain current LOS based on population projection

Agency or system- wide considerations
Develop trails GIS data and consider a trails or multi- modal transportation plan to improve trails
access throughout the City.
Consider refresh or upgrade of the parks in historic Lathrop.

Park or location- specific considerations
Apolinar Sangalang Park

Manage drainage issues at the diamond field infield
Repair patches in turf
Consider playground equipment and repairing burn holes in the slide
Determine and implement standards for shade structures and tables

Crescent Park
Consider shade opportunities and BBQs
Fill volleyball court with better quality sand

Crystal Cove Park
Consider shade structures
Add covers to dugouts
Consider outfield fencing to protect players at the lake edge

Lathrop Skate Park
Formalize parking
Consider a shade structure
Consider a drinking fountain, dog station, lighting, restrooms, bike rack

Libby Park
Develop fitness equipment
Add drinking fountain

Milestone Manor Park
Resurface and level path throughout
Implement standards for tables and benches
Manage ornamental plantings

Mossdale Landing Community Park
Consider permanent outfield fencing
Determine and implement standards for shade structures and tables

645



127FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Park West
Consider shade structures
Repair basketball court surfacing

Proposed Stanford Crossing Community Sports Park
Access road could be directed to the west edge of designated parkland along the levee to
provide as much usable park space as possible.
Consider lighted fields
Possible synthetic field location to extend the sports season into winter months

Reflections Park
Consider fencing along rivers edge to prevent volleyballs from going into the lake

River Park North
Develop a park
Consider a dog park
Consider Educational kiosks in regards to the River surrounding natural habitat
Remove turf and place drought tolerant plants
Create an educational River Habitat location
Improve access to river
Create trail access
Add ornamental plantings and amenities

The Green
Improve playground
Solve irrigation issues
Add ornamental plantings

Tidewater Park
Fill playground with EWF or consider changing to poured in place surfacing

Valverde Park
Raise horseshoes to park standard
Fix turf problems
Consider outfield fencing

Woodfield Park
Manage turf condition
Improve handicap parking arrangement

646



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan128

H. Level of Service Improvements
Addressing Lower and No Service Areas
One way of using the GRASP® Perspectives is to consider prioritization of identified gap areas. For example, 
in the walkable access analysis, several areas with low or no service were identified. Further analyses of
these areas can help when prioritizing future improvements or recreation opportunities. Prioritizationof
improvements may consider multiple factors, including providing maximum impact to the highest number
of residents. Social equity factors, such as average household income, could also influence priorities.

Component Inventory and Assessment
Maintaining and improving existing facilities typically ranks very high in public input. Existing features
that fall short of expectations should be improved to address this concern. Features have been assessed
based on condition and functionality in the inventory phase of this plan. Identify and address those with
low scores as explained below. The assessment should be updated regularly to assure the upgrade or
improvements of components as they are affected by wear and tear over time. 

Addressing Low-Scoring Components
Low scoring components were addressed previously in Section D. 

Booster Components
Another way to enhance the Level of Service is through the addition ofbooster components at specific
park sites or recreation facilities. These are most effective in low- service areas where parks exist that have
space for additional components. 

High Demand Components
The statistically- valid survey asks respondents to rank facilities by importance based on those they felt the
City needed to add or improve. Consider these high demand components when adding new components
to the system.

The highest priority for added, expanded, or improved outdoor activities listed by survey respondents
are:
1. Adding trails or making trail and pathway connections
2. Indoor Facilities

Many of these needs may be addressed by upgrading facilities, retrofitting lesser used assets, andby
adding components that could serve as future program opportunities:

Trends in Parks and Recreation
Trends to consider when deciding what to do with low-functioning facilities, or improving existing parksto
serve the needs of residents, include things like:

647



129FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Dog parks continue to grow in popularity and may be related to an aging demographic in America, 
with more “ empty-nesters” transferring the attention they once gave to their children, to their pets. 
It is also an essential form of socializing for people who may have once socialized with other parents
in their child’s soccer league, and now that the kids are grown, they are enjoying the company of
other dog owners at the dog park. And for singles, a dog park is an excellent place to meet people.  

Skateboarding and other wheel sports continue to grow in popularity. Making neighborhood parks
skateable and distributing skating features throughout the community provides greater access to this
activity for younger people who cannot drive to a more extensive centralized skate park.  

A desire for locally-grown food and concerns about health, sustainability, and other issues is leading
to the development of community food gardens in parks and other public spaces. 

Events in parks, from a neighborhood “ movie in the park” to large festivals in regional parks, are
growing in popularity to build a sense of community and generate revenues. Providing spaces for
these could become a trend.  

Spraygrounds are growing in popularity, even in colder climates. An extensive and growing selection of
products for these is raising the bar on expectations and offering new possibilities for creative facilities.  

New types of playgrounds are emerging, including discovery play, nature play, adventure play, and
even inter-generational play. Some of these rely upon movable parts, supervised play areas, and
other variations that are different from the standard fixed “ post and platform” playgrounds found
in the typical park across America. These types of nature-based opportunities help connect children
and families to the outdoors.  

Integrating nature into parks by creating natural areas is a trend for many reasons. These include a
desire to make parks more sustainable and introduce people of all ages to the natural environment. 

648



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan130

It is vital to take bicycles and public transportation users into account as well as pedestrians. The concept
of “complete streets” refers to a built environment that serves various types of users of varying ages and
abilities. Many associations and organizations guide on best practices in developing walkable and bikeable
complete streets infrastructure. One such entity, the Association of Pedestrian and Bicycle Professionals
APBP, www.apbp.org) actively promotes complete streets in cities around the country. Another such

organization, the National Association of City Transportation Officials ( NACTO, www.nacto.org), recently
released the NACTO Urban Street Design Guide, which provides a full understanding of complete streets
based on successful strategies employed in various North American cities. This most comprehensive
reference on the topic is a valuable resource for all stakeholders involved in city planning. It proves to be a
critical reference in building the cities of tomorrow.

More information is provided inAppendix D.

The infrastructure available to get people to and from destinations is increasingly vital as many people
prefer a leisurely walk or bike ride to a trip in the car. Users expect easy access to parks, recreation centers, 
and other community resources. Employing different modes of travel to include walking and bicycling may
be referred to as recreational connectivity. 

Recreational connectivity is the ability to access a variety of recreational opportunities or amenitiesby
multiple modes of transportation. In addition to recreational trails, this may also include city sidewalks, 
bicycle paths, bicycle routes, and public transit infrastructure. Of course, the scope of creating and
maintaining such a network is a substantial undertaking that involves many players. Along with a community
expectation for this type of user- friendly network infrastructure comes the hope that stakeholders work
together in the interest of the public good. At the municipal level, this might include public works, law
enforcement, private land-owners, public transit operators, and user groups, as well as the local Parks and
Recreation department.

The concept of recreational connectivity is essential within the scope of Parks and Recreation planning but
also has more profound implications for public health, the local economy, and public safety, among other
considerations. As more people look for non- automotive alternatives, a complete network of various
transportation options is in higher demand. Other elements of this infrastructure might consist of street/
railroad crossings, sidewalk landscaping, lighting, drainage, and even bike- share and car- share availability.

Where to Start?
Recognizing that trail development occurs at a variety of scales, many trails serve park users only while
others are citywide or regional extent. Also, people with a destination in mind tend to take the most direct
route, while recreationists tend to enjoy loop or circuit trails more than linear pathways. An exemplary
trail system provides multiple opportunities for users to utilize trail segments to access different parts
of the City directly or enjoy recreational circuits of various sizes. By employing park trails, city trails, and
regional trails, users should ideally be able to select from several options to reach a destination or spend
time recreating. Simple, early steps such as creating preferred routes and loops on city sidewalks or low
traffic streets are a great place to start.

Connecting People to Trails
As the trail system develops, additional resources are desirable to support users. It is worthwhile to
consider signage and wayfinding strategies, trailheads and access points, public trail maps, and smartphone
applications as strategies to connect people to trails and affect positive user experience.

649



131FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Signage and Wayfinding
Signage and wayfinding strategies enhance a system by promoting ease of use and improving access to
resources. Branding is an essential aspect of adequate signage and wayfinding markers. A hierarchy of
signage for different types of users assists residents and visitors as they navigate between recreation
destinations. Further, a strong brand can imply investment and commitment to alternative transit, and
which can positively impact city identity and open economic opportunities.

Trailheads and Access Points
It is also vital to provide users access to trails. There are two ways to approach this. First, the development
of formal trailheads to include parking, bike racks, signage, restrooms, drinking water, a trail map, and
other amenities. A trailhead provides access to trails that serve a higher volume of users at destinations
reached by automobile. The second approach involves providing a trail access point, usually without the
extensive amenities found at a trailhead. Trail access points are appropriate in residential or commercial
areas where users are more likely to walk or ride a bicycle to reach the trail. Trailheads and access points
should be primary points of interest on any trails mapping. 

Map and App Resources
By making trail maps, available users may enjoy trails with greater confidence and with a better
understanding of distances, access points, amenities, and the system. Even with a developing trail system, 
such a trail map can provide valuable information to users. A great example is from the City of Farmington, 
NM. In this case, they created a bike map (see the following graphic) for the community, which includes
various trail types to add bike paths and bike routes. In addition to showing streets with bicycle paths
and safe on-street bike routes, the Farmington map also includes information about trail ownership, 
helpful as it displays some trails within easements or even on private land with use agreements. As the
trail system evolves, this map should be updated to produce newer versions for distribution to users. 

Another way of trail mapping is through web-based smartphone technologies. Maps made available on
this type of platform are more dynamic for users, always on hand, and can be easily updated. Upfront
investment needed for this type of resource may be cost-prohibitive at present. However, it is likely as
technologies advance; these costs become more manageable in the future. It may be worth considering
the development of web-based maps in long term planning decisions.

Figure 43: Trail and Bicycle Map Example

650



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan132

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

651



2020 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop 133

I. GRASP® Maps

652



City of Lathrop | 2020 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan134

653



2020 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop 135

654



City of Lathrop | 2020 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan136

655



137FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Appendix B: Cost Recovery Analysis

Resource Allocation Study
April 2020

656



ii LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Table of Contents

Acknowledgements.................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Table of Contents ............................................................................................................................... ii

Table of Figures.................................................................................................................................. ii

Table of Tables ................................................................................................................................... ii

Resource Allocation Study .................................................................................................................. 1

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................... 1

The Lathrop Parks and Recreation Department Subsidy and Resource Allocation Pyramid Model ......... 3

Recommendations ..................................................................................................................................... 5

How We Got There - A Philosophy, a Model, and a Policy .................................................................... 7

The Pyramid Methodology ........................................................................................................................ 7

Project Approach and Methodology ......................................................................................................... 7

A Best Practice Tool ................................................................................................................................... 7

A Common Language ................................................................................................................................. 8

Lathrop Parks and Recreation Pyramid Model Result ........................................................................ 12

A Consensus Pyramid  ............................................................................................................................... 12

Subsidy Level Targets ............................................................................................................................... 14

Establishing Fees and Charges .......................................................................................................... 15

Pricing Strategy ........................................................................................................................................ 15

Criteria for Establishing Fees and Charges .............................................................................................. 16

City of Lathrop – Fee Types ..................................................................................................................... 16

City of Lathrop - Refund Policy ................................................................................................................ 18

Appendix A: The Pyramid Methodology ............................................................................................ 19

Appendix B: Lathrop Parks and Recreation Department Categories of Service ................................... 24

Appendix C: Developing a Pricing Strategy ........................................................................................ 26

Appendix D: Criteria for Establishing Fees ......................................................................................... 29

Table of Figures
Figure 1: Lathrop Resource Allocation Pyramid Model ................................................................................. 4

Table of Tables
Table 1: Recommendations ........................................................................................................................... 6

Table 2: Types of Fees .................................................................................................................................. 16

Table 3: Refund Policy ................................................................................................................................. 18

657



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY 1

Resource Allocation Study

Introduction
This Resource Allocation study develops a foundational philosophy and best practice model built on

community values. The plan builds on existing values, and the brand statement of the City and the Parks

and Recreation Department. 

This study looks at how the community’ s funding sources are used to support the programs and services

of the Parks and Recreation Department. This is represented by a subsidy level and ultimately measu red

by taking the tax investment and dividing it by the cost of providing a service. It is expressed as a subsidy

level percentage. What is not covered by the tax investment is often referred to as cost recovery. The

measure of cost recovery is a simple equation: Revenue generated divided by the cost of providing a

service, and is represented as a percentage. This measurement is complementary to the measurement of

subsidy level. 

Looking at how resources are allocated provides

the opportunity to meet the needs and desires of

the community by supplementing the tax subsidy

with other financial resources which may include

fees, sponsorships and donations, and/ or

pursuing cost saving measures including

partnerships and collaborations. Undertaking this

study does not imply that the target is a reduction

in the use of tax subsidy; however, a target is

established according to a variety of

considerations and may range from 100% tax subsidy to 0% tax subsidy to support a particular type of

service.  

Establishing a well-crafted philosophy for resource allocation is the foundation for developing strong, 

sustainable financial management strategies. A solid philosophy will allow staff to:  

Recognize where subsidy is being applied, and determine if it is at an appropriate level;  

Justify a pricing structure, including fees for existing and new services; and

Evaluate service delivery mechanisms; all to maximize services to the public while assuring equity

in service delivery. 

The approach to the Pyramid Methodology for Subsidy and Resource Allocation, is an industry best

practice tool, to ensure realistic fees and charges. This allows for operational efficiency and is easy to

explain to the public.  

658



2 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Statement of Philosophy
The City of Lathrop Parks and Recreation Department is dedicated to people, parks and programs while

making Lathrop a great place to live, work and play.  

We live by our brand statement WE C.A.R.E. ( Creating Active Recreation

Experiences), all while providing exceptional customer service. As the city

continues to grow and facilities age, the Department must be prepared to

maintain this high level of service and develop a financial system to continue

this community investment. 

The Department offers a variety of programs which benefit the residents and visitors of Lathrop. While

the community as a whole will benefit from this programming, different levels of community investment

are appropriate based on level of benefit. The goal of this study is to create a balance between user fees

and taxpayer investment for our programs, services, and facilities, ensuring that all citizens have equal

access and choice in participation. 

Objectives
This resources allocation study establishes a comprehensive long- term strategy to address current and

future needs of the Lathrop community. The objectives are: 

Equity

Those who benefit from the service should pay for it. Those who benefit the most should pay the most. 

Value

Provide the customer with a benefit in relation to, or exceeding the relative monetary worth. 

Revenue Production

Producing revenue assists in the overall operations of the Department. It provides flexibility to offer

programs which may not otherwise be possible if they are not funded through tax dollars. 

Efficiency

Expenditures are made with the most efficient use of our resources, so the right mix of programs, facilities

and events are offered . Priorities are made to enhance the customer’ s experience. 

Revenue Distribution

Revenues are distributed to the Division providing expenditures. This pays for direct costs, indirect costs

and in some situations, future improvement and/ or equipment replacement. 

Assistance

Not all customers have the same ability to pay and opportunities must exist to waive, reduce, or provide

assistance opportunities when appropriate. 

Core Services
Core services are those which are central and vital to fulfilling the Department’ s mission. The Department

has identified the following core services:  

Access to recreation and cultural experiences for all ages, abilities, and demographics

659



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY 3

Existing facilities remain open, programmed, and maintained

Existing parks are maintained and available for community use

Youth beginning skill development

Community problem solving

Community wellness and fitness

Safe and healthy community

Access to information

Literacy

Parks and facility development

Preservation of natural resources/ open space

The Lathrop Parks and Recreation Department Subsidy and
Resource Allocation Pyramid Model
Figure 1 is the Lathrop model. Through the use of the Pyramid framework, the model is populated with

Categories of Services that make up the service portfolio of the Depa rtment. Categories are then placed

on Tier levels according to the perceived balance of community and individual benefit . Actual subsidy

levels for each category of service based on FY 2018 are reported on the model as well as target subsidy

levels that have been determined through the study.  

660



4 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Figure 1: Lathrop Resource Allocation Pyramid Model

661



662



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

Recommendations
The main purpose of this endeavor has been to create a fair, equitable, and transparent approach for

establishing and adjusting fees and charges. However, it should be noted that adjusting fees is only one

mechanism for meeting target subsidy levels, along with using other funding sources ( sponsorships, 

donations, grants, etc.), and creating cost efficiencies. The recommendations will act as the

implementation catalyst and internal work plan, and are intended to guide goals, objectives, and decision-

making, while creating service sustainability for the Department. 

Some recommendations are scheduled to occur soon, and others will take time to put into place, while

some will be implemented incrementally. Sensitivity to fee tolerance levels must be considered as fee

adjustments are made. 

1. Tier 1 of the model is expected to be supported through tax funding

Tier 1 houses services such as non- monitored parks use. This Tier also includes the Department’ s

Community Special Events. These are seen as services that are of great benefit to the entire

community.  

2. Tiers 2 through 4 will experience decreasing levels of tax subsidy support .  

Tiers 2 through 4 house services that require supervision, instruction, or other attention, and

serve subsets of the community. Each ascending Tier level increases focus on the individual or

group receiving the service and subsidy level targets decrease with each level. Examples of

services in these tiers include Teen Services ( Tier 2), Youth Sports ( Tier 3), and School Break Camps

Tier 4). 

3. Tier 5 is not intended to be supported through tax funding

Tier 5 houses services that are ancillary to the mission of the Department with services such as

private lessons, vending and concessions, rentals, and adult fitness classes. Often fees for this Tier

are market- based. 

Recommendations have been developed and grouped into the following themes: 

A. Resource Allocation Framework

B. Administrative Strategies

C. Revenue Generation Strategies

D. Cost Savings and Cost Avoidance Strategies

E. Tier Specific Strategies

F. Planning for the Future – Evaluation and Performance Measures

663



6 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Table 1: Recommendations

A. Resource Allocation Framework

A1

Permit all Parks and Recreation fees for programs, facility usage, services, and other activities

to be established by the Director of the Department. Fee assessments will be based on

principles of this Resource Allocation study. 

A2

Recognize the Lathrop Parks and Recreation Resource Allocation Pyramid as the fundamental

component of the Resource Allocation philosophy. 

A3

Set initial pricing for programs and services at a fee level that considers subsidy level targets

and market rates and is reasonable for most participants. Provide ( activity fee assistance) 

funding for those who truly need it. 

B. Administrative Strategies

B1

Further define all “ direct costs” for programs and services and continue to expand cost

accounting functions to establish cost recovery levels

B3

Focus the use of General Fund Subsidy on those activities, primarily found in Tier 1 and Tier 2

of the Pyramid Model, that provide mostly community benefit to the taxpayers of the City. 

Support tiers 3 to 5 with General Fund dollars as appropriate and determined by the

established subsidy level targets. 

C. Revenue Generation Strategies

C1

Explore alternative funding sources that have been identified through the 2020 Department

Master Plan that are practical and strategically align with the Department’ s brand including

potential partnerships.  

D. Cost Savings and Cost Avoidance Strategies

D1

Continue to maintain current capital and maintenance management plans, appropriately

budgeting for ongoing operating expenses, component lifecycle expectancy and established

replacement schedules to avoid deferring expenses that will multiply in the long run.  

E. Planning for the Future - Evaluation and Performance Measures

E1 Review the performance toward subsidy level goals on an annual basis. 

E2

Conduct cost benefit analysis of programs by evaluating participation, waiting lists, 

cancellation rates, and rate of repeat customers. 

E3

Continue to provide ongoing opportunities for community input through a variety of outreach

efforts and keeping the input process current and reflective of changing demographics, 

interests, and economic conditions. 

E4

Continue collaborations and discussions with other agencies including state and regional

agencies, neighboring municipalities, and non-profits, to collectively meet identified needs.  

664



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

How We Got Here - A Philosophy, a Model, and
a Policy
The Pyramid Methodology
The Pyramid Methodology used in the development of the Model is built on a foundation of

understanding who is benefiting from Parks and Recreation services to determine how the costs for

service should be funded. A full description of the pyramid model is found in Appendix A.  

The Model illustrates a pricing philosophy based on establishing fees commensurate with a target subsidy

level based on the benefit received. Descriptions regarding each level of the pyramid are provided; 

however, the Model is intended as a discussion point and is dependent on agency philosophies to

determine what programs and services belong on each level. Cultural, regional, geographical, and

resource differences play a large role in this determination. The resulting pyramid is unique to each agency

that applies this methodology.  

Project Approach and Methodology
In order to identify key issues and develop recommendations, staff reviewed existing policy, guidelines, 

and practices; became familiar with the Pyramid Methodology; and explored the best practices. Staff

identified typical and measurable costs associated with providing programs and services, defined

categories of programs and services, and participated in sorting workshops to place categories of services

on appropriate pyramid tiers. Ultimately, Staff measured current subsidy levels and used them to

determine appropriate target levels.  

The project commenced in November of 2019; included three workshops with the community during the

winter and concluded with final recommendations in April. The Department performed a hands-on

exercise to understand which programs and services are considered to have mostly community benefits, 

which ones have mostly individual benefits, and which ones have a balance of benefits in between. It also

allowed community participants to better understand their fellow participants’ perspectives. Using FY

2018 actuals, tax subsidy was then measured for all services in order to set targets for the future.  

A Best Practice Tool
Having a Subsidy and Resource Allocation Philosophy, Model, and Policy assists in answering challenging

questions such as:  

Are our programs priced fairly and equitably?  

Are we using funding in a responsible manner?  

Is there a methodology for the distribution of the tax investment?   

Does the way we charge for services ( facilities, programs, etc.) support our values, vision, and

mission?  

This comprehensive effort and approach to providing services is undertaken to introduce and implement

strong “ best practice” business tools to the Department. Parks and Recreation services are varied and

make up many smaller “ businesses” that each have their unique place in the market and appeal to the

population in myriad ways. The overall goal of this plan is to initiate and sustain practices and examine

policy and rules affecting overall desired outcomes of a healthy and vibrant community. 

665



8 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Although fee adjustments are possible, the goal is not to simply generate new revenues through fees, but

to ensure a sustainable system into the future by using tax revenues, supplemented by fees; and in the

most appropriate ways. Taxes typically supports “ core services,” whereas fees and charges usually

account for activities and services that benefit individuals. This practice allows the agency to allocate its

resources wisely and provide valuable information for decision- making and setting priorities for

improvements to the system as well as look at expenses and ways operations can be made more effective

and efficient. 

A Common Language
In order to come to consensus around philosophy and policy, a common language must be spoken. 

Terminology used in this study are identified here. 

Cost - Refers to what it takes from a monetary standpoint to produce a service. There are different types

of costs: 

Resource allocation - Refers to how subsidy and alternative sources of funding are used to support service

offerings. 

Subsidy refers to the tax dollars appropriated to provide Parks and Recreation services to the

community.  

Alternative sources of funding may include things such as fees, grants, donations, sponsorships

and partnership contributions.  

Service offerings is a catch-all term meant to includes all programs, activities and services of the

agency.  

DIRECT

Specific program

expenses

Supplies

Contract Staff

Lathrop Staff

DEPT

OVERHEAD

Shared across

Department

Insurance

Marketing

Fuel Charges

INDIRECT

Shared program

expenses

Vehicle Maint

Materials Mgmt

Technology

TOTAL COST

OF

PRODUCING A

SERVICE

666



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

Level of subsidy - The extent to which a service offering is supported by subsidy. This is expressed as a

percent of the overall cost of the service offering. For example, if $300 in subsidy ( tax appropriation) is

used to support an offering that costs $1000 to produce, it is determine d to have a 30% level of subsidy. 

The remainder of the cost ($ 700) therefore must be covered by alternative sources of funding. This is

commonly expressed as a level of cost recovery, in this case a 70% level of cost recovery.   

A Sustainable System
Sustainability” is a very popular

and perhaps overused word. Often, 

the users have in mind only one of

the three basic elements of

sustainability –  

Financial or Economic

Environmental

Social or Recreational

making it a challenge to come to

any kind of consensus when others

may be focusing on one of the

other elements. In order to manage

the system of Parks and Recreation, all elements of sustainability must be balanced. The financial

resources must be adequate to maintain the system into the future, the environment we love so dearly

cannot be “ loved to death,” and the people must be allowed appropriate use of the system to properly

connect to and understand the value represented, creating stewardship while promoting the other

benefits of physical activity and mental/ emotional engagement. When all three are attended to, a

dynamic, yet sustainable, system is possible. 

667



10 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Core Services
Core services satisfy an agency’ s mission and vision, typically benefiting all community members. It is not

necessary that an individual participate in a specific recreational or cultural activity, or even step into a

park setting to receive benefit. Having a nice park and trail system with trees, open space, and recreational

amenities available in the community adds to home values and a quality living environment. Core services

also provide opportunity for partaking in activity, contribute to clean air , and provide relief from urban

density. To achieve these and other outcomes, an agency invests its tax dollars in these core services.  

Supplementing Taxes with Fees
Parks and Recreation services provide value to the community in terms of economic, environmental, and

social benefits. Tax dollars support these “ core services.” Beyond those benefits realized by all residents, 

the agency is also able to provide specific activities and services that benefit individuals. There are not

adequate tax dollars to completely support this level of activity, and it is appropriate and common to

charge at least minimally for these services. For example, if an individual takes a swimming lesson or

participates in a senior trip, there are certain levels of skill building, social engagement, or entertainment

that accrue to that person, but it can still be argued there is a benefit to the community as a whole by

teaching people safety around water, and through the social capital and health gained by keeping seniors

active and in touch. The level of individual benefit warrants covering at least a portion of the cost of a

program or activity through an individual fee. Other opportunities, such as the rental of a space for a

private party, warrant a fee to cover the entire cost of providing that space. 

Determining the Cost of a Program or Activity
Dollars spent will be accounted for specifically by programs and services

offered. “ Direct” costs include easily tracked expenses such as the cost of

an instructor, including benefits, supplies needed, equipment rented, etc. 

Indirect” costs within the Department are shared among several programs

or services within a division have not been allocated to specific programs.  

Once you determine your target for use of tax subsidy to support an activity

or service, the remainder of the cost would be “ cost recove red” through

other revenue sources. Does “ cost recovery” mean you need to cover all of

the costs of a program or activity through fees? No – in most cases where

fees are appropriate, cost recovery will be used to recover a portion of (or

all) the “ direct” cost. In some cases where the individual benefit is very high, the cost recovery will be

used to cover more than the direct cost. Cost recovery can also be accomplished through other forms of

revenue such as grants, donations, sponsorships, etc. 

Taking Care of Those who Cannot Afford to Pay a Full Fee
Options are always available for those with economic need. Lathrop makes provisions through an Activity

Fee Assistance Fund. The City of Lathrop receives funding for the Activity Fee Assistance Fund from various

revenue sources including the Community Development Block Grant ( CDBG) Program. The U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development ( HUD) administers this program and monitors the City

as to head of household, income, and ethnicity of program service recipients. It is not a sustainable

practice to keep fees artificially low in order to ensure that all can afford to pay.  

668



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

The Department offers eligible families a designated assistance fund per child per fiscal year as long as

funds are available. The Activity Fee Assistance Fund is granted to pay 50 percent of program fees to help

meet this need.  

669



12 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Lathrop Parks and Recreation Pyramid Model
Results

A Consensus Pyramid
A consensus pyramid was created with each Category of Service placed in the appropriate tier of the pyramid

based on the benefits filter and other filters. All Categories of Service with a full description and listing of

programs and services within can be found in Appendix B. Current cost recovery percentages were

calculated based on a more specific and consistent definition of direct and indirect costs identified during

this process.   

Direct and Indirect Cost Definition
No measurement of subsidy level or cost recovery is possible without a clear definition of what is being

counted as “ cost.”  For the study, the definitions include direct and indirect costs of programs and services.  

PROGRAMS and SERVICES - DIRECT COSTS

This includes all the specific and identifiable expenses ( fixed and variable) associated with providing a

service or program. These expenses would not exist without the program or service and often increase

exponentially.  

Applicable portion of full-time, part-time, and seasonal staff (percentage directly related to

program delivery) and corresponding benefits

Contractual services for coaches, officials, instructors, security, etc. 

Program specific licensing agreements like Motion Pictures, etc. 

Program specific consumable equipment and supplies like ping pong balls, camp supplies, art

supplies provided by instructor or agency

Uniforms, tee shirts, and awards for participants and staff

Non-consumable equipment purchased only for the program that require periodic or

continual replacement or are necessary for the start of the program like yoga mats, blocks, 

bouncy balls, basketballs, free weights, racquets and goggles

Training specifically for the program or service such as a lifeguard certification

Transportation costs like van driver and mileage, parking, tolls, detailing, or rental of busses, 

etc. 

Field trip entry fees, tickets, admissions for participants and leaders/ instructors

Association fees related to specific activities such as USSSA and TAAF

Rental fees for facilities, spaces, janitors, charge backs, etc . 

Marketing/ promotion/ printing/ distribution/ fliers/ etc., associated directly for programs (non-

marketing staff who does some direct marketing) 

Repair or maintenance of program or service specific equipment

Software fees associated with a specific program or service

Any other costs associated or attributed specifically with the program or service

670



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

PROGRAMS and SERVICES - INDIRECT COSTS

This includes expenses ( fixed and variable) associated with providing a service or program, but are shared

expenses among programs and services. ( Cannot be tied specifically to one program.)  

Full- time, part- time, and seasonal employees that primarily perform administrative duties for

the department such as Director, Superintendent, etc. 

Other full-time, part-time, and seasonal employees that perform some support services for

the department such as working on strategic planning initiatives ( percentage directly related

to support services)  

Utilities for the facility such as water, electric, and solid waste

Commercial and self- insurance charges

Other overhead costs as deemed appropriate

Outside contractual services related to the facility such as janitorial services and pest control

Facility specific Licensing Agreements like ASCAP

Uniforms for facility staff and staff keys

Non-consumable equipment purchased only for the facility or space that require periodic, 

continual replacement or are necessary for the operation of the facility such as capital

replacement items

Building alarm monitoring

Safety equipment and supplies such as fire extinguishers, AEDs, and first aid

Any other costs associated or attributed specifically with the facility

Professional memberships and training, such as CPRS, NRPA and CPRP, as well as approved

travel expenses related to maintaining these memberships and/ or obtaining professional

development

Required training such as CPR, First Aid and defensive driving

Employment recruitment advertisements

Office furniture

Vehicles used for administration and mileage reimbursement. 

General consumable equipment, office supplies and maintenance supplies like paper, toner, 

toilet paper, mops, cleaning supplies

Repair or maintenance of department- wide equipment like copier maintenance agreement

Various other appropriated costs

671



14 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Subsidy Level Targets
As is a typical circumstance with governmental accounting systems, it is very challenging to measure

subsidy levels as expenses are not tracked at the activity level. On the other hand, revenues are accounted

for in adequate detail due to registration software. For this study the Department measured programs

and activities on levels of the Lathrop pyramid to provide a baseline of data for setting appropriate subsidy

level targets. Using the specific definition of costs to be included in the measurement, the following target

ranges are recommended: 

Tier Level Subsidy Level Target Range

Tier 5 0-24%  

Tier 4 25-49% 

Tier 3 50-75% 

Tier 2 76- 94% 

Tier 1 95-100% 

It is not intended that every category of service necessarily meets the target, but that the tier as a whole

is at or below the tier target range. Targets range from 100% subsidized ( or free) for those programs and

services in the base level ( Tier 1 Mostly Community Benefit) such as Non-monitored Park Use and

Community Events, to 0% in the top tier (Tier 5 Mostly Individual Benefit) level, such as Facility Rentals

and Private Lessons.  

672



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

Establishing Fees and Charges

Pricing Strategy
Pricing of services must be done on a service- by-service basis. Pricing information is included as Appendix

C in this document. Definition of costs and fees as discussed are provided here and followed by Criteria

for Establishing Fees and Charges that align with pyramid levels. 

The following concepts were discussed and defined over several months.  

Costs are defined as: Fees are defined as: 

Direct Cost: Costs that are directly attributable to

efforts to put on or provide a program or service. 

Examples are program specific supplies and

marketing, rental fees for facilities, and applicable

portions of full-time, part-time, and seasonal staff, 

as well as corresponding benefits.  Cost associated

with individual programs or services are not easily

identifiable, so some reasonable assumptions may

be necessary.  

Indirect and Department Overhead Cost: These

costs are incurred by the Parks and Recreation

Department and are not directly attributable to a

specific program or service, but are necessary to

support the effort, and are incurred for a common

objective. Examples may include applicable portion of

staff and benefits charges that are shared among

multiple services, gas and vehicle maintenance, 

insurance, fund transfer charges, and staff overtime

costs.  

Partial Cost Fee: A fee recovering something less

than the cost calculation determined through the

chosen methodology. The remaining portion of

the costs are subsidized. 

Full Cost Fee: A fee based on a traditional price-

cost relationship; recovers the total cost of a

service or program including all costs determined

through the chosen methodology, enabling the

break- even point to be reached. Full-cost fee is

often used as a strategy for services perceived as

private,” benefiting only users while offering no

external benefits to the general community. 

Market Rate Fee: Fee based on demand for a

service or facility. The market rate is determined

by identifying all providers of an identical service

Examples: private sector providers, other

municipalities, etc.), and setting the fee at the

highest level that the market will bear. 

673



16 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Criteria for Establishing Fees and Charges
Criteria is established for each level of the pyramid as indicated below. A full description of the criteria

that applies to each level is found in Appendix D.  

High or Full Tax Investment/ Low or No Cost Recovery: 

These criteria apply to the Mostly Community Benefit Tier (1) of the pyramid.  

Partial Tax Investment/ Partial Cost Recovery: 

These criteria apply to the Considerable Community Tier ( 2) and Balanced Community/ Individual

Benefits ( 3) tiers of the pyramid.  Keep in mind that a service does not have to meet every criterion. 

Low Tax Investment/ Substantial Cost Recovery: 

These criteria apply to the Considerable Individual Benefit Tier (4) of the pyramid. 

No Tax investment/ Full Cost Recovery: 

These criteria apply to the Mostly Individual Benefit Tier (5) of the pyramid. 

City of Lathrop – Fee Types
Table 2: Types of Fees

Admission Fee

Admission fees are described as one- time (single entry) charges made to enter a facility, 

structure, or special program. Access is controlled and attendance is regulated. Objectives

include:   

1. To generate funds for the operation and maintenance

2. To produce revenue to offset the cost of program / event

User Fee

These fees shall be charged for use of a facility, program, or access to a controlled area to

recover program costs. Objectives include: 

1. To pay for or augment the operation and maintenance of a program or facility

2. To recover cost for material fees such as books, supplies, or entrance fees

3. To control use of the facility

4. To assess a portion of the costs to users who may not be taxpayers

5. To enable the Department to provide facilities or programs which might not otherwise be

available

Rental Deposit

Security deposit fees are charged to secure contracted use of a facility. The objective for this fee

is to secure a funding source for unanticipated repair for damages, cleanup, or extended time

for rental. 100% of the Security Deposit is due at time of submitting the Facility Use Application. 

Security deposits are calculated in four or eight-hour time blocks. Deposits are 100% refundable

and refunds are contingent upon the condition of the facilities following their rental. Rentals

forfeit all deposits if a disturbance of the peace is determined. Refunds will be processed within

14 business days of the rental. It can take up to six weeks for a check to arrive.  

674



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

Rental Fees

Rental fees are incurred for the privilege of exclusive use of the facility . This fee gives the user

the right to enjoy the advantages of the facility, program, or equipment. Rental fees should be

enough to pay the cost of operating the rental service which includes direct staff costs plus a

portion of indirect costs for the replacement of the equipment utilized. These fees may also be

referred to as extra fees. Objectives include: 

1. To establish the benefit of exclusive use and secure use for a specific time

2. To provide for the equipment which visitors may not have supplied

Within the established rental fees, items such as security, custodial, and insurance are built into

the overall price. Rental fees operate as an all-inclusive package, compared to add on fees.  

Sales Fee

Payment may be obtained from operation of concessions which includes the sale of

merchandise. Objectives include: 

1. To provide needed supplies

2. To provide merchandise that adds to the visitor’ s enjoyment of the area

3. To provide revenue to offset operational costs. 

Additional Services Fees

Fees may be charged for supplying activities or services as an accommodation to the user. These

fees may also be referred to as extra fees. Objectives include: 

1. To enable special services to be rendered by the Department

2. To provide revenue to offset costs of the special service ( additional staff, overtime for staff or

contracting for services) 

3. To improve the quality of the recreation program by adding value, service, or variety

4. Surcharge for enhanced maintenance or fee for marketing programs

Advertising Fees and Sponsorships

Fees may be charged for brochures, signs, banners, or other forms of advertising or promotion. 

Funding may also be paid for support of special events or programs. 

Administration Fee

Fees may be charged for direct and indirect costs associated with administration and oversight

of a program or service. 

Registration Fee

Registration fees are a type of administrative fee charged specifically in the area of childcare

and preschool. Such fees cover administrative costs, facility repairs, materials fees, and annual

childcare fees. 

Material Fee

Fees are charged to borrowers who do not return materials by the designated due date. These

fees vary depending on the item type and length of time overdue. Additional fees may be

charged for lost or damaged items and processing fees. 

Late Fee

Late fees may be charged for programs and services that are not paid by the due date.  

675



18 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Return Check Fee

Returned check fees will be assessed for all returned checks in accordance with the fee set by

the City of Lathrop Finance Department. Failure to pay the returned check fee and the amount

owed within thirty (30) days can lead to additional incurred fees, damages, and collections.  

Capital Replacement Fee

Fees may be charged to set aside funds for replacement of existing facilities, amenities, or

technology. 

City of Lathrop - Refund Policy
Refund requests vary by program. Details specific to each program are noted below. All refunds are

subject to an administrative fee. Refunds will be processed within 14 business days of the approved

request. All refund request will be paid in the form of a check and it can take up to six weeks for a check

to arrive. 

Table 3: Refund Policy

Leisure Programs

A refund will be issued if the request is made prior to start of the Leisure Program. Request prior

to the second class meeting shall receive a prorated refund. Request after the second class will

not be granted. All refunds are subject to an administrative fee. A full refund will be issued for any

Leisure Program cancelled by the Leisure Division and will be not subject to the processing fee.  

Sports, League Play, Special Events and Advance Ticketed Programs

A refund will be issued if the request is made ten (10) business days prior to start of the program

or event. Request made less than ten (10) business days shall not be granted, unless the program

has a waiting list of participants and immediately fill the spot of the requesting party.  

Indoor Facilities and Outdoor Facilities ( Picnic Area / Sports Fields) 

Reservations in excess of six months in advance of the scheduled date shall receive a full refund, 

for reservations that are canceled within ninety- one ( 91) to 180 days in advance shall receive a

75% refund, reservations that are canceled within sixty-one (61) to ninety (90) days shall receive

a 50% refund and reservations less than sixty (60) days out shall receive no refund. Fees will not

be refunded for times not used or undesirable weather. If, inclement weather is to occur for

outdoor reservation, the Parks and Recreation Department will determine if permitted

reservations shall be canceled. In the event of cancellation, the Parks and Recreation Department

office will attempt to reschedule. If rescheduling is not possible, paid fees will be refunded . All

cancellation requests must be submitted in writing including the signature of the person

appearing on the rental application/ contract, the event date, the facility reserved, and the date

in which the cancellation request is being submitted.  

676



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

Appendix A: The Pyramid Methodology

The GreenPlay Pyramid Methodology used in development of the Subsidy and Resource Allocation Model

is built on a foundation of understanding who is benefiting from Parks and Recreation services to

determine how the costs for service should be paid. 

The Model illustrates a pricing philosophy based on establishing fees that commensurate with the benefit

received. Descriptions regarding each level of the pyramid are provided; however, the model is intended

as a discussion point and is very dependent on agency ph ilosophies to determine what programs and

services belong on each level. Cultural, regional, geographical, and resource differences play a large role

in this determination. The resulting pyramid is unique to each agency that applies this methodology.  

Application of the pyramid methodology begins with the Mission of the organization, but must also

address other considerations:  

Who benefits from the service, the community in general or only the individual or group receiving

the service? 

Does the individual or group receiving the service generate the need ( and therefore the cost) of

providing the service? 

Will imposing the full cost fee pose a hardship on specific users? ( The ability to pay is different

than the benefit and value of a program, activity, or service, and therefore, should be dealt with

during the implementation phase of pricing and marketing.) 

Do community values support taxpayer investment for the cost of service for individuals with

special needs ( for example, people with disabilities or low-income)? 

Will the level of the fee affect the demand for the service? 

Is it possible and desirable to manage demand for a service by changing the level of the fee? 

Are there competing providers of the service in the public or private sector? 

The application of the model is broken down into the following steps: 

Step 1: Building on your organization’ s values, vision, and mission

Step 2:  Understanding the Pyramid Methodology, the benefits filter, and secondary filters

Step 3:  Developing the organization’ s Categories of Service

Step 4:  Sorting the Categories of Service onto the Pyramid

Step 5:  Defining Direct and Indirect Costs

Step 6:  Determining ( or confirming) current tax investment/ cost recovery levels

Step 7:  Establishing tax investment goals/ subsidy level targets

Step 8:  Understanding and preparing for influential factors and considerations

Step 9:  Implementation

Step 10: Evaluation

677



20 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Step 1: Building on Your Organization’ s Values, Vision, and Mission
Critical to this philosophical undertaking is the

support and buy-in of elected officials and

advisory board members, staff, and ultimately, 

citizens. Whether or not significant changes are

called for, the organization should be certain

that it philosophically aligns with its

constituents. The development of a financial

resource allocation philosophy and policy is built

upon a very logical foundation, based upon the

theory that those who benefit from Parks and

Recreation services ultimately pay for services.  

Envision a pyramid sectioned horizontally into

five levels. 

A brief description of the process follows. 

Step 2: Understanding the Pyramid Methodology, Benefits Filter, and Secondary

Filters
The creation of a subsidy and resource allocation philosophy and policy is a key component to maintaining

an agency’ s financial control, equitably pricing offerings, and helping to identify core services including

programs and facilities.  

The principal foundation of the Pyramid is the Benefits Filter. Conceptually, the base level of the pyramid

represents the core services of a public Parks and Recreation system. Services appropriate to higher levels

of the pyramid should only be offered when the preceding levels below are comprehensive enough to

provide a foundation for the next level. The foundation and upward progression are intended to represent

public Parks and Recreation’ s core mission, while also reflecting the growth and maturity of an

organization as it enhances its service offerings. Each level of the Pyramid from the bottom to the top is

described below.  

MOSTLY COMMUNITY Benefit

The foundational level of the Pyramid is the largest, 

and encompasses those services including programs

and facilities that MOSTLY benefit the COMMUNITY

as a whole. These services may increase property

values, provide safety, address social needs, and

enhance quality of life for residents. The community

generally pays for these basic services via tax

support. These services are generally offered to residents at a minimal charge or with no fee. A large

percentage of the agency’ s tax support would fund this level of the Pyramid.  

Examples of these services could include: the existence of the community parks and recreation system, the

ability to visit facilities on an informal basis, park and facility planning and design, park maintenance, or

others.  

678



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

NOTE: All examples given are generic – individual agencies vary in their determination of which services

belong in the foundation level of the Pyramid based upon agency values, vision, mission, demographics, 

goals, etc.  

CONSIDERABLE COMMUNITY Benefit

The second level of the Pyramid represents services

that promote individual physical and mental well-

being, and may begin to provide skill development. 

They are generally traditionally expected services

and/ or beginner instructional levels. These services

are typically assigned fees based upon a specified

percentage of direct (and may also include indirect) costs. These costs are partially offset by both a tax

investment to account for CONSIDERABLE COMMUNITY benefit and participant fees to account for the

Individual benefit received from the service.  

Examples of these services could include: staff facility and park use, therapeutic recreation programs and

services, recreation leagues, etc.  

BALANCED INDIVIDUAL/ COMMUNITY Benefit

The third level of the Pyramid represents services promoting

individual physical and mental well- being, and provides an

intermediate level of skill development. The level provides

balanced INDIVIDUAL and COMMUNITY benefit and should

be priced accordingly. The individual fee is set to recover a

higher percentage of cost than those services falling within lower Pyramid levels. 

Examples of these services could include: Camps and after school programs, beginning level instructional

programs and classes, teen programs, etc. 

CONSIDERABLE INDIVIDUAL Benefit

The fourth level of the Pyramid represents specialized services

generally for specific groups, and those that may have a competitive

focus. Services in this level are not highly subsidized and may be priced

to recover full cost, including all direct expenses.  

Examples of these services could include: Trips, advanced level classes, competitive leagues, etc.  

MOSTLY INDIVIDUAL Benefit

At the top of the Pyramid, the fifth level represents services that have

potential to generate revenues above costs, may be in the same market

space as the private sector, or may fall outside the core mission of the

agency. In this level, services should not be supported by subsidy, should be

priced to recover full cost, and may generate revenue in excess of cost.  

Examples of these activities could include: Private lessons, company picnic rentals, other facility rentals for

weddings or other services, concessions and merchandise for resale, restaurant services, etc. 

679



22 LATHROP, CA PARKS & RECREATION

Step 3: Developing the Organization’ s Categories of Service
Prior to sorting each program and service onto the Pyramid, the project team took on the daunting task

of reviewing, analyzing, and sifting through many individual programs and services in an effort to create

the Department’ s Categories of Services, including definitions and examples. “ Narrowing down” facilities, 

programs, and services and placing them in categories ( groups of like or similar service) that best fit their

descriptions, allowed a reasonable number of items to be sorted onto the pyramid tiers using the

Individual and Community Benefit filter. 

These categories were identified as listed in the study report. The charge was then to sort these categories

onto appropriate levels of the pyramid model based on who they benefited ( the benefit filter). Those

categories ranged from mostly benefiting the Community as a Whole, to programs and services mostly

providing an Individual benefit. There was also discussion of consideration of additional filters (discussed

in Step 8 below) which often hold a secondary significance in determining placement on the Cost Recovery

Pyramid. 

Step 4: Sorting the Categories of Service onto the Pyramid
The sorting process is where ownership is created for the

philosophy, while participants discover the current and

possibly varied operating histories, cultures, missions, and

values of the organization. The process develops consensus

and allows everyone to land on the same page. The effort

must reflect the community and align with the mission of

the Department. 

The sorting process was a challenging step and was led by

objective and impartial facilitators in order to hear all

viewpoints. The process generated discussion and debate

as participants discovered what others had to say about serving the community; about adults versus youth

versus seniors; about advanced versus intermediate and beginning programs; about special events; 

athletic fields; and rental involving the general public, non-profit and for-profit entities; etc. It was

important to push through the “what” to the “why” to find common ground. 

Step 5: Defining Costs
The definition of direct and indirect costs can vary from agency to agency. The most important aspect to

understand is that all costs associated with directly running a program or providing a service are identified

and consistently applied across the system. Direct costs typically include the spec ific, identifiable expenses

fixed and variable) associated with providing a service. These expenses would not exist without the

service and may be variable costs.  

Step 6: Determining ( or Confirming) Current Tax Investment/ Subsidy Levels
The agency will confirm or determine current subsidy allocation levels by category of services based upon

the definition of costs. Results of this step identify what it costs to provide services to the community, 

whether staff has the capacity or resources necessary to account for and track costs, whether accurate

cost recovery levels can be identified, and whether cost centers or general ledger line items align with

how the agency may want to track these costs in the future. Staff may not be cost accounting consistently, 

and these inconsistencies become apparent.  

680



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

Step 7: Establishing Cost Recovery/ Tax Investment Targets
The Project Team has worked to align who is benefiting from programs and services with the sources of

funding used to pay for them. The tax investment is used in greater amounts at the bottom levels of the

pyramid, reflecting the benefit to the Community as a whole. As the pyramid is climbed, the percentage

of tax investment decreases, and at the top levels, it may not be used at all, reflecting the Individual

benefit.  

Targets take into account current subsidy levels. As cost of services and matching revenues is a very

revealing process, realistic and feasible targets are recommended to align with the pyramid model and

also to meet specific financial objectives for recovery of direct and indirect cost. These targets will be

identified for each tier of the Department’ s Pyramid Model. 

Step 8: Understanding and Preparing for Influential Factors and Considerations
Inherent to sorting programs onto the Pyramid Model using the Benefits and other filters is the realization

that other factors come into play. This can result in decisions to place services in other levels than might

first be thought. These factors can aid in determining core services versus ancillary services. These may

include participant commitment, trends, political issues, marketing, relative cost to provide the service

cost per participant), current economic conditions, and financial goals. 

Step 9: Implementation
The Department has set its goals based upon its mission, stakeholder input, funding, and/ or other criteria. 

Upon completion of steps 1-8, the Department has positioned itself to illustrate and articulate where it

has been and where it is heading from a financial perspective. Some recommendations are scheduled to

occur immediately, and others will take time to put into place, while some will be implemented

incrementally. It is important that fee change tolerance levels are considered. 

Step 10: Evaluation
This process has been undertaken in order to articulate a philosophy, train staff on a best practice ongoing

approach to subsidizing services in public parks and recreation and enhancing financial sustainability. 

Performance measures have been established through subsidy level targets, specific recommendations

have been made for services found to be out of alignment, and evaluation of goal attainment is

recommended to take place annually. 

681



24 LATHROP, CA PARKS  & RECREATION

Appendix B: Lathrop Parks and Recreation
Department Categories of Service

Category Definition Examples

Tier 5

Adult Fitness

Group fitness and/ or instructional programs

for adults operated, taught, or managed by

the department through contract or staff; no

pre- requisite for attendance

Yoga, Zumba, Bootcamps, 

etc. 

Age 50+ Trips

Day trips that provide opportunities for 50+ 

participants to visit selected destinations

Columbia, Old Sacramento, 

Treasure Island, Casinos, 

Stockton Kings/ Ports, 

Sacramento etc. 

Field Rentals
Rental of a sports field for exclusive use. 

Informal play, practice, 

games etc. 

Indoor Facility Rentals

Rental of an indoor facility for exclusive use. 

Indoor facilities include Lathrop Community

Center, Lathrop Senior Center, Lathrop

Generation Center

Meetings, birthday parties, 

baby showers, etc. 

Private Lessons

Lessons arranged for one student with a

specific instructor and/ or time
Tennis, piano, etc. 

Shelter Rentals

Rentals of an outdoor shelter for exclusive

use

Birthday parties, family

reunions, etc. 

Teen Trips

Day trips that provide opportunities for Teen

participants to visit selected destinations

Vendors/ Concessionaries

Goods and services sold for individual use

during a city sponsored or permitted

event/ activity

Food truck, concession

stand, art vendor, etc. 

Youth Specialty Camps

Group recreational and/ or instructional

camp for preschool to elementary school

age youth operated, taught, or managed by

the department through contract or staff

Sports, robotics, Legos, 

arts, etc. 

Tier 4

Adult General Classes

Group or individual special interest classes

for adults operated, taught, or managed by

the department through contract or staff

Dance, arts and crafts, 

painting, guitar, computer

workshops, self-defense, 

voice talent, etc. 

Adult Sports

Group recreational sports programs, 

activities and leagues for adults operated, or

managed by the department staff

Basketball, volleyball, flag

football, twilight softball, 

etc. 

Age 50+ General Classes

Group or individual classes for 50+ operated, 

taught, or managed by the department

through contract or staff

Arts and crafts, dance, 

yoga, book club, etc. 

682



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

Before/ After School

Recreation

Non- licensed recreational before and after

school program with a social and

recreational focus

Monitored Drop-in facility

use
Scheduled drop-in use of gymnasium Basketball, volleyball etc. 

School Break Camps

Group recreational programming during

school break times for youth. May include

field trips, but typically does not include

specific instructional or skills programs

Spring break, summer

break, winter break, etc. 

Youth General Classes

Group or individual special interest class for

youth operated, taught, or managed by the

department through contract or staff

Self- defense, cooking, 

ballet, guitar, dance, art, 

language, photography, 

etc. 

Tier 3

Age 50+ Events

Day and extended events that provide

opportunities for 50+ participants to

socialize and gather around specific topics

Mother’ s Day, Father’ s Day, 

Grandparents Day, Noon

Year’ s Eve, etc. 

Youth Sports

Group recreational and/ or instructional

sports programs, activities and leagues for

youth operated, taught, or managed by the

department staff

Jr. NBA, NFL Flag, Jr. Giants, 

etc. 

Tier 2

Senior Services Drop-in availability of the Senior Center

Teen Services

Drop- in teen programming at the Teen

Center

Tier 1

Community Special

Events

Annual public events hosted by the

Department that are typically offered on an

annual basis

Veterans Day, Christmas

Parade, concerts, comedy

nights, movie nights etc. 

Parks Use
Drop- in, non-monitored use of a park

Use of parks, dog parks, 

playgrounds, etc. 

683



26 LATHROP, CA PARKS  & RECREATION

Appendix C: Developing a Pricing Strategy
As the final step in the development of the Comprehensive Subsidy and Resource Allocation Policy

SUBSIDY, pricing strategies were considered. This discussion should continue in the future , and the

following topic areas should be included and applied. 

1. Understanding financial trends

The increasing complexity and resulting shifts of our society’ s economy have led to what can be

deemed as constant fiscal change in government. Public sector administrators and managers must

be prepared to respond to the fiscal realities that have resulted from these economic shifts. 

Trends impacting fiscal and pricing decisions include:  

Increased governmental accountability

Increased demand for people’ s “ leisure dollar” 

Ongoing or increased demand for services with no/ limited additional funding, or

decreased funding

Disinterest in service reductions or increased fees and charges

Increased operating expenses ( utilities, fuel, personnel, supplies, etc.) 

2. Understanding the budget process and fiscal year cycle

Budgets are viewed as annual financial plans and include planning and forecasting, establishing

priorities, and a way to monitor fiscal process. This overview allows for an abbreviated look at the

process and how it is impacted by pricing. 

3.  Understanding the costs of service provision

Prior to making pricing decisions, it is important to understand the different types of service

provision costs.  Having knowledge of the various types of costs allows staff to make better

informed pricing decisions. The different types of service provision costs are as follows: 

Direct costs

Fixed costs

Changing fixed costs

Variable costs

Indirect Costs

4. Understanding the purpose of pricing

There are many reasons to develop service fees and charges. These include, but are not limited

to, the following: 

Recover costs

Create new resources

Establish value

Influence behavior

Promote efficiency

684



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

5. Pricing strategies – differential pricing

Differential pricing is grounded in the notion that different fees are charged for the same service

when there is no real difference in the cost of providing the service. There may be many reasons

the Department may wish to consider this pricing strategy including: 

To stimulate demand for a service during a specified time

To reach underserved populations

To shift demand to another place, date, or time

6. Alternative funding sources

In general, there has been a decrease in the amount of tax support available to public Parks and

Recreation agencies across the nation. The Department is forward thinking in its planning. As

such, the need to look at alternative funding sources as a way to financially support services has

become commonplace. Alternative funding sources are vast and can include: 

Gifts

Grants

Donations

Scholarships

Sponsorships

Collaborations

Volunteer contributions

7. Examining the psychological dimensions of pricing

In addition to the social and environmental issues surrounding pricing, the human elements of

pricing must be considered. Regardless of how logical a price may seem; customer reactions and

responses are their own and can be vastly different than what one might expect. The

psychological dimensions of pricing include: 

Protection of self-esteem ( pricing in such a way as to not offend certain users) 

Price-quality relationship ( value received for every dollar spent) 

Establishing a reference point (worth of service in comparison to others) 

Objective price (price has a basis in fact, is real, and impartial) 

Subjective price (price is not biased or prejudiced) 

Consistency of image (perception of the brand and identification with product or service) 

Odd pricing ( perception of arbitrary or incongruent pricing) 

8. Establishing initial price

Establishing an actual price for a program can be based upon a variety of strategies inc luding: 

Arbitrary pricing: basing fees on a general provision such as raising all fees $. 25 to meet

budget goals which ignores market conditions and cost recovery goals. Arbitrary pricing

is not encouraged, as it is impossible to justify. 

Market pricing: a fee based on demand for a service or facility or what the target market

is willing to pay for a service. The private and commercial sectors commonly use this

strategy. One consideration for establishing a market rate fee is determined by identifying

all providers of an identical service ( Examples: private sector providers, municipalities, 

etc.), and setting the highest fee. Another consideration is setting the fee at the highest

level the market will bear. 

685



28 LATHROP, CA PARKS  & RECREATION

Competitive pricing: a fee based on what similar service providers or close proximity

competitors are charging for services. One consideration for establishing a competitive

fee is determined by identifying all providers of an identical service ( Examples: private

sector providers, municipalities, etc.), and setting the mid-point or lowest fee. 

Cost recovery pricing: a fee based on cost recovery goals within market price ranges. 

9. Understanding price revisions

Once a price is established, there may be the need to periodically review it and examine the need

for revision. In some cases, “ revised” may be viewed as “ increased”; therefore, a systematic

approach to pricing revision is important. Factors to consider in pricing revision include: 

Customer tolerance: the degree to which small increases in price will not encounter client

resistance. 

Adjustment period: the period of time where the value of the service is assessed by the

customer in relation to the price increase. The value of the service from the customer’ s

perspective must meet or exceed the impact of the increased cost. Adjustment periods

may lead to diminished participation or termination of participation altogether based

upon customer loyalty and other factors. 

Customers’ perceived value of the service: the degree to which services including

programs, facilities, and parks impact the public ( individual and community), or in other

words, the results or outcomes of services. Value is the judgment or perception of worth

or the degree of usefulness or importance placed on a service by personal opinion. The

intent or intention of a service is the purpose, aim, or end. 

10. The pricing process – developing a method

Staff participating in the series of workshops engaged in interactive exercises that applied the cost

recovery goals of their respective service areas. The workshops prompted discussions leading to

recommended changes to selected current pricing practices with the intention of attaining

recommended cost recovery and tax investment allocation goals and establishing a new method

for setting fees and charges. This method is based upon using cost recovery goals as a primary

pricing strategy, followed by either market pricing ( for services with low alternative coverage – 

few if any alternative providers) or competitive pricing (for services with high alternative coverage

other alternative providers offer similar or like services).  

686



RESOURCE ALLOCATION STUDY

Appendix D: Criteria for Establishing Fees

High or Full Tax investment/ Low or No Cost Recovery: 

These criteria apply to the Mostly Community Benefit Tier (1) of the pyramid. The following criteria are

used to determine if a service should be included in the Tier, keeping in mind that a service does not have

to meet every criterion: 

The service is equally available to everyone in the community and should benefit everyone

Because the service is basic, it is difficult to determine benefits received by one user

The level of service attributable to a user is not known

Administrative costs of imposing and collecting a fee exceed revenue expected from the fee

Imposing the fee would place the agency at a serious competitive disadvantage

The service is primarily provided by the public sector

Partial Tax investment/ Partial Cost Recovery: 

These criteria apply to the Considerable Community Tier ( 2) and Balanced Community/ Individual

Benefits Tier (3) of the pyramid. Users fees may recover only partial cost for those services for which the

agency desires to manage demand. 

User fees may recover only partial cost from those individuals who cannot pay full cost due to

economic hardship

User fees may recover only partial cost if competitive market conditions make a full cost fee

undesirable

The following criteria are used to determine if a service should be included in these Tiers, keeping

in mind that a service does not have to meet every criterion: 

Services benefit those who participate but the community at large also benefits

The level of service use attributed to a user is known

Administrative costs of imposing and collecting the fee are not excessive

Imposing a full cost fee would place the agency at a competitive disadvantage

The service may be provided by the public sector but may also be provided by the private

sector

Low Subsidy/ Substantial Cost Recovery: 

These criteria apply to the Considerable Individual Benefit Tier (4) of the pyramid. 

User fees should recover the substantial cost of services benefiting specific groups or individua ls

User fees should recover the substantial cost for those services provided to persons who generate

the need for those services

The following criteria are used to determine if a service should be included in this Tier, keeping in

mind that a service does not have to meet every criterion: 

The individual or group using the service is the primary beneficiary

The level of service use attributed to a user is known

Administrative costs of imposing and collecting the fee are not excessive

Imposing a substantial cost fee would not place the agency at a competitive disadvantage

The service is usually provided by the private sector but may also be provided by the

public sector

687



30 LATHROP, CA PARKS  & RECREATION

No Tax investment/ Full Cost Recovery: 

These criteria apply to the Mostly Individual Benefit Tier (5) of the pyramid. 

User fees should recover the full cost or more for a service in order to subsidize other services

provided to the community

The following criteria are used to determine if a service should be included, keeping in mind that

a service does not have to meet every criterion: 

Individuals or groups benefit from the service and there is little community benefit

The level of service use attributable to a user is known

There is excess demand for the service; therefore, allocation of limited services is required

Administrative costs of imposing and collecting the fee are not excessive

The service is provided at market price by the private sector

688



City of Lathrop | FY 2021-2026 Parks and Recreation MasterPlan170

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

689



171FY2021-2026 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | City of Lathrop

Appendix C: Inventory Atlas

THISPAGEISINTENTIONALLYLEFTBLANK

690



Lathrop, CA

Inventory Atlas
March 2020

691



GRASP® Atlas

Inventory Process and Scoring Information

This inventory was completed in a series of steps.  The planning team first prepared a preliminary list of existing
components using information provided by the client as well as aerial photography and the client Geographic
Information System (GIS) data.  All components identified were given GIS points and names.   

Next, field visits were conducted by the consulting team to confirm the preliminary data and collect additional
information.   

During the field visits and evaluations, missing components were added to the data set, and each component was
evaluated as to how well it met expectations for its intended function.  During the site visits the following
information was collected:  

Component type
Component location
Evaluation of component condition - record of comfort and convenience features
Evaluation of comfort and convenience features
Evaluation of park design and ambience
Site photos
General comments

The inventory team used the following three-tier rating system to evaluate each component: 
1 = Below Expectations
2 = Meets Expectations
3 = Exceeds Expectations

Scores were based on such things as the condition of the component, its size, or capacity relative to the need at
that location, and its overall quality. 

Components were evaluated from two perspectives: first, the value of the component in serving the immediate
neighborhood, and second, its value to the entire community.   

The setting for a component and the conditions around it affect how well it functions, so in addition to scoring the
components, each park site was given a set of scores to rate its comfort, convenience, and ambient qualities.  
This includes such things as the availability of restrooms, drinking water, shade, scenery, etc. 

Information collected during the site visit was then compiled and corrections and comparisons made to GIS.  

692



Lathrop, CA
Inventory Atlas

March 2020

Existing Parks or Locations

693



GRASP® Outdoor Component List

GRASP® Outdoor

Component Type
Definition

Adventure Course
An area designated for activities such as ropes courses, zip- lines, challenge courses, etc.  
Specified in comments.

Amusement Ride
Carousel, train, go carts, bumper cars, or other ride upon features. Has an operator and
controlled access.

Aquatics, Complex
A facility that has at least one immersion pool and other features intended for aquatic
recreation.

Aquatics, Lap Pool
A man- made basin designed for people to immerse themselves in water and intended for
swimming laps.

Aquatics, Leisure Pool
A man- made basin designed for people to immerse themselves in water and intended for
leisure water activities. May include zero depth entry, slides, and spray features.

Aquatics, Spray Pad
A water play feature without immersion intended for the purpose of interacton with moving

water. 
Aquatics, Therapy Pool A temperature controlled pool intended for rehabilitation and therapy.
Basketball Court Describes a dedicated full sized outdoor court with two goals. 

Basketball, Practice
Describes a basketball goal for half- court play or practice. Includes goals in spaces

associated with other uses.
Batting Cage A stand- alone facility that has pitching machines and restricted entry.

Bike Complex
A facility that accommodates various bike skills activities with multiple features or skill

areas.

Bike Course
A designated area for non-motorized bicycle use. Can be constructed of concrete, wood, 

or compacted earth.  May include a pump track, velodrome, skills course, etc.

Camping, Defined
Defined campsites that may include a variety of facilities such as restrooms, picnic tables, 

water supply, etc. Quantity based on official agency count.  For use only if quantity of sites
is available.  Use " Camping, Undefined" for other instances.

Camping, Undefined
Indicates allowance for users to stay overnight in the outdoors in informal and/or undefined

sites. Receives a quantity of one for each park or other location.

Climbing, Designated
A designated natural or man- made facility provided and/or managed by an agency for the

purpose of recreation climbing not limited to childs play.

Climbing, General
Indicates allowance for users to participate in a climbing activity.  Receives a quantity of

one for each park or other location.

Concession A facility used for the selling, rental, or other provision of goods and services to the public.

Diamond Field
Describes softball and baseball fields of all kinds suitable for organized diamond sport

games. Not specific to size or age- appropriateness.
Diamond Field, Complex Multiple ballfields at a single location suitable for tournaments.

Diamond Field, Practice
Describes any size of grassy area used for practice. Distinguished from ballfield in that it
doesn’ t lend itself to organized diamond sport games. Distinguished from open turf by the

presence of a backstop.

Disc Golf
Describes a designated area that is used for disc golf. 
Quantities: 18 hole course = 1; 9 hole course = . 5

Dog Park An area designated specifically as an off- leash area for dogs and their guardians. 

Educational Experience
Signs, structures, or historic features that provide an educational, cultural, or historic

experience. Receives a quantity of one for each contiguous site. Distinguished from public
art by presence of interpretive signs or other information.

Equestrian Facility Area designated for equestrian use. Typically applied to facilities other than trails.

Event Space
A designated area or facility for an outdoor class, performance, or special event including
amphitheater, band shell, stage, etc.

Fitness Course
One or more features intended for personal fitness activities. Receives a quantity of one
for each complete grouping.

Game Court
Outdoor court designed for a game other than tennis, basketball, volleyball, as
distinguished from a multi- use pad including bocce, shuffleboard, lawn bowling, 

etc.  Type specified in comments.  Quantity counted per court.

694



GRASP® Outdoor

Component Type
Definition

Garden, Community
Describes any garden area that provides community members a place to have a personal

vegetable or flower garden.

Garden, Display
Describes any garden area that is designed and maintained to provide a focal point or

destination including a rose garden, fern garden, native plant garden, wildlife/ habitat
garden, arboretum, etc. 

Golf
A course designed and intended for the sport of golf.  Counted per 18 holes. 

Quantities: 18 hole course = 1; 9 hole course = . 5
Golf, Miniature A course designed and intended for use as a multi- hole golf putting game.

Golf, Practice
An area designated for golf practice or lessons including driving ranges and putting

greens.

Horseshoe Court
A designated area for the game of horseshoes including permanent pits of regulation
length. Quantity counted per court.

Horseshoes Complex Several regulation horseshoe courts in single location suitable for tournaments.

Ice Hockey
Regulation size outdoor rink built specifically for ice hockey games and practice. General

ice skating included in "Winter Sport".
Inline Hockey Regulation size outdoor rink built specifically for in-line hockey games and practice.

Loop Walk

Opportunity to complete a circuit on foot or by non-motorized travel mode.  Suitable for

use as an exercise circuit or for leisure walking.  Quantity of one for each park or other

location unless more than one distinct circuit is present.

Multi- Use Pad
A paved area that is painted with games such as hopscotch, 4 square, tetherball, etc. 
Often found in school yards.  As distinguished from " Games Court " which is typically

single use.

Natural Area
Describes an area in a park that contains plants and landforms that are remnants of or
replicate undisturbed native areas of the local ecology. Can include grasslands, woodlands

and wetlands.

Open Turf
A grassy area that is not suitable for programmed field sports due to size, slope, location
or physical obstructions. May be used for games of catch, tag, or other informal play and

uses that require an open grassy area.

Other
Active or passive component that does not fall under any other component definition.  
Specified in comments.

Passive Node
A place that is designed to create a pause or special focus within a park and includes
seating areas, plazas, overlooks, etc. Not intended for programmed use.

Pickleball Court A designated court designed primarily for pickleball play.

Picnic Ground
A designated area with a grouping of picnic tables suitable for organized picnic activities. 

Individual picnic tables are accounted for as Comfort and Convenience modifiers. 

Playground, Destination
Playground that attracts families from the entire community. Typically has restrooms and
parking on-site. May include special features like a climbing wall, spray feature, or

adventure play. 

Playground, Local
Playground that is intended to serve the needs of the surrounding neighborhood.  Includes
developed playgrounds and designated nature play areas. Generally does not have

restrooms or on-site parking. 

Public Art Any art installation on public property. Receives a quantity of one for each contiguous site.

Rectangular Field Complex Several rectangular fields in single location suitable for tournament use.

Rectangular Field, Large

Describes a specific field large enough to host one adult rectangular field sport game

such as soccer, football, lacrosse, rugby, and field hockey. Approximate field size is 180’ x
300’ ( 60 x 100 yards).  Field may have goals and lining specific to a certain sport that may

change with permitted use. 

695



GRASP® Outdoor

Component Type
Definition

Rectangular Field, Multiple

Describes an area large enough to host one adult rectangular field sport game and a
minimum of one other event/ game, but with an undetermined number of actual fields. This

category describes a large open grassy area that can be arranged in any manner of

configurations for any number of rectangular field sports. Sports may include, but are not
limited to: soccer, football, lacrosse, rugby, and field hockey. Field may have goals and

lining specific to a certain sport that may change with permitted use. 

Rectangular Field, Small

Describes a specific field too small to host a regulation adult rectangular field sport game.  

Accommodates at least one youth field sport game. Sports may include, but are not limited
to: soccer, football, lacrosse, rugby, and field hockey. Field may have goals and lining

specific to a certain sport that may change with permitted use. 

Shelter, Large

A shade shelter or pavilion large enough to accommodate a group picnic or other event for
at least 25 persons with space for a minimum of 12 seated whether or not benches or

picnic tables are provided. Lack of seating may be addressed in scoring.  

Shelter, Small

A shade shelter, large enough to accommodate a family picnic or other event for

approximately 4-12 persons with seating for a minimum of 4.  Covered benches for seating
up to 4 people included as a modifier in comfort and convenience scoring and should not

be included here.  

Skate Feature
A stand- alone feature primarily for wheel sports such as skateboarding, in-line skating, 
etc. May or may not allow free-style biking. May be associated with a playground but is not

part of it. Dedicated bike facilities should be categorized as " Bike Course".

Skate Park

An area set aside primarily for wheel sports such as skateboarding, in-line skating, etc. 

Attracts users from the entire community.  May or may not allow free- style biking. May be
specific to one user group or allow for several user types. Can accommodate multiple

users of varying abilities. Typically has a variety of concrete or modular features.

Target Range
A designated area for practice and/or competitive target activities. Specify type, such as

archery or firearms, specified in comments.

Tennis Complex Multiple regulation courts in a single location with amenities suitable for tournament use.

Tennis Court
One standard regulation court suitable for recreation and/or competitive play. Quick

Start or other non- standard types specified in comments.

Tennis, Practice Wall
A wall intended for practicing tennis. 

Track, Athletic A multi- lane, regulation sized running track appropriate for track and field events.

Trail, Multi- Use

A trail, paved or unpaved, that is separated from the road and provides recreational

opportunities or connection to walkers, bikers, roller bladers and equestrian users. Paths

that make a circuit within a single site are " Loop Walks". 

Trail, Primitive

A trail, unpaved, located within a park or natural area that provides recreational
opportunities or connections to users.  Minimal surface improvements that may or may not

meet accessibility standards.

Trail, Water
A river, stream, canal or other waterway used as a trail for floating, paddling, or other
watercraft.

Trailhead
A designated staging area at a trail access point. May include restrooms, an information
kiosk, parking, drinking water, trash receptacles, seating, etc.

Volleyball Court
One full- sized court. May be hard or soft surface, including grass and sand. May have
permanent or portable posts and nets.

Wall Ball Court
Walled courts associated with sports such as handball and racquetball. Specify type in
comments.

696



GRASP® Outdoor

Component Type
Definition

Water Access, Developed
A developed water access point. Includes docks, piers, kayak courses, boat ramps, 

fishing facilities, etc.  Quantity, type, etc., specified in comments.

Water Access, General
Measures a user' s general ability to access the edge of open water.  May include

undeveloped shoreline. Typically receives quantity of one for each contiguous site.

Water Feature
A passive water- based amenity that provides a visual focal point. Includes fountains and

waterfalls.

Water, Open A body of water such as a pond, stream, river, wetland with open water, lake, or reservoir.

Winter Sport
An area designated for a winter sport or activity such as a downhill ski area, Nordic
ski area, sledding hill, toboggan run, recreational ice, etc.  Specified in comments.

697



XW

XW

XW

XW
XW

XW

XW

XW

Apolinar Sangalang
C015- Ope n Turf

C006- Loop Walk

C002- Diamon d Field

C097- Fitness Course

C005- She lter, Sma ll

C001- Bas ketba ll Court

C004- Playg round, Loc al

C003- Rec tangular Field, Multip le

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Apolinar Sangalang ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

698



Apolinar Sangalang

33.6

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 2

Restrooms 2

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score38.4TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 9.7
Initial Inventory Date:

Large neighborhood park adjacent to school.

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L001 PARCEL 1 2 2

C097 Fitness Course 1 2 2

C015 Open Turf 1 1 1 Turf problems

C006 Loop Walk 1 2 2

C005 Shelter, Small 2 2 2 Two different style shelters and
tables

C004 Playground, Local 1 1 1 Faded equipment with burns in
slide. On PIP.

C003 Rectangular Field, 
Multiple

1 1 1 Some patches in turf

C002 Diamond Field 1 1 1 Drainage issues in infield.

C001 Basketball Court 1 2 2 Weird placement.

699



XW

XW

Armstrong Park C094- Playg round, Loc al

C096- Bas ketba ll, Prac tice

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Armstrong Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

700



Armstrong Park

14.4

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Planting 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score14.4TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 0.4
Initial Inventory Date:

Small pocket park

2

12/11/2019

Owner: Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L023 PARCEL 1 2 2

C096 Basketball, Practice 1 2 2

C094 Playground, Local 1 2 2 On PIP. Yellow plastic fading.

701



XW

XW
XW

XWBasinPark
C101- Ope n Turf

C099- Loop Walk

C098- Picnic Groun d

C100- Fitness Course

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Basin Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

702



Basin Park

19.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score19.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 4.4
Initial Inventory Date:

Shallow turf with large drainage holes. GIS boundary not true.

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L025 PARCEL 1 2 2

C101 Open Turf 1 2 2

C100 Fitness Course 1 2 2

C098 Picnic Ground 1 2 2

703



XW

XW

XW

Crescent Park

C050- Ope n Turf

C051- Volley ball Court

C052- Playg round, Loc al

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Crescent Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

704



Crescent Park

19.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score19.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 1.4
Initial Inventory Date:

No shade or bbqs

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L011 PARCEL 1 2 2

C052 Playground, Local 1 2 2 On PIP

C051 Volleyball Court 1 2 2 Heavy sand

C050 Open Turf 1 2 2

705



XW

XW

XW
XW

XW

XW

XW XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

Crystal Cove Park

Somerston Park

C086- Dog Park

C091- Loop Walk

C090- Ope n Turf

C087- Ope n Turf

C085- Ope n Turf

C088- Picnic Groun d

C083- Diamon d Field

C107- Garden , Display

C106- Garden , Display

C084- Bas ketba ll Court

C089- Water Acce ss, Deve loped

Summer House Park

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Crystal Cove Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

706



Crystal Cove Park

28.8

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 2

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score28.8TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 3.3
Initial Inventory Date:

Lacks shade

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L020 PARCEL 1 2 2

C106 Garden, Display 1 2 2 Roses

C086 Dog Park 1 2 2 Small and large fenced areas. 
Good turf.

C085 Open Turf 1 2 2

C084 Basketball Court 1 2 2 On a slope

C083 Diamond Field 1 2 2 No covers on dugouts.  Posted No
Adult Game Play. Field too small
for game play.

707



GF

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

Generations Center
Lathrop Generations Center

C078- Open Turf

C150- Game Court

C121- Skate Park

C077- Event Space

C149- Picnic Ground

C076- Basketball Court

C148- Playground, Local

C122- Garden, Community

C120- Playground, Local

C146- Diamond Field, Practice

C147- Rectangular Field, Large

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/ Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GISUserCommunity

Generations Center ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

708



Generations Center

33.6

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Planting 2

Seasonal Plantings 2

Parking 2

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 2

Restrooms 2

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score33.6TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 6.0
Initial Inventory Date:

Cool modern property. 

2

12/11/2019

Owner: Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L018 PARCEL 1 2 2

C122 Garden, Community 1 2 2 Sunrise Rotary Park

C121 Skate Park 1 2 2

C120 Playground, Local 1 2 2 Multigenerational fitness and
parkour course.

C078 Open Turf 1 2 2

C077 Event Space 1 2 2 Amphitheatre

C076 Basketball Court 1 2 2

709



XWLathropSkate Park

Possible SkatePark Parcel

C070- Ska te Park

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Lathrop Skate Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

710



Lathrop Skate Park

4.4

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 1

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score4.4TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 0.3
Initial Inventory Date:

Parking is informal. Minimal amenities.

1

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L015 PARCEL 1 2 2

C070 Skate Park 1 2 2 Street course.

711



XW

XW XW

Libby Park C026- Ope n Turf

C027- Fitness Course C028- Playg round, Loc al

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Libby Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

712



Libby Park

12

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 2

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score12Total

Neighborhood
GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 1.2
Initial Inventory Date:

Lacks drinking fountain

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L005 PARCEL 1 2 2

C028 Playground, Local 1 1 1 Small equipment on PIP

C027 Fitness Course 1 1 1 Minimal equipment

C026 Open Turf 1 1 1 Patchy

713



XW

XW

XWXW

XW

XW

XW

Michael Vega Park

C074- Loop Walk

C073- Ope n Turf

C111- Public Art

C112- Picnic Gro und

C109- Horse shoe Court

C110- Playg round, Loca l

C072- Water Acce ss, Deve loped

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Michael Vega Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

714



Michael Vega Park

54

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 1

Ornamental Plantings 3

Seasonal Plantings 2

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

3

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score61.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 2.9
Initial Inventory Date:

Generally well designed park. Poorly placed metal slide aimed at hot sun and exposed water. No guardrails at water edge. Tables are
nonstandard for system. EWF in playgrounds and picnic areas is bare in areas. Lacks shade.

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L017 PARCEL 1 2 2

C112 Picnic Ground 1 1 1 Tables don’ t meet system
standard. On EWF.

C111 Public Art 1 2 2 Light house

C110 Playground, Local 1 2 2 Beautiful arrangement and
ornamental planting. On EWF.

C109 Horseshoe Court 2 2 2

C074 Loop Walk 1 2 2

C073 Open Turf 1 2 2

C072 Water Access, 
Developed

1 2 2

715



XW

XW

Milestone Manor Park
C040- Loop Walk

C042- Pas sive Nod e

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Milestone Manor Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

716



Milestone Manor Park

6

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 1

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 2

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score6Total

Neighborhood
GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 1.0
Initial Inventory Date:

Nonstandard picnic tables. Very passive park with meandering dirt path. Great trees. Not ADA accessible.

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L009 PARCEL 1 2 2

C042 Passive Node 1 2 2 Benches

C040 Loop Walk 1 1 1 Dirt path with irregularities. Needs
refurbishment.

717



XW

XW

XW

XW

Mossdale Commons

C118- Loo p Walk

C032- Ope n Turf

C033- Pas sive Nod e

C034- She lter, Sma ll

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Mossdale Commons ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

718



Mossdale Commons

24

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 1

Trail Connection 0

Shade 2

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score33.6TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 1.5
Initial Inventory Date:

No parking and access difficult. Passive park

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L007 PARCEL 1 2 2

C118 Loop Walk 1 2 2

C034 Shelter, Small 3 2 2

C033 Passive Node 1 2 2

C032 Open Turf 1 2 2

719



XW

XW

XW

XW
XW

XW XW

XW
XW XW

XW

Mossdale Landing Community Park

C055- Ope n Turf

C127- Game Cou rt

C058- Con ces sions

C060- Picnic GroundC056-Diamon d Field

C117- Fitn ess Course

C061- She lter, Large

C063- Bas ketba ll Court

C059- Aqu atic s, Spray Pad

C062- Playg round, Destination

C054- Rec tangular Field, Large

River Park South

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Mossdale Landing Community Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

720



Mossdale Landing Community Park

62.4

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 2

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 2

Shade 2

Restrooms 2

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score78Total

Neighborhood
GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 20.4
Initial Inventory Date:

Two different styles of picnic table.

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L012 PARCEL 1 2 2

C127 Game Court 1 2 2 Cricket Pitch

C117 Fitness Course 1 2 2

C063 Basketball Court 1 2 2

C062 Playground, Destination 1 2 2 On PIP

C061 Shelter, Large 2 2 2

C060 Picnic Ground 1 2 2 8 tables, two styles.

C059 Aquatics, Spray Pad 1 2 2

C058 Concessions 1 2 2

C056 Diamond Field 3 2 2 Covered dugouts. No outfield
fencing.

C055 Open Turf 1 2 2

C054 Rectangular Field, 
Large

1 2 2

721



XW

XW

XW

XWWilliamS. Moss Park

River Park South

C115- OpenTurfC068-Trail, Multi-use

C113- Playground, Local

C114- Basketball, Practice

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/ Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GISUserCommunity

William S. Moss Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

722



William S. Moss Park

17.6

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score17.6TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 4.1
Initial Inventory Date:

Under construction at time of inventory

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L026 PARCEL 1 2 2

C115 Open Turf 1 2 2 Planned and funded

C114 Basketball, Practice 1 2 2 Planned and funded

C113 Playground, Local 1 2 2 Planned and funded

723



XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

Park West
C047- Ope n Turf

C043- Loop Walk

C045- Tennis Cou rt

C048- Picnic Groun d

C046- Bas ketba ll Court

C049- Playg round, Loc al

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Park West ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

724



Park West

33.6

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 2

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 2

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score38.4TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 6.8
Initial Inventory Date:

No shade

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L010 PARCEL 1 2 2

C049 Playground, Local 1 2 2 On PIP. Green equipment is
holding up well.

C048 Picnic Ground 1 2 2 11 tables

C047 Open Turf 1 2 2

C046 Basketball Court 1 2 2 Newly painted. Big crack in
surface.

C045 Tennis Court 2 2 2

C043 Loop Walk 1 2 2

725



XWXWXW
XW

ReflectionsParkC126-Ope n Turf
C128- Bas ketba ll Court

C125- Volley ball CourtC124-Playg round, Loc al

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Reflections Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

726



Reflections Park

24

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 1

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score24Total

Neighborhood
GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 5.2
Initial Inventory Date:

Newly built, incomplete

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L028 PARCEL 1 2 2

C128 Basketball Court 1 2 2

C126 Open Turf 1 2 2

C125 Volleyball Court 1 2 2

C124 Playground, Local 1 2 2

727



XW

XW

XW

Park West

River Park North

Proposed Linear Park

C047- Ope n Turf

C043- Loop Walk

C064- Picnic Groun d

Stanford Crossing Open Space

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

River Park North ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

728



River Park North

3.6

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 2

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score3.6TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 3.2
Initial Inventory Date:

Minimally developed. Lacks ornamentals and amenities.

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L013 PARCEL 1 2 2

C064 Picnic Ground 1 1 1 6 tables.  Under developed.

729



XW
XW

XW

XWXWXW

XW

Mossdale South

C116- Dog Park

C115- Open Turf

C067- Picnic Groun d
C066- She lter, Large

C068- Trail, Multi-use

C113- Playg round, LocalC114-Bas ketball, Practice

River Park South

Mossdale Landing Community Park

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

River Park South ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

730



River Park South

24

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 2

Shade 2

Restrooms 2

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score24Total

Neighborhood
GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 7.4
Initial Inventory Date:

Good use of this land

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L014 PARCEL 1 2 2

C116 Dog Park 1 2 2

C068 Trail, Multi-use 1 2 2

C067 Picnic Ground 1 2 2 9 tables

C066 Shelter, Large 1 2 2

731



XW XW

XW

XW XW

Somerston Park

C091- Loop Walk

C090- Ope n Turf
C092- Playg round, LocalC089-Water Acce ss, Deve loped

C093- Rec tangular Field, Large

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Somerston Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

732



Somerston Park

28.8

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score28.8TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 2.0
Initial Inventory Date:

Lacks shade. 

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L022 PARCEL 1 2 2

C093 Rectangular Field, 
Large

1 2 2 Hill in field

C092 Playground, Local 1 2 2 New equipment on EWF

C091 Loop Walk 1 2 2

C090 Open Turf 1 2 2

C089 Water Access, 
Developed

1 2 2

733



XW

XW

XW

Summer House Park

Crystal Cove Park

C087- Ope n Turf

C088- Picnic Groun d

C107- Garden , Display

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Summer House Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

734



Summer House Park

19.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 3

Seasonal Plantings 2

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 1

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score19.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 2.1
Initial Inventory Date:

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L021 PARCEL 1 2 2

C107 Garden, Display 1 2 2

C088 Picnic Ground 1 2 2

C087 Open Turf 1 2 2

735



XW

XW

XW

XW

The Green

C036- Ope n Turf

C038- Picnic Groun d

C039- She lter, Sma ll

C035- Playg round, Loc al

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

The Green ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

736



The Green

7.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 1

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 2

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score7.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 1.0
Initial Inventory Date:

Park is not to the system standard. Turf struggling, playground tiny, fewer ornamentals.

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L008 PARCEL 1 2 2

C039 Shelter, Small 1 1 1 Non standard shelter.

C038 Picnic Ground 1 1 1 Four tables with bbqs and trash
cans.

C036 Open Turf 1 1 1 Low turf quality

C035 Playground, Local 1 1 1 Very minimal

737



XW
Thomsen Park

C071- Ope n Turf

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Thomsen Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

738



Thomsen Park

4.4

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score4.4TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 0.8
Initial Inventory Date:

Open turf storm detention pond

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L016 PARCEL 1 2 2

C071 Open Turf 1 2 2

739



XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

Tidewater Park

C082- Ope n Turf

C108- Picnic Groun d

C081- Bas ketba ll Court

C080- Playg round, Loc al

C079- Water Acce ss, Deve loped

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Tidewater Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

740



Tidewater Park

28.8

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 2

Parking 2

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score28.8TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 2.1
Initial Inventory Date:

Lacks shade

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L019 PARCEL 1 2 2

C108 Picnic Ground 1 2 2

C082 Open Turf 1 2 2

C081 Basketball Court 1 2 2 Needs striping.

C080 Playground, Local 1 2 2 On EWF. Needs EWF fill.

C079 Water Access, 
Developed

1 2 2

741



GF

GF

XW
XW

XW

XW

XW XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

Valverde Park

Lathrop Senior Center

Lathrop Community Center

C023- Loop Walk

C102- Game Cou rt

C020- Eve nt Space

C019- Con ces sions

C016- Diamon d Field
C105- Fitness CourseC017-She lter, Large

C104- Horse shoe Court

C022- Bas ketba ll Court

C021- Aqu atic s, Spray Pad

C103- Edu cationa l Exp erien ce

C018- Playg round, Destination

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Valverde Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

742



Valverde Park

62.4

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 2

Parking 2

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 2

Restrooms 2

Bike Parking 2

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score80.6TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 10.8
Initial Inventory Date:

Diverse components and next to community and senior centers

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L004 PARCEL 1 2 2

C105 Fitness Course 1 2 2

C104 Horseshoe Court 2 2 2 Doesn’ t meet park standard

C103 Educational Experience 1 2 2 Veterans Memorial

C102 Game Court 1 2 2 Bocce ball

C023 Loop Walk 1 2 2

C022 Basketball Court 3 2 2

C021 Aquatics, Spray Pad 1 1 1 Minimal

C020 Event Space 1 2 2

C019 Concessions 1 2 2

C018 Playground, Destination 1 2 2 Many pieces on PIP. Sun faded. 
Near restroom and shelter.

C017 Shelter, Large 1 2 2

C016 Diamond Field 2 1 1 Outfield turf problems. No outfield
fencing.

743



XW
XW

XWWoodfieldPark
C014- Ope n Turf

C012- Playg round, Loc al

C013- Bas ketba ll, Prac tice

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Woodfield Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

744



Woodfield Park

19.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 2

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 0

Shade 2

Restrooms 2

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

2

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score19.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 5.5
Initial Inventory Date:

Fenced in storm water detention basin. Poorly designed handicap parking.

2

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L003 PARCEL 1 2 2

C014 Open Turf 1 1 1 Storm water basin. Inconsistent
turf condition

C013 Basketball, Practice 1 2 2

C012 Playground, Local 1 3 3 Diverse newer equipment on PIP. 

745



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

746



Lathrop, CA
Inventory Atlas

March 2020

Alternative Providers/
Unfinished Parks

747



XW

XW
XW XW

XW

XW

XW

XW XW

Community Park

C139- Game Cou rt

C141- Con ces sions

C142- Battin g Cage

C145- Diamon d FieldC144-Diamon d Field

C143- Diamon d Field

C140- She lter, Large
C137- She lter, Sma ll

C138- Playg round, Loc al

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Community Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

748



Community Park

22

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score28.6TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 14.2
Initial Inventory Date:

Proposed park land. GIS boundary not true.

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L029 PARCEL 1 2 2

C145 Diamond Field 1 2 2

C144 Diamond Field 2 2 2

Baseball field. Planned and
funded.

Little league baseball/ softball. 
Planned and funded.

C143 Diamond Field 1 2 2 T-ball field. Planned and funded.

C142 Batting Cage 2 2 2 Planned and funded.

C141 Concessions 1 2 2 Planned and funded.

C140 Shelter, Large 1 2 2 Planned and funded.

C139 Game Court 1 2 2 Interactive ball court. Planned and
funded.

C138 Playground, Local 1 2 2 Planned and funded.

C137 Shelter, Small 2 2 2 Planned and funded.

749



XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

Dos Reis Regional Park

Proposed Stanford Crossing Community Park

C123- Picnic Ground

C010- Horseshoe Court

C009- Camping, Defined

C008- Playground, Local

C007- Water Access, Developed

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/ Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GISUserCommunity

Dos Reis Regional Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

750



Dos Reis Regional Park

9.6

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 1

Ornamental Plantings 1

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 2

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 2

Shade 2

Restrooms 2

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 1

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score40.8TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 8.9
Initial Inventory Date:

Restrooms have showers. Park generally run down.

0

12/11/2019

Owner San Juoquin County

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L002 PARCEL 1 2 2

C123 Picnic Ground 1 1 1 Very worn tables

C010 Horseshoe Court 2 1 1 Degraded

C009 Camping, Defined 26 1 1 Full hookups, tables, shade.

C008 Playground, Local 1 1 1 Aged and minimal

C007 Water Access, 
Developed

1 2 2

751



Horizon Detention

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Horizon Detention ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

752



Horizon Detention

0

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

0

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score0Total

Neighborhood
GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 1.9
Initial Inventory Date:

Undeveloped drainage basin. Was formerly a park.

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L031 PARCEL 1 2 2

753



XW

Possible SkatePark Parcel

Possible SkatePark Parcel

Lathrop Skate ParkC070-Ska te Park

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Possible SkatePark Parcel ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

754



Possible SkatePark Parcel

0

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

0

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score0Total

Neighborhood
GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 2.0
Initial Inventory Date:

Park is undeveloped

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L024 PARCEL 1 2 2

755



XW

XW

XW

Mossdale Crossing Park

C031- Trailhea d

C030- Picnic Groun d

C029- Water Acce ss, Deve loped

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Mossdale Crossing Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

756



Mossdale Crossing Park

8.4

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 1

Ornamental Plantings 2

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 2

Park Access 2

Trail Connection 2

Shade 2

Restrooms 2

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 2

Dog Pick-Up Station 2

BBQ Grills 2

Seating 2

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score8.4TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 4.0
Initial Inventory Date:

Water access point and parking

0

12/11/2019

Owner San Juoquin County

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L006 PARCEL 1 2 2

C031 Trailhead 1 2 2

C030 Picnic Ground 1 1 1 Tables broken and worn down.

C029 Water Access, 
Developed

1 2 2

757



XW

Proposed Linear Park

Park West

Stanford Crossing Open Space

StanfordCrossing1

Proposed Stanford Crossing Community Park

StanfordCrossing3

River Park North

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/ Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GISUserCommunity

Proposed Linear Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

758



Proposed Linear Park

2.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score2.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 26.7
Initial Inventory Date:

Park is undeveloped

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L036 PARCEL 1 2 2

759



Proposed Stanford Crossing Community Park

Proposed Linear Park

Dos Reis Regional Park

Stanford Crossing Open Space

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Proposed Stanford Crossing Community Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

760



Proposed Stanford Crossing Community Park

2.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score2.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 38.9
Initial Inventory Date:

Park is undeveloped, planned, but not funded.

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L038 PARCEL 1 2 2

761



XW

XW

XW

XW

XW XW

XW XWXW

XW

Soccer fields

Town Center Community Park

C130- Loop Walk

C129- Eve nt Space

C135- Tennis Cou rt

C151- Diamon d Field

C133- She lter, Sma ll

C136- Garden , Commun ity

C131- Playg round, LocalC132-Aqu atic s, Spray Pad

C134- Bas ketba ll, Prac tice

C119- Rectan gular Field , Complex

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Soccer fields ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

762



Soccer fields

4.4

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score11Total

Neighborhood
GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 38.8
Initial Inventory Date:

Large private sporting grounds . GIS boundary not true.

0

12/11/2019

Owner Private

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L027 PARCEL 1 2 2

C151 Diamond Field 1 Y 0 3 Large established stadium

C119 Rectangular Field, 
Complex

1 2 2

763



GF

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

Generations Center

Stanford Crossing Basin Park

Lathrop Gene rations Center

C150- Game Cou rt

C077- Eve nt Space

C149- Picnic Groun d

C076- Bas ketba ll Court

C148- Playg round, Loc al

C122- Garden , Commun ity

C146- Diamon d Field , Practice

C147- Rec tangular Field, Large

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Stanford Crossing Basin Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

764



Stanford Crossing Basin Park

13.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score13.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 4.1
Initial Inventory Date:

Park is undeveloped

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L035 PARCEL 1 2 2

C150 Game Court 1 2 2 Planned and funded

C149 Picnic Ground 1 2 2 Planned and funded

C148 Playground, Local 1 2 2 Planned and funded

C147 Rectangular Field, 
Large

1 2 2 Planned and funded

C146 Diamond Field, Practice 1 2 2 Planned and funded

765



XW

Proposed Linear Park

Park West

Stanford Crossing Open Space

StanfordCrossing1

Proposed Stanford Crossing Community Park

StanfordCrossing3

River Park North

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/ Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GISUserCommunity

Stanford Crossing Open Space ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

766



Stanford Crossing Open Space

2.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score2.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 16.4
Initial Inventory Date:

Park is undeveloped

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L037 PARCEL 1 2 2

767



StanfordCrossing1

Proposed Linear Park

Stanford Crossing Open Space

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

StanfordCrossing1 ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

768



StanfordCrossing1

2.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score2.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 5.0
Initial Inventory Date:

Park is undeveloped

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L032 PARCEL 1 2 2

769



StanfordCrossing2

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

StanfordCrossing2 ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

770



StanfordCrossing2

2.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score2.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 4.5
Initial Inventory Date:

Park is undeveloped

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L033 PARCEL 1 2 2

771



StanfordCrossing3

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

StanfordCrossing3 ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

772



StanfordCrossing3

2.2

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score2.2TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 5.1
Initial Inventory Date:

Park is undeveloped

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L034 PARCEL 1 2 2

773



XW

XW

XW

XW XW

XW
XW

XW

Soccer fields

Town Center Community Park

C130- Loop Walk

C129- Eve nt Space

C135- Tennis Cou rt

C133- She lter, Sma ll

C136- Garden , Commun ity

C131- Playg round, Loc al

C132- Aqu atic s, Spray Pad

C134- Bas ketba ll, Prac tice

Source: Esri, Dig italGlobe , Geo Eye, Earths tar Geo graphics ,
CNES/ Airbu s DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS UserCommunity

Town Center Community Park ¯
XW Component GF Indoor Park Incomplete

774



Town Center Community Park

19.8

Components with Score

Picnic Tables 0

Ornamental Plantings 0

Seasonal Plantings 0

Parking 0

Park Access 0

Trail Connection 0

Shade 0

Restrooms 0

Bike Parking 0

Security Lighting 0

Dog Pick-Up Station 0

BBQ Grills 0

Seating 0

Drinking Fountains Design and Ambiance

1

General Comments

Total Community
GRASP® Score28.6TotalNeighborhood

GRASP® Score

Modifiers with Scores

Approximate Park Acreage: 16.5
Initial Inventory Date:

Proposed park land .GIS boundary not true.

0

12/11/2019

Owner Lathrop

MAPID Component Quantity Lights
Neighborhood

Score
Community

Score
Comments

L030 PARCEL 1 2 2

C136 Garden, Community 1 2 2 Planned and funded.

C135 Tennis Court 2 2 2 Planned and funded.

C134 Basketball, Practice 4 2 2 Half court, Planned and funded.

C133 Shelter, Small 1 2 2 Planned and funded.

C132 Aquatics, Spray Pad 1 2 2 Planned and funded.

C131 Playground, Local 1 2 2 Planned and funded.

C130 Loop Walk 1 2 2 Planned and funded.

C129 Event Space 1 2 2 Amphitheater. Planned and funded.

775



Lathrop, CA
Inventory Atlas

March 2020

Indoor Facilities

776



GRASP® Indoor Component List

GRASP® Indoor

Component Type
Definition

Arts and Crafts A room with non-carpeted floor, built- in storage for materials, and a sink.  Often adjacent

to a kiln room.

Auditorium/ Theater A large room designed specifically as a performance/ lecture space that includes a built- in

stage, seating, and can accommodate stage lighting and sound amplification.

Childcare/ Preschool A room or space with built in secure entry and cabinets, a small toilet, designated outdoor

play area, etc.  Intended for short- term child watch or half or full day preschool use.

Fitness/ Dance A room with resilient flooring and mirrors.

Food - Counter Service Staffed food service with commercial kitchen and no waiter services.

Food - Full Service Staffed food service with commercial kitchen and dining room with waiter services.

Food - Vending Non- staffed area with vending machines and/ or self- service food options.

Gallery/ Exhibits A space intended for display of art, interpretive information, or other type of exhibit.  

Typically has adequate lighting, open wall space, and room for circulation.

Sport Court Active recreation space that can accommodate basketball, volleyball, or other indoor court

sports with one or more courts designated in quantity.

Track, Indoor Course with painted lanes, banked corners, resilient surface, and marked distances

suitable for exercise walking, jogging, or running.

Kitchen - Kitchenette Area for preparing, warming, or serving food.

Kitchen - Commercial Kitchen that meets local codes for commercial preparation food services.

Lobby/ Entryway An area at the entry of a building intended for sitting and waiting or relaxing.

Multi- purpose Room A space that can host a variety of activities including events, classes, meetings, banquets, 
medical or therapeutic uses, etc.  Also includes rooms or areas designated or intended to

be used as game rooms, libraries, or lounges.  Rooms may be dividable.

Patio/ outdoor seating An outdoor space or seating area designed to be used exclusively in conjunction with an

indoor space and primarily accessed through an indoor space.

Retail/ Pro- shop An area for retail sales of sporting equipment, gifts, etc.  Typically has direct access from

outdoors and can be secured separately from the rest of a building or facility.

Sauna/ steam A facility with built- in seating and a heat source intended for heat therapy.  May be steam

or dry heat.

Specialty Services Any specialty services available at an indoor location.  

Specialty Training Any specialty training available at an indoor location.  Includes gymnastics and circuit
training.

Weight/ Cardio Equipment A room or area with weight and cardio equipment, resilient or anti- bacterial flooring, 
adequate ventilation and ceiling heights appropriate for high intensity workouts.

Woodshop A rooms with wood- working equipment that contains an adequate power supply and
ventilation.

Note:  Any component from the outdoor component list may be included as an indoor component

777



GRASP® Atlas

Lathrop CommunityCenter12/11/2019

2

Small center with gym and multipurpose room

Inventory Date:

Modifiers with Scores

8.4
Total Indoor
GRASP® Score

General Comments

1

Design andAmbianceSiteAccess

2Aesthetics

1Entry

1EntryAesthetics

2BuildingCondition

2EntryDesk

1OfficeSpace

2OverallStorage

2Restrooms

0LockerRooms

Components with Score

Component Quantity Indoor Score Comments

Patio/outdoor seating 1 2 Picnic area

Multi-purpose Room 1 1 Small class room

Sport Court 1 2 Gymnasium

Kitchen - Kitchenette 1 2 Food warming

778



GRASP® Atlas

Lathrop GenerationsCenter12/11/2019

2

Library and teen center

Inventory Date:

Modifiers with Scores

24
Total Indoor
GRASP® Score

General Comments

2

Design andAmbianceSiteAccess

2Aesthetics

2Entry

2EntryAesthetics

2BuildingCondition

2EntryDesk

1OfficeSpace

2OverallStorage

2Restrooms

0LockerRooms

Components with Score

Component Quantity Indoor Score Comments

Educational Experience 1 2 Public library with two study rooms

Food - Counter Service 1 2 Small packaged lunch service for students

Multi-purpose Room 3 2 Teen lounge, classroom, and shared computer lab.

779



GRASP® Atlas

Lathrop SeniorCenter12/11/2019

2

Dated modular building with multipurpose rooms.

Inventory Date:

Modifiers with Scores

13.2
Total Indoor
GRASP® Score

General Comments

1

Design andAmbianceSiteAccess

1Aesthetics

1Entry

1EntryAesthetics

1BuildingCondition

2EntryDesk

1OfficeSpace

2OverallStorage

2Restrooms

0LockerRooms

Components with Score

Component Quantity Indoor Score Comments

Patio/outdoor seating 1 2 Picnic area

Kitchen - Commercial 1 2 Meal prep

Weight/ cardio Equipment 1 1 Tiny side-room with two machines.

Multi-purpose Room 3 2 Dining room, Computer room, Game room,

780



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 6. 1
DECEMBER 14, 2020 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPOINTMENT OF VICE MAYOR

RECOMMENDATION:     Mayor to Appoint Vice Mayor for 2021

BAC KG ROU N D:

Chapter I,  Section F of the City Council Handbook of Rules and Procedures

provides: " The Vice Mayor shall be appointed by the Mayor for a one- year term at
the first meeting in December.   If,  in any year in which an election for Mayor of
Council takes place,  and the first meeting in December occurs prior to the
certification of election results, then action under this section shall be delayed to
the next meeting of the City Council, either regular or special."

Furthermore, as prescribed in the California Election Code 36801:   The city council
shall meet at the meeting at which the declaration of the election results for a
general municipal election is made pursuant to Sections 10262 and 10263 of the
Elections Code and,  following the declaration of the election results and the
installation of elected officials, choose one of its number as mayor, and one of its
number as mayor pro tempore.

At this time, staff is requesting the appointment to be made by the Mayor.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

ATTACHMENTS:

None.

APPROVALS:

o
T resa Vargas Date

ity Clerk

f`      

2 c

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

lZ '• ZOT.O
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

781


	2020-12-14 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda
	2020-12-14 Item 4.2 Approval of Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of November 9, 2020
	2020-12-14 Item 4.3 Community Facilities Districts Annual Bond Accountability Report For FY 2019_20
	2020-12-14 Item 4.4 Approve Proposed Fiscal Year 2021_22 & Fiscal Year 2022_23 Biennial Budget Calendar
	2020-12-14 Item 4.5 Declare Certain Vehicles & Equipment Surplus Property & Authorize Their Disposal
	2020-12-14 Item 4.6 Reclassify Add & Amend Job Classifications & Upgrade Grade Step Table
	2020-12-14 Item 4.7 Create CIP PS 21-06 Lathrop Road & Harlan Road Intersection Improvements
	2020-12-14 Item 4.8 Authorize Temporary Road Closure on Louise Avenue at Harlan Road
	2020-12-14 Item 4.9 Acceptance of Public Improvements for the Buzz Oats Development Located at 17100 Murphy Parkway
	2020-12-14 Item 4.10 Approve Task Order No. 19 with 4Leaf, Inc
	2020-12-14 Item 4.11 Approve Professional Services Agreements for CIP WW 20-17 Surface Water Discharge Project
	2020-12-14 Item 4.12 Approve Service Contract for Interior Furnishings & Design for CIP GG 19-08 Police Building
	2020-12-14 Item 4.13 Approve Axon Enterprise, Inc. Purchase for Equipment & Software CIP GG 19-08
	2020-12-14 Item 4.14 Information Technology Professional Offsite Data Backup & Distaster Recovery Services
	2020-12-14 Item 4.15 Approval of FM, CFD Annexation & SIA for Tract 4055 Village DD within Lakeside West District of River Islands
	2020-12-14 Item 5.1 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider CDBG-CV3 Funding Allocation
	2020-12-14 Item 5.2 Review & Provide Direction on Proposed Items for Inclusion as Part of CIP PK 20-18 Sangalang Park
	2020-12-14 Item 5.3 Receive & Open Public Review Period of the Lathrop Parks & Recreation Master Plan
	2020-12-14 Item 6.1 Appointment of Vice Mayor



